
Document Number: 2104117 V1 

AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL,  
HELD ELECTRONICALLY FROM CITY HALL,  
141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC, ON 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2021 AT 5:30 PM 

 
 

“Live” Broadcast via City Website www.cnv.org/LiveStreaming 
Complete Agenda Package available at www.cnv.org/CouncilMeetings 

 
The City of North Vancouver acknowledges that this Council meeting is held on the 

traditional territories of the Squamish and Tsleil-Waututh Nations. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, October 18, 2021 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes, September 29, 2021 
 
3. Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes, October 4, 2021 
 
4. Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes, October 8, 2021 
 
PROCLAMATION 
 

Waste Reduction Week 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items *5 and *6 are listed in the Consent Agenda and may be considered separately or 
in one motion. 
 
BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
*5. “Taxation Exemption Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871” 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
*6. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, September 24, 2021 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 2 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – 705 West 3rd Street 
 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING 
 
7. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839” 

(Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd 
Street, CD-735) 

 
8. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840” (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / 

Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd Street, CD-735, Rental Housing 
Commitments) 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – 2762 Lonsdale Avenue 
 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING 
 
9. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874” 

(Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale 
Avenue, CD-740) 

 
10. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875” (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / 

Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740, Rental Housing 
Commitments) 

 
11. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870” 

(L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates, 620 Jones Avenue, CD-738) 
 
REPORT 
 
12. 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
13. “Financial Plan for the Years 2021 to 2030 Bylaw, 2021, No. 8822, Amendment 

Bylaw, 2021, No. 8881” (Revised Financial Plan) 
 
REPORTS 
 
14. Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre – Project Update and Next Steps 
 
15. North Vancouver Recreation and Culture Commission Interim Recreation and 

Culture Service Plan 
 
16. Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw Renewal 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
17. “Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879” 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 3 

 
REPORT 
 
18. Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan 

Amendment and Zoning Bylaw Amendment 
 
BYLAWS – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
19. “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, 

No. 8757” (Change Residential Levels in the Duplex Special Study Area – 
Northern Part and Revise the Duplex Special Study Area Boundary) 

 
20. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8758” 

(New Residential Levels in the Duplex Special Study Area – Northern Part, RT-1) 
 
REPORT 
 
21. Rezoning Application: 322 West 14th Street (Farid Sayari / Royal Palace 

Construction and Design) 
 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
22. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8873” 

(Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction and Design, 322 West 14th Street,  
CD-739) 

 
REPORT 
 
23. Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp 

Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., CD-741) 
 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
24. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” 

(Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith 
Road, CD-741) 

 
REPORT 
 
25. Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update 
 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
26. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8882” 

(Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems) 
 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
ADJOURN  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 4 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
1. Regular Council Meeting Agenda, October 18, 2021 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
2. Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes, September 29, 2021 
 
3. Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes, October 4, 2021 
 
4. Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes, October 8, 2021 
 
PROCLAMATION 
 

Waste Reduction Week 
 
PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
The Public Input Period is addressed in sections 12.20 to 12.28 of “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, 
No. 8500.” 
 
The time allotted for each speaker addressing Council during the Public Input Period is 2 minutes, 
with the number of speakers set at 5 persons.  Speakers’ comments will be audio recorded, as well 
as live-streamed on the City’s website, and will form part of the public record. 
 
As City Hall remains closed to the public, the Regular Council Meetings will be held electronically via 
“WebEx”.  To speak during the Public Input Period of a Regular Council Meeting, pre-registration is 
required by completing an online form at cnv.org/PublicInputPeriod.  Persons can also pre-register 
by phoning 604-990-4230 and providing contact information.  All pre-registration must be 
submitted no later than 12:00 noon on the day of the meeting. 
 
Once you have pre-registered, you will receive login/call-in instructions via email/phone. 
 
You will be required to login or phone into the Council meeting between 5:00 and 5:15 pm on the 
day of the meeting.  At the meeting, speakers will be asked to state their name and address for the 
record.  If speakers have written materials to accompany their presentation, these materials must be 
emailed to the Corporate Officer at clerks@cnv.org no later than 12:00 noon on the day of the 
meeting. 
 
The Public Input Period provides an opportunity for comment only and places the speaker’s concern 
on record, without the expectation of a response from Council. 
 
Speakers must comply with the General Rules of Conduct set out in section 5.1 of “Council 
Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500” and may not speak with respect to items as listed in section 
12.25(2). 
 
Speakers are requested not to address matters that refer to items from a concluded Public 
Hearing/Public Meeting or to Public Hearings, Public Meetings and Committee meetings when those 
matters are scheduled on the same evening’s agenda, as an opportunity for public input is provided 
when the particular item comes forward for discussion. 
 
Please address the Mayor as “Your Worship” or “Mayor, followed by his/her surname”.  Councillors 
should be addressed as “Councillor, followed by their surname”.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 5 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Items *5 and *6 are listed in the Consent Agenda and may be considered separately or 
in one motion. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
*5. “Taxation Exemption Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871” 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Taxation Exemption Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871” be adopted, signed by the 
Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
*6. Board in Brief, Metro Vancouver Regional District, September 24, 2021 

– File: 01-0400-60-0006/2020 
 
 Re: Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT the correspondence from Metro Vancouver, dated September 24, 2021, 
regarding the “Metro Vancouver – Board in Brief”, be received and filed. 

 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 6 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – 705 West 3rd Street – 5:30 pm 
 
“Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839” (Marine and 
Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd Street, CD-735) 
would rezone the subject property from a Service Commercial (CS-1) Zone to a 
Comprehensive Development 735 (CD-735) Zone to permit the development of a 
6-storey, 70 market rental unit apartment building, above a commercial ground floor that 
is proposed to be occupied by a child care facility. Two levels of underground parking 
for 87 vehicles are proposed. The proposed density is 2.60 times the lot area. 
 
Bylaw Nos. 8839 and 8840 to be considered under Items 7 and 8. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Staff presentation 
Applicant presentation 
Representations from the public 
Questions from Council 
Motion to conclude the Public Hearing 

 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING 
 
7. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839” 

(Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd 
Street, CD-735) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839” 
(Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd 
Street, CD-735) be given third reading. 

 
8. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840” (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / 

Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd Street, CD-735, Rental Housing 
Commitments) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840” (Marine and Bewicke Project 
Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd Street, CD-735, Rental 
Housing Commitments) be given third reading. 

 
 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 7 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (following Item 7) 
 
“Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874” (Red Upper 
Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740) and 
“Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875” (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / 
Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740, Rental Housing 
Commitments) would rezone the subject property from a Residential Medium Density 
(RM-1) Zone to a Comprehensive Development 740 (CD-740) Zone to permit a 6-storey 
rental apartment building with 60 units, underground parking and rooftop and ground-
floor amenity spaces. 
 
Bylaw Nos. 8874 and 8875 to be considered under Items 9 and 10. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Staff presentation 
Applicant presentation 
Representations from the public 
Questions from Council 
Motion to conclude the Public Hearing 

 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING 
 
9. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874” 

(Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale 
Avenue, CD-740) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874” 
(Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale 
Avenue, CD-740) be given third reading. 

 
10. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875” (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / 

Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740, Rental Housing 
Commitments) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875” (Red Upper Lonsdale 
Projects Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740, Rental 
Housing Commitments) be given third reading. 

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 8 

 
BYLAWS – THIRD READING – Continued  
 
11. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870” 

(L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates, 620 Jones Avenue, CD-738) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870” 
(L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates, 620 Jones Avenue, CD-738) be given third 
reading. 

 
Public Hearing waived. 

 
REPORT 
 
12. 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan – File: 05-1715-20-0020/2021 
 

Report: Chief Financial Officer and Director, Finance, October 6, 2021 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer and Director, Finance, 
dated October 6, 2021, entitled “2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan”: 

 
THAT the amendments to the 2021-2030 Capital Plan for “Harry Jerome 
Community Recreation Centre” (Project #45232), “Silver Harbour” (Project 
#45293) and “Lawn Bowling” (Project #45292) be endorsed; 
 
AND THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2021 to 2030 Bylaw, 2021, No. 8822, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8881” (Revised Financial Plan) be considered. 

 
Item 13 refers. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
13. “Financial Plan for the Years 2021 to 2030 Bylaw, 2021, No. 8822, Amendment 

Bylaw, 2021, No. 8881” (Revised Financial Plan) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2021 to 2030 Bylaw, 2021, No. 8822, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8881” (Revised Financial Plan) be given first, 
second and third readings. 

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 9 

 
REPORTS 
 
14. Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre – Project Update and Next Steps 

– File: 02-0800-30-0028/1 
 

Report: Deputy Director, Strategic and Corporate Services, October 12, 2021 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, Strategic and Corporate 
Services, dated October 12, 2021, entitled “Harry Jerome Community Recreation 
Centre – Project Update and Next Steps”: 
 
THAT staff be authorized to advance the construction tender for the “Site 
Preparation and Excavation” scope of work for the Harry Jerome Community 
Recreation Centre project with contract award to be held until full project funding 
is in place; 
 
THAT the funding reallocation be approved for the purposes of advancing the 
Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre site power modifications, as follows:  

 
NVRCC Fibre Net Connect HJ&CT (Project 40346) $35,000 
2019 NVRCC Equipment (Project 40372) $30,000 
NVRCC Buildings 2018 (Project 45272) $155,026 
NVRCC John Braithwaite Rec Centre (Project 45285) $37,101 
NVRCC Facility Access Control (Project 45290) $60,000 
2020 NVRCC – HJ Major Repairs (Project 45313) $21,045 
Total: $338,172 

 
AND THAT staff report back with a Class A estimate to seek approval to advance 
the full Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre project to construction, 
inclusive of Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre, with project funding in place. 

 
15. NVRC Interim Recreation and Culture Service Plan – File: 01-0360-20-0074/2021 
 

Report: Director, North Vancouver Recreation and Culture, October 13, 2021 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, North Vancouver Recreation and 
Culture, dated October 13, 2021, entitled “NVRC Interim Recreation and Culture 
Service Plan”: 
 
THAT the report be received for information and filed. 

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 10 

 
REPORTS – Continued  
 
16. Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw Renewal 

– File: 01-0230-20-0026/2021 
 

Report: Deputy Director, Community and Partner Engagement, October 5, 2021 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, Community and Partner 
Engagement, dated October 5, 2021, entitled “Lower Lonsdale Business 
Improvement Area Service Bylaw Renewal”: 
 
THAT “Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, 
No. 8879” be considered. 

 
Item 17 refers. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
17. “Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879” 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, 
No. 8879” be given first, second and third readings. 

 
REPORT 
 
18. Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan 

Amendment and Zoning Bylaw Amendment – File: 13-6520-20-0056/1 
 

Report: Planner 2, October 6, 2021 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated October 6, 2021, entitled 
“Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan 
Amendment and Zoning Bylaw Amendment”: 
 
THAT the following bylaws be considered and referred to a Public Hearing: 
 

 “Official Community Plan Bylaw, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, 
No. 8757” (A Bylaw to Change Residential Levels in the Duplex Special 
Study Area – Northern Part and Revise the Duplex Special Study Area 
Boundary); and 

 
Continued… 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 11 

 
REPORT – Continued  
 
18. Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan 

Amendment and Zoning Bylaw Amendment – File: 13-6520-20-0056/1 – Continued 
 

 “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8758” 
(New Residential Levels in the Duplex Special Study Area, RT-1); 

 
AND THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government 
Act. 
 
Items 19 and 20 refer. 

 
BYLAWS – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
19. “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, 

No. 8757” (Change Residential Levels in the Duplex Special Study Area – 
Northern Part and Revise the Duplex Special Study Area Boundary) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 
2021, No. 8757” (Change Residential Levels in the Duplex Special Study Area – 
Northern Part and Revise the Duplex Special Study Area Boundary) be given first 
and second readings. 

 
20. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8758” 

(New Residential Levels in the Duplex Special Study Area – Northern Part, RT-1) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8758” 
(New Residential Levels in the Duplex Special Study Area – Northern Part, 
RT-1) be given first and second readings. 

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 12 

 
REPORT 
 
21. Rezoning Application: 322 West 14th Street (Farid Sayari / Royal Palace 

Construction and Design) – File: 08-3400-20-0019/1 
 

Report: Planner 1, October 6, 2021 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 1, dated October 6, 2021, entitled 
“Rezoning Application: 322 West 14th Street (Farid Sayari / Royal Palace 
Construction and Design)”: 
 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8873” 
(Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction and Design, 322 West 14th Street, 
CD-739) be considered and the Public Hearing be waived; 
 
THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act;  
 
THAT the community benefits listed in the report section Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits be secured through agreements at the applicant’s expense 
and to the satisfaction of staff; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the necessary 
documentation to give effect to this motion 
 
Item 22 refers. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
22. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8873” 

(Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction and Design, 322 West 14th Street, CD-739) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8873” 
(Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction and Design, 322 West 14th Street, 
CD-739) be given first and second readings. 

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 13 

 
REPORT 
 
23. Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp 

Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., CD-741) – File: 08-3400-20-0058/1 
 

Report: Planner 2, October 6, 2021 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated October 6, 2021, entitled 
“Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp 
Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., CD-741)”: 
 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” 
(Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith 
Road, CD-741) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing; 
 
THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act; 
 
THAT staff be directed to receive and review detailed drawings for the proposal; 
 
THAT all conditions noted in the report section, Project Conditions, be addressed 
prior to the scheduling of a Public Hearing; 
 
THAT the community benefits listed in the report section, Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits, be secured through agreements at the applicant’s 
expense and to the satisfaction of staff; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the 
necessary documentation to give effect to this motion. 
 
Information Report entitled “Pilot Development Approvals Process – Engagement 
Update”, dated October 6, 2021, refers. 
 
Item 24 refers. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
24. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” 

(Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith 
Road, CD-741) 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” 
(Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith 
Road, CD-741) be given first and second readings. 

 
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
Regular Council Meeting Agenda – October 18, 2021 Page 14 

 
REPORT 
 
25. Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update 

– File: 09-3900-30-0004/1 
 

Report: Planner 1, October 6, 2021 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 1, dated October 6, 2021, entitled 
“Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update”: 
 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8882” 
(Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems) be considered and referred to a Public 
Hearing; 
 
AND THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government 
Act. 
 
Item 26 refers. 

 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
26. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8882” 

(Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8882” 
(Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems) be given first and second readings. 

 
COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
ADJOURN 
 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 
 

Document Number: 1914910 V1 

 
PUBLIC HEARING GUIDELINES FOR ELECTRONIC MEETINGS 

 
Public Hearings are included as part of a Regular Council agenda and governed by the 
provisions of the Local Government Act.   
 
A Public Hearing is held to allow the public an opportunity to make representations to 
Council – in person at the Public Hearing or by written submission – on a proposed 
amendment to the City's Official Community Plan and/or Zoning Bylaw.  All persons who 
believe their interest in property is affected by a proposed bylaw(s) are afforded a 
reasonable opportunity to be heard, voice concerns or present written submissions 
regarding matters contained within the bylaw(s). 
 
All written submissions and representations made at the Public Hearing form part of the 
official public record.  Minutes of the Public Hearing and a video recording of the 
proceedings will be posted on the City’s website at cnv.org. 
 
All written submissions must include the person’s name and address.  If this information 
is not provided, it cannot be included as part of the public record.  Electronic 
submissions are preferred, and hand-delivered or mailed submissions will also be 
accepted.  The deadline to submit email submissions is 12:00 noon on the day of the 
Public Hearing.  Due to COVID-19, safety quarantine restrictions have been put in place 
and the deadline for submissions by mail or delivery to City Hall is 4:00 pm on the 
Friday prior to the Monday Public Hearing (a minimum of one clear day prior to the 
Public Hearing). 
 
If persons wish to speak at the Public Hearing, we ask that everyone pre-register to be 
placed on the speaker’s list.  The pre-registration form is available at 
cnv.org/PublicHearings, or speakers can pre-register by contacting the Corporate 
Officer’s office.  All pre-registrations must be submitted no later than 12:00 noon on the 
day of the Public Hearing, to allow City staff time to contact all participants and provide 
them with call-in/online access instructions. 
 
Comments from the public must specifically relate to the proposed bylaw(s).  Speakers 
are asked to avoid repetitive comments and not to divert to other matters. 
 
Speakers will be asked to confirm their name and address for the record and will be 
provided one, 5-minute opportunity to present their comments.  There will be no 
opportunity to speak a second time.  After all persons who have pre-registered have 
spoken, the Mayor (Chair) will ask if anyone else from the public has new information to 
provide.   Speakers who have not pre-registered will also have an opportunity to provide 
input at cnv.org/PublicHearings.  Call-in details will be displayed on-screen at the Public 
Hearing (watch web livestream).  Once all registered speakers have provided input, the 
Mayor will call for a recess to allow additional speakers time to phone in. 
  

Continued… 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 
 

Document Number: 1914910 V1 

 
PUBLIC HEARING GUIDELINES FOR ELECTRONIC MEETINGS 

(continued) 
 
Everyone will be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard and no one should feel 
discouraged or prevented from making their views known.  The City asks for everyone’s 
patience during the electronic Public Hearing. 
 
Procedural rules for the conduct of the Public Hearing are set at the call of the Chair 
and Council’s main function is to listen to the views of the public regarding the change 
of land use in the proposed bylaw(s).  It is not the function of Council to debate the 
merits of an application with speakers.  Questions from members of the public and 
Council must be addressed through the Chair. 
 
Once the Public Hearing concludes, no further information or submissions can be 
considered by Council. 
 
Following adjournment of the Public Hearing, the Regular meeting reconvenes and the 
Zoning and/or Official Community Plan bylaw amendment(s) are discussed and debated 
by members of Council, followed by consideration of third reading of the bylaw(s). 
 



Document Number: 2095365 V1 

 
 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD 

ELECTRONICALLY FROM CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH 
VANCOUVER, BC, ON WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2021 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor T. Hu  
Councillor J. McIlroy 
 
ABSENT 
 
Councillor T. Valente 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
K. Graham, Corporate Officer 
C. Baird, Deputy Corporate Officer 
H. Granger, City Solicitor 

 
The meeting was called to order at 1:00 pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Back 
 
1. Special Regular Council Meeting Agenda, September 29, 2021 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Back 

 
THAT Council recess to the Special Committee of the Whole (Closed Session) 
pursuant to the Community Charter, Section 90(1)(i) [legal advice]. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed at 1:03 pm and reconvened at 1:19 pm. 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes of September 29, 2021  

REPORT 
 
2. Proposed Amendments to Council Procedure Bylaw – File: 09-3900-02-0001/2021 
 

Report: Corporate Officer, September 27, 2021  
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Corporate Officer, dated September 27, 2021, entitled 
“Proposed Amendments to Council Procedure Bylaw”: 

 
THAT “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw, 2021,  
No. 8880” (Electronic and Hybrid Meetings and Housekeeping Amendments) be 
considered; 

 
AND THAT notice be published in accordance with Section 124(3) of the Community 
Charter. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
3. “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8880” 

(Electronic and Hybrid Meetings and Housekeeping Amendments) 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw, 2021,  
No. 8880” (Electronic and Hybrid Meetings and Housekeeping Amendments) be  
given first and second readings. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw, 2021,  
No. 8880” (Electronic and Hybrid Meetings and Housekeeping Amendments) be  
given third reading. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:22 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Corporate Officer” 
__________________________________ 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



Document Number: 2100649 

  
 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD 

ELECTRONICALLY FROM CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH 
VANCOUVER, BC, ON MONDAY, OCTOBER 4, 2021 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor T. Hu 
Councillor J. McIlroy 
Councillor T. Valente 
 
 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
K. Graham, Corporate Officer 
B. Pearce, Deputy CAO 
C. Baird, Deputy Corporate Officer 
J. Peters, Assistant City Clerk 
H. Granger, City Solicitor 
L. Sawrenko, Director, Finance 
L. Garber, Deputy Director, Finance 
M. Epp, Director, Planning and Development 
A. Devlin, Acting Deputy Director, Planning and Development  
Y. Zeng, Manager, Development Planning 
E. Chow, Planner 
M. Friesen, Manager, Strategic Initiatives 
D. Pope, Director, Engineering, Parks and Environment 
R. Skene, Director, Community and Partner Engagement 
K. Veng, CEO, Lonsdale Energy Corp. 

 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 
1. Special Regular Council Meeting Agenda, October 4, 2021 

 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 
2. Regular Council Meeting Minutes, September 27, 2021 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

PROCLAMATIONS 
 
Mayor Buchanan declared the following proclamations: 
 

World Mental Health Day – October 10, 2021 – read by Councillor Valente 

Homelessness Action Week – October 10 to 17, 2021 

Canadian Library Month – October 2021 – read by Councillor McIlroy 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 2 Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes of October 4, 2021 

PUBLIC INPUT PERIOD 
 
Nil. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT the recommendations listed within the “Consent Agenda” be approved. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
START OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
BYLAWS – ADOPTION 
 
*3. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8817” (Barry Savage / 

Integra Architecture Inc., 145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732) 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8817” (Barry 
Savage / Integra Architecture Inc., 145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732) be adopted, 
signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

 
(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 

 
*4. “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8872” (Barry Savage / Integra Architecture Inc., 

145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732, Rental Housing Commitments) 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8872” (Barry Savage / Integra 
Architecture Inc., 145-153 East 4th Street, CD-732, Rental Housing Commitments) be 
adopted, signed by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate 
seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 
*5. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8863” (Open 

Appendage / Retractable Balcony Enclosure) 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8863” (Open 
Appendage / Retractable Balcony Enclosure) be adopted, signed by the Mayor and 
Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 

(CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY) 
 
END OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 3 Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes of October 4, 2021 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

City of North Vancouver Living Wage Employer Certification – Anastasia French, 
Campaigns and Operations Organizer, Living Wage for Families Campaign 
 

Anastasia French, Living Wage for Families Campaign provided a verbal presentation 
regarding the “City of North Vancouver Living Wage Employer Certification” and responded to 
questions of Council. 
 

Presentation of 2021 Climate and Energy Action Award – Climate Adaptation – 
Patricia Bell, Director of Capacity Development, Community Energy Association 

 
Patricia Bell, Community Energy Association, provided a verbal presentation regarding the 
“Presentation of 2021 Climate and Energy Action Award” and responded to questions of 
Council. 
 
 Transport 2050 – Update to City of North Vancouver Council – Vincent Gonsalves, 

Manager, Community Engagement, TransLink 
 
Vincent Gonsalves, TransLink, provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding the “Transport 
2050 – Update to City of North Vancouver Council” and responded to questions of Council. 
 
Councillor Valente recused himself at 5:53 pm, declaring a potential conflict of interest with 
respect to Item 6 – “2022 Permissive Tax Exemptions”. 
 
REPORT 
 
6. 2022 Permissive Tax Exemptions – File: 05-1970-07-0001/2021 
 

Report: Deputy Director, Finance, September 22, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, Finance, dated September 22, 2021, 
entitled “2022 Permissive Tax Exemptions”: 
 
THAT “Taxation Exemption Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871” be considered. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
(by members remaining) 

 
BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS 
 
7. “Taxation Exemption Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871” 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Taxation Exemption Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871” be given first and second 
readings. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
(by members remaining) 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 4 Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes of October 4, 2021 

BYLAW – FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD READINGS – Continued    
 
7. “Taxation Exemption Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871” – Continued  
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 

THAT “Taxation Exemption Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871” be given third reading. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
(by members remaining) 

 
Councillor Valente returned to the meeting at 6:03 pm. 
 
REPORT 
 
8. Lonsdale Energy Corp. – 2021 Rate Review and Bylaw Amendment 

– File: 11-5500-06-0001/1 
 

Report: Chief Executive Officer, Lonsdale Energy Corp., September 22, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Executive Officer, Lonsdale Energy Corp., dated 
September 22, 2021, entitled “2021 Rate Review and Bylaw Amendment”: 
 
THAT the report and “City of North Vancouver Hydronic Energy Service Bylaw, 2004, 
No. 7575, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8878” (Schedule C and Other Fees) be 
forwarded to Lonsdale Energy Corp. customers for information and comment; 
 
AND THAT “City of North Vancouver Hydronic Energy Service Bylaw, 2004, 
No. 7575, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8878” (Schedule C and Other Fees) be 
considered and referred to a Public Meeting to receive input from Lonsdale Energy 
Corp. customers and the public. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
BYLAW – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
9. “City of North Vancouver Hydronic Energy Service Bylaw, 2004, No. 7575, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8878” (Schedule C and Other Fees) 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “City of North Vancouver Hydronic Energy Service Bylaw, 2004, No. 7575, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8878” (Schedule C and Other Fees) be given first and 
second readings. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 5 Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes of October 4, 2021 

REPORT 
 
10. Rezoning and Official Community Plan Amendment: 200-236 East 1st Street and  

207-225 East 2nd Street (North Shore Neighbourhood House Site) 
– File: 08-3400-20-0028/1 

 
Report: Planner 2, September 22, 2021 

 
Moved by Councillor Hu, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated September 22, 2021, entitled 
“Rezoning and Official Community Plan Amendment: 200-236 East 1st Street and  
207-225 East 2nd Street (North Shore Neighbourhood House Site)”: 
 
THAT “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2021,  
No. 8867” (City of North Vancouver, 200-236 East 1st Street and 207-225 East 2nd 
Street, Land Use Designation and Permitted Height Change) be considered and 
referred to a Public Hearing; 
 
THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8868” (City of 
North Vancouver, 200-236 East 1st Street and 207-225 East 2nd Street, CD-737) be 
considered and referred to a Public Hearing; 
 
THAT “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 1972, No. 4392, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8869” 
(Derek Inman Parklands Adjustment) be considered; 
 
THAT staff be directed to initiate an Alternative Approval Process regarding “Parks 
Dedication Bylaw, 1972, No. 4932, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8869” (Derek Inman 
Parklands Adjustment);  
 
AND THAT the Development Guidelines attached to the report be approved to guide 
future phases of design development. 

CARRIED 
 
Councillor Bell is recorded as voting contrary to the motion. 
 
BYLAWS – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS 
 
11. “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8867” 

(City of North Vancouver, 200-236 East 1st Street and 207-225 East 2nd Street, Land 
Use Designation and Permitted Height Change) 

 
Moved by Councillor Hu, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2021,  
No. 8867” (City of North Vancouver, 200-236 East 1st Street and 207-225 East 2nd 
Street, Land Use Designation and Permitted Height Change) be given first and second 
readings. 

CARRIED 
 
Councillor Bell is recorded as voting contrary to the motion. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 6 Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes of October 4, 2021 

BYLAWS – FIRST AND SECOND READINGS – Continued  
 
12. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8868” (City of North 

Vancouver, 200-236 East 1st Street and 207-225 East 2nd Street, CD-737) 
 
Moved by Councillor Hu, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8868” (City of 
North Vancouver, 200-236 East 1st Street and 207-225 East 2nd Street, CD-737) be 
given first and second readings. 

CARRIED 
 

Councillor Bell is recorded as voting contrary to the motion. 
 
13. “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 1972, No. 4392, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8869” (Derek 

Inman Parklands Adjustment) 
 
Moved by Councillor Hu, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Parks Dedication Bylaw, 1972, No. 4392, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8869” 
(Derek Inman Parklands Adjustment) be given first and second readings. 

 
CARRIED 

 

Councillor Bell is recorded as voting contrary to the motion. 
 
NOTICE OF MOTION 
 
14. Park Construction Noise – File: 09-3900-01-0001/2021 
 
 Submitted by Councillor Valente 
 
Moved by Councillor Valente, seconded by Councillor Back 

 
WHEREAS Council is advancing work on the management of noise in the City of 
North Vancouver pursuant to the motion unanimously endorsed at the Regular 
meeting of October 26, 2020; 
 
WHEREAS residents in many City of North Vancouver neighbourhoods where 
development and construction is occurring have advised they have been negatively 
affected by ongoing construction (i.e. noise, dust and light impacts); 
 
WHEREAS the City is embarking on park planning processes and public consultation 
regarding the construction of several parks across the City; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT staff investigate and report back to Council on 
opportunities to minimize construction noise, dust and light impacts on surrounding 
residents during park construction including, but not limited to, the use of noise 
reducing actions, such as white noise back-up beepers, and that the experience 
gained through these efforts be applied to other municipal construction efforts and 
future updates of the Noise Control Bylaw. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 7 Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes of October 4, 2021 

COUNCIL INQUIRIES / REPORTS 
 
Nil. 
 
NEW ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Nil. 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
Nil. 
 
RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 
 

THAT Council recess to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, pursuant to the 
to the Community Charter, Sections 90(1)(a) [personal information], 90(1)(e) 
[land matter], 90(1)(g) [legal matter] and 90(1)(i) [legal advice]. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting recessed to the Committee of the Whole, Closed Session, at 6:25 pm and 
reconvened at 6:59 pm. 
 
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) 
 
15. Land/Legal Matter – File: 02-0800-30-0022/1 
 

Report: Manager, Strategic Initiatives, September 28, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor Valente 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Manager, Strategic Initiatives, dated September 28, 
2021, regarding a land/legal matter: 
 
THAT the action taken by the Committee of the Whole (Closed session) be ratified; 
 
AND THAT the wording of the recommendation and the report of the Manager, 
Strategic Initiatives, dated September 28, 2021, remain in the Closed session. 

 
CARRIED 

 
Councillor Bell is recorded as voting contrary to the motion. 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver  Page 8 Special Regular Council Meeting Minutes of October 4, 2021 

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (CLOSED SESSION) – Continued  
 
16. Appointment to the North Vancouver City Library Board – File: 01-0360-20-0070/2021 
 

Report: Corporate Officer, September 15, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor McIlroy, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

PURSUANT to the report of the Corporate Officer, dated September 15, 2021, entitled 
“Appointment to the North Vancouver City Library Board”: 
 
THAT Rubina Jamal be appointed to the North Vancouver City Library Board for a  
2-year term concluding December 31, 2022; 
 
AND THAT the report of the Corporate Officer, dated September 15, 2021, entitled 
“Appointment to the North Vancouver City Library Board”, remain in the Closed 
session. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
Councillor Back and Councillor Bell are recorded as voting contrary to the motion. 
 
17. Land Matter/Legal Advice – File: 06-2210-10-0003/1 
 

Report: Director, Community and Partner Engagement, October 1, 2021 
 
Moved by Councillor Girard, seconded by Councillor McIlroy 

 
PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Community and Partner Engagement, dated 
October 1, 2021, regarding a land matter/legal advice: 
 
THAT the action taken by the Committee of the Whole (Closed session) be ratified; 
  
AND THAT the wording of the recommendation and the report of the Director, 
Community and Partner Engagement, dated October 1, 2021, remain in the Closed 
session. 

CARRIED 
 
Councillor Back and Councillor Bell are recorded as voting contrary to the motion. 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Back, seconded by Councillor Bell 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Corporate Officer” 
____________________________________ 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



Document Number: 2100653 V1 

 
 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD 

ELECTRONICALLY FROM CITY HALL, 141 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH 
VANCOUVER, BC, ON FRIDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2021 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

 
 
STAFF MEMBERS 
 

Mayor L. Buchanan 
Councillor H. Back 
Councillor D. Bell 
Councillor A. Girard 
Councillor J. McIlroy 
 
ABSENT 
 
Councillor T. Hu  
Councillor T. Valente 

L. McCarthy, CAO 
K. Graham, Corporate Officer 
H. Graham, City Solicitor 
 

 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 am. 
 
BYLAW – ADOPTION 
 
1. “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8880” 

(Electronic and Hybrid Meetings and Housekeeping Amendments) 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 

THAT “Council Procedure Bylaw, 2015, No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8880” 
(Electronic and Hybrid Meetings and Housekeeping Amendments) be adopted, signed 
by the Mayor and Corporate Officer and affixed with the corporate seal. 
 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Moved by Councillor Bell, seconded by Councillor Girard 
 
 THAT the meeting adjourn. 

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:01 pm. 
 
 
“Certified Correct by the Corporate Officer” 
__________________________________ 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Office of the Mayor 
  

CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 

BRITISH COLUMBIA 
 

cÜÉvÄtÅtà|ÉÇ 
 

 

WASTE REDUCTION WEEK 
 

j{xÜxtá  the City of North Vancouver is committed to conserving resources, 

protecting the environment and educating the community; 

j{xÜxtá  we recognize the generation of solid waste and the needless waste of 

water and energy resources as global environmental problems and we 

endeavour to take the lead in our community toward achieving 

environmental sustainability; 

TÇw j{xÜxtá  Waste Reduction Week raises awareness of the richness and diversity 

of the natural world and the importance of working toward ecological 

sustainability through waste avoidance and resource conservation; 

aÉã g{xÜxyÉÜx  I, Linda Buchanan, Mayor of the City of North Vancouver, do hereby 

proclaim October 18 to 24, 2021 as Waste Reduction Week in the City 

of North Vancouver, the traditional territories of the Squamish and 

Tsleil‐Waututh Nations. 

 
 

So proclaimed on Monday, October 18, 2021 

 

__________________________________ 

Mayor Linda Buchanan 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871  Document: 2092354-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8871 

A Bylaw to exempt certain lands and improvements in the 
City of North Vancouver from taxation for the year 2022 

 
The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Taxation Exemption Bylaw, 2021, 

No. 8871”. 
 
2. Tax exemptions under section 224 of the Community Charter. 
 

The following lands situated, lying and being in the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, 
Province of British Columbia, and any and all improvements thereon are hereby exempt from 
taxation imposed by the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver under section 224 of the 
Community Charter for the year 2022: 

 
A. land or improvements that: 

 
i. are owned or held by a charitable, philanthropic or other not for profit corporation; and 

 
ii. the council considers are used for a purpose that is directly related to the purposes of 

the corporation: 
 

1. Anavets Senior Citizens’ Housing, District Lot 274 Block 142 Lot 1 Plan 
BCP48496, PID: 028-616-260, 245 East 3rd Street, registered in the name of 
Anavets Senior Citizens’ Housing Society, Roll # 142001.100;  

 
2. Army, Navy Air Force Veterans in Canada, Unit 45, District Lot 274 Block 141 Lot 

11 Plan 878, PID: 015-077-179, 119 East 3rd Street, registered in the name of 
Army, Navy Air Force Veterans in Canada, Roll # 141011.000; 

 
3. The Cascadia Society for Social Working, District Lot 547 Block 4 Lot G 3846, PID: 

012-111-902, 348 West 19th Street, registered in the name of The Cascadia 
Society for Social Working, Roll # 004081.000; 
 

4. The Cascadia Society for Social Working, District Lot 547 Block 21 Lot H Plan 
20988, PID: 005-163-064, 325 West 19th Street, registered in the name of The 
Cascadia Society for Social Working, Roll # 021010.001; 

 
5. The Cascadia Society for Social Working, District Lot 547 Block 21 Lot F Plan 

20141, PID: 003-683-702, 351 West 19th Street, registered in the name of The 
Cascadia Society for Social Working, Roll # 021004.001; 

 
6. Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, District Lot 274 Lot 1 Plan 

BCS2790, PID: 027-428-613, 170 West 3rd Street, registered in the name of 
Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, Roll # 992790.001; 

 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871  Document: 2092354-v1 

7. Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, District Lot 274 Lot 2 Plan 
BCS2790, PID: 027-428-621, 168 West 3rd Street, registered in the name of 
Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, Roll # 992790.002; 

 
8. Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, District Lot 274 Lot 3 Plan 

BCS2790, PID: 027-428-630, 166 West 3rd Street, registered in the name of 
Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, Roll # 992790.003; 

 
9. Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, District Lot 274 Lot 4 Plan 

BCS2790 PID: 027-428-648, 164 West 3rd Street, registered in the name of 
Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, Roll # 992790.004; 

 
10. Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, District Lot 274 Lot 5 Plan 

BCS2790 PID: 027-428-656, 162 West 3rd Street, registered in the name of 
Fraternal Order of Eagles, North-West Aerie 2638, Roll # 992790.005; 

 
11. HYAD Society (Housing for Young Adults with Disabilities), District Lot 545 Block 

206 Lot C Plan BCP44933, PID: 028-231-619, 2130 Chesterfield Avenue, 
registered in the name  Provincial Rental Housing Corporation leased to HYAD 
Society, Roll # 206011.400; 

 
12. Kiwanis Senior Citizens Homes Ltd., District Lot 271 Block 139 Lot D Plan 13604, 

PID: 008-538-191, 170 West 2nd Street, registered in the name of Kiwanis Senior 
Citizens Homes Ltd., Roll # 139026.000; 

 
13. Kiwanis Care Homes Ltd., District Lot 550 Block 52 Lot 1 Pl BCP23494 PID: 026-

683-211, 1480 St. Andrews, registered in the name of Kiwanis Senior Citizens 
Homes Ltd., Roll # 052100.100; 

 
14. Lighthouse Harbour Ministries, District Lot 274 SL1 Plan VR786, PID: 005-892-

244, 1 - 260 East Esplanade, registered in the name of Lighthouse Harbour 
Ministries, Roll # 980786.001; 

 
15. North Shore Connexions Society, District Lot 547 Block 4 Lot 2 Plan 14515, PID: 

007-780-591, 1924 Jones Avenue, registered in the name of North Shore 
Connexions Society, Roll # 004045.000; 

 
16. North Shore Disability Resource Centre Association, District Lot 616 Block B Lot 

218 Plan 20292, PID: 006-672-728, 2412 Wilding Way, registered in the name of 
North Shore Disability Resource Centre Association, Roll # 950001.218; 

 
17. North Shore Multicultural Society,  Portion of District Lot 549 Block 50 Lot B Plan 

15169, PID: 007-671-032, 123 East 15th Street, Units 100, 202, 203, 204, 204A,  
205, 207, 301, 302, 303, 304, 305 only, registered in the name of Horizon Square 
Properties Ltd. leased to North Shore Multicultural Society, Roll # 050010.000;  
 

18. North Vancouver Chamber of Commerce, District Lot 274 Block274 SL2 Plan 
LMS4443, PID: 025-073-591, 102-124 West 1st Street, registered in the name of 
North Vancouver Chamber of Commerce, Roll # 994443.002; 

 
  



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871  Document: 2092354-v1 

 
19. Royal Canadian Legion Branch 118, District Lot 548 Strata Lot 1 Plan LMS4102, 

PID: 024-750-638, 123 West 15th Street, registered in the name of Royal 
Canadian Legion Branch 118, Roll # 994102.001; 

 
20. Royal Canadian Legion Branch 118, District Lot 548 Strata Lot 2 Plan LMS4102, 

PID: 024-750-646, 121 West 15th Street, registered in the name of Royal 
Canadian Legion Branch 118, Roll # 994102.002; 

 
21. Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre, District Lot 545 Block 207 Lot C Plan 

15014, PID: 007-711-280, 144 East 22nd Street, registered in the name of Silver 
Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre, Roll # 207050.000; 

 
22. St. Edmund's Parish, District Lot 271 Block 71 Lot B Plan 8415, PID: 010-087-460, 

613 Mahon Avenue, registered in the name of the Roman Catholic Archbishop of 
Vancouver-St. Edmund's Parish, Roll # 071009.000; 

 
23. St Leonard's Society of North Vancouver, District Lot 547 Block 67 Lot 26 Plan 

750, PID: 015-141-926, 312 Bewicke Avenue, registered in the name of St 
Leonard's Society of North Vancouver, Roll # 067027.000; 

 
24. Family Services of the North Shore, Portion of District Lot 548/549 Block 86 Lot G 

Plan LMP29334, PID: 023-499-486, Suite 203 and 206, 1111 Lonsdale Avenue, 
registered in the name of Djavad Mowafaghian Foundation leased to Family 
Services of the North Shore, Roll # 086015.100; 

 
25. The Auxiliary to the Lions Gate Hospital, (Thrift Shop), Portion of  District Lot 548 

Block 38 Lot E Plan 18002, PID: 007-233-540, 128 15th Street West, registered in 
the name of Polygon Development 338 Limited leased to The Auxiliary to the Lions 
Gate Hospital, Roll # 038029.000; 

 
26. Canadian Mental Health Association North and West Vancouver Branch, Portion 

of District Lot 548/549 Lot A Plan EPP22742, excluding 2,223 sq. ft. of the 
subleased rental office space of the total 3,596 sq. ft. leased space, PID 028-911-
237, 300-1835 Lonsdale Avenue, registered in the name of Solitude Investments 
Ltd. leased to Canadian Mental Health Association, North and West Vancouver 
Branch Roll #019033.100;  

 
27. The British Columbia Photography and Media Arts Society, Portion of District Lot 

271 Lot A Plan EPP30712, and excluding the commercial retail space, PID 029-
093-554, 101 Carrie Cates Court, registered in the name of the Corporation of the 
City of North Vancouver and leased to The British Columbia Photography and 
Media Arts Society, Roll # 177035.301;  

 
28. Young Women’s Christian Association (YWCA), District Lot 549, Block 61, Lot Air 

Space Parcel 5, Plan EPP68325, PID 030-180-741, 125 East 14th Street, Units 
203, 204, 401, 402, 403, 404, 405, 406, 407 and 408, registered in the name of 
Young Women’s Christian Association, Roll # 061011.600;  

 
29. Girl Guides of Canada District Lot 271, Lot 220, Plan EPS4482, PID 030-250-218, 

Unit 107-252 Esplanade W, registered in the name of Girl Guides of Canada, Roll 
#994482.220;  



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871  Document: 2092354-v1 

 
30. Girl Guides of Canada District Lot 271, Lot 221, Plan EPS4482, PID 030-250-226, 

Unit 108-252 Esplanade W, registered in the name of Girl Guides of Canada, Roll 
#994482.221;  

 
31. Girl Guides of Canada District Lot 271, Lot 222, Plan EPS4482, PID 030-250-234, 

Unit 109-252 Esplanade W, registered in the name of Girl Guides of Canada, Roll 
#994482.222;  

 
32. Girl Guides of Canada District Lot 271, Lot 229, Plan EPS4482, PID 030-250-307, 

Unit 207-252 Esplanade W, registered in the name of Girl Guides of Canada, Roll 
#994482.229;  

 
33. Girl Guides of Canada District Lot 271, Lot 230, Plan EPS4482, PID 030-250-315, 

Unit 208-252 Esplanade W, registered in the name of Girl Guides of Canada, Roll 
#994482.230;  

 
34. Girl Guides of Canada District Lot 271, Lot 231, Plan EPS4482, PID 030-250-323, 

Unit 209-252 Esplanade W, registered in the name of Girl Guides of Canada, Roll 
#994482.231;  
 

B. land or improvements that: 
 

i. are owned or held by a municipality, regional district or other local authority; and, 
 

ii. the council considers are used for a purpose of the local authority: 
 

1. Presentation House Cultural Society, District Lot 274 Block 134 Lot 15 &16 Plan 
735 and District Lot 247 Block 134 Lots 12 to 21 Plan 735, 333 Chesterfield 
Avenue, registered in the name of the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
leased to Presentation House Cultural Society, Roll # 134013.000; 

 
2. The Pipe Shop, District Lot 274 Block 176 Lot 4 Plan BCP 39824, PID: 027-842-

215, 115 Victory Ship Way, registered in the name of 366466 BC LTD, leased to  
the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, operated by Quay Property 
Management Corp., Roll # 175100.400;  

 
3. The Shipyard Commons, District Lot 274, Block 176, Portion of Lot 5, Plan BCP 

39824, PID 027-842-223, 125 Victory Ship Way, registered in the name of the 
Corporation of the City of North Vancouver leased to Shipyards Development Ltd, 
includes 1,317 ft2 Office Space and 6,290 ft2 Public Support Space and 28,310 
ft2 Public Plaza SRW leased back to the Corporation of the City of North 
Vancouver, Roll # 175100.500; 
 

4. North Vancouver Museum and Archives, District Lot 271 Lot 131 Plan ELSP6231, 
PID: 030-942-667, 115 Esplanade W, registered in the name of the Corporation of 
the City of North Vancouver, leased by the North Vancouver Museum and Archives 
Commission, Roll# 996231.131; 

 
C. land or improvements that the council considers would otherwise qualify for exemption 

under section 220 [general statutory exemptions] were it not for a secondary use: 
 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871  Document: 2092354-v1 

1. The Lonsdale Creek Daycare Centre Society, operating in Lonsdale Annex 
Elementary School, Portion of  District Lot 545 Block 205 Lot 8/14 Plan 3181, PID: 
013-068-831, 230 West 21st Street, registered in the name of North Vancouver 
School District #44, leased to Lonsdale Creek Daycare Centre Society, Roll # 
205008.000; 

 
D. the interest of a public authority, local authority or any other corporation or organization in 

land or improvements that are used or occupied by the corporation or organization if: 
 

i. the land or improvements are owned by a public authority or local authority; and, 
 

ii. the land or improvements are used by the corporation or organization for a purpose in 
relation to which an exemption under this Division or Division 6 of this Part would apply 
or could be provided if the land or improvements were owned by that corporation or 
organization: 

 
1. Hollyburn Family Services Society, District Lot 548 Lot 4 Plan BCS4407 PID: 028-

810-317, 104-210 West 13th Street, registered in the name of the Corporation of 
the City of North Vancouver and leased to Hollyburn Family Services Society, Roll 
# 994407.004; 

 
2. Hollyburn Family Services Society, District Lot 548 Lot 6 Plan BCS4407, PID: 028-

810-333, 106-210 West 13th Street, registered in the name of the Corporation of 
the City of North Vancouver leased to Hollyburn Family Services Society, Roll # 
994407.006; 

 
3. Hollyburn Family Services Society, District Lot 548 Lot 7 Plan BCS4407, PID: 028-

810-341, 107-210 West 13th Street, registered in the name of the Corporation of 
the City of North Vancouver leased to Hollyburn Family Services Society, Roll # 
994407.007; 

 
4. Hollyburn Family Services Society, District Lot 548 Lot 13 Plan BCS4407, PID: 

028-810-406, 205-210 West 13th Street, registered in the name the Corporation 
of the City of North Vancouver leased to of Hollyburn Family Services Society, Roll 
# 994407.013; 

 
5. Hollyburn Family Services Society, District Lot 548 Lot 14 Plan BCS4407, PID: 

028-810-414, 206-210 West 13th Street, registered in the name of the Corporation 
of the City of North Vancouver leased to Hollyburn Family Services Society, Roll # 
994407.014; 

 
6. Hollyburn Family Services Society, District Lot 548 Lot 15 Plan BCS4407, PID: 

028-810-422, 207-210 West 13th Street, registered in the name of the Corporation 
of the City of North Vancouver leased to Hollyburn Family Services Society, Roll # 
994407.015; 
 

7. Lookout Emergency Aid Society, NS Shelter, District Lot 265 Lot 2 Plan BCP8797, 
PID: 025-819-828, 705 West 2nd Street, registered in the name of the Corporation 
of the City of North Vancouver, leased to Lookout Emergency Aid Society, Roll # 
510061.300; 

 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871  Document: 2092354-v1 

8. North Shore Neighbourhood House, District Lot 274 Block 154 Lot M Plan 22039, 
PID: 012-590-975, 225 East 2nd Street, registered in the name of the Corporation 
of the City of North  Vancouver leased to North Shore Neighbourhood House, Roll 
# 154001.002; 

 
9. North Shore Neighbourhood House (Community Garden), District Lot 274 Block 

154 Lot L Plan 22039, PID: 012-590-924, 207 East 2nd Street, registered in the 
name of  the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver leased to North Shore 
Neighbourhood House, Roll # 154001.001; 

 
10. North Shore Neighbourhood House, District Lot 274, Lot 63, Plan EPS 1235, PID 

029-140-676, 113 East 3rd Street, registered in the name of the Corporation of the 
City of North Vancouver licenced to use by North Shore Neighbourhood House, 
Roll # 991235.063; 
 

11. North Shore Neighbourhood House (Centreview Childcare Centre), District Lot 
549, Block 61, Lot Air Space Parcel 4, Plan EPP68325, PID 030-180-732, 143 
East 14th Street, registered in the name of the City of North Vancouver, leased to 
North Shore Neighbourhood House, Roll # 061011.500;  
 

12. Margaret Fulton Adult Day Centre, District Lot 547 Lot A Plan LMP42825, PID: 
024-562-874, 1601 Forbes Avenue, registered in the name of the Corporation of 
the City of North Vancouver leased to  Vancouver Coastal Health Authority, 
subleased to Margaret Fulton Adult Day Centre Roll, # 003002.100; 

 
13. Navy League of Canada, District Lot 547, Block 27, Lot 27, Plan 12205, PID 008-

935-629, 1555 Forbes Avenue, registered in the name of the City of North 
Vancouver leased to the Navy League of Canada, Roll #003004.000;  

 
E. the interest of a public authority, local authority or any other corporation or organization in 

land or improvements that are used or occupied by the corporation or organization if: 
 

i. the land or improvements are owned by a person who is providing a municipal service 
under a partnering agreement; 

 
ii. an exemption under section 225 [partnering and other special tax exemption authority] 

would be available for the land or improvements in relation to the partnering agreement 
if they were used in relation to the service; 

 
iii. the partnering agreement expressly contemplates that the council may provide an 

exemption under this provision; and, 
 
iv. the land or improvements are used by the corporation or organization for a purpose in 

relation to which an exemption under this Division or Division 6 of this Part would apply 
or could be provided if the land or improvements were owned by that corporation or 
organization: 

 
NIL 

 
F. in relation to property that is exempt under section 220 (1) (h) [buildings for public worship]:  

 
i. an area of land surrounding the exempt building; 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871  Document: 2092354-v1 

 
ii. a hall that the council considers is necessary to the exempt building and the land on 

which the hall stands; and, 
 
iii. an area of land surrounding a hall that is exempt under subparagraph (ii): 

 
1. North Shore Bethel Christian Mennonite Brethren Church, District Lot 274 Block 

114 Lot 19 Plan 878, PID: 015-069-141, 185 East Keith Road, registered in the 
name of The B. C. Conference of the Mennonite Brethren Churches, Roll # 
114025.000; 

 
2. Holy Trinity Catholic Church. District Lot 545 Block 239 Lot 3 Plan BCP45481, PID: 

028-295-943, 2705 Lonsdale Avenue, registered in the name Roman Catholic 
Archbishop of  Vancouver, Roll # 239066.100;  

 
3. North Shore Alliance Church, District Lot 545 Block 208 Lot 1 Plan 20958, PID: 

005-061-563, 201 East 23rd Street, registered in the name of Christian and 
Missionary Alliance (Canadian Pacific District), Roll # 208001.001; 
 

4. North Shore Alliance Church, District Lot 545/546 Block 208 Lot 2 Plan 20958, 
PID: 005-061-571, 201 East 23rd Street, registered in the name of Christian and 
Missionary Alliance (Canadian Pacific District), Roll # 208001.002; 

 
5. King's Temple Missionary Society (N S Christian Centre), District Lot 616 Block 12 

Lot C Plan 21170, PID: 006-853-838, 1400 Sutherland Avenue, registered in the 
name of King's Temple Missionary Society (N S Christian Centre), Roll # 
912009.001; 

 
6. Parish of St. Agnes Anglican Church of Canada, District Lot 550 Block 78 Lot A 

Plan LMP40523, PID: 024-355-712, 530 East 12th Street, registered in the name 
of Synod of the Diocese of New Westminster, Roll # 078014.100; 

 
7. Parish of St. John The Evangelist Anglican Church, District Lot 548 Block 72 Plan 

20861, PID: 004-364-970, 209 West 13th Street, registered in the name of Parish 
of St. John The Evangelist  Anglican Church, Roll # 072001.001; 

 
8. Salvation Army North Vancouver Community Church, District Lot 548/549 Block 

86 Lot C Plan 1464, PID: 014-606-950, 105 West 12th Street, registered in the 
name of The Governing Council of the Salvation Army of Canada, Roll # 
086009.001; 

 
9. St. Andrew's & St. Stephen's Presbyterian Church, District Lot 545  Block 227A  

Lot A  Plan 2836, PID: 013-252-409, 2641 Chesterfield Avenue, registered in the 
name of Congregation of St. Andrew's & St. Stephen's Presbyterian Church, Roll 
# 227100.000; 

 
10. St. Andrew's United Church, District Lot 549 Block 88 Lot B  Plan 750 PID: 015-

136-931, 1046 St. Georges Avenue, registered in the name of The Trustees of the 
Congregation of St. Andrew's United Church, Roll # 088003.000; 

 
 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 8 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871  Document: 2092354-v1 

11. St. Andrew's United Church, District Lot 549 Block 88 Lot 27/28/29 Plan 4328, PID: 
011-642-483, PID:011-642-475, PID:011-642-491, 1044 St. Georges Avenue, 
registered in the name of The Trustees of the Congregation of St. Andrew's United 
Church, Roll # 088038.000; 

 
12. Sutherland Church, District Lot 550 Block 12 Lot C Plan 9445, PID: 009-653-309, 

630 East 19th Street, registered in the name of Sutherland Church, Inc, No. S8825 
Roll # 012028.000; 

 
G. land or improvements used or occupied by a religious organization, as tenant or licensee, 

for the purpose of public worship or for the purposes of a hall that the council considers is 
necessary to land or improvements so used or occupied:  

 
NIL 
 

H. in relation to property that is exempt under section 220 (1) (i) [seniors' homes], (j) 
[hospitals] or (l) [private schools], any area of land surrounding the exempt building:  

 
NIL 

 
I. land or improvements owned or held by an athletic or service club or association and used 

as a public park or recreation ground or for public athletic or recreational purposes:  
 

1. North Vancouver Lawn Bowling Club, Portion of District Lot 546 Block 217 Lot B 
Plan 18193, PID: 007-204-001, 249 East 24th Street, registered in the name of the 
Corporation of the City of North Vancouver leased to the North Vancouver Lawn 
Bowling Club, (Includes 60,170 sq. ft. for Licensed Area 1,2,2A and 3 per Schedule 
A of License Agreement)  Roll # 217000.002; 

 
J. land or improvements owned or held by a person or organization and operated as a 

licensed community care facility and registered assisted living residence under the 
Community Care and Assisted Living Act:  

 
1. Marineview Housing Society, District Lot 548 Block E.48 Lot A Plan 12729 PID: 

008-811-946, excluding land and improvement portions relating to market rental 
units #202 and #204, 1415 Chesterfield Avenue, registered in the name of 
Marineview Housing Society, Roll # 048019.000; 
 

2. Marineview Housing Society, District Lot 272 Block 5 Lot 12 Plan 3875 PID: 005-
751-390, 1057 Cloverley Street, registered in the name of Marineview Housing 
Society, Roll # 605012.000; 

 
3. Magnolia House Residential Mental Health Facility, District Lot 616 Block 6 Lot 73 

Plan 1763, PID: 004-276-914, 720 East 17th Street, registered of in the name of  
Provincial Rental Housing Corporation leased to Vancouver Coastal Health 
Authority, subleased to Magnolia House Residential Mental Health Facility, Roll # 
906073.000; 
 

4. Community Living Society, District Lot 274 Block 116 Lot 4 Plan 878, PID: 015-
131-548, 317 & 319 East Keith Road, registered in the name of Community Living 
Society, Roll # 116003.000; 

 



 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 9 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8871  Document: 2092354-v1 

5. Community Living Society, District Lot 544 SL21 Plan LMS531, PID: 017-957-826, 
1003-555 West 28th Street, registered in the name of Community Living Society, 
Roll # 990531.021; 

 
6. Marineview Housing Society, District Lot 550, Block 91, Lot 8, Plan 1647, PID 005-

751-454, 1053 Grand Boulevard, registered in the name of Marineview Housing 
Society, Roll #091008.000;  

 
K. land or improvements for which a grant has been made, after March 31, 1974, under the 

Housing Construction (Elderly Citizens) Act before its repeal:  
 

NIL 
 
3. Effective Date  
 

The effective date of this bylaw is January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 4th day of October, 
2021. 

READ a second time on the 4th day of October, 
2021. 

READ a third time on the 4th day of October, 
2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



, metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

For Metro Vancouver meetings on Friday, September 24, 2021
Please note these are not the official minutes. Board in Brief is an informal summary. Material relating to any of the 
following items is available on request from Metro Vancouver. For more information, please contact:
Grea. Valou&metrovancouver.ora.

Metro Vancouver Regional District

El.l Regional Economic Prosperity Service 2021 Deliverables Highlights RECEIVED

The Regional Economic Prosperity Service has been actively engaged in establishing the new regional 
service since the first members of the team were on-boarded in January 2021.

This report presents a summary of the 2021 deliverable highlights to date for information, as well as 
describes some of the potential key service priorities going into 2022 and beyond. In a short amount of 
time, the Regional Economic Prosperity Service has established many valuable relationships, connections 
and partnerships across the region. The team has also developed a new brand identity; identified and 
activated the four strategic economic development priorities for the region in a fast-changing economy; 
operationalized the three functional areas as articulated in the business plan; and earmarked seven 
priority export-oriented industries to target in both capacity building work and investment attraction 
efforts.

The Board received the report for information.

E1.2 B.C. Economic Plan: Metro Vancouver Regional Economic Prosperity Service RECEIVED
Recommendations

On July 30, 2021 Metro Vancouver Board Chair Sav Dhaliwal submitted written input into the BC Economic 
Plan on behalf of REPS staff. Recommendations were informed by barriers to innovation and growth in 
the region as identified by members and other regional partners. The recommendations emphasize the 
importance of BC acting on its economic strengths and focusing on areas in which we have specialization. 
Aiming to address barriers to innovation and growth, the recommendations are focused on data to inform 
long-term decision-making, early-stage research investment and improvements to technology transfer, 
the provision of industry-critical physical spaces, and launching a centre to ensure the competitiveness of 
the province's labour market.

On August 20, 2021, the Vancouver Sun and BC Business published an opinion editorial written by Metro 
Vancouver Board Chair Sav Dhaliwal. The editorial expands on how public investment in innovation can 
help the province meet its climate targets and grow its competitiveness. The BC Economic Plan is 
anticipated to be delivered in the Fall of 2021.

The Board received the report for information.

1



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 [ metrovancouver.org

E2.1 Tsleil-Waututh Nation Pilot Guardian Program Report RECEIVED

In 2020 Tsleil-Waututh Nation (TWN) and Metro Vancouver Regional District (MVRD) signed the Belcarra 
Regional Park Cultural Planning and Co-operation Agreement in an effort to formalize the working 
relationship and common objectives within the area known as Belcarra Regional Park.

Shortly after signing this agreement, TWN approached MVRD about the development of a First Nations 
Guardian Program in Belcarra Regional Park. TWN and MVRD worked together to develop, fund, and 
implement a Guardian Pilot Program that was initiated at the end of June 2021. The objectives of the 
Guardian Pilot Program are to develop strong working relationships between TWN members and MVRD 
staff, share knowledge between organizations, and to support TWN to apply for funding from additional 
external sources.

The Board received the report for information.

E3.1 Metro Vancouver's Clean Air Plan APPROVED

The Clean Air Plan is Metro Vancouver's fourth 10-year management plan for regional air quality and 
greenhouse gas management. The Clean Air Plan is strongly linked to Climate 2050, Metro Vancouver's 
30-year strategic framework for climate action. Urgent action is needed to accelerate greenhouse gas 
reductions to meet ambitious, science-based climate targets, while continuing to implement policies and 
programs to improve regional air quality. The plan is intended to provide deep reductions in regional GHG 
emissions and yield air quality health benefits estimated at up to $1.6 billion. It includes 29 foundational 
"big moves" that need to be started as soon as possible. The plan is strongly aligned with actions and 
initiatives of others, and reflects feedback from engagement with residents, businesses and others in 
2021. Feedback highlights, which were reported at the Climate Action Committee's July meeting and 
considered in finalizing the Clean Air Plan, included comments on costs, duplication of other governments' 
initiatives, collaboration, and the ability of small businesses to adjust.

The Board approved Metro Vancouver's Clean Air Plan as attached and will forward it to member 
jurisdictions, the Provincial Minister of Environment and Climate Change Strategy, Federal Minister of 
Environment and Climate Change, the region's Chief Medical Health Officers, local First Nations,
TransLink, the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority, the Fraser Valley Regional District, and other key partners 
indicating the Board's continuing interest in working with them to reduce regional greenhouse gas 
emissions and continuously improve air quality in the Lower Fraser Valley air shed. Additionally, the Board 
directed staff to continue working with member jurisdictions and other partners to implement the actions 
in the Clean Air Plan.

Gl.l MVRD Banking Authority Bylaw 1324, 2021, GVWD Banking Authority Bylaw 255, APPROVED 
2021, GVS&DD Banking Authority Bylaw 349, 2021

Signing Authority Bylaws establish authority for the execution of Metro Vancouver's banking and financial 
matters, and these bylaws need to be updated to accommodate the logistical challenges highlighted by 
the global pandemic and to improve efficiencies in handling the increased volume of requests.

2



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsvvsy, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

Designating the routine, lower risk matters to be handled by Class B and Class C signatories will reduce the 
burden on Class A signatories. The revised framework ensures there continues to be proper segregation 
of duty, sound internal controls, and strong governance structure for approvals, while improving the 
efficiency of the overall processes.

The Board gave first, second and third reading to the Metro Vancouver Regional District Banking Authority 
Bylaw then passed and finally adopted said bylaw.

El.2 MVRD Procedure Amending Bylaw Number 1325, 2021 APPROVED

At the July 30, 2021 MVRD Board of Directors meeting, the Board expressed desire to maintain flexibility 
in how members attend meetings. During the pandemic, local governments have been authorized to hold 
electronic meetings under the authority of the COVID-19 Related Measures Act, including Ministerial 
Order M192. With Ministerial Order M192 set to expire September 28, 2021, an amendment to the Metro 
Vancouver Regional District Procedure Bylaw will be required if the Board wishes to maintain the ability 
for Board and Committee members to meet by electronic means.

The Board gave first, second and third readings to the Metro Vancouver Regional District Procedure 
Amending Bylaw then passed and finally adopted said bylaw. Furthermore, the Board directed staff to 
bring forward a policy regarding electronic participation at Board and Committee meetings.

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries RECEIVED

The Board received information items and delegation summaries from standing committees.

Regional Parks Committee - September 8, 2021

Information Items:

5.2 Regional Parks Building Strategy Update

Regional Parks is developing a Buildings Strategy to guide decision making and investment in building 
maintenance, capital replacement, and new construction. Draft Levels of Service and Historic Building 
Framework reports have been developed as foundational elements of the strategy. Staff will use these as 
the basis for development of the final Building Strategy which will be brought forward for MVRD Board 
consideration in November 2021.

Finance and Intergovernment Committee - September 8, 2021 

Information Items:

5.1 2021 Zero Waste Conference

The 2021 Zero Waste Conference, taking place October 28, promises to be a full day of dynamic, curated 
programming bringing together keynote speakers and panelists who will challenge participants to create a 
resilient, carbon neutral, and circular future through inspiring stories of changes and initiatives already 
underway and encouragement to take the bold steps required in transformative times. The virtual

3



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | nTetrovancouver.org

conference will be co-hosted by Metro Vancouver and the National Zero Waste Council and broadcast 
from the multimedia studio at the Annacis Research Centre with the opportunity for a small in-studio 
audience as BC navigates its restart The overarching theme of the Zero Waste Conference is a "Future 
without Waste".

This year's subthemes are: Unlock the power of imagination and transformation; Step into creative and 
innovative thinking; Design a resilient, carbon neutral and circular future.

5.2 2021 Update on National Zero Waste Council Activities

Climate Action Committee - September 10, 2021

In 2021, the National Zero Waste Council has a number of projects and initiatives that will advance waste 
prevention and circularity within Metro Vancouver and across Canada. Included is the Council's 
foundational work in reducing food waste across the value chain and by households and developing pilot 
projects to divert asphalt and wood waste while working collaboratively to champion a circular economy 
for plastics packaging and the creation of circular cities and regions in Canada.

Research analyzing the public health risks of reusables, confirmed the switch to single-use items during 
the pandemic was not warranted. By being strategic and effective in identifying areas of work, the Council 
has been able to leverage external funding expanding the capacity of the Council to deliver on its 
objectives — $200,000 in 2021 to advance the Council's work in the circular economy and food loss and 
waste and $371,500 in campaign partner service fees for Love Food Hate Waste Canada.

Delegations:

3.1 Anna Barford, Canada Shipping Campaigner, Stand.earth

Subject: Heavy Fuel Oil and Exhaust Gas Cleaning Systems, Air and Water Pollution from Marine Vessels 

Information Items:

5.2 2021 Update on Water Sustainability Innovation Fund Projects

This report provides an update on six projects that were approved for funding in 2018 through to 2020 
under the Sustainability Innovation Fund. Of the six projects, the first phase of the Next Generation 
Snowpack Monitoring is now complete, all other projects are ongoing. Greywater Reuse and Rainwater 
Harvesting Demonstration: In Progress

• Next Generation Snowpack Monitoring (NGSM): Phase 1 Complete
• Treating Emerging Contaminants at the Seymour Capilano Filtration Plant: In Progress
• UV Transmittance Analyzers for Continuous Monitoring of Disinfection By-Products: In Progress
• Earthquake Early Warning and Strategic Response System Pilot: In Progress
• Enhancing the Data Processing of the Water Flow Metering Network: In Progress

Greater Vancouver Water District

4



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

El.l Coquitlam Sockeye Hatchery - Proposed BC Hydro Facility RECEIVED

A sockeye salmon hatchery is planned for construction in the Coquitlam Watershed in 2021. The hatchery 
is funded by BC Hydro and will be located on their fee simple property on the west abutment of the 
Coquitlam Dam. Sockeye stocks are severely depleted in the Coquitlam River Watershed, primarily due to 
the loss of spawning and rearing habitat in Coquitlam Lake some 115 years ago upon completion of the 
first hydro-electric dam. GVWD has worked with the Kwikwetlem First Nation, to whom sockeye 
restoration represents a critical cultural restoration goal, and agency partners in support of sockeye 
recovery since 2004. The new hatchery will require a GVWD water connection from the raw water intake 
pipeline at the base of the Coquitlam Dam and an agreement for that supply will be comingtothe Board 
in the future.

The Board received the report for information.

El.2 Award of Contract Resulting from Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 21-063: Supply and APPROVED 
Delivery of Steel Pipe for 2021 Water Services Construction Projects

Request for Proposal No. 21-063 was issued for the supply and delivery of steel pipe for the 2021 Water 
Services construction projects, and Northwest Pipe Company was the only pre-qualified supplier that 
submitted a proposal.

The Board approved the award of a contract in the amount of up to $16,973,012.00 (exclusive of taxes) to 
Northwest Pipe Company resulting from Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 21-063: Supply and Delivery of 
Steel Pipe for 2021 Water Services Construction Projects, subject to final review by the Commissioner; 
and authorize the Commissioner and the Corporate Officer to execute the required documentation once 
the Commissioner is satisfied the award should proceed.

El.3 Coquitlam Lake Water Supply - Project Update APPROVED

In October 2018, the Board endorsed the North Intake - Phased Filtration option to be carried forward 
into Project Definition for the Coquitlam Lake Water Supply Project. This is an important, complex project 
that is needed to meet projected future water demands, even with increased water conservation 
measures. Since the 2018 Board option endorsement, Project Definition and Value Engineering have been 
completed and this project update is part of the new Project Delivery stage gate process. This recent work 
has determined that the 2018 Board endorsed option, with some minor modifications, is still the 
preferred option (Option 4 - North Intake Smaller Initial Filtration), which provides some life cycle and 
capital cost savings compared to the 2018 endorsed option.

Engagement with First Nations, stakeholders and the community has commenced and will continue during 
the Permitting and Regulatory Phase following the completion of the Project Definition Phase in late 
2021. Staff will continue to work with the various ministries at the Province and with the City of Coquitlam 
with respect to the Environmental Assessment, Water Licence and acquisition of the treatment plant site.

The Board endorsed Option 4 North Intake Smaller Initial Filtration to be carried forward through 
Permitting and Regulatory Phase into Preliminary Design.

5



p<*m metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

Gl.l MVRD Banking Authority Bylaw 1324, 2021, GVWD Banking Authority Bylaw 255, APPROVED 
2021, GVS&DD Banking Authority Bylaw 349, 2021

Signing Authority Bylaws establish authority for the execution of Metro Vancouver's banking and financial 
matters, and these bylaws need to be updated to accommodate the logistical challenges highlighted by 
the global pandemic and to improve efficiencies in handling the increased volume of requests.
Designating the routine, lower risk matters to be handled by Class B and Class C signatories will reduce the 
burden on Class A signatories. The revised framework ensures there continues to be proper segregation 
of duty, sound internal controls, and strong governance structure for approvals, while improving the 
efficiency of the overall processes.

The Board gave first, second and third readings to the Greater Vancouver Water District Banking Authority 
Bylaw then passed and finally adopted said bylaw.

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries RECEIVED

The Board received information items and delegation summaries from standing committees.

Water Committee - September 9, 2021 

Information Items:

5.4 Water Infrastructure Projects - Progress Update

Metro Vancouver has successfully achieved significant project milestones on a number of water 
infrastructure projects, which are key in meeting the goals identified in The Board Strategic Plan 2019 to 
2022 for the Water Services function. These projects significantly contribute to Metro Vancouver's goals 
to secure additional long-term water supply capacity from the Coquitlam source and also ensure that the 
treatment, storage and distribution components of the water system are expanded, upgraded, 
strengthened and replaced to allow the continued supply of safe, clean drinking water to the region's 
residents and businesses.

Greater Vancouver Sewage and Drainage District

Gl.l MVRD Banking Authority Bylaw 1324, 2021, GVWD Banking Authority Bylaw 255, APPROVED 
2021, GVS&DD Banking Authority Bylaw 349, 2021

Signing Authority Bylaws establish authority for the execution of Metro Vancouver's banking and financial 
matters, and these bylaws need to be updated to accommodate the logistical challenges highlighted by 
the global pandemic and to improve efficiencies in handling the increased volume of requests.
Designating the routine, lower risk matters to be handled by Class B and Class C signatories will reduce the 
burden on Class A signatories. The revised framework ensures there continues to be proper segregation 
of duty, sound internal controls, and strong governance structure for approvals, while improving the 
efficiency of the overall processes.

6



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

The Board gave first, second and third readings to Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District 
Banking Authority Bylaw then passed and finally adopted said bylaw.

I 1 Committee Information Items and Delegation Summaries RECEIVED

The Board received information items and delegation summaries from standing committees.

Liquid Waste Committee - September 9, 2021 

Information Items:

5.1 Regional Microfibres Reduction Campaign Launch

Microfibres from laundry are one of the largest sources of microplastics pollution in the ocean. Research 
has shown that washing in cold water can reduce the microfibres associated with laundry. A regional 
microfibres reduction campaign will run September 13 to October 31, 2021, with the objective to lower 
the amount of microfibres released into the aquatic environment when clothes are washed. The 
campaign targets residents, specifically parents with children under 18, and asks them to reduce 
microfibre shedding through the small act of washing laundry in cold water. Pre-campaign research 
showed that while there is high awareness of microplastics issues, people were generally unaware of 
microfibre impacts but were open to taking an action that fit into their current routine. The campaign's 
creative theme — "The Environment Thanks You" — features marine animals thanking people for 
switching to cold. The media strategy includes YouTube, Facebook, Instagram, television, digital billboards 
and Google adwords.

5.2 2021 Regional Unflushables Campaign Results

The 2021 regional Unflushables campaign took place from April 26 to June 20, 2021. A post-campaign 
survey showed that the number of residents who report flushing wipes and other campaign items has 
decreased from 49% (2017) to 37% (2021). De-ragging incidents at pump stations have also decreased 
from 121 events (2017) to 16 events (projected for 2021). The campaign addresses seven key items that 
cause ongoing problems for the region's wastewater system, with an extra focus on wipes and 
medications. The campaign included social media, television, radio, Spotify, and placements in grocery 
stores, medical offices, elevators, and hair salons. The campaign delivered 6.4 million impressions on 
social media, 433 engagements, 732,000 video views and 2,800 clicks for more information, reaching 
361,442 residents with campaign messaging. A second two-week digital flight will run in October 2021, 
and the campaign will run again in 2022 re-using existing creative materials with tweaks as needed.

5.3 Continuous Improvement - Innovations Portfolio Management

Some projects funded through the Sustainability Innovation Fund are creating intellectual property assets 
and have revenue-generating potential. Maximizing value and returns on the utility's exposure to 
technological and financial risks have highlighted the need to evolve standard business casing methods to 
a value-proposition approach with the use of the Business Model Canvas. The Business Model Canvas 
framework considers a broader suite of business elements to help determine whether a project should: 
proceed, pivot, or terminate based on new results and other information gained during the research and 
development journey. The quality of the innovation portfolio is strengthened by the application of the

7



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kings',vsy, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 j 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

value-proposition approach and successful projects will influence facility planning and process unit 
designs for more cost-effective service delivery.

Zero Waste Committee - September 10, 2021

Delegations:

3.1 Ben Liegley, Co-Founder & Director, Rethink2gether, and Accredited Consultant The PLEDGE on Food 
Waste

Information Items:

5.1 2020 Disposal Ban Program Update

Garbage loads received at regional solid waste facilities are visually inspected for banned materials, and 
surcharges are applied if banned materials are present. Metro Vancouver's solid waste facilities received 
782,000 loads of garbage in 2020 up 7% from 2019. This increase is associated with an increase in small 
loads likely resulting from pandemic related impacts. 221,875 garbage loads were inspected (28% of total 
loads): 27,040 were found to contain banned materials and 6,642 surcharge notices were issued, 
representing a surcharge rate of 3%. Electronic waste, corrugated cardboard and oversized objects were 
the top three banned materials identified. The pandemic may have contributed to more electronics in the 
waste stream due to temporary disruptions in the electronics collection network. Surcharges on 
mattresses and gypsum decreased in 2020. Total surcharge revenues were $724,729 and total program 
expenditures were $721,902. A temporary disposal ban waiver has been put in place for waxed cardboard 
as a result of reduced options for recycling waxed cardboard.

5.2 Waste-to-Energy Facility Environmental Monitoring and Reporting 2020 Update

The Metro Vancouver Waste-to-Energy Facility operates well within environmental standards. All air 
emission related parameters monitored during 2020 were in compliance with the Waste-to-Energy 
Facility Operational Certificate. Metal emissions are less than 5% of regulatory limits. Dioxins/furans and 
trace organics are less than 2% of regulatory limits, with the exception of chlorobenzenes being less than 
25% of the regulatory limit. Nitrogen oxides and fine particulate waste-to-energy emissions represent 
0.4% and 0.002% of regional air shed totals. The Waste-to-Energy Facility accounts for less than 1% of 
regional greenhouse gas emissions.

On December 3, 2020, the Operational Certificate was amended to defer the reduction in discharge limits 
for hydrogen chloride and sulphur dioxide from December 31, 2022 to March 3, 2025. Metro Vancouver 
installed a new air quality monitoring station immediately adjacent to the Waste-to-Energy Facility and 
added air quality monitoring equipment to an existing monitoring station near the Waste-to-Energy 
Facility. Data collected to date shows ambient concentrations of hydrogen chloride and sulphur dioxide 
are less than 5% of ambient air quality standards, and well below modelling projections.

5.3 Illegal Dumping in Metro Vancouver

In 2020, member jurisdictions reported 47,000 illegal dumping incidents, including 720 incidents of 
abandoned gypsum. Municipalities spent $3.6 million on the removal and disposal of abandoned items. In 
addition, municipalities spent $2.5 million on large item pick-up programs. COVID-19 restrictions 
coincided with a temporary decrease in illegal dumping incidents in spring 2020, followed by increases in 
subsequent months. Overall costs of illegal dumping have increased across the region by on average 4.7%

8



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

per year over the last three years. Some of the increases in the total number of illegal dumping incidents 
may be a result of improved reporting practices, rather than a true increase in illegal dumping activity. 
Illegal dumping of gypsum materials continues to be a challenging and costly issue for municipalities. 
Receipt of residential gypsum at all Metro Vancouver recycling and waste centres as of the fall of 2018 
appears to have provided some benefit with respect to reducing illegal dumping of gypsum materials.

Metro Vancouver and member jurisdictions continue to advance a number of initiatives including 
education, enforcement and enhanced data management to help reduce illegal dumping. Enhanced 
extended producer responsibility programs for items such as mattresses would help reduce illegal 
dumping by reducing costs to residents to manage those materials.

5.4 Continuous Improvement, Innovation, and Collaboration with Adjacent Regional Districts

Metro Vancouver applies continuous improvement and innovation to consistently increase the value and 
effectiveness of its facilities, services, and business processes. In 2021, several continuous improvement 
initiatives have been implemented resulting in both cost savings and enhanced services. Examples of 
recent innovations include the recycling depot funding strategy, organics management contracts and 
modernization of weigh scale software systems. Metro Vancouver collaborates with adjacent regional 
districts to share information and partner on waste reduction projects. A number of foundational studies 
are underway to support the development of an updated solid waste management plan. To help answer 
questions posed by Zero Waste Committee members, Metro Vancouver will initiate a new study to assess 
options to manage residual garbage.

5.5 2021 Reuse and Repair Initiatives Update

As local governments and businesses grapple with global challenges such as waste reduction, climate 
change and ocean plastics, reuse and repair initiatives provide attractive solutions. Clothing, household 
goods, takeout containers and bags continue to be key sectors for reuse and repair in the region. In 
addition, the role of reuse in the built environment is an emerging area of interest for waste reduction 
and climate action. Metro Vancouver continues to help advance reuse and repair initiatives through data 
collection, information sharing and behavior change campaigns. Although implementation of further 
reuse and repair initiatives was put on pause in 2020/2021 due to COVID-19 restrictions, planning for the 
future continued. An expanded pilot for reuse education at regional recycling and waste centres and 
several regionally supported repair events are anticipated for 2022.

5.6 2021 Update on the National Zero Waste Council Activities

In 2021, the National Zero Waste Council has a number of projects and initiatives that will advance waste 
prevention and circularity within Metro Vancouver and across Canada. Included is the Council's 
foundational work in reducing food waste across the value chain and by households and developing pilot 
projects to divert asphalt and wood waste while working collaboratively to champion a circular economy 
for plastics packaging and the creation of circular cities and regions in Canada. Research analyzing the 
public health risks of reusables confirmed the switch to single-use items during the pandemic was not 
warranted. By being strategic and effective in identifying areas of work, the Council has been able to 
leverage external funding expanding the capacity of the Council to deliver on its objectives: $200,000 in 
2021 to advance the Council's work in the circular economy and food loss and waste and $371,500 in 
campaign partner service fees for Love Food Hate Waste Canada.

9



metrovancouver
SERVICES AND SOLUTIONS FOR A LIVABLE REGION BOARD IN BRIEF
4730 Kingsway, Burnaby, BC, Canada V5H 0C6 | 604-432-6200 | metrovancouver.org

5.7 2021 Zero Waste Conference Update

The 2021 Zero Waste Conference, taking place October 28, promises to be a full day of dynamic, curated 
programming bringing together keynote speakers and panelists who will challenge participants to create a 
resilient, carbon neutral and circular future through inspiring stories of changes and initiatives already 
underway and encouragement to take the bold steps required in transformative times. The primarily 
virtual conference will be co-hosted by Metro Vancouver and the National Zero Waste Council and 
broadcast from the multimedia studio at the Annacis Research Centre. The overarching theme of the Zero 
Waste Conference is a "Future without Waste". This year's subthemes are: Unlock the power of 
imagination and transformation; Step into creative and innovative thinking; and, Design a resilient, carbon 
neutral and circular future.

10



P' (M
D^p/artment
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: David Johnson, Development Planner

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 705 WEST 3rd  STREET (MARINE AND
BEWICKE PROJECT LTD. / ANKENMAN MARCHAND ARCHITECTS)

Date: September 8, 2021 File No: 08-3360-20-0436/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Development Planner, dated September 8, 2021, 
entitled “Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project 
Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects)”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839” 
(Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd 
Street, CD-735) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing;

THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840” (Marine and Bewicke Project 
Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd Street, CD-735, Rental 
Housing Commitments) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing;

THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act,

THAT the community benefits listed in the report section ‘Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits’ be secured, through agreements at the applicant’s expense 
and to the satisfaction of staff;

AND THAT the Mayor and the Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the 
necessary documentation to give effect to this motion.

Document Number: 2045384 V9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand 
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021________________________________________________________________________

ATTACHMENTS

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2058285)
2. Project Summary Sheet (CityDocs 2058416)
3. Architectural and Landscape Plans, dated August 31,2021 (CityDocs 2091630)
4. Public Consultation Summary (CityDocs 2061622)
5. Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839 (CityDocs 2062218)
6. Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 (CityDocs 2053668)

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to present, for Council’s consideration, a rezoning 
application for 705 West 3rd Street to permit a six-storey mixed-use building containing a 
child care facility at grade, 70 rental apartment units above, and a roof-top common 
indoor amenity room with associated outdoor amenity area.

Vehicle access is proposed to be from the rear lane, to a two-level underground 
parkade. The proposal incorporates a portion of the City road along Bewicke Avenue 
and a significant new road dedication along Marine Drive for transit enhancements.

This proposal would replace the GardenWorks nursery currently located on site.

BACKGROUND

Applicant: Steve Krilanovich - Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd.
Architect: Ankenman Marchand Architects
Official Community Plan 
Designation: Mixed-Use Level 2 (MU2)

Existing Zoning: Service Commercial (CS-1)
Applicable Guidelines: None

Original Application
On December 7, 2017, a rezoning application was submitted for a mixed-use building 
consisting of 63 strata units above ground-floor commercial spaces.

First Revised Application
In April 2018, a staff report sought direction from Council to negotiate an on-site 
community benefit in the form of a City-owned child care facility on the ground level. 
Council supported this direction.

The applicant then presented a revised application with a child care space that would be 
deeded to the City. This revised application also included a 3.0 metre (9.8 foot) wide 
land dedication along the Marine Drive frontage that is required by the Zoning Bylaw for 
public transit improvements.

Document Number: 2045384 V9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

In the course of reviewing this version of the application, the future plans for the Rapid- 
Bus along Marine Drive necessitated the request of a bus stop in front of the site. This 
means an additional 3.0 metre (9.8 feet) land dedication, for a total of 6.0 metres (19.69 
feet) of dedication, is now required along the Marine Drive frontage of the site. With the 
significant dedication, the resulting developable land area became too small and the 
applicant stated that the project was not viable without additional land area to realize the 
development potential.

In February 2019, Council gave directions to transfer a portion of the City’s surplus 
right-of-way along Bewicke Avenue to the applicant to assist them in meeting the 
development potential for the site. Council supported this proposal with the sale of the 
road conditional upon a successful rezoning.

Second Revised Application - Current Application
In November 2020, the applicant reevaluated market conditions and submitted another 
revised proposal. This proposal reconfigured the site boundary to accommodate the 
total requested dedication for transit enhancements on Marine Drive and incorporates 
the land area proposed to be sold to the applicant from the Bewicke Avenue right-of- 
way. This resubmission also included reconfigured floor plans: the ground floor now 
includes three Commercial/Retail Units (CRUs), and a privately-owned child care 
facility. The residential tenure has changed from strata to rental, with a total of 70 rental 
apartment units. The project proposes a total density of 2.50 FSR consistent with the 
Official Community Plan (OCR). From the time of this submission to the writing of this 
report, the applicant has been in discussion with a potential child care provider and now 
the proposal is for the child care facility to take up all of the ground floor commercial 
spaces, including the previously mentioned CRU spaces.

This second revised application is the subject of this report.

DISCUSSION

Site Context and Surrounding Use

The subject site is located in the Marine-Flamilton area of the City, at the southwest 
corner of Marine Drive and Bewicke Avenue (Attachment #1). The area consists of a 
mixture of building types and is in transition, with a mixture of automotive and 
mechanical services and more recently approved multi-storey, mixed-use residential 
buildings with ground floor commercial development envisioned under the OCR.

The buildings and uses immediately surrounding the site are described in Table 1 
following.

Page 3 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

Table 1. Surrounding Uses
Direction Address Description Zoning
North
(across Marine 
Drive)

700 Marine Drive Four storey mixed-use commercial 
and residential apartments. CD-583

South
(across rear lane) 710 West 2nd Street Two storey Commercial Buildings. CS-1

South
(across rear lane) 201 Bewicke Avenue Two storey Commercial Building. CS-1

East
(across Bewicke 
Avenue)

671 West 2nd Street One storey Commercial Building. CS-2

West 717 West 3rd Street Five storey Residential Building. CD-609

The site is strategically located at the convergence of Marine Drive, Keith Road and 
Bewicke Avenue, accessible via an AAA bikeway and is close to a key intersection for 
public transit to move people to various parts of the North Shore. In addition to the 
major commercial amenities along Marine Drive, including Capilano Mall, the site is also 
close to Westview Elementary School, Mosquito Creek Park, Mahon Park and the Spirit 
Trail network.

Project Description
The proposal is for a six-storey mixed-use development containing a private child care 
facility at grade facing Marine Drive, Bewicke Avenue and the rear lane, 70 rental 
apartment units above, and a roof-top common indoor amenity room with associated 
outdoor amenity area, all over two levels of underground parking accessed from the 
rear lane (Attachment #3).

A total of 5,654.5 square metres (60,858.1 square feet) of floor area, a density of 2.5 
FSR and a total height of 19.8 m (65.0 feet) are proposed.

The proposal includes significant public realm improvements along both street fronts, 
including an open plaza at the northwest corner of the site and improvements to the 
adjacent bus stop fronting the site. Public art is being proposed in the plaza area, while 
public seating in the same area would provide an alternative place for people to sit while 
they wait for the bus. Design details of the plaza are to be further refined in 
collaboration with staff and the delivery would be secured through a Servicing 
Agreement should the project proceed.

Rental Housing
Since the first revised application submission in 2019, the applicant has switched to 
residential rental tenure in the proposal in response to market conditions and 
government financing incentives.

The proposed breakdown of residential units by type is as shown in Table 2 following.

Page 4 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

Table 2. Proposed Unit Breakdown
Unit Type Number of Units Size
Studio 4 40.6 sq. metres 

(437 sq. ft.)
1-Bedroom 47 44.6 - 66.2 sq. metres 

(480-713 sq.ft.)
2-Bedroom 12 67.7 - 75.5 sq. metres 

(729 - 802 sq. ft.)

3-Bedroom 7 75.4 - 87.3 sq. metres 
(812-940 sq.ft.)

In accordance with City policies, of the proposed rental units, seven are proposed as 
mid-market units that would be secured in perpetuity through a Housing Agreement 
(Attachment #6).

The applicant is proposing 30 of the rental units meet Level 2 adaptability, exceeding 
the minimum requirements; the distribution will reflect the unit mix. The remaining units 
are to meet Level 1.

The residential lobby is provided off of Bewicke Avenue. The primary stairs leading to 
the second level are easily seen before one sees the elevator; the intent of this 
arrangement is to encourage active use of the staircase.

A common amenity room is proposed on the roof level of the building. It includes a 
seating area and common kitchen for use of the residents. The room connects to the 
outdoor roof deck where there is additional seating and a fire pit. A landscaped play 
area is proposed on the outdoor roof area as well. The proposed roof deck is set back 
from the edge of the building to protect the privacy of adjacent properties. A green roof 
is proposed between the roof deck and the building edge.

Child Care
As part of the change to rental tenure in the current proposal, the applicant has stated 
that a turn-key City-owned child care facility as an in-kind Community Amenity 
Contribution is no longer feasible, however, there is a high demand for child care 
spaces and a private child care facility is feasible.

Child Care Use is permitted in all of the City’s commercial and mixed-use zones, 
including the subject site’s current CS-1 Zone. Consistent with this approach, the draft 
CD zone (Attachment #5) would permit a range of uses at grade for this development, 
ranging from any CRU uses that fall within the Retail-Service Group 1 to a child care 
facility.

Access to the proposed child care is provided on both Marine Drive and adjacent to the 
residential lobby along Bewicke Avenue. An outdoor space is located at the southwest 
corner of the building, over the underground parkade access. A dedicated elevator is 
provided at Level P1 adjacent to the 30 proposed child care parking stalls as well as 
dedicated vehicle drop-off and pick-up zones. An end-of-trip facility for the child care 
providers to park their bikes and change clothes is also provided on the ground floor.

Page 5 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

The applicant has been discussing these plans with a potential child care provider who 
has been in contact with Vancouver Coastal Health regarding licensing requirements. In 
designing the facility, the applicant and the facility operator stated that they not only aim 
to meet the minimum requirements of Vancouver Coastal Health but also consulted the 
City of Richmond’s Childcare Design Guidelines, which the City of North Vancouver 
uses as a benchmark for new facilities.

The intent is to explore a large facility that can accommodate up to 144 children with 96 
infant, and toddler spaces as well as 48 preschool spaces. Given the size of the outdoor 
space, multiple programs will likely need to run sequentially in order to meet the outdoor 
play space requirements imposed by VCH.

The final size of the facility and programming are yet to be determined at this point, 
however, it is expected that the facility may occupy the entire ground level. Final 
tenanting of the ground floor and the details of the child care design will be determined 
at subsequent phases of the project.

There is a high demand for child care spaces across the city but there is a particularly 
acute need here given the increase of residential units in this area. Under the City’s 
2020 Child Care Action Plan, a need for 299 new infant and toddler spaces and 300 
new pre-school spaces for the next 10 years have been established for the City. This 
proposal, if approved, could make a significant contribution to the City’s child care 
spaces target.

Land Dedications and Sale of a Portion of Bewicke Avenue
The applicant has agreed to dedicate a total of 6.0 meters (19.7 feet) of frontage off of 
Marine Drive to accommodate future transit needs of the City. The dedication will be 
used to facilitate a new bike route connection along Marine Drive from the existing path 
behind the mixed-use development at 725 Marine Drive and the pathway at the south 
east corner of Bewicke Avenue and West 3rd Street. The dedication will also facilitate a 
new public plaza fronting the site at the western end as well as an improved bus stop for 
the Rapid-Bus route along Marine Drive.

As this is a sizable amount of dedication, it has a significant impact on the developable 
land area. In accordance with Council’s 2019 direction, the City is prepared to sell a 
portion of the Bewicke Avenue to the applicant. Figure 1 below shows a sketch of the 
before and after site configurations with a portion of Bewicke Avenue to be closed off 
and incorporated into the site.

Page 6 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

Figure 1 - Site Configuration - Existing vs. As a Result of Dedication/Consolidation

The sale of this surplus road will not have an impact on on-street parking and the public 
realm along Bewicke Avenue. The land dedication and sale would result in a net 
increase of 232.0 sq. m. (2,497.0 sq. ft.) of road area for the City and the public and a 
significant enhancement to the function of the Main-Marine Rapid Bus line.

Bus Stop Improvement
The request for additional frontage dedication in order to improve public realm and 
future bus stop along Marine came up during staff detailed review of the application. 
Though it was not identified at the early stages of the application, placing the bus stop 
at the proposed location is a strategic decision and recommended by staff for the 
following reasons:

• There has been a bus stop at this location prior to the Rapid-Bus service 
beginning;

• It provides a good location for residents in the area; and
• The spacing between stops typically used for the Rapid-Bus service is between 

800 and 1,500 metres. In this case, the previous stop at Capilano Mall is 
approximately 620 meters and the next stop at Lonsdale Quay Bus Loop is 
approximately 1,400 meters away.

The diagram below is taken from Translink’s spacing guidelines and is intended to show 
the spacing difference between Rapid Bus service and regular All Day Frequent service.

Page 7 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

Rapid

Alt Day 
Frequent

The intent is to take into consideration that people are willing to walk up to 400 metres 
to a regular bus stop and up to 800 meters to a rapid transit stop.

Parking, Loading and Circulation
Vehicle parking is proposed to be from the rear lane, accessed from Bewicke Avenue to 
a two-level underground parkade. Level P1 accommodates parking for the child care 
use as well as spaces for visitor parking for the residential units above. Rooms for a 
combined storage and secured bike storage are proposed on this level, as well as a 
combined room for bicycle repair and dog wash. Resident and commercial recycling 
and garbage are also located on this level. Level P2 houses resident parking as well as 
mechanical rooms and additional storage and secured bike rooms.

One loading bay is proposed off the rear lane at the southwest corner of the site, 
adjacent to the parkade access.

With this project, a significant emphasis is placed on active transportation. A bike path 
along the Marine Drive is proposed to connect with the existing bike path to the west 
between the residential developments at 717 West 3rd Street to the south and the mixed 
use development at 725 Marine Drive to the north (see image following) The connection 
from the existing path to the proposed would have a brief left turn as a transition that 
would slow down bike speeds. The proposed path is designed to have a width of 3.35 
meters (11 feet), which would support both cyclists and pedestrians. The path would 
connect with the existing bike path to the east of Bewicke Avenue and West Keith Road.

Page 8 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

.»\sS Ui’tiKZ
path

Krt-> KiiHj-l
PritfrVM 5 SU Trotyl $(•?£*■

/njf/M rrs-Vitii fisrit*

rtgrii si ftpy- 
M*ts*l3Cr3

flvTtf*

—-------E-tStifepf
P^rJpi fit?y«T» piTrf’ait *> p.rr<i ’l’.’)rf> 
ptittkinirfic

'tH&Piaf&rf 

P««HTf Lf«

- Lei'eT-iI 
Ll^aJE

* h‘ «*-Ti ' |

Aaptot
tvliv.TyWil

inwriwii

ItaM f U-W-A-i!- I -- Kj.n»j^n
(T«Kt#«r4 A 1 

rttt'fifibiiUfgiM

taV-iWfHj

A'^Ar tliiS t* fri • 
***&<$

Gc'-erc^j fcnrM

fiifjj II
Carfla#. FMM*j 

t'ivrJrr A L-i’tt!

li’bl'irJ. >iVA'5!

hf up lyj fSli OfliLv! Sn-ic

*»>*'• Vi R..»i v ty

PLANNING ANALYSIS

2014 Official Community Plan
The subject site is designated Mixed-Use Level 2 (MU-2) in the OCR. The designation 
is to provide mid-rise multi-family and commercial uses and activities contributing to a 
pedestrian scale village feel. It supports a maximum density of 2.0 times the lot area 
(FSR), including a potential 0.50 FSR density bonus in accordance with Schedule A 
Land Use map. It also supports a building with a maximum height of six storeys.

The applicant is proposing a density of 2.50 FSR or 5,654.5 square metres (60,858 
square feet), which is within the OCR maximum density.

The project is in keeping with the goals and objectives of the following City policies:

Page 9 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

Official Community Plan
Policy 1.1.1
Plan for growth in the City’s population, 
dwelling units and employment in keeping 
with the projections in Metro Vancouver’s 
Regional Growth Strategy.

Intensification of the site supports the use of 
existing amenities, including transit and 
services along Marine Drive.

Policy 1.1.7
Allow for accessory uses, such as home- 
based businesses and childcare, in 
residential areas.

The proposal would be zoned to allow desk 
and computer style home based businesses 
in the residential units.

Policy 1.2.1
Ensure the location, density, design and 
durability of developments and their 
infrastructure are informed by the best 
available science on climate impacts.

The proposed development is located 
adjacent to Marine Drive and is utilizing an 
existing site and infrastructure to density 
while proposing to achieve an energy Level 
of Step 3 in the BC Building Code.

Policy 1.3.6
Encourage architecture that responds to the 
unique context of the City in a sensitive, 
sustainable, and aesthetically compatible 
manner.

Design and materials are consistent with 
those found in the local context.
Landscaping utilizes native plant species.

Policy 1.3.10
Encourage active, healthy lifestyles and the 
opportunity for more social connections 
through planning and active design principles 
that encourage physical activity and 
contribute to enhanced walkability and active 
streets, sidewalks and public spaces.

The high-quality secure bike storage with 
access directly to the AAA bike network along 
Marine Drive.

Policy 1.4.1
Consider the needs of households with 
children in the design of multi-family 
developments.

The proposal would provide seven 3- 
bedroom units, and an indoor/outdoor 
amenity space on the roof allowing for 
multiple uses and activities.

Policy 1.4.3
Consider recreational, cultural and other 
community spaces as aspects of informal 
community living rooms, and essential 'social 
infrastructure’, particularly in high-density 
neighbourhoods like Central/Lower Lonsdale.

The proposed roof-top indoor and outdoor 
amenity space provides opportunities for 
social interaction amongst all residents and is 
flexible enough to provide for a range of 
uses.

Policy 1.5.1
Provide opportunities for a range of housing 
densities, diversified in type, size and 
location.

The project will provide 70 new rental units 
with a range of unit types and sizes, from 437 
to 940 sq. ft. Seven of these units will be 3- 
bedroom.

Policy 1.5.4
Prioritize the development and revitalization 
of affordable rental housing and use density 
bonusing and density transfers to incentivize 
the retention, renewal and/or replacement of 
rental units as a public benefit.

The proposal includes 70 rental units, 
including seven mid-market units, which will 
be secured by a Housing Agreement for the 
life of the building which is a public benefit.

Policy 1.5.6
Ensure a sufficient number of new apartment 
buildings provide accessible units and that

The proposal exceeds the minimum number 
of Adaptable Level 2 units, in accordance 
with the Zoning Bylaw, and the distribution of

Page 10 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021
these accessible units are represented 
across various unit sizes.

which will reflect the overall unit-mix, and the 
remaining units will be Adaptable Level 1.

Policy 2.1.1
Invest in cycling and pedestrian networks and 
facilities to make these more attractive, safer, 
and convenient transportation choices for all 
ages and abilities with and aim to increase 
these ways of travelling over single-occupant 
vehicle use.

The proposal includes enough secured 
bicycle storage in individual storage room 
and the subject site is located adjacent to a 
AAA bike network and close to the Spirit
Trail.

Policy 2.2.3
Encourage higher and medium density 
residential area uses near jobs and services.

The subject site is located along Marine
Drive, near many services and employment 
opportunities.

Strategic Plan
City for People The proposal supports the Strategic Plan 

vision and priority to be a City for People by 
using an existing site to increase the number 
of rental units in the Lower Lonsdale area, 
providing employment opportunities and 
services within close walking distance.

Housing Action Plan
Action #3:
Mid-Market Rental Units

The project will provide seven mid-market 
units, to be secured by a Housing Agreement 
or the life of the building.

Action #4:
Family-Friendly Flousing

The project includes seven three-bedroom 
units to support families.

Sustainable Development Guidelines
Natural Systems
The ability of natural systems, both global 
and local, to support life. Parks and green 
spaces help regulate the climate, clean and 
filter water and air, and provide recreational 
and aesthetic benefits. Maintaining healthy 
natural systems will reduce strain on 
municipal infrastructure, support local wildlife 
and enhance quality of life for community 
members.

The proposal includes green space on a roof-
top deck as well as a plaza fronting Marine 
Drive that is intended for public use.

Physical Structures/Infrastructure
The ability to effectively deliver basic 
services, shelter and physical amenities 
required to sustain the health and well-being 
of the community. This includes water 
supply, sanitary sewer, stormwater drainage, 
solid waste management, roads, 
telecommunications, and energy efficiency 
and conversion including district energy. As 
well, this category includes attractive 
streetscapes, durable buildings, provision of 
a range of housing types and adequate 
community amenities.

The project will use high-performance and 
environmentally friendly building materials 
and will achieve Step 3 of the BC Building
Code Step Code.

Local Economy
The ability to maintain and grow a healthy 
local economy. A strong economy brings

The proposal would supply a private 
childcare facility on the ground floor of the 
building.

Page 11 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021
employment and a solid tax base to support 
services without compromising other areas of 
capacity. A stronger economy has been 
shown to support healthier lifestyles for 
community members and greater 
opportunities for personal fulfillment and 
overall quality of life.
Human Potential
The ability of our local community to support 
our residents in their pursuit of individual 
livelihood objectives including access to 
education, healthy food, active transportation 
and affordable housing. Meeting these basic 
needs is essential for the maintenance and 
growth of human capacity.

The development proposes Market Rental 
and Mid-Market Rental housing at a range of 
unit types and sizes.
The subject site is along a major 
transportation route and services along
Marine Drive.

Social Connections
The ability of our community to foster 
communication, interaction and networks to 
respond effectively to community issues.
These may include supporting community 
members with low incomes, lone-parent 
families, and matters specific to children, 
youth, seniors and people with disabilities.

The proposal includes both indoor and 
outdoor amenity areas that are well- 
programmed with multiple opportunities for 
activities.

Cultural Diversity
The ability of our community to support and 
celebrate a diversity of cultural backgrounds. 
This includes recognition of the traditions of 
the Squamish Nation and the many cultures 
of residents who make the City their home. 
With both tangible and intangible elements, 
cultural capacity has economic implications 
and is strongly connected to social traditions. 
Manifestations of cultural practices can range 
from spiritual practices to heritage buildings.

The proposed design includes various 
informal gathering spaces for tenants and in 
the public realm for the public.

Active Design Guidelines
Indoor Amenity The proposed indoor amenity area includes a 

flex area for a variety of uses and a separate 
area lounge area that is directly connected to 
the outdoor amenity space.

Outdoor Recreation and Gardens The proposed outdoor amenity space is 
designed to allow various uses, with outdoor 
seating, landscaping and a children’s play 
area.

Primary Stairway The proposed entrance to the residential 
units off Bewicke Avenue has an open stair 
design to encourage its use before viewing 
the elevator.

Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 6700
The subject site is zoned “Service Commercial (CS-1),” which would allow a two-storey 
building on the property. The CS-1 Zone limits the maximum allowable density through 
the limitations of the Zone’s lot coverage, building height and building setbacks. An

Page 12 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

amendment to the Zoning Bylaw is required to permit the proposal and is reflected in 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw 8839 (Attachment #5).

Using the CS-1 Zone as a base, the proposal requires the following special provisions 
be incorporated into the new Comprehensive Development Zone:

• Set the maximum allowable density to 2.50 FSR by entering into a Housing 
Agreement with the City to secure rental housing in perpetuity as well as 
providing seven mid-market units, also in perpetuity;

• Add the use of Rental Apartment Residential Use;
• Allow a maximum Building Height not exceeding 19.8 metres (65.0 feet);
• Allow the maximum Lot Coverage to increase from the maximum 45 percent to 

51 percent of the lot area;
• Waive the Maximum Building width of 30.5 meters (100 feet); and
• Allow the proposed building setbacks from the property lines.

A summary comparing the Zoning requirements to the proposal is shown in Attachment 
#2.

As the purpose of the rezoning is to allow the residential use, and to increase the 
density and height to the maximum that can be supported under the OCR, staff support 
the uses, density and height of the proposal.

To provide flexibility in the CD Zone, ground floor commercial will still be a permitted 
use in the event the needs of the proposed child care facility changes. The number of 
proposed parking stalls meets the Zoning Bylaw requirements for both child care and 
commercial uses. It is anticipated that the proposed number of child care stalls will 
assist in the drop-off and pick-up times.

Site Coverage
A variance to the site coverage is required to allow the proposed building footprint to be 
51% of the site area, instead of the maximum of 45% in the Zoning Bylaw. This is 
considered a minor variance and similar relaxations have been applied elsewhere.

Maximum Building Width
While the maximum building width under the Zoning Bylaw is 30.5 meters (100 feet), the 
proposed building frontage along Marine and Bewicke is broken down into three 
separate facades, thus meeting the maximum building width requirement.

Density Bonus and Community Benefits

The City’s Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, in conjunction with the 
Official Community Plan, allows for density bonuses beyond 2.0 FSR in the Mixed-Use 
Level 2, up to a maximum of 2.50 FSR.

The policy provides a number of community benefit options for projects seeking 
additional density and seeks to ensure the City receives value for additional density

Page 13 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

granted. The value could be in the form of a cash contribution or some form of amenity, 
such as an all-rental apartment building to be secured in perpetuity plus a form of 
housing affordability in accordance with the City’s Housing Action Plan. In this case, to 
achieve the desired 0.5 FSR bonus density, the applicant has agreed to secure, through 
the registration of a Housing Agreement (Attachment #6), all proposed 70 units as rental 
units in perpetuity, as well as to provide seven of these units at Mid-Market rates (rates 
below market levels) in perpetuity.

As the Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy recognizes rental and affordable 
rental dwelling units as an acceptable public amenity, any cash contribution for the 
density bonus that is generally required for a non-rental project is waived.

For example, if the applicant was proposing these units for sale as a strata development 
project, the Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy would value this density 
bonus at approximately $1.7 million, as outlined in the Table 3 below.

Table 3. Estimated Value of Community Benefits through Density Bonusing
Density Value Calculation Value
Density Bonus to 2.0 FSR / OCP Density (0.0 square feet @ $25 / sq. ft.) $0.00
Density Bonus to 2.5 FSR Max Bonus (12,173 square feet (5) $140 / sq. ft.) $1,704,220
Total Value of Community Benefits $1,704,220

Instead of this amount, and consistent with the Density Bonusing and Community 
Benefits Policy, the City’s total rental housing stock would receive 70 rental apartment 
units, with seven of these being below market, or Mid-market units. These will be 
secured in the Housing Agreement. This building will be privately owned and the tenant 
selection for the seven mid-market units will be at the discretion of the building owner.

In addition to the items above, the following legal agreements relating to the 
development of this building will be entered into with the applicant at the applicant’s 
expense:

• Development Covenant;
• Servicing Agreement;
• Flooding Covenant;
• Crane Swing and Underpinning Agreement; and
• Good Neighbour Agreement.

ADVISORY BODY INPUT 

Advisory Design Panel
At their May 16, 2018 meeting, the Advisory Design Panel reviewed and supported the 
proposal. The Panel provided a few recommendations to enhance the design, including 
a further look at the drop-off and pick-up of the child care, the plaza design and its 
connection to the property to the west, refinement of the public realm space, including 
the bus stop, and use of larger shade trees. The applicant has responded to these 
comments in their current proposal. In staff’s view, the revisions presented in the current

Page 14 of 15



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 705 West 3rd Street (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand
Architects
Date: September 8, 2021

proposal has improved the project’s overall response to the context and does not 
require an additional review of the Panel.

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

The applicant held their Developer Information Session on May 22, 2018 and this was 
attended by 14 people (Attachment #4). Comment forms were received where two 
people supported the application, two opposed and four provided a neutral response.

Those who support the proposal liked the design of the building and the inclusion of a 
child care facility.

The comments that were opposed to the application expressed concerns about building 
height and density, that parking is lacking in the area and with additional units, more 
parking is needed within the development, and that there would be increased traffic in 
the area, especially at such a busy intersection.

Members of the public will have an additional opportunity to speak at the Public Hearing 
should Council allow it to proceed to that stage.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

In addition to the community benefits outlined above, the project will be expected to 
contribute DCC and public art.

CONCLUSION

This proposal is consistent with the Official Community Plan and will bring in 70 new 
rental apartment units, including seven below market units for the life of the building, in 
addition to a large private child care facility. The subject site’s proximity to existing 
amenities, commercial areas, and public transit and active transportation facilities 
makes it an appropriate site for the proposal. The redevelopment of this strategically 
located site will facilitate important public realm and public transit objectives along the 
Marine Drive corridor.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Development Planner

Page 15 of 15



W 3rd St

W
3rd St

Be
wi

ck
e

Av
e

W 3rd St

W 2nd St

W Keith Rd

Marine Dr

Marine Dr

7 5
3

7 2 5

719

63
9

7 0 0

66
3

66
0

6 7
1

6 5
4

6 6
7

6 6
3

6 6 0

71
1

65
7

3 3
9

7 2
1

6 5
0

7 5
1

3 4
8

6 4
5

6 6
8

2 0
1

7 3 3

65
1

65
7

7 1
0

7 0
5

3 1
2

7 1 7

73
3

7 2 0

Context Map:  
Subject Site
Legal_Parcels
RoadCenterline

Aerial 2020

RGB
Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



SITE CHARACTERISTICS
OCP Designation

Existing Zoning 

Site Area

FLOOR AREA AND HEIGHT Existing Zoning (CS-1)

Total Lot Coverage 45%

Principal Building Height (maximum)
Two Storeys, nor            

10.7 m
(35.0 ft.) 

SETBACKS
Front (Marine Drive)

Interior Side Yard (West)

Exterior Side Yard (Bewicke Avenue)

Rear (South)

BICYCLE PARKING
Short Term

Secured

Total Bicycle Parking (stalls)

VEHICLE PARKING
Resident Parking

Visitor Parking

Childcare Parking

Total Vehicle Parking (stalls)

7
(inclusive of resident parking) 7

12

116 156

105 144

Floor Space Ratio N/A

5,654.5 sq. m
(60,858.1 sq. ft.)            

2.50 FSR
(including childcare space)

Numbers based on plans dated May 29, 2021 #2058416

51%

19.8 m
(65.0 ft.)Six Storeys

Proposed

N/A

Existing Zoning (CS-1)

6.1 m (20.0 ft.)

0.0 m (0.0 ft.)

6.1 m (20.0 ft.)

62 87

11

PROJECT SUMMARY SHEET
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

705 West 3rd Street

Mixed-Use Level 2 (MU2)

2,261.8 sq. m
(24,346.0 sq. ft.)

Service Commercial (CS-1)

20 30

42 50

Proposed (CD-734)Offical Community Plan 

Required Proposed

Required

Maximum - 2.50 FSR            
5,654.5 sq. m (60,866.5 sq. ft.)    

6.1 m (20.0 ft.)

Proposed 

0.0 m (0.0 ft.)

2.0 m (6.5 ft.)

0.7 m (2.2 ft.)

0.7 m (2.2 ft.)

Attachment 2



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING

Ankenman Marchand Architects
1645 West 5th Avenue
Vancouver, BC   V6J 1N5
Contact: Timothy Ankenman
Email: tim@amarchitects.com
Tel: 604.872.2595   Fax: 604.872.2505

Hobbs, Winter & MacDonald
BC and Canada Land Surveyors
113-828 Harbourside Drive
North Vancouver, BC V7P 3R9
Contact: Alex Heath, BCLS
Email: alex@hwmsurveys.com
Tel: 604.986.1371 ext. 226   Fax: 604.986.5204

Van Der Zalm & Associates
102-355 Kingsway
Vancouver, BC V5T 3J7
Contact: Dave Jerke
Email: davidj@vdz.ca
Tel: 604.882.0024 Cell: 604.546.0921

R.F. Binnie & Associates Ltd.
205 - 4946 Canada Way
Burnaby, BC V5G 4H7
Contact: Russell Warren
Email: rwarren@binnie.com
Tel: 778.945.6049   Cell: 604.812.7058

Marine & Bewicke Project Ltd.
c/o Steve Krilanovich at Lotus Capital Corp.
950 - 475 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC V6B 4M9
Contact: Steve Krilanovich
Email: steve@lotuscapitalcorp.com
Tel: 604.568.9769   Fax: 604.568.3302

Forma Design Inc. 
209-828 Harbourside Dr
North Vancouver, BC V7P 3R9
Contact: Bill Harrison
Email: bill@formadesign.ca
Tel: 604.986.9193 Cell: 604.340.4250

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 3�



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING

Ankenman Marchand Architects
1645 West 5th Avenue
Vancouver, BC   V6J 1N5
Contact: Timothy Ankenman
Email: tim@amarchitects.com
Tel: 604.872.2595   Fax: 604.872.2505

Hobbs, Winter & MacDonald
BC and Canada Land Surveyors
113-828 Harbourside Drive
North Vancouver, BC V7P 3R9
Contact: Alex Heath, BCLS
Email: alex@hwmsurveys.com
Tel: 604.986.1371 ext. 226   Fax: 604.986.5204

Van Der Zalm & Associates
102-355 Kingsway
Vancouver, BC V5T 3J7
Contact: Dave Jerke
Email: davidj@vdz.ca
Tel: 604.882.0024 Cell: 604.546.0921

R.F. Binnie & Associates Ltd.
205 - 4946 Canada Way
Burnaby, BC V5G 4H7
Contact: Russell Warren
Email: rwarren@binnie.com
Tel: 778.945.6049   Cell: 604.812.7058

Marine & Bewicke Project Ltd.
c/o Steve Krilanovich at Lotus Capital Corp.
950 - 475 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC V6B 4M9
Contact: Steve Krilanovich
Email: steve@lotuscapitalcorp.com
Tel: 604.568.9769   Fax: 604.568.3302

Forma Design Inc. 
209-828 Harbourside Dr
North Vancouver, BC V7P 3R9
Contact: Bill Harrison
Email: bill@formadesign.ca
Tel: 604.986.9193 Cell: 604.340.4250



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING

2 2021-05-10 REVISION PER PTC



35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

25.88'LEVEL P1
(7.89 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

25.88'LEVEL P1
(7.89 m)

16.38'LEVEL P2
(4.99 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING

2 2021-05-10 REVISION PER PTC



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING

2 2021-05-10 REVISION PER PTC



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING

2 2021-05-10 REVISION PER PTC



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING

2 2021-05-10 REVISION PER PTC



A870
1

A870
2

A870
4

A870
5

A870
3

A870
5 Sim

A870
5 Sim

A880
1

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



A870
4 Sim

A870
2 Sim

A870
5 Sim

A870
5 Sim

A870
5 Sim

A880
1 Sim

A870
3 Sim

A870
1 Sim

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



A870
2 Sim

A870
4 Sim

A870
5 Sim

A870
5 Sim

A870
5 Sim

A880
1 Sim

A870
1 Sim

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



A870
2 Sim

A880
2

A870
5 Sim

A870
5 Sim

A870
5 Sim

A880
1 Sim

A870
1 Sim

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

25.88'LEVEL P1
(7.89 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

25.88'LEVEL P1
(7.89 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

25.88'LEVEL P1
(7.89 m)

16.38'LEVEL P2
(4.99 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING

2 2021-05-10 REVISION PER PTC



35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

25.88'LEVEL P1
(7.89 m)

16.38'LEVEL P2
(4.99 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



35.00'LEVEL 1
(10.67 m)

59.50'LEVEL 3
(18.14 m)

49.50'LEVEL 2
(15.09 m)

69.50'LEVEL 4
(21.18 m)

79.50'LEVEL 5
(24.23 m)

89.50'ROOF LEVEL
(27.28 m)

25.88'LEVEL P1
(7.89 m)

16.38'LEVEL P2
(4.99 m)

99.07'TOP ROOF
(30.20 m)

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING

2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



2020-11-16  RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING
2021-05-29  RESPONSE TO PT - REZONING

2019-10-24  REISSUED FOR REZONING
2020-04-29  RESPONSE TO PT REZONING

2017-12-06 ISSUED FOR REZONING



VDZ+AGardens Work Site Development ■OOTIANttlViniOO «Xlt«T »UAMNM1V0*0-.sLisasa?”
Issued for Development Permit

'atm'.rf
in

Sheet List Table
SnertTUtofr ci L-OI COVER SHEETs mmM L-02 GROUND LEVEL LANDSCAPE PLAN

L-03 LEVEL 2 LANDSCAPE PLAN>ito
MStW L-04ITT ROOFTOP LANDSCAPE PLANm LOCI DETAILS- J ,v ' ;m LD-02 DETAILS1 LD-03 DETAILS“V-mt—

-07'♦ri
f *

JK

IHOSPS-X-I T
»r aif: r Ijc s. ."Tt.•vyr N« '*Vj aw■

■'

■ii l—
v-2sr S^vV^1

ou'PS;i:V, Vf1l .*/ \'ri
•-c

7y LUv, LU

V1 xm «LA w
X
LUK-»dil ’ >oREYSftMS T«ai£ FCR CRAMNGS

oLocation Map (NTS)
-

- *iT'
/\REVtSKXS TABU <(•> S*«ET

Protect
GARDEN WC«KSSITEContact Information Contact Information

COAnKenman Marchand ArchitectsVDZ+A Primary project contact 
Phoenix Chan 
phoenix@vdz.ca 
o 604 W6 0927

Marine & Bewicke Project Ltd. 
c/o Steve Krilanovich at Lotus 
Capital Corp.

IT)
iLocation.

70S West 3rd Street 
North Vancouver. B C.

CD
1645 West 5th Avenue 
Vancouver. BCV6J 1N5 
p 604 872 2595

Fort Langley Studio
102 - 9181 Church Street
Fort Langley. Bntfsh Columbia. VIM 2R8 : OAlternate contacts (incase away) 

Dave Jetke
Principal Landscape Architect 
<JavxJ)@vdz ca 
o 604 546 0921

I CNJ; a.
950 - 475 West Georg* Street 
Vancouver. BC V68 4M9 
p. 604 568 9769Mount Pi 

102-355 Kingsway
Vancouver. British Columbia. VST 3J7

t*»«n
2 aPC

(TediM
(V

Jeon'**
OJ 24-OS*

koiqitfiiBeau(i«oiu

O
Jj



r*
C

r*
TP

*lH
>Q

«»
W

rt"
<»

<»
 

C*
CM

01
lrt

il»
M

W
C<

*T
»t

W
C»

M
>

I
lU

i
I

I
I

m
I

2

I
Is

o
5

II
 

5
I!

■ 
jii

l

• >N
i

o
r

i
•.

j
I!

r

i 
J

o

. -
r^

G
5

,<
v

.

- 
/ ls#

 ^
W

/
i.

i 
:

I
i

o
o

o
I

01
1

|
*

K
T

lfl
i ' 

i
i

3

7/
 
/ 

/
*> &

 ■ 
A
 

M

M
 )

/

J
/

• •
/

' o
/

-
51

5a
a r

I.
» i

j
;

s 
i

r
r

i
?

3
/

M
i! 

if
if

I
I

Jt
*

II
i

i
i

s
fi

!
s

5-
I

II
 
|

.
-!

■■
I*

/
ism

m
\

G
»

I

OO
fc

s_
s ?! S1

• 
i

s 5.
!i i 

* 
3-

BE
W

IC
KE

 AVE
NU

E

i Ia
fN

0)
i

i
3

Q
,|l

m m
\
 P

r.
o

w
3!

s
A

--
'

©
©

I? 
1

S
O

'
5

c

O
 
*•

nl
3

t;

l
5

y
::

-
o ■n

2

r 
?

w m
IfH

f
IM

f!
ns

o
ro

 .
I

W.
f r

(n
S

'
i

\
2

s
■D

*
f

m

If
l

D
i

I
E 

I 
1

I 
^

II fs
.

8
(

r 
? 

®
i 

i

" 
• 

s
3

l| s*
A

I
-S

.C

I
x

i?
 

5I 
s| 

jsr
hi

! I
n

 
|i
 
X

O
O

C
O

t

li
i

M
l

Lt
§

f
%

.
I i

f
I 

i
i

N
i

z\
s

;
i 

i«
S

3
P

H
 

! +
V

!
r

r
11

1
m

■
>

:
1 i

D
'a

*'
ng

 Title
D

ra
w

in
g »

VD
2 Pr

oje
ct *;

 
r 

V

D
P2

01
9-

53
 

G
R

O
U

N
D
 L

EV
EL

 L
AN

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

L-
02



! 3 o
5

j.'1
-

P

m
li 

Tl

Q
/

I
n

 u 
,

§0
E

'LL
/

m
l

i
t

b-
 

y
-•

-i—
y
j

t

/ /
g

/ /
ill

u
<r.

n
m

sa
ol

3 
d 

^
; . 

tZ
Z

^T
'

/
i

i
' 

-
/

I

an
.' f

I
F

3

I -
tT-

fj
 
^

i

1-
M

fl p 
:

■ n
 .

3K
 

i n
J

a
~

i 
y

 ^
a
 .

a
/

O
aO

/

3

S
ij

TJ £
:

©
 - 

|
O

s
m O

f
I

s

(
1
s

 g
 

fi
ll

 
ij f

il
l

J-
1

1p
5

;•
H »s

J1

“ii

n- S
.

f
'i:

i 
?

e
| 

e
| 

j5
 |

<

Ij'
p

I
r\

*
f

S n £

“T
fo

1 
i

i
N

i
3J&

;
i 

§
5i

8
p

i If
 

+
; l

i>
i

it
 i

; i
2

?
-

! '
“■I

5

D
'a

*'n
g Tit

le
D

ra
w

in
g »

V
D

2 Pr
oj

ec
t *; 

V

D
P2

01
9-

53
 

LE
VE

L 
2 

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

PL
AN

L-
03



•O
Ao

er
tU

Q
f*

**
! n«—

r»
cT

»>
tP

K’
m

 oao
i»

m*
c*<

 tma
fio

tx
t’t

t*
 moo

nt*
 i~co

cf
» »w

< <w>
o

fH:
S i

i
i »

•:

II
il

w-
*!

1
''

I
:::

i

sf
*:

n
|

i
i

0 
'S 

08
1 

s 
? 

f
i
s
!
!

§ I
f I

i1

iS
is

_
_

_
'.M

C
/

J!
/

?

I
»

/
-V

i 
i

\

1*
.

T

IU i $
A

n
1

Is
/

-
V

/
:'T

'
\ 

\ 
:

N
/

r
it

i I
i 

i
O
 

5
s’

srH
ii

i
J

f 
<1

8 f
f

i 
0
i

T3
1

5
ii

5
Z

?!
(0 s m

l 
I

S
1

o r-
Z1

1 
f

s
£

m
I

i!
::

" 
-S

X
33 o

o£
lir

i
i

o
I

s
5

If
i

£
f

*
a

m
I

tt
s»

5
£ 1“

f H
©

Bo
r

3
if

>
i

IM
f!

rp
i m

fP
s w

j-
§

? 
£

f 
I

I |
l{

I
3

n
>

?p Ss
is

3
■;

}
m

>
3

i
s

? 
?

n-
M

n * 
0

m
B.

n
s m

f
i s

3-
I

3
1 

0 
”1

a 
a

f
s- 5.

i 
i
 ?
 -

I
i- s_

s 
*i§
 =
 -S

»

:'i
:

?
- 

J 
E

| 
JS

<
i

s n
f! 

f
ISH

1 
I

f
N

i
5?

g

;
i 

i
’-H

O

i If
 

+
§ 

=
:>

i
I l

il"
fr

r
I

D»
av

«(>
0 TIM

Dr
aw

ing
 »

VD
2 Pr

oj
ec

t *; 
V

D
P

20
19

-5
3 

R
O

O
FT

O
P
 L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E
 P

LA
N

L-
04



S1IV13Q
S

9-6l-02da
i-o-an

ana 6uwBja
» P«teid ZQA

• ButM
irja

I. ill
<

;
5

:
! i

Is
+
 

ii1 
N
 !'

§ 
s

I
i

£
I! i
ih

ii!|
-nvJs ±i

i 
i

I
,11

9
!

•-II J
If

>n
J if 

la 
1 a

I
1

il s
-iv

f

1
1;

i
:

I
® 

I* 
S

S|lS
 

'*
i

If
 

h
i ft

 
h
 i;!!.! I ! 

,..j. 
i LnlliH

 i I ! ! 
!

£
! ii

f i
i 

1
!

ilKi
H

ills
i j 

!|l{j 
j!

i uiipiifil n

J
i I sf 

j|! i *1
i

II?
t 

I I
i 

i
i il

!
-6

5
tl If
H
 I 

II 
i

§</)
‘

i
w

NS.-1.'vV/•
i

i
i

*
s

§
S

■

'O
m

!
■

;
o

XV
1

J
0

m
$

.
5

>
Q

.«>-
§

CD
CO

l.-u:

i
i

Si 
ii

>
|ls

M
l

i
I 

Hifit*
SS 

Is 
Is

!522
s

r
H

',
s

1 is!
•C'

1 
i

ill
I I 

s
-v, :
r‘?

I
If!

i
K

f
/

1 1 
'

a
i

2
II

I 1
c 

<0
2

s
/

!
K

r
>:

g1
---

\

■
-

---
If

-
.'C

rr-r-TTr1
:

£'
;

Is
l

83
L

^-X
.

■ 
a

CM
in

iiih
ffs If I 
|f n
fii sl;i

II
?

K
it

C
?! 

i I
5

w
1

1
fi

s
s n>

S if
ffs 

, 
ill 

I 
1 

ill 
i

£
i i 

!
I

!
2

ii 
l - 

S 
fl I 

is J? 1 
°

! fi ji ill il
® 

a 
s
it 

s
I

§
-
j

U
i

\
O

'
■

X

1

C3fc^i-
i::

'T



VDZ+AUnr. Povot Ocl*li 
loiada

GtOnvnXClOm X SOmm 
CoOur» Tan & NMuM 
PaJMm Slack Bond 
Mangfactiaar Abecttkyd Ccncroia

Unit Pavo« D«<af«
Mattopollan

♦OOtki  X 200mm X lOftm 
Cc*oor. Ian 
Patwn RunnmflBond 
Maiwtoaurof Ateottlool ConaM*

«w« p«wv»lcn« com 
1-»»663-*001

So* I IP* 8to IO«T U>SO«(> UUOO WOUNIPUASOMItllKMOrr-“^w iw!

Una Pavw Doun 
Motfoccuian

«00>m X 200mm X lOOnr 
COaxt Tan 
Panom : Running Bond

Irf* 
S«o .1-«00€6J-»091

AK-iUlcd Gnaola 
pmnoWc«M com 

1-801-66 3-COO 1AfluaPav# OW Couroy Sloe*. 
Stock Typo 1. Charcoal cotour 
B» ASteCifera Ckci o Ii 
OOmm oapm o» 5mm daor 
outh open gf Mod Codding 
count

Piomwtoda doc* dram >Mlh 
paitOrofod slamlaw Uwd

Blackjack podatlali 
--------HyT*«.lliW)d tlab

ncto 3
deadronwOi

GooMalka • Mn up and back 
at dram ord at all .«0col 
•urfacoa

------- GOnvn concnea uni parars
25nyn boddng oond 
N(o» ViO 15dran motor 
spooned by AiawlBd

podooCod rr
/ .Mo. WO-IS dran mat or as 

spooned by Archrtad
GocCeitlo

i////

Bcrfdmgcr parapet 
GaolexU* • Can up and ban 
al drain and at all .ortical 
»j1*cm

Walar proof membrana by 
Arcniecl /}/ >cd63mmdaarContinuous 
alumnor ledge/ .byj ArcfsleclFlush concra** aab '

•-I-:::nEfi T c10M rebar
150 »I50cona**a edg* 
fate ami 150mm 19mm 
aggiegwo has* ccmpaclad to 
95SMPO

APSC1000 *o*»n gaosartl*
. on boflcm and sidas c< opan 

Qradad base

' l * |. 1mmmmJ: ■ i
\t I

‘' f U

ISOnmWx 100mm 0 
conaelo edge a wal SECTION

ISOnmW. lOOrrmO 
concrete edge <* wnl 

Landscape —e

Sbudural slab by ochere —J
SECTION

NOTES:
SubgnaM compacted U> 
95% MPO NOTES

Ssnxliaal slab by others 1 AH boddoq sand to maos ASTM 03 or CSA A23 1 FA1
2. AD toed sand » mo*4 ASTM C144 or CSA Al 79
3. AH components as spaciftad c« appro^d oBomalo
4. Contractor to provide cut sheets cd al components lor landscop 
5 Ccmlractor to ensure no Wstte pooling occurs on paaer surface 
0. An jonts to be H»il fil
7 All paver cult lo be minimum \ Paver

He. refer to CJW
I. All compcnenls os specified or approved 
2 Ccntracmo prondo cul sheets of al corrponoms tor landscape ArchOecI approval 

depSitoslab

droMngs
Notes:
1 Instal ad components as per mamAactuier's speaftoalons
2 AquaPave - Part Edibaton System 
3. Running bond padem
4 Concrete curb control fM* every 3m

3 Btedijack Scrowjack e OnoStep system dc
4 Alumnan ledge to be secured to Mticurb

? UNIT PAVERS ON GRADE1 »™“PRESSEDSLft8S UNIT PAVERS OVER PARKING SPACE3

i-
•wnm

'T ^1*”’© ©i iA, wI"--I H.IS AM

®\ ©■ © /'■: <Cm H >m

' “T.*
LU®
O'

i;.
REVISIONS TABLE »0R S*«ETmar >- itosiaaui

Pnx«cl

GARDEN WORKS SITEo SaVACfUSTSKWl*

CO
LO® sus au iivm aa sat ao Ksrv ©purntetoi

nwsaifh
0ai««ortor

TeCmaC" M.tMV KC’CT
l™* iLocation

705 West 3rd Street 
North Vancouver. B C.

teunticucmro•no eiu • llsairsB to rvB« ito«s
KearnsM 05UMOPIIW wruaTi ©RaOMUtl I tat coasmo am toienv anua/ f Qaoxiiu mow toiOMd ocMirca

oas u tri  wtete no a iaid wm wun ca «mw n
0 leo MvlWKUKt si tel 
® •arttatT MB UU K* ncnt> -

0W"U.
©teicn-

: OI J -0%^?- c ^5 : CM
£ 0.

0*uauMni
S-i. iu»<nu>isai

.V Omen©‘
S QL ^- .5 ®> PCOKOfe. Stereo UO«0 RSM >W !» term en* 

imuw res ranaMci itou mci uo n ww ikiu  
ice a MB

■nKMte omeo w iu> au 
iianiirtruuta

•u*mm>muivi
FW• MtAtWTMKOaH

A nseiM 
la? uv i • nuui

• nte«> Oecked1-, DJ

OJ 2t-dir
CM
OsasKSSKScale

■ I
AS SHOWN QAM IMIHliaiM

“V— • P* e

3
^ CUSTOM PLANTER AND SEATING SILVA CELL SYSTEM r-SC-.NT5



VDZ+A
lOAIIAKtKlIUOtt MOUVI KIAMHMHOO

ar

&
•s

\l■'iilft
!.

J,3,.

Iif

u

Mflnutsdurw. Undscap* Fonna <x apfo-ed oqual
MotJef. Ring
Cc*x».S«*vw

MaruActuia*: U^dscapo Foon* o> appiovod aqusl 
NVxW. ChOmon 30- dintfq *) amdsw elatf*
Co tour . Sd^«

Manufocluro'. U 
IA>3ol Cham Pm* aido oponino wdh a»h pan 
Cotour Sfvm

or apjxoied wpal

fctourt EmbMdod

G> BIKE RACK 2 ™le *cha ,Rs 3 c^dben ch . WASTE RECEPTACLE
^ Jc*»NISi NTS

3

W
a

<
LLITABLE FOR DRAWINGS

Q

iWm
OUTDOOR KlTCHEfi SINK AND GRILL CABINET SET 
Ntotol: No. Ago frc&jclt 65067

Sao. Stole Catoool: 32* W * 23* D > 3475* H 
BarCiU.no. 32* W»23*D*345*H 
toaot G*n Cotonnl 33* W « 23* D « 3475* H 

Suppl* lo.a'4 I •888*9855537 
ernK«ov«daqoal

REVISIONS TABLE FOR S>«E1

Project
GARDEN WORKS SITE

CO
uo

ILocation:
705 West 3rd Street 
North Vancouver. B.C.iicr 02

$ : o
I CM 
f 0.- fc*«> 0«nfr •Si.

I QPC

Mamjf*3ut« Lmodtcapo Forms or *ppct*-od o^iul 
Ntodel Harpo Loctogo itoair 
Cotoor TBO

Charted
Mctoel Mcnison 30* tal 
Cotour SAvor *r wood tosorta

Manwtocloror Dekko or opcroved equal 
MoW BoVnord 
Crtcui Natural

BUILT-IN GRILL
Mode Autcm A5«k
Mnierml Stotolon Stool
Saa 32*V/« 19 U2*D« 12*H
SuccBor FlrelAi^c 1-8CO-332-3973
or approved equal

DJ

OrotortSItoRSdo

24-OB*OJ
COoa.nuniaaaucKaiH

I
AS SHOW! Q6

DINING TABLE & CHAIRSBBO 7 £TsGECHAIR q FIRE PIT
J Vji  Ml.5 r-I NTS SctotNTS



Petersson Planning Consulting Page 1

705 West 3rd Street Rezoning Application

Development Information Session Summary Report

Event Date: May 22, 2018
Time: 6:30pm – 8:30pm
Location: Westview Elementary School, 1160 Bewicke Ave, North Vancouver
Attendance: 14 members of the public signed in.
Comments: 8 comment sheets and 5 e mails were submitted.

Meeting Purpose: 1) To present development application materials to neighbours
2) To provide an opportunity for the public to ask questions about the
development
3) To provide an opportunity for neighbours to comment on the proposal.

Notification:
In accordance with City of North Vancouver policies:

Invitation Brochures
Invitations were delivered to 386 addresses within a 40m radius from the site, meeting City
requirements. Appendix A includes a copy of the invitation.

Newspaper Ad
A newspaper ad was placed in the North Shore News on Wednesday, May 16 and Friday, May 18, 2018.
A copy of the ad is included in Appendix A: Notification.

Attendance:
Fourteen members of the public signed in for the meeting. A copy of the sign in sheets is included in
Appendix B.

The following City staff and project team members were in attendance:

City of North Vancouver:
• Mike Friesen, Planner

Project Team presenters included:
• Tim Ankenman, Ankenman Marchand Architects
• Dimitar Bojadziev, Ankenman Marchand Architects
• Bill Harrison, Forma Design
• Liam Briggs, Avison Young
• Tyler Knoepfel, Omicron
• Steve Krilanovich, Lotus Capital

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 4�



705 West 3rd Street Rezoning Application – Development Information Session Summary Report

Petersson Planning Consulting Page 2

Facilitators:
• Steven Petersson, Petersson Planning Consulting
• Katrina May, Petersson Planning Consulting

Overview:
The meeting was held in an Open House format. Meeting participants could browse the display boards
and engage with the project team directly. The facilitator listened for questions and comments and
noted them on a flip chart for all to see.

The participants were invited to submit written comments to the facilitator or to the municipal planner.
Eight comment sheets and five emails were submitted.

The proposed daycare facility, drop off area, and plaza were supported by participants.

The key themes of the evening included:
• traffic circulation around Marine Drive and Bewicke, a very busy and complex intersection
• the perceived lack of parking in the area
• building height, and worry that it would block light and sight lines for neighbours
• a desire for affordable or rental housing.

Public Dialogue:
(Q = Question, A = Answer, and the number is to track the dialogue)

Q1 What will be happening to the traffic on Bewicke Street?
A1 The CNV is undertaking a traffic study.

Q2 How much parking will be provided?
A2 The applicant has proposed 91 stalls, 16 of which are commercial. The building has 55

suites.

C3 The developer should consider building extra parking that could be rented out to surrounding
buildings.

Q4 Will there be any rental or below market rental housing in this project?
A4 No. The project is proposing to add a childcare facility as the community amenity

contribution to the CNV. This facility will be dedicated to the CNV. The number of
children served depends upon their age, and this has not been determined yet.

Q5 What is the height of the building in comparison to the neighbouring building?
A5 The proposed project is 6 storeys, however the 6th floor is partially set back, reducing

the mass. The neighbouring building is 5 storeys.

Q6 Where is the access for the parking?
A6 There is access to the parkade via the lane off Bewicke.



705 West 3rd Street Rezoning Application – Development Information Session Summary Report

Petersson Planning Consulting Page 3

Comment Sheet and Email Summary
Participants were invited to submit comments for a one week response period after the meeting. Eight
comment sheets and five emails were submitted. It is worth noting that one of the respondents was a
youth (who supported the project), which is a demographic that is usually under represented at
Development Information Sessions.

Four respondents explicitly expressed support for the proposal.

The plaza and public daycare were supported by the respondents. One respondent inquired on the
behalf of a daycare provider, wondering if they could operate the daycare after construction.

While many of the respondents were generally supportive of the proposal, some concerns were
expressed. Some respondents worried about traffic congestion, the parking supply, and the height of
the building. Some were concerned that the building height would block light and views in neighbouring
buildings. Respondents also expressed the desire to see more affordable or rental housing built. Some
expressed strong support for keeping Bewicke Avenue open to traffic between Marine Drive and 1st

Street. Those who opposed the project did so due to the increased density, traffic and building height.

Conclusion
The purpose of this development information session was to present to neighbours the proposed
rezoning application and the mid rise development concept, and to provide them with an opportunity to
ask clarifying questions and comment on the proposal. Two newspaper ads notified the community of
the meeting, and a sign was posted on the property. 386 invitations were distributed by mail to the
surrounding community. 14 community members signed in and participated at the meeting. Eight
comment forms and 5 emails were submitted. Four respondents expressed explicit support for the
proposal.

The public could participate in this process in three ways:
• browsing boards
• talking to the project team and City Planner
• submitting written comments.

The meeting length and format was sufficient to provide all participants an opportunity to learn more,
ask questions, and make the comments they wished to provide that evening. Participants asked the
development team and City planner a variety of specific questions, mostly related to traffic circulation,
need for additional parking in the area, building height and form, the pedestrian realm on Marine Drive,
maintenance of green space, as well as the inclusion of rental or below market housing in the proposal.
The community was given ample opportunity to express their views of the proposal.



Public Hearing 
presentation for 
705 West 3rd Street
Bylaw No. 8839

Presented October 18, 2021
Development Planning

Introduction
• For Council’s consideration,

a rezoning application for a
proposed six-storey mixed-
use building containing:
– 70 rental apartment units;
– Includes a roof-top outdoor

amenity space;
– Ground Floor Child Care;

and
– Two levels of underground

parking for 87 vehicles and
144 secured bike stalls.

• Replacing the GardenWorks
nursery.

2



Background

• December 2017 - Mixed-use building
consisting of 63 strata units and ground level
commercial units.

• April 2018 – Support to negotiate for a on-site
City-owned child care facility.

• Rapid-Bus line along Marine Drive required
larger land dedication along Marine Drive.

3

Background

• February 2019 – Support to transfer a portion
of surplus City land along Bewicke Avenue.

• November 2020 – Current proposal
submitted.  Changes include:
– Residential units changed from strata to 100%

rental; and
– Private Child Care facility to encompass the

entire ground level.

4



Location

5

Land Use and Zoning

6

• OCP
– Mixed Use Level 2
– 2.0 FSR Base
– 0.5 FSR density

bonus
• Existing Zoning

– Service Commercial
1 (CS-1)



Neighbourhood Context

7

Proposal

8

• Proposed 70 residential
units.
– 4 Studio
– 47 one-bedroom
– 12 two-bedroom
– 7 three-bedroom

• 7 units to be secured as
mid-market rental in
perpetuity.

• 30 adaptable units.
• Rooftop outdoor amenity

space.
• Ground level child care

facility.



Ground Floor Child 
Care Facility

9

• Up to 144 children.
• Accessed from

Marine Drive and a
dedicated elevator to
the parkade.

• Outdoor space
located at the rear of
the facility
– Different programs

would be staggered
times for use.

Child Care Facility

10

• Applicant and potential
provider have been in
discussions with VCH.

• If supported, it would
contribute a large
number of child care
spaces.

• Zoning Amendment
Bylaw also allows for
commercial uses,
including childcare.



Land Dedications

• Standard 3 metre dedication along Marine
Drive.

• Additional 3 metre dedication needed for
RapidBus route and bus stop.

• Total 6 metre dedication along Marine
Drive frontage.

11

Portion of Bewicke
Sale

12

• The dedications
created challenges to
the project.

• 165.3 sq. m. (1,1779
sq. ft.) of surplus land
along Bewicke
Avenue to be
conveyed to applicant
upon successful
rezoning approval.



Frontage 
Improvements

13

Bus Stop Spacing

14



Bus Stop Spacing

15

Capilano 
Mall to Fell 
Avenue
= 330 m

Capilano 
Mall to 
Bewicke 
Avenue
= 600 m Capilano Mall to 

Lonsdale Quay 
Loop
= 2.2 km

Bewicke Avenue 
to Lonsdale 
Quay
= 1.9 km

Bicycle routes

16

On road non AAA:
Shared bike/veh lane
On road bike lane

AAA Bicycle routes
Separated bike lane
Multi-use path

Proposed connection



Parking

17

• Parking on 2 levels.
• Access is off the lane to

the south.
• First level is for visitor,

child care / commercial.
• Lower parking level is

for residents.
• Loading stall is

available off the lane at
the SW corner, next to
the parkade entrance.

Planning Analysis

• The proposal complies with the OCP.
• Meets the strategic plan as a City for

People in being close to public transit,
local services and amenities, and
increasing the rental and mid-market
rental stock in the City.

• Meets the Housing Action Plan in
proposing seven 3-bedroom units (10.0%).

18



Planning Analysis: 
Housing Action Plan

19

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Secured Rental Units

Total Rental Units Approved 705 West 3rd Street

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Mid-Market Rental Units

Total MMR Units Approved 705 West 3rd Street

Total Secured 
Rental Units 

Approved 
(2016-2021)

Total Secured 
Rental Units 
Completed

Total Secured 
Rental Units 

Under 
Construction

1690 576 523

Total Mid-
Market Rental 

Units 
Approved 

(2016-2021)

Total Mid-
Market Rental 

Units 
Completed

Total Mid-
Market Rental 

Units Under 
Construction

142 38 51

Note: All figures for 2021 are to the end of June 2021. Total completions to June 2021 not yet verified.

Planning Analysis

• Required Zoning Bylaw amendments
include:
– Increasing the allowable density to 2.50 FSR;
– Maximum Building height of 19.80 metres

(65.0 feet);
– Add Rental Apartment Residential to the

permitted uses; and
– Building setbacks.

20



Density Bonus

• 1.0 FSR density bonus supported through:
– 100% of the residential units secured as rental;

and
– Minimum of 10% (7 units) of the units be secured

at Mid-Market rents in perpetuity.
• The City’s Density Bonus and Community

Benefits Policy recognizes that an all rental
building with an affordable component is a
public amenity and mentions waiving the
financial amenity contribution.

21

Advisory Panels

• The application appeared before the Advisory
Design Panel at their May 16, 2018 meeting,
where the Panel supported the application
with some recommendations.

• The applicant responded to these in their
current proposal and staff’s view of the
current proposal doesn’t require an additional
review of the Panel.

22



Community Consultation

• The applicant held their Developer
Information Session on May 22, 2018 and
was attended by 14 people.

• Liked the design of the building and the
inclusion of the child care facility.

• Concerns over building height, the lack of
available parking, and more traffic to an
already busy intersection.

23

Conclusion

• The proposal complies with the OCP.
• The application meets the City’s Strategic Plan as

a City for People as it is using an existing site to
increase the number of apartment buildings.

• 144 more child care spaces towards meeting Child
Care Action Plan goal.

• The site proximity to existing amenities,
commercial areas, public transit and
improvements to the active mobility facilities and
the public realm makes it an appropriate location
for the proposal.

24



25

Thank you.



ANKENMAN MARCHAND
A R C H I T E C T S
C o n t i n u i n g to c r e a t e a r c h i t e c t u r e tha t  

e n h a n c e s l i f e and the e n v i r o n m e n t .

Public Hearing
Monday, October 18th, 2021

The Silva – 705 West 3rd Street, North Vancouver

WelcomeW l
WELCOME

A2

Overview
Presentation:
• Project Team & Introductions
• Surrounding Context
• Community Visions (OCP)
• Community Benefits/Project Overview
• Architecture
• Sustainability
• Daycare
• Summary and Conclusions

PUBLIC HEARING



Project Team Who is involved?

A3PUBLIC HEARING

Design Team:

Development Team:

Surrounding Context

James 
Anderson  
Park

CD-27
Shopping  
Centre

P-1
Elementary  
School

CD-44
Seniors 
Housing

P1

Future 
Park?

MarinneSubject 
Site

Bewicke 2nd St. W

Lane

Key Information, Site & Context:
• New Public Plaza fronting onto Marine 

Drive
• Significant Transit Stop servicing the B-

Line located on Plaza
• Integration of pedestrian and cycling 

connections within the existing network 
• Continuation of Green Necklace

Pathway to Mosquito Creek
• Surrounding mixed-use residential

& commercial uses

A4PUBLIC HEARING



Community Vision:
“In 2031, the City of North Vancouver will be a vibrant, diverse and highly livable 
community that is resilient to climate or other changes, and sustainable in its ability to 
prosper without sacrifice to future generations”.

“The OCP has a strong focus on … meeting the needs of the community members locally 
by creating an attractive, accessible, walkable community that supports the needs of a 
diverse population and labour force. Theis includes the provision of quality housing, a 
balance of amenities, including open space, a variety of transportation options, social 
services, a strong economy and a healthy environment and community”.

“The City also wants … continued celebration of arts and culture, an awareness of 
nature…and the pursuit of high-quality urban design”.

A5PUBLIC HEARING

Project Benefits and Overview
COMMUNITY BENEFITS

Public Plaza:
• An expansive Public Plaza.
• A gathering place for the Community and a connector between 

the Spirit Trail and the Mahon Park trail head on Keith Road.
• Vibrant, exciting interface between the plaza and the proposed 

daycare fronting the plaza
• Vibrant, garden-inspired landscaping paying  tribute to the sites’ 

current use.
• The enhancement of the plaza also means an upgrade to       

infrastructure such as new sidewalks, curbs, street trees, bike 
path, street lighting, and the new transit stop.

Daycare Space:
• The ground level of the at-grade uses is proposed as a much-

needed Daycare that will accommodate the building’s future 
residents as well as those residents surrounding the site.

• The Daycare has an expansive outdoor play space with       
physical activity opportunities.

100% Rental:
• The project will add 70 rental units to North Vancouver’s rental 

stock with a wide variety of unit types.
• 10% of all units will be Mid Market Rental units.

SUSTAINABILITY
Social & Urban Design Sustainability:
• Proposed Rooftop Garden and amenity spaces for gathering and socializing 
• Roof top Urban agriculture and storage for outdoor furniture.
• A multi-programmed  indoor and outdoor dining, lounge, firepit, with elevator access
• Daycare accommodating infants and toddlers on the ground level
• Public transportation at the site’s doorstep reduces dependence on the automobile, 

associated traffic congestion and associated carbon dioxide footprint.
• Ample, shaded outdoor living spaces – either decks or patios.

Building Sustainability:
• A living, green roof over the non-habitable portion of the top floor – reduce 

stormwater run-off, provide a cooling effect and a aesthetically-pleasing greenscape.
• Significant bike parking is included: 98 secured stalls, and 12 surface stalls with 

provision for 24 E-bike charging stations

A6PUBLIC HEARING



Building Sustainability (cont’d)

• The project proposes that all parking stalls are EV ready, with 11 
EV charging stations installed at the outset.

• A secured bicycle repair/workshop has been included in the 
parkade level.

• A dog-wash station has been included in the parkade level, 
encouraging dog-owners to utilize the access to North 
Vancouver’s vast trail network system.

• The building has been designed in an “L” shape, creating a SW 
facing central courtyard for the outdoor area for the Daycare, but 
more importantly creating a large number of corner units, 
maximizing natural light and cross-through ventilation 
opportunities without the reliance of mechanical systems.

• Ample secured, bulk-storage has been included in the parkade.
• The project will be connected to the District’s Energy System.
• A low wall/window ratio on all building facades ensures as little 

heat loss as possible and the opportunities to maximize the 
building’s exterior insulation system while still maximizing natural 
light opportunities.

References natural, cross-through ventilation opportunities to address 
heightened need for building cooling 

A7PUBLIC HEARING

Project Benefits and Overview (cont’d)

A8PUBLIC HEARING

Inspired by “the pursuit of high-quality urban design” as noted in the OCP
• Flat roofs minimize appearance of  building height and increase solar  exposure to courtyard and public areas.
• The distinct and unique  juxtaposition of building materials, colours, entry definitions, a 3-dimensional play on the 

façade materials, and providing each façade with its own definition and personality confirms this will be read as a 
landmark building, defining the gateway into the City of North Vancouver.

• Feature rounded corner window details.
• Continuous weather protection along Marine and Bewicke.
• High-quality urban design in the Plaza and Bewicke frontages  incorporating interesting and unique 

street furniture, places to sit, landscaping, bus stop, etc. all blend together to ensure this is a 
project of the highest standards

Elevations + Materials



Rental 
Development

In this model, provision of family 
units and additional Mid-Market 
rental units which will be rented 

10% CMHC average rates.

Shared Resources and 
Community Living

Shared amenity spaces 
supplement the liveability of each 

home so residents can 
comfortably live in a smaller space
and ensure that there are ample 

opportunities to create a 
community within a community. 

Affordability

Maintaining affordability is a key driver to 
the  entire project. The development  

model inherently cuts many typical costs. 
The  number of units and various 

typologies has been carefuly chosen
to maintain feasibility and to ensure the 
proposal is all-inclusive. Having a major 

transit hub at the project’s doorstep 
ensures future residents can avoid the 
need for, and associated costs of an 

automobile if desired.

A9PUBLIC HEARING

Sustainability Economic

Sustainability Social

Down-sizers  
Age-in-place

Young 
families

Seniors Young 
professionals

Key to this development is the focus on creating a multi-generational community.

• 70 units are provided and consist 
of  a wide variety of studios, and 
1, 1 + Dens, 2, and 3 bedroom  
homes. All units are single-storey
homes providing an accessible 
choice for seniors or those looking 
to  age-in-place.

• A certain number of units will be 
fully adaptable and additional 
units will be available for those in 
need.

A10PUBLIC HEARING



Daycare Amenity Background
• Recognizing the City of North Vancouver’s need to acquire additional lands for the 

new bus and bicycle lanes, Council’s Childcare Action Plan, and the associated 
desperate need for additional Daycares. The project typology pivoted towards 
being 100% community-based: providing Childcare and Rental Housing and 
removing one-storey in height.

• The Development Team spent considerable time finding the right Operator for this 
exciting and vibrant ground floor use, and after careful consideration, chose 
Willowbrae Childcare to steward this tremendous opportunity due to their 
outstanding track-record and professionalism.

• Though the licensing allows up to 144 students, the programming allows this 
number of students to be staggered throughout the day. To be clear, 144 students 
would not be on site at any on given time.

PUBLIC HEARING A11

Daycare Amenity Drop-off & Pick-up

• Pick-up and drop-off have been carefully considered for this development 
and has been reviewed by both North Vancouver Staff as well as our 
Traffic Consultant.

• As the classes are staggered throughout the day, there is no particular 
“rush hour”.

• 18 stalls (that will conveniently serve as Visitor Stalls during non-peak 
periods and after closing) are conveniently located at the parkade entry 
and access the Daycare directly  above via both stairs and an elevator 
have been designated as Daycare Stalls. 

• Willowbrae and our Consultants have confirmed that this allocation is 
more than adequate based on their programming, experience, and the 
Daycare’s prime location: Willowbrae are confident that due to all the 
surrounding density, the 70 rental units above, the convenient bike lane 
and a major transit route location at the project’s front door, very few 
parents will be arriving by vehicle.

A12PUBLIC HEARING



A14

Exterior Daycare Amenity
• No more than 12 students would be outside at any one time. 
• No complaints with regard to outdoor noise has been received by any Willowbrae

childacare facilities
• As responsible operators, Willowbrae spares no expense in forecasting such issues 

and install a proper, 8’ high glass sound guard that deflects any potential sound 
transmission vertically vs. horizontally (as seen on their recently built outdoor space in 
Vancouver’s River District in the picture to the right).

PUBLIC HEARING

Daycare Streetscape Activation
• The City of North Vancouver Staff have asked whether 

the daycare usesurrounding both the Marine Drive and 
Bewicke frontages will be compromised. 

• It is in everyone’s interest to ensure that these 
important frontages are as active as possible. Closed-
off treatment like the example below is in no-one’s 
interest, including the Daycare Operator. 

• While it is often difficult to ensure that typical 
commercial uses activate the streetscape (ie, Doctor’s 
offices, uses that require privacy etc.), in this case, as 
there is only one responsible tenant, there is a 
tremendous opportunity to ensure the streetscape 
remains active, interesting and “fun” throughout the 
day.

• To this end, clear glass will be installed. No blinds will 
be installed, and any and all uses that require privacy 
(ie, nap rooms, washrooms, offices etc.) have been 
programmed well away from the active façade 
treatment.

A13PUBLIC HEARING



Daycare Streetscape Activation

A14PUBLIC HEARING

A15PUBLIC HEARING



A16PUBLIC HEARING

A17PUBLIC HEARING



A18PUBLIC HEARING

Summary and Conclusions:
- This project is entirely community-based and offers the site’s future residents, and 

all surrounding residents, an unprecedented community amenity package along 
with a unique and appropriate, architectural striking gateway building that will 
ensure significant pride throughout the Community.

Questions and Answers?

Our entire Team wishes to thank both Council 
and the Community for their consideration this evening!!!!



141 WEST 14TH STREET / NORTH VANCOUVER / BC / V7M 1H9 / T 604 985 7761 / F 604 985 9417 / CNV.ORG  

Notice is hereby given that Council will consider: 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8839 and Housing Agreement Bylaw No. 8840 to rezone the subject 
property from a Service Commercial (CS-1) Zone to a Comprehensive Development 735 (CD-735) Zone 
to permit the development of a 6-storey, 70 market rental unit apartment 

by a child care facility. Two levels of underground parking for 87 vehicles are 
proposed. The proposed density is 2.60 times the lot area. 
The Public Hearing will be held electronically via “WebEx”.  All persons who 

or written submission.  All submissions must include your name and address 

delivered to City Hall, no later than 12:00 noon on Monday, October 18, 
2021, to ensure their availability to Council at the Public Hearing.  Once the 
Public Hearing has concluded, no further information or submissions can be considered by Council.
To speak at the Public Hearing by phone:
PublicHearings, or by phoning 604-990-4230 and providing contact information, so call-in instructions 
can be forwarded to you.  All pre-registration must be submitted no later than 12:00 noon on 
Monday, October 18, 2021.
Speakers who have not pre-registered will also have an opportunity to speak at the Public Hearing.  
Once all registered speakers have provided input, the Mayor will call for a recess to allow time for 
additional speakers to phone in.  Call-in details will be displayed on-screen at the Public Hearing (watch 
web livestream).

8, 2021.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
WHO: Ankenman Marchand Architects
WHAT: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8839 and

Housing Agreement Bylaw No. 8840
WHERE: 705 West 3rd Street
WHEN: Monday, October 18, 2021 at 5:30 pm
HOW: View the meeting online at cnv.org/LiveStreaming

725

719

63
9

700

71
9

66
3

66
0

67
1

65
4

66
7

66
3

660

71
1

70
7

65
7

70
5

33
9

72
1

65
0

34
8

64
5

66
8

20
1

733

65
1

65
7

71
0

70
5

31
2

717

W
 3rd St

W 2nd St

W Keith Rd

Marine Dr

Squamish
Nation

Be
w

ic
ke

 A
ve

705 W 3rd Street



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839 Document: 2062218-v2 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8839 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700,
Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839” (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman
Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd Street, CD-735).

2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby
amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and
forming part of CD-735 (Comprehensive Development 735 Zone):

Lots Block D.L. Plan 

J 15 265 MP43325 from CS-1 

3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning
Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by:

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-734
Comprehensive Development 734 Zone”:

“CD-735 Comprehensive Development 735 Zone”

B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-734 Comprehensive
Development 734 Zone”:

“CD-735 Comprehensive Development 735 Zone”

In the CD-735 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking
shall be as in the CS-1 Zone, except that:

(1) One Principal Buildings shall be permitted on one Lot;

(2) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to:

(a) Retail-Service Group 1 Use;
(b) Child Care Use
(c) Rental Apartment Residential Use;
(d) Accessory Off-Street Parking Use; and
(e) Accessory Off-Street Loading Use

(3) Gross Floor Area:

(a) The Principal Building shall not exceed a Gross Floor Area of 1.0 times the
lot area, provided that this amount may be increased to a maximum of 2.0



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839 Document: 2062218-v2 

times the Lot Area through the provision of Adaptable Design subject to 
Section 423; 

 
(b) Notwithstanding 3(a), the maximum Gross Floor Area may be further 

increased, upon entering into a Housing Agreement with the City, from the 
“Base Density” to the “Total Density” as follows: 

 
BASE DENSITY

OCP Schedule 'A' 2.0 FSR  
ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY

ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
CATEGORY 

DESCRIPTION 
ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
(BONUS) 

POLICY 
REFERENCE 

100% Rental 
Housing 

Secured rental 
apartment 
building, of 
which 7 units 
are mid-market  

0.50 FSR OCP Section 
2.2 

 
TOTAL DENSITY 2.50 FSR  
 
To a maximum of 2.50 FSR; 

 
(4) The Lot Coverage of the Principal Building shall not exceed a maximum of 51 

percent; 
 

(5) Height: 
 

(a) The Principal Building shall not exceed a Height of six storeys and 19.8 
metres (65.0 feet) as measured from the average Building Grade at the 
East property line along Bewicke Avenue; 

 
(6) The minimum required Principal Building setback, measured to each building 

face, shall be limited to: 
 

(a) 0.0 meters (0.0 feet) from the Front Property Line (Marine Drive); 
(b) 0.7 meters (2.2 feet) from the Exterior Lot Line (Bewicke Avenue); 
(c) 2.0 meters from the Interior Lot Line; 
(d) 0.7 meters (2.2 feet) from the Rear Lot Line; 

 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839 Document: 2062218-v2 

(7) Section 510(3) Building Width and Length shall not apply. 
 
(8) Section 10A05(1) Secure Bike Parking be varied to permit secure bicycle storage 

on the P2 level. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 21st day of September, 
2021. 

READ a second time on the 21st day of 
September, 2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 Document: 2053668-v2 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8840 

A Bylaw to enter into a Housing Agreement (705 West 3rd Street) 

WHEREAS Section 483 of the Local Government Act R.S.B.C. 2015 c.1 permits a local 
government to enter into a housing agreement for rental housing. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, 

No. 8840” (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 
West 3rd Street, CD-735, Rental Housing Commitments). 

 
2. The Council hereby authorizes the agreement substantially in the form attached to this bylaw 

between The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver and Marine and Bewicke Project 
Ltd. with respect to the lands referenced as 705 West 3rd Street, “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 
6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8839” (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman 
Marchand Architects, 705 West 3rd Street, CD-735). 

 
3. The Mayor and Corporate Officer are authorized to execute any documents required to give 

effect to the Housing Agreement. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 21st day of September, 
2021. 

READ a second time on the 21st day of 
September, 2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 Document: 2053668-v2 

RENTAL HOUSING AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference the <> day of <>, 20<>. 

BETWEEN: 

MARINE AND BEWICKE PROJECT LTD. 
Suite 950, 475 West Georgia Street 
Vancouver, British Columbia,  
V6B 4M9 
 
(the “Owner”) 
 

AND: 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER, 
a municipal corporation pursuant to the Local Government Act and 
having its offices at 141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, 
British Columbia, V7M 1H9 
 
(the “City”) 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Owner is the registered owner of the Lands. 
 
B. The City is a municipal corporation incorporated pursuant to the Act. 

C. As a condition of the Rezoning Bylaw, the Owner has agreed to enter into a housing 
agreement with the City in accordance with section 483 of the Act. 

D. Section 483 authorizes the City, by bylaw, to enter into a housing agreement in respect of 
the form of tenure of housing units, availability of such units to classes of identified person, 
administration and management of such units and the rent that may be charged for such 
units. 

 
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) now paid by the City to 
the Owner and for other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of which the 
Owner hereby acknowledges), the Owner and the City covenant each with the other as follows: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 

(a) “Act” means the Local Government Act, RSBC. 2015 c.1 as amended from time 
to time; 

 
(b) “Affordable Rent" means with respect to each Mid-Market Rental Unit a rent 

payment amount equal to 10% below the “Private Apartment Average Rents” for 
the corresponding bedroom type in the City of North Vancouver as established by 
CMHC’s Housing Market Information Portal for the year the tenancy is entered 
into; 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 Document: 2053668-v2 

(c) “Agreement” means this agreement as amended from time to time; 
 
(d) “Commencement Date” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein; 
 
(e) “Council” means the municipal council for the City of North Vancouver; 
 
(f) “CMHC” means Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation; 
 
(g) “Director of Planning” means the chief administrator of the Department of 

Planning of the City and his or her successors in function and their respective 
nominees; 

 
(h) “Dwelling Unit” means a dwelling unit as defined in the City of North Vancouver’s 

“Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 6700” as amended from time to time; 
 
(i) “Lands” means those lands and premises legally described as 

 
Parcel Identifier: 024-605-701 
Lot J 
Block 15 
District Lot 265 
Plan LMP43325; 

 
(j) “Mid-Market Rental Units” means Dwelling Units that are rented to tenants for 

Affordable Rent; 
 
(k) “Market Rental Units” means Dwelling Units that are rented to tenants for market 

rental rates as set by the Owner; 
 

(l) “Rental Purposes” means an occupancy or intended occupancy which is or would 
be governed by a tenancy agreement as defined in Section 1 of the Residential 
Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78 as amended from time to time between the Owner 
and the tenant; 

 
(m) “Rental Units” means the Market Rental Units and the Mid-Market Rental Units; 
 
(n) “Residential Building” means the six storey building to be constructed on the 

Lands to be used for Rental Purposes with 70 Dwelling Units, of which 63 Dwelling 
Units will be Market Rental Units and 7 Dwelling Units will be Mid-Market Rental 
Units; 

 
(o) “RT Act” means the Residential Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78; 

 
(p) “Rezoning Bylaw” means the rezoning bylaw applicable to the Lands described 

as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8696”; and 
 
(q) “Term” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein. 

 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 Document: 2053668-v2 

2. TERM 
 
2.1 This Agreement will commence upon adoption by Council of “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 

2021, No. 8840” (Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. / Ankenman Marchand Architects, 705 
West 3rd Street, CD-735, Rental Housing Commitments), (the “Commencement Date”) 
and will continue until the date this Agreement is terminated in accordance with sections 2.2 
or 8.3(c) (the “Term”). 

 
2.2 This Agreement will terminate immediately upon the removal or destruction of the Residential 

Building provided the Residential Building is not repaired or rebuilt following the destruction 
thereof. 

 
2.3 Subject to section 7.3, upon termination of this Agreement, this Agreement will be at an end 

and of no further force and effect. 
 
3. USE OF LANDS 
 
3.1 The Owner covenants and agrees with the City that during the term of this Agreement, 

notwithstanding the Rezoning Bylaw, the Lands shall be used and built on only in strict 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that:  

(a) the Lands shall not be subdivided or stratified; 

(b) the Residential Building shall be used for Rental Purposes only; and 

(c) no Rental Unit in the Residential Building shall be occupied for any purpose except 
for Rental Purposes. 

3.2 The Owner further covenants and agrees with the City that the Lands and any buildings 
or structures constructed thereon including the Residential Building shall be developed, 
built and maintained in accordance with all City bylaws, regulations and guidelines as 
amended from time to time. 

 
4. TENANCY RESTRICTIONS 
 
4.1 The unit mix for Rental Units in the Residential Building shall be no fewer than 7 three-

bedroom units, 12 two-bedroom units, 47 one-bedroom units and 4 studio units or as 
otherwise approved in writing by the Director of Planning in his or her discretion. 

 
4.2 The seven Mid-Market Rental Units shall be provided in the following unit mix: five one-

bedroom unit, 1 two-bedroom unit, and 1 three-bedroom unit. The Owner may only change 
this mix with the approval in writing by the Director of Planning with such approval to be 
granted in his or her discretion. The Owner shall be entitled to determine the locations of the 
three Mid-Market Rental Units within the Residential Building. 

 
4.3 The Owner shall enter into a minimum 1 year tenancy agreement for each of the Mid-

Market Rental Units which will convert to a month to month tenancy at the end of the 1 year 
term. If such a tenancy is ended prior to the end of the Term, the Owner must rent the Mid-
Market Rental Unit at Affordable Rent.  For greater certainty, at the end of each tenancy, 
the Mid-Market Rental Unit will continue to be rented as a Mid-Market Rental Unit at 
Affordable Rent, which obligation will be ongoing at all times during the Term. 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 Document: 2053668-v2 

5. OWNER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
5.1 Without limiting section 3.1 of this Agreement: 
 

(a) Management and administration: the management, administration, and associated 
costs with the management and administration of the Rental Units, including the 
Mid-Market Rental Units, will be borne by the Owner or its designated rental agent, 
unless otherwise approved by the City in writing; 

 
(b) Advertisement: the Owner will feature the tenure restrictions set out in this 

Agreement prominently in all advertising of Mid-Market Rental Units; 
 

(c) Tenant Selection: the Owner will determine the selection of the tenants of the 
Mid-Market Rental Units, applying the suggested income qualification of a 
maximum household income determined by multiplying the low-end of market 
rents by 12 to yield the households’ annual housing costs, and divided by 30% to 
meet the standard definition of affordability. Tenants from the existing rental 
building on the Lands should be provided first right of refusal in the Mid-Market 
Rental Units, regardless of income. In determining financial eligibility, the Owner 
or its rental agent, so long as it acts honestly and in good faith, is entitled to rely 
on all information provided by the prospective tenant and the Owner will have no 
liability if the prospective tenant intentionally or unintentionally provides any 
incorrect information. The Owner is under no obligation to monitor or update the 
financial circumstances of the tenant once the lease is signed.  

 
(d) Rent Amount and Permitted Increases: Affordable Rent for Mid-Market Rental 

Units is to be determined at the time of tenancy. Rent amounts may be 
subsequently increased by the permitted annual rent increase then set under the 
RT Act.  

  
(e) Compliance with applicable laws: without restricting the foregoing, the Owner will 

comply with all applicable provisions of the RT Act and any other provincial or 
municipal enactments imposing obligations on landlords in relation to residential 
tenancies; 

 
(f) Performance: the Owner will perform its obligations under this Agreement diligently 

and in good faith; and 
 

(g) Evidence of compliance: provided that the same can be done without breaching 
the Personal Information Protection Act (as amended from time to time) the Owner 
will, at Business License renewal or upon request by the City, supply to the City 
copies of any documentation in possession of the Owner necessary to establish 
compliance with the Owner’s obligations under this Agreement. 

 
6. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
6.1 The City may, acting reasonably, give to the Owner a written notice (in this section 6.1, the 

“Notice”) requiring the Owner to cure a default under this Agreement within 30 days of receipt 
of the Notice. The Notice must specify the nature of the default. The Owner must act with 
diligence to correct the default within the time specified. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 Document: 2053668-v2 

6.2 If the default is not corrected within the time specified, the Owner will pay to the City on 
demand by the City 200 percent of the difference between current market rent, as determined 
by a third-party appraiser, and Affordable Rent for each Mid-Market Rental Unit in default for 
the default year to the end of the Term of the Agreement. The monies collected from default 
will be deposited to the City’s Affordable Housing Reserve Fund.  

6.3 The Owner will pay to the City on demand by the City all the City's costs of exercising its 
rights or remedies under this Agreement, on a full indemnity basis. 

 
6.4 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that in case of a breach of this Agreement which is 

not fully remediable by the mere payment of money and promptly so remedied, the harm 
sustained by the City and to the public interest will be irreparable and not susceptible of 
adequate monetary compensation. 

 
6.5 Each party to this Agreement, in addition to its rights under this Agreement or at law, will be 

entitled to all equitable remedies including specific performance, injunction and declaratory 
relief, or any of them, to enforce its rights under this Agreement. 

 
6.6 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that it is entering into this Agreement to benefit the 

public interest in providing housing for Rental Purposes, and that the City's rights and 
remedies under this Agreement are necessary to ensure that this purpose is carried out and 
that the City's rights and remedies under this Agreement are fair and reasonable and ought 
not to be construed as a penalty or forfeiture. 

 
6.7 No reference to nor exercise of any specific right or remedy under this Agreement or at law 

or at equity by any party will prejudice, limit or preclude that party from exercising any other 
right or remedy.  No right or remedy will be exclusive or dependent upon any other right or 
remedy, but any party, from time to time, may exercise any one or more of such rights or 
remedies independently, successively, or in combination.  The Owner acknowledges that 
specific performance, injunctive relief (mandatory or otherwise) or other equitable relief may 
be the only adequate remedy of a default by the Owner under this Agreement. 

 
7. LIABILITY 
 
7.1 Except for the negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the Owner will 

indemnify and save harmless each of the City and its elected officials, board members, 
officers, directors, employees, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, 
personal representatives, successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, 
actions, loss, damage, costs and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for 
or suffer or incur or be put to by reason of or arising out of: 

 
(a) any act or omission by the Owner, or its officers, directors, employees, agents, 

contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is responsible; and 
 
(b) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 

provision of housing for Rental Purposes. 
 
7.2 Except to the extent such advice or direction is given negligently, the Owner hereby releases 

and forever discharges the City, its elected officials, board members, officers, directors, 
employees and agents, and its and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns from and against all claims, demands, damages, 
actions or causes of action by reason of or arising out of advice or direction respecting the 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 Document: 2053668-v2 

ownership, operation or management of the Lands for the provision of housing for Rental 
Purposes which has been or hereafter may be given to the Owner by all or any of them. 

 
7.3 The covenants of the Owner set out in sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Agreement will survive the 

expiration or the earlier termination of this Agreement and will continue to apply to any breach 
of the Agreement and to any claims arising under this Agreement during the ownership by 
the Owner of the Lands. 

 
8. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
8.1 The Owner agrees to reimburse the City for all legal costs reasonably incurred by the City for 

the preparation, execution and registration of this Agreement.  The Owner will bear their own 
costs, legal or otherwise, connected with the preparation, execution or registration of this 
Agreement. 

 
8.2 Nothing in this Agreement: 
 

(a) affects or limits any discretion, rights, powers, duties or obligations of the City under 
any enactment or at common law, including in relation to the use or subdivision of 
land; 

 
(b) affects or limits any enactment relating to the use of the Lands or any condition 

contained in any approval including any development permit concerning the 
development of the Lands; or 

 
(c) relieves the Owner from complying with any enactment, including the City's bylaws 

in relation to the use of the Lands. 
 
8.3 The Owner and the City agree that: 
 
 (a) this Agreement is entered into only for the benefit of the City; 
 

(b) this Agreement is not intended to protect the interests of the Owner, occupier or user 
of the Lands or any portion of it including the Rental Units and the Limited Common 
Property; and 

 
(c) without limiting part 2 of this Agreement, the City may at any time execute a release 

and discharge of this Agreement in respect of the Lands, without liability to anyone 
for doing so. 

 
8.4 This Agreement burdens and runs with the Lands and any part into which any of them may 

be subdivided or consolidated, by strata plan or otherwise.  All of the covenants and 
agreements contained in this Agreement are made by the Owner for itself, its successors 
and assigns, and all persons who acquire an interest in the Lands after the date of this 
Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Owner will not be liable for 
any breach of any covenant, promise or agreement herein in respect of any portion of the 
Lands sold, assigned, considered or otherwise disposed of, occurring after the Owner has 
ceased to be the owner of the Lands. 

 
8.5 The covenants and agreements on the part of the Owner in this Agreement have been made 

by the Owner as contractual obligations as well as being made pursuant to section 905 of 
the Act and as such will be binding on the Owner. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 8 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 Document: 2053668-v2 

8.6 The Owner will, at its expense, do or cause to be done all acts reasonably necessary to 
ensure this Agreement is registered against the title to the Lands, including any amendments 
to this Agreement as may be required by the Land Title Office or the City to effect such 
registration. 

 
8.7 The City and the Owner each intend by execution and delivery of this Agreement to create 

both a contract and a deed under seal. 
 
8.8 An alleged waiver by a party of any breach by another party of its obligations under this 

Agreement will be effective only if it is an express waiver of the breach in writing.  No waiver 
of a breach of this Agreement is deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver of any other 
breach of this Agreement. 

 
8.9 If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds that any part of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 

unenforceable, that part is to be considered to have been severed from the rest of this 
Agreement and the rest of this Agreement remains in force unaffected by that holding or by 
the severance of that part. 

 
8.10 Every obligation of a party which is set out in this Agreement will extend throughout the Term 

and, to the extent that any obligation ought to have been observed or performed prior to or 
upon the expiry or earlier termination of the Term, such obligation will survive the expiry or 
earlier termination of the Term until it has been observed or performed. 

 
8.11 All notices, demands, or requests of any kind, which a party may be required or permitted to 

serve on another in connection with this Agreement, must be in writing and may be served 
on the other parties by registered mail, by facsimile or e-mail transmission, or by personal 
service, to the following address for each party: 

 
  City:  The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
    141 West 14th Street 
    North Vancouver, British Columbia 
    V7M 1H9 
    Attention: Director, Planning 
    Facsimile: 604.985.0576 
 

Marine and Bewicke Project Ltd. 
Suite 950, 475 West Georgia Street 
Vancouver, British Columbia,  
V6B 4M9 

 
Service of any such notice, demand, or request will be deemed complete, if made by 
registered mail, 72 hours after the date and hour of mailing, except where there is a postal 
service disruption during such period, in which case service will be deemed to be complete 
only upon actual delivery of the notice, demand or request; if made by facsimile or e-mail 
transmission, on the first business day after the date when the facsimile or e-mail 
transmission was transmitted; and if made by personal service, upon personal service being 
effected.  Any party, from time to time, by notice in writing served upon the other parties, may 
designate a different address or different or additional persons to which all notices, demands, 
or requests are to be addressed. 

 
8.12 Upon request by the City, the Owner will promptly do such acts and execute such documents 

as may be reasonably necessary, in the opinion of the City, to give effect to this Agreement. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 9 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840 Document: 2053668-v2 

 
8.13 This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the parties and their 

successors and permitted assigns. 
 
9. INTERPRETATION 
 
9.1 Gender specific terms include both genders and include corporations.  Words in the singular 

include the plural, and words in the plural include the singular. 
 
9.2 The division of this Agreement into sections and the use of headings are for convenience of 

reference only and are not intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of any provision.  
In all cases, the language in this Agreement is to be construed simply according to its fair 
meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. 

 
9.3 The word "including" when following any general statement or term is not to be construed to 

limit the general statement or term to the specific items which immediately follow the general 
statement or term to similar items whether or not words such as "without limitation" or "but 
not limited to" are used, but rather the general statement or term is to be construed to refer 
to all other items that could reasonably fall within the broadest possible scope of the general 
statement or term. 

 
9.4 The words "must" and "will" are to be construed as imperative. 
 
9.5 Any reference in this Agreement to any statute or bylaw includes any subsequent 

amendment, re-enactment, or replacement of that statute or bylaw. 
 
9.6 This is the entire agreement between the City and the Owner concerning its subject, and 

there are no warranties, representations, conditions or collateral agreements relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, except as included in this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended only by a document executed by the parties to this Agreement and by 
bylaw, such amendment to be effective only upon adoption by City Council of an amending 
bylaw to “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8840”. 

 
9.7 This Agreement is to be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of British Columbia. 
 
9.8 This Agreement can be signed in counterpart. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THIS AGREEMENT the City and the Owner have executed this Agreement by 
signing the “Form C – General Instrument – Part 1” or “Form D – Executions Continued” attached 
hereto. 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



n IM
Department
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Emily Macdonald, Planner 2

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 2762 LONSDALE AVENUE (RED UPPER
LONSDALE PROJECTS LTD. / INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC., 
CD-740)

Date: September 8,2021 File No: 08-3400-20-0039/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated September 8, 2021, entitled 
“Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects 
Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., CD-740)”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874” 
(Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale 
Avenue, CD-740) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing;

THAT “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875” (Red Upper Lonsdale 
Projects Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740, Rental 
Housing Commitments) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing;

THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act,

THAT the community benefits listed in the report section Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits be secured through agreements at the applicant’s expense 
and to the satisfaction of staff;

AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the 
necessary documentation to give effect to this motion.

Document Number: 2091138 V3



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. I Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

ATTACHMENTS

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2091596)
2. Project Fact Sheet (CityDocs 2092794)
3. Architectural Plans, dated June 3, 2021 (CityDocs 2092574)
4. Landscape Plans, dated May 5, 2021 (CityDocs 2060278)
5. Public Consultation Summary (CityDocs 2029653)
6. Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874 (CityDocs 2091145)
7. Housing Agreement Bylaw No. 8875 (CityDocs 2091734)

PURPOSE

This report presents a rezoning application for 2762 Lonsdale Avenue for Council’s 
consideration and recommends referral to a public hearing.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed project is a six-storey rental building with a total of 60 dwelling units, 
including 6 mid-market rental units. The proposed density is 2.33 FSR, which includes a 
base density of 1.6 FSR and a bonus of 0.8 FSR. The breakdown of unit type is as 
follows:

■ Studio: 21 units
■ 1-bedroom: 19 units
■ 2-bedroom: 11 units
■ 3-bedroom: 9 units

(44 to 52 sq. m. / 476 to 562 sq. ft.)
(48 to 62 sq. m. / 515 to 667 sq. ft.)
(65 to 77 sq. m. / 699 to 834 sq. ft.
(86 sq. m. / 929 sq. ft.)

In accordance with the Zoning Bylaw, 25% of the units will be designed to meet 
Adaptable Dwelling Unit Level 2 standards and the remaining units will be designed to 
meet Level 1 standards.

The proposal includes both indoor and outdoor amenities for tenants with a bike lounge 
and workshop on the ground floor and an indoor amenity room on the 6th floor with 
washroom and kitchen adjacent to rooftop outdoor space including seating, play and 
gardening areas.

Vehicle parking is accessed off the lane, provided in one level of underground garage.

The requested zone change and variances to the Zoning Bylaw to permit the proposed 
development are identified in Table #1.

Page 2 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

Table 1. Summary of Zoning Changes
Base Zone Requirements Proposal

Zoning RM-1 Zone CD-740 (RM-1 base)

Permitted Principal
Uses Various Residential Uses Residential Rental Apartment Use

Maximum Density 1.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR) 2.33 Floor Space Ratio (FSR)

Lot Coverage Maximum 50 percent 52 percent

Maximum Building
Width and Length

Maximum 30.48 m (100 feet) 
above the third storey. 31.7 m (104 feet)

Setbacks
Front: 6.1 m / 20 ft.
Rear: 6.1 m / 20 ft.

Interior Side: 4.57 m /15 ft.

Front: 3.05 m /10 ft.
Rear: 3.66 m /12 ft.

Interior Side: 3.66 m /12 ft.

Maximum Height Three storeys /13 metres 
(42.65 feet) 17.1 metres (56 feet)

Maximum Vertical
Secure Bicycle Parking 31 spaces (35%) 48 spaces (53%)

A 3.05m (10 ft.) dedication along the west property line, adjacent to Lonsdale Avenue, 
would be delivered as part of the rezoning, as would a portion at the rear of the existing 
lot to allow for the lane to be widened to 6.1 m (20 ft.) and fully constructed as a through- 
lane connecting East 27th and East 29th Streets.

POLICY FRAMEWORK

The site is designated as Residential Level 5 in the Official Community Plan (OCR).
This designation allows for multi-family housing forms with a density of up to 2.6 FSR.

Official Community Plan
Policy 1.1.2
Align growth with the development of 
community amenities and infrastructure

Intensification of the site supports the use of 
existing amenities, including transit, the Green 
Necklace, and the existing and future Harry 
Jerome Community Recreation Centres.

Policy 1.3.1
Ensure that new development is compatible 
with the established urban form of the City, 
reflecting the primacy of the Lonsdale 
Regional City Centre and the transition 
through mid- and low-rise buildings to 
lower-density residential neighbourhoods

The proposed development is designed with 
careful consideration to minimize impacts on 
the low-density residential uses to the east.

Policy 1.3.5
Encourage design excellence in 
developments through carefully considered, 
high quality architecture and landscaping, 
with varied designs which are interesting, 
sensitive and reflective of their surroundings

The proposal includes high-quality materials 
and design and a well thought out Landscape 
plan. The dedication along Lonsdale will allow 
for further improvements to the public realm.

Policy 1.3.6
Encourage architecture that responds to the 
unique context of the City in a sensitive,

Design and materials are consistent with those 
found in the local context. The proposed

Page 3 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

sustainable, and aesthetically compatible 
manner

building structure is mass timber wood frame. 
Landscaping utilizes native plant species.

Policy 1.3.10
Encourage active, healthy lifestyles and the 
opportunity for more social connections 
through planning and active design 
principles that encourage physical activity 
and contribute to enhanced walkability and 
active streets, sidewalks and public spaces.

The project includes bike-focused features 
including the bike lounge and workshop at the 
ground level. Off-site works in the street and 
lane will help to improve the pedestrian 
experience adjacent to the site and at the lane 
crossing points along East 27th and 29th
Streets.

Policy 1.4.1
Consider the needs of households with 
children in the design of multi-family 
developments;

Nine 3-bedroom units are proposed and an 
outdoor play area is incorporated into an 
overall outdoor amenity area plan that allows 
for multiple uses and activities within the same 
space.

Policy 1.4.4
Incorporate active-design principles in new 
development that encourage physical 
movement and social interaction thereby 
contributing to a healthier community;

The bike lounge encourages social interactions 
by those tenants who will use that space. The 
sixth-floor amenities support various activities 
that will attract a number of different users.

Policy 1.5.1
Provide opportunities fora range of housing 
densities, diversified in type, size and 
location

The project will provide 60 new rental units 
with a range of unit types and sizes. A third of 
the units will have two or more bedrooms.

Policy 1.5.4
Prioritize the development and revitalization 
of affordable rental housing and use density 
bonusing and density transfers to 
incentivize the retention, renewal and/or 
replacement of rental units as a public 
benefit;

The proposed 60 rental units, including 6 mid-
market units, will be secured for the life of the 
building as a public benefit.

Policy 1.5.6
Ensure a sufficient number of new 
apartment building provide accessible units 
and that these accessible units are 
represented across various unit sizes;

The proposal includes 25% of units as
Adaptable Level 2, the distribution of which will 
reflect the overall unit-mix, and the remaining 
units will be Adaptable Level 1.

Policy 2.2.2
Strategically manage on-street and off- 
street transportation facilities to prioritize 
more sustainable forms of transportation 
through a variety of measures (e.g. 
providing bicycle end-of-trip facilities and 
pedestrian-level lighting, reducing parking 
requirements in developments in close 
proximity to transit, on-street pay parking, 
electric vehicle charging stations, and 
parking spaces for car-share, carpool and 
low-emission vehicles);

The project includes features (bicycle lounge) 
that will attract tenants that regularly travel by 
bicycle. The minimum required parking is 
proposed, which will help to keep traffic 
generated by the development low. Electric 
vehicle charging will be provided for all 
residential vehicle parking spaces (as per the 
Zoning Bylaw).

Policy 3.4.2
Consider the potential for food production 
on public and private land including 
rooftops, community gardens, micro 
gardens, composting, urban farming,

The project includes garden planters for 
tenants’ use as part of the outdoor amenity 
area.

Page 4 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

orchards, beehives and edible landscaping 
on residential boulevards, park land and 
rights-of-way;
Policy 3.5.1
Ensure the implementation of design 
features in new developments, and in 
overall community planning that will 
facilitate the ability of older community 
members to age in place;

25% of units will be designed to meet Level 2 
Adaptable Design requirements, the remaining 
units will be designed to meet Level 1 
requirements. This will help to reduce costs 
associated with making the units accessible for 
tenants should they have or develop a need for 
such supports.

Policy 4.2.6
Increase the ratio of productive, permeable 
green space to hard impermeable surface 
areas as redevelopment occurs;

The proposed Lot Coverage is only slightly 
greater than the standard RM-1 Zone 
requirements of 50%. Planters on the rooftop 
provide additional greenery and soil volume to 
help with storm water retention.

Housing Action Plan
Action #3:
Mid-Market Rental Units

The project will provide 6 mid-market units, to 
be secured for the life of the building.

Action #4
Family-Friendly Housing

The project includes 9 three-bedroom units.

Sustainable Development Guidelines
Natural Systems
The ability of natural systems, both global 
and local, to support life. Parks and green 
spaces help regulate the climate, clean and 
filter water and air, and provide recreational 
and aesthetic benefits. Maintaining healthy 
natural systems will reduce strain on 
municipal infrastructure, support local 
wildlife and enhance quality of life for 
community members

The proposal includes a green roof above the 
podium and landscaping and garden beds in 
the outdoor amenity area. The planting plan 
includes a number of native species.

Physical Structures/Infrastructure:
The ability to effectively deliver basic 
services, shelter and physical amenities 
required to sustain the health and well 
being of the community. This includes water 
supply, sanitary sewer, stormwater 
drainage, solid waste management, roads, 
telecommunications, and energy efficiency 
and conservation including district energy.
As well, this category includes attractive 
streetscapes, durable buildings, provision of 
a range of housing types and adequate 
community amenities.

The project will use high-performance and 
environmentally-friendly building materials and 
will achieve Step 3 of the Step Code. Energy 
Star and water-efficient appliances will be 
installed in the dwelling units. 100% of vehicle 
stalls will be EV ready.

Human Potential:
The ability of our local community to 
support our residents in their pursuit of 
individual livelihood objectives including 
access to education, healthy food, active

The development provides Market Rental and 
Mid-Market Rental housing at a range of unit 
types and sizes.

Page 5 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

transportation and affordable housing. 
Meeting these basic needs is essential for 
the maintenance and growth of human 
capacity.
Social Connections:
The ability of our community to foster 
communication, interaction and networks to 
respond effectively to community issues. 
These may include supporting community 
members with low incomes, lone-parent 
families, and matters specific to children, 
youth, seniors and people with disabilities.

The project includes both indoor and outdoor 
amenity areas that are well-programed with 
multiple opportunities for activities.

Cultural Diversity:
The ability of our community to support and 
celebrate a diversity of cultural 
backgrounds. This includes recognition of 
the traditions of the Sguamish Nation and 
the many cultures of residents who make 
the City their home. With both tangible and 
intangible elements, cultural capacity has 
economic implications and is strongly 
connected to social traditions.
Manifestations of cultural practices can 
range from spiritual practices to heritage 
buildings.

The proposed design includes various informal 
gathering spaces for tenants.

Active Design Guidelines
Primary and Secondary Stairs The project includes primary stairs that are 

located and designed to encourage active 
circulation throughout the building.

Indoor Amenity The indoor amenity areas include a gym and 
separate lounge area that is directly connected 
to the outdoor amenity area.

Outdoor Recreation and Gardens The outdoor amenity area is designed to allow 
various activities, with a children’s play area, 
gardening beds and outdoor seating.

Enhanced bicycle facilities Bike facilities in the building include a bicycle 
lounge at the ground level with bike storage, a 
seating area and a workstation.

PLANNING ANALYSIS

Site Context and Surrounding Uses

The site is located mid-block on the east side of Lonsdale Avenue between 27th and 
29th Streets. It is on a frequent transit route and is three blocks from the future Harry 
Jerome Community Recreation Centre site. The sites immediately to the north and 
south are multi-unit residential and across the lane are single-family dwellings. A 
streamside protection area lies directly behind the site, but the site itself is outside of the 
protection area.

Page 6 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

The buildings and uses immediately surrounding the subject site are described in Table 
1 below.

Table 2. Surrounding Uses

Direction Address Description Zoning

North 101 E 29th 21-unit 3 storey residential 
strata

Comprehensive Development 
315 (CD-315)

South 2750
Lonsdale 5-unit rental building RM-1

East (range) Single-family dwellings within 
streamside protection area RS-1

West

121 West
29th

2705
Lonsdale

3-storey multi-unit strata 
development

Church and related buildings

Comprehensive Development 
103 (CD-103)

Comprehensive Development 
519 (CD-519)

The project would result in the construction of the lane that runs along the east property 
line of the site. The lane is currently blocked by a portion of the property which narrows 
the right-of-way to just 3.05 metres (10 feet). The route is currently only passable by 
walking/bicycling. Improvements to the lane would include speed humps, green 
elements and possibly other traffic-calming features.

Use

The Official Community Plan (OCR) designation for the property is Residential Level 5, 
which permits residential uses. The proposed building would replace an existing three- 
storey rental building containing 26 units. The proposed project includes a total of 54 
market rental units and six mid-market units. In accordance with the Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits Policy and the Housing Action Plan, all units would be secured with 
a Housing Agreement (Attachment 7) which includes provisions to secure 10 percent of 
the units as mid-market rental, available at 10 percent below average market rents, for 
the life of the building.

The proposed unit breakdown is consistent with Strategy #4 of the Housing Action Plan, 
which calls for 10 percent of the units to be family-friendly, meaning they have a 
minimum of three bedrooms.

The secured rental and mid-market units would add to the rental housing stock in the 
area with the six mid-market units providing affordable housing at initial occupancy and 
the remainder of the units becoming more affordable over time.

Intensity

The OCP permits a maximum density of 2.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR) for this site. The 
proposal has a total density of 2.33 FSR. While additional density could be considered 
on this site, a lower density is supported due to the adjacent residential Level 1

Page 7 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

properties. Please refer to the section on Form for discussion of how the design 
responds to the adjacent low-density area to the east.

Staff support the inclusion of a density cap of 2.4 FSR in the CD bylaw in order to allow 
minor interior changes to the proposal at subsequent stages of the project. As the 
design is finalized for construction permits, it is not uncommon that the floor plans 
undergo minor adjustments which can result in minor variations to the floor area 
calculations and exemptions, resulting in minor changes to the resultant density. Any 
changes to the project drawings following the rezoning process must be consistent with 
the zoning parameters and require City approval.

Form

The building sits on a moderately sloping site and presents as 5.5-storeys at the 
northeast corner, and six storeys at the southwest corner of the site. The uppermost 
storey is set back substantially from the rear/lane side, giving the appearance of a 4.5- 
storey building from the lane and single-family properties to the east. A lesser setback 
of the uppermost floor along the south and west frontages also reduces the apparent 
massing of the building from those angles. The shadow study included in the 
architectural drawings (Attachment 3) shows how the form of the building has been 
designed to reduce shadow impacts, particularly on the properties to the east across the 
lane.

The main entrance of the building is located toward the north end of the frontage and 
provides accessible entry from Lonsdale Avenue. A rear entrance provides direct 
access for tenants between the bike lounge and the lane. This entry point as well the 
outdoor bike and dog wash area next to it encourage non-vehicle activity on the lane 
frontage. Vehicle access would be removed from Lonsdale Avenue and instead the site 
would be accessed from the newly opened lane. This would help to improve the 
pedestrian realm along Lonsdale Avenue by removing conflict points with vehicles. 
Traffic calming in the lane will help to ensure that the space remains safe for 
pedestrians and cyclists as well.

The proposed setbacks provide adequate separation between the proposed building 
and existing buildings on the sites to the north and south. A 3.05-metre (10-foot) 
setback from the front lot line provides room for landscaping and stairs connecting 
private patios to the sidewalk. With the dedication along Lonsdale, this setback results 
in effectively the same placement of the building as the existing 6.1-metre setback 
requirement.

To summarize, the proposed design responds well to the adjacent properties, 
particularly those to the east across the lane. This is partly aided by the natural slope 
and also by the reduced footprint of the sixth floor, which is designed to cast no 
additional shadow in the afternoon and evening on properties to the east.

Page 8 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

Parking and Transportation

The proposal includes the required number of vehicle parking spaces, at a ratio of 0.6 
spaces per unit, with 0.1 spaces per unit dedicated to visitor parking. Secure and short-
term bicycle parking requirements are proposed to be met, with the exception of the 
proportion of secure spaces that are vertical. Standard zoning requires that not more 
than 35 percent of the total secure bicycle parking is vertical, 53 percent is proposed.
For this project, 53 percent equates to 48 out of 90 spaces, whereas 35 percent would 
be 31 of 90.

One underground level is proposed, which is comprised of parking, storage, and most of 
the secure bicycle parking. The proposal meets the zoning requirement for parking, with 
30 tenant parking spaces and six visitor parking spaces and will meet the zoning 
requirements for electric vehicle charging. Meeting the standard zoning requirement for 
parking on this site is supported, as the site is serviced by relatively good transit 
options. The bicycle parking and other facilities proposed are expected to attract tenants 
who cycle regularly as the bike lounge is featured prominently and is very conveniently 
located on the ground floor between the front lobby and the main laneway entry/exit.
The proposed variance to vertical bicycle parking, at 53 percent of total secure bike 
parking is supportable, with the recommendation that those tenants with heavier (e.g. 
cargo, electric and mountain bikes) be given preference for the 42 horizontal spaces.

Green Buildings

The proposed energy standard for the building is Step 3, consistent with City policy. 
Some trees must be removed on the site and on city property where laneway 
improvements are required. A total of 4 on-site trees will be removed and 6 new trees 
will be added. The on-site trees to be removed were identified in an arborist report as 
having low or medium retention value due to repeated topping and pruning over time. In 
addition to the six new on-site trees, six city trees will be added, providing a double-row 
of boulevard trees along Lonsdale Avenue. The Existing trees on the neighbouring 
properties to the north and south of the site will be retained and protected throughout 
the construction process.

DENSITY BONUS AND COMMUNITY BENEFITS

The City’s Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, in conjunction with the 
Official Community Plan, allows for density bonuses beyond 1.6 FSR in the Residential 
Level 5 designation, up to a maximum of 2.6 FSR.

A bonus of 0.8 FSR is proposed, to be achieved through the provision of secured rental 
and mid-market units. As the existing building on site is a rental apartment building, 
policies do not support a benefit other than new rental housing. The value of the bonus 
density can be roughly calculated by using the standard cash contribution amount for 
areas outside the Lonsdale City Centre, $175 per square foot of bonus floor area.

Page 9 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

Table 3. Estimated Value of Community Benefits through Density Bonusing
Density Value Calculation Value
Density Bonus to 1.6 FSR / OCR Density (@ $25 / sq. ft.) $0.00
Density Bonus to 2.4 FSR (@ $175 / sq. ft.) $2,433,416
Total Value of Community Benefits $2,433,416

In addition to the secured rental and mid-market units, staff seeks Council’s direction to 
secure the following items as conditions of this development:

• public art with a value of $30,000;
• dedication of 3.048 m for public realm improvements along Lonsdale Avenue;
• dedication of 3.048 m for widening of the lane, to the minimum 6.096 m 

standard;
• construction of full laneway width adjacent to the site, to East 29th Street;
• planted areas and other features in the laneway to provide traffic-calming and 

generally improve the lane as a secondary pedestrian route;
• reconstruction of laneway access at East 27th and East 29th Streets;
• contributions toward the East 27th Street traffic signal ($50,000) and Lonsdale 

Avenue sanitary main ($75,000).

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

A Developer’s Information Session was held on January 27, 2021 in the form of a virtual 
meeting. The Public Consultation Summary (Attachment 5) provides an overview of the 
meeting details, notifications and a summary of the topics and questions discussed at 
the session and in emails received both prior to and after the session. A total of 15 
community members attended the virtual DIS; eight of the attendees submitted 
comment forms or emailed their comments. Of the submissions, three expressed 
opposition to the development or suggested significant changes such as reducing the 
height by two storeys or increasing the parking significantly. One supported the 
proposal with minor changes, and two had questions but were not clearly in support or 
opposition.

Support was expressed by several people for the quality of the design, added rental 
housing and the proposed bike lounge and other amenities.

Of the concerns heard, the main ones were regarding the height of the proposed 
building and the impact of shadow on the properties to the east as well as concerns 
about the ratio of on-site parking to units. Another common concern was the opening of 
the lane running between East 27th and East 29th Streets and that the lane would 
become heavily trafficked and less safe. Some concern regarding the proximity of the 
proposed development to St. Martins Creek (within the Wagg Creek Watershed) were 
also raised.

Staff response to public comments:
• Staff support the proposed height and massing strategy as it takes advantage of 

the site typography and respectfully scales back massing at key locations to 
mitigate potential impact.

Page 10 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

• The proposed parking meets the bylaw requirement for a rental project. A study 
prepared by the applicant’s transportation consultant determined that the 
proposed use would generate 22 trips - including both vehicles entering and 
leaving the site - within the weekday AM peak hour, and 27 trips in the afternoon 
peak hour. Laneway features including speed humps, green elements and other 
traffic-calming measures will be used to both deter and slow drivers who may try 
to use the laneway as a shortcut.

• The site slopes away from the stream towards Lonsdale Avenue and the 
development is located outside of the area where a Streamside Development 
Permit is required. Required work on the lane will need to be designed and 
reviewed with the streamside requirements in mind, a Development Permit for 
the lane work may be required, which would be determined by staff through 
development of the design drawings for the off-site work. This would occur 
concurrently with the building permit process. Should a Development Permit be 
required, this could be expected to result in improved stream conditions through 
removal of invasive species and increased native plantings.

• With the stream, laneway and street improvements proposed as part of this 
application, the project will result in a significantly improved public realm as well 
as safer driving conditions in the local area.

TENANT RELOCATION PLAN

The existing building, which was constructed in 1969, contains 20 one-bedroom units 
and six two-bedroom units. Of the existing tenants, 17 have lived in the building for 
more than 10 years.

On July 12, 2021, Council amended the Residential Tenant Displacement Policy to 
enhance protection and compensation to long term tenants. As this application was 
submitted in November 2020, prior to when the updated policy took effect, the 2015 
version of the policy applies.

A tenant relocation plan was provided with the rezoning submission that exceeds 
Residential Tenancy Act requirements for tenant compensation and follows the 2015 
Residential Tenant Displacement Policy requirements, including compensation 
packages of three-month’s rent plus $750 (per unit) towards moving expenses. 
However, the applicant has also voluntarily proposed additional compensation for long-
term tenants: four months’ rent for those who have lived in the building for 10-20 years 
and five months’ for those who have lived in the building for more than 20 years.

Also in accordance with the policy, a Tenant Relocation Coordinator was hired and has 
been communicating with the tenants of the building and providing them with 
information on available units in the general rental market. Information has also been 
shared regarding government housing programs for those who are eligible.

As of the date of this report, 20 units remain occupied. One of the remaining tenants 
has been offered a unit through BC Housing.

Page 11 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

Under the provincial Residential Tenancy Act, final eviction notices cannot be delivered 
to tenants until a demolition permit has been issued by the municipality. The notice must 
be provided a minimum of four months prior to the eviction date. Prior to issuance of the 
demolition permit, staff will request an update from the applicant’s relocation coordinator 
regarding progress in relocating the tenants and compensation as outlined in the Tenant 
Relocation Plan.

ADVISORY BODY INPUT

Advisory Design Panel
The application was reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel on March 31, 2021. The 
Panel unanimously endorsed the following resolution:

THAT the Advisory Design Panel has reviewed the Rezoning 
Application for 2762 Lonsdale Avenue and recommends approval of the 
project. The Panel commends the applicant for the quality of the 
proposal and their presentation.

Some changes were made to the building design based on comments from the Panel, 
including an increase in the rooftop amenity area and an increase in the size of some 
balconies.

LEGAL AGREEMENTS

Should Council support the proposed rezoning at Third Reading, the following legal 
agreements will be drafted and prepared prior to Final Adoption, to be signed by the 
Mayor and Corporate Officer following approval.

• Development Covenant, securing the architectural and landscape drawings;
• Servicing Agreement, securing contributions toward traffic signal and sanitary 

main upgrades, off site works, as well as land dedications along the west 
property line (3.05 metres /10 feet) and lane dedication to allow for a consistent 
lane width of 6.09 metres / 20 feet;

• Crane Swing, Shoring and Underpinning Agreement
• Community Good Neighbour Agreement
• Flooding Covenant

A Flousing Agreement to secure the 60 rental units including 6 mid-market units has 
been prepared by staff and signed by the property owner and is presented with this 
report.

CONCLUSION

The proposed six-storey rental development is consistent with the Official Community 
Plan and has been designed with sensitivity to the surrounding existing buildings. The 
proposed amenities and unit designs are supportive of households of varying sizes and 
encourage active and sustainable transportation through an emphasis on cycling as a

Page 12 of 13



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-740)
Date: September 8, 2021

transportation choice. The design activates both the street and lane frontages and 
would result in improvements to the public realm through land dedications and off-site 
works. The 60 proposed units, including 6 mid-market units, will contribute a net total of 
34 units to the city’s rental housing stock. The proposed use, intensity and form is 
supported by City policies and by planning and design analysis.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Emily Macdonald 
Planner 2

Page 13 of 13



121

128
2705

101

2710

2762

125

2750

2821

2805

120

120

2739

2723

2745

2721

2767

2757

2733

2751

2728

107123 105 117 121 127 131 135
Ea

ste
rn

 A
ve

Lo
ns

da
le 

Av
e

E 27th St

E 29th StW 29th St

W 27th St

City of North Vancouver

2762 Lonsdale Ave

PUBLISHED: September 02, 2021 

PATH: H:\CNV_Maps\Context_Maps\Emily_Macdonald\
COORDINATE SYSTEM: NAD 83, UTM Zone 10

GIS Division, Information Technology, 
City of North Vancouver

This map was produced on the City of North 
Vancouver's Geographic Information System. 
Data provided herein is derived from sources 
with varying levels of accuracy and detail. 
The City of North Vancouver disclaims all 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness 
of information contained herein.

DISCLAIMER

0 10 20 30 40
Meters

FILE: 2762_Lonsdale_Ave

Legend
Subject Site

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



SITE CHARACTERISTICS
OCP Designation

Existing Zoning 

Site Area

FLOOR AREA AND HEIGHT Existing Zoning (RM-1)

Total Lot Coverage 50%

Principal Building Height 
(maximum)

Three Storeys and      
13.0 m (62.3 ft.) 

SETBACKS
Front (East 4th Street)
Interior Side Yard (West)
Interior Side Yard (East)
Rear (South)

BICYCLE PARKING
Short Term
Secured
Total Bicycle Parking (stalls)
VEHICLE PARKING
Resident Parking
Visitor Parking
Total Vehicle Parking (stalls)

6

96 96
90 90

Maximum - 2.60 FSR       
4,198.5 sq. m             

(45,192.0 sq. ft.)           

6.1 m (20.0 ft.)

Proposed 
3.05 m (10.0 ft.)
3.66 m (12.0 ft.)
3.66 m (12.0 ft.)
3.66 m (12.0 ft.)

Numbers based on plans dated June 3, 2021           #2092794

52%

17.1 m
(56.0 ft.)Six Storeys

Proposed

N/A

Existing Zoning (RM-1)
6.1 m (20.0 ft.)

4.57 m (15.0 ft.)
4.57 m (15.0 ft.)

36 36

6
Required

6 6
30 30

Proposed (CD-740)

PROJECT SUMMARY SHEET
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

2762 Lonsdale Avenue

Residential Level 5 (R5)

1615 sq. m
(17382 sq. ft.)

Medium Density Apartment 
Residential 1 (RM-1)

Offical Community Plan 

Required Proposed

Floor Space Ratio
Maximum 1.60 FSR     

2,583.7 sq. m          
(27,810.5 sq. ft.) 

2.40 FSR
3,875.5 sq. m          

(41,715.7 sq. ft.)        

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 2�



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

2014 City of North Vancouver Official Community Plan   

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 3�



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

  
 

2014 City of North Vancouver Official Community Plan     
 

 



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

A BENCHMARK MAY BE OBTAINED
CONSTRUCTION BENCHMARK PURPOSES. 
THIS PLAN ARE NOT TO BE USED FOR
NOTE - GROUND ELEVATIONS ON

FROM THIS OFFICE.

"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"

"
"

"
"
"
"
"
"
"
"
"

"

"
"
"
"

"
"
"

"
"
"

1510505



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

*    Illustrations available           Design Elements
**  Options considered -  1 of 3-          July 2005 

D
E

S
IG

N
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
 

ADAPTABLE DESIGN GUIDELINES
DESIGN ELEMENTS

City of North Vancouver Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700 Amendment Bylaw No. 2005, No. 7721 - Figure 5 - 1 

LEVEL ONE LEVEL TWO LEVEL THREE 
BUILDING ACCESS Outside stairs – maximum degree of colour 

contrast on nosing of each stair 
Outside stairs – maximum degree of colour 
contrast on nosing of each stair 

Outside stairs – maximum degree of colour 
contrast on nosing of each stair 

BUILDING ACCESS Curb cuts have tactile and visual cues Curb cuts have tactile and visual cues Curb cuts have tactile and visual cues 

BUILDING ACCESS Unobstructed access to main building entrances 
from street/sidewalks 

Unobstructed access to main building entrances 
from street/sidewalks 

Unobstructed access to main building 
entrances from street/sidewalks 

BUILDING ACCESS 

Unobstructed internal access: 
- from parking levels containing accessible 

parking (5' or 1520mm  corridors; 2' or 
610mm clear wall space adjacent to door 
latch) * 

- garbage and recycling receptacles and 
storage lockers 

Unobstructed internal access: 
- from parking levels containing accessible 

parking (5' or 1520mm corridors; 2' or 
610mm clear wall space adjacent to door 
latch) * 

- garbage and recycling receptacles and 
storage lockers 

- no stairs within building circulation including 
corridors on residential levels 

- accessible storage lockers for each unit  

- no stairs within building circulation 
including corridors on residential levels 

- accessible storage lockers for each Level 
3 unit

BUILDING ACCESS Canopy over main building entrances (3’ or 
915mm) and enterphone 

Canopy over main building entrances (3’ or 
915mm) and enterphone 

Canopy over main building entrances (3’ or 
915mm and enterphone 

BUILDING ACCESS 

Provide automatic door opener for at least one
building entry door at ground level as well as 
doors leading into the building on each 
underground parkade level where disability 
parking is provided 

Provide automatic door opener for at least one
building entry door at ground level as well as 
doors leading into the building on each 
underground parkade level where disability 
parking is provided 

BUILDING ACCESS Disability Parking provided in accordance with 
Zoning bylaw Figure 9-4 as attached  

Disability Parking provided in accordance with 
Zoning bylaw Figure 9-4 as attached. 

Disability Parking provided in accordance with 
Zoning bylaw Figure 9-4 as attached  

BUILDING ACCESS 3' or 915mm building and suite entry doors 3' or 915mm building and suite entry doors 

BUILDING ACCESS Flush thresholds throughout the building 
(maximum ½" or 13mm height) 

Flush thresholds throughout the building 
(maximum ½" or 13mm height) 

Flush thresholds throughout the building 
(maximum ½" or 13mm height) 

BUILDING ACCESS Accessible building enterphone, call buttons  
and, where provided, suite door bells * 

Accessible building enterphone, call buttons and, 
where provided, suite door bells * 

Accessible building enterphone, call buttons 
and, where provided, suite door bells * 

2 of 11

*    Illustrations available           Design Elements
**  Options considered -  2 of 3-          July 2005 

D
E

S
IG

N
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
 

COMMON AREAS Accessible mailboxes for all AD Level 2 units, and 
5' or 1520mm turning radius in front * 

Accessible mailboxes for all AD Level 3 units, 
and 5' or 1520mm turning radius in front * 

CIRCULATION Corridors minimum 4' or 1220mm  wide (except 
for service access areas) * 

Corridors minimum 4’ or 1220mm wide (except for 
service access areas) * 

Corridors minimum 4’ or 1220mm wide (except 
for service access areas) * 

CIRCULATION
Provide 5' or 1520mm turning radius inside and 
outside the entry corridor of each dwelling unit *

Provide 5' or 1520mm turning radius inside 
and outside the entry corridor of each dwelling 
unit *

SUITE CIRCULATION Provide wiring for an automatic door opener for 
the suite entry door

Provide wiring for an automatic door opener 
for the suite entry door

SUITE CIRCULATION

Provide 2' or 610mm clear wall space adjacent to 
door latches where door swings toward user
(pocket doors acceptable for bathrooms and 
bedrooms)*

Provide wiring for an automatic door opener 
for the suite entry door. Provide 2' or 610mm 
clear wall space adjacent to door latches 
where door swings toward user  (pocket doors 
acceptable for bathrooms and bedrooms)*  

DOORS
Minimum one bathroom, minimum one bedroom 
and storage room doors 2’-10” or 860mm clear 
opening”

Minimum one bathroom, minimum one 
bedroom and storage room doors 2’-10” or 
860mm clear opening  

PATIOS & BALCONIES Minimum one door 2’ - 10” or 860mm clear door 
opening

Minimum one door 2 - 10” or 860mm clear 
door opening  

PATIOS & BALCONIES Minimum one patio or balcony doorsill with 
maximum ½” or 13mm threshold** 

Minimum one patio or balcony doorsill with 
maximum ½” or 13mm threshold ** 

PATIOS & BALCONIES Minimum 5’ or 1520mm turning radius on patio / 
balcony

Minimum 5’ or 1520mm turning radius on patio 
/ balcony 

WINDOWS  
Opening mechanism maximum 46" or 1168mm 
above floor (provide notation on window schedule) 

Opening mechanism maximum 46" or 
1168mm above floor (provide notation on 
window schedule) 

WINDOWS 
Provide minimum 6-0’ or 1800mm horizontal 
windows in living room, dining room and minimum 
one bedroom where sills are not more than 2’- 6” 
or 750mm above the floor 

Provide minimum 6-0’ or 1800mm horizontal 
windows in living room, dining room and 
minimum one bedroom where sills are not 
more than 2’- 6” or 750mm above the floor  

KITCHEN Continuous counter between sink and stove* Continuous counter between sink and stove*
KITCHEN Sink cabinet minimum 2’8” or 810mm wide   

KITCHEN Provide sufficient space for future installation 
of cooktop and wall oven  

KITCHEN Provide for potential 2’8” or 810mm wide 
undercounter workspace  

KITCHEN  Lower edge of upper cupboards 4’6” or 
1350mm above floor 

3 of 11

*    Illustrations available           Design Elements
**  Options considered -  3 of 3-          July 2005 

D
E

S
IG

N
 E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
 

KITCHEN 
Minimum 4' or 1220mm floor space between 
base cabinets / walls (possible with removal of 
sink cabinet) *

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Toilet located adjacent to wall (min 3' or 915mm 
length) * 

Toilet located adjacent to wall (min 4'6" or 
1370mm length) * 

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Provide turning radius within bathroom (may result 
from removal of vanity cabinet)* 

Provide turning radius within bathroom (may 
result from removal of vanity cabinet)* 

MIN. ONE BATHROOM 3' or 915mm clearance along full length of tub * 3' or 915mm clearance along full length of tub 
*

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Tub control valve placed at outer edge of tub, with 
tub spout remaining in central position *

Tub control valve placed at outer edge of tub, 
with tub spout remaining in central position *

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Accessible storage * Accessible storage* 
MIN. ONE BATHROOM Provide pocket door or door swing out * 

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Space under sink minimum 2’8” or 810mm 
wide *

MIN. ONE BATHROOM 
Provide for the possible future installation of an 
accessible shower stall, sized at least 3’-0” x 
5’-0” or 910mm x 1500mm - refer to the 1998 
BC Building Access Handbook for details  

MIN. ONE BEDROOM Sufficient manoeuvring room between closet 
and double bed *

MIN. ONE BEDROOM Provide 3' or 915mm access to window 
opening *

LAUNDRY FACILITIES Provide front loading side-by-side washer / 
dryer in-suite or in common area 

LAUNDRY FACILITIES 4’ or 1220mm manoeuvring space in front of 
washer / dryer 

S:\COMMUNITY PLANNING\Adaptable Design\Handouts\Design Elements Handout.doc 

4 of 11

* Illustrations available Fixtures & Finishes
- 1 of 3 July 2005 

F
IX

T
U

R
E

S
 &

 F
IN

IS
H

E
S

 

ADAPTABLE DESIGN GUIDELINES 
FIXTURES AND FINISHES

LEVEL ONE LEVEL TWO LEVEL THREE 

BASIC Easy to read building address numbers  
(min. 4” or 100mm high in contrasting colours) 

Easy to read building address numbers  
(min. 4” or 100mm high in contrasting colours) 

Easy to read building address numbers  
(min. 4” or 100mm high in contrasting colours) 

BASIC
Lighting levels to a minimum of 100 lux 
outside and inside main building entries and 
suite entries   

Lighting levels to a minimum of 100 lux outside 
and inside main building entries and suite 
entries

Lighting levels to a minimum of 100 lux outside 
and inside main building entries and suite 
entries

BASIC No polished finish on building entry flooring 
(provide flooring samples) 

No polished finish on building entry flooring 
(provide flooring samples) 

No polished finish on building entry flooring 
(provide flooring samples) 

BASIC
Except for pocket doors, sliding doors, or 
doors equipped with openers, lever door 
handles are required on all doors (provide 
notation on door schedule) 

Except for pocket doors, sliding doors, or doors 
equipped with openers, lever door handles are 
required on all doors (provide notation on door 
schedule)

Except for pocket doors, sliding doors, or doors 
equipped with openers, lever door handles are 
required on all doors (provide notation on door 
schedule)

BASIC Signage throughout common areas has well 
contrasted colours 

Signage throughout common areas has well 
contrasted colours 

Signage throughout common areas has well 
contrasted colours 

BASIC Elevators have well contrasted control buttons Elevators have well contrasted control buttons Elevators have well contrasted control buttons 
CIRCULATION Slip resistant flooring Slip resistant flooring 
CIRCULATION Colour contrasting exit doors Colour contrasting exit doors 
BUILDING MEETING / 
AMENITY ROOMS 

Provide carpet and drapes to absorb sound and 
decrease echoes 

Provide carpet and drapes to absorb sound and 
decrease echoes 

UNIT ENTRIES Adjustable door closers to reduce force to open 
door to maximum 22N or 5 lbs.

Adjustable door closers to reduce force to open 
door to maximum 22N or 5 lbs.

UNIT ENTRIES 
Door handle at 40” or 1000mm above the floor, 
with deadbolts placed immediately above or 
below

Door handle at 40” or 1000mm above the floor, 
with deadbolts placed immediately above or 
below

UNIT ENTRIES Two door viewers: 3’5” or 1050mm and 5' or 
1520mm

UNIT FLOORING Non-slip flooring in kitchen and minimum one 
bathroom (provide flooring samples) 

Non-slip flooring in kitchen and minimum one 
bathroom (provide flooring samples) 

UNIT FLOORING High density, low level loop carpet and underlay 
maximum ½” or 13mm height 

High density, low level loop carpet and underlay 
maximum ½” or 13mm height 

PATIOS AND BALCONIES Outdoor light fixture provided Outdoor light fixture provided 
PATIOS AND BALCONIES Electrical outlet provided Electrical outlet provided 

6 of 11

* Illustrations available Fixtures & Finishes
- 2 of 3 July 2005 

F
IX

T
U

R
E

S
 &

 F
IN

IS
H

E
S

 

LEVEL ONE LEVEL TWO LEVEL THREE 

ELECTRICAL 
Switches, controls, thermostats and the highest 
breaker in the suite panel, to be installed no 
higher than 46" or 1170mm above finished floor 

Switches, controls, thermostats and the highest 
breaker in the suite panel, to be installed no 
higher than 46" or 1170mm above finished floor 

ELECTRICAL Electrical outlets, cable outlets, telephone jacks 
not lower than 18” or 450mm above floor 

Electrical outlets, cable outlets, telephone jacks 
not lower than 18” or 450mm above floor 

ELECTRICAL Within suites a duplex outlet is required within 
8” or 200mm of a telephone jack 

Within suites a duplex outlet is required within  
8” or 200mm of a telephone jack 

Within suites a duplex outlet is required within  
8” or 200mm of a telephone jack 

ELECTRICAL 
Wiring for visual alarm system in living room 
and minimum one bedroom, connected to fire 
alarm system 

Wiring for visual alarm system in living room 
and minimum one bedroom, connected to fire 
alarm system 

Wiring for visual alarm system in living room 
and minimum one bedroom, connected to fire 
alarm system 

ELECTRICAL Rocker switches Rocker switches 
ELECTRICAL Double bulb ceiling fixtures 

ELECTRICAL Provide wiring for automatic door opener and 
strike at unit entry 

WINDOWS Easily grasped and operated mechanism for 
opening and locking windows  

Easily grasped and operated mechanism for 
opening and locking windows  

KITCHEN 
Task lighting of at least 100 lux level at sink, 
stove and work areas in addition to general 
overhead lighting 

Task lighting of at least 100 lux level at sink, 
stove and work areas in addition to general 
overhead lighting 

KITCHEN Pull-out work boards at 2’8” or 810mm height * Pull-out work boards at 2’8” or 810mm height * 

KITCHEN 
Lever handle faucets and cabinet handles 
which can be easily used with an open hand eg. 
“D” or “J” cabinet handles 

Lever handle faucets and cabinet handles 
which can be easily used with an open hand eg. 
“D” or “J” cabinet handles 

KITCHEN Adjustable shelves in all cabinets Adjustable shelves in all cabinets 
KITCHEN Drawer storage in key areas* 

KITCHEN Provision for removal of sink cabinet and 
lowering of counter height 

KITCHEN 
Provision in water supply and drain to allow for 
a 4” (100mm) drop in sink height (offset 
plumbing)

KITCHEN Provision for the future installation of at least 
one counter receptacle in front of cabinets 

KITCHEN 
Where regular refrigerator installed initially, 
provide adequate space for side by side model  

KITCHEN Contrasting knobs on stove / cook top 

7 of 11

* Illustrations available Fixtures & Finishes
- 3 of 3 July 2005 

F
IX

T
U

R
E

S
 &

 F
IN

IS
H

E
S

 

LEVEL ONE LEVEL TWO LEVEL THREE 

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Solid blocking provided in walls of tub / shower 
and toilet areas, and behind towel bars * 

Solid blocking provided in walls of tub / shower 
and toilet areas, and behind towel bars * 

Solid blocking provided in walls of tub / shower 
and toilet areas, and behind towel bars * 

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Pressure balanced tub / shower valves Pressure balanced tub / shower valves Pressure balanced tub / shower valves 

MIN. ONE BATHROOM 
Provision in water supply and drain to allow for 
a 4” (100mm) drop in vanity height (offset 
plumbing)

Provision in water supply and drain to allow for 
a 4” (100mm) drop in vanity height (offset 
plumbing)

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Provision for vanity sink removal Provision for vanity sink removal 

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Adjustable height shower head or hand-held 
shower head on adjustable bracket* 

Adjustable height shower head or hand-held 
shower head on adjustable bracket * 

MIN. ONE BATHROOM Water temperature regulator on tub / shower 
faucet

LIVING ROOM One switched electrical outlet One switched electrical outlet 

BEDROOMS 
Three-way switched outlet at bed area and 
doorway

Three-way switched outlet at bed area and 
doorway

BEDROOMS Provide light fixture in or adjacent to closet  Provide light fixture in or adjacent to closet  
BEDROOMS Telephone jack Telephone jack Telephone jack 
IN-SUITE STORAGE Provide light and electrical outlet Provide light and electrical outlet 

S:\COMMUNITY PLANNING\Adaptable Design\Handouts\Fixtures_Finishes Handout-.doc 

8 of 11



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

Colour Product to match (or Alternative) Finish to match Description ( Location )

1.0

1.1 Light Beige Cultured Stone CSI - Verseta - Ledgestone Sand Selected walls at entry / landscape walls - Flat panels and corner

1.2 Charcoal JamesHardie Panel JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' 7/16" Hardie-Reveal Panel and matching Reveal Trims - smooth texture

1.3 White JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Arctic White' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.4 Charcoal JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.5 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 5 1/4" exposure

2.0

2.1 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Main Roof & eyebrow soffit, selected balconies, entry canopy

2.2 Light Grey Woodtone - Real Soffit Prefinished - 'White Granite' Soffits at u/s of balconies, roof overhangs as indicated

2.4 Charcoal Vent Strip TBC Vent strip at roof and balcony locations

3.0

3.1 White Benjamin Moore BM 2121-60 White Diamond Painted wood trims with finish 1.3

3.2 Charcoal Benjamin Moore BM 2118-10 Universal Black Roof Fascia, balcony edge, painted wood trims with finish 1.2

4.0

4.1 Light Grey IKO Roofing SBS  'Modiflex' 2 Ply SBS Roofing membrane at flat roofs

C  L  A  D  D  I  N  G    

M A T E R I A L   A N D   C O L O U R   L E G E N D  

S  O  F  F  I  T    

T  R  I  M  S    

R  O  O  F  S    

5.0

5.1 Black Vinyl Windows Standard  - 'Black' or 'Charcoal' Vinyl windows and sliding doors w/ matching flashing

6.0

6.1 Black Vinyl Doors Black Prefinished vinyl balcony doors

6.2 Black Storefront  Aluminum Black Prefinished aluminum building entry storefront / amenity windows

7.0

7.1 Black Aluminum PVDF Coating Black Railing / Clear Glass Balconies - prefinished powder coat, railing c/w safety glass panels

8.0

8.1 Black Makin Metals Ltd. Matte Black Flashing at roof overhangs, balconies, windows, downspouts gutters

8.2 White Makin Metals Ltd. Prefinished - 'Regal White' Flashing and through wall flashing with finish 1.3

8.5 Woodgrain LUX  Products (or alternative) Prefinished Woodgrain - 'Fir' Decorative metal screen 6x1 linear bar grille at parking ramp openings
LUX PrIvacy Fence or Neo Lumber

9.0

9.1 Concrete Exposed Concrete Clear - water repelant coating Architectural concrete finish at exposed landscape walls

9.2 Concrete Architectural Concrete BM OC-52 Grey Owl Exposed concrete walls along ramp c/w grove reveals
w/ elastomeric paint

S  T  R  U  C  T  U  R  E

W  I  N  D  O  W  S    

D  O  O  R  S    

R  A  I  L  I  N  G  S    

A  C  C  E  S  S  O  R  I  E  S



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

Colour Product to match (or Alternative) Finish to match Description ( Location )

1.0

1.1 Light Beige Cultured Stone CSI - Verseta - Ledgestone Sand Selected walls at entry / landscape walls - Flat panels and corner

1.2 Charcoal JamesHardie Panel JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' 7/16" Hardie-Reveal Panel and matching Reveal Trims - smooth texture

1.3 White JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Arctic White' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.4 Charcoal JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.5 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 5 1/4" exposure

2.0

2.1 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Main Roof & eyebrow soffit, selected balconies, entry canopy

2.2 Light Grey Woodtone - Real Soffit Prefinished - 'White Granite' Soffits at u/s of balconies, roof overhangs as indicated

2.4 Charcoal Vent Strip TBC Vent strip at roof and balcony locations

3.0

3.1 White Benjamin Moore BM 2121-60 White Diamond Painted wood trims with finish 1.3

3.2 Charcoal Benjamin Moore BM 2118-10 Universal Black Roof Fascia, balcony edge, painted wood trims with finish 1.2

4.0

4.1 Light Grey IKO Roofing SBS  'Modiflex' 2 Ply SBS Roofing membrane at flat roofs

C  L  A  D  D  I  N  G    

M A T E R I A L   A N D   C O L O U R   L E G E N D  

S  O  F  F  I  T    

T  R  I  M  S    

R  O  O  F  S    

5.0

5.1 Black Vinyl Windows Standard  - 'Black' or 'Charcoal' Vinyl windows and sliding doors w/ matching flashing

6.0

6.1 Black Vinyl Doors Black Prefinished vinyl balcony doors

6.2 Black Storefront  Aluminum Black Prefinished aluminum building entry storefront / amenity windows

7.0

7.1 Black Aluminum PVDF Coating Black Railing / Clear Glass Balconies - prefinished powder coat, railing c/w safety glass panels

8.0

8.1 Black Makin Metals Ltd. Matte Black Flashing at roof overhangs, balconies, windows, downspouts gutters

8.2 White Makin Metals Ltd. Prefinished - 'Regal White' Flashing and through wall flashing with finish 1.3

8.5 Woodgrain LUX  Products (or alternative) Prefinished Woodgrain - 'Fir' Decorative metal screen 6x1 linear bar grille at parking ramp openings
LUX PrIvacy Fence or Neo Lumber

9.0

9.1 Concrete Exposed Concrete Clear - water repelant coating Architectural concrete finish at exposed landscape walls

9.2 Concrete Architectural Concrete BM OC-52 Grey Owl Exposed concrete walls along ramp c/w grove reveals
w/ elastomeric paint

S  T  R  U  C  T  U  R  E

W  I  N  D  O  W  S    

D  O  O  R  S    

R  A  I  L  I  N  G  S    

A  C  C  E  S  S  O  R  I  E  S



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

Colour Product to match (or Alternative) Finish to match Description ( Location )

1.0

1.1 Light Beige Cultured Stone CSI - Verseta - Ledgestone Sand Selected walls at entry / landscape walls - Flat panels and corner

1.2 Charcoal JamesHardie Panel JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' 7/16" Hardie-Reveal Panel and matching Reveal Trims - smooth texture

1.3 White JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Arctic White' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.4 Charcoal JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.5 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 5 1/4" exposure

2.0

2.1 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Main Roof & eyebrow soffit, selected balconies, entry canopy

2.2 Light Grey Woodtone - Real Soffit Prefinished - 'White Granite' Soffits at u/s of balconies, roof overhangs as indicated

2.4 Charcoal Vent Strip TBC Vent strip at roof and balcony locations

3.0

3.1 White Benjamin Moore BM 2121-60 White Diamond Painted wood trims with finish 1.3

3.2 Charcoal Benjamin Moore BM 2118-10 Universal Black Roof Fascia, balcony edge, painted wood trims with finish 1.2

4.0

4.1 Light Grey IKO Roofing SBS  'Modiflex' 2 Ply SBS Roofing membrane at flat roofs

C  L  A  D  D  I  N  G    

M A T E R I A L   A N D   C O L O U R   L E G E N D  

S  O  F  F  I  T    

T  R  I  M  S    

R  O  O  F  S    

5.0

5.1 Black Vinyl Windows Standard  - 'Black' or 'Charcoal' Vinyl windows and sliding doors w/ matching flashing

6.0

6.1 Black Vinyl Doors Black Prefinished vinyl balcony doors

6.2 Black Storefront  Aluminum Black Prefinished aluminum building entry storefront / amenity windows

7.0

7.1 Black Aluminum PVDF Coating Black Railing / Clear Glass Balconies - prefinished powder coat, railing c/w safety glass panels

8.0

8.1 Black Makin Metals Ltd. Matte Black Flashing at roof overhangs, balconies, windows, downspouts gutters

8.2 White Makin Metals Ltd. Prefinished - 'Regal White' Flashing and through wall flashing with finish 1.3

8.5 Woodgrain LUX  Products (or alternative) Prefinished Woodgrain - 'Fir' Decorative metal screen 6x1 linear bar grille at parking ramp openings
LUX PrIvacy Fence or Neo Lumber

9.0

9.1 Concrete Exposed Concrete Clear - water repelant coating Architectural concrete finish at exposed landscape walls

9.2 Concrete Architectural Concrete BM OC-52 Grey Owl Exposed concrete walls along ramp c/w grove reveals
w/ elastomeric paint

S  T  R  U  C  T  U  R  E

W  I  N  D  O  W  S    

D  O  O  R  S    

R  A  I  L  I  N  G  S    

A  C  C  E  S  S  O  R  I  E  S



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

Colour Product to match (or Alternative) Finish to match Description ( Location )

1.0

1.1 Light Beige Cultured Stone CSI - Verseta - Ledgestone Sand Selected walls at entry / landscape walls - Flat panels and corner

1.2 Charcoal JamesHardie Panel JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' 7/16" Hardie-Reveal Panel and matching Reveal Trims - smooth texture

1.3 White JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Arctic White' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.4 Charcoal JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.5 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 5 1/4" exposure

2.0

2.1 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Main Roof & eyebrow soffit, selected balconies, entry canopy

2.2 Light Grey Woodtone - Real Soffit Prefinished - 'White Granite' Soffits at u/s of balconies, roof overhangs as indicated

2.4 Charcoal Vent Strip TBC Vent strip at roof and balcony locations

3.0

3.1 White Benjamin Moore BM 2121-60 White Diamond Painted wood trims with finish 1.3

3.2 Charcoal Benjamin Moore BM 2118-10 Universal Black Roof Fascia, balcony edge, painted wood trims with finish 1.2

4.0

4.1 Light Grey IKO Roofing SBS  'Modiflex' 2 Ply SBS Roofing membrane at flat roofs

C  L  A  D  D  I  N  G    

M A T E R I A L   A N D   C O L O U R   L E G E N D  

S  O  F  F  I  T    

T  R  I  M  S    

R  O  O  F  S    

5.0

5.1 Black Vinyl Windows Standard  - 'Black' or 'Charcoal' Vinyl windows and sliding doors w/ matching flashing

6.0

6.1 Black Vinyl Doors Black Prefinished vinyl balcony doors

6.2 Black Storefront  Aluminum Black Prefinished aluminum building entry storefront / amenity windows

7.0

7.1 Black Aluminum PVDF Coating Black Railing / Clear Glass Balconies - prefinished powder coat, railing c/w safety glass panels

8.0

8.1 Black Makin Metals Ltd. Matte Black Flashing at roof overhangs, balconies, windows, downspouts gutters

8.2 White Makin Metals Ltd. Prefinished - 'Regal White' Flashing and through wall flashing with finish 1.3

8.5 Woodgrain LUX  Products (or alternative) Prefinished Woodgrain - 'Fir' Decorative metal screen 6x1 linear bar grille at parking ramp openings
LUX PrIvacy Fence or Neo Lumber

9.0

9.1 Concrete Exposed Concrete Clear - water repelant coating Architectural concrete finish at exposed landscape walls

9.2 Concrete Architectural Concrete BM OC-52 Grey Owl Exposed concrete walls along ramp c/w grove reveals
w/ elastomeric paint

S  T  R  U  C  T  U  R  E

W  I  N  D  O  W  S    

D  O  O  R  S    

R  A  I  L  I  N  G  S    

A  C  C  E  S  S  O  R  I  E  S



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

Colour Product to match (or Alternative) Finish to match Description ( Location )

1.0

1.1 Light Beige Cultured Stone CSI - Verseta - Ledgestone Sand Selected walls at entry / landscape walls - Flat panels and corner

1.2 Charcoal JamesHardie Panel JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' 7/16" Hardie-Reveal Panel and matching Reveal Trims - smooth texture

1.3 White JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Arctic White' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.4 Charcoal JamesHardie Lap Siding JH Colour Plus - 'Iron Grey' HardiePlank Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 7" exposure

1.5 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Lap Siding - cedarmill texture, 5 1/4" exposure

2.0

2.1 Woodgrain Woodtone Rustic Series Prefinished - 'Mountain Cedar' Main Roof & eyebrow soffit, selected balconies, entry canopy

2.2 Light Grey Woodtone - Real Soffit Prefinished - 'White Granite' Soffits at u/s of balconies, roof overhangs as indicated

2.4 Charcoal Vent Strip TBC Vent strip at roof and balcony locations

3.0

3.1 White Benjamin Moore BM 2121-60 White Diamond Painted wood trims with finish 1.3

3.2 Charcoal Benjamin Moore BM 2118-10 Universal Black Roof Fascia, balcony edge, painted wood trims with finish 1.2

4.0

4.1 Light Grey IKO Roofing SBS  'Modiflex' 2 Ply SBS Roofing membrane at flat roofs

5.0

5.1 Black Vinyl Windows Standard  - 'Black' or 'Charcoal' Vinyl windows and sliding doors w/ matching flashing

6.0

6.1 Black Vinyl Doors Black Prefinished vinyl balcony doors

6.2 Black Storefront  Aluminum Black Prefinished aluminum building entry storefront / amenity windows

7.0

7.1 Black Aluminum PVDF Coating Black Railing / Clear Glass Balconies - prefinished powder coat, railing c/w safety glass panels

8.0

8.1 Black Makin Metals Ltd. Matte Black Flashing at roof overhangs, balconies, windows, downspouts gutters

8.2 White Makin Metals Ltd. Prefinished - 'Regal White' Flashing and through wall flashing with finish 1.3

8.5 Woodgrain LUX  Products (or alternative) Prefinished Woodgrain - 'Fir' Decorative metal screen 6x1 linear bar grille at parking ramp openings
LUX PrIvacy Fence or Neo Lumber

9.0

9.1 Concrete Exposed Concrete Clear - water repelant coating Architectural concrete finish at exposed landscape walls

9.2 Concrete Architectural Concrete BM OC-52 Grey Owl Exposed concrete walls along ramp c/w grove reveals
w/ elastomeric paint

C  L  A  D  D  I  N  G    

M A T E R I A L   A N D   C O L O U R   L E G E N D  

S  O  F  F  I  T    

T  R  I  M  S    

S  T  R  U  C  T  U  R  E

R  O  O  F  S    

W  I  N  D  O  W  S    

D  O  O  R  S    

R  A  I  L  I  N  G  S    

A  C  C  E  S  S  O  R  I  E  S



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS
AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY
OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE
USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



' 

I ' ' ' ' ' 
\ 

' ' 

' ' ' 
: i 
' l 

\ ! 

\ 

' ' \: 
\: 
'' '' '' ,, , , ,, , , ,, 
" 

ii 
!\ 
11 

ll 
" " " " 11 
ii 

il 
:: 

ii 
l\ 

ll 
" ii 

SD LEAVENUE 27
~~s~i~E BUILDING 

3-STOREY BUILDING 

zo:!1/0:;r:1 

2021/03/31 

2021/02/22 

""' Adara Projects Ltd. 

-.1,: 
Rental 

Development 

21:!ui~~:'."aC 

;:;,;'.;';cape Concept Plan 

LO.QA 

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 4�



w 
~ 
z 
w 

~ 

3-STOREY BUILDING 

·---·--·1 · j 

. .. J _i_! 

!.. ···L····-····-t--.....:.·····-····'"'\::·~i= ... tT·7··· . 

', 

I'· -.~EV BUILDING 

·---- SD LE AVENUE 27
~s~i~E

1 
BUILDING 

_;; c· 

UJ 
z 
::i 

P+A -~-

4 Ro-lt wed for OP 

3 lfl.SUO(llo,AOP 
Pru onlllllon 

2 lslll.ltd!OfADP 
Prounlallon 

._ _ _,,_""' 
~~:t'v-:'11114 
TIIOM :'JS "l l ' 

~ 

2021IO!n1 

2021/03131 

l ~'"p-= 11ncl 

- Adera Projects Ltd. 

-.1,: 
"""9d 11a., Rental 

Development 

21i!nii~~~~ 

o.-.rlandscape Concept 
Roof Plan 

LO.OB 



Ex. to Retain 
0 &irtingttcetobereto[Md 

,, .... ~--- ...... , 

:: Ex. tre; Exlrtlngtrtttoben:moved 

,.. / .. , ...... , 

Tr~protectlonfcncing 

1. lhesedr, wtngs,n:toben:.1d ln 
mnjunctionwlthArchhectur.111 Pl.1m, Ovil 
P1am and Arborirt Report ,nd Plam. 

2. Trees to be Jptlded and relOQlted IS per 
Otyof North v,ncouver's request. 

3. Tree sp.1ding ,nd reloc.rtion to be 
performed w!ththe proj«tArborirt ~nt 
towpervlse. Arborirt contact: 
Cody Luchowski 
Diamond Head 
Phone: (604) 733-4886 

z 
0 
;:: 
0:: 
0 
Cl. 
0 
w 
...J 
...J 
w 

w 
:::) 

z 
w 
~ 

~ 
0:: ~"' 
~ ~~-

w 
...J 
<t: 
0 
U) 

u 

z 
0 
-di 

C 
:::j 
m 
;o 
r z 
m 

C 
.$- ' 

PROPOSED BUILDINGS 
EXTENT BLUE DASHED LINE 

,,'i>°' BUILDIN(64,906' 

BUILDING 

LOTP 
PLAN 13125 

AREA=1614.8m' 

Ex, ,.w,f 
(~ 0.9CDR 
0$1 

.,, 
m z 
0 
m .,., 

..._½~' 

LOTI 
PLAN 670( 

REM2 
PLAN 189i 

DR 

REM 
PLAN · 

BUILDING 

RE IV 
BUILDING 

PLAN 

P+A 
==...- ~~"":''~ 

r101r••111 •-1-•HL - -

::! Ra- 1,w,,dlor DP 

1 lnuod lor Ro-:t1nln<J"nd 
Dovalopment Pormll 

COl'YR!ClfT RC::.CIIVCD Thlo_..,. • _.,_.,_.,.p,op,onyo!R. 
Klrn P""l'l""-""n~- R. KlrnPonyl - nW..--lha~-Tlllo _.,,.._ b,o ,.__,.. o,uudlor 

-- .. -·- ..... .....,ao,lor ... -"'....,_Pl'lll«I_.,._ 
-...-GIR.KlllPwry&Aa-1.-c. -Adara Projects Ltd. 

--
Rental 

Development 
2762 Lon~ala Avanua 

NOMVaneouver, BC 

Tree Management Plan 

CD 

L0.1 



' 

\ 
! 
' ' ' ' 

i 

, I 
' ' ' 
' ' ' ' 

' ' 
\j ,, 
1: ,, 

'I 

I 

I 3-STOREY BUILDING G-----------il..._ _ _ ___ _ 

1 2750 LONSD LE AVENUE 

I '"""' '"""~ 

@~~ .... 

@ 

@ 

9 
@ 

e~~r\onu, 
e 
9 
e 

E9 

IJIMlllodHont.., 
WollOftSl.b 

9 "'"MY~.,, 

e 
e 
9 
9 
@ 

P+A ~- =~~N. 
T100:x•111 ._,,..,,~ -

2 Re-lnuodlorOP 2021/0~1 

llu,....;jforR~mnd 2020111/05 
Do~ulopmonl Pem'llt 

Adara Projects Ltd. 

----
Rental 

Development 
2762 LoMdolo AYOl'!UII 

Noftl\V11neouver,8C 

Landscape Ground Floor 
Key Plan 

L 1.0A 



\ 
\ 
' ' 

w 
::, 
z 

~ 
w 

~ 
V, 

z 
g 

,/ I' ,l-STOREY BUILD:,:>· 

/ 
'•,,'y :E AVENUE 

2750 LONRSE~~UILOING 
2-STO • 

-r-,-

202110~1 
ZRo-l,ii~~nnd ZO:Ol ll/OS 

1~on1PO<TIUI 

Rental 
Development 

21i~~~~ 

e Roof Landsc':fey Plan 

L 1.0B 



\ 

\ 
\ 

I I 
\ 

I 
' ' ' ' '' '' : : ,, 
" " " 

w 
::, 
z 

~ 
w 
...J 

~ 
V, 

z 
9 

I 3-STOREY BUILDING 

1..-----,~-----~ 

r ~ I.=[ 
h-1- -
:.....,--

i: ..-

LOBBY BUILDING FFE 

2-STOREY BUILDING 

... , 
n,s, 

~1 5.!,,I l"I~ ,-· 

[:JI 

'1~ 1 
·i-~)_,'L 

.~;-··-· •J 
-.oifiNm'· 
lllKl! l OUMCII! 

D',l,37"'1 R 

~-- . 

~- !71 
_;_ ' ---,-J,: 
·=; . prr::-=r1-cr 

t 1· - -- f 
f - I ~ 
L..:--,- 1-:-r- - , .... 

-'- A.01 

"'""' ,;,er.:o "" ~ 

0 

w 
z 
::5 

!:lm; R•;,d~IJQhl,nq"'-1n ln 
COOjUllC'Jonwrtll Al'dlll«'hll.11.ina[L«tnul .. ....,, 

P+A 
~- =~:i':"'-

3 R•-lw,uodlorDP 

:, l11Wdlo,AOP 
PrHonl!lllon 

T10<au11. 
'""'TJl; &11L - · 

2021/0Zl:1 

2021/0Y.11 

1 lclWd lot Ro-.."'Onln<;J nnd 
Dovolopmont Pmmlt 

COl"rlllCll1Tl'tC::.tltVCD 
Thlll""""Wll!•--1-IIHll>f-'YOI R. 
io,,,"°"1'£Ao-nlnc..-R.lll,t,P....,, =:-~ "': '-:" :.=:r ..,""".:::i -r: -- .. ---............... .., ........ _°'....,_"""""'_ .,. _ 
---olR.Klnl'e,ry & Ao-Mk. 

Adara Projects Ltd. 

o,.._Tllo: 

Rental 
Development 

2762Uln!ld11l11 Awnuo 
NorthV11ncouver,BC 

Landscape Ground Floor 
Lighting Plan 

--CD 

L 1.1A 



' 
" " " " " 
" " " " " " " " " " " 
" ,, 
" 
" ,, 
" 
' " ' 
" " " " " " " " " .. 
" " " " " ,. 
" 
" " ., 
" ' ' ' 

' 

w 
::, 
z 

~ 
w 

~ 
V, 

z 
g 

l.- - 3-STOREY BUILDING 

lL Htw~::.=....., 
I :- --- ir-==-- ··- ··- ··- ==--==---=·=-··- ··-··-··- ··- ··- ··- ··-··-··- I~------' 
- r-- - - t;'ti''If'''''~" - -:--:----,--,---.,..-....:::;;:===:J ------ --- --- ------·· 1 ---- - - - - , ~ .. 
j, : . ! ' : : i ~ li=i ==== 

I : 

: ! 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

.. : 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I .. , 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

""(" "" 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
L--

.... J 
I 

I 11:z1 
; SIIC:E 

Pf-A.KING 

:. : ... i 

~~-ST~~~y BUILDING//] 

',,""' ,,,// 
· ( 

2750 LONSDALE AVENUE 
2-STOREY BUILDING 

' L 

II n· 

<] ·~• .. ii · 
~ · 111 . ' t 

i 
i 
i 
i 
i 
i 
i 
! 

'i j 

! 

w 
z 
::5 

r-----, 
: : 
I I 
: I 

! : 
i : 
: I 

! : 
i : 
: I 

--' : 
i : 

___ I I 

I ~-----J 
1. i 
1· ' 
I ~: 

r J I i 
I I j 

- - - - - - - J :=:;:-,;;·;+-1:.1 
~1/'GE i- '·I .. 

I _,,"}.'!;~,~_Ji -=:;-..:::::,- 11 
-,.---,- [ I Ill+ 1111-jj - ··~- 1 

~L ~ w_. 

P+A -~-

3 R&-luuedlorDP 

2 11:Mtdl<>fAOP 
Prosonl&llorl 

..... .,....,_,.._ 
~ri1n.-o 
::::~:::! -· 

20.21/0S/21 

2021/0lf.)1 

1 lnU&dlorR~nlngond 
Dcwoklpmon1 Poonl1 ,_.., 

Adara Projects Ltd. 

--

Rental 
Development 

Z762LonlldDloAvonuo 
NOl'thVoncolMlr,BC 

Landscape Roof 
Lighting Plan 

CD 

L 1.1 B 



l \ 

\\ 
' ':,::: 

\ 

\::. I 
I w 

::::i 
z 

~ 
w 

~ 
V, 

z 
g 

I 3-STOREY BUILDING L---,c__ _____ _____, 

?j; 

:· 1. =[ 
"""1'· ~·; 

if--! ., -
~-~ 

;1- ,• -

_j:l 

:J 
.01 .. 

LOBBY BUILDING FFE 

Grading notes· 
1. Contractor to ensure all paving slopes to drain 

away from building. 

2. Contractor to ensure topsoil slopes and drains 

aw ay from all buildings. 

3. Soft landscape finished grade to be min 200mm 

below any finished building elevation 

4. Contractor t o report any discrepancies in grade. 

5. Slope all surfaces to drains as shown. 

w 
z 
'.:5 

~o-
"/- Proposed grade 

FG Finished grade· 

rw Topofwall 
BW Bottom of wall 
T, Top of stair 
BS Bottom of stair 
TC Top of curb 
BC Bottom of curb 
TB Top of bench 

,"t, Lawn Basin 
CG Civil Grade 

P+A 
=:..- =;::w. 

Uo•n.•111 ..... ,,..111, - · 

2 Re-lssuodkwOP 

11uuedlor R~nnd 
OevoloprnontPo!mJI 

COl'YRIOHTlltOCIIYCO Thlo~----1119 .... poftyolR, !Cln,,...,.1,_nlr"'-,ondR,IOrnhtly& 

=-:;.ar:r-;::~..:-,:1: - .. -.- ............... ... _.,, ____ ... _ 
--olR.Kn~I.Aa-l-c, -Adera Projects Ltd. 

,._,,... 

Rental 
Development 

2762Lonlld11laAYOflUD 
NortnVanc:ouvitr,BC 

Landscape Ground Floor 
Grading Plan 

CD 

L2.0 



\ ! 

\ I 
\ i 
: ' '' , , ,, 
" " " 
11 :: 

!! 
!! 
ll 
!! 

LE AVENUE 2750 LONRSD BUILDING 2-STO 

w 
z 
::5 

• R1t•luuedforDP 

3 JUUDdklfAOP 
Ptesontollon 

., lsSUDdlorAOP 
~ Pl'Hontallon 

202,10~, 
202110Jr.11 

2021I02/2:! 

l :=i~:=llnd 

Rental 
Development 

27~n:=.n~ 
o.-ie r• = Ground Floor 
Landscape Planting Plan 

L3.0A 



" 
" " 
" " " 
" " " 
" " " " 
" " " " 
" " " " 
" " " 
" 
tj 

" " " 
" " " " ., 
" 

w 
::::i 
z 

~ 
w 
...J 

'3 
V'> z 
9 

r -----'":·-- ------ - - --- --- ---
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

-!-___J 
I 
I ~+ .. 

. I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

;- : 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

• I 
•· 1 

I 
I 

• 1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I -,--. 
I . 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

.· I . I 
I 

; I :· , 
' I 

·.1. -- --. :II·· 

w 
z 
'.3 

r-----, 
i 
i 
! 
i 
! 

__ j 
' i 

........ -1·-~-----

1: i 
I : 
P ( 
I I 

I ! 

I l __ ________ ::._~::._ ______ -::~=:::'::::~~=--~---_-_---_[_--t_· r-~r==:J 
2-STOREY BUILDING 

"· .... ..--
! 2750 LONS~:~~E AVENUE I 

2-STORE'; BUILDING 

P+A -~-

• Ro-1UUGCllorDP 

3 luuodlorADP ......, . .., 
2 lswod!OtAOP 

Pfosontlltlon 

..... _,_P'c. 
IUldl>-., 
-KY',1 1\.'0 

~ 

2021IO!.l:1 

2021/03131 

1 luUDdlorRi,..mnlngnnd 
OovalapmonlPonnll 

ca...: Adera Projects Ltd. 

Rental 
Development 

2762Lonsd:JloAvonuo 
North vi:mcowar, 8C 

Landscape Roof 
Planting Plan 

L3.0B 



GROUND FLOOR- SCHEMATIC IRRIGATION PLAN 
1fll•1" 

2-STOREY BUILDING 

r--- - -

· . . · . . ·. :--·. 

:_ ~:-1~••~<:>_. ~fl~~~Rf:: . 

----- 1 

I 
L7 

I 
I :--:J 

I = ·· 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

~--7 
I 
I 
I 

r J 
I 

0 ROOF - SCHEMATIC IRRIGATION PLAN 
1111 - 1-0· 

Off-site irrigation: 

======::======i..,_O _____ ---l -AJI off~•• irriga~on system to be on a separate controller than the on~•• irrigation ===== system. Off-site irrigation system controller to be accessible .ind not within the 

1. The irrigation contractor to provide a complete and functioning design-build sprinklers irrigation 
system designed to meet 50% potable water use reduction. 
2. The irrigation contractor shall confirm on site the locations of the stub-outs provided by the 
Mechanical contractor. 
3. The Electrical contractor shall supply a120v outlet in the water entry room and run a 1" conduit with 
pull string from the water entry room to all stub-out locations. See plans. 
4. The irrigation contractor shall install the irrigation controller in the water entry room and run all 
low voltage wires to the solenoid valves. 
5. Provide rain sensor on system, location to be determined. 
6. Flowthru all piping not to exceed Sft/sec. 
7. Irrigation contractor to ensure all sleeves, conduits and location of the rain sensor are cooridnated 
with general contractor. 
8. The irrigation drawings shall be read in conjunction with the landscape architect's drawings. 
9. The irrigation system shall be installed as per the landscape architect's specifications and 11ABC 
standards or better. 
10. The mechanical contractor shall install the double check valve and a blow out connection in the 
water entry room and run supply lines to all stub out locations. 
See plans. 
11. The irrigation contractor shall provide irrigation system for all street trees and boulevard to City of 
North Vancouver standards. 
12. The irrigation contractor to submit shop drawings induding proof of SO% potable water use 
reduction for approval prior to installation. 
13. The irrigation contractor to provide as-built drawings following construction. 
14. Alt Irrigation heads to be "Rainbird" brand. 

building/strata. All-offsite system to include inground shut off valve. 

-Civil to provide irrigation chamber with baddlow preventer and area drain connected to 
storm at bottom of chamber. 

On site area to be covered by automated irrigation. 

m Off srte areo to be covered by automated irrigation. 

/ Irrigation Sleeve. 

s-9:h_ T Stub Out: 1.5" Threaded copper pipe. 35 GMP. 

P+A ~-- =~:i':~ 
T-:'Jl'1 H ,.,.,.,.4n, - · 

2 Ro -lu uodlor DP 
1 IC1\lltd forR•:::M1lng 1nd 

OovolopmonlPvrmll 

Adara Projects Ltd. 

Rental 
Development 

:!76:!Lo,'IGdoloAvonuo 
NoM Voneower. BC 

Landscape 
Schematic Irrigation Plan 

CD 

L4.0 



" .,.,.... .... 
Q CIP CONCRETE PAVING (PEDESTRIAN) 

5. 1•16 

@ r~~ITE PAVERS (PEDESTRIAN) 

0 CIP CONCRETE STAIR 
5. ,.,o 

~--·-,.,"r ....... .... - ........ .. _oc1. ........ , ..... ...,,1. 

DJ2?/~t:t::, ·,(\;::0i-~~ 

1•·•:...· ,1·,--
_.., __ __ 
H"o 11" ol"---

...... "'-~" --,--. 
,r.·--... --..... .,..,r...,.q,.-(.~,_.1 .... i.. 
....... o1 ............. -. 

~----~~~d,.".:',, 
' • . I • • •, • • • ' • I •.- • •:, , • ' - •,-••-:-•-• - 5--.:t:EE=• 

@ PRECAST PAVERS (PEDESTRIAN) 
1-,'i.i 

.,...,,r,,,._,...,_c. .. , .. 
,----------~,-- ··~-~~· ...... ..,i,,_ 

@ SYNL:lwn ON ROOF 
5. 1 •1 'o 

@ CIP CONCRETE TACTILE STRIP DETAIL 
5. ,·-,'o 

,r---------;,,~•.:.:.;.-=-~•;::c-NII 
,---------.'~,;,~.- ...... 
,------.==..~~·.=:.-.. ""' 

1n·--·--· ::1:-.::.:::.:L-... _loll&_,,_ __ _ ~--... 

12·-1·1- ---:::.•=-
... -:::.=~:.::....~~~ 

,-

,-
,-

12 ·-1·1-... ............ =";;"..:::- :::::::'.~ o· ,1·1_,_..., __ ,_ 

® CUSTOM ALUMINUM GATE 
1 •1'0 

1= .. ....,, ___ ... ------------~-

'-1---'->---'-'---=~==-
~---+e-t-------·

~ -----+--+----- - ,_~ .. - .... -.-.. .. 

------ti' ,2•1---,..i-,.. .. 

IL::==~ :t====~fHf----.:,.::. 0·2:J.::::--....................... . 

:•·•:•·•r•--
~]~;r""--
=..-=.<t=r:o. In'""'-·---.... :.r.::-..==.=. .... 
2""" ~'11"-.,....1--

:::=v---

-a::....""Z:::=~ n---~---.. _____ i.., ... i...e 

......,._,_ .... ......,.~ . . -.. - .. 
·. ····~--... ~-· --,.-,------~---~ 

@ ALLAN BLOCK PLANTER WALL ON SLAB 
5. 1 • 1'0· 

® BIKE RACK 
1" •1if 

- AI.I.ICloWflU•C:"'11TOOC"l:lll'KD0"1GITc:...,-n<'-II 
DULTCCNDITI0"5,.._10fAlll«ATIOW. 

... ~ .... -~ ......... ,c,,,IICMIOCOOM:MNATC...,-n< 
GD«IU.~COlfflW:TOIOIIC"""0..01W,~ AnA1;1tU("1. 
G0"tfC>Cl:-.C,.ftaAIICTODtGCCUIICDTOTOl'Dr 
CO,,,C,,>.1B W"lUANIISOMll"""IO bllHCUHf0 l0 
NDMDUAI.CONCIICTCrOOTNOa. 

""'IJ.AnAO-..n,c..oCAM,AN!IOT>tClleooM'OIC"'11 ,.._,o .... tCHIXIU)Uft. 

--=01010.,_u.at.tt•rwo..
lllU."""""''""A1.1.wn"leow,,o,,cono"MTHr-1. COMof>Ct ___ ,.....,>001_,.....,MIO 

---ou-10,......c,,now. 

~""'°"1CC'TT01C~•011WCOOl'"ll'T"l
.... ,....,.,'°"°"lffCr010......:CIIOOIMIO 

P+A --~- ~:r, ... ~~~ 
- .IC ~! ,._. 
IIOl1Jll 4111 -

2021/05121 

2 l11uodfDfAOP 2021/0lr.11 
Prt)$(11ll.lltlon 

1 tslUCdfDfRo-,:ontngand :?1l20/11/05 
Oev•~montPormll 

COP'f'IIIOlfTIIDElfl/ED 
Thlo'"""'"" lo -•IYll....,..,llos_.,.,af,t, 
'°"'Ponyl_lno..,_lt.l\h ....... , ....,_,..lnc..,... ... _..,.cq,rlglll_Tha -- ... -·~"'-"" 
-·- ... -- ....... p,oj.c,o,lo, ... -o1-,-~-""'---"'"-""" ....... , ............ ,1nc. 

Adara Projects Ltd. 

~, ... 

Rental 
Development 

2762Lon!ldllloAvonuo 
NDf1hV11nc:ouvaf,BC 

Landscape Details 

LS.O 



@ PRIVACY SCREEN 
112"•11)" 

~ ....... .._, 
.. --------·----.. -t:::==....----==-..:.:--=~~·-
,_,.. ____ .. ____ .. ____ .. _.,._.,. __________ _ 
.. -------- -------·-·--

------__ .... _ .......... ---
--- .......... _ ... _____ .. __ .., 

@ TREE PLANTING DETAIL. URBAN BOULEVARD 
112" • 1-0· 

~ 
a: 

a: w 

g~ 
5~ 
Oa: 
:,:U 
,-z 
~8 
QC 

~~ 
0.. w 
o..a: 
0::, 
t;:!:: 
Oz 
0 !5 
a:~ 

® HANDRAIL DETAIL 

~----.... ----... ---.• ..... _________ .,..., __ .,.,._ ....... _""" ___ ,..._,.. ___ .,. __ .., __ -.. --.. -----.. ____ _ .. ___________ .......... ___ _ .. ,. _______ _ ._ __ ,. ___ _ 
~-~=-=~-=-=~

mi:;;i=;;iJl.;!aa!ffl~:-~.::;-..::=:-.:..~-

_ .... ____ ... ---""' .... .......,._ .... 
___ ., __ _ 

® SHRUB AND GROUNDCOVER PLANTING 

~ ~ - ·. . "': ---~:....::: ... "' ' 
~ 

ffi .... 
z 

- - ~ - ~ 

~ 
::; 
::, 
z 
~ 
::, 

~ 

---·-·• ..... 
_,.,. ___ _ --·---· ... _, , __ _ 

® ALUMINUM PLANTERS 
NTS 

~- ·--.... -------· 

"' z 
;:: 
:,: 

"' :::i 
>-a: 
..: z 

3 

,___ _ ______.I] 

® BOULEVARD LAWN 1·-,v 

"' z 

~ 
~ 
u 
z 
0 
u 
0.. 
u 

-AU.-.:>IClflllTOICll'tltlnU>ONc:mlwmtA:I 
.._TCONDITIO<,Dl'MIClll10r..o,c;,,noN. 

_..Al_W,._.ACn.llCJITOc:ooo,:,IOU,11'.wrnt 
OCMCll4_11C_-....C.ATTOC>!Wt"1. 
:io-«:rOCl:MlllfU-"11:TOIICGCCl.OICDTO-Df" 
COIOOtl.Tl.w...aNftJIIOYl,-10R .. a..ot010 -~r
...UAnAOMC>nt.C'Cl~ . ..wo~CCU'CINDffll 
NIIIIO""'IOICOl.01.0t, 

•CONllCACTOOl lO-•w" .... ""o....,.. 
CIIIA"'INOll,CIIIAU..C,-Al.~NTllWIT><,NOHl;II. coo--c, ___ ,...,_....,,00,...........,,"""' 
__ ,01tN'l'ltOYALll'IIIOIITO•All~ICll,TD<. 

~AACHll'ICTTOHIO<'OIIYCDO, I.CTAI."'°"'" 
.,. .. ....,.,.,:,,,00,w,crON""....:c,r:,w,..., --

Mod•~MD<lulltf'lanl..,. 
:!l11ppller: PlantonP«fK10,Appro,,9di\llemale 
c .... uct:hn;,t:l,.,.._,aroon~•I.OOffll 
CDlour:Man.lllKk 
ln1talll!lon, W.t.olelper"""""t..cn. .... ,:oocif,c,,llt'n\ 

P+A 
~- ~~..i~?,:'~ 

1 - J)leltl 
JCG<Jll e lll -

3 Ro-luuod for OP 20:21/05.'21 

2 luuedforAOP 2021/0Y.11 .......... 
1 l11<1CdlorR°""°'1ing and :!020111/05 

Or.olopmcmlPormll 

Adera Projects Ltd. 

o..-or•· 

Rental 
Development 

2762LonsdaloAvonuo 
NorthVotlCOUYOf,BC 

Landscape Details 

LS.1 



	

Urban Forum Associates                                                                                                                                                      Page 1 

	

2762 Lonsdale Ave Rezoning Application – Lonsdale Adera Projects Ltd. 

Virtual Developer Information Session (DIS) Summary Report 

 

Event Date:   Wednesday, January 27, 2021 
Time:    6:00pm – 7:45pm 
Location:   Online Zoom Webinar 
Attendance:  15 members of the public attended virtually.  

The Adera project team was in attendance, as was a representative of the City 
of North Vancouver Planning Department 

Comments:  3 emails were submitted prior to the DIS and 1 phone call was received. 
6 comment forms and 1 email were submitted following the DIS.  

 
Meeting Purpose: 1) To present development application materials to the community 
 2) To provide an opportunity for the community to ask questions about the 

development 
 3) To provide an opportunity for the community to comment on the proposal 
 
Notification: 
In accordance with City of North Vancouver policies: 
 
Invitation Flyers 
DIS Invitation flyers were delivered to 237 addresses within a 40m radius of the site, provided by the 
City of North Vancouver. Of these, six flyers were returned with undeliverable addresses. Appendix A: 
Notification includes a copy of this material.  
 
Newspaper Ad 
A DIS newspaper ad was placed in the North Shore News on Wednesday, January 13th, 2021 and 
Wednesday, January 20th, 2021. A copy of the ad is included in Appendix A: Notification.   
 
Notification Sign 
Two DIS notification signs were erected on the site on January 13, 2021. Photos of the installed site signs 
are included in Appendix A: Notification. 
 
Attendance: 
15 members of the public signed in for the virtual meeting. A copy of the attendee list is included in 
Appendix B: Attendee List.  
 
The following City staff and project team members were in attendance: 
 
City of North Vancouver: 

• Emily Macdonald, Planner 1 

 

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 5�



2762 Lonsdale Avenue Rezoning Application – Developer Information Session Summary Report 
	

Urban Forum Associates                                                                                                                                                    Page 2 

	

Project Team: 
• Sarah Bingham, Adera 
• Tim Pershick, Adera 
• Rhys Leitch, Integra Architecture 
• Michael Patterson, P+A Landscape Architecture 
• Brendan Stevenson, Binnie Engineering 
• Donal Casey, Binnie Engineering 

 
Facilitators: 

• Lance Berelowitz, Urban Forum Associates 
• Katrina May 

 
Overview: 
In accordance with the City of North Vancouver’s COVID-19 state of emergency community consultation 
guidelines, the DIS meeting was held in an online Virtual Developer Information Session format. Meeting 
participants watched a PowerPoint presentation by members of the Adera project team, as well as a 3D 
fly-through video of the project.  
 
Participants were invited to use the Zoom Webinar Q&A function to ask questions or submit comments 
during the DIS, which were addressed at the end of the presentation during the Question & Answer 
period. The facilitator read all questions received aloud and directed questions to the appropriate 
project team member to respond verbally for all participants to hear.  
 
The project presentation and facilitated Question & Answer period took approximately 90 minutes. The 
facilitators received several questions and comments about the project and recorded them for inclusion 
in this summary report. 
 
Participants were invited to submit written comments (using the City’s standard comment form) to the 
applicant and/or the municipal development planner, following the DIS. Three (3) emails and one 
telephone call were received by Adera prior to the DIS. Six (6) comment forms and one (1) email were 
submitted after the DIS.  
 
The key themes of the questions during the Developer Information Session related to the impact of 
construction and shadowing on the surrounding area, namely traffic and construction impacts, use of 
and/or changes to the public lane east of the site, and environmental concerns such as potential impacts 
on a nearby stream. Another key theme was tenant relocation and compensation plans. Other questions 
included the details of construction, such as the use of mass timber, inclusion of EV charging stations, 
and number of bicycle and parking stalls. Several questions were asked about the development and 
construction process and anticipated length of each phase. Support was expressed for new rental 
housing stock in the City of North Vancouver.  
 
Email correspondence included questions from existing tenants asking about relocation plans, 
anticipated rental rates, right of first refusal for units in the new project, storage, as well as the 
possibility of obtaining subsidized or discounted rents. Other questions included whether the project 
will be connected to the Lonsdale Energy Corp, the number of parking stalls, and proposed traffic 
mitigation measures. Concerns were raised regarding the environmental plan with respect to the nearby 



2762 Lonsdale Avenue Rezoning Application – Developer Information Session Summary Report 
	

Urban Forum Associates                                                                                                                                                    Page 3 

	

stream, as well as about the scale of the project in terms of number of units and height, and the 
potential for blocking sunlight or views for neighbouring properties.  
 
Comment forms included questions about storage options, BC Hydro power poll location, changes to 
and use of the laneway, proximity to the stream, stormwater management and suggestions to increase 
the number of parking stalls. Concern was raised that the proposed height and density exceeds the 
intention of the Official Community Plan for mid- and low-rise buildings in this area. Support was 
expressed for the west coast design of the project, as well as the bike policy, amenity areas, and EV 
charging stations. A suggestion was made for more frequent transit service along Lonsdale to 
accommodate increasing density. 
 
 

Comment Sheet and Email Summary: 
Participants were invited to submit comments during a five-day response period after the DIS meeting. 
Four (4) emails were received prior to the DIS and six (6) comment forms and three (3) emails were 
submitted following the DIS. These are submitted as a separate Appendix (C). 
 
Conclusion: 
The purpose of this online Virtual Developer Information Session was to present to the community the 
proposed rezoning application and the development concept, and to provide attendees with an 
opportunity to ask clarifying questions and comment on the proposal. 237 DIS notification flyers were 
distributed by mail to the surrounding community, and fifteen (15) community members signed in to the 
DIS. Two newspaper ads notified the community of the DIS, and two DIS notification signs were posted 
on the property. A total of six (6) comment forms and seven (7) e-mails were submitted to the project 
Development Manager. 
 
Members of the public could participate in this consultation process in three ways: 

• Watching a virtual project presentation and fly-through during the DIS 
• Asking questions of the project team and/or City Planner during the DIS 
• Submitting written comments after the DIS 

 
The DIS meeting length and format was sufficient to provide all participants an opportunity to learn 
more about the proposed project, ask questions, and make any comments they wished to provide that 
evening. Participants asked the development team and City Planner a variety of specific questions, 
mostly related to construction materials, impact of construction, and suggestions for the format of 
future DIS sessions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Public Hearing 
Presentation for 
2762 Lonsdale Ave
Bylaw No. 8874

Presented October 18, 2021
Development Planning

Introduction

• Building: six-storey
rental

• Units: 60 dwelling units,
including 6 mid-market
rental units

• Density: 2.4 FSR
– base density of 1.6 FSR
– bonus density of 0.8

FSR

2



Location

3

Streamside Development 
Permit Area

Site

District of North Vancouver

Land Use and Zoning

4

Site

• OCP
– Residential Level 5
– 1.6 FSR Base
– 1.0 FSR density

bonus
• Current Zoning

– Medium Density
Apartment
Residential (RM-1)

– 1.6 FSR maximum



Neighbourhood 
Context

5

Site

Proposal: Project Stats
• Proposed 60 rental units:

– Studio: 21
– 1-bedroom: 19
– 2-bedroom: 11
– 3-bedroom: 9

• Six (6) mid-market rental (MMR).
• Fifteen (15) Adaptable Dwelling

Units
• Parking:

– 30 tenant parking spaces
– 6 visitor parking spaces
– EV Charging requirements met
– 90 bicycle parking stalls

6



Proposal: Form and 
Design

7

Proposal: Amenities 
and Site Features

8

Bike Lounge

Pet/Bike Wash



Proposal: Amenities 
and Site Features

9

Indoor Amenity Room

Outdoor Seating

Garden Beds

Play Area

Proposal: Off-site 
Works

• A 3.05m (10 ft.) dedication
along Lonsdale Avenue.

• Lane dedication to complete
connection from East 27th

and East 29th Streets.

10



Policy Analysis: 
OCP and Strategic Plan

• The proposal complies with the OCP
• Meets the Strategic Plan as a City for People

11

Policy Analysis: 
Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits Policy

• New secured rental housing replacing existing
rental

• A bonus of 0.8 FSR is proposed

12



Policy Analysis: 
Housing Action Plan

• 9 3-bedroom units (15%)
• 6 mid-market units (10%)

13

Policy Analysis: 
Housing Action Plan

14

Note: All figures for 2021 are to the end of June 2021. Total completions to June 2021 not yet verified.

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Secured Rental Units

Total Rental Units Approved 2762 Lonsdale Ave

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Mid-Market Rental Units

Total MMR Units Approved 2762 Lonsdale Ave

Total Secured 
Rental Units 

Approved 
(2016-2021)

Total Secured 
Rental Units 
Completed

Total Secured 
Rental Units 

Under 
Construction

1690 576 523

Total Mid-
Market Rental 
Units Approved 

(2016-2021)

Total Mid-
Market Rental 

Units 
Completed

Total Mid-
Market Rental 

Units Under 
Construction

142 38 51



Policy Analysis: 
Sustainable 
Development Guidelines

• Landscaping with native species
• Step 3 of the BC Energy Step Code
• Energy Star and water-efficient appliances
• 100% of vehicle stalls will be EV ready
• Garden beds in the outdoor amenity area
• Indoor and outdoor amenity areas that are well-

programed with multiple opportunities for activities

15

Policy Analysis: 
Active Design Guidelines

• Primary stairs to encourage active circulation within the
building

• Programming on rooftop for various activities, with a
children’s play area, gardening beds and outdoor seating

• Bicycle lounge at ground level with bike storage, seating
area and workstation

16



Advisory Body Review

• Advisory Design Panel review on March 31, 2021
• Project unanimously endorsed
• Some changes following, based on comments from the

Panel:
– increase in the rooftop amenity area
– increase in the size of some balconies

17

Public Engagement

• Virtual Developer’s Information Session on January 27, 2021 with
15 attendees.

• Comments submitted:
– 3 expressing opposition
– 1 expressing support
– 2 comments with questions

• Main concerns:
– height and shadow impacts on the properties to the east
– concerns about the ratio of on-site parking to units
– opening of the lane connecting East 27th and East 29th Streets
– concern regarding the proximity of the proposed development to St.

Martins Creek (within the Wagg Creek Watershed)

18



Public Engagement
North Elevation:

19

Lane Lonsdale

Public Engagement
South Elevation:

20

LaneLonsdale



Public Engagement

21

Public Engagement

22



Public Engagement

23

Public Engagement

24

Laneway 
improvements and 
traffic-calming:



Tenant Relocation 
Plan

• 26 units in existing building
• 17 tenancies over 10 years
• 2015 Residential Tenant Displacement Policy applies
• Tenant Relocation Plan:

– includes compensation packages of three-month’s rent
plus $750 (per unit) towards moving expenses.

– four months’ rent for those who have lived in the building
for 10-20 years

– five months’ for those who have lived in the building for
more than 20 years.

25

Conclusion

• The proposal complies with the OCP.
• The design fits well in context and will provide

off-site improvements to street and laneway.
• The site proximity to existing amenities,

commercial areas, public transit and active
transportation facilities makes it an appropriate
location for the proposal.

26



27

Thank you.



RED UPPER LONSDALE
2762 Lonsdale Avenue
Public Hearing Presentation
City of North Vancouver | October 18, 2021

Vertically Integrated Developer, Builder, Owner
50+ Years of Building Trust



Crest The Shore

Crest – Dog Park

Remix

Seven35

Mass Timber



Sustainability

Bike Amenities

Precedent Images – For Inspiration Only



Adera RED Path to Home Ownership

Adera has created a program to 
enable residents of RED buildings to 
move forward along the path to home 
ownership with the purchase of an 
Adera home.



To the Public Hearing Presentation for:

WELCOME
2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

OCTOBER 18, 2021

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

PROJECT TEAM

Duet, Coquitlam, BC

Pathways UBC, Vancouver, BC

The  Shore, North Vancouver, BC

Crest, North Vancouver, BC



2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

SITE CONTEXT

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

PROJECT STATISTICS

SITE
GROSS SITE AREA 17,382           sq.ft. 17,382           sq.ft.
DEDICATIONS - ROAD  AND  LANE 1,570             sq.ft. 1,570             sq.ft.
NET SITE AREA 15,812           sq.ft.

FSR (FLOOR SPACE RATIO) 2.60 MAX FSR 2.31 FSR (On Gross Site Area)
TOTAL FLOOR SPACE  FOR FSR (W/ EXCLUSIONS) 45,192           sq.ft. 40,125           sq.ft.
LOT COVERAGE (MAX) 50% 52% (Based on RM-1)
ZONING RM-1 CD

OUTDOOR AMENITY 3,111             sq.ft. (Dog Run, Roof Deck Level)
TOTAL INDOOR AMENITY ( MIN 15sf / Unit ) 900 sq.ft. 1,296             sq.ft. Total Indoor Amenity

 INDOOR AMENITY - BICYCLE LOUNGE (1ST LEVEL) 653 sq.ft.
 INDOOR AMENITY - MULTI - PURPOSE (6TH LEVEL) 643 sq.ft.

TOTAL AMENITY INDOOR + OUTDOOR 4,407             sq.ft.

UNIT MIX SUMMARY NUMBER

STUDIO 21  ( 35.0% ) 476 - 555 sq.ft. 11,542 sq.ft.
1 BED 19  ( 31.7% ) 551 - 661 sq.ft. 11,235 sq.ft.
2 BED 11  ( 18.3% ) 699 - 833 sq.ft. 9,037 sq.ft.
3 BED   9  ( 15.0% )   929 sq.ft. 8,361 sq.ft.
TOTAL 60 40,174 sq.ft.

TOTAL FAMILY UNITS ( 2 BED + 3 BED ) 20 33%
TOTAL ADAPTABLE UNITS ( LEVEL 2 ) 15 25%

PARKING AND BICYCLE SPACES
RESIDENTS ( EV READY STATIONS - 100% RESIDENTIAL) 30 spaces 30 spaces
VISITOR SPACES 6 spaces 0.10 / unit 6 spaces

TOTAL ( SECURED RENTAL HOUSING) 36 spaces 0.60 / UNIT 36 spaces

SECURE BICYCLE SPACES 90 spaces 90 spaces

6 spaces 6 spacesSHORT-TERM BICYCLE SPACES
TOTAL BICYCLE  SPACES

PERMITTED / REQUIRED PROPOSED

AVERAGE UNIT SIZE TOTAL UNIT AREA

REQUIRED PROVIDED

EXISTING BUILDING:   3 STOREY RENTAL BUILDING

• Year Built :     1969

• Units : 26 Units 
 1 Bedroom 20

2 Bedroom    6

• Parking: 31 Spaces



2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

SITE PLAN

PROJECT BENEFITS / CONTRIBUTIONS:

RENEWS AND EXPANDS RENTAL INVENTORY

• 60 units Secured Rental Housing (34 new and replacement of existing 26 units)

• ( min. 6 mid-market units )

ENVIRONMENTALLY SUSTAINABLE BUILDING

• Step 3 of BC Building Code

• Use of CLT construction

PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENTS

• 3.05 M Road dedication

LANE IMPROVEMENTS 

(BLOCK BETWEEN E 29TH STREET AND E 27TH STREET)

• Lane dedication ( to open the lane )

•

• Reconstruction of laneway along project frontage

• Propose planting strip as “Living Laneway” elements

• Reconstruction of laneway access at both

  north and south ends with pedestrian letdowns

•

in lane is being considered)

• Contribution of $75,000 toward upgrading the Lonsdale Avenue sanitary main

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

2014 OCP - R5 MID-RISE APARTMENT

OCP PERMITTED BUILDING FORM

-Permitted 6 storey
-Permitted FSR 2.6
-Permitted building height Max 19.0m

17.2m

PROPOSED BUILDING FORM
-Proposed 6 storey with transition (5 1/2 storey)
-Proposed FSR 2.31
-Proposed reduced building height to 17.12m

(to reduce total height)



2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

FIRST FLOOR PLAN - LANDSCAPE

SINGLE FAMILY 

SECTION 1 - THROUGH BLDG. ENTRANCE AND LOBBY

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

OUTDOOR - INDOOR AMENITY PLAN

SINGLE FAMILY 



2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

SECTIONS

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

STREET ELEVATION



2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

VIEW NORTH - LONSDALE AVENUE

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

MAIN ENTRY - LONSDALE AVENUE



2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

VIEW NORTH ALONG THE LANE

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

VIEW SOUTH ALONG THE LANE



2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

TOP STOREY STEP-BACK TRANSITION

48.71 FT 
6 TH STOREY SETBACK 

( FROM FACE OF THE BUILDING)

18.13 FT 
OUTDOOR AMENITY SETBACK 

( FROM FACE OF THE BUILDING)

MIN 12.0 FT 
REAR YARD 

( TO FACE OF THE BUILDING)

16.80 FT 
OUTDOOR AMENITY 

( FROM FACE OF
 THE BUILDING)

SUMMARY
2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

OCTOBER 18, 2021

••• RENRENRENNERER EWSEWSSSEWSEW ANANANANANAND EXPX NTAL HOUSING (60) ( 10% BELOW MARKET)ANDANDANDNDS RS RS RRRRENTENTENTNTENTALAL AL AL AL UNIUNIUNINNU TS TS TS - S- S- SSECUECUECUECUC REDREDREDRERE RERERERR NNNPP

••• ENVNVNVENE IROIROIRONMENMENMEEENTNTNTTTALLALA Y SY SY SSSUSTUSTUSTAININAINNABLABLABLLB E BE BE BE BBUILUILLU DINDINDINNDINGGGGGTTTT

• WIMPIMPIMPMPPROVVROVROVROR ES ES ES ES PUBPUBPUBPP LICLICLIC REREREALMALMALMMA --- STRSTRTRREETEETTEETSCASCASCASCACS PEPEPEPE ANDANDANDAND LALALALANEWNEWNENE AYWW

•• ESRER PONNNONDSDSDSDS TO TT COMCOMCOMMUNMUNMUNMUNUN YYYITY::::YYYYYYY

-

1. T1 T ng and shadowing by min 18  -  48 feet (building face)op oo levleve el el setsets baback ck cc frofrom tm the he facfacface oe ooe tf tf tf the he buibuiu dilding ng ng aloaloaloa ngngngg lanlane te to po reventn overlerlookookininTTTT

3. T3. T3. TT3 T3.3. op opopp popo evlevleeelele el eeee rededededuceuceucc d numbumbumber eee fof f uniuu ts ts rofrof m tm tm tm typiypipipipcalcacaa le elleves --- froom 12  to  4 unitsTTTTTT

4. TT4. TTT4 T4 op p opp op o stostostostoosss reyreyreyreyr unununuu itsitsits araaa e oooorierierieentententet d td td td towaowaowaowaow rdsrdsrdsrdrdd thththh se se se stretretretretreet et et ee notnotnotono lalalanewnewnewnewne ayayyTTTTTTT



TTTTTTTTTHHHHHHHHHAAAAAAAAANNNNNNNKKKKK YYYYYOOOOOOUUUUUUU...

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

OCTOBER 18, 2021

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS

AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY

OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE

USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

SPRING EQUINOX - MARCH 21

SHADOW DIAGRAMS 

BUILDING FORM
5 STOREY 
(NO ROOF DECK OUTDOOR AMENITY)

SHADOW DIAGRAMS

PROPOSED BUILDING 
6 STOREY

2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS

AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY

OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE

USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

SUMMER SOLSTICE - JUNE 21

2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS

AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY

OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE

USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

SHADOW DIAGRAMS

PROPOSED BUILDING 
6 STOREY

2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS

AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY

OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE

USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

SHADOW DIAGRAMS 

BUILDING FORM
5 STOREY 
(NO ROOF DECK OUTDOOR AMENITY)

2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

WINTER SOLSTICE - DECEMBER 21

2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS

AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY

OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE

USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.

SHADOW DIAGRAMS 

BUILDING FORM
5 STOREY 
(NO ROOF DECK OUTDOOR AMENITY)

SHADOW DIAGRAMS

PROPOSED BUILDING 
6 STOREY

2330-200 Granville Street
Vancouver, BC, V6C 1S4
w w w. i n teg ra - a rch . com
Telephone: 604 688 4220
COPYRIGHT RESERVED. THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN IS

AND AT ALL TIMES REMAINS THE EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY

OF INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC. AND CANNOT BE

USED WITHOUT THE ARCHITECT’S CONSENT.



2762 LONSDALE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

2014 OCP - R5 MID-RISE APARTMENT

Original 6 storey H 19.58mm
Reduced to 5 storey 

Approx H. 64.23’-9.0’ typ=555.23’ 
(16.83m)

Proposed 5 storey H 18.93m Potential 6 storey H 19.0m eye28 store

Potential 6 storey H 19.0mPotential 6 storey H 19 0m Proposed 6 storey H 17.12mProposed 6 storey H 17 12m
(5 1/2 storey)



1

From: Graham Flater 
Sent: October-05-21 4:48 PM
To: Submissions
Subject: Support for 2762 Lonsdale Redevelopment 

Emily / To Whom It May Concern, 

While I’m unable to attend the public hearing on October, I wanted to submit my support of the 
development.  

We’re a young family, located in the neighbourhood at 228 27th Street East. 

Our home, a redevelopment / infill allowed us to move to this neighbourhood and be in a modern 
updated property.  

I see this redevelopment as a major positive. Allowing more people / families to also be in this area. 
An area that has bus service. The ability to walk to coffee shops, groceries, Harry Jerome and other 
amenities.  

I think it’s important that we continue to revitalize the neighbourhood, and thoughtfully give more 
people the opportunity to live here.  

This increased density does it, in the right spot. 

Regards, 

Graham Flater 
228 East 27th Street 
North Vancouver 

Received October 5, 2021
PH 2762 Lonsdale Ave



1

Subject: FW: 2762 Lonsdale Development

From: Heather Peets   
Sent: October-04-21 4:58 PM 
To: Mayor Linda Buchanan; Holly Back (Councillor); Don Bell (Councillor); Tina Hu (Councillor); Angela Girard 
(Councillor); Tony Valente (Councillor); Jessica McIlroy 
Subject: 2762 Lonsdale Development 

Dear Mayor and Councillors, 

We had a representative from Adera Properties canvas the neighbourhood yesterday to get feedback 
on their proposed rental building at 2762 Lonsdale Avenue.  I shared my thoughts on this 
development with the very nice lady who was going door to door, but she was not taking down notes 
nor names so I wanted to ensure I passed my thoughts along in writing to council as well to ensure 
our thoughts are noted in the decision-making process. 

I am not opposed to development nor to rentals as they are both necessary components to a vibrant 
community.  My concerns are two-fold: 

1. Parking. I know that the city is requiring fewer parking spaces and is encouraging residents to
use bikes, transit etc.   I appreciate the need to become less car reliant and the impacts it will
have on the environment.  The challenge is that putting in insufficient parking doesn't lower the
number of people with cars in the building, it just pushes the car storage onto the road in the
neighbourhood rather than keeping it contained under the building. Many tenants will still use
transit as it is right out front of their homes and is convenient for them, but that doesn't mean
they won't have a car for other purposes.  We simply ask that the developer be required to
provide sufficient parking for the building to lessen the impact on the surrounding streets.

2. Height.  The neighbourhood used to be capped at four floors.  This has recently been
increased to five on the two buildings under construction in the neighbouring block.  An
approval of six floors on this development will simply leave room for the next developer to ask
for seven or more.  We ask that the feel and height of the neighbourhood be respected in your
decision.  There is more to this decision than income potential - retention of the community
feel should also be taken into consideration.

We appreciate you taking time to register our concerns and hope they will be taken into consideration 
when decisions are made. 

Many thanks, 

Heather and Rob Peets 
157 East 27th Street 
North Vancouver 

Received October 6, 2021 
PH 2762 Lonsdale Ave



October 12, 2021 

City of North Vancouver 
141 West 14th Street 
North Vancouver, BC V7M 1H9 
input@cnv.org  

To Mayor and Council, 

Re:  2672 Lonsdale Avenue, North Vancouver 

I am writing in support of the proposed development at 2672 Lonsdale Avenue. 

The proposed development provides a diverse mix of rental units, which are in short supply on 
the North Shore, including one-, one, two-, and three- bedroom homes. Adera has created a 
thoughtful design that incorporates West Coast Architecture that includes large overhangs, 
cedar soffits and oversized windows and to a high level of quality. 

The proposed building looks to conform with the City of North Vancouver Official Community 
Plan that already took years of public input to develop. Its location near schools, park and the 
Lonsdale business community, promotes walkability, and supports the viability of nearby 
small businesses. In addition, the proposed use of innovative Cross Laminated timber even 
further establishes Adera’s commitment to quality and the environment.  

I hope Council supports this proposed development and moves it along swiftly to address the 
rental housing shortages and bring more high quality rental units into our community. 

Sincerely, 

Josef Geluch, President  
Naikoon  
#302-350 East Esplanade 
North Vancouver  

Received October 13, 2021 
PH 2762 Lonsdale Ave



141 WEST 14TH STREET / NORTH VANCOUVER / BC / V7M 1H9 / T 604 985 7761 / F 604 985 9417 / CNV.ORG         

Notice is hereby given that Council will consider: 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8874 and Housing Agreement Bylaw No. 
8875 to rezone the subject property from a Residential Medium Density 
(RM-1) Zone to a Comprehensive Development 740 (CD-740) Zone to permit 
a 6-storey rental apartment building with 60 units, underground parking 

by mail or delivered to City Hall, no later than 12:00 noon on Monday, 
October 18, 2021

To speak at the Public Hearing by phone:
PublicHearings, or by phoning 604-990-4230 and providing contact information, so call-in instructions 

All pre-registration must be submitted no later than 12:00 noon on 
Monday, October 18, 2021.

Once all registered speakers have provided input, the Mayor will call for a recess to allow time for 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
WHO: Adera Developments
WHAT: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8874 and
 Housing Agreement Bylaw No. 8875
WHERE: 2762 Lonsdale Avenue
WHEN: Monday, October 18, 2021 at 5:30 pm
HOW: View the meeting online at cnv.org/LiveStreaming

2751

2821

2748

2805

2744

2762
2757

2738

2724

2739

2767

2723

2808

2810

2758

2721

125 2832

2745

2710

101

2720

2728 2733

2750

2730

2768

E 29th StW 29th St

E
as

te
rn

 A
ve

Lo
ns

da
le

 A
ve

2762 Lonsdale Avenue



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874 Document: 2091145-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8874 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874” (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra 
Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-740 (Comprehensive Development 740 Zone): 

 
 Lots Block D.L. Plan 
 
 P 238 545 13125 from RM-1 
 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-739 
Comprehensive Development 739 Zone”: 

 
“CD-740 Comprehensive Development 740 Zone” 

 
B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-739 Comprehensive 

Development 739 Zone”: 
 

“CD-740 Comprehensive Development 740 Zone” 
 

In the CD-740 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the RM-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to: 

 
Rental Apartment Residential Use; 

 
(2) Gross Floor Area: 

 
(a) The maximum Gross Floor Area is 1.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR); 

 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874 Document: 2091145-v1 

(b) Notwithstanding (2)(a), the Gross Floor Area may be increased as follows: 
 

ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY 
ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
CATEGORY 

DESCRIPTION ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
(BONUS) 

POLICY 
REFERENCE 

Rental Housing 100 percent 
secured rental 
apartment units 
 

Maximum 1,292 
square metres 
(13,905 square 
feet) 

As per OCP 
Policy Section 
2.2.1 

 
 Such that the total effective on-site Gross Floor Area is not to exceed 2.4 

FSR; 
 

(3) Lot Coverage: 
 

The Principal Building shall not exceed a Lot Coverage of 52 percent; 
 

(4) Section 510(3), Building Width and Length, shall be waived; 
 

(5) Siting: 
 

The Principal Building shall be sited not less than: 
 

(a) 3.05 metres (10 feet) from a Front Lot Line; 
 
(b) 3.66 metres (12 feet) from a Rear or Interior Side Lot Line; 

 
(6) Building Height: 
 

The Principal Building shall not exceed a Height of 17.1 metres (56 feet) as 
measured from the average Building Grades at the north property line; 

 
(7) Off-Street Parking and Short-Term and Secure Bicycle Parking shall be provided 

in conformity with the requirements of Division IV, Parts 9, and 10A, except that: 
 

(a) A total of 48 Vertical Bicycle Parking Spaces may be counted towards the 
required Secure Bicycle Parking; 

 
(8) A building constructed on the lot shall achieve an energy efficiency of Step 3 or 

better, subject to Section 419; 
 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874 Document: 2091145-v1 

(9) All exterior finishes, design and landscaping shall be approved by the Advisory 
Design Panel. 

 
 

READ a first time on the 21st day of September, 
2021. 

READ a second time on the 21st day of 
September, 2021. 

APPROVED pursuant to section 52(3)(a) of the 
Transportation Act on the 23rd day of 
September, 2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8875 

A Bylaw to enter into a Housing Agreement (2762 Lonsdale Avenue) 

WHEREAS Section 483 of the Local Government Act R.S.B.C. 2015 c.1 permits a local 
government to enter into a housing agreement for rental housing. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, 

No. 8875” (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 2762 
Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740, Rental Housing Commitments). 

 
2. The Council hereby authorizes the agreement substantially in the form attached to this bylaw 

between The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver and Red Upper Lonsdale Projects 
Ltd. with respect to the lands referenced as 2762 Lonsdale Avenue, “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, 
No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874” (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra 
Architecture Inc., 2762 Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740). 

 
3. The Mayor and Corporate Officer are authorized to execute any documents required to give 

effect to the Housing Agreement. 
 
 

READ a first time on the 21st day of September, 
2021. 

READ a second time on the 21st day of 
September, 2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

PART 2 - TERMS OF INSTRUMENT 
 

RENTAL HOUSING AGREEMENT AND SECTION 219 COVENANT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference the _______ day of ________________, 20____. 

BETWEEN: 

RED UPPER LONSDALE PROJECTS LTD., INC.NO. BC1269776 
2200-1055 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver, British Columbia,  
V7X 1K8 
 
(the “Owner”) 
 

AND: 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER, 
a municipal corporation pursuant to the Local Government Act and 
having its offices at 141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, 
British Columbia, V7M 1H9 
 
(the “City”) 

WHEREAS: 

A. The Owner is the registered owner of the Lands. 
 
B. The City is a municipal corporation incorporated pursuant to the Community Charter, SBC 

2003, c. 26.  

C. Section 219 of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 permits registration of a covenant 
in favour of a municipality in respect of the use of land or the use of a building on or to be 
erected on land, that land is or is not to be built on except in accordance with the covenant 
and that land is not to be subdivided except in accordance with the covenant;. 

D. Section 483 of the Act permits a local government to, by bylaw, enter into a housing 
agreement that may include terms and conditions regarding the occupancy of the housing 
units identified in the agreement, including respecting the form of tenure of the housing 
units, the availability of the housing units to classes of persons, the administration and 
management of the housing units and the rents and lease, sale or share prices that may 
be charged. 

E. The City has enacted a bylaw authorizing this Agreement. 

F. The Owner and the City wish to enter into this Agreement pursuant to Section 219 of the 
Land Title Act and section 483 of the Act. 

 
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) now paid by the City to 
the Owner and for other good and valuable consideration (the receipt and sufficiency of which the 
Owner hereby acknowledges), the Owner and the City covenant each with the other as follows: 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

1. DEFINITIONS 
 

(a) “Act” means the Local Government Act, RSBC. 2015 c.1 as amended from time 
to time; 

 
(b) “Affordable Rent" means with respect to each Mid-Market Rental Unit a rent 

payment amount equal to 10% below the “Private Apartment Average Rents” for 
the corresponding bedroom type in the City of North Vancouver as established by 
CMHC’s Housing Market Information Portal for the year the tenancy is entered 
into; 

 
(c) “Agreement” means this agreement as amended from time to time; 
 
(d) “Commencement Date” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein; 
 
(e) “Council” means the municipal council for the City of North Vancouver; 
 
(f) “CMHC” means Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation; 
 
(g) “Director of Planning” means the chief administrator of the Department of 

Planning of the City and his or her successors in function and their respective 
nominees; 

 
(h) “Dwelling Unit” means a dwelling unit as defined in the City of North Vancouver’s 

“Zoning Bylaw 1995, No. 6700” as amended from time to time; 
 
(i) “Lands” means those lands and premises legally described as: 

 
Parcel Identifier: 008-729-115 
Lot P 
Block 238 
District Lot 545 
Plan 13125; 

 
(j) “Mid-Market Rental Units” means the 6 Dwelling Units in the Residential Building 

to be constructed on the Lands that are rented to tenants for Affordable Rent; 
 
(k) “Market Rental Units” means all Dwelling Units in the Residential Building other 

than the Mid-Market Rental Units; 
 

(l) “Rental Purposes” means an occupancy or intended occupancy which is or would 
be governed by a tenancy agreement as defined in Section 1 of the Residential 
Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78 as amended from time to time between the Owner 
and the tenant; 

 
(m) “Rental Units” means the Market Rental Units and the Mid-Market Rental Units; 
 
(n) “Residential Building” means the six storey building to be constructed on the 

Lands to be used for Rental Purposes with 60 Dwelling Units, of which 54 Dwelling 
Units will be Market Rental Units and 6 Dwelling Units will be Mid-Market Rental 
Units; 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

(o) “RT Act” means the Residential Tenancy Act, SBC 2002 c. 78; 
 

(p) “Rezoning Bylaw” means the rezoning bylaw applicable to the Lands described 
as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8874”;  

 
(q) “Section 219 Covenant” means a covenant pursuant to Section 219 of the Land 

Title Act;  
 
(r) “Tenancy Agreement” means an agreement, whether written or oral, express or 

implied, between the Owner and a tenant respecting possession or occupancy of 
a Rental Unit; and 

 
(s) “Term” has the meaning set out in section 2.1 herein. 

 
2. TERM 
 
2.1 This Agreement will commence upon adoption by the City’s Council of “Housing Agreement 

Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875” (Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 
2762 Lonsdale Avenue, CD-740, Rental Housing Commitments) (the “Commencement 
Date”) and will continue until the date this Agreement is terminated in accordance with 
sections 2.2 or 8.3(c) (the “Term”). 

 
2.2 This Agreement will terminate immediately upon the removal or destruction of the Residential 

Building provided the Residential Building is not repaired or rebuilt following the destruction 
thereof. 

 
2.3 Subject to section 7.3, upon termination of this Agreement, this Agreement will be at an end 

and of no further force and effect. 
 
3. SECTION 219 COVENANT  
 
3.1 The Owner covenants and agrees with the City as a covenant in favour of the City pursuant 

to Section 219 of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 that during the Term of this 
Agreement, it being the intention and agreement of the Owner that the provisions in this 
Agreement be annexed to, and run with and be a charge upon the Lands, that 
notwithstanding the Rezoning Bylaw, the Lands shall be used and built on only in strict 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that:  

(a) the Lands shall not be subdivided or stratified; 

(b) the Rental Units in the Residential Building shall be used for Rental Purposes only; 
and 

(c) no Rental Unit in the Residential Building shall be occupied for any purpose except 
for Rental Purposes pursuant to a Tenancy Agreement. 

3.2 The Owner further covenants and agrees with the City that the Lands and any buildings 
or structures constructed thereon including the Residential Building shall be developed, 
built, and maintained in accordance with all City bylaws, regulations and guidelines as 
amended from time to time. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

3.3 Pursuant to section 219(6) of the Land Title Act, RSBC 1996, c. 250 except for the 
negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the Owner will indemnify and 
save harmless each of the City and its elected officials, board members, officers, directors, 
employees, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, actions, loss, damage, costs 
and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for or suffer or incur or be put to 
by reason of or arising out of: 
(a) any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, by the Owner, or its officers, directors, 

employees, agents, contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is 
responsible; 

(b) the Owner’s default under this Agreement; and 
(c) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 

provision of housing for Rental Purposes. 
 
4. TENANCY RESTRICTIONS 
 
4.1 The unit mix for Rental Units in the Residential Building shall be no fewer than 9 three-

bedroom units, 11 two-bedroom units, 19 one-bedroom units and 21 studio units or as 
otherwise approved in writing by the Director of Planning in his or her discretion. 

 
4.2 The six Mid-Market Rental Units shall be provided in the following unit mix: 2 studio units, 2 

one-bedroom units, 1 two-bedroom unit, and 1 three-bedroom unit. The Owner may only 
change this mix with the approval in writing by the Director of Planning with such approval to 
be granted in his or her discretion. The Owner shall be entitled to determine the locations of 
the six Mid-Market Rental Units within the Residential Building. 

 
4.3 The Owner shall enter into a minimum 1 year Tenancy Agreement for each of the Mid-

Market Rental Units which will convert to a month to month tenancy at the end of the 1 year 
term. If such a tenancy is ended prior to the end of the Term, the Owner must rent the Mid-
Market Rental Unit at Affordable Rent.  For greater certainty, at the end of each tenancy, 
the Mid-Market Rental Unit will continue to be rented as a Mid-Market Rental Unit at 
Affordable Rent, which obligation will be ongoing at all times during the Term. 

5. OWNER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
5.1 Without limiting section 3.1 of this Agreement: 
 

(a) Management and administration: the management, administration, and associated 
costs with the management and administration of the Rental Units, including the 
Mid-Market Rental Units, will be borne by the Owner or its designated rental agent, 
unless otherwise approved by the City in writing; 

 
(b) Advertisement: the Owner will feature the tenure restrictions set out in this 

Agreement prominently in all advertising of Mid-Market Rental Units; 
 

(c) Tenant Selection: the Owner will determine the selection of the tenants of the Mid-
Market Rental Units, applying the suggested income qualification of a maximum 
household income determined by multiplying the low-end of market rents by 12 to 
yield the households’ annual housing costs, and divided by 30% to meet the 
standard definition of affordability. Tenants from the existing rental building on the 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

Lands should be provided first right of refusal in the Mid-Market Rental Units, 
regardless of income. In determining financial eligibility, the Owner or its rental 
agent, so long as it acts honestly and in good faith, is entitled to rely on all 
information provided by the prospective tenant and the Owner will have no liability 
if the prospective tenant intentionally or unintentionally provides any incorrect 
information. The Owner is under no obligation to monitor or update the financial 
circumstances of the tenant once the lease is signed.  

 
(d) Rent Amount and Permitted Increases: Affordable Rent for Mid-Market Rental 

Units is to be determined at the time of tenancy. Rent amounts may be 
subsequently increased by the permitted annual rent increase then set under the 
RT Act.  

  
(e) Compliance with applicable laws: without restricting the foregoing, the Owner will 

comply with all applicable provisions of the RT Act and any other provincial or 
municipal enactments imposing obligations on landlords in relation to residential 
tenancies; 

 
(f) Performance: the Owner will perform its obligations under this Agreement diligently 

and in good faith; and 
 

(g) Evidence of compliance: provided that the same can be done without breaching 
the Personal Information Protection Act (as amended from time to time) the Owner 
will, at Business License renewal or upon request by the City, supply to the City 
copies of any documentation in possession of the Owner necessary to establish 
compliance with the Owner’s obligations under this Agreement. 

 
6. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
6.1 The City may, acting reasonably, give to the Owner a written notice (in this section 6.1, the 

“Notice”) requiring the Owner to cure a default under this Agreement within 30 days of receipt 
of the Notice. The Notice must specify the nature of the default. The Owner must act with 
diligence to correct the default within the time specified. 

 
6.2 If the default is not corrected within the time specified, the Owner will pay to the City on 

demand by the City 200 percent of the difference between current market rent, as determined 
by a third-party appraiser, and Affordable Rent for each Mid-Market Rental Unit in default for 
the default year to the end of the Term of the Agreement. The monies collected from default 
will be deposited to the City’s Affordable Housing Reserve Fund.  

 
6.3 The Owner will pay to the City on demand by the City all the City's costs of exercising its 

rights or remedies under this Agreement, on a full indemnity basis. 
 
6.4 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that in case of a breach of this Agreement which is 

not fully remediable by the mere payment of money and promptly so remedied, the harm 
sustained by the City and to the public interest will be irreparable and not susceptible of 
adequate monetary compensation. 

 
6.5 Each party to this Agreement, in addition to its rights under this Agreement or at law, will be 

entitled to all equitable remedies including specific performance, injunction and declaratory 
relief, or any of them, to enforce its rights under this Agreement. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

6.6 The Owner acknowledges and agrees that it is entering into this Agreement to benefit the 
public interest in providing housing for Rental Purposes, and that the City's rights and 
remedies under this Agreement are necessary to ensure that this purpose is carried out and 
that the City's rights and remedies under this Agreement are fair and reasonable and ought 
not to be construed as a penalty or forfeiture. 

 
6.7 No reference to nor exercise of any specific right or remedy under this Agreement or at law 

or at equity by any party will prejudice, limit or preclude that party from exercising any other 
right or remedy.  No right or remedy will be exclusive or dependent upon any other right or 
remedy, but any party, from time to time, may exercise any one or more of such rights or 
remedies independently, successively, or in combination.  The Owner acknowledges that 
specific performance, injunctive relief (mandatory or otherwise) or other equitable relief may 
be the only adequate remedy of a default by the Owner under this Agreement. 

 
7. LIABILITY 
 
7.1 Except for the negligence of the City or its employees, agents or contractors, the Owner will 

indemnify and save harmless each of the City and its elected officials, board members, 
officers, directors, employees, and agents, and their heirs, executors, administrators, 
personal representatives, successors and assigns, from and against all claims, demands, 
actions, loss, damage, costs and liabilities, which all or any of them will or may be liable for 
or suffer or incur or be put to by reason of or arising out of: 

 
(a) any act or omission by the Owner, or its officers, directors, employees, agents, 

contractors, or other persons for whom at law the Owner is responsible; and 
 
(b) the Owner's ownership, operation, management or financing of the Lands for the 

provision of housing for Rental Purposes. 
 
7.2 Except to the extent such advice or direction is given negligently, the Owner hereby releases 

and forever discharges the City, its elected officials, board members, officers, directors, 
employees and agents, and its and their heirs, executors, administrators, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns from and against all claims, demands, damages, 
actions or causes of action by reason of or arising out of advice or direction respecting the 
ownership, operation or management of the Lands for the provision of housing for Rental 
Purposes which has been or hereafter may be given to the Owner by all or any of them. 

 
7.3 The covenants of the Owner set out in sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Agreement will survive the 

expiration or the earlier termination of this Agreement and will continue to apply to any breach 
of the Agreement and to any claims arising under this Agreement during the ownership by 
the Owner of the Lands. 

 
8. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
8.1 The Owner agrees to reimburse the City for all legal costs reasonably incurred by the City for 

the preparation, execution and registration of this Agreement.  The Owner will bear their own 
costs, legal or otherwise, connected with the preparation, execution or registration of this 
Agreement. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 8 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

8.2 Nothing in this Agreement: 
 

(a) affects or limits any discretion, rights, powers, duties or obligations of the City under 
any enactment or at common law, including in relation to the use or subdivision of 
land; 

 
(b) affects or limits any enactment relating to the use of the Lands or any condition 

contained in any approval including any development permit concerning the 
development of the Lands; or 

 
(c) relieves the Owner from complying with any enactment, including the City's bylaws 

in relation to the use of the Lands. 
 
8.3 The Owner and the City agree that: 
 
 (a) this Agreement is entered into only for the benefit of the City; 
 

(b) this Agreement is not intended to protect the interests of the Owner, occupier or user 
of the Lands or any portion of it including the Rental Units and the Limited Common 
Property; and 

 
(c) without limiting part 2 of this Agreement, the City may at any time execute a release 

and discharge of this Agreement in respect of the Lands, without liability to anyone 
for doing so. 

 
8.4 This Agreement burdens and runs with the Lands and any part into which any of them may 

be subdivided or consolidated, by strata plan or otherwise.  All of the covenants and 
agreements contained in this Agreement are made by the Owner for itself, its successors 
and assigns, and all persons who acquire an interest in the Lands after the date of this 
Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Owner will not be liable for 
any breach of any covenant, promise or agreement herein in respect of any portion of the 
Lands sold, assigned, considered or otherwise disposed of, occurring after the Owner has 
ceased to be the owner of the Lands. 

 
8.5 The covenants and agreements on the part of the Owner in this Agreement have been made 

by the Owner as contractual obligations as well as being made pursuant to section 905 of 
the Act and as such will be binding on the Owner. 

 
8.6 The Owner will, at its expense, do or cause to be done all acts reasonably necessary to 

ensure this Agreement is registered against the title to the Lands, including any amendments 
to this Agreement as may be required by the Land Title Office or the City to effect such 
registration. 

 
8.7 The City and the Owner each intend by execution and delivery of this Agreement to create 

both a contract and a deed under seal. 
 
8.8 An alleged waiver by a party of any breach by another party of its obligations under this 

Agreement will be effective only if it is an express waiver of the breach in writing.  No waiver 
of a breach of this Agreement is deemed or construed to be a consent or waiver of any other 
breach of this Agreement. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 9 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

8.9 If a Court of competent jurisdiction finds that any part of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable, that part is to be considered to have been severed from the rest of this 
Agreement and the rest of this Agreement remains in force unaffected by that holding or by 
the severance of that part. 

 
8.10 Every obligation of a party which is set out in this Agreement will extend throughout the Term 

and, to the extent that any obligation ought to have been observed or performed prior to or 
upon the expiry or earlier termination of the Term, such obligation will survive the expiry or 
earlier termination of the Term until it has been observed or performed. 

 
8.11 All notices, demands, or requests of any kind, which a party may be required or permitted to 

serve on another in connection with this Agreement, must be in writing and may be served 
on the other parties by registered mail, by facsimile or e-mail transmission, or by personal 
service, to the following address for each party: 

 
 City:  The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver 
   141 West 14th Street 
   North Vancouver, British Columbia 
   V7M 1H9 
   Attention: Director, Planning 
   Facsimile: 604.985.0576 
 

The Owner: Red Upper Lonsdale Projects Ltd. 
2200 1055 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver, British Columbia,  
V7X 1K8 

 
Service of any such notice, demand, or request will be deemed complete, if made by 
registered mail, 72 hours after the date and hour of mailing, except where there is a postal 
service disruption during such period, in which case service will be deemed to be complete 
only upon actual delivery of the notice, demand or request; if made by facsimile or e-mail 
transmission, on the first business day after the date when the facsimile or e-mail 
transmission was transmitted; and if made by personal service, upon personal service being 
effected.  Any party, from time to time, by notice in writing served upon the other parties, may 
designate a different address or different or additional persons to which all notices, demands, 
or requests are to be addressed. 

 
8.12 Upon request by the City, the Owner will promptly do such acts and execute such documents 

as may be reasonably necessary, in the opinion of the City, to give effect to this Agreement. 
 
8.13 This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding upon each of the parties and their 

successors and permitted assigns. 
 
9. INTERPRETATION 
 
9.1 Gender specific terms include both genders and include corporations.  Words in the singular 

include the plural, and words in the plural include the singular. 
 
9.2 The division of this Agreement into sections and the use of headings are for convenience of 

reference only and are not intended to govern, limit or aid in the construction of any provision.  
In all cases, the language in this Agreement is to be construed simply according to its fair 
meaning, and not strictly for or against either party. 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 10 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875 Document: 2091734-v3 

 
9.3 The word "including" when following any general statement or term is not to be construed to 

limit the general statement or term to the specific items which immediately follow the general 
statement or term to similar items whether or not words such as "without limitation" or "but 
not limited to" are used, but rather the general statement or term is to be construed to refer 
to all other items that could reasonably fall within the broadest possible scope of the general 
statement or term. 

 
9.4 The words "must" and "will" are to be construed as imperative. 
 
9.5 Any reference in this Agreement to any statute or bylaw includes any subsequent 

amendment, re-enactment, or replacement of that statute or bylaw. 
 
9.6 This is the entire agreement between the City and the Owner concerning its subject, and 

there are no warranties, representations, conditions or collateral agreements relating to the 
subject matter of this Agreement, except as included in this Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be amended only by a document executed by the parties to this Agreement and by 
bylaw, such amendment to be effective only upon adoption by City Council of an amending 
bylaw to “Housing Agreement Bylaw, 2021, No. 8875”. 

 
9.7 This Agreement is to be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of British Columbia. 
 
9.8 This Agreement can be signed in counterpart. 
 
IN WITNESS OF THIS AGREEMENT the City and the Owner have executed this 
Agreement by signing the “Form C – General Instrument – Part 1” or “Form D – 
Executions Continued” attached hereto. 
 
 



m \aA
Dbf>artment
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Annie Dempster, Planning Technician 2

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 620 JONES AVENUE (L. CHEUNG / KARL
WEIN ASSOCIATES)

Date: September 8,2021 File No: 08-3360-20-0502/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Planning Technician 2, dated September 8,
2021, entitled “Rezoning Application: 620 Jones Avenue (L. Cheung / Karl Wein 
Associates)”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870”
(L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates, 620 Jones Avenue, CD-738) be considered 
and the Public Hearing be waived;

THAT the community benefits listed in the report section ‘Community Benefits’ be 
secured at the applicant’s expense and to the satisfaction of staff;

AND THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government 
Act.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Context Map (CityDocs 1749572)
2. Architectural Plans (CityDocs 2090037)
3. Public Consultation Summary (CityDocs 2089821)
4. “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870” (CityDocs 

2089518)

Document Number: 2060672 V4



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 620 Jones Avenue (L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates)
Date: September 8, 2021

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This report presents, for Council’s consideration, a rezoning application for a new 
single-family dwelling with a suite at 620 Jones Avenue in the Ottawa Gardens Heritage 
Conservation Area. One disability parking space, accessed off the lane, is proposed. 
The proposed design is consistent with the form and character requirements for new 
construction within the Ottawa Gardens Heritage Conservation Area (OGHCA) 
Guidelines, and accommodates the needs of the owner’s intergenerational family.

The existing building on site is a single-family dwelling, originally constructed in 1912. 
The building is not listed on the 2013 Heritage Register, which identifies significant 
heritage assets within the City.

The proposal requires the following special provisions, identified in Table 1 below, 
within a new Comprehensive Development Zone.

Table 1. Requested Changes to the Zoning Bylaw
Current Regulation Proposed Regulation

Zone RT-1 CD-738 (base RS-1)
Gross Floor 
Area

0.5 times the Lot Area= 95.9 M2 
(1,032.5 sg. ft.)

0.75 times the Lot Area = 144 M2 (1,550 
sq. ft.)

Lot
Coverage

Maximum 35% Maximum 45%

Height Top of Plate 8M (26.2 ft.)
Building 10.1M (33 ft.)

Top of Plate 6.25M (20.5 ft.)
Building 7.6M (24.9 ft.)

Setbacks -
Principal
Building

8.8M (29 ft.) from the Rear Lot Line 2.8M (9.2 ft.) from Rear Lot Line

Setbacks - 
Principal 
Building 
projections

Steps: 2.44M (8 ft.) from the Front Lot
Line

Eaves/gutters/etc.: 0.762M (2.5 ft) from 
the south Interior Side Lot Line

Ramps/guards: 0.762M (2.5 ft.) from the 
north Interior Side Lot Line

Steps: 0.9M (2.95 ft.) from Front Lot Line

Eaves/gutters/etc.: 0.49M (1.61 ft.) from 
south Interior Side Lot Line

Ramps/guards: 0M (Oft.) from north Interior 
Side Lot Line

Siting for
Accessory
Buildings

1.22M (4 ft.) from Rear Lot Line
3.048M (10 ft.) from a Principal Building

Accessory Buildings with Max Height 1.52M 
(5ft):
0.61 M (2 ft.) from Rear Lot Line
0M (Oft.) from Principal Building

Parking
Spaces

1 space per Dwelling Unit
1 space for Accessory Secondary Suite 
Use

1 Disability Parking Space

POLICY FRAMEWORK

The subject site is designated Residential Level 3 (R3) in the Official Community Plan 
(OCR), which allows for proposals of up to 0.75 Floor Space Ratio (FSR) to be 
considered through a rezoning application. Relevant policies in the OCR and Housing 
Action Plan are included in table 2 below.

Page 2 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 620 Jones Avenue (L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates)
Date: September 8, 2021

Table 2. Relevant Policies
Official Community Plan
Policy 1.3.1
Ensure that new development is compatible 
with the established urban form of the City, 
reflecting the primacy of the Lonsdale
Regional City Centre and the transition 
through mid- and low-rise buildings to lower- 
density residential neighbourhoods

The proposed development on the site is 
appropriately scaled to the neighbourhood and 
supports the primacy of the Lonsdale Regional City 
Centre.

Policy 1.3.5
Encourage design excellence in developments 
through carefully considered, high quality 
architecture and landscaping, with varied 
designs which are interesting, sensitive and 
reflective of their surroundings

The proposed design is consistent with the Ottawa 
Gardens architectural expression while respecting 
the privacy of the adjacent heritage “A” ranked 
single-family dwelling directly to the south.

Policy 1.3.6
Encourage architecture that responds to the 
unique context of the City in a sensitive, 
sustainable, and aesthetically compatible 
manner

Design and materials are consistent with those found 
in the local context.

Policy 1.5.1
Provide opportunities for a range of housing 
densities, diversified in type, size and location.

The proposed development includes a rental suite 
which provide a smaller and more affordable housing 
form.

Policy 6.4.2
Maintain visible links to the community’s 
natural and cultural past through the 
conservation and enhancement of significant 
heritage resources, including heritage 
buildings, structures and landscapes

The proposed development is consistent with the 
intent of the OGHCA Guidelines. The new building 
incorporates traditional heritage features, including 
sloped roofs, accent windows, shingle siding and 
porch features, columns and posts, that reflect the 
design of the original building.

Housing Action Plan
Action #5
To increase rental options in lower density 
areas to support renters and provide 
homeowners with additional rental income, 
while retaining neighbourhood scale and 
character.

The proposed development creates a new principal 
unit of modest size with an accessory rental suite. 
Rental income will help to make the home more 
affordable for owners and the rental unit will increase 
the supply of units available in an area that is 
walkable and well-serviced by transit.-

Action #8
To increase accessibility in the City's ground- 
oriented housing stock

The proposed layout of the main floor is wheelchair 
accessible from the parking spot at the rear via a 
ramp to the side door entrance. The main floor has a 
wheelchair accessible bathroom, bedroom and 
kitchen.

PLANNING ANALYSIS

Site Context and Surrounding Uses

The site is located on the east side of Jones Avenue between West Keith Road and 
West 6th Street, and is adjacent to a lane which runs along the north side property line 
of the site. The lot was subdivided off the Heritage “A” ranked Walden Residence at 322 
West 6th Street in 1942. Prior to this subdivision, both buildings existed on one lot.

Including the site, there are 13 properties bounded by Jones Avenue, West Keith Road, 
Mahon Avenue, and West 6th Street. Twelve of these, including the subject site, are

Page 3 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 620 Jones Avenue (L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates)
Date: September 8, 2021

designated “Residential Level Three: Low Density Attached Form” (R3) in the OCR and 
one, the property at 353 West Keith Road, is designated “Local Commercial” (MU1).
The R3 designation permits a maximum FSR of 0.75 times the lot area. The majority of 
the R3-designated properties, including the subject site, are zoned Two-Unit Residential 
(RT-1), and two have Comprehensive Development zones. (Refer to Attachment 1 
Context Map).

The buildings and uses immediately surrounding the site are described in Table 3 
below.

Table 3. Surrounding Uses
Direction Address Description Zoning OCR

North

363 W Keith Rd.

357 W Keith Rd.

353 W Keith Rd.

Duplex

Single-family dwelling

Corner store with Accessory 
One-Unit Residential Use above

RT-1

RT-1

C-3

R3

R3

MU1

South/East 322 W 6th St. Single-family dwelling - Heritage 
"A" ranked Walden Residence RT-1 R3

East 316 W 6th St

312 W6(h St

Duplex

Single-family dwelling - Heritage 
“A” ranked McLean Residence

RT-1

RT-1

R3

R3

West 403 W Keith Rd.

605-609 Jones Ave 
& 408 W 6th Ave

Duplex

Triplex

RT-1

CD-248

R2

R2

Use
The lot is zoned RT-1, which permits four residential units (two principal units and two 
accessory rental units); however, it would be very challenging to fit four units and the 
required parking on a lot of this size. Compared to the existing zoning, the proposal 
represents a decrease of two units (one principal and one accessory). Compared to the 
existing single-family use, the proposal represents an increase of one rental unit in the 
form of a secondary suite. A variance of one parking space is proposed and is 
supported by staff analysis as the neighbourhood is walkable, well-serviced by transit, 
and is in close proximity to recreation facilities, commercial and employment areas, and 
schools. Bus routes 240, 241 and 255 all stop at the intersection of West Keith Road 
and Jones Avenue and both Lower and Central Lonsdale are within a 20-minute walk.

The principal unit, located on the main floor of the building, has been designed to 
support aging in place. It is wheelchair-accessible from the disability parking spot via a 
ramp to the north side door. The main floor has a wheelchair-accessible bathroom, 
bedroom and kitchen. Rental housing is provided through the inclusion of an accessory 
rental suite, adding to the available rental stock in the neighbourhood and allowing for 
mortgage support for owners of the property.

Page 4 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 620 Jones Avenue (L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates)
Date: September 8, 2021

Applicable policies in the OCR and Housing Action Plan support the proposed use. 

Intensity
The OCR allows a maximum FSR 0.75 times the lot area and OGHCA Guidelines 
suggests that 0.6 of this FSR is appropriate above grade. 620 Jones Avenue is the 
smallest lot within the OGHCA at 191.8 square meters (2,065 square feet). Given that 
the lot is very small even at 0.75 above grade, the building would be the smallest in the 
area at 144 square meters (1,550 square feet). Comprehensive Development (CD) 
zones in the area have been approved with an FSR of 0.75 above grade, including CD- 
616, which is within the OGHCA (shown on the Context Map; Attachment 1). The 
proposed density for this application, of 0.75 FSR above grade, is suitable given the 
small size of the lot.

Form
The application has been reviewed for compliance with the form and character 
requirements for new construction as outlined in the OGHCA Guidelines. The underlying 
principles of the Guidelines refer to the integrity of individual buildings, and respect for the 
original design concept for each structure, as well as integration of each building within a 
unified vision for the entire Ottawa Gardens streetscape. The Guidelines also provide 
direction on the recommended architectural details, material treatment, approach to 
windows and doors (discussed in Advisory Body input below), and colours (the Heritage 
Colour Scheme is shown on drawing A0 of Attachment 2). The proposed building form is 
consistent with the Ottawa Gardens architectural expression. The design respects the 
privacy of the adjacent Walden Residence and is appropriate in character for the low- 
density residential context. If this application is approved a Heritage Alteration Permit will 
be issued by staff in accordance with the Guidelines.

COMMUNITY BENEFITS

The project proposes an FSR of 0.75 times the lot area for a total gross floor area of 
144 square meters (1,550 square feet) above grade. The proposed FSR represents a 
density bonus for the increase from 0.5 FSR to 0.75 FSR (48.08 square metres or 517.5 
square feet) for a total contribution of $12,937.50, as per the City’s Density Bonusing 
and Community Benefit Contribution policy, payable prior to adoption.

ADVISORY BODY INPUT

Heritage Advisory Commission
The application was reviewed by the Heritage Advisory Commission (HAC) on October 
13, 2020.The Commission unanimously endorsed the following resolution:

THAT the Heritage Advisory Commission, having received and reviewed 
presentation from Karl Wein and Associates, regarding 620 Jones Avenue, 
supports the project subject to the resolution of the following items to the 
satisfaction of City staff:

Page 5 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 620 Jones Avenue (L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates)
Date: September 8, 2021

a) The applicant work with staff to document and confirm that the proposed 
height is sympathetic to, and less than, the Walden Residence.

b) The applicant work with the City to confirm and document that the 
balustrades, railings, columns, doors and windows are wood and that the 
exterior cladding dimensions are sympathetic to the massing of the 
building.

In response to the items above, the applicant revised the drawings and staff is satisfied 
with the revisions.The applicant has confirmed the existing Ridge Height of the Walden 
Residence is 2.13 meters (7 feet) higher then the proposed new residential building (as 
shown on A7 of Attachment 2). The CD-738 zone includes a reduction to the maximum 
building height that will ensure the Walden Residence retains its prominence. The 
applicant has documented on the drawings that the balustrades, railings, columns, 
doors and windows will be wood and that the shingle siding will have a 6” exposure to 
reflect the design of the original building and provide appropriate mass to the building 
(as shown on A3 of Attachment 2).

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

A Developer’s Information Session was held on September 11, 2019. There were three 
attendees representing two properties in the surrounding area. The Developer 
Information Session Summary has been included as Attachment #3.

Throughout the rezoning review process, communication has been ongoing between 
the applicant and the owner of the Walden Residence to the south. The applicant has 
committed to entering into a Good Neighbour Agreement to ensure communication 
remains strong though the development process should this proposal be approved.

Due to the engagement completed to date with no neighbours expressing opposition to 
the proposal, staff is recommending that the Public Hearing be waived.

Should Council wish to refer the application to a Public Hearing, the first active clause in 
the resolution should be amended to read:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870" (L. 
Cheung /Karl Wein Associates, 620 Jones Avenue, CD-738) be considered and 
referred to a Public Hearing;

CONCLUSION

The subject site’s proximity to existing recreational infrastructure, commercial and 
employment areas, schools and transit make it an appropriate site for moderate 
densification. The project would result in a net increase of one accessory secondary 
suite, adding to the available rental stock in the neighbourhood. The proposed variance 
of one parking space is supported as the neighbourhood is well serviced by transit and 
has many amenities within a 15-minute walk. The principal unit is designed to support 
intergenerational living and aging in place for the owner’s family with the main floor

Page 6 of 7



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 620 Jones Avenue (L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates)
Date: September 8, 2021

designed for wheelchair accessibility. The proposed building form fits into the 
architectural expression of the Ottawa Gardens neighbourhood and is consistent with 
the form and character requirements for new construction within the OGHCA 
Guidelines. Policy and planning analysis supports the proposed rezoning.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Annie Dempster 
Planning Technician 2

Page 7 of 7



City of North Vancouver

6 2 0

3 3 8

3 3 4

6 4 5

40
3

40
9

3 1 3

3 1 7

41
6 3 2 2

42
0

5 3 5

2 6 8

35
3

6 2 0

60
5

6 1 5

3 0 9

35
7

36
3

3 1 2

4 2 1

3 1 6

6 1 3

41
3

PLOTT ED : 2/11/2019

COOR DIN ATE SYSTEM: NAD 83, U TM Zone 10

GIS Division, Information Technology, 
City of North Vancouver

This map was produced on the City of North 
Vancouver's Geographic Information System. 
Data provided herein is derived from sources 
with varying levels of accuracy and detail. 
The City of North Vancouver disclaims all 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness 
of information contained herein.

DISCLAIMER

0 9.5 194.75
Meters

Legend
Subject Site

1:750

SOUR CE: StaffMAP

East Keith Road

East 6th Street

Jo
ne

s 
A

ve
nu

e

M
ah

on
 A

ve
nu

e

Context Map

Heritage "A" 
Building 

Zoned Local 
Commercial 

CD Zoned 

Ottawa Gardens
Heritage 
Conservation 
Area 

adempster
Highlight

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



0

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 2�



0



A0

















Karl Wein Associates 

1451 Marine Drive 

West Vancouver, BC, V7T 1B8 

778-280-3670

Planning Department 

City of North Vancouver  

141 West 214th Street  

North Vancouver V7M 1H9 

Dear Annie,

RE: September 11, 2019 Developer Information Session (DIS) Summary - Rezoning Application for 620 
Jones Ave (REZ2019-0001) 

A DIS was held for the above noted project at St Andrews United Church, 1044 St Georges Ave North

Vancouver, on Wednesday September 11, 2019, from 6:00 PM to 8:00 PM. The DIS was advertised in 

the North Shore News on Sept 4 and 6, 2019. Neighbors within the area required by the City were

notified by drop-off of the notification by flyer and posting of a sign (to City Standards) on 620 Jones Ave

on Aug 30 2019. Ahead of the DIS, signs were posted on the front door of St Andrews United Church and

throughout the building leading to display room. 

• David Johnson, Planner 2 representing the City of North Vancouver

• Linda Cheung, the owner of 620 Jones Ave

• Karl Wein, representing the owner

• Three members of the public attended (representing two nearby
properties).

Karl Wein 

Thank you.

No completed DIS questionnaires were returned following the DIS .

The following individuals attended the DIS:

thuckell
FreeText
Attachment 3�



141 WEST 14TH STREET / NORTH VANCOUVER / BC / V7M 1H9
T 604 985 7761 / F 604 985 9417 / CNV.ORG                  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING (Waived)

Notice is hereby given that Council will consider:
Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8870 to rezone 
the subject property from a Two-Unit Residential 
1 (RT-1) Zone to a Comprehensive Development 
738 (CD-738) Zone to permit a new single-
family dwelling with a suite.  The proposal has a 
proposed density of 0.75 times the lot area, 45% 
lot coverage, setback adjustments to facilitate the 
small-lot development and a variance to require 
one Disability Parking Space, rather than 2 regular 
parking spaces.  The proposed design is consistent 
with the form and character requirements for new construction within the 
Ottawa Gardens Heritage Conservation Area.
The Regular Council Meeting will be held electronically via “WebEx”.  All 

written submission.  All submissions must include your name and address 

or delivered to City Hall, no later than 12:00 noon on Monday, October 
18, 2021, to ensure their availability to Council at the meeting.  No further 
information or submissions can be considered by Council after third reading 
of the bylaw.
The proposed Zoning Amendment Bylaw and background material will be 
available for viewing online at cnv.org/PublicHearings on Friday, October 8, 
2021.

604-982-3942.

40
9

31
1

36
3

615

60
5

31
2

35
7

32
2

41
6

30
9

35
3

61
3

620

31
6

40
3

421

31
7

J o
ne

s 
A

ve

W 13th St

W 6th St

W Keith Rd

620 Jones Avenue

WHO: Karl Wein Associates
WHAT: Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8870
WHERE: 620 Jones Avenue
WHEN: Monday, October 18, 2021 at 5:30 pm
HOW: View the meeting online at cnv.org/LiveStreaming



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870 Document: 2089518-v5 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8870 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870” (L. Cheung / Karl Wein Associates, 620 Jones 
Avenue, CD-738). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-738 (Comprehensive Development 738 Zone): 

 
 Lot Block D.L. Plan 
 
 A (Reference Plan 2804) of Lot X 71 271 750 from RT-1 
 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-737 
Comprehensive Development 737 Zone”: 

 
“CD-738 Comprehensive Development 738 Zone” 

 
B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-737 Comprehensive 

Development 737 Zone”: 
 

“CD-738 Comprehensive Development 738 Zone” 
 

In the CD-738 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the RS-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) The Gross Floor Area (One-Unit and Two-Unit Residential), combined and in 

total, to not exceed 0.75 times the lot area; 
 

(2) Lot Coverage shall not exceed a maximum of 45 percent; 
 

(3) Siting (Principal Building) shall not be less than: 
 

 (a) 2.8 metres (9.2 feet) from the Rear Lot Line;  
 

(4) Height (Principal Building): 
 

(a) shall not exceed a Top of Plate height of 6.25 metres (20.5 feet) as 
measured by the Height Envelope; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870 Document: 2089518-v5 

(b) notwithstanding 4(a), a roof may project above the Top of Plate height to a 
maximum overall Building Height of 7.6 metres (24.9 feet) as measured by 
the Height Envelope; 

 
(c) the First Storey of the Principal Building shall be a minimum 0.76 metres 

(2.5 feet) above the reference grade determined by the Height Envelope if 
a Basement (One-Unit and Two-Unit Residential) is present; 

 
(5) Section 410 (1) (e) shall be varied to allow unenclosed steps, projecting beyond 

the face of the Principal Building, be sited not less then 0.9 metres (2.95 feet) 
from the Front Lot Line; 

 
(6) Section 410 (1) (b) shall be varied to allow eaves, cornices, leaders, gutters, 

canopies or Sunlight Control Projections, projecting beyond the face of the 
Principal Building, be sited not less than 0.49 metres (1.61 feet) from the south 
Interior Side Lot Line; 
 

(7) Section 410 (1) (i) (i) shall be varied to allow exterior ramps, lifts or similar 
mobility and/or accessibility-enhancing equipment, including required guards, 
projecting beyond the face of the Principal Building, be sited 0 metres (0 feet) 
from the north Interior Side Lot Line; 

 
(8) Section 412 (2) (e) shall be varied to allow a guard Structure of up to 1.07 meters 

(3.5 feet) in Height, adjacent to unenclosed steps, to be sited not less then 2.44 
meters (8 feet) of the intersection of the Lot lines along a Street and a Lane; 

 
(9) Accessory Buildings shall be sited as per section 514 (5), except that Accessory 

Buildings with a Height not exceeding 1.52 metres (5 feet) shall be sited not less 
than: 

 
(a) 0.61 meters (2 feet) from the Rear Lot Line; 
 
(b) 0 metres (0 feet) from a Principal Building;  

 
  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8870 Document: 2089518-v5 

(10) Parking and Access shall comply with Part 9, except that 1 Disability Parking 
Space provided on the Lot shall be the minimum required number of Accessory 
On-Site Parking Spaces. 

 
 

READ a first time on the 21st day of September, 
2021. 

READ a second time on the 21st day of 
September, 2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Larry Sawrenko, Chief Financial Officer and Director of Finance

Subject: 2021-2030 REVISED FINANCIAL PLAN

Date: October 6,2021 File No: 05-1715-20-0020/2021

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Chief Financial Officer and Director of Finance, 
dated October 6, 2021, entitled “2021 - 2030 Revised Financial Plan”:

THAT the amendments to the 2021-2030 Capital Plan for “Harry Jerome 
Community Recreation Centre” (Project #45232), “Silver Harbour” (Project 
#45293) and “Lawn Bowling” (Project #45292) be endorsed;

AND THAT “Financial Plan for the Years 2021 to 2030 Bylaw, 2021, No. 8822, 
Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8881" (Revised Financial Plan) be considered.

ATTACHMENTS

1. 2021-2030 Capital Plan Revised Project Sheets (CityDocs# 2099933)
2. Lawn Bowling Clubhouse Funding Request (CityDocs# 2102958)
3. “Financial Plan for the Years 2021 to 2030 Bylaw, 2021, No. 8822, Amendment Bylaw,

2021, No. 8881" (CityDocs# 2100341)

SUMMARY

This report provides high level commentary on activities that have transpired within the 
program budget since the preparation of the 2021 - 2030 Financial Plan and proposes 
funding reallocations.

Document Number: 2097121 V2



REPORT: 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan
Date: October 6, 2021

BACKGROUND

The Community Charter requires the preparation and adoption of a Financial Plan 
covering at least five years relative to the operating funds of the municipality. On April 
12, 2021, Council considered and adopted the City’s 2021 - 2030 Financial Plan, which 
combines ten years of operational program funding and project funding. Expenditures 
for items not included in the plan are unlawful, but amendments to the Financial Plan 
are allowed, by bylaw, at any time.

DISCUSSION

The report provides a review of program operations and a summary of the changes in 
revenues and expenditures that staff have identified, and which staff are 
recommending be re-allocated in the proposed Revised Financial Plan.

1. Review of Program Operations

A review of operations and the production of a Revised Financial Plan (commonly called 
the “Revised Budget”) has been a standard procedure for the City for many years. As a 
management tool, the Revised Financial Plan allows the City to make maximum use of 
available funds. By budgeting conservatively, particularly for Year One of the Financial 
Plan, the City ensures that funds will be allocated efficiently to meet normal operational 
requirements. If revenues are greater (or expenses are less) than conservative 
expectations, or if unexpected or unpredicted new revenues become available, the 
Revised Financial Plan has then been used to re-allocate these funds, so that this extra 
funding is put to use rather than simply building up a financial surplus. This practice 
forms a key part of the City’s financial strategy of funding programs and projects on a 
priority basis only when funds are available to do so.

All Financial Plans are based on estimates or predictions of revenues and expenditures, 
including budgeted departmental savings due to vacancies and other planned 
efficiencies. New information is constantly emerging and it is common for unforeseen 
or unpredicted events to manifest themselves. Staff have reviewed the City’s program 
revenues and expenditures and are recommending a few reallocations within the 
operating budget. The review included an analysis of the major non-tax revenue 
sources such as parking revenue, investment income, permits and fees, business 
licenses and by-law enforcement.

2. 2021 Revised Financial Plan - Operating Items 

2021 Revised Budget items

1Temporary Staffing - Finance $210,000
temporary Staffing - Engineering Development 173,900
3Tree Bylaw Implementation 100,000
4Transfer to Reserve for Future Expenditures - NVRC ________51,000

$534,900

Page 2 of 6



REPORT: 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan
Date: October 6, 2021

Funding Sources

52020 Surpluses Returned to the City 329,600
62021 Staff Savings 205,300

$534,900

temporary Staffing - Finance - $210,000

Funding for a 2 year Temporary Full Time Budget Analyst I is being requested to 
support the advancement of recommendations of the recently completed organizational 
financial management assessment and enhance the Finance department’s capacity for 
financial analysis.

temporary Staffing - Engineering Development - $173,900

Development Services has two expiring temporary positions, a Technical Assistant and 
a Development Technician 2. These positions support planning, subdivision, and 
building applications as well as oversee the street use and asset delivery related to 
developments.

Temporary funding for these positions has been in place for a number of years and has 
been funded by extraordinary permit revenue. The positions were created to alleviate 
pressure on regular full-time staff resources as the City experienced increased 
development activity. The funding allocated to the positions will be depleted by 
December 31, 2021, and the $173,900 will extend this date to December 31, 2022.

Since the positions were created, development applications have been increasing in 
complexity, and there has been a demonstrated ongoing need for the positions. 
Therefore, it is anticipated that both of these positions will be requested as New Items in 
the 2021 Financial Plan.

3Tree Bylaw - $100,000

A tree protection bylaw and program would establish clear regulations regarding cutting, 
removal and other modifications to trees on private property in the City in line with best 
practices in urban forest and tree canopy management. Staff are currently preparing a 
bylaw and program for Council consideration before the end of 2021. Development of 
this bylaw and program is a first step towards realizing a more comprehensive city-wide 
urban forest management strategy. Funding is being requested to ensure sufficient 
resources are available to support initial program administration, enforcement and 
outreach upon Council adoption.

4Transfer to Reserve for Future Expenditures- NVRC - $51,000

Staff are recommending that $51,000 be transferred to an operating reserve to be used 
for future unforeseen expenditures relating to impacts of the new Flarry Jerome 
Recreation Centre on the North Vancouver Recreation & Culture Commission (NVRC).

Page 3 of 6



REPORT: 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan
Date: October 6, 2021

520 20 Surpluses Returned to City - $329,600

Earlier this year, the NVRC and Library have returned funding to the City.

North Vancouver Recreation & Culture Commission
North Vancouver City Library
Total

$284,700
44,900

$329,600

The surplus related to the NVRC was mainly due to greater than budgeted revenues 
due to newly added programs as a result of increased demand. Various other 
revenues, such as investment income and insurance proceeds, also had favourable 
variances in the year. The Library Surplus primarily occurred due to staff vacancies. 
Staff are recommending that the returned surpluses be used to fund the Revised 
Financial Plan.

62021 Staff Savings - $205,300

In efforts to be conservative, the City has gradually been moving towards budgeting for 
positions at the highest step of the applicable pay band. As natural turnover occurs and 
positions are replaced with new staff at lower steps, positive variances are expected to 
occur. An amount is budgeted within each department for these anticipated step 
savings and these savings are those over and above the citywide target.

3. 2021 Revised Financial Plan - Capital Items

2021 Revised Budget items

5Harry Jerome CRC - New (Project #45232) $7,650,400
6Silver Harbour (Project #45293) 380,000
7Lawn Bowling (Project #45292) 280,000
8Harry Jerome CRC - Replenishment (Project #45232) ___________ 763,000

$9,073,400

Funding Sources

9Civic Amenity - Harry Jerome Fund $9,073,400

5Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - New - $7,650,400 and 6Silver 
Harbour - $380,000

Funding is being requested to enable advancement of the Site Preparation and 
Excavation tendering process to shorten the project schedule, as well as reduce 
escalation and general conditions cost. The contract relating to this tender will not, 
however, be awarded until full project funding is in place.

Council approval will be sought in mid-February 2022 to advance full tendering and 
construction funding based on a Class A cost estimate.

Page 4 of 6



REPORT: 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan
Date: October 6, 2021

For further information, please refer to the report of the Acting Director, Strategic & 
Corporate Services, dated October 6, 2021, entitled “Harry Jerome Community 
Recreation Centre - Project Updates & Next Steps”.

7Lawn Bowling - $280,000

The North Vancouver Lawn Bowling clubhouse has been redesigned at reduced scope 
from the original design in 2018. A Class A estimate has been obtained and identifies a 
shortfall in available funding for this project. Further scope reductions of the Clubhouse 
are not recommended as the basic functional program will not be delivered.

For further information, please refer to Attachment 2.

8Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Replenishment - $763,000

The following resolution was carried by Council at the July 19, 2021, regular Council 
meeting:

THAT the transfer of $420,000 from “Harry Jerome Community Recreation 
Centre” (Project #45232) to Mickey McDougall (Project #45338) be approved and 
the funding returned to the “Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre” project 
as part of the 2021 Revised Financial Plan process;

THAT should any of the above amounts remain unexpended as at 
December 31,2024, the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit 
of the Civic Amenity - Harry Jerome Fund.

The following resolution was approved at the Regular Council meeting held on April 12, 
2021:

THAT (Funding Appropriation #2117) an amount of $343,000 be appropriated 
from the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre project budget for the 
purpose of funding the Lawn Bowling - Clubhouse project;

AND THAT should any of the above amounts remain unexpended as at 
December 31, 2024, the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of 
said Fund.

The inclusion of these items in the Revised Financial Plan will replace the appropriated 
funds and make whole the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre provision 
included in the 2021 - 2030 Capital Plan.

9Civic Amenity - Harry Jerome Fund - $9,073,400

The Civic Amenity - Harry Jerome Fund is specifically dedicated to fund the Harry 
Jerome Recreation Centre and Lands capital projects. In 2013, Council approved a 1% 
tax rate increase to be set aside for the Harry Jerome Recreation Centre project. This 
increase provided $400,000 in annual funding for this purpose. Council approved similar

Page 5 of 6



REPORT: 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan
Date: October 6, 2021

increases in following years bringing the annual amount set aside for the Harry Jerome 
Recreation Project to $2.6 million. Other funding dedicated to the renewal of the Harry 
Jerome Recreation Centre include the density transfer from 1441 St. Georges Avenue, 
the community benefit contribution from 150 E 8th Street as well as lease revenues from 
the Harry Jerome Neighbourhood Lands. Current dedicated available funding is 
$65.1M.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The bylaw recommended for adoption in this report incorporates the adjustments 
discussed in this report.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

This report has been reviewed by the City’s Leadership Team.

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The 10-year Financial Plan is an integral piece of the planning framework included in the 
Council Strategic Plan.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Larry Sawrenko 
Director of Finance

Page 6 of 6



Project Name:
Department:
Project Manager: Date: 22-Jul-21

2011-2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 TOTAL
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Funding Requirements

City Funding (Fund Appropriation) 12,250,000$        14,077,045$        148,910,150$      10,027,880$        1,502,022$          -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  174,517,097$      

External Funding/Contributions -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

Total Project Expenditures 12,250,000$        14,077,045$        148,910,150$      10,027,880$        1,502,022$          -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  174,517,097$      

Overhead Staffing (Engineering/Facilities)
Specify as a percentage of funds appropriated 0% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Impact on Operations/Maintenance
(Incremental to 2020 Base Year Operating Budget)
Revenues -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

 Expenses net of recoveries(Include staffing) -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
Total -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

Staffing (FTE)
Regular - - - - - - - - - - 
Temporary 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 - - - - 
Total Staffing 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 - - - - 

* Prior to creating new on-going programs, please contact the Manager, Financial Planning. For on-going programs and maintenance & replacement projects, please attach a list of the projects and funding (appropriation) requirements. 

Dianna Foldi Dedicated Funds

Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre 2021 - 2030 Project Plan
Strategic & Corporate Services Project Type:

Description: A new community recretaion centre to replace the existing HJCRC. A revision to the Project Plan 2021-2030 is required in order to undertake demolition and excavation scope of work and award of 
Public Art contract for the new Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre (HJCRC) in advance of the major building tender. Funding allocation is based on the Class B estimate dated March 2021.

Purpose: The work is required in order to avoid unnecessary construction escalation costs and to assist in overall construction sequencing.

Alignment With Official Community Plan: Replacement/renewal of the facilities at Harry Jerome addresses the OCP's Leisiure and Culture Goal 10.5.5: To operate, maintain, increase, improve and encourage the provision of cultural and 
recreational facilities" and Infrastructure Management Goal 11.7.4 "To maintain structures to optimize the useful life of our infrastructure and replace it when necessary to maintain reliable service"

Strategic Plan :
Use percentages to allocate the project across the 5 

strategic priorities

A City for People A Livable City A Vibrant City A Connected City Total
30% 30% 30% 5% 5% 100%

A Prosperous City

Service Levels:
Impact on the service levels to the public as a result of 

the project

Addresses a current service level deficiency so 
level of service standard is achieved

Notes: 'A new HJCRC will allow the community to participate in wellness and recreation programs for many years, leading to improved wellness, 
activity, overall health and sense of belonging. 

COVID-19 Adaptation:
How significantly this project assists residents, local businesses and/or

vulnerable populations under COVID-19
Moderate Impact

Notes: Services provided by Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre supports community members. 

GHG Implications:
Discuss GHG considerations for all projects. Provide 

figures for Fleet, Facilities and any project with readily 
available information.

Short term GHG emissions associated with construction of a new facility. Once complete, the new facility is 
anticipated to have a 50-60% reduction in GHG's over the existing facility.  

Director Approval: 
(to be entered after Draft Project Plan goes to DT)

Risk Assessment:
 Impact of the project not proceeding to public health 

and/or occupational health and safety
Significant Impact

Notes: HJCRC existing facility has reached end of life.  Increased operational and maintenance costs for existing facilities, with distinct possibility of 
decline in service / closure of facility within 5 years. 

External Funding:
If applicable, specify funding agency/program N/A N/A

Specify Funding Agency/Program:

Document Number: 2099933  1 - 1

ATTACHMENT #1



Project Name:
Department:
Project Manager: Date: 14-Jul-20

2011-2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 TOTAL
Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Funding Requirements

City Funding (Fund Appropriation) 3,000,000$          380,000$             18,718,891$        1,374,053$          170,883$             82,532$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  20,726,359$        

External Funding/Contributions -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

Total Project Expenditures 3,000,000$          380,000$             18,718,891$        1,374,053$          170,883$             82,532$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  20,726,359$        

Overhead Staffing (Engineering/Facilities)
Specify as a percentage of funds appropriated 0% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Impact on Operations/Maintenance
(Incremental to 2020 Base Year Operating Budget)
Revenues -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

 Expenses net of recoveries(Include staffing) -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
Total -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

Staffing (FTE)
Regular - - - - - - - - - - 
Temporary 1.2500 1.2500 1.2500 1.2500 1.2500 1.2500 - - - - 
Total Staffing 1.2500 1.2500 1.2500 1.2500 1.2500 1.2500 - - - - 

* Prior to creating new on-going programs, please contact the Manager, Financial Planning. For on-going programs and maintenance & replacement projects, please attach a list of the projects and funding (appropriation) requirements. 

Dianna Foldi Dedicated Funds

Silver Harbour Seniors Activity Centre 2021 - 2030 Project Plan
Strategic & Corporate Services Project Type:

Description: Relocation of the Silver Harbour Seniors Activity Centre to a new location on the HJCRC site. The Silver Harbour facility will be a stand-alone facility on the HJCRC site north of 23rd Street. Revisions 
to the 2021 Project Plan are required to fund a portion of costs related to the demolition and excavation scope of work and award of Public Art contract for the new Harry Jerome Community Recreation 
Centre (HJCRC) in advance of the major building tender. Funding allocation is based on the Class B estimate dated March 2021.

Purpose: The work is required in order to avoid unnecessary construction escalation costs and to assist in overall construction sequencing.

Alignment With Official Community Plan: Enabling the redevelopment of the HJ Precinct and relocation of Silver Harbour supports the goals and objectives of the Land Use and Community Well-being chapters within the OCP. 

Strategic Plan :
Use percentages to allocate the project across the 5 

strategic priorities

A City for People A Livable City A Vibrant City A Connected City Total
35% 30% 35% 100%

A Prosperous City

Service Levels:
Impact on the service levels to the public as a result of 

the project
Increases level of service

Notes:

COVID-19 Adaptation:
How significantly this project assists residents, local businesses and/or

vulnerable populations under COVID-19
Moderate Impact

Notes:

GHG Implications:
Discuss GHG considerations for all projects. Provide 

figures for Fleet, Facilities and any project with readily 
available information.

Minimal GHG implications with new construction. New facility designed with reduced GHG emissions over existing 
aging facility

Director Approval: 
(to be entered after Draft Project Plan goes to DT)

Risk Assessment:
 Impact of the project not proceeding to public health 

and/or occupational health and safety
Moderate Impact

Notes: Silver Harbour will remain in existing aged facility. Area available for redevelopment within the HJ Precint will be reduced along with revenue. 
Plans will have to be adjusted accordingly.

External Funding:
If applicable, specify funding agency/program N/A N/A

Specify Funding Agency/Program:

Document Number: 2099933  1 - 2



ATTACHMENT #2

/Tl/'
|/\A

Department
Manager

\6ttector CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
STRATEGIC & CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

INFORMATION REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Dianna Foldi, Senior Project Manager, Strategic Initiatives

Subject: LAWN BOWLING CLUBHOUSE FUNDING REQUEST

Date: October 12,2021 File No: 02-0800-30-0026/1

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide additional information for the request for additional 
funds in the amount of $280,000 as part of the 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan in order 
to complete the final portion of the North Vancouver Lawn Bowling project - the NVLB 
Clubhouse.

BACKGROUND

The funding for the NVLB Greens, Site Works and Clubhouse was originally appropriated 
in July 2018 based on an approved design and Class D estimate (+/- 20%). Detailed 
design of the Greens, Site Works and Clubhouse proceeded in close collaboration with 
members of the North Vancouver Lawn Bowling (NVLB) Club and with input by external 
cost consultants. The original budget of $6.5 M was approved at that time, and cost 
estimates received prior to construction start in 2019 indicated the funding would not 
address the full scope of the project. A phased approach was undertaken with priority to 
construct the Greens and Site works first, while undergoing redesign of the Clubhouse 
component to reduce costs. The Greens and Site Works was completed in Summer 2021, 
and the budget for this phase was $4.6 M. Additional funding ($343,000 from Harry 
Jerome project funding and $146,436.00 from the Phase 1 Safe Restart Grant) to address 
the Greens and Site Works component of the project was approved by Council on April 
12, 2021. This provided $2,243,000 remaining for the Clubhouse component.

Document Number: 2102958 V1



INFORMATION REPORT: Lawn Bowling Clubhouse - Funding Request
Date: October 12, 2021

DISCUSSION:

The current reduced scope design has been developed in consultation with NVLB 
executive, ensuring that it meets their vision and programmatic requirements. It has 
been redesigned from the previous larger two story building to a modest and efficient 
single storey facility that includes a large assembly space for gatherings, kitchen, 
washrooms and storage. The clubhouse has been designed with simplicity and flexibility 
in mind and is adaptable for a variety of community uses.

The Lawn Bowling Greens and Clubhouse were originally scheduled to be completed as 
a single project by summer of 2020. The current completion schedule for the clubhouse 
is anticipated for end of 2022 incurring an 18% cost increase due to construction cost 
escalation over this extended time frame (6% per year).

The reduced scope clubhouse design and a Class A estimate (+/-5% range) have now 
been completed. The cost estimate was based on current market conditions indicating 
an unstable environment with ongoing price escalation due to supply / demand 
challenges from COVID-19 border and shipping restrictions. These price increases have 
not adjusted back to previous rates. The construction cost component is approximately 
$200k over our previous Class B estimate and the remaining funding of $2.063M (with 
$180,000 previously committed to consultant contracts) is insufficient to allow the tender 
to proceed. Further scope reductions of the Clubhouse are not recommended as the 
basic functional program will not be delivered. In order to proceed to construction, a 
total of an additional $280,000 is requested to cover costs due to construction cost 
escalation and associated incidental consultant costs and contingencies.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

In August 2018, Council approved $6,500,000 as part of the overall “Harry Jerome 
Community Recreation Centre” project for the design and construction of the Greens, Site 
Works and Clubhouse. This budget amount was based on preliminary Class D cost 
estimates provided in 2018. Actual and forecast project costs have exceeded the 
allowable budget due to the impact of COVID-19 restrictions, allocation of majority of off-
site servicing and service upgrades to Lawn Bowling as opposed to sharing with a 
coordinated Mickey McDougall redevelopment, construction cost escalation, and 
increased contingencies to counter anticipated market volatilities.

Funding for additional Lawn Bowling Club work is not currently included in the 2021-2030 
Capital Plan. It is, therefore, being proposed that $280,000 additional funding is requested 
as part of the 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan.

Should any funds remain upon the completion of the project, the unexpended balance 
shall be returned to the credit of the Civic Amenity Reserve Fund and made available to 
fund the HJCRC and associated projects.

Page 2 of 3



INFORMATION REPORT: Lawn Bowling Clubhouse - Funding Request
Date: October 12, 2021

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS:

This report was prepared with input from the Finance Department. The project will be 
delivered through the Strategic and Corporate Services Department.

CORPORATE PLAN AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

The development and implementation of the Lawn Bowling Greens and Clubhouse 
supports Council’s vision of the Healthiest Small City in the World by supporting and 
enhancing the health and wellness of our community.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: F'&h/s'
Dianna Foldi
Sr. Project Manager, Strategic Initiatives

Page 3 of 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8822 Document: 2028554-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8881 

Financial Plan for the Years 2021 to 2030 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Financial Plan for the Years 2021 

to 2030 Bylaw, 2021, No. 8822, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8881” (Revised Financial 
Plan). 

 
2. Schedule “A” attached hereto is the Financial Plan of The Corporation of the City of North 

Vancouver for the period commencing January 1, 2021, and ending December 31, 2030. 
 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 

 
 
  



SCHEDULE “A” TO BYLAW NO. 8881 
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FINANCIAL PLAN 

FOR THE YEARS 2021 – 2030 
 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8881 Document: 2100341-v1 

 
(1) 2021 – 2030 Financial Plan (000’s) 

 

 
 

  

For the year ended December 31 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026-2030

Revenue

Property Value Tax
General Property Tax 68,989 71,118 73,305 75,552 77,860 401,160
Levies (Storm and Eco) 3,747 4,060 4,234 4,416 4,577 25,059

Revenue from Fees and Services 38,252 40,476 42,948 45,858 48,987 284,748
Revenue from Other Sources 4,020 3,573 3,609 3,645 3,681 18,590

115,008 119,227 124,096 129,471 135,105 729,557

Transfers
Collections for Other Governments 48,449 49,418 50,406 51,414 52,442 267,455
Transfer from Reserves 73,095 199,576 57,975 51,300 40,237 186,437
Proceeds from Debt 0 0 43,000 0 0 0
External Contributions 20,451 4,127 14,402 3,622 7,736 7,339
Transfer from Capital Assets 16,800 17,136 17,479 17,829 18,186 92,750

158,795 270,257 183,262 124,165 118,601 553,981

Total Revenues 273,803 389,484 307,358 253,636 253,706 1,283,538

Expenditures

Operating Expenses
General Government 22,636 23,412 23,997 24,597 25,212 129,210
Transportation and Transit 7,244 7,425 7,611 7,801 7,996 40,980
Health, Social Services, Housing 2,834 2,904 2,977 3,051 3,127 16,025
Development Services 7,020 7,196 7,376 7,560 7,749 39,715
Protective Services 28,743 29,462 30,199 30,954 31,728 162,605
Parks, Recreation and Culture 22,777 23,347 23,931 24,529 25,142 128,855
Water 10,795 14,940 16,095 16,999 17,910 101,269
Sewer 11,090 16,626 18,927 21,543 23,873 137,554
Solid Waste 3,631 3,729 3,757 3,862 3,970 21,589

116,770 129,041 134,870 140,896 146,707 777,802

Capital Expenditures 78,900 183,087 94,053 30,789 23,333 57,603

Transfers
Collections for Other Governments 48,449 49,418 50,406 51,414 52,442 267,455
Equity 17,407 17,112 17,540 17,979 18,428 94,445
Reserves 12,277 10,826 10,489 10,779 11,017 77,338
Repayment of Debt 0 1,779 1,779 8,895

78,133 77,356 78,435 81,951 83,666 448,133

Total Expenses 273,803 389,484 307,358 253,636 253,706 1,283,538



SCHEDULE “A” TO BYLAW NO. 8881 
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FINANCIAL PLAN 

FOR THE YEARS 2021 – 2030 
 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8881 Document: 2100341-v1 

 
(2) Revenue Proportions by Funding Source  
      (Excluding Transfers from Reserves and Collections for Other Agencies) 
 

 
 
 
Background: Property Taxes are the City’s major source of revenue. The City’s reliance on 
property tax as a source of revenue has increased gradually over the past several years. This is 
partially due to the lack of access to other types of revenues.  Where feasible, the City charges 
user fees for services, however this is not possible for many services. In preparing the 2021 
Financial Plan, the City’s goal has been to maintain the current percentage of revenue coming 
from property taxes; however the City continues to rely heavily on this source of revenue to fund 
a large portion of City services and infrastructure.  
 
Policy: Under Council’s direction, the City will continue to look for ways to reduce the overall 
percentage of revenue that comes from property tax, by pursuing alternate revenue sources, and 
remains committed to charging user fees for services where feasible. 
 
 
(3) Distribution of Property Taxes among the Property Classes 
 

 
 
Background: In 2008 City Council adopted a Long Term Property Tax Strategy which will shift 
taxes from the business and light industrial tax classes, to the residential tax class. The goal of 
this policy was to move the City’s tax rates and tax rate multiples to a competitive position within 
the Metro Vancouver Region, while maintaining principles of fairness and equity. 
 
Policy: The City will continue to review the distribution of property tax among the various 
property classes and consider other measures as a gauge of success. 
  

(000's)
2021 % 2022 % 2023 % 2024 % 2025 %

Property Value Tax
General Property Tax 68,989        60 71,118      60 73,305      59 75,552      58 77,860        58
Levies (Storm and Eco) 3,746          3 4,060        3 4,234        3 4,416        3 4,577          3

Revenue from Fees 38,253        34 40,476      34 42,948      35 45,858      36 48,987        36
Revenue from other Sources 4,020          3 3,573        3 3,609        3 3,645        3 3,681          3

Total Revenues 115,008      100 119,227    100 124,096    100 129,471    100 135,105      100

2020 2021
1 Residential 56.36% 56.27%
2 Utilities 0.49% 0.55%
4 Major Industry - Capped 9.90% 10.38%
4 Major Industry - Non capped 0.62% 0.60%
5 Light Industry 0.91% 0.93%
6 Business 31.68% 31.23%
8 Recreation/Non-Profit 0.04% 0.04%

Property Class and Description Tax Allocation %



SCHEDULE “A” TO BYLAW NO. 8881 
CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER FINANCIAL PLAN 

FOR THE YEARS 2021 – 2030 
 

The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8881 Document: 2100341-v1 

 
(4) Use of Permissive Tax Exemptions 
 
Background: Council currently allows permissive tax exemptions to organizations within the City, 
based on eligibility criteria as defined under the Community Charter. This includes religious 
institutions, providers of social housing, not for profit societies and service organizations whose 
services and programs align with the City’s goals and objectives.  
 
Policy: The City has adopted a policy along with a set of criteria which are based on linking 
taxation exemptions to desired community outcomes for the services provided. All existing 
permissive tax exemptions are reviewed each year and staff will continue to work with all 
organizations who receive a Permissive Tax Exemption to ensure that their services align with 
the goals and objectives of the City. 
 
Council will continue to carefully consider the total amount of permissive exemptions granted each 
year, when reviewing the annual Property Tax Exemption bylaw, giving consideration to the equity 
of shifting the exempted tax burden to other property owners in the City. 
 



— — Ui
Department

Manager
Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
STRATEGIC & CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Heather Reinhold, Deputy Director, Strategic & Corporate Services

Subject: HARRY JEROME COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTRE - PROJECT
UPDATE & NEXT STEPS

Date: October 12,2021 File No: 02-0800-30-0028/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, dated October 12, 2021, 
entitled “Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update & Next 
Steps”:

THAT staff be authorized to advance the construction tender for the “Site 
Preparation and Excavation” scope of work for the Harry Jerome Community 
Recreation Centre project with contract award to be held until full project funding 
is in place;

THAT the funding reallocation as outlined in the report below be approved for the 
purposes of advancing the HJCRC site power modifications;

AND THAT staff report back with a Class A estimate to seek approval to advance 
the full Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre project to construction, 
inclusive of Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre, with project funding in place.

ATTACHMENTS

1. HJCRC Design Development Report March 2021 (CityDocs #2036460)
2. Construction Management Scope of Services (CityDocs #2103597)

2102912



REPORT: Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update and Next Steps
Date: October 12, 2021

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with updates on program, project 
management, schedule and costs for both the Harry Jerome Community Recreation 
Centre (HJCRC) and Silver Harbour Senior’s Activity Centre (SH) projects. A revised 
project estimate has been received and within the budget reported to Council in April 
2021. The project schedule is also on time and this report provides updates on efforts 
over the last 6 months.

Funding is requested as part of 2021 Revised Capital Plan process to advance the Site 
Preparation and Excavation tendering process in order to reduce the overall project 
schedule, mitigate the impact of construction cost escalation and minimize overall 
contractor general conditions cost. The contract award of this tender will be executed 
once full project funding is secured.

Staff will report back to Council in late February 2022 in order to seek approval for full 
project tendering and construction, once a final Class A Estimate and project funding are 
confirmed.

BACKGROUND

In April 2021, Council directed:

That staff be directed to proceed to the pre-construction phase of the Harry Jerome 
Community Recreation Centre (HJCRC) project including completion of the 
following:

• Construction documents
• Class A estimate
• Site Servicing Plan
• Construction sequencing plan

THAT staff report back with a Class A estimate and seek approval to proceed with 
tendering of the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre construction contract;

AND THAT staff be authorized to consolidate the two land parcels that make up the 
Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre lands (Parcel ID Numbers 009-034-811 
and 009-034-862)

DISCUSSION

Since April, the project has continued to advance on a number of fronts. Through spring 
and summer, the project team have continued to work with NVRC and external 
stakeholders (including the aquatics and arena groups) to implement program 
requirements at the detailed design level. Program room data sheets were developed 
through this process which will be referenced through the current contract document

Page 2 of 10



REPORT: Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update and Next Steps
Date: October 12, 2021

development stage. A separate report from North Vancouver Recreation & Culture will 
discuss the Interim Service Plan that will be in place during HJCRC construction.

As this is the largest project undertaken by the City, a multi-disciplinary, highly skilled and 
experienced team is now in place to support the project until completion. With the recent 
addition of an experienced Construction Management firm and Commissioning Authority 
the project is well-positioned to ensure that design, Construction Documentation and 
project delivery will result in a superior facility. External project management has been in 
place since March of this year providing strong organizational structure, governance and 
advice and have assisted in program development and review. The Project Management 
team provides briefing to the Executive Steering Committee on a regular basis to ensure 
the project remains on schedule and on budget.

Program

HJCRC

The new HJCRC is intended to serve all residents through a variety of services, to connect 
people and to improve the health and wellness of individuals and families. As the new 
centre will be a people-oriented gathering place, the Centre will be designed to the highest 
accessibility standards. The Centre will draw residents of all ages and abilities to explore, 
create, play, exercise, train, learn, relax, rehabilitate and connect.

The HJCRC design embodies the principles of equity, social inclusion, wellness, security, 
adaptability, environmental responsibility and fiscal responsibility. These principles are 
woven throughout the building design and construction, surrounding landscape and 
planned operation and service provision.

The premise for the design is to provide for an inclusive environment throughout the 
facility - both indoors and outdoors - where one can experience a range of activities and 
opportunities. The building and landscape spaces are flexible, allowing for adaptation to 
changing needs and enhancing the collective and individual experience.The new HJCRC 
will include a diverse indoor and outdoor program, and includes an Aquatics Centre, 
Arena, multipurpose spaces, Gymnasium, Fitness, Youth and Preschool spaces, 
Community kitchen, Art Space, Atrium & Inner Courtyard, and an extensive outdoor 
program.

Silver Harbour Senior’s Activity Centre

A significant project milestone was met in July when the membership of Silver Harbour 
Seniors Activity Centre (SH) voted in favour of relocating to the southeast corner of the 
new HJCRC site. A Memorandum of Understanding has been signed, and detailed 
discussions are ongoing to finalize an Offer to Lease and complete the design of the 
future SH facility. The new SH will be 20,680 square feet over two stories, and will include 
parking, a wood working studio, art studios, a pottery studio, a commercial kitchen, a 
billiards room, multi-purpose rooms, administration areas, a thrift store and a dining room 
and is projected to cost approximately $23.4M. Upon relocation of the SH operation, the 
existing SH site will revert to the City of North Vancouver.

Page 3 of 10



REPORT: Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update and Next Steps
Date: October 12, 2021

The two facilities (HJCRC and SH) are connected through exterior plaza and an interior 
connections in the parkade level. These connections will help to ensure there is continued 
integration between the two facilities and their programming.

Arena

Since the previous Council update, multiple meetings with the project team and arena 
stakeholders (including Wolfpack, skating, hockey and lacrosse users) have taken place 
to address concerns including the identification of space for a flexible coaches’ room, 
dressing room adjustments, and seasonal storage and branding opportunities.

Aquatics

Discussion with aquatics stakeholder groups have shaped resolution to design options. 
Numerous in-depth conversations have been held to resolve concerns; consequently, the 
current design reflects as many needs as possible while still maintaining community and 
accessibility requirements. The design has been adjusted to better accommodate to the 
extensive program while supporting competitions in a north-south orientation. The current 
design of the pool meets competitive standards, and changes to the design of the pool at 
this stage - such as a widening of the deck between the accessible ramp or a change in 
the orientation of the competition lanes - would have significant impact to both project 
cost and schedule. At present, the design considers a 5m diving platform. The project 
team anticipates developing the diving platform as a part of the overall project and 
discussions with the aquatics groups concerning fundraising for the facility are ongoing.

Public Art Process

The Public Art Plan for the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre has been 
prepared. It incorporates the overall vision for the new centre and defines themes and 
location options. The themes are:

1) celebrating Harry Jerome the athlete, his accomplishments and his perseverance;
2) honouring the Coast Salish lands; and,
3) acknowledging the natural beauty of the north shore.

The call for proposals is underway, and notes Council’s resolution of May 10, 2021 that 
staff work with the Squamish Nation for the Naming and Recognition of the HJCRC Arena 
to honour the rich and proud history of the sport of lacrosse of the Squamish Nation. A 
panel, comprised of a member of the Public Art Advisory Committee, local residents, and 
the Project staff, will select the successful artists.

Sustainability Initiative-Zero Carbon Building

One of the key goals of this project is to demonstrate leadership in building sustainable 
facilities. This goal aligns with the City’s climate action targets to achieve net zero 
emissions by 2050. A new program administered by the Canada Green Building Council 
(CaGBC) provides third-party verification of the carbon impacts of buildings for both 
Design and Performance with the goal of ensuring future operations as zero emission 
buildings. This project has chosen to pursue Design certification rather than Performance 
due to its energy source. The necessary monitoring and metering systems will be

Page 4 of 10



REPORT: Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update and Next Steps
Date: October 12, 2021

incorporated to allow for a Performance certification in the future. By meeting carbon, 
energy, impact and innovation compliance categories of compliance this facility will meet 
the Zero Carbon Building v2 Standard and be one of the first of its kind at this scale to do 
so.

The benefits of improving the building performance and reducing the carbon footprint are 
substantial. By reducing overall energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions, the 
enhanced building envelope will improve thermal comfort for the occupants, increase the 
envelope durability, and improve the building’s climate resilience in the face of extreme 
conditions over the long term.

Accessibility

Throughout the contract documents stage, particular attention is being paid on high 
accessibility standards. The design team is on track to meet the Rick Hansen Foundation 
target of Gold Certification. This certification ensures that a broad range of accessibility 
features are being incorporated at all of the different scales of the project, from large scale 
decisions around parking space allocation and pool ramp design, to small scale details 
such as visual contrast and door hardware. The design approach is not only focused on 
accommodating persons with physical disabilities, but is also focused on embracing all 
modes of universal access by designing unique spaces for all. The project team continues 
to meet with the Advisory Committee for Disability Issues (ACDI) to ensure this project 
meets this committee’s objectives as well. A design update will be provided to the ACDI 
at an upcoming meeting later in October with the opportunity to obtain further feedback 
on proposed accessibility design.

Project Status Update

While HJCRC and SH have separate scopes and project budgets, it is the intention of the 
project team to deliver both projects at the same time using the same consulting team, 
construction delivery method and trade contractors, and for this reason these projects are 
being presented together.

Construction Documentation Phase - 0-50%

On September 6, the consultant team delivered a 50% completed Construction 
Documentation (50% CD) package to the City, NVRC and our two independent cost 
organizations for design review and Class A estimate. This work has been completed and 
findings are contained in this report. The 50% CD package consists of all consulting 
disciplines detailed plans (over 400 drawings) and detailed specifications that will form 
the main part of the 45-50 tender packages that will be issued to industry through a 
competitive bidding process with the assistance of the Construction Manager.

The Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activities Centre component of the project had a slightly 
varied timeline due to the need to obtain membership approval, but the project team has 
confidence that by the 90% CD package both projects will be at the same level of detail.

Page 5 of 10



REPORT: Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update and Next Steps
Date: October 12, 2021

Engagement of Construction Manager

Smith Brothers Wilson (SBW) was engaged through a competitive process and is now 
the City’s Construction Manager for preconstruction services. The general scope of these 
services includes detailed review of drawings & specifications, identification of risk and 
mitigations, value engineering recommendations, development of site construction plan, 
a comprehensive construction and procurement schedule, and provision of cost 
estimates. A more complete list of the scope of the Construction Manager is contained in 
Attachment 2.

Updated Cost Estimates

The budget for HJCRC has been set at $181,696,000 and SH at $23,437,000.

As part of the Construction Documentation phase, updating costing is completed at the 
milestones of 50% and 90% completion. With the recent completion of the 50% package, 
two Class B estimates were obtained. These were carried out independently by a Quantity 
Surveyor as well as by the Construction Manager engaged for pre-construction services.

The two estimates vary from each other by 0.4% with the average slightly over the budget 
target. Based on the level of detail at the 50% development of Construction Drawings, 
and the consistency of the two estimates, the probability of the project meeting this target 
is very high. Therefore, the project team’s assessment of the results is that the project 
can remain within the previously identified budget.

The construction contingency remains at 5% or $7.9M, soft cost contingency at 2% or 
409k and design contingency was reduced from 5% to 2% (as the design has advanced 
to 50% CD and will be removed at time of tender). The escalation rate previously carried 
was 9.7% or $15.8M. Based on updated costs estimates, which are embedded with 
present day quotes, escalation rate can be assessed at 9.5%. The total value of project 
contingency is $27.3M. As the project approached the tender stage, there becomes more 
certainty regarding actual costs and adjustments to escalation rates and contingency will 
be made and reported to Council in late February.

Risk Mitigation

The Project team has developed a risk register that address the following types of risks: 
scope, schedule, safety, budget, escalation, site loss, quality, and communication.

Within this registry, a risk rating system is used where costs are applied to each event 
and compared against project contingencies. The risk register concludes that this 
project is meeting the budget for the following reasons:

1. Scope has been confirmed eliminating the risk for program additions;
2. Design development has advance providing certainty in costing;
3. Construction Manager engaged to reduce constructability and quality risks
4. Two firms are assessing market escalation;
5. Commissioning Authority has been engaged to reduce operational risk;
6. SH decision in place which reduces any further schedule risk; and,

Page 6 of 10



REPORT: Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update and Next Steps
Date: October 12, 2021

7. A communication sub-committee has been established to assist in timely 
messaging to the community.

NVRC Interim Services at Centennial Theatre

The current HJ site is powered through one BC Hydro service that feeds Centennial 
Theatre located on the future Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre. The planned 
demolition of HJ in early 2022 will result in Centennial Theatre without a power 
connection, triggering the need for a temporary power solution until the installation of the 
permanent power infrastructure late in construction of the new HJCRC. CNV’s project 
team will manage this temporary power connection work, utilizing reallocated funding 
from NVRC capital projects as recommended in the Financial Implications section of this 
report.

Communications Plan

Regular updates on the HJCRC and SH projects will be provided to Council and the public 
going forward. With commencement of construction, Council will receive regular monthly 
reports, including progress to date, planned activities, project schedule, budget summary, 
and risks. To ensure transparency for the project, monthly reports will also be posted to 
an updated HJCRC project website for the public.

Next Steps

The HJCRC project is on schedule for construction to commence in March 2022. The 
project team is working to advance elements of the project ahead of the targeted drawing 
completion date (late February 2022) to reduce startup costs and hasten the schedule 
which in turn reduces cost and risk. As indicated in the schedule below, two tender 
packages are proposed to proceed prior to the February milestone: Offsite utility upgrades 
on 23rd Street and Site preparation; Clearing; Grubbing; and Excavation. These 
components are described in more detail below.

Advancing the two tenders will enable the project to mobilize works for the new HJCRC 
while the main construction tender packages are being bid on. This allows activity to begin 
onsite and lessen the traffic conflict between onsite work, underground utility work and 
the public.

Page 7 of 10



REPORT: Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update and Next Steps
Date: October 12, 2021

30-Sep

Existing HJCRC Project Schedule

Project Phases 2022 2023 2024 2025
Design and Tendering Sept !Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug...

Construction Documents !

Cost Estimate 50% CD Sept 6
Building permit Application is made Nov. 30 & partial BP issued Jan 5 i ☆

Cost Estimate 90% CD & ,
i

Council Meeting- Approval to proceed to construction Feb. 28 >

Construction

HJRC is closed Dec 31 building is empty on Jan 31 i 'v r
Clearing and Grubbing, excavation i

Final BP issued July 1 f
i

Tendering Main Building, negotiations and awards [
i

Main Building j

FF8«E, Commissioning i ★
Occupancy i ★
Move-in j ★

Construction Documentation Phase

The Construction Document phase will continue to 90% completion at which time another 
costing review will take place and any further adjustments will be made to ensure the 
project remains on budget. Upon confirmation by the two cost estimating parties that the 
project is on target to meet the budgets, the drawings will be submitted for building permit 
and the remainder of the construction specifications and drawings will be completed.

Advanced Underground Utility Upgrades - East 23rd Street

The City and the neighbouring HJNL project have worked together to define the 
necessary underground utilities that need to be replaced because they are at the end of 
life or required upgrading to provide capacity for the development of the lands. The utility 
upgrades include replacement of the water main, as well as sanitary and storm sewers. 
This work is funded and being tendered, with construction anticipated to begin in late 
2021. There will be subsequent utility work for BC Hydro, Street Lighting & Signaling, LEG 
and Shaw cable. It is planned that construction on East 23rd Street will occur in the future. 
This work is being completed in advance to strive for minimal impact to future on-site 
construction activities and road closures.

Site Preparation and Excavation Scope of Work

This phase of the project includes site preparation, clearing, demolition of existing 
infrastructure, removal of the parking lot and skateboard park and site construction 
preparation. The HJCRC construction program will begin with excavation of the west side 
of the site and progress to the east with concrete footings, foundation walls and 
underground utilities activities taking place as room on the site permits. Construction 
phasing will continue to maximize efficiency of the schedule to minimize the impact of 
onsite construction costs.

Page 8 of 10



REPORT: Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update and Next Steps
Date: October 12, 2021

Commencement of Construction

Prior to commencement of full construction, the project team will finalize the Construction 
Documents and obtain two independent Class A estimates. At that time, Council will be 
provided a comprehensive update and a request for approval to proceed. The project will 
then be tendered, awarded and construction will commence.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The budget for HJCRC remains at $181,696,000 and SH at $23,437,000.

2021 Revised Budget Request

Funding as noted below is being requested to enable advancement of the Site 
Preparation and Excavation tendering process to shorten the project schedule, as well as 
to reduce escalation and general conditions cost. The contract relating to this tender will 
not, however, be awarded until full project funding is in place.

Flarry Jerome Community Recreation Centre $7,650,400 
Silver Harbour Seniors Activity Center $380,000

Council approval will be sought in late February 2022 to advance full tendering and 
construction funding based on a Class A cost estimate.

Interim Service Plan - Reallocation of funding

As noted in this report, in order to maintain operations at Centennial Theatre, 
modifications must be made to ensure continued power for Centennial Theatre. This 
work will be conducted by the CNV project team, utilizing reallocated funding from 
completed or cancelled NVRC capital projects as noted below. The recommended 
resolution included in this report will provide the authority required to transfer the funding 
to this new project.

Table 1: Funding to be transferred from:
NVRCC Fibre Net Connect HJ&CT (Project 40346) $35,000
2019 NVRCC Equipment (Project 40372) $30,000
NVRCC Buildings 2018 (Project 45272) $155,026
NVRCC John Braithwaite Rec Centre (Project 45285) $37,101
NVRCC Facility Access Control (Project 45290) $60,000
2020 NVRCC - HJ Major Repairs (Project 45313) $21,045
Total: $338,172

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
Project coordination and input has been undertaken with every City department, LEC and 
staff from the North Vancouver Recreation and Culture Commission. This report has been 
developed in consultation with Finance and NVRC.

Page 9 of 10



REPORT: Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre - Project Update and Next Steps
Date: October 12, 2021

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCR OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The replacement of HJCRC will contribute to health and wellness opportunities within our 
community, inspiring residents to be active and connected to their community throughout 
their life.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Heather Reinhold
Deputy Director, Strategic & Corporate 
Services

Page 10 of 10



HARRY JEROME COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTRE
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT REPORT
Issued  |  March 2021

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



"This project will dramatically impact our 
community for the good. I fully support this 
project and can't wait for it to open!"

Community Member
Community & Stakeholder Engagement



3

Table of Contents

Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s

1.0 Executive Summary 5
1.0 Executive Summary 6

2.0 Project Background  9
2.1 Site Analysis 10

3.0 Design Response 19
3.1 The Vision 20

3.2 Form & Character 24

3.3 Spatial Layout 26

3.4 Materials 32

3.5 Concept Renders 34

3.6 Landscape Design 44

3.7 Sustainability 48

3.8 Cost Analysis 53

3.9 Project Schedule 54

4.0 Next Steps 57
4.0 Next Steps 58



ELECTRICAL CIVIL

4

PROJECT CONSULTANTS

S
ec

tio
n 

Ti
tle

ARCHITECTURAL LANDSCAPE

STRUCTURAL MECHANICAL

ACOUSTIC QUANTITY SURVEYOR

SKATE PLAZA CODE



5

1.0 Executive Summary



6

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
S

um
m

ar
y

The City of North Vancouver engaged HCMA Architecture + Design to revise the design for a new Harry Jerome 

Community Recreation Centre (“HJCRC”) which is intended to replace the City’s existing recreation facility. The new 

HJCRC will be constructed on the site located north of East 23rd Street between Lonsdale Avenue and St. Georges 

Avenue. The Centre is intended to be a focal point for the community; where residents and visitors of all ages and 

backgrounds come together to connect, experience, play, learn, socialize and celebrate.

In 2019, the City of North Vancouver underwent a community recreation needs assessment and developed a community 

recreation strategy entitled “A Healthy City for All – The Role of Community Recreation”. With this new prioritization 

framework in place, program components of the Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre were reviewed and 

prioritized. In March 2020, Council endorsed a reduced project scope that aligned with the Needs Assessment.

This report documents the re-design process that was completed between April 2020 to March 2021 in response to 

the revised project scope. Biweekly project development team meetings that included the design consultant group and 

staff representatives from various departments within the City and NVRCC. Beyond this working group, stakeholder and 

advisory group engagement was employed to enhance the quality of the design solution. This engagement provided 

feedback that helped establish the character of the building as well as its relationship to adjacent open space and 

surrounding neighborhood. Careful consideration was given to re-plan the site and find design efficiencies for the 

endorsed reductions in project scope.

1.0 Executive Summary



7

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
S

um
m

ar
y

As part of the design process, the project vision statement and principles were revised to closer align to the city’s 

updated values outlined in the recreation strategy. The vision, principles, goals and strategies continue to define the 

project brief and be used to guide decision making throughout the project.

"The Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre will be a welcoming, vibrant, 

social heart of the community.

It will foster individual and collective wellness by providing opportunities to 

participate in a variety of organized and casual activities.

The centre will empower community members to enjoy healthy, active, and 

connected lives."

THE VISION

The selected site for the new HJCRC faced numerous constraints including a 10m grade change across the site, a large 

building program that fills most of the site, and limited options for vehicular site access. Following an extensive test-fit 

exercise, a building massing solution was agreed upon that had the greatest potential to achieve our project vision. This 

massing option was selected due to the following advantages:

• Integrated green space throughout building

• Create programmed outdoor spaces in south and east portions of the site

• Large animated daylit circulation space and opportunities for in-between spaces

• Views to green courtyards from programmed space

• Aquatics prominence on Lonsdale

ST. GEORGES AVE

23
 S

T 
EAS

T

22
 S

T 
EA

ST

Lonsdale Ave.

Trans Canada Highway NORTH VANCOUVER
PROVINCIAL COURTS

CENTENNIAL
THEATRE

SKATE PARK

CHEVRON
GAS STATION

CRICKMAY
PARK

EXISTING HARRY JEROME
COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTRE

NORTH SHORE
ALLIANCE CHURCH

EXISTING MEMORIAL
COMMUNITY
RECREATION CENTRE

EXISTING
SILVER
HARBOUR
CENTRE



8

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
S

um
m

ar
y

A number of key design strategies were used to help the 

facility be a good neighbor and responsive to its context 

while creating a welcoming and vibrant heart for the 

community. The key strategy was in breaking apart the 

massive building footprint and allowing nature, light and 

casual activity to occur in the heart of the facility. This 

strategy also helped to:

• Break down massing to establish 

neighborhood scale on 23rd St.

• Establish key social spaces as anchors

• Maximize indoor – outdoor connections

The building will also have a significant impact in the 

City’s climate action plan as the existing Harry Jerome 

Recreation Centre is the largest contributor to the City’s 

greenhouse gas emissions footprint. The new HJCRC 

design will reduce the carbon intensity of the project 

by approximately 81% compared to the existing facility 

and achieve a Total Energy Use Intensity 49% better 

than NECB 2015 baseline. Other sustainable efforts 

include maximizing heat recovery on-site through C02 

refrigeration, highly insulated building envelope, extensive 

natural daylight, innovative low energy pool filtration 

system and electric vehicle and bike charging. 

CAPITAL COSTING ANALYSIS

It is anticipated that the total project capital costs for 

the HJCRC will be approximately $181.7 million based 

on a Class B cost estimate conducted in March 2021. 

The cost estimates have allowed for $14.3million in 

contingencies and $14.4 million in escalation. The 

project cost does not include the Silver Harbour Seniors’ 

Activity Centre component which is yet to be confirmed 

– in progress.

NEXT STEPS

The next stage in this process would see the project 

through detailed design and into construction. We would 

recommend considering hiring a construction manager 

at this point if it is the preferred construction delivery 

method.

NATATORIUM

FITNESS

ARENA

GYMNASIUM

MPR

SILVER

HARBOUR

LONSDALE AVE.

ST. GEORGES AVE.TRANS. CANADA HWY

23 STREET

SKATE PARK

PLAZA

TRANS. CANADA HWY
SKATE PARK

PLAZA

23 STREET

LONSDALE AVE.

ST. GEORGES AVE.

VIEWS TO MOUNTAINS

LONSDALE AVE.

ST. GEORGES AVE.

23 STREET

LONSDALE AVE.

ST. GEORGES AVE.TRANS. CANADA HWY

23 STREET

SKATE PARK

PLAZA



9

2.0 Project Background 
2.1 Site Analysis    



10

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

2.1 Site Analysis
2.1.1 Regional Scale 

The selected site for the project is located in North Vancouver near the Upper Levels Highway, north of 23rd Street E 

between Lonsdale Avenue and St. Georges Avenue. It is situated on a prominent corner of upper Lonsdale that acts as a 

gateway to the City. The site is uniquely located almost directly in the middle between North Vancouver’s mountains and 

ocean. This defining location and context is well positioned to provide a meaningful and connected facility that bolsters a 

sense of place. The site also offers a key landmark to the city’s proposed urban greenway that encircles the urban centre 

of the City (Green Necklace).



11

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

city
of norths 
Vancouver

%■

\ 3

%
nmi
\xvv.

nm*
mu■ iiii, Ki

' V

BR'-ffraHk

igpliil^k.
iplSlgliil^^Z*

V:r

1 a\ I ■■

\Ejhz
J

SI\«»aSsm^m ■

■) irp -jis a
■X^® L,,S

fmsmTHgFgg. • .w ,-l
I / AfB

>
-■■v-.

t. \ * w 1.1^: r> J /w v, ^ , kuri.m jJmt\

3BiB yin ^i'-’

s»
’ r . if o5f



12

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

2.1.2 Site Scale

ST. GEORGES AVE

23
 S

T 
EAS

T

22
 S

T 
EA

ST

Lonsdale Ave.

Trans Canada Highway NORTH VANCOUVER
PROVINCIAL COURTS

CENTENNIAL
THEATRE

SKATE PARK

CHEVRON
GAS STATION

CRICKMAY
PARK

EXISTING HARRY JEROME
COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTRE

NORTH SHORE
ALLIANCE CHURCH

EXISTING MEMORIAL
COMMUNITY
RECREATION CENTRE

EXISTING
SILVER
HARBOUR
CENTRE

 c Site context diagram

South of the site is the existing HJCRC, which is intended to be demolished and commercial and residential 

development to take its place. This future development is called the Harry Jerome Neighborhood Lands (HJNL) and 

includes an expansive new public park of approximately 1.0 ha that builds on the existing Crickmay park. The proposed 

development provides a mix of housing types, commercial space, and additional amenities.

Public transit to the site is frequent along Lonsdale Avenue with the nearest bus stop locations south of 23rd Street E on 

either side of Lonsdale Avenue. Vehicular site access is challenging with the proximity of the Upper Levels Highway to 

the north, a major arterial road to the west and two minor arterial roads on the south and east.

The project location shares a site with the Centennial Theatre and City Skate Park and therefore needs to function jointly 

with them. The skate park will be reconfigured and incorporated into the new community recreation centre design. The 

theatre will remain and should be welcomed and celebrated in the layout of the new HJCRC facility.  



13

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

SUN ANALYSIS

TOPOGRAPHY ANALYSIS

SHADOW ANALYSIS

WIND ANALYSIS

This shows the orientation of the sun between sun rise 

and sun set throughout the year. In the winter the sun is 

as low as 35 degrees and in the summer as high as 72 

degrees.

Site topography shows a 10m grade change from north-

east to southwest. This site topography will impact the 

wind patterns as well as rainwater management.

Annual shading analysis shows how surrounding pro-

posed buildings will impact the sun reaching our site 

at ground level. The northern part of the site remains 

in direct sun light continually while the southern part is 

shaded.

Annual wind analysis shows the prevailing winds coming 

from the east while occasionally a strong wind from the 

west will occur.



14

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

2.1.3 Views

Given the terrain of the North Shore, the project site 

offers views both towards the mountains and the ocean. 

Capitalizing on these views from our site will reinforce a 

sense of place and enhance wellness for visitors to the 

community recreation centre. 

Using drone imagery, we were able to establish actual 

views from each floor level of the proposed community 

recreation centre. These drone images informed key 

spatial planning decisions to capitalize on views from 

various points throughout the building and site. 



15

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

D I
SC

OV
ER

 Y
OU

R PA
TH TO WELLNESS AT THE NEW

 HJCRC

LIONS

CYPRESS

N

GROUSE
FROMME

BURRARD INLET/
VANCOUVER ISLAND

SHIPPING
CRANES

S



16

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

2.1.4 Site Constraints

2.1.4.1 PROGRAM AREA AND VOLUME 

With a large facility program area, and many programs requiring high ceiling heights (e.g.: aquatic centre, gymnasium, 

and arena), the available site area is nearly fully covered by building. Strategic location and stacking of large program 

components require exploration to create opportunities for outdoor activities and landscaping.

2.1.4.2 ENTRANCES + ACCESS 

While the proximity to major transportation thoroughfares provides opportunities for multiple modes of transit, the 

adjacency to the Upper Levels Highway and Lonsdale avenue restrict the direct access to the site from these busy 

roadways. Available area for vehicular access onto the site remain only along the south property line (23rd Street E), 

including a lay-by and pedestrian crossing. 

2.1.4.3 SITE TOPOGRAPHY

Located on a slope midway between ocean and mountain, the site presents a greater than 10m grade change from 

south-west to north-east. With site access available from the south and east edges of the site, building entrance and 

floor levels must respond in relation to the adjacent grades. Program components with high ceiling requirements 

will require strategic location within the site to maintain an appropriate relationship with the scale of the surrounding 

neighbourhood.

2.1.4.4 LOT CONSOLIDATION & VARIANCES 

The Centennial Theatre and Norseman Park lots are planned to be consolidated into one combined property that 

holds Centennial Theatre, Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre and Silver Harbour Senior's Activity Centre. 

Concurrently, a rezoning application is underway for variances to lower staff secure bike parking requirements to reflect 

the number of facility staff; increase the allowable secure bikes per room; increase the allowable distance between 

short-term bike parking and the principle entrance; reduced setbacks on the north and west sides of the property; and 

increase the allowable lot coverage to accommodate the three facilities on one consolidated lot.



17

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

+ 10.25m

+ 4.5m

+ 0m

+ 5.5m

Permitted vehicle access

SH

5

1

2

3

10

5

8 8
7

6

6

4

9

1

TRANS. CANADA HWY

Existing theatre to remain

Permitted vehicle access

LONSDALE AVE.

N



18

P
ro

je
ct

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d

city
of norths
Vancouver



19

3.0 Design Response
3.1 The Vision 

3.2 Form & Character 

3.3 Spatial Layout

3.4 Materials

3.5 Concept Renders

3.6 Landscape Design 

3.7 Sustainability

3.8 Cost Analysis



20

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

3.1 The Vision
“The Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre will be a welcoming, vibrant, 
social heart of the community.

It will foster individual and collective wellness by providing opportunities to 
participate in a variety of organized and casual activities.

The centre will empower community members to enjoy healthy, active, and 
connected lives.”

VISION STRUCTURE
The project vision was formulated through the exploration 

of three components: Social Impact, Environmental 

Sustainability, and Programming, including consideration 

of the project’s financial parameters. 

The purpose of the vision statement and development 

of principles and goals is to set the over arching project 

direction and intent, which can then be used to guide 

future decision making. Listed below are explanations of 

the terms we use in this section of the report:

• Vision: the role of the vision statement is to 

declare the HJCRC’s purpose and aspirations. 

It informs the supporting principles, goals and 

strategies.

• Principle: a high level aspiration or value 

which can guide and inspire goals, strategies 

and actions across spectrum of policies, 

designs or actions.

• Goal: a general or specific desired outcome 

associated with principles

• Design Strategy: a container for a set of 

actions intended to fulfill stated goals

Social 
Impact

VisionVision

PrinciplesPrinciples

04 0502 0301

GoalsGoals
Programming 
Requirements

Sustainability
Objectives

Design StrategiesDesign Strategies

04 0502 03 06

Site, spatial relationships, form and character

01 07



Responsive to evolving community needs 
which creatively shape a broad range of 
recreation and cultural activities.

Supportive of individual and 
community wellness through 
physical, social, and creative 
pursuits. A connection to the 
natural environment is deeply 
valued in achieving this.

An inclusive place that draws people 
together and fosters strong social 
connections between the diverse 
communities of North Vancouver.

A welcoming and safe 
environment that clearly 
communicates it’s okay 
to be who you are, and 
promotes ease of use.

Responsible to the
City’s financial outlook
and economic conditions
by designing within 
its boundaries.

Equity

Social
Inclusion

Secure

Wellness

Environmental
Sustainability

Adaptable

04

05

02

03

Accessible to all, with freedom and 
opportunity to participate in a variety 
of casual and structured activities.

01

Principles

THE HARRY JEROME COMMUNITY RECREATION 
CENTRE WILL BE...

A global example of social and 
environmental sustainability 
and resilience.

06

07

Financially
Responsible



22

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

How can we realize this vision? By working towards 4 key goals.  
These goals can be assigned with associated metrics that can later  
be used to measure success.

GOAL 1
Empower community members 

to enjoy healthy, active, and 

connect lives

The design of the new HJCRC will foster a vibrant sense 

of place and community that will continue to strengthen 

over time. Its design will attract and welcome people, and 

support positive individual and shared experiences.

Themes for assessment metrics:

Sense of place and belonging

Social and cultural life

Connectivity and imageability

The new HJCRC will embody the full spectrum of 

recreation by creating a variety of dynamic spaces that 

actively support expanding notions of physical, mental, 

and social wellness. It will promote progressive synergies 

between recreational, cultural, and intergenerational 

uses to support lifelong discovery and development. The 

sum will be greater than its parts.

Themes for assessment metrics:

Social and cultural life

Personal development and enjoyment

Access, health, and safety

GOAL 2
Redefine perception of recreation 

to promote wellness in the 

community

GOAL 3
Provide for diverse users now 

and in the future

The new HJCRC will promote access and belonging 

for all. It will creatively respond to community needs as 

they evolve through adaptable and innovative design and 

governance.

Themes for assessment metrics:

Community resilience

Sense of place and belonging

Access, health, and safety

GOAL 4
Support the city's climate action  

plan targets

The City’s 2011 Corporate Climate Action Plan set a 

target of a 25% reduction below 2007 levels by 2020. 

As the existing HJCRC accounts for 27% of the City’s 

overall corporate greenhouse gas emissions, there is an 

opportunity to demonstrate leadership and significantly 

reduce corporate GHG emissions. The redevelopment 

of HJCRC has long been a key component of the City’s 

corporate Climate Action Plan.

Themes for assessment metrics:

Refer to the Sustainability Report in appendix 6.6. 

GoalsGoals



23

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

These goals will be achieved through a variety of strategies which will directly 
be used to guide the design. 

Design StrategiesDesign Strategies

Design in features for delight and celebration of community identity and unique setting.02

Create a welcoming and animated arrival space.01

03 Ensure access for all through safe arrival, variety of seating, legibility of space and circulation, and ease of use.

Create spaces of a variety of scales and openness for user comfort.05

Strong visual and physical connections both within the facility and to the wider community.04

06 Create flexible and adaptable spaces that promote a range of both specific and broad 

programming as well as informal, temporary, and formal uses.

07 Connect to and integrate outdoors (build on the unique North Vancouver identity and 

express through physical form).

Use materials and technology that contribute to a positive experience for all.09

Enhance and connect to urban fabric.08



24

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

3.2 Form & Character
3.2.1    Building Massing

A number of key design strategies were used to help the facility be a good neighbour and responsive to its context 

while creating a welcoming and vibrant heart for the community. The key strategy was in locating the multiple program 

components around a central courtyard to allow for nature, light, and casual activity to connect all users of the facility.

 

TRANS. CANADA HWY
SKATE PARK

PLAZA

23 STREET

LONSDALE AVE.

ST. GEORGES AVE.

NATATORIUM

FITNESS

ARENA

GYMNASIUM

MPR

SILVER

HARBOUR

LONSDALE AVE.

ST. GEORGES AVE.TRANS. CANADA HWY

23 STREET

SKATE PARK

PLAZA

STEP 2

• Upper massing is broken 

to allow views, daylight, and 

natural ventilation

• Establish outdoor recreation 

zone facing St. Georges Ave

• Respect the existing and 

future connection points to 

Centennial Theatre (users 

and loading) efficiency

STEP 1

• Base massing is 

embedded into the 

site, accommodating 

a majority of the large 

program elements as 

an extension of the 

landscape 

• Locate large program 

areas next to highway 

and larger blank walls 

next to steep slopes

• Locate smaller 

program areas next to 

residential zone of 23rd 

Street E



25

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

LONSDALE AVE.

ST. GEORGES AVE.TRANS. CANADA HWY

23 STREET

SKATE PARK

PLAZA

VIEWS TO MOUNTAINS

LONSDALE AVE.

ST. GEORGES AVE.

23 STREET

STEP 3

• Establish visual 

connections to 

mountains

STEP 4

• Maximize transparency 

and indoor/outdoor 

connection between 

civic plaza, atrium, and 

courtyard

• Establish civic plaza 

facing 23rd Street E 

with connections to the 

Green Necklace



26

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

3.3 Spatial Layout
3.3.1   Design Response

The intention is to create a new community hub that builds on the success 
of the existing community recreation centre by relocating, expanding, and 
upgrading the current amenities.  

The community recreation centre’s main entrance, 

landscaped plaza, and primary pedestrian site access 

is off 23rd Street E. The plaza also connects with the 

existing Centennial Theatre to create a new, shared 

public space.

As a result, the larger program components have 

been sited along the northern edge of the site next to 

the Highway and the smaller, more modular program 

components have been located to the south where 

a finer grain is required to respond to surrounding 

residential neighbourhood.

One level of vehicle parking is located below grade at 

Level -1. The parkade is accessed off 23rd Street E and 

has an internal connection up into the main lobby of the 

facility. The parking level also serves Centennial Theatre 

and provides an accessible and friendly route for patrons 

to walk to the entrance of the theatre.

 
3.3.2.1 BUILDING ORGANIZATION

The building is organized over 3 levels which include: 

• Level -1: Below ground

• Level 1: Partially below ground

• Level 2: Above ground

The building program is organized across the levels as 

follows:

• Level -1: Parkade and Op’s & Maintenance

• Level 1: Aquatics Centre, Arena, Gymnasium, 

Multi-Purpose Areas, Arts Studio, and Seniors’ 

Centre

• Level 2: Fitness Centre, Multi-Purpose Areas, 

Staff, Children’s Areas, Youth Centre, and 

Seniors’ Centre

3.3.2.2 CENTRAL PLAZA, ATRIUM, AND INTERIOR 
COURTYARD

The plaza, atrium and interior courtyard, which represent 

the organizing structure for the building, sets out an 

intuitive wayfinding and orientation experience for 

HJCRC.  The main atrium is the social heart of the 

centre, providing a welcoming reception area and 

opportunities for spontaneous and programmed activities 

and celebrations both indoor and outdoor. Whether you 

arrive by car, bike, foot or slide, you enter into the main 

atrium. The interior courtyard, connected to the main 

atrium, allows for views throughout the centre, connects 

users to a variety of activities, allows for fresh air and 

supports spontaneous informal activities. 

3.3.2 Plan Layout



27

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Level -1 Plan

 c Level 1 Plan

city
of norths 
Vancouver

\
n.i(

flTTIZ 1.1 I t t.LI

_ _ LRn-id :r
.B

I

I fiSF p-f ■B ‘ II i n a -• mjrrr, ..........< _ . I Social + Circulation
Cafe
Arena
Staff
Circulation core 
Youth

■

.aj■ 1r I Arts/
Aquatics 

A Fitness 
^ Multipurpose 
A Silver Harbour 
^ Gymnasium 
^ Children's Area 
A Service 
A Building Entrance 

Pedestrian route 
Vehicle route

MM i\Bl ' &-1 B
i

CJ__

---
\

ITT

Oh
0 rfoTr ■l  #.. -mE <$> II Ly

rs

I: | H _ _V ( RO3 ! i 1
:'|

:%Qi .
K

«•11i IB T S i1
t'1" .1 ESI | Social + Circulation 

Cafe 
^ Arena 
0 Staff
^ Circulation core 
^ Youth

Arts
^ Aquatics 

Fitness
^ Multipurpose 
^ Silver Harbour 
^ Gymnasium 
^ Children's Area 

Service
A Building Entrance 

Pedestrian route 
Vehicle route

j iiw 
. Bl *v

jHru LI I >I ::::f.. </ A4

K< 8/

ys BI D « o W
—. —i

F



28

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Level 2 Plan

city
of norths
Vancouver

.1

- - - r
\mm ),/■ J [si1 A %r:3vr

©Vm o____1
■(T^. EX

;-1 i&SB ; J </*L L iN' - x1 wk r
pfStT^fca'C
fmx 
rRi®

bjoS-0 >< D-^a
i W** -- * \f 1

■i HlLJj
rr

WHOM'.
j o

Social + Circulation 
Cafe 
Arena 

# Staff
Circulation core
Youth
Arts

, | Aquatics 
E) Fitness 
A Multipurpose 

Silver Harbour 
M Gymnasium 
i ) Children’s Area 

Service
A Building Entranoe 

Pedestrian route 
Vehicle route

I «|
I

EuV' —
\i

I j

i

|

id'---1
rmk Ay ao h O

gc Eg  ■ - m■4
I-----------

HZ—



29

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

3.3.2.3 CONTROL POINTS

The main reception desk is located in the atrium 

to directly observe the main entrance, atrium, and 

concession areas. Reception also has sight lines to the 

associated elevator and internal circulation bounding the 

courtyard that connects to the aquatic centre, skate shop, 

and gymnasium. The formal control point (controlling 

paid versus non-paid access) is situated further inwards 

of the building, adjacent to the aquatics change rooms, 

and is assisted by various control turnstiles throughout 

the building to allow as much public (non-paid) access to 

building areas as possible.  

3.3.2.4 BUILDING ACCESS & USER 
CIRCULATION

The colour-coded plan illustrates the building layout 

and spatial relationships between the different program 

components. Open circulation has been consolidated into 

the casual programming zones which primarily surround 

the courtyard. Stairs and elevator cores are located in 

these zones to connect the building levels. 

At Level 1, circulation is accessed from the landscaped 

plaza via the entrance atrium. The atrium connects to 

both the internal circulation and the Level -1 parkade 

where there is a dedicated drop off zone. North of 

the lobby is a circulation route that encompasses 

the courtyard, leading to Aquatics, Fitness, Arena, 

Gymnasium, Multi-purpose Areas, and Art Studio. Access 

to paid-only areas is restricted via a control desk or 

turnstiles.

At Level 2, a secondary entrance from the east connects 

into the Youth Centre, Children’s Areas, and Multipurpose 

Areas. An open stair, slide, and elevator core connects to 

Level 1 to access the remainder of facility.

3.3.2.5 ORGANIZED AND CASUAL 
PROGRAMMING, OUTDOOR SPACE

The building plan has been organized into three 

zones which include: organized programming, casual 

programming, and outdoor space.

Organized programming consists of the components 

of the building area program which includes an aquatic 

centre, fitness centre, arena, gymnasium, seniors’ centre, 

and rooms for various community programs. 

The casual programming zones have been designed 

as an intermediate space between outdoor and 

indoor activity, and the concept of the space is deeply 

embedded in the project Vision and Principles (see 

subsection 3.1 The Vision). These zones provide 

circulation, informal social and recreation space, areas 

for spectator viewing, and facilitate active surveillance 

throughout the Recreation Centre.

At the center of the site is the outdoor space which 

is accessible to all and forms the heart of the facility. 

The outdoor space connects and adds to the casual 

programming zones, defines the building mass, and 

brings natural daylight, nature, and views into the centre 

of the building.

3.3.2.6 LEVEL DIFFERENTIAL

Due to existing site levels, grade increases from the 

base of plaza steps to the property line at the north-east 

corner of the site along St. Georges Avenue and the 

Highway (refer to subsection 2.2.4 Site Constraints). This 

level differential allows access into the building multiple 

levels.

The level change between the SW and NE corners 

of the site is accommodated between the Recreation 

Centre and Seniors’ Centre where grade is softened 

with planting and stepped paving. This change in level 

creates two entrances on two levels: a primary entrance 

off the plaza at 23rd Street E and a secondary entrance 

facing east towards St. Georges Avenue. Both entrances 

provide universal access to the building and outdoor 

in-between spaces. In addition, this level differential 

allows the parkade and service cores at Level -1 to be 

concealed underground.  

Large, high ceiling program components are embedded 

into grade moving towards the north of the site. This 

helps to reduce the physical and visual impact of large 

program volumes and solid frontage. 

 



30

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c In-between/Social Spaces
• The Gathering Place – large scale space for community gathering and social events
• The Loop – 110m interior walking loop with resting benches around the courtyard
• The Retreat – multi-purpose space with quiet acoustic treatment providing sensory retreat
• The Launchpad – staging area for public skates and space for quieter study and reading
• The Rec Room – hang out area next to the Gymnasium with space for table tennis and foosball
• The Landing zone – touchdown space for the slide that connects the children’s programming on 

Level 2 with the ground floor
• The Perch – overlook with soft furniture for lounging, people watching and for kids to run around 

and blow off some steam
• The Bay – quiet window seats for resting, reading or chats with a friend



31

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

3.3.2.7 SITE ACCESS

The proximity of the site to the major transportation 

thoroughfares of the Upper Levels Highway and 

Lonsdale Avenue restricts direct access into the site 

(refer to subsection 2.2.4 Site Constraints). 

The design of 23rd Street E (between Lonsdale and 

St. George’s) enhances the pedestrian scale of the 

streetscape, integrate the Green Necklace, and facilitates 

both the single entrance to the HJCRC parkade and the 

shared loading with Centennial Theatre.

The Green Necklace has been integrated as a key 

feature, designed as separated pedestrian and cycling 

paths integrated with the signalized mid-block crossing. 

The mid-block crossing has been designed with 

consideration of pedestrian safety, vehicular queuing, 

intersection functionality as well as creating a clear and 

legible connection between the parkland to the south of 

23rd Street E and the front entrance to the new HJCRC.

3.3.2.8 VIEWS

The building has been designed to maximize views 

towards outwards and in between program spaces. 

Externally, the arrangement and orientation of spatial 

volumes allow views towards mountains to the north and 

through the courtyard. 

Internally, the casual programming zones and courtyard 

are highly glazed to maximize visual connections.  At 

each level, these zones provide spectator or casual 

viewing into main program areas; allowing users to 

connect with the activity and function of the building. 

3.3.2.9 OPERATIONS

The Operations and Management (O&M) facility is 

located at Level -1 in the SW corner (behind the theatre) 

and is accessed via a vehicular or pedestrian route off 

23rd Street or from inside the parkade.

The O&M facility houses the loading dock, maintenance 

storage, garbage storage, workshop, and staff offices. 

Adjacent to the O&M facility is pool mechanical and 

the parkade, with various service cores distributed 

throughout linking Levels 1 and 2. In addition to this, 

there is a dedicated refrigeration, mechanical, and 

electrical core for the Ice Arena on Level 1. 

For significant repairs and replacement, access to service 

cores can be gained via the Level -1 parkade or from 

a restricted loading area off the highway on-ramp. This 

restricted loading area also serves as an exit route for 

the ice resurfacer. 

3.3.2.10 CENTENNIAL THEATRE

Integration with the existing Centennial Theatre has 

been an integral part of the design process as it both 

neighbours the development site and shares car parking 

facilities with the Recreation Centre.  At level 1, the 

theatre connects directly to the proposed plaza, providing 

shared outdoor space with the community facility. Directly 

off the plaza is a dedicated stair and elevator core that 

links to Level -1 of the shared parkade.



32

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

3.4 Materials
Materiality has been chosen in relation to the following parameters:

• Visual appearance

• Contextual appropriateness

• Durability & maintenance

• Cost efficiency

The building envelope consists of: Concrete block cladding, corrugated metal cladding, clear glazing, obscured glazing 

(whether 3D such as OkaTech or 2D frit), and wood structure & soffits.

Concrete block, as a natural and heavy element, is established as the cladding material for spaces submerged into the 

sloping landscape. These spaces are typically on lower floors, require less daylight, or encompass mechanical rooms. 

Concrete block is a durable and cost-efficient product with a texture suitable to its natural context.

Above the concrete base, cladding material transitions into crisp, rectangular forms of corrugated metal and vertical 

glazed curtain wall; volumes perched lightly and individually shifting off its base below. Curtain wall glass was used 

strategically throughout the facility to concentrate its use where most impactful to achieve the desired quality of light 

and transparency (overall glazing is 41%). More glass was used in gathering spaces with indoor-outdoor connections 

while reduced on the blank walls of large 2 storey components. Intentional use of obscured glazing further filters each 

programs’ exposure to light and exterior views during the day, while reversing its expression as a glowing beacon of light 

during the night.

The atrium roof features an exposed wood structure with full-height curtain wall encompassing its space and adjacent 

casual programming zones below, maximizing visibility into social spaces to create visual connections between program 

areas. Additionally, the underside of cantilevered forms is clad with a wood soffit; this warmer material complementing the 

landscape design and links to a community characterized by its natural environment.



33

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

1

5 6

2 3 4

LEGEND

1 Concrete Block

2 Corrugated Metal

3 Glass

4 Obscured Glass

5 Wood

6 Nature

3 4 25 6 1



34

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Concept Render - Exterior view from 23rd Street E 

VIEW KEY

The following concept renders show key views of the proposed HJCRC. 

Crossing 23rd Street E, you can see the dramatic roof cantilever hovering 

above. Multi-purpose rooms and offices peer down from the second level 

beside an atrium glowing with warmth, beckoning you inside. The landscaped 

entrance plaza feels lush and natural.

3.5 Concept Renders



35

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Concept Render - Exterior view from within the plaza

VIEW KEY

The entrance plaza can be compared to a clearing in the trees – an open 

area that offers flexibility for a wide range of outdoor activities. You can see 

various groups gathering in the plaza, filtering through an open atrium, and the 

courtyard beyond. Multi-purpose rooms cantilever from the second floor.



36

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Concept Render – Interior view from within the atrium 

VIEW KEY

The social heart of the building invites interaction and play. A welcoming and 

flexible space that blurs the boundary of indoor and outdoor. To the left of 

the image, you see into the courtyard, which offers a lightwell connecting to 

the Level -1 parkade. Activities in the second floor multi-purpose room and 

mezzanine can be witnessed from below.



37

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Concept Render – Exterior view from within the courtyard

VIEW KEY

The atrium and surrounding circulation glows with warmth on a rainy day. The 

courtyard offers a natural reprieve from building functions and program – a 

connection back to nature.



38

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Concept Render – Interior view from the Welcome Centre

VIEW KEY

A community is welcomed into the vibrant social heart of the building, with 

play structures dispersed throughout. A spiral slide sits adjacent to the main 

stair, allowing a playful way to connect from the second level. Gymnasium and 

courtyard activities can be seen beyond. The atrium to the left offers a cafe to 

enjoy a treat while providing views into the aquatic centre.



39

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Concept Render – Interior view adjacent to a corridor

VIEW KEY

A casual place to meet, play some games, or relax by yourself. You can see 

various activities from different program spaces such as the courtyard, arena, 

and gymnasium.



40

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

Soft daylight filters into the arena as you enjoy an afternoon on the ice. The 

adjacent multi-purpose room offers a gathering space with a fireplace to warm 

up. Spectators can watch from the adjacent seating area and beyond, tree tops 

and the North Shore mountain peaks can be seen.

 c Concept Render – Interior view from the skate change area

VIEW KEY



41

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Concept Render - Interior view from within the Aquatic Centre

VIEW KEY

The zero-entry leisure pool provides play space and leisure swimming for 

all ages (lap pool behind viewer). Framed views of the courtyard beyond are 

prominent from within the aquatic centre. A wellness area to the right expands 

to an exterior south-facing patio, and the fitness centre looks down from above 

on the left.



42

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

Surrounded by elevated views to the North Shore Mountains, multiple 

exercising options are offered on the second floor from studio classes 

to individual strength training. A covered outdoor fitness space is directly 

accessible from the fitness centre.

 c Concept Render – Interior view from within the fitness centre

VIEW KEY



43

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

 c Concept Render – Exterior view from active recreation zone

Vibrant and active play zones span across the outdoor program, providing 

casual activities and sports for all ages and abilities. Towards the left, a second 

level entrance connects from St. Georges Avenue via a walk adjacent to the 

Silver Harbour Seniors’ Centre. Towards the right, concrete seating transitions 

into an outdoor skatepark.

VIEW KEY



44

D
es

ig
n 

R
es

po
ns

e

3.6 Landscape Design

A large south-facing entry plaza provides a welcoming front 

porch for the community to gather, as well as a lawn for 

everyday activities, larger gatherings of up to two-thousand 

people, or a stroll before heading over to the Centennial 

Theatre. This space is directly connected to an interior 

atrium with views to a central courtyard that provides 

visitors to the building natural light, views of nature and a 

tranquil place to sit.

The North-East corner of the site supports an array of 

vibrant and diverse community functions fostering social 

interaction and an outdoor active lifestyle; it is a space 

where parents can meet while their children play, and where 

people of all ages can talk between basketball games or 

between rides through the skatepark. 

Visitors to the Silver Harbour Seniors’ Activity Centre can 

go outside for a chat or sit on the sunny south-facing 

social porch. Connections from the seniors centre to the 

recreation centre have been carefully thought out to provide 

direct access between the two facilities.

The design and programming of the community recreation 

center’s open space creates an array of opportunities to 

foster strong social connections between members of 

North Vancouver’s diverse community.

The open space design is driven by a diverse program of active and passive 
outdoor recreational spaces. It is inspired by the character of North Vancouver 
through the use of native and adaptive planting, and materials including wood 
and stone. 



45

HARRY JEROME COMMUNITY 
RECREATION CENTRE

CENTENNIAL 
THEATRE

SILVER 
HARBOUR 
SENIORS’ 
ACTIVITY 
CENTRE

P
ar

ki
ng

Entry Plaza

Atrium

Courtyard

Future 
Development by 

Others

Skatepark

Green Necklace

Childrens
Play Active 

Recreation

23rd Street E

Crickmay Park

Upper Levels Highway on-ramp

S
t. 

G
eo

rg
es

 A
ve

nu
e

Lo
ns

da
le

 A
ve

nu
e

 c Landscape Plan Building Entrances

Parkade Vehicle Entrance

Service Vehicle Accesss



46

 c Entry Plaza

 c Section 1 - Stairs up to Entry Plaza  c Section 2 - Stairs to Active 
Recreation Zone

1

Entry Plaza

Entry Plaza

Atrium

23rd Street E

P
ar

ki
ng



47

 c Active Recreation Zone

2

HARRY JEROME COMMUNITY 
RECREATION CENTRE Skatepark

Childrens
Play

Active 
Recreation

S
t. 

G
eo

rg
es

 A
ve

nu
e

Upper Levels Highway on-ramp

SILVER 
HARBOUR 
SENIORS’ 
ACTIVITY 
CENTRE



48

C
os

t 
A

na
ly

si
s

3.7 Sustainability
The City has adopted aggressive climate action targets 

to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and the

existing Harry Jerome Recreation Centre is the largest 

contributor to the city’s overall emissions footprint. As a

result, climate responsive sustainable design is a priority 

within the project vision and principles.

In 2018, a set of performance targets and aspirational 

goals were proposed as part of the project Sustainability 

Design Vision Report to guide design direction and 

decision making for the HJCRC. While performance 

targets other than code requirements have not been 

formally adopted, current design does respond to a range 

of aspirations set out in the report, and others more 

recently articulated by the City.  

ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND OPERATIONAL 
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS (GHGS)

The City of North Vancouver requires application of Step 

1, of the BC Energy Step Code, which supports energy 

efficient design and good airtightness. The Step Code 

does not include performance targets for emissions. The 

existing recreation centre produces approximately 46 

kg of CO2e/m2.y and accounts for 29%* of the City’s 

corporate building greenhouse gas emissions. As such, 

the redevelopment of the Harry Jerome community 

center is identified as critical to meeting the City's GHG 

reduction targets of 80% below 2007 levels by 2040 

and achieving net zero or 100% emissions reductions 

by 2050. To achieve this goal, the project would need to 

aggressively reduce emissions, estimated at a 93-95% 

reduction from the existing facility.

 

The Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre has a 

highly complex building program, with a mixture of

energy intensive uses such as pools and ice rinks. 

Despite these challenges, staff and design team pursued 

a design approach that reduces the carbon intensity 

of the project by approximately 81% compared to the 

existing facility, according to the preliminary energy model.

The preliminary energy model report (dated March 10, 

2021) estimates the following:

• Thermal energy demand (TEDI): 49.9 kWh/

m2.y 

• Total Energy Use Intensity (TEUI): 377 kWh/

m2.y  (49.5% better than NECB 2015)

• Green House Gas Intensity (GHGI ): 8.5 

kgCO2e/m2.y (81% reduction from the 

existing recreation center)

Note that the project is currently modelled to perform 

relatively well compared to the code minimum energy 

requirements, but efficiencies and emissions reductions 

that align with the demands of climate responsive design 

require further improvement.

The intensity of the aquatic and ice programs of the 

project necessitate emphasis on efficient mechanical 

systems to aggressively reduce energy demand and 

eliminate emissions. To accomplish this, a comprehensive 

heat recovery approach has been employed, whereby 

recovered heat from the arena CO2 refrigeration 

system is transferred via chillers to end uses such as 

pool heating, domestic hot water generation, and space 

heating. This substantially reduces the amount of heat 

required from external sources. In addition, the heat 

recovery chiller plant produces that heat at very high 

efficiency and will operate at an efficiency 4 to 6 times 

better than a conventional system. These strategies 

contribute to substantial reduction in annual energy use 

from the building code requirements.

A summary of design strategies and energy conservation 

measures contributing to performance include: 



49

C
os

t 
A

na
ly

si
s

Envelope Highly insulated walls, roofs and floors

Double glazing, argon filled, with low e-coating and reflectivity coating

Airtightness test to be conducted per Energy step code requirement for quality control

Mechanical Systems Heat recovery from natatorium exhaust and building relief/exhaust to ventilation air

Inblue filtration system for the pool

Water conserving plumbing fixtures including low flow sink faucets with metered 

sensors and high efficiency flush valve toilets with sensor activated flush

Variable speed pumping for heating, cooling, brine systems and pool system pumps

Dew point calculations for humidity control in natatorium

Refrigerants CO2 refrigeration system for ice rink. CO2 systems have a Global Warming Potential 

(GWP) of 1, compared to a GWP of 1000-4000 for more traditional refrigerants.

Electrical Systems Daylighting

Efficient lighting fixtures (LED) with automated controls

OPPORTUNITIES

While project is reducing operational carbon emissions 

significantly, reducing emissions more than 90% 

compared to the existing facility is challenging given 

the district energy connection to the LEC, which uses 

a carbon intensive natural gas fuel source. As the LEC 

system is diversified in the future, HJCRC carbon 

intensity will improve. With the current reliance on natural 

gas, improving emissions depends upon further reducing 

energy demand. As design continues, this includes 

evaluating envelope efficiencies including the window-to-

wall ratio, considering exterior shading to control interior 

heat gain, assessing thermal bridging, and setting a more 

ambitious air tightness target. Note that these strategies 

have co-benefits including improving indoor comfort. 

Embodied carbon emissions are also a stated priority 

for the City. While no specific target for reduction is set, 

the design currently proposes use of some low carbon 

structural material in the form of mass timber as part 

of the roof system. Increasing the use of wood in the 

project, exploring low carbon concrete (high SCMs and/

or Carbon Cure), and using low impact insulation are 

immediate opportunities to improve the embodied carbon 

performance. Setting a clear reduction goal relative to 

a baseline is the best way to inform design accordingly. 

Several valid methods and tools to measure embodied 

carbon using Life Cycle Analysis (LCA) are available in 

the market to inform design progress. 

Zero Carbon Building – Design (ZCB Design) 

certification is available through the Canada Green 

Building Council (CaGBC). The pursuit of this 

certification is part of the City’s current evaluation of 

their overall GHG reduction strategies. ZCB certification 

has low energy requirements that do not account for 

building types that include pools or arenas. The CaGBC 

is currently reviewing their energy requirements for these 

types of buildings and the project team will continue 

to explore opportunities to achieve this certification as 

clarity on energy targets emerge. 

At this stage of design development, a significant 

emphasis has been placed on building performance and 

climate responsive design relative to operational energy 

and carbon. The strategies to address sustainability and 

climate are in progress in other critical areas, summarized 

in the following table, including opportunities to further 

address performance as design progresses:



50

C
os

t 
A

na
ly

si
s

Category Design Vision/Guidance Current Progress Opportunities

Location + 

Transportation

Minimize the need for 

automobile use and be a 

catalyst for non-auto mode 

transportation.

270 parking spaces shared 

between Centennial Theatre, 

HJCRC, and Silver Harbour.

Dedicate some parking to car-

share use.

45 secured and covered bike 

spaces rec, 8 Silver Harbour, 

25% supplied with electrical 

outlets. 100 short term bike 

spaces mostly covered. 

End of trip facilities and 

showers provided in rec and 

Silver Harbour.

Realize EV charging location. 13% (36/270) of parking stalls 

supplied with a Level 2 electric 

vehicle charging stations

Water + 

Rainwater

Maximize water and rainwater 

re-use on site

Low flow fixtures Consider water reuse strategies 

that target pool water, grey 

water and rainwater to the 

significant potable water 

consumption of the rec centre. 

Low irrigation demand planting, 

efficient irrigation with rain 

sensor and weather station. 

Use a non-potable water source 

for irrigation.

Rainwater currently managed 

with a detention tank at South 

portion of parking lot; some 

infiltration provided with rain 

gardens and small green roof 

area. 

Consider additional Low Impact 

Development (LID) strategies to 

manage rainwater on site. 

Landscape and 

Biodiversity

N/A Parking is located underground. 

Minimized hardscape Set clear goals for hardscape 

and measure impact of 

emissivity.

Green roof Measure heat island and water 

management impact of green 

roof area, consider expanding 

green roof area.

Reflective TOP roofing Confirm SRI value of roof and 

evaluate hardscape SRI values.



51

C
os

t 
A

na
ly

si
s

Use of native and adaptive 

vegetation.

Measure amount of native/

adaptive planting; measure 

biomass density index 

to understand climate 

management potential.

Minimize uplighting on exterior Adopt BUG rating

Bird friendly design strategies 

applied. 

Adopt a design standard for 

Bird Friendly Design (CSA, City 

of Vancouver, other). 

Materials + 

Indoor Quality

Design for a 50 year life 

time, with durable and easily 

maintained/replaced products. 

The building shall commit to 

community health in its design, 

construction and operation

Glazing at the atrium and 

interior courtyard introduces 

daylight and views at the core 

of the building. 

Set an embodied carbon 

reduction target of at least 10% 

below a baseline to evaluate 

low impact material selection. 

Require low emitting materials 

per LEED to be applied on 

interior.

Prioritize materials that report 

environmental impact through 

EPDs, or material ingredient 

reporting with HPDs or other 

third party verified transparency 

programs.

Require air flushing or testing 

before occupancy (refer to 

LEED v4.1).

SUMMARY

Building and site systems at HJCRC have the potential 

to be well integrated and offer exceptional co-benefits 

for long term, high performance, low carbon, and 

climate responsive design. Setting clear performance 

goals and establishing metrics will support decision-

making accordingly and accountability within the design 

team and project stakeholder group. Considering third 

party verification programs offers both accountability, 

thresholds of performance, and established methods of 

measurement, that can result in better performance as 

well as public recognition. 

Project performance across categories will benefit from 

the following as design is refined:

• A comprehensive envelope study to evaluate passive 

opportunities to control energy demand (thermal 

bridging, solar heat gain, shading and daylight).  

• Evaluating opportunities to conserve and/or reuse 

potable water.

• Better address rainwater management with more low 

impact development strategies. 

• Evaluate potential for the landscape to maximize 

carbon management and improve building 

performance and comfort by reducing heat island 

effect.

• Evaluating the embodied carbon of materials and 

setting a target for reduction. 

• Setting a materials health and transparency 

benchmark to address emissions and health impacts. 



52

C
os

t 
A

na
ly

si
s

 81% carbon intensity reduction
from existing recreation centre

Heat recovery chiller plant
4-6 times more efficient
than conventional systems
(CO2 refrigeration)

Highly insulated
building envelope

Electric car and bike charging

Innovative low energy pool 
filtration system (InBlue)

Maximized daylighting

Future consideration for
Zero Carbon Building – Design

Integrated project 
commissioning of
major building 
systems

49% better total  
energy demand than   
NECB 2015 baseline

Sustainability



53

C
os

t 
A

na
ly

si
s

3.8 Cost Analysis
A class B cost estimate was prepared based on the 

review of the re-design information provided for the 

new construction of the Harry Jerome Community 

Recreation Centre in North Vancouver, BC. The estimate 

was priced in Q1, March 2021 local unit rates and 

assumed a construction start date of June 2022. Class 

B construction cost estimates are typically +/- 10-15% 

in accuracy with many variables influencing the final 

construction price including the current uncertainty and 

volatility of the market. Supply chain issues currently 

being experienced may have unknown (short and long 

term) impacts on pricing levels and anticipated projected 

construction escalation.

HJCRC
Cost

Summary 
CLASS B ESTIMATE

$153, 006, 000   Construction + Soft Costs 

$28, 690, 000  Contingencies + Escalation 

$181, 696, 000  Total Project Cost



54

C
os

t 
A

na
ly

si
s

Class B 
Estimate

Council 
Sign-Off

MarchFeb April May June JulyJan Aug Sept

2021

Construction DocumentsDesign Development

3.9 Project Schedule
The HJCRC project has completed the re-design phase 

and will continue into construction documents after 

council sign-off. The construction document phase will 

take 10 months and conclude with the next Council sign 

off in February 2022 and project tendering to occur 

shortly after. There is opportunity to tender the site prep 

work in advance which could occur in Nov 2021. The 

construction phase is scheduled to start in June 2022 

and is anticipated to continue for 3 years, completing in 

2025.



55

C
os

t 
A

na
ly

si
s

Class A 
Estimate

HJCRC Tender 
with Financing in Place

Council 
Sign-Off

2022 2025

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June Dec

Construction Documents Tender Construction

Contract 
Award

Potential 
Tender of 
Site Prep

To Dec 2025



56

C
os

t 
A

na
ly

si
s

city
of norths
Vancouver



57

4.0 Next Steps



58

N
ex

t 
S

te
ps

The next stage of this project is to proceed to is to 

proceed to detailed design and on to construction. We 

would advise the release of this design development 

report and continue into the next stage. 

As part of the next stage, we would recommend the 

City of North Vancouver consider hiring a construction 

manager if it is the preferred construction delivery 

method.

The team should also consider further investigations 

into sustainability opportunities and continue to find 

collaborative ways to further reduce GHG emissions.

4.0 Next Steps



59

N
ex

t 
S

te
ps

city
of north/
Vancouver

The new Harry Jerome — 
Community Recreation Centre 

(2025)
A
#
/a Council Check-in

*\ ✓

Iv yStakeholder
Meetings ✓//

jf £ Construction ^
^ Start June 2022 \I I

JAdvisory # 
Bodies v ✓llo V

% 1°
N1?-

1-w

f

Council Consideration\

WE ARE HERE



HARRY JEROME COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTRE
SCHEMATIC DESIGN REPORT
Issued  |  July 2018

Revision 1

hcma
www.hcma.ca

Vancouver
400 - 675 West Hastings Street
Vancouver BC V6B 1N2 Canada

604.732.6620
vancouver@hcma.ca

Victoria
Suite 300, 569 Johnson Street
Victoria BC V8W 1M2 Canada

250.382.6650
victoria@hcma.ca

Edmonton
307-10110 104 St NW
Edmonton, T5J 1A7 Canada

780.306.4464
edmonton@hcma.ca



#2103597 

Attachment 2  
SBW 
Construction Management Scope         
            

1. Undertake detailed reviews of the Drawings and Specifications from time to time 
and as they are developed to identify errors, omissions and co-ordination 
problems for the purpose of eliminating contractor and subcontractor claims for 
additional compensation and/or time during the course of construction based on 
allegations of errors or omissions in the design documents or a lack of co-
ordination between the design documents; 

2. Lead the development of a Division 1 Specification; 
3. Identify Project risks and make written recommendations to the Owner to reduce 

or manage these risks;  
4. Provide value engineering recommendations;   
5. Undertake building information modelling; Enhance the Consultants BIM models 

and initiate clash detection reviews, including design-assist from selected 
mechanical/electrical trades; 

6. Undertake a constructability review of the design and provide 
a written constructability report;  

7. Develop and provide a construction site plan; 
8. Liaise with utility companies and manage site preparation and the utility 

work including temporary power and water, preparatory to commencement 
of construction; 

9. Produce a Class B Construction Estimate ascending to a Class A; 
10. Prepare a comprehensive project schedule; 
11. Identify qualified subcontractors and suppliers.  Prequalify trades in accordance 

with City purchasing policy; 
12. Manage minor construction work and administer contracts for Enabling Works. 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



0d
Department
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
NORTH VANCOUVER RECREATION & CULTURE COMMISSION

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Heather Turner, Director, Recreation & Culture

Subject: NVRC INTERIM RECREATION AND CULTURE SERVICE PLAN

Date: October 13, 2021

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Director, Recreation & Culture, dated October 
13, 2021, entitled “NVRC Interim Recreation and Culture Service Plan”:

THAT the report be received for information and filed.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Addressing Financial Barriers
2. NVRC’s Financial Assistance Program Webpage (including the Application Form 

and FAQs)

SUMMARY

North Vancouver Recreation & Culture Commission (NVRC) staff are finalizing an 
Interim Service Plan to relocate activities and programming and expand capacity for 
customers at all community recreation centres while the new Harry Jerome Community 
Recreation Centre (HJCRC) is being constructed (estimated 2022 - 2025). This report 
outlines the approach and actions being taken to maximize customer services during 
this period.

Document Number: 2104758



REPORT: NVRC Interim Recreation and Culture Service Plan
Date: October 13, 2021

A communication plan is being prepared to ensure that users and all members of the 
public are aware: of what options will be available to them, how to access further 
information and how to register or participate. This communication plan will also include 
information about supports available to individuals who require financial assistance, 
services for persons with a disability, and access to free and low-cost programs and 
services (see Attachments 1 and 2 for additional information).

BACKGROUND

The existing HJCRC, Memorial Centre and Mickey MacDougall Community Recreation 
Centre have served residents well for over 55 years. These facilities have reached the 
end of their functional life and are to be replaced with a new Harry Jerome Community 
Recreation Centre on the north side of 23rd Street. The new facility is expected to be 
completed in 2025.

DISCUSSION

The City of North Vancouver has, since 1970, partnered with the District of North 
Vancouver to address the recreation and culture needs of North Vancouver residents 
through creation and support of the North Vancouver Recreation & Culture Commission 
and through cost sharing of operating expenses. This partnership has enabled and 
encouraged residents to utilize all community recreation centres across North 
Vancouver and ensured that residents have a wide range of options.

The North Vancouver-wide system is particularly beneficial to provide residents and 
user groups with options when a facility is closed on both a short term or longer term 
basis as was the case during the construction of the Delbrook Community Recreation 
Centre and will be the case during construction of the new Harry Jerome facility. The 
many excellent outdoor recreation amenities in North Vancouver also provide a 
multitude of options for residents to help meet their recreation and culture needs.

Interim Service Plan Approach and Considerations

The following outlines the approach that NVRC has taken to develop the Interim Service 
Plan. The Plan will continue to evolve and will be integrated into the 2022 and future 
year program offerings. The principles that follow are being used to guide the 
development of the Interim Service Plan:

• Programs and services offered by NVRC will be based on evidence of highest 
demand and highest need, including vulnerable populations with barriers to 
participation;

• NVRC-operated facilities, programs and services have been assessed for 
capacity and hours expanded where feasible to accommodate more individuals 
and to maximize utilization;

• Alternate venue options have been explored in the neighbourhood surrounding 
HJCRC (including Centennial Theatre and Silver Harbour) and in the City 
(including the Shipyard Commons and the Pipe Shop);

Page 2 of 6



REPORT: NVRC Interim Recreation and Culture Service Plan
Date: October 13, 2021

• Wherever feasible, programs and service offerings historically provided at 
HJCRC will be incorporated into other NVRC facilities;

• Allocation of facility space and times for rental groups will follow existing 
allocation policies and be applied in the fairest way possible;

• A recognition that indoor services complement, and are supplemented by, 
outdoor options in some service areas.

Program and Service Options

The North Vancouver system of recreation and culture services, both indoor and 
outdoor, provides many program and service options for residents. While there will be 
some challenges during the construction of the new HJCRC, the Interim Service Plan 
will strive to provide as many activities and programs as possible, reflecting the 
principles above. As of October 13, 2021, a number of details are being finalized 
including the extent of available times and the best-suited programs/services in 
alternate spaces including the Pipe Shop, Silver Harbour and Shipyard Commons. 
Access to these venues will ensure that, in addition to services offered at John 
Braithwaite Community Centre (JBCC), there will be other recreation and culture 
services available in the City to complement the service options throughout North 
Vancouver.

A comprehensive communication plan on what will be provided where and when, along 
with information on supports available and details on how to access services is being 
prepared for the public.

A summary of the plans by service area are summarized below:

a) Access & Inclusion Programs: Services for persons with a disability and 
individuals from vulnerable populations will be accommodated at other NVRC- 
operated recreation centres and in partnership with community agencies. Venues 
have been selected based on easy access by transit and accessibility of facilities. 
North Vancouver resident-first registration is being implemented for high-demand 
programs.

The NVRC Financial Assistance program is available to individuals with financial 
barriers and a variety of free and low-cost programs/services are offered at 
NVRC-operated facilities. NVRC is committed to identifying and addressing 
barriers to participation to the extent possible and does so through financial 
support, subsidized and adaptive programs, staffing support and working with 
community agencies.

b) Aquatics: NVRC will continue to operate public aquatic space at Delbrook, Karen 
Magnussen and Ron Andrews Community Recreation Centres, as well as partial 
use of the Pinnacle Pool. The operating hours of the Ron Andrews and Delbrook 
pools will be extended to accommodate more people in swimming lessons, 
aquacise, masters swimming and some additional lane swimming. In addition, 
North Vancouver resident-first registration for swimming lessons will be

Page 3 of 6



REPORT: NVRC Interim Recreation and Culture Service Plan
Date: October 13, 2021

implemented. While not all needs will be met, the same approach to space 
allocation is being utilized as was done for the 3.5-year construction period of the 
Delbrook Community Recreation Centre.

c) Arenas:
• Ice Season - fall and winter: NVRC will maximize ice time at Karen 

Magnussen arena and public time at Canlan Ice Sports to provide public 
skating and lessons every day of the week, and skating lessons may be 
offered at the Shipyard Commons. In addition, North Vancouver resident- 
first registration for skating lessons will be implemented. Local groups who 
rent ice time have received their allocations for 2022, and several are 
seeking ice time at Canlan Ice Sports and in neighbouring municipalities.

• Dry Floor - spring and summer: In-line hockey will continue to be 
accommodated at Karen Magnussen arena. Options for indoor minor, 
Junior B and Senior B lacrosse are currently being explored. As ceiling 
height and slope in the Karen Magnussen arena are challenging for 
lacrosse for players over the age of 10 years, user groups and NVRC staff 
are actively searching for alternate locations.

d) Arts: NVRC arts programs will continue to be offered in other NVRC-operated 
recreation centres along with some new ones offered at Centennial Theatre, and 
possibly Silver Harbour and the outdoors (seasonally). Additional pottery 
programs will be offered at Delbrook’s studio, and Parkgate Community Centre’s 
pottery studio time will be extended to accommodate more participants. There 
are also a number of arts programs offered by community arts and culture 
organizations.

e) Fitness: Fitness capacity will be increased through a number of initiatives 
including:

• Programs at the Pipe Shop, Lions Gate Community Recreation Centre 
(opening early in 2022), and other community venues;

• Conversion of underutilized space at JBCC for relocation of health 
management and rehabilitation programs and other fitness services;

• Extension of hours of operation of NVRC fitness centres if demand 
warrants; and

• Continuation and expansion of outdoor fitness services during spring, 
summer and early fall.

There are also numerous private fitness options available to residents at a range 
of prices.

f) Out of School Programs: NVRC staff are in discussions with other out of school 
service providers regarding options to provide more services in schools. In 
addition, the Pipe Shop is being assessed for this purpose and these plans are 
anticipated to be finalized very soon.

Page 4 of 6



REPORT: NVRC Interim Recreation and Culture Service Plan
Date: October 13, 2021

g) Outdoor:
• Skatepark: With the commencement of construction on the new HJCRC in 

early 2022, the existing Skatepark will be closed. Alternate skateparks in 
North Vancouver include Griffin Bowl, Kirkstone Skatepark and Seylynn 
Skatepark. The closure and alternate locations will be communicated to 
skatepark users with onsite signage and online information. The new 
HJCRC will include a new skatepark, designed by the original skatepark 
designer and based on input received from local participants.

• Outdoor programs and services: Outdoor fitness, recreation and art 
programs will continue to be offered by NVRC at a number of locations 
and are coordinated on a North Vancouver-wide basis. The 2019 
Community Recreation and Culture Needs Assessment indicated that both 
indoor and outdoor recreation are very important to North Vancouver 
residents, with 82% stating that they regularly participate in indoor 
recreation activities and 85% in outdoor recreation activities.

Opportunities for both spontaneous and structured outdoor recreation are well 
supported through municipal parks, trails, plazas, playing fields, spray parks, 
sport courts, bike paths, etc. The City and District have made significant 
investments in outdoor recreational amenities in the past few years to support 
walking, running, cycling, field sports, court sports, small gatherings, events and 
play.

h) Licensed Preschool Programs: The NVRC Lonsdale Preschool provides partial- 
day options for preschoolers to play, learn and socialize in a licensed setting. In 
the short term, the Lonsdale Preschool program will be relocated to a suitable 
space in another NVRC facility and work will continue on a longer-term option 
that will hopefully also support after-school care in conjunction with the City of 
North Vancouver.

i) Rentals: Meeting rooms, gymnasiums, multi-purpose spaces, etc., in community 
recreation centres and Centennial Theatre should be able to accommodate the 
majority of rental requests for these spaces, supplemented by spaces in schools 
and other venues. NVRC staff are offering support to a number of community 
groups looking for spaces for their services that cannot be accommodated in 
North Vancouver during this interim period.

j) Social Recreation Programs: Programs such as babysitter training, home alone, 
toddler and parent, day camps and birthday parties will be accommodated in 
other NVRC-operated facilities and in parks and plazas where feasible.

k) Sport Programs: Registered sport programs and drop-in programs will be 
accommodated in other NVRC-operated facilities. Hours of operation will be 
extended at the JBCC to accommodate relocation of many sport programs.

l ) Youth Centres: Delbrook and JBCC are the closest facilities with youth centres. 
Youth from HJCRC will be encouraged to visit these centres. Youth programs 
and drop-in services will be offered at other sites as possible.

Page 5 of 6



REPORT: NVRC Interim Recreation and Culture Service Plan
Date: October 13, 2021

The North Vancouver system of connected and complimentary recreation and culture 
services provides many program and service options for residents. While there will 
certainly be some challenges, the steps being taken to expand capacity at other 
community recreation centres, relocate some programs to Centennial Theatre, Silver 
Harbour, the Pipe Shop and Shipyard Commons, and the addition of the Lions Gate 
Community Recreation Centre in early 2022 will help to meet the recreation and culture 
needs of North Vancouver residents. In addition, there are a number of community 
organizations and some private service providers who offer arts, culture, 
community/social and fitness services.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The cost implications such as rent, staff oversight, janitorial and program instruction 
associated with use of alternate venues are not finalized. The CNV/DNV sharing of 
applicable operating costs of the NVRC will continue throughout the construction of the 
new HJCRC and ensure that residents of both municipalities have access to quality 
recreation and culture services. The HJCRC operating budget will be substantively 
redeployed to other facilities and sites during the interim to help cover costs for 
programming, cleaning, maintenance, etc.

The 2022 NVRC Operating Budget will include anticipated expenses and revenues 
related to the 2022 operating year inclusive of the Interim Service Plan.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

NVRC staff have been working closely with City staff and other community entities to 
explore options for service relocations.

City and NVRC staff are working together to ensure accurate and timely communication 
to residents regarding the service options for 2022 and beyond.

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The new HJCRC will create a welcoming, vibrant, social heart of the community and 
improve upon the ability for NVRC to serve the community as an important hub and key 
part of the overall recreation and culture system throughout North Vancouver.

The new HJCRC will also support the City’s vision to create a healthy city for all and 
reflects the goals and decision-making framework for significant community recreation 
projects as included in the City’s Community Recreation Strategy; “A Healthy City for All 
- The Role of Community Recreation”.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Heather Turner
Director, Recreation & Culture

Page 6 of 6



Attachment 1

NORTH VANCOUVER

Recreation 
& Culture

Addressing Financial Barriers

NVRC offers several ways for customers with financial barriers to participate in recreation, arts and 
culture programs and services:

• Financial Assistance Program: https://www.nvrc.ca/about-us/financial-assistance-qrants (see 
Attachment 2 for full details)

The NVRC’s Financial Assistance Program has provided support to residents since 1992. 
Approximately 2,600 residents typically access the Program annually. Supports include:

■ One-on-one leisure counselling and outreach by a Leisure Access Counsellor, 
Inclusion Programmer and Recreation Programmers to assist customers to return to 
(during the pandemic) and participate in NVRC programs and services;

■ Access Swim and Skate Passes for residents of all ages at no cost;
* Low-cost spots in children’s camps;
■ Access to support workers to assist participants in programs; and
■ Reduced fees for registered programs and memberships.

• Free and low-cost options open to anyone:
■ Toonie fitness classes, public swim, adaptive aquafit and public skates
* Low-cost sport drop-ins
■ Low-cost open gym times for families and parent participation play time for families 

with young children
■ Free indoor and outdoor arts and culture workshops such as artist in residency 

programs and opportunities to engage youth as well as all ages
■ Free culture events including Live and Local, Culture Days, dance days and a 

summer concert series
■ Free activities for youth at NVRC’s youth centres
■ Shower program which provides free shower access to NVRC facilities

• In addition to the above, in 2022 the following are planned:
■ Expanded toonie fitness and swimming offerings
■ Active Living Fitness programs (no cost) for vulnerable populations in partnership 

with other agencies
■ Toonie outdoor fitness

• Memberships are available for a monthly fee up to 12 months in total. They provide unlimited 
access to public swimming, lane swimming, skating, fitness classes (aquatic or dryland), fitness 
centres, open gym, table tennis, squash and racquetball, and the trail trekker program. The 
rates offer a further subsidy to seniors, youth, students, and children: 
https://www.nvrc.ca/proqrams-memberships/fitness-memberships-fees



Attachment 2

Recreation 
& Culture
NORTH VANCOUVER 600 West Queens Rd. North Vancouver, BC V7N 2L3 

P. 604.987.7529 F. 604.984.4294 www.nvrc.ca

Financial Assistance & Grants (excerpt)

If you are experiencing financial hardship that limits you or your family’s ability to 
participate in recreation and culture activities with NVRC, we have support.

Step One

S Read the Frequently Asked Questions and review the £ application form 

Step Two

Complete the application form and collect the supporting documents

Step Three

Submit your application package:

• In person at Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre or Ron Andrews Community Recreation Centre

• Via e-mail H financialassistance@nvrc.ca

Step Four

Your application will be reviewed and you will be notified of approval within three weeks.

If you require support with your application or have any questions, please email a financialassistance@nvrc.ca or contact vour local 
community recreation centre

• Harry Jerome Community Recreation Centre

• John Braithwaite Community Centre

• Delbrook Community Recreation Centre

• Karen Magnussen Community Recreation Centre

• Ron Andrews Community Recreation Centre

• Parkeate Community Centre

https://www.nvrc.ca/about-us/financial-assistance-grants 1/2



NORTH VANCOUVER

Recreation 
& Culture

Financial Assistance Program
FAQ's

How do I apply for financial assistance?
Application forms can be printed from the North Vancouver Recreation & Culture Commission (NVRC) website or 
copies can be found at your local community recreation centre. Once you have completed your application and have 
collected the required supporting documents, everything can be dropped off at the front desk of Harry Jerome 
Community Recreation Centre, Ron Andrews Community Recreation Centre, or emailed to financialassistance@nvrc.ca.

How long does it take to process an application?
Please plan ahead and allow for up to three weeks for your application to be processed. You will then be notified of 
your application status by your preferred method of communication. If approved, you will be invited to meet with the 
Leisure Access Counsellor or facility programmer to discuss your options, program details, and to activate 
your assistance.

Who would not be eligible for financial assistance?
• Those whose combined family net income does not fall within minimum and maximum guidelines that are listed 

on the application
• Those who have lived in Canada less than six months
• Individuals classified as an entrepreneur under Canadian Immigration and Citizenship
• Those who are a temporary resident (visitor) or on a study or work permit
• Those who are in Canada under a sponsorship agreement (your sponsor is responsible for your financial needs)

What qualifies as a service provider agency for referral letters?
A valid service provider agency is a government funded agency or registered non-profit agency that provides support 
and services to North Vancouver residents who may be experiencing financial hardships. Some examples include: 
Ministry of Social Development, Ministry of Children and Families, Community Living British Columbia, Family Services 
of the North Shore, North Shore Multicultural Society, North Shore Connexions Society, The HOpe Centre, Vancouver 
Coastal Health, Canadian Mental Health Association (CMHA), The Harvest Project, Lookout Society, North Shore 
Women’s Centre, North Shore Crisis Service Society, school principals, Squamish Nation, and Tsleil-Waututh Nation.

NVRC staff must be able to verify the referring person/agency in order to approve applications. Referral letters must 
be on official letterhead and include a signature and the contact information of the person making the referral.

What kind of financial assistance might be available if I’m approved?
If your application is approved you will be contacted by NVRC staff to discuss options based on you and your family's 
interests and needs. This may include subsidy towards registered programs and memberships. If approved, the 
subsidy is applied to each individual family member (non-transferable) and is available for use during the calendar 
year (expires December 31).

Will I need to renew my application after I have been approved?
Your application is valid for one year from the date of approval and will need to be renewed each year through the 
standard application process. Each year is considered a new application. It is our recommendation that you begin the 
renewal process one month in advance of the expiry date, as the application review process can take up to three weeks.

nvrc.ca f * © 604-987-7529



NORTH VANCOUVER

Recreation 
& Culture

Financial Assistance Program
FAQ’s

Where can I find my net income?
Your net income can be found on your NOA (Notice of Assessment) line 236 or on your Option C from Canada Revenue Agency.

I am applying on behalf of my household. Who should I include in the application?
Yourself as the main contact, your spouse or partner (living in the same household, married or common-law), and 
dependents 18 years and under.

Other family members that share the household such as parents, grandparents and adult children 19+ must apply separately.

Are there any programs that are not eligible for financial assistance?
The NVRC offers a broad range of programs, however, some are not eligible under our financial assistance program. 
Some examples include specialized training and certified skill development programs (such as lifeguard training 
courses and babysitter training), birthday parties, personal training and private lessons.

NVRC is home to many community sport leagues and other groups who rent our facilities to offer their programs. 
NVRC does not provide financial support to cover the cost of registration in community sport leagues and programs 
that operate at our facilities as rentals and that are not NVRC registered programs. Some examples include: 
competitive swimming clubs, minor hockey, and privately operated basketball leagues. If you are interested in 
obtaining financial assistance to support your child in these kinds of programs, please explore the following 
community funding options:

AthleticsAKids (A4I<)
Canadian Tire Jumpstart 
KidSport Canada

How do I obtain an Option C form for my application?
You can request an Option-C form from your Canada Revenue Agency account or by calling 1-800-959-8281.

I don't want to share my personal information. Can I still apply for financial assistance?
This is an optional program. You cannot be considered without a complete application package.

What happens if 1 apply and my application is not approved?
You will be notified by your preferred method of communication if your application is not approved. If your 
application package is missing required information, you will be able to re-submit. If you are informed that you do 
not meet our qualification criteria, you will be provided with information on how to request an appeal.

Page 2 of 2 P. 604-987-7529 financialassistance(a>nvrc.ca nvrc.ca



NORTH VANCOUVER

Recreation 
& Culture

Financial Assistance 
Application Form

Do you live in North Vancouver and have a limited budget for 
recreation and culture? We can provide support.

If multiple couples/families share a household, each must apply separately.

Step 1 - Applicant Information Main Contact

Last Name: First Name: Birth Date (YYYY/MM/DD)

Address:

city: North Vancouver Postal Code:

Home S: Work S: Cell S:

Email:

Please indicate your preferred method of communication Q Email Q Mail

Spouse/Partner:
Last Name: First Name: Birth Date (YYYY/MM/DD)

Dependants (0-18yrs):
Last Name: First Name: Birth Date (YYYY/MM/DD)

Last Name: First Name: Birth Date (YYYY/MM/DD)

Last Name: First Name: Birth Date (YYYY/MM/DD)

Last Name: First Name: Birth Date (YYYY/MM/DD)

Last Name: First Name: Birth Date (YYYY/MM/DD)

Which Community Recreation Centre is most convenient for you to access?

1 I Parkgate 3625 Banff Court Q Harry Jerome 123 East 23rd Street

1 1 Ron Andrews 931 Lytton Street Q Oelbrook 851 West Queens Road

] Karen Magnussen 2300 Kirkstone Road Q John Braithwaite 145 West 1st Street

nvrc.ca f *© 604-987-7529



Step 2 - Proof Of Residency In North Vancouver
Please indicate and attach any one (l) of the following documents issued within the past 6 months:

Q Current Lease/Rental Agreement Q Canada Child Benefit (CCB) Notice

I I BC Housing Approval Letter Q Current Utility Bill

I I Referral Letter from a North Vancouver Service Provider Agency 

] Government Letter including name, address and date of issue

Step 3 - Financial Information/Seif-Assessment

The NVRC Financial Assistance Program is for North Vancouver residents who are experiencing financial hardship. Financial hardship means 
a person has difficulty paying for basic daily living expenses (e.g. food, shelter, clothing), and does not have access to savings or other 
financial resources.

A) Do you receive financial assistance from an identified government program?

YES Q NO Q If YES, please attach one of the following documents (for applicant and spouse/partner)

[] Rental Assistance Program (RAP) or Shelter Aid for Elderly Renters (SAFER): Approval letter from BC Housing 

I I Guaranteed Income Supplement (GIS): Confirmation letter from Service Canada 

] Income Assistance or Disability Assistance: Confirmation of assistance from Ministry of Social Development 

J Resettlement Assistance: Confirmation of permanent residence indicating status as Government Assisted Refugee 

I I Youth Agreement of Agreements with Young Adults (AYA): Confirmation letter from your Ministry of Child and Family Development Worker

B) If you answered NO to A, do you have a referral letter from a service provider agency?

YES □ NO O If YES, please attach

C) If you answered NO to A and B, please attach the following documentfor applicant and spouse/partner.

I I Proof of Income Statement (Option C Form) from Canada Revenue Agency: Print from "My Account" or call 1-800-959-8281 and talk to an agent.

Family’s Combined Net Income Guidelines for eligibility to the NVRC Financial Assistance

Family Size 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Minimum Income* $8,500 $12,000 $14,000 $15,000 $16,000 $17,000 $18,000

Maximum Net Income** $24,183 $34,200 $41,886 $48,366 $54,075 $59,236 $63,982

* Based on current BC Income Assistance payments
**After-Tax Low Income Measure (table 11-10-0232-01) (Statistics Canada, 2018)

Eligible Dependants

Do you have dependents living in your household? YES Q NO Q

I I Under 18 years of age: Please attach your most recent Canada Child Benefit (CCB) statement 

I I 19 years and older: Apply individually

Page 2 of 3 P. 604-987-7529 financialassistance@nvrc.ca nvrc.ca



Income & Asset Checklist For individuals submitting Proof of Income Statement (Option C)

Main Contact Net Income Line 236 $

Spouse/Partner Net Income Line 236 $

Taxable Dividends Line 120 $ Maximum $250 per family combined

Interest & Investment Income Line 121 $ $500 per family combined

Rental Income Line 126 $ Maximum $1000

Capital Gains Line 127 $ Maximum $100 per adult

RRSP Contributions Line 208 $ Maximum $1000 per adult

Step 4 - Housing

Rent YES □ NO □ $ /month

Own YES □ NO □ $ /assessed value

Own Additional Property YES Q NO Q $ /assessed value

Applicant Signature

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy
The North Vancouver Recreation & Culture Commission (NVRC) is committed to protecting your privacy. Any personal information you provide to 
us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with British Columbia's Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (FOIPPA). For more 
information on NVRC's FOIPPA policy and procedures, please visit nvrc.ca/privacy or call 604-987-7529.

Certification, Acknowledgment and Consent
I certify that all household members listed in this application reside in North Vancouver and that the information and documentation I have 
provided to NVRC in respect of this application (collectively, the "Information"), is accurate and complete. As the primary applicant, I acknowledge 
that it is my responsibility to inform all household members listed in this application about the program and conditions of its use.

Further, I give consent to the NVRC to collect, store and access the information and to take steps to verify that the information is true and accurate 
for the purpose of assessing my application. I am aware that if any of the information that I have provided is fraudulent, I may be subject to 
termination from the Financial Assistance Program and repayment of any financial assistance I have received from the NVRC.

Applicant's signature Date (YYYY/MM/DD)

Page 3 of 3 P. 604-987-7529 financialassistanceOnvrc.ca nvrc.ca



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



Ad Ul
^Department

Manager
Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
COMMUNITY & PARTNER ENGAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Larry R. Orr, Deputy Director, Community and Partner Engagement

Subject: LOWER LONSDALE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA SERVICE
BYLAW RENEWAL

Date: October 5,2021 File No: 01-0230-20-0026/2021

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, Community and Partner 
Engagement, dated October 5, 2021, entitled “Lower Lonsdale Business 
Improvement Area Service Bylaw Renewal”:

THAT “Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, No. 
8879” be considered.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Staff Report dated January 20, 2021 (CityDocs #2097818)
2. Proposed “Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, 

No, 8879” (CityDocs #2097723)

SUMMARY

At the Regular meeting of Council held on February 1, 2021, Council resolved the 
following:

“PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director, Community and Partner 
Engagement, dated January 20, 2021, entitled “Lower Lonsdale Business 
Improvement Area Bylaw Renewal Process”:

THAT staff be directed to initiate the petition process, “Council Initiative Subject 
to Petition Against”, at the appropriate time, in accordance with Section 213 of

Document Number 2097626



REPORT: Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879
Date: October 5, 2021

the Community Charter, for renewal of the Lower Lonsdale Business 
Improvement Area for an 8-year term (2022-2030) with an annual budget of 
$500,000”.

BACKGROUND

This report provides the necessary documentation for staff to proceed with the petition 
process for a new Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw to renew 
the Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area (LLBIA) for an 8-year term, 
commencing January 1,2022.

The proposed new bylaw is attached for consideration (Attachment 1) and details of the 
process and background information to the request for renewal from the LLBIA are also 
provided (Attachment 2).

Below is an information card that will be provided by the LLBIA, which staff will include 
with the mail-out petition. The QR Code provides access to a video about the LLBIA. 
The Corporate Officer has approved inclusion of this card with the petition mail-out.

DISCUSSION

The LLBIA has experienced considerable success in the past 5 years, contributing to 
the revitalisation of the Lower Lonsdale area and the success of local businesses. The 
LLBIA has also been an active and willing participant on many joint initiatives with the 
City. Respective BIA Board of Director members have, since inception, demonstrated 
enthusiasm and pride in Lower Lonsdale, which has motivated other local businesses to 
become involved in their community. BIA staff have also been regular attendees at 
Council meetings, providing useful feedback on City initiatives and private development 
projects.

Page 2 of 4



REPORT: Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879
Date: October 5, 2021

Renewal of the LIBIA will help to ensure the continued evolution of Lower Lonsdale as 
a destination for residents and tourists alike and the success of area businesses.

Next Steps

If Council approves the report recommendation, the following steps would be required:

• Staff to compile a list of Class 6 property owners in the BIA;
• Finance Department staff to calculate the 2022 levy value estimates for each 

property based on the proposed first year budget (this information to be included 
in the petition);

• Clerk’s Department staff to send out a petition to each property owner within the 
BIA boundaries;

• Clerk’s Department staff to publish 2 notices in the North Shore News in 
accordance with the Community Charter (once each week for 2 consecutive 
weeks);

o Clerk’s Department staff to tabulate the petition results and report to Council at 
the end of the 30-day response period (to begin after the second notice is 
published).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications to the City resulting from this initiative include the 
administrative costs of implementing the petition process, the cost of postage and the 
cost for publishing notices in the newspaper as well as the ongoing costs associated 
with the annual calculation, collection and remittance of the BIA levy.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

This report has been prepared with input from the Finance Department and the City 
Clerk’s Department.

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Continuation of a Business Improvement Area in Lower Lonsdale will contribute to 
Goals A-3, A-4 and B-5 of the City’s Economic Development Strategy, which 
encourages collaboration with other groups on issues of common interest, to pursue 
business retention and expansion programs and to support enhancement of diverse and 
unique shopping, dining and entertainment opportunities.

Page 3 of 4



REPORT: Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879
Date: October 5, 2021

CONCLUSION

This report provides the documents necessary for Council to proceed with notification 
and petition for a renewed Business Improvement Area Service to the affected property 
owners in the Lower Lonsdale area.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Larry h. wu

Deputy Director, Community and Partner 
Engagement

Page 4 of 4



(/& 1*0 Ua
CAODepartment

Manager
Director

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
COMMUNITY & PARTNER ENGAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: L. R. Orr, Deputy Director, Community and Partner Engagement

Subject: LOWER LONSDALE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA BYLAW
RENEWAL PROCESS

Date: January 20, 2021 File No: 13-6750-25-0001/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Deputy Director Community and Partner 
Engagement, dated January 20, 2021, entitled “Lower Lonsdale Business 
Improvement Area Bylaw Renewal Process”:

THAT staff be directed to initiate the petition process - Council Initiative 
Subject to Petition Against at the appropriate time, in accordance with Section 
213 of the Community Charter tor renewal of the Lower Lonsdale Business 
Improvement Area for an eight year term 2022 - 2030 with an annual budget of 
$500,000.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Correspondence from the Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area dated 
November 16, 2020 (Doc #1993041)

2. 2016-2021 Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2016, 
No. 8494 (Doc #1705116)

3. Petition Letter e.g.- Council Initiative to Establish a Business Improvement Area 
(BIA) in the Lower Lonsdale Neighbourhood (Doc #1397277)

PURPOSE

The Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area (LLBIA) has requested a renewal of 
their BIA Bylaw for a seven year term with the same annual budget of $500,000 and 
geographic area (Attachment #1) as under the current Bylaw.

Document Number 1992436

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



REPORT: Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Bylaw Renewal Process
Date: January 20, 2021 ____ __________________________________

This report provides Council with background information on Business Improvement 
Areas (BIA), the BIA Bylaw renewal process and seeks direction to proceed with the 
required petitioning process for Bylaw renewal.

BACKGROUND

Business Improvement Areas

A BIA is a Local Service Area (Part 7, Division 5 of the Community Charter) established 
by a municipal Council where business and light industry property owners finance 
activities to promote business.

The Community Charter (Section 215) provides the authority for a municipality to create 
a BIA Bylaw and establishes the rules for the establishment and operation of such an 
area. Business promotion activities in a BIA are financed through a municipal grant and 
local service property tax scheme to raise the funding.

For property owners and businesses, a BIA is a way to improve business success by 
organizing and financing support programs not otherwise available.

For a municipality and the wider community, a BIA provides a sector of the community 
with the means to improve local economic development and also achieve positive social 
outcomes, such as a revitalized downtown core.

The organization that will operate a BIA is typically established as a society that enables 
its members to contribute funding and pool resources for mutually beneficial activities 
and projects. Annual BIA budgets are funded through a local area service property tax 
on light industry (Class 5) and/or business (Class 6) properties within the designated 
BIA boundary.

Business Promotion Scheme

A municipal Council can only grant funding for a BIA that has one of its aims as the 
planning and implementation of a business promotion scheme. The Community 
Charter requires that the scheme must include one or more of the following:

• Carrying out studies or developing reports
• Improving, beautifying or maintaining streets, sidewalks or municipally-owned 

land, buildings or other structures
• Removing graffiti from buildings and other structures
• Conserving heritage property
• And generally encouraging business

With these considerations in mind, business and municipal leaders can work together to 
help create a shared vision of the BIA.

Page 2 of 6



REPORT: Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Bylaw Renewal Process
Date: January 20, 2021

Property Owner Approval - Petition Process

Before a BIA can be created, the property owners in the area must indicate whether 
they support or oppose its establishment. Section 213 of the Community Charter 
describes the process for petitioning for a local service area. This can be accomplished 
in one of two ways:

• Council initiative - subject to petition against: A municipal Council can initiate 
the establishment of a BIA by providing an opportunity for a petition against the 
proposed service. Council must give notice of a petition against in accordance 
with section 94 of the Community Charter and by mailing notice to all the owners 
of properties that would be subject to the local service tax. The notice must 
include information about the intent of Council to create a BIA, including 
information such as boundaries and estimated budget. Unless Council receives a 
sufficient petition against within 30 days, it can proceed. The threshold for 
sufficient petition against is 50% of parcels representing 50% of assessed value, 
as described above.

• Petition for service: Generally initiated by local business owners, the petition 
must include information about the proposed BIA, including boundaries and 
estimated budget. The petition must be signed by the owners of at least 50% of 
the properties that would be subject to the local area tax and that in total 
represent at least 50% of the assessed value of land and improvements that 
would be subject to the local service tax.

“Council initiative-subject to petition against” is the process that was undertaken for the 
establishment of the Lower Lonsdale BIA in 2016 and most, if not all, BIA’s in the 
province.

Business Improvement Area Bylaw

Once the vision for the BIA is determined and property owner approval obtained, a 
Bylaw is required for the creation of the BIA. The Bylaw:

• Must identify the business promotion scheme for the organization to which the 
money will be granted;

• Must establish the maximum amount of money to be granted and the maximum 
term over which it may be granted; and

• May set conditions and limitations on the receipt and expenditure of the money.

Maximum Amount, Term & Annual Budget

Local Area Service Bylaws typically have terms of 5 to 10 years and must specify the 
total amount of money to be granted over the term, as well as the proposed budget for 
the first year. Subsequent year’s budgets are approved at the AGM of the BIA Society.

Page 3 of 6



REPORT: Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Bylaw Renewal Process
Date: January 20, 2021

Method of Raising Funding

Funding for the BIA can be raised in a number of ways:

• A tax on land, improvements, or both
• Parcel tax (fixed amount per legal parcel of land)
• Frontage tax (fixed amount per lineal foot of frontage)
• Property value tax (dollar amount per $1,000 of assessment)
• A tax on another basis (for example, a dollar amount per square foot)

The most common form of raising funding for BIA’s in BC (including the LIBIA) is by a 
property value tax (dollar amount per $1,000 of assessment).

Managing and Operating a Business Improvement Area

Once the BIA Bylaw is approved by the municipal Council, the organizers must formally 
determine how the organization will operate and manage the BIA.

Membership

Although all commercial and industry property owners must contribute financially to the 
BIA, the organization itself decides who can be a member. Members may include 
property owners and business owners (for example, business tenants who lease 
property in the area).

Management and Structure

Members must decide the composition of the board and its electoral procedures. They 
can assign positions to represent different types of members, such as property owners 
or business owners who are tenants. Most business improvement areas have a non-
voting Council liaison who would not be a board member.

Each BIA determines its operating structure. In some cases, the board may have the 
authority to form sub-committees with specific goals, such as to prepare and implement 
annual work programs and budgets, which may include marketing, consulting studies, 
streetscape maintenance, design work, hiring of staff and liaison with municipal Council.

Annual Budgets

An organization operating a BIA is a legal entity and must report its expenditures 
annually to its members. At the annual general meeting, BIA members approve the 
budget for the next year. The budget is the annual basis for municipal Council decisions 
on granting and cost recovery for next year’s business promotion activities.

Lower Lonsdale BIA (LLBIA)

The LLBIA was established by Bylaw on November 21,2016 (Lower Lonsdale Business 
Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2016, No. 8494). See Attachment #2.

Page 4 of 6



REPORT: Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Bylaw Renewal Process
Date: January 20, 2021

The term of the current LIBIA Bylaw is five years, expiring in 2021. In accordance with 
the Bylaw, the total amount of funding to be collected for the LIBIA for the five year 
term is $2,630,000. The LLBIA has approved annual budgets of $500,000 in each of the 
five years, 2017 to 2021.

Based on a budget of $500,000 and 389 Class 6 properties in the LLBIA, the annual tax 
levy was $.060138 per $1,000 of assessed value for 2020. The estimated annual levy 
amount for some sample properties are shown in the following table:

Business Taxable Assessment Annual Levy
$ 500,000 $ 301
$2,000,000 $1,228
$5,000,000 $3,007

The current LLBIA Bylaw specifically recognizes the large assessment values for the 
Pinnacle Hotel, Seaside Hotel, Lonsdale Quay Market and Hotel and the retail area in 
the Shipyards that is leased to Quay Property Management by providing these 
properties with a 50% reduction in the levy. This is a typical provision in BIA Service 
Bylaws for properties such as hotels and large retail centres; otherwise they would pay 
a disproportionate amount of levy.

The Bylaw also requires the BIA Society to submit annual budgets and audited financial 
statements to the City, which provide ongoing municipal oversite. This oversite role is 
augmented by ongoing liaison with the Deputy Director, Community and Partner 
Engagement, who sits as an ex-officio member of the LLBIA Board of Directors. The 
LLBIA is also required to report to Council annually on its accomplishments.

Leading up to the establishment of the LLBIA, the Lower Lonsdale Business 
Association, a volunteer member-based association, operated in Lower Lonsdale for 
many years supporting member business development and promoting Lower Lonsdale 
in general with minimal resources. The Lower Lonsdale Business Association worked 
tirelessly over a number of years to promote the creation of a BIA. Council agreed to 
launch a “Council initiative - subject to petition against” process in September 2016. 
Notices regarding the proposed “Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service 
Bylaw, 2016, No. 8494” were sent to all registered property owners of Class 6 (business 
and other) properties in the proposed LLBIA (323 at that time); 103 petitions against 
were received by the City comprising 31.89% of registered owners. Attachment #3 
provides a draft of the petition that was sent out for establishing the LLBIA in 2016.

As Council is aware, the LLBIA has been actively promoting businesses in Lower 
Lonsdale and works closely with the City on a number of initiatives. Since inception, 
support for the LLBIA has grown with a steadily increasing membership base.

Next Steps

If Council approves the recommendation in this report, there are a number of follow-up 
steps to be taken:

• A list of Class 6 property owners in the BIA will be compiled;
Page 5 of 6



REPORT: Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Bylaw Renewal Process
Date: January 20, 2021

• Finance staff will calculate 2022 levy value estimates for each property based on the 
proposed first year budget (this information to be included in the petition);

• The City Clerk’s Department will send out the covering letter and petition to each 
property owner;

• The Clerk’s Department will place two notices in the North Shore News - notices 
must be placed in the newspaper one each week for two consecutive weeks;

• The background information web page will be launched on the City web page;
• At the end of the 30 day response period (to begin after the second notice), the City 

Clerk’s Department will tabulate the results and report to Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications to the City resulting from this initiative are the administrative 
costs of implementing the petition process, the cost of postage and the cost for the 
newspaper notices, as well as the ongoing administration costs associated with the 
calculation, collection and disbursement of the BIA levy.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

This report has been prepared with input from the Finance Department and the City 
Clerk’s Department.

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The continuation of a Business Improvement Area in Lower Lonsdale contributes to 
Goals A-3, A-4 and B-5 of the City’s Economic Development Strategy, which 
encourages collaboration with other groups on issues of common interest, to pursue 
business retention and expansion programs and to support enhancement of diverse and 
unique shopping, dining and entertainment opportunities. This initiative is also 
consistent with the Economic Development section of the Official Community Plan and 
the Vibrant City and Prosperous City Priorities of Council’s Strategic Plan by supporting 
local business initiative and creating unique commercial areas.

CONCLUSION

The LLBIA has had a successful four years in bringing Lower Lonsdale businesses 
together to promote the business area. In cooperation with the City, these efforts have 
shown significant results in providing an identity for the area and attracting visitors from 
the City and throughout the Lower Mainland. This has created a positive vibe in the 
neighbourhood that has also attracted new businesses to the area. Along with The 
Shipyards initiative by the City, Lower Lonsdale has become a recognised destination in 
the Lower Mainland.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Deputy Director, Community and Partner Engagement
Page 6 of 6



November 16, 2020 
 
Mayor and Council 
City of North Vancouver 
141 West 14th Street 
North Vancouver, B.C. 
V7M 1H9 
 
Re: Renewal request for the Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area (LLBIA) 
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area (LLBIA), I am pleased 
to present our official request of Council to approve our renewal for a new 8-year term effective January 1, 
2022. No expansion or change in area borders and no increase in current level of funding.  
 
Our outreach renewal process to our membership has begun; we are in the process of preparing and 
deploying a membership survey to measure awareness and satisfaction, and solicit feedback on programs and 
services. This will be followed by a mail out to all property owners and business operators with our intentions, 
accomplishment and plans for second term clearly defined. Lastly we are scheduling several drop in open 
house information sessions.  
 
Since setting up business in our inaugural first year of operation in 2017 we have worked diligently to engage 
the more than 800 commercial property owners and business operators who call The Shipyards District home. 
During this time we have grown quickly into an established, professionally run organization with a proud list of 
accomplishments.  This includes street enhancement like colourful street banners, community garden boxes, 
and support the City of North Vancouver’s Public Realm enhancement projects.  
 
We have launched a visitor servicing ambassador program with the assistance of Quay Property Management 
and City of North Vancouver, complete with customized Guide & Map. We have activated a Ferris Wheel 
attraction, created a new signature event, Shipyards Festival, welcomed more then 2500 tourism professionals 
as part of Tourism Passport Challenge and created over 8 million media impressions with potential visitors. 
These reflect just a few of our accomplishments and we’ve only just begun.  
 
The outreach and consultation process specific to this request is ongoing and we will have further findings to 
share in early 2021.  
 
Questions about the LLBIA or the work we have achieved to date can be directing to me.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Greg Holmes 
Executive Director 
 
cc Larry Orr, Deputy Director, Community and Partner Engagement, City of North Vancouver 
 
 

jpeters�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw No. 8494 CONSOLIDATED 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
 
 

“Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service 
Bylaw, 2016, No. 8494” 

 
 

CONSOLIDATED FOR CONVENIENCE – SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 
 

Amendment Bylaw, 2018, No. 8655 September 24, 2018 
 

jpeters�
FreeText
Attachment 2�



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw No. 8494 CONSOLIDATED 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8494 

A Bylaw to establish the Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service 

WHEREAS Section 215 of the Community Charter authorizes Council to establish, by bylaw, a 
local service area to provide funding to a Business Improvement Area (BIA); 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver has received a 
request to establish a BIA by way of the Council initiative (subject to petition against) approval 
process as outlined in Section 213 of the Community Charter; 
 
AND WHEREAS the owners of certain properties in the City of North Vancouver will form the 
Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Society, a registered non-profit society in the 
Province of British Columbia, to market and promote businesses within the designated BIA; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver enacts as 
follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Lower Lonsdale Business 

Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2016, No. 8494”. 
 
2. Severability 
 

If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted 
without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

 
3. Definitions 
 

A. “City” means The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver; 
 

B. “Council” means Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver; 
 

C. “Hotel” means any building, or portion thereof, that is used for the purpose of gain or 
profit through the provision of living accommodation of the transient public in 
individual sleeping units, and which may provide ancillary services such as 
restaurants, banquet rooms and other facilities including entertainment facilities; 

 
D. “Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme” means the development and 

undertaking of projects and initiatives to encourage business in the Lower Lonsdale 
commercial district, including: 

 
(1) creating a strong ‘Lower Lonsdale’ brand and distinct identity for Lower 

Lonsdale businesses; 
 

(2) developing and implementing a marketing strategy to promote Lower Lonsdale 
goods and services to local, regional and tourist markets; 

 
(3) enhancing the existing business mix and actively recruiting new commercial 

tenants that can capitalize on the market opportunities afforded by a Lower 
Lonsdale location and improve the quality of local offerings; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw No. 8494 CONSOLIDATED 

(4) promoting new investment in commercial, residential and mixed-use 
developments that support the viability of local businesses; 

 
(5) representing business community interests in local government processes; 

 
(6) participating in established major events in the community, planning and 

implementing other special events and promotions; and 
 

(7) promoting and implementing streetscape improvements and public amenities to 
enhance the visitor experience in Lower Lonsdale; 

 
E. “Market Commercial” means a retail complex with 10 or more retail stores or 

service establishments that provides public pedestrian access, public plazas or other 
public gathering places on the property as an integral part of the complex and that is 
built in conjunction with a Hotel on the same site; 

 
F. “Society” means Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Society. 

 
4. Business Improvement Area Service 
 

A. Those lands shown in heavy black outline on the map in Schedule A, attached 
hereto and forming part of this bylaw, are collectively designated as the Lower 
Lonsdale Business Improvement Area. 

 
B. The service established by this bylaw is the provision of grants to the Society for the 

planning and implementation of a business promotion scheme, as defined in Section 
215(1) of the Community Charter, and in particular, the Lower Lonsdale Business 
Promotion Scheme as defined in this bylaw. 

 
5. Grants 
 

A. Pursuant to Section 215(2) of the Community Charter and for the purposes of 
planning and implementation of the Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme: 

 
(1) Council may grant to the Society an amount not to exceed $500,000 in 2017; 

 
(2) For each subsequent year, the Society shall submit to Council for information 

on or before September 1st, a budget, reviewed by the Director of Finance of 
the City for accounting accuracy, that contains information in sufficient detail to 
describe all anticipated expenses and revenues, and which has been approved 
by a majority of the members present at an annual general meeting of the 
Society; [Bylaw 8655, September 24, 2018] 

  
(3) All annual grants to the Society will be provided in two instalments; one-half at 

the start of the calendar year and one-half following collection of municipal 
taxes in mid-year. 

 
B. The term of the service established by this bylaw is five years, commencing January 

1, 2017. 
 

C. The aggregate amount of annual grants to the Society shall not exceed $2,630,000 
over the term of the service. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw No. 8494 CONSOLIDATED 

6. General Conditions and Limitations 
 

A. Monies granted to the Society pursuant to this bylaw must only be expended by the 
Society in accordance with Schedule B, attached to and forming part of this bylaw, in 
the case of monies granted in 2017, and in accordance with the budget submitted to 
Council in the case of monies granted in 2018 and subsequent years. [Bylaw 8655, 
September 24, 2018] 

 
B. The Society must not incur any indebtedness or other obligations in respect of the 

Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme beyond the sum granted by Council for 
each calendar year. 

 
C. Unspent annual funding may be set aside in a reserve.  All reserve spending is to be 

approved by a majority of the members present at a general meeting of the Society. 
[Bylaw 8655, September 24, 2018] 

 
D. It is a condition on the receipt and expenditure of monies granted under this bylaw 

that the Society is in compliance with Parts 8 through 10 of the bylaw. 
 
7. Recovery and Tax Levy 
 

A. All of the monies granted to the Society shall be recovered in the form of a property 
value tax as provided for under Section 216 of the Community Charter. 

 
B. For the purpose of recovering the monies granted to the Society, in any year, the 

City will impose a property value tax on land or improvements, or both, that fall within 
the Class 6 (Business and Other) property classification under the Assessment Act, 
sufficient to yield the full amount of the grant. 

 
C. The property value tax imposed on Hotel and Market Commercial uses will be 50% 

of the tax charged other parcels in the BIA. 
 
8. Financial Statements 
 

A. Notwithstanding any provisions of the Society’s bylaws concerning its fiscal year, the 
Society must submit to the City, on or before April 1st each year, an audited annual 
financial statement for the previous calendar year, prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles and including a balance sheet and a 
statement of revenue and expenditures in respect of the Lower Lonsdale Business 
Promotion Scheme. 

 
B. The financial statements submitted by the Society must also be prepared in 

accordance with the requirements of the Society Act. 
 

C. The Society must permit the Director of Finance for the City, or his or her nominee, 
to inspect during normal business hours on reasonable notice, all books of account, 
receipts, invoices and other financial position records that the Director of Finance of 
the City deems advisable for the purposes of verifying and obtaining further 
particulars of the budget and any financial statements of the Society as they relate to 
monies granted to the Society by Council pursuant to this bylaw. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw No. 8494 CONSOLIDATED 

9. Insurance 
 

A. The Society must carry at all times a policy of comprehensive general liability 
insurance in the amount of $5,000,000: 

 
(1) with the City added as an additional named insured; 
(2) containing a cross coverage provision; and 
(3) containing an endorsement to provide the City Clerk with 30 days’ notice of 

change or cancellation. 
 

B. The Society must deliver a copy of each insurance policy or a certificate of insurance 
to the City Clerk within 60 days of payment of the premiums for the insurance policy. 

 
10. Alterations to the Society’s Constitution and Bylaws 
 

The City may withhold any payments of the grant referred to in Part 5 if the Society alters 
its constitution or bylaws in such a manner as to, in the opinion of Council, impair its ability 
to plan and implement the Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme. The Society 
must provide written notice of every meeting of the Society’s members, annual or general, 
at least 14 days prior to the meeting, to the City Clerk. 

 
11. No Joint Venture 
 

Nothing in this bylaw makes the City a joint venturer with the Society in the planning or 
implementation of the Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme or for any other 
purpose. 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw No. 8494 CONSOLIDATED 

12. Schedules 
 

A. Schedule A – Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Boundaries 
 
B. Schedule B – Proposed Year One (2017) Budget 

 
 

READ a first time on the 18th day of July, 2016. 

READ a second time on the 18th day of July, 2016. 

READ a third time on the 18th day of July, 2016. 

SECOND AND THIRD READINGS RESCINDED 
on the 14th day of November 14, 2016. 

READ a second time, as amended, on the 14th day 
of November, 2016. 

READ a third time, as amended, on the 14th day of 
November, 2016. 

FINALLY PASSED AND ADOPTED on the 21st day 
of November, 2016. 

“Darrell R. Mussatto” 
MAYOR 

“Karla D. Graham” 
CITY CLERK 

 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 
Bylaw No. 8494 CONSOLIDATED 

Schedule A 
 

Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Boundaries 
 
Those lands shown in heavy outline below are designated as the Lower Lonsdale Business 
Improvement Area. 
 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 8 
Bylaw No. 8494 CONSOLIDATED 

Schedule B 
 

Proposed Year One (2017) Budget 
 

CATEGORY KEY STRATEGIES / FUNCTIONS AMOUNT 
Marketing and 
Promotions 

• Strategic planning, including building a brand for the Lower 
Lonsdale business district 

• Develop marketing strategies targeted to local and Metro 
residents and visitors 

• Marketing via website, on-line services, brochures, flyers, 
broadcast, billboards, video, etc. 

• Attracting patrons by promoting the unique features of Lower 
Lonsdale and The Shipyards 

• Collective business advertising and promotions 
• Seasonal shopping promotions, lights, competitions, etc. 
• Local-area brochure and map highlighting businesses and hotels 

(printed and on website) 
• Customer parking research, strategies and solutions 
• Graffiti and other clean-up 
• Street ambassadors, hand-distribution of promotional materials 

and displays 
• Tourism promotion complementary to Destination BC  and 

VNSTA 

$220,000

Community and 
Street 
Enhancements 

• Signage (way-finding, Esplanade pedestrian overpass, 
business), lighting and street banners, unique Lower Lonsdale 
place-making features and public art pieces 

$75,000

Festivals and 
Special Events 

• Build on existing popular events like Slide the City / Car-Free 
Day, Friday Night Market, Christmas Festival and prior events 
like Party at The Pier and Fall Festival 

• Expand these events throughout the business district in addition 
to the Shipyards 

• Special promotional events 
• Event insurance 

$100,000

Liaising with 
Commercial 
Properties 

• Developing with building owners leasing strategies and 
promotion to bring a more diverse mix of businesses to the area 

• Business recruitment activities 

$20,000

Member Services • BIA Association and other membership dues 
• Professional consulting and promotion 
• Economic development 

$35,000

Administration • Directors’ and Officers' insurance 
• Accounting and audit, Board meetings and governance, office 

costs, internet, website 
(Staff costs directly incurred on other budget category work is 
allocated to those budget categories) 

$45,000

Start-up  $5,000
Total  $500,000
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 9 
Bylaw No. 8494 CONSOLIDATED 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

  Document: 1397277-v2 

August __, 2016 File: 01-0230-20-0026/2016 
 
Name merge field 
Address merge field 
Address merge field 
 
Dear Sir / Madam: 
 
RE: Council Initiative to Establish a Business Improvement Area (BIA) in the Lower 

Lonsdale Neighbourhood 
 
Over the past several years, the Lower Lonsdale Business Association (LLBA) has conducted 
meetings and been in contact with individual business and property owners to discuss the interest 
in and feasibility of the establishment of a Business Improvement Area in the Lower Lonsdale area.  
North Vancouver City Council has been formally approached by the LLBA and has directed that 
affected property owners in the area be contacted by way of a petition. 
 
At the Council meeting of July 18, 2016, the proposed “Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement 
Area Service Bylaw, 2016, No. 8494” was given introduction and three readings. A copy of the 
bylaw can be viewed at www.cnv.org/LowerLonsdaleBIA. 
 
Pursuant to Sections 210 and 215 of the Community Charter, it is the intention of the City of North 
Vancouver to establish a local area service in relation to a Business Improvement Area (BIA) in 
Lower Lonsdale.  The BIA area is outlined by a heavy black line on the attached map (Schedule “A”). 
 
The notice regarding the creation of a “Business Improvement Area on Council Initiative” is 
provided under Sections 94 and 213 of the Community Charter. 
 
1. The proposed business promotion scheme to be undertaken would consist of: 
 

a) Creating a strong “Lower Lonsdale” brand and distinct identity for Lower Lonsdale businesses; 
b) Developing and implementing a marketing strategy to promote Lower Lonsdale goods and 

services to local, regional and tourist markets; 
c) Enhancing the existing business mix and actively recruiting new commercial tenants that 

can capitalize on the market opportunities afforded by a Lower Lonsdale location, and 
improve the quality of local offerings; 

d) Promoting new investment in commercial, residential, and mixed-use developments that 
support the viability of local businesses; 

e) Representing business community interests in local government processes; 
f) Participating in established major events in the community, planning and implementing 

other special events and promotions; and 
g) Promoting and implementing streetscape improvements and public amenities to enhance 

the visitor experience in the Lower Lonsdale area. 
 
2. The business promotion scheme would be designed to benefit the area shown outlined by a 

heavy black line on the attached map (Schedule “A”). 

jpeters�
FreeText
Attachment 3�



 

- 2 - 

3. The maximum amount of funds to be spent on the business promotion scheme would be: 
$500,000 in 2017 and, in aggregate, an amount not exceeding $2,630,000 for the term of the 
proposed bylaw (5 years). 

 
4. If the bylaw is adopted, each property within the BIA area, shown outlined by a heavy black line 

on the attached map (Schedule “A”), that falls within the Class 6 (business and other) property 
classification under the BC Assessment Act, would be subject to a tax levy based on the 
assessed value of the property. 

 
5. 100% of the cost of the business promotion scheme will be borne by the benefiting property 

owners. 
 
6. The BIA levy will be collected as a property value tax calculated per $1,000 of assessed 

commercial property value.  Your estimated 2017 local service tax, based on the assessed 
value to date, is noted on the petition attached to this notice. 

 
7. The BIA levy would be imposed for a period of 5 years from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 

2021. 
 
The establishment of the Lower Lonsdale BIA is being proposed on Council Initiative – subject to 
petition against, as set out in the provisions of the Community Charter.  You are receiving this 
notice to advise that Council may proceed with the local area service (i.e. adoption of the proposed 
BIA bylaw) unless it receives a sufficient petition against the said service within 30 days after the 
second publication of this notice.  In order for the petition against the local area service to be 
certified as sufficient and valid: 
 
• One or more petitions must be signed by the owners of at least 50% of the parcels that would 

be subject to the BIA levy; and 
• The persons signing the petition must be the owners of the parcels that in total represent at least 

50% of the assessed value of land and improvements that would be subject to the BIA levy. 
 
If you support the BIA initiative, there is no need to respond to this letter.  If you are opposed to the 
proposal (i.e. petition against), you must provide your opposition in writing.  This can be done by 
indicating “No” on the attached petition and returning it to the City Clerk, City of North Vancouver, 
141 West 14th Street, North Vancouver, BC, V7M 1H9, no later than 4:00 pm, September 14, 
2016.  The petition against would state: 
 
• That you oppose the adoption of the “Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service 

Bylaw, 2016, No. 8494”; 
• The property within the Lower Lonsdale BIA that you own, by including the legal description 

or civic address of the property; 
• The name of all owners of the property; 
• The signature of the majority of all owners of the property. 

 
For more information on the Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area initiative, please visit: 
www.cnv.org/LowerLonsdaleBIA or contact Larry Orr, Manager, Business Services at lorr@cnv.org 
or 604-982-3913. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
Karla Graham, MMC 
City Clerk



 

 

SCHEDULE “A” 
Lower Lonsdale 

Business Improvement Area 
 

 
 



 

 

 

Petition 
 
 NO –  I do not support the creation of a Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area 
 
 Please note:  The petition will succeed unless a majority of the property 

owners, representing a majority of the assessed value of land and 
improvements in the area, object to the initiative. 

 
 YES – I support the creation of a Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area 
 
 Please note:  This is optional.  You do NOT need to respond if you are in 

favour of the initiative. 

The registered owner(s) of the property affected or, if there is more than one property owner of a 
particular parcel, a majority of the property owners of that parcel, must sign for the objection to be 
valid. Where the registered owner of the property is a company or business, an authorized 
signatory for the company or business must sign for the objection to be valid: 

Name of Property Owner:  mail merged info  

Roll: mail merged info  Property Site Address:  mail merged info 

Estimated 2017 local service tax based on assessed value to date:  $mail merged info 

Signature(s) of registered owner(s) 

 
 
 
       
Signature of Property Owners: mail merged info 
Authorized Signatory(ies) of: mail merged info 
 
 
       
Title 
 
 
Please sign and return this petition to the City Clerk, City of North Vancouver, 141 West 14th Street, 
North Vancouver, V7M 1H9, no later than the petition closing date of 4:00 pm, September 14, 
2016. 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879 Document: 2097723-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8879 

A Bylaw to establish the Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service 

WHEREAS Section 215 of the Community Charter authorizes Council to establish, by bylaw, a 
local service area to provide funding to a Business Improvement Area (BIA); 
 
WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver has received a 
request to establish a BIA by way of the Council initiative (subject to petition against) approval 
process as outlined in Section 213 of the Community Charter; 
 
AND WHEREAS the owners of certain properties in the City of North Vancouver will form the 
Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Society, a registered non-profit society in the 
Province of British Columbia, to market and promote businesses within the designated BIA; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver enacts as 
follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Lower Lonsdale Business 

Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879”. 
 
2. Severability 
 

If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid 
portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted 
without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

 
3. Definitions 
 

A. “City” means The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver. 
 

B. “Council” means the Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver. 
 

C. “Hotel” means any building, or portion thereof, that is used for the purpose of gain or 
profit through the provision of living accommodation of the transient public in 
individual sleeping units, and which may provide ancillary services such as 
restaurants, banquet rooms and other facilities including entertainment facilities. 

 
D. “Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme” means the development and 

undertaking of projects and initiatives to encourage business in the Lower Lonsdale 
commercial district, including: 

 
(1) creating a strong ‘Lower Lonsdale’ brand and distinct identity for Lower 

Lonsdale businesses; 
 

(2) developing and implementing a marketing strategy to promote Lower Lonsdale 
goods and services to local, regional and tourist markets; 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879 Document: 2097723-v1 

(3) enhancing the existing business mix and actively recruiting new commercial 
tenants that can capitalize on the market opportunities afforded by a Lower 
Lonsdale location and improve the quality of local offerings; 

 
(4) promoting new investment in commercial, residential and mixed-use 

developments that support the viability of local businesses; 
 

(5) representing business community interests in local government processes; 
 

(6) participating in established major events in the community, planning and 
implementing other special events and promotions; and 

 
(7) promoting and implementing streetscape improvements and public amenities to 

enhance the visitor experience in Lower Lonsdale. 
 

E. “Market Commercial” means a retail complex with 10 or more retail stores or service 
establishments that provides public pedestrian access, public plazas or other public 
gathering places on the property as an integral part of the complex and that is built in 
conjunction with a Hotel on the same site. 

 
F. “Society” means Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Society. 

 
4. Business Improvement Area Service 
 

A. Those lands shown in heavy black outline on the map in Schedule A, attached 
hereto and forming part of this bylaw, are collectively designated as the Lower 
Lonsdale Business Improvement Area. 

 
B. The service established by this bylaw is the provision of grants to the Society for the 

planning and implementation of a business promotion scheme, as defined in Section 
215(1) of the Community Charter, and in particular, the Lower Lonsdale Business 
Promotion Scheme as defined in this bylaw. 

 
5. Grants 
 

A. Pursuant to Section 215(2) of the Community Charter and for the purposes of 
planning and implementation of the Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme: 

 
(1) Council may grant to the Society an amount not to exceed $500,000 in 2022; 

 
(2) For each subsequent year, the Society shall submit to Council for information 

on or before September 1st, a budget, reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer of 
the City for accounting accuracy, that contains information in sufficient detail to 
describe all anticipated expenses and revenues, and which has been approved 
by a majority of the members present at an annual general meeting of the 
Society; 

 
(3) All annual grants to the Society will be provided in two instalments; one-half at 

the start of the calendar year and one-half following collection of municipal 
taxes in mid-year. 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879 Document: 2097723-v1 

B. The term of the service established by this bylaw is eight years, commencing 
January 1, 2022. 

 
C. The aggregate amount of annual grants to the Society shall not exceed $4,000,000 

over the term of the service. 
 
6. General Conditions and Limitations 
 

A. Monies granted to the Society pursuant to this bylaw must only be expended by the 
Society in accordance with Schedule B, attached to and forming part of this bylaw, in 
the case of monies granted in 2022, and in accordance with the budget submitted to 
Council in the case of monies granted in 2023 and subsequent years.  

 
B. The Society must not incur any indebtedness or other obligations in respect of the 

Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme beyond the sum granted by Council for 
each calendar year. 

 
C. Unspent annual funding may be set aside in a reserve.  All reserve spending is to be 

approved by a majority of the members present at a general meeting of the Society.  
 

D. It is a condition on the receipt and expenditure of monies granted under this bylaw 
that the Society is in compliance with Parts 8 through 10 of the bylaw. 

 
7. Recovery and Tax Levy 
 

A. All of the monies granted to the Society shall be recovered in the form of a property 
value tax as provided for under Section 216 of the Community Charter. 

 
B. For the purpose of recovering the monies granted to the Society, in any year, the 

City will impose a property value tax on land or improvements, or both, that fall within 
the Class 6 (Business and Other) property classification under the Assessment Act, 
sufficient to yield the full amount of the grant. 

 
C. The property value tax imposed on Hotel and Market Commercial uses will be 50% 

of the tax charged other parcels in the BIA. 
 
8. Financial Statements 
 

A. Notwithstanding any provisions of the Society’s bylaws concerning its fiscal year, the 
Society must submit to the City, on or before April 1st each year, an audited annual 
financial statement for the previous calendar year, prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles and including a balance sheet and a 
statement of revenue and expenditures in respect of the Lower Lonsdale Business 
Promotion Scheme. 

 
B. The financial statements submitted by the Society must also be prepared in 

accordance with the requirements of the Society Act. 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 4 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879 Document: 2097723-v1 

C. The Society must permit the Chief Financial Officer for the City, or his or her 
nominee, to inspect during normal business hours on reasonable notice, all books of 
account, receipts, invoices and other financial position records that the Chief 
Financial Officer of the City deems advisable for the purposes of verifying and 
obtaining further particulars of the budget and any financial statements of the Society 
as they relate to monies granted to the Society by Council pursuant to this bylaw. 

 
9. Insurance 
 

A. The Society must carry at all times a policy of comprehensive general liability 
insurance in the amount of $5,000,000: 

 
(1) with the City added as an additional named insured; 
 
(2) containing a cross coverage provision; and 
 
(3) containing an endorsement to provide the Chief Corporate Officer with 30 days’ 

notice of change or cancellation. 
 

B. The Society must deliver a copy of each insurance policy or a certificate of insurance 
to the Chief Corporate Officer within 60 days of payment of the premiums for the 
insurance policy. 

 
10. Alterations to the Society’s Constitution and Bylaws 
 

The City may withhold any payments of the grant referred to in Part 5 if the Society alters 
its constitution or bylaws in such a manner as to, in the opinion of Council, impair its ability 
to plan and implement the Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme. The Society 
must provide written notice of every meeting of the Society’s members, annual or general, 
at least 14 days prior to the meeting, to the Chief Corporate Officer. 

 
11. No Joint Venture 
 

Nothing in this bylaw makes the City a joint venturer with the Society in the planning or 
implementation of the Lower Lonsdale Business Promotion Scheme or for any other 
purpose. 

 
12. Repeal 
 

“Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Service Bylaw, 2016, No. 8494” and all 
amendments are repealed as of December 31, 2021. 

 
13. Schedules 
 

A. Schedule A – Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Boundaries 
 

B. Schedule B – Proposed Year One (2022) Budget 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 5 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879 Document: 2097723-v1 

14. Effective Date 
 
 This bylaw comes into force and effect on January 1, 2022. 
 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 6 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879 Document: 2097723-v1 

Schedule A 
Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area Boundaries 

 
Those lands shown in heavy outline below are designated as the Lower Lonsdale Business 
Improvement Area. 
 

 
 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 7 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8879 Document: 2097723-v1 

Schedule B 
Proposed Year One (2022) Budget 

 
ADMINISTRATION  
Audit and Bookkeeping 15,000
AGM: annual meeting, annual report, filing and distribution 6,000
Directors & Officers insurance 1,000
BIA Executive Director 40,000
BIA Assistant 10,000
Miscellaneous Office: supplies, telephone, storage 5,000
Office Rent 21,000

sub-total 98,000
MEMBER SERVICES  
BIABC Association and other membership dues 1,000
Workshops and guest speakers 6,000
Directors & Officers insurance 3,000
Story, image & video collection 10,000

sub-total 20,000
FESTIVALS AND EVENTS  
Signature Events: Halloween, Christmas, Shipyards Fest 70,000
Liability Insurance 2,000
Event activation 16,000
Sponsorship of new or established events 21,000

sub-total 109,000
STREET ENHANCEMENTS  
Banners and Street Signs: branding and beautifying district 7,000
Street garden planters, maintenance and installation 20,000
PLAY Activation 9,000
Public Art: Murals, utility wraps, crosswalks 30,000
Contingency 20,000

sub-total 86,000
COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES  
Business Recruitment: investor info, listings, signage 5,000
Advocacy for fair commercial property tax 5,000
Education and conferences 3,000

sub-total 13,000
MARKETING - ADVERTISING / PROMOTIONS  
Website: growth, maintenance, upgrades & revisions 10,000
Digital Marketing & Social Media: posts & campaigns/ads 20,000
Branding & Promotional Products 10,000
Direct Mail Marketing: brochure/promotion to local residents 30,000
Map & Guide - Printing and distribution 14,000
General Advertising: print, radio, co-op & OOH 47,000
Street Ambassadors: hand distribution of promotional map/guide 20,000
Seasonal shopping promotion, campaigns and competition 23,000

sub-total 174,000
FUNDING $500,000

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



IM
Department
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Karen Montgomerie, Planner 2

Subject: DUPLEX SPECIAL STUDY IMPLEMENTATION: NORTHERN BLOCKS
OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONING BYLAW 
AMENDMENT

Date: October 6,2021 File No: 13-6520-20-0056/1

|_________ The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.________ |

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated October 6, 2021, entitled 
“Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan 
Amendment and Zoning Bylaw Amendment”:

THAT “Official Community Plan Bylaw, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 
8757” (A Bylaw to Change Residential Levels in the Duplex Special Study Area - 
Northern Part and Revise the Duplex Special Study Area Boundary) be 
considered and referred to a Public Hearing;

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8758” (New 
Residential Levels in the Duplex Special Study Area, RT-1) be considered and 
referred to the same public hearing.

AND THAT notification of the public hearing be circulated in accordance with the 
Local Government Act.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Duplex Special Study Area OCP Boundary, Initial Study Boundary and Post Input 
Boundary (CityDocs #2099805)

2. Duplex Special Study Area Existing Land Use Map (CityDocs #2051505)
3. Duplex Special Study Recommended Option Land Use Map (CityDocs #2051508)

Document Number: 2085772 V1



REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan Amendment and
Zoning Bylaw Amendment
Date: October 6, 2021

4. Staff Report: Duplex Special Study Results and Direction, dated February 28, 
2018 (CityDocs #2051510)

5. Staff Report: Duplex Special Study Implementation Update, dated May 11, 2021 
(CityDocs #20998201

6. Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 8757 (CityDocs 1850252)
7. Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 8758 (CityDocs 1850254)

SUMMARY

This report outlines the Official Community Plan (OCP) and Zoning Bylaw amendments 
necessary to implement the Duplex Special Study recommended option for the northern 
part of the special study area (as defined in the OCP). This would allow for duplex 
development for the 88 lots in the northern part of the special study area without a 
requirement for individual rezoning applications. The OCP amendment would also 
revise the Duplex Special Study Area boundary to remove the northern blocks from the 
area, and include all lots identified in the recommended option for the southern part of 
the study area with corresponding text amendments.

Figure 1 Duplex Special Study Area, 300 blocks between East 13th and East 19th Streets

Northern Part
• Properties fronting E 19th St
• Properties fronting E 18th St
• Properties fronting E 17th St
• Ridgeway between E 15th & E 17th St

Southern Part
• Properties fronting E 16th St
• Properties fronting E 15th St
• Properties fronting E 14th St
• Properties on north side of E 13th St
• St Andrews between E 15th & E 16th St

Northern part of 
Study Area

Southern part of 
Study Area

* C

••• •
• • •
• • •

• * w#. si

K. .
b®

Page 2 of 8



REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan Amendment and
Zoning Bylaw Amendment
Date: October 6, 2021

BACKGROUND

During the final stages of the 2014 OCR update, a number of residents between East 
15th and East 19th Streets approached Council and requested a change from 
Residential Level 1 (0.5 FSR) to Residential Level 2 (0.5 FSR) in the Official Community 
Plan (OCR). This was to allow for duplex development consistent with the proposal for 
the eastern half of the 300 blocks between 13th and 15th Streets to the south. This 
request came late in the process, and in response a Special Study Area designation 
was applied to this area in the OCR. Special Study Areas are areas that have been 
identified for a possible Schedule A land use change at a later date.

The blocks on the eastern half of the 300 blocks from 13th to 15th Streets were 
designated Residential Level 2 (0.5 FSR) in the OCR, however they were not rezoned 
at the time which means currently individual re-zonings are required to build duplexes 
on these properties.

Duplex Special Study Process
In spring of 2017, staff were directed by Council to initiate the Duplex Special Study and 
explore housing options for the 300 blocks of East 13th to East 19th Streets in 
consultation with area residents. The following resolution was passed:

THAT, as set out in Option 1 of the report, staff be directed to proceed with the 
OCR Duplex Special Study to consider expanding the Residential Level 2 
designation to apply to the 300 blocks East 15th through East 19th Streets, and to 
explore zoning the land and the east half of 300 blocks East 13th through 15th 
Streets to allow for duplex development.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

The resolution expanded the Duplex Special Study Area beyond the study area 
identified in the OCR. Refer to Attachment 1, Duplex Special Study Area OCR 
Boundary, Initial Boundary and Post Input Boundary.

Staff conducted community engagement and analysis of options. A Preference Survey 
was mailed to owners and occupants of the 151 properties in the area to assess the 
level of interest in considering land use change and to invite input on initial options. The 
survey was also made available more broadly online. A total of 138 responses were 
received, 88 (64%) from residents within the study boundary, and there was majority 
support for change in the area.

As a result of the Preference Survey and staff analysis, the study boundary was 
adjusted to include the north side of East 19th Street (to the lane) and the block between 
East 15th Street and East16th Street on the east side of St. Andrew’s Avenue 
(Attachment 1).

Page 3 of 8



REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan Amendment and
Zoning Bylaw Amendment
Date: October 6, 2021

Following engagement, the Duplex Special Study area boundary includes a total of 146 
properties, with the following current land use designations (Attachment 2, Duplex 
Special Study Area Existing Land Use Map):

• 115 lots at Residential Level 1 (Low density, single family detached, 0.5 FSR)
• 24 lots at Residential Level 2 (Low density, duplex, 0.5 FSR)
• 7 lots at Residential Level 3 (Low density, rowhouse and townhouse, 0.75 FSR)

Input from the Preference Survey assisted staff in their analysis and development of a 
series of land use options. These options were presented at an Open House, with paper 
and online feedback forms used to gather results. The greatest support was for the 
option that would provide for more ground oriented housing including duplex and 
rowhouse forms with the potential for accessory secondary suites on nearly all lots.

Recommended Option
The results of further staff analysis and the two rounds of public engagement led to a 
recommended option (Attachment 3, Recommended Option Land Use Map) being 
presented to Council as follows:

• Duplex development on 76 lots (Residential Level 2, 0.5 FSR);
• Small lot duplex (no suites) on 12 lots (Residential Level 2, 0.5 FSR);
• Rowhouse or townhouse development on 51 lots (Residential Level 3, 0.75 

FSR);
• Garden apartment development on seven lots (Residential Level 4A, 1.0 FSR).

From an urban form perspective, the structure of development in the City follows a 
pattern of transitional densities, with higher densities along the north/south spine of 
Lonsdale Avenue stepping down in density along the blocks to the east and west. The 
300 blocks east of Lonsdale Avenue function as a transition between highest density to 
the west and lower density to the east. The study area is bisected along East 15th Street 
by a significant arm of the Frequent Transit Network, providing 15 minute connectivity 
from the west, through the Lonsdale Regional Centre and into Lynn Valley Town 
Centre.

The recommended option provides for a wide range of ground orientated housing in the 
study area, including the potential for accessory secondary suites on nearly all lots. For 
the 88 lots proposed to change from Residential Level 1 to duplex development 
(Residential Level 2), there would be no increase in density, as Residential Level 1 also 
has a density of 0.5 FSR. For the 58 lots proposed to change to Residential Levels 3 
and 4 in the southern part of the study area, there would be a marginal increase in 
density of between 0.25 - 0.5 FSR which would create a more gradual transition to the 
medium density areas to the west.

By transitioning from traditional single family forms, more ground orientated rental suites 
and smaller, less expensive ownership options can be made available in the 
community. With the introduction of varied development options, the potential number of 
units within the study area increases to 648 (as compared to the current OCR potential 
of 477 units) with an estimated population increase of approximately 425 people should

Page 4 of 8



REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan Amendment and
Zoning Bylaw Amendment
Date: October 6, 2021

every lot redevelop to its full potential. The forms of development proposed do not 
involve large consolidations, and it is anticipated that redevelopment in this area would 
occur at a small scale incrementally over time.

The introduction of rowhouse, townhouse and garden apartment development forms of 
development would also support the transit network and encourage active 
transportation. A review of underground infrastructure capacity revealed no concerns 
regarding water and sewer to accommodate this future growth. The drainage system 
has one gap on E 16th Street that may require an applicant to extend the existing 
drainage main to service a new development as per the Subdivision and Development 
Control Bylaw. Any longer term infrastructure upgrades would come through regular 
upgrades set out in the City’s capital plan, as is the case in other lower density areas of 
the City.

At the time of developing the recommended option, staff also met with representatives 
of the North Vancouver School District (NVSD) regarding the potential increase in 
population and the potential need for additional school spaces. The School District 
advised that should Council proceed with the proposed changes, they would request 
additional funding from the Province to add additional capacity. The NVSD Capital Plan 
was presented and adopted at the public Board meeting in September 2021. The NVSD 
have requested an expansion for a new Queensbury Elementary, and have also put 
forward a request for land acquisition in the CNV in anticipation of future need.

Based on the staff recommended option (Attachment 4, Duplex Special Study: Results 
and Direction) at its regular meeting on March 5, 2018, Council passed the following 
resolution:

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated February 28, 2018, entitled
“Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction”:

THAT the results of the Duplex Special Study be received and community
members thanks for their input;

CARRIED

AND THAT the study be concluded and staff be directed to return with draft 
bylaws and process for implementation.

CARRIED

DISCUSSION

Staff provided an Information Report to Council (Attachment 5, Duplex Special Study 
Implementation Update) on May 11, 2021 to outline the proposed two-stage process for 
implementing the recommended option.

As outlined in the Information Report, residents of the area have been notified of the 
process for implementing the recommended option (via website updates and the study

Page 5 of 8



REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan Amendment and
Zoning Bylaw Amendment
Date: October 6, 2021

email contact list). Additionally, a virtual open house was held on September 14, 2021 
where staff presented the study and attendees were able to ask questions and provide 
comments.

Figure 2 Overview of Two-stage Implementation Process

Stage 1 - Northern Part (2021)
• OCR and bylaw amendments 

considered by Council
• Public hearing
• Adoption

w

Stage 2 - Southern Part (2022)

Development of guidance/changes to
zoning to enable small lot options as of right
OCR and bylaw amendments considered by
Council
Public hearing
Adoption

Stage 1 - Northern Part

For the properties (88 lots) on the northern blocks that are currently zoned One Unit 
Residential (RS-1) with a current OCR land use designation of Residential Level 1, the 
process for implementing the recommended option requires an OCR amendment to 
change the land use designation to Residential Level 2 and a corresponding change in 
zoning to Two Unit Residential (RT-1). There is no further analysis required to 
implement changes in the northern part of the study area and this report includes draft 
bylaws for implementation of the recommended option in the northern part of the study 
area. The controls for any new development in the northern part of the study area would 
be handled through the building permit process.

As part of implementing the recommended option in the northern part of the study area, 
the Duplex Special Study Area boundary in the OCR will be revised to reflect the 
adjusted study boundary for the southern part of the study area and include all 
properties to which the recommended option applies.

Stage 2 - Southern Part

The recommended option proposes a change to OCR land use designations for the 
remaining properties to Residential Level 3 (51 lots) and Residential Level 4A (7 lots). 
The process for implementing this is more complex, as the rowhouse and garden 
apartment forms do not currently exist in the Zoning Bylaw. This means that if an OCR 
amendment was taken forward for these lots, individual rezoning applications would still 
be required to take forward this form of development. Further analysis is required to 
develop the required guidance and/or corresponding changes to zoning that would allow 
for rowhouse, garden apartment or other small lot options in the southern part of the 
study area.

The increase in density proposed in the southern portion of the study area also presents 
an opportunity to explore how the development of new affordable home ownership 
options could be supported on these properties through the OCR amendment and 
rezoning process. The City’s Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, in

Page 6 of 8



REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan Amendment and
Zoning Bylaw Amendment
Date: October 6, 2021

conjunction with the OCR, requires community benefit cash contributions based on the 
lift gained for certain forms of development, including Residential Levels 3 and 4 (the 
policy does not apply to lower density OCR designations). The further analysis will 
consider the interaction of the density bonus policy and the potential for supporting 
affordable home ownership options.

NEXT STEPS

Should council approve this report, the attached draft Bylaws will proceed to Public 
Hearing. Should Council support the adoption of the OCR and zoning bylaw 
amendments following the Public Hearing, applications for duplex development in the 
northern part of the study area would be processed through the building permit process.

Staff will undertake the further analysis in 2022 to take forward implementation of the 
recommended option in the southern part of the special study area.

STATUTORY REVIEW

The Local Government Act Section 475(2)(b) specifies entities that may require 
opportunity for consultation during consideration of an OCR amendment. As part of 
meeting this requirement, staff met with representatives of the North Vancouver School 
District 44 regarding the potential increase in population prior to presenting the 
Recommended Option to Council in March 2018 (Attachment 4). Should Council 
proceed with changes to land use designations within the study area, the OCR 
amendment bylaw would be formally referred to the school district as part of the public 
hearing notification process.

Section 477(3) (a) of the Local Government Act requires municipalities to consider 
whether the changes would have any impacts on the City’s Financial Plan or Waste 
Management Plan. The proposed change to the OCR presents no significant impact on 
the City’s infrastructure, therefore no significant impact to the City’s Financial Plan or 
Waster Management Plan are contemplated.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no anticipated financial costs to the City as a result of the proposed OCR and 
zoning bylaw amendments. The City’s Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy 
(2019) does not apply to land designated Residential Levels 1 and 2 in the OCR.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

The two-stage process for implementing the recommended option was presented and 
discussed at the Advisory Planning Committee in June 2021. The Duplex Special Study 
has also been presented to other departments and internal committees throughout the 
project.

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS

Page 7 of 8



REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation: Northern Blocks Official Community Plan Amendment and
Zoning Bylaw Amendment
Date: October 6, 2021

The proposal is intended to support and build on the key housing relative objectives and 
policies in the City’s Official Community Plan (2014), including:

• Policy 1.3.1 Ensure that new development is compatible with the established 
urban form of the City, reflecting the primacy of the Lonsdale Regional City 
Centre and the transition through mid- and low-rise buildings to lower-density 
residential neighbourhoods

• Policy 1.3.2 Avoid “zoning cliffs" at the edges of high and medium density 
residential areas by designating lower density multiple residential development 
between higher density and single family areas

• Policy 1.5.1 Provide opportunities for a range of housing densities, diversified in 
type, size and location.

• Policy 1.5.2 Increase the amount of affordable and adequate accommodations 
for lower income households (including non-market housing) in an effort to meet 
the Metro Vancouver Housing Demand Estimates articulated for the City over the 
next 10 years

It also supports the vision of the Housing Action Plan (2016) to ensure there are diverse 
and appropriate housing options for current and future residents of all ages, incomes, 
and abilities supports, and the 2018-2022 Council Strategic Plan priority of a 'City for 
People’.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Page 8 of 8



Figure 2. Post Input BoundaryFigure 1. Initial Boundary

Duplex Special Study Area

C 19th St
E 19th SI

:
I L

C Ittti SIf If th St

fTTOB < ts <
\ii... R

lll •••• c ireisie irihsi
ft i ini ___ •I! m s«

i-lliJ
E HthSl

XU L
E 1S«) SII■ 7 y

• • • • •
• E 13» St• E IS«tSlHi

• e um si■1
::*

uj  . m
• E 14«i SI

UJ • •••
E I]* SI e un st

Legend
Residential Level 1 0 5
(Low Density)
Residential Level 2 0 5
(Low Density)___________
Residential Level 3 075
(Low Density)
Residential Level 4A 10
(Medium Density)

Residential Level 5 1.6
(Mednan Density) 
Residential Level 6 23
(Hi0h Density)
Parks. Recreation &
Open Space

School & Institutional

OCP Boundary

          Attachment #1

Duplex Special Study Area OCP Boundary,  Initial Boundary and Post Input Boundary

Initial Boundary Post Input Boundary



Attachment #2 
 
Duplex Special Study Area Existing Land Use Map 
 

 
 

 



  

Attachment #3 
 
Duplex Special Study Area Recommended Option Land Use Map 
 
 

  



JA £
Division
Manager

Director dAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Darrell R. Mussatto and Members of Council

From: Suzanne A. Smith, Planner 2

SUBJECT: DUPLEX SPECIAL STUDY: RESULTS AND DIRECTION.

Date: February 28,2018 File No: 13-6520-01-0002/2018

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Please refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION:

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated February 28, 2018, entitled 
“Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction”:

THAT the results of the Duplex Special Study be received and community 
members thanked for their input;

AND THAT the study be concluded and staff be directed to return with draft bylaws 
and process for implementation.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Context Map: Duplex Special Study Area (Doc #1625324):
2. Duplex Special Study Input Summary Report (Doc #1626137):
3. Recommended Option (Doc #1624136);
4. Rowhouse Form Example (Doc #1624589).

PURPOSE:

This report presents the results of the Duplex Special Study and seeks direction to 
proceed with bylaw amendments to implement the preferred option. Staff would return 
with proposed bylaw amendments for consideration to guide future development. This 
would include options for rezoning some or all of the study area.

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 1 of 11
#1579609v3

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 4�



BACKGROUND:

Portions of the 300 block east of Lonsdale have been under transition for some time. Prior 
to 1980, the 300 blocks were all designated single family development form. In 1980, with 
the introduction of the City’s first Official Community Plan (OCP), the blocks to the south 
of the Duplex Special Study area, from Keith Road up to the south side of 13th Street, 
received a combination of land use designations. The plan introduced Residential Level
1 in the eastern half of the blocks and Residential Level 2 (duplex development potential) 
in the western half, resulting in a mid-block split as a transition between the higher density 
blocks and Lonsdale Avenue to the west and the single family area to the east.

This mid-block split OCP designation was unique at the time. OCP land use designations 
are generally applied on a block by block basis with either a street or a lane separating 
the uses. Referred to as the 'mid-block area’, the divided nature of this transition resulted 
in considerable discussion over the years. By 2006 the blocks were re-designated from 
OCP Residential Level 1 (0.5 FSR) land use designation to Residential Level 2 (0.5 FSR). 
Then in 2014, with the introduction of Duplex Development Permit Guidelines, the blocks 
were rezoned to permit duplex development. Where new development complies with 
related guidelines Development Permits are then issued by staff.

During the process to develop the 2014 Official Community Plan, the blocks on the 
eastern half of the 300 Blocks from 13th to 15th Street were designated Residential Level
2 in the land use map. They were not rezoned at the time, which means individual re- 
zonings are still required to build a duplex development.

In 2015, during the final stages of the 2014 OCP update, some residents in the 300 blocks 
between East 15th and 19th Streets approached Council and requested a change from 
Residential Level 1 to Residential Level 2 in the OCP, which would allow for duplex 
development, consistent with the 300 blocks to the south. This request came late in the 
process and a new Public Hearing would have been required to incorporate this request. 
As an alternative, a Special Study Area designation was applied to this area in the OCP 
prior to Bylaw adoption. Special Study Areas are areas that have been identified for a 
possible Schedule A Land use change at a later date.

In the spring of 2017, staff were directed by Council to initiate the Duplex Special Study 
and explore housing options for the 300 blocks of East 13th to 19th Street in consultation 
with area residents (Attachment #1). The following resolution was passed:

THAT, as set out in Option 1 of the report, staff be directed to proceed with the 
OCP Duplex Special Study to consider expanding the Residential Level 2 
designation to apply to the 300 blocks East 15th through 19th Streets, and to 
explore zoning the lands and the east half of 300 blocks East 13th through 15th 
Streets to allow for duplex development.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 2 of 11
#1579609v3



In the Council discussion, staff were encouraged to consider a variety of approaches to 
producing housing options for the area as this effort contributes to the implementation of 
the City’s Housing Action Plan (HAP). The HAP includes a variety of strategies to address 
the housing needs of City residents, including the provision of smaller, more affordable 
ownership options and increasing the stock of accessory rental units in proximity to transit 
and services.

This report presents results of the Duplex Special Study and recommended next steps 
for implementation.

DISCUSSION:

A notification boundary was established for the Duplex Special Study and an initial mail 
out was sent to invite residents to participate in the process (Attachment #1). A series of 
large project signs were also posted throughout the study area to provide notification and 
direct community members to the project webpage and staff contact information. The 
project webpage includes staff reports and additional materials as they have become 
available at www.cnv.orq/duplexstudy.

A Preference Survey (see the Input Summary Report in Attachment #2) was mailed to 
owners and occupants to assess the current level of interest in considering land use 
change in the area and for input on some initial housing concepts. This survey was also 
made available more broadly online.

Preference Survey
The survey was well received with 138 responses representing an area with 151 
properties. Of the responses, 88 (64%) were received from residents within the study 
boundary and 50 (36%) from residents living outside the boundary (Attachment #2). 
Overall, there was majority support for change in the area, with the strongest support 
initially for duplex development and for rowhouse form of development in some areas. 
Comments in support of change cited the ability of density to help increase housing 
options and affordability and expansion of the study boundary. A number of comments 
encouraged higher density than proposed in the survey. Concerns included the current 
level of use of on street parking.

As a result of both input received and staff analysis, the study boundary was adjusted to 
include the north side of East 19th Street (to the lane) and the block between 15th and 16th 
Streets on the east side of St. Andrew’s Ave (Attachment #1). In both cases, a number of 
letters were received in support of inclusion in the study; and one email of opposition for 
the inclusion of 19th Street (Attachment #2). Staff included the north side of 19th Street 
based on the urban design principle of providing a transition of form over the laneway to, 
rather than on, 19th Street.

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 3 of 11
#1579609v3



Open House and Feedback Form
Input from the Preference Survey assisted staff in their analysis and development of a 
series of land use change options for further discussion and input. These options were 
refined and presented at an Open House in September. The open house was well 
attended and a feedback form (paper and online) used to gather results.

The results of the input and further staff analysis produced a recommended option. The 
greatest support was for the option which would provide for more ground oriented housing 
including duplex and rowhouse forms with the potential for accessory secondary suites 
on nearly all lots. The introduction of the rowhouse form would contribute to a wider variety 
of housing forms in the City, using less land and a lower cost as compared with 
contemporary housing in the community.

The preferred option (Attachment #3) would introduce the potential for:
• duplex development on 76 lots (0.5 FSR);
• small lot duplex on 12 lots (0.5 FSR);
• rowhouse (fee simple) or townhouse (strata) development on 51 lots (0.75 FSR);
• garden apartment development on 7 lots (1.0 FSR).

Comments received through the open house and feedback form included interest in 
housing options for ‘empty nesters’ to downsize and remain in the same area, concern 
for local school capacity, the potential for displacement of long-term renters in the study 
area, parking related concerns and concern for property developers benefiting from any 
proposed uplift.

ANALYSIS:

The implications for the recommended option from an urban form perspective and an 
analysis of the number of dwelling units, owned and rented, schools, infrastructure and 
transportation has been completed. Each element is outlined in more detail below.

Urban Form
The structure of development in the City follows a pattern of transitional densities, 
featuring higher densities along the north/south spine of Lonsdale Avenue and then 
stepping down in density along the blocks to the east and west. As a result, the 300 
blocks east of Lonsdale Avenue function as a transition between the higher density to the 
west and lower density to the east. This transition is more varied on the east side of 
Central Lonsdale, including the blocks closer to the hospital lands.

The study area is bisected along East 15th Street by a significant arm of the Frequent 
Transit Network and is identified in the North Shore Area Transit Plan as providing 15 
minute bus service connectivity from the west, through the City’s Lonsdale Regional City 
Centre and into the Lynn Valley Town Centre.

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 4 of 11
#1579609v3



The introduction of Residential Level 3 in the study area at 0.75 FSR could allow for 
rowhouse (fee simple) or townhouse (strata) development in support of the transit 
network.

A rowhouse, in essence, is a narrow single family house on a narrow lot with parking on 
site, and a shared wall agreement with a neighbour on one or both sides. It can have an 
accessory secondary suite and, in some cases an accessory coach house unit. This form 
can be compared with townhouse development which features shared common property 
under the guidance of a strata and a form that often results in centralized parking. The 
townhouse form at 0.75 FSR does not typically include accessory rental units. This can, 
however, be facilitated through the subsequent zoning amendments.

The rowhouse form creates a pedestrian scale streetwall which is positive for the 
streetscape. As a result, this form is beneficial for use adjacent to frequent transit routes 
like 15th Street, and in close proximity to the city centre. This form, with shared walls, is 
also more energy efficient than its larger stand alone traditional single family form. The 
rowhouse form was generally supported when reviewed by members of the Advisory 
Design Panel in February.

Figure 1 below, and Attachment #4 provide some visual examples of how the rowhouse 
form could be applied in this instance.

Figure 1. Example of Rowhouse Development Form on a Block.

Existing RS-1 house

Rowhouse Example:
100’ frontage = 5 x 20’ lots

Principal unit (5) secondary 
suites (5), coach house (2) on 
end lots only

If directed by Council to proceed, staff would return with zoning bylaw amendments which 
would establish performance standards including: building setbacks and articulation, suite 
sizes and parking standards.

Population and Dwelling Units
An analysis of the population and dwelling unit implications associated with the preferred 
option is outlined below. The following chart presents a comparison of the current built 
conditions with the full build out potential under the existing land use designations in the

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 5 of 11
#1579609v3



Official Community Plan, and the recommended land use changes including the 
introduction of the rowhouse form.

Under current conditions, 19% or 26 of 137 single family dwellings in the area are 
recorded as having one accessory secondary suite. Under the 2014 OCP and current 
zoning provisions, there is potential for each principle unit to have an accessory in-house 
suite and a detached suite in the form of a coach house on each lot in the study area. 
Similarly, areas permitting duplex development can accommodate two principal units, 
each with an accessory secondary suite for a total of four units on each lot.

Figure 2. As Built, OCP and Option Comparison: Units and Po pulation.
OCP Level #Units Estimated

Population
As Built Today R1, R2 198 333*
2014 OCP Buildout R1, R2 477

(potential)
1,322*

Recommended Option
(see Attachment #4)

R2, R3, R4 648
(potential)

1,749**

*Based on 2.7 - 3.0 persons per household by dwelling type - 2016 Census. 
**Based on 2.7 persons per household by dwelling type - 2016 Census.

The shift to duplex potential over nearly half of the study area would see an increase of 
one additional rental unit over what is permitted under the current zoning. With the 
introduction of the more efficient rowhouse form, the potential number of units increases 
to 648 and an estimated population of 1,749 should every lot redevelop to its full potential 
(Figure 2 above).

Rental Units and More Affordable Ownership
With direction to consider a variety of housing options to help further the implementation 
of the City’s Housing Action Plan, consideration of land uses and built forms that would 
provide increased opportunity for more low density rental and home ownership options. 
By transitioning from traditional single family forms to duplex, rowhouse, townhouse and 
garden apartment forms of development, more ground oriented rental suites and smaller, 
less expensive ownership options can be made available in the community.

An analysis of the lot value and corresponding price per unit by dwelling type were 
conducted based on the standard 50’ by 147’ lot in the area. There is a marginal difference 
between pricing for a rowhouse (fee simple) and townhouse forms. See Figure 3 
following.

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 6 of 11
#1579609v3



Figure 3. Land Va ue and Price Per Door Analysis

Single Family 
Dwelling*

Duplex* Rowhouse** 
(20’ lot, 

0.75FSR, 
$910/sqft)

Townhouse**

Lot Value $1.8 million $1,125 million $1.1 million $1.1 million
Price per Unit 
(new)

$3.2 million $1.9 million $1.8 million $1.6-1.8 million

*Single family and Dup ex sales based on Central Lonsdale area.
**Rowhouses and Townhouses sales compared across communities with rowhousing: New Westminster 
(Queensborough), Coquitlam (Burke Mountain), South Surrey (Grandview Neighbourhood), Langley 
(Willoughby Heights) and Mission.

The typical single family lot in Central Lonsdale is currently hovering close to $1.8 million. 
With a new single family house that increases to a price of $3.2 million. This compares 
with $1,125 million for half of a duplex in the same area. Built new, the price would be 
$1.9 million per unit. For rowhouse development, assuming the consolidation of two 
50’x147’ lots then subdivided into 5 rowhouses at 0.75 FSR and 20’ frontages, the land 
value per lot would be $1.1 million or $1.8 million based on new construction. The values 
are similar for townhouse development based on the recent regional comparison.

It is clear that land values in the City are still on the rise as is the cost of construction. The 
price of a new single family dwelling is still significantly greater than the other ground 
oriented housing forms considered in the study.

Local Schools
Staff have met with representatives of the North Vancouver School District regarding the 
potential increase in population which require additional school spaces. Should Council 
proceed with the proposed changes, school district staff have advised they will add 
additional capacity to their current request to the Province for additional funding and 
redevelopment of area schools such as Queensbury Elementary. Should Council proceed 
with changes to the land use designations within the study area, the bylaw would be 
formally referred to the school district, as required by legislation.

Infrastructure, Transportation & Parking
A review of underground infrastructure capacity revealed no concerns regarding water, 
sewer and drainage to accommodate future growth. Longer term infrastructure upgrades 
would come through regular upgrades set out in the City’s capital plan, as is the case in 
other lower density areas of the City.

The introduction of Residential Levels 2 & 3 on the east side of Lonsdale Avenue mirror 
similar development on the blocks west of Lonsdale Avenue and as a result, localized 
major transportation upgrades are generally not anticipated. Transportation studies are 
underway for larger redevelopments closer to Lonsdale which will result in some area 
improvements in the short term.

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 7 of 11
#1579609v3



During the study, concerns were raised regarding the availability of parking in the 
neighbourhood; often in reference to hospital staff using available on-street parking. 
Parking standards for the area will be confirmed at the time of rezoning. One space per 
unit would be consistent with current bylaw requirements that are applied City-wide.

Parkland Considerations
The study area is located within one block of Ray Perrault Park at the south end and two 
blocks from Grand Boulevard through the blocks to the north. This proximity is consistent 
with standards for parkland access outlined in the Parks Master Plan. The 2014 Official 
Community Plan identifies Central Lonsdale East as a priority for park land acquisition 
which would provide additional open space in the higher density neighbourhood to the 
west of the study area.

Implementation Considerations
Some community members expressed concern about the potential pace of 
redevelopment in the area, some citing the rapid transformation of the Moodyville 
neighbourhood. The Duplex Study area is different in two ways. First, the increase in 
development potential or value as a result of the change is much smaller in the Duplex 
Study area. The northern half of the area which would change from Residential Level 1 
to Level 2 would see no increase in density and would remain at 0.5 FSR. Second, the 
forms involved do not involve large consolidations. It is anticipated that the redevelopment 
of this area will occur more piecemeal over time as a result.

STATUTORY REVIEW:

When an amendment to the Official Community Plan is being considered, Section 882 
(3)(a) of the Local Government Act requires municipalities to note whether the change 
would have any impact on the City’s Financial Plan or Waste Management Plan. While 
the OCP Amendment proposed would see an increase in low density development in the 
study area, it is anticipated this increase can be accommodated within planned upgrades 
and otherwise not impact the Financial Plan or Waste Management Plan.

OPTIONS:

Option 1 - Direct Staff to Report Back with OCP and Zoning Bylaw Amendments to 
Implement the Preferred Option (Recommended)

Based on the input received and subsequent analysis, staff recommend concluding the 
study and proceeding with land use changes in the study area (Attachment #5).

With direction to proceed staff would return with the Official Community Plan Amendment 
Bylaw to introduce new land use density designations and new zoning that could be 
applied to the area. These bylaws would be referred to public hearing at the same time.

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 8 of 11
#1579609v3



The associated timeline forward would be as shown below:

With this change, these properties would have the potential for different forms of 
development, some at the same density level, some with an increase. This approach 
would also include zoning amendments to introduce new zones for rowhouse and garden 
apartment development and options for rezoning the area. Zones currently exist in the 
City’s Zoning Bylaw for duplex and townhouse forms. |

i
Some of the proposed implementation would occur through existing zoning and 
potentially guidelines. For the northern blocks, the transition from Residential Level 1 (0.5 
FSR) to Level 2 (0.5 FSR), and the corresponding change in zoning from RS-1 changing 
to RT1-A zoning (duplex) could occur through existing zoning and the existing Duplex 
Development Permit and guideline process. If the blocks were rezoned, where 
compliance with Duplex Development Permit Guidelines is confirmed, a Development 
Permit would be issued at the staff level.

For portions of the study area proposed for Residential Levels 3 and 4 (0.75 FSR), a 
customized rowhouse and townhouse zone will be proposed for inclusion in the zoning 
bylaw. The same approach would be applied to the block proposed for Residential Level 
4 (1.0 FSR).

When staff return with bylaws for introduction, the report would include options for area 
wide rezoning of some or all of the study area to new zones or implementing the new 
zoning on a case by case rezoning basis. Area wide rezoning involves the approval of 
new zoning across multiple lots with consideration at one collective public hearing. This 
compares with site specific re-zonings which would require an individual application and 
public hearing for each development.

To proceed with this option, the staff recommendation outlined at the front of this report 
would apply.

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 9 of 11
#1579609v3



Option 2 - Further Study

Should Council wish to explore additional housing opportunities for the study area that 
could result in lower cost per unit forms, staff could be directed to return with options for 
proceeding. If this is the direction for Council, the staff resolution could be changed to:

THAT staff be directed to report back with a wider range of housing opportunities 
for the 300 Block East Special Study area including higher densities;

AND THAT staff outline a process to engage the community on those 
opportunities.

Option 3 - Receive and File the Results and Thank the Community

Alternatively, should Council choose not to proceed with the recommended changes 
resulting from the study, the results could be received and filed and community members 
thanked for their participation in the process. The staff recommendation could then be 
changed to:

THAT the results of the Duplex Special Study be received and filed 

AND THAT community members thanked for their input.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:

The costs associated with conducting the Duplex Special Study Area have been taken 
from existing funding and have worked within existing staff resources.

The City’s Density Bonus & Community Benefits Policy does not apply to lower density 
OCP designations (Levels 1 & 2). A community amenity contribution is therefore not 
anticipated for the blocks proposed to change to Residential Level 2. For the lots 
proposed to change to Residential Levels 3 & 4, community amenity contributions would 
be collected at the time of rezoning; or, if Council decides to implement area-wide 
rezoning, they would be collected at the building permit stage.

A review of underground infrastructure capacity revealed no concerns regarding water, 
sewer and drainage to accommodate future growth. As the introduction of Residential 
Levels 2 & 3 on the east side of Lonsdale Avenue mirror similar development on the 
blocks west of Lonsdale, localized major transportation upgrades are not anticipated. 
Future regular upgrades to both transportation and infrastructure would come through 
those set out in the City’s asset management process and capital plan, as is the case in 
other lower density areas of the City.

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 10 of 11
#1579609v3



INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS:

This report was reviewed by the Civic Projects Team and the Directors’ Team at their joint 
meeting on February 27, 2018. All comments have been incorporated into the report.

SUSTAINABILITY COMMENTS:

Ensuring a variety of housing forms to meet diverse community needs is a fundamental 
element in meeting the City’s vision of becoming a more sustainable community. Ground 
oriented dwelling units like duplexes and rowhouses with suites produce smaller and less 
costly units than the traditional single family house form. Located close to transit, this 
housing form encourages active transportation and reduces the need to use a vehicle 
which is more environmentally sustainable and contributes to a more complete 
community.

CORPORATE PLAN AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

Increasing the stock of ground-oriented multi-family housing stock in the City is consistent 
with the vision and goals of both the Official Community Plan and Housing Action Plan. 
The proposed changes are in keeping with the desired pattern of urban form transitioning 
from Lonsdale down to the lower density blocks to the east. Significantly, the continued 
diversification of the City's housing stock provides for more housing forms suitable for 
families with children and multi-generational families.

Relevant OCP policy includes:

1.3.1 Ensure that new development is compatible with the established urban form 
of the City, reflecting the primacy of the Lonsdale Regional City Centre and 
the transition through mid- and low-rise buildings to lower-density residential 
neighbourhoods;

1.3.2Avoid “zoning cliffs" at the edges of high and medium density residential 
areas by designating lower density multiple residential development between 
higher density and single family areas;

5.7.1 To provide a range of housing densities diversified in type, cost and location, 
to accommodate the diverse needs of the community.

Future implementation of the Housing Action Plan and improvements to the Duplex 
Development Permit Area guidelines to refine details related to improving the livability of 
accessory secondary suites will be forthcoming in the near future. These considerations 
will involve community and Council input.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
S? IP, RPP
Planner 2

SS:eb

REPORT: Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction
Date: February 28, 2018

Page 11 of 11
#1579609v3



1?/ A€ {)). 
Department Director CAO 
Manager 

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

To: 

From: 

Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council 

Karen Montgomerie, Planner 2 

INFORMATION REPORT 

Subject: DUPLEX SPECIAL STUDY IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE 

Date: May 11, 2021 File No: 13-6520-20-0056 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Duplex Special Study Area Existing Land Use Map (Citydocs #2051505)

2. Duplex Special Study Recommended Option Land Use Map (Citydocs #2051508)

3. Staff Report: Duplex Special Study Results and Direction, dated February 28, 2018
(Citydocs #2051510)

PURPOSE 

The results of the Duplex Special Study were received by Council at its regular meeting 
on March 5, 2018. At that time, staff were directed to return with draft bylaws and a 
process for implementation of the recommended option. This report provides an 
overview of the study to-date and outlines the next steps required to implement the 
Duplex Special Study recommended option. 

BACKGROUND 

In 2015, during the final stages of the 2014 OCP update, a number of residents 
between East 15th and East 19th Streets approached Council and requested a change 
from Residential Level 1 (0.5 FSR) to Residential Level 2 (0.5 FSR) in the Official 
Community Plan (OCP). This was to allow for duplex development, consistent with the 
proposal for the eastern half of the 300 blocks between 13th and 15th Streets to the 
south. This requesf came late in the process, and in response a Special Study Area 
designation was applied to this area in the OCP; Special Study Areas are areas that 
have been identified for a possible Schedule A land use change at a later date. The 
blocks on the eastern half of the 300 blocks from 13th to 15th Streets were designated 
Residential Level 2 (0.5 FSR) in the OCP, however they were not rezoned at the time 
which means currently individual re-zonings are required to build duplexes on these 
properties. 

Document Number: 2051492 V1 

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 5�



INFORMATION REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation Update
Date: May 11, 2021

Duplex Special Study Process

In spring of 2017, staff were directed by Council to initiate the Duplex Special Study and 
explore housing options for the 300 blocks of East 13th to 19th Streets in consultation 
with area residents. The following resolution was passed:

THAT, as set out in Option 1 of the report, staff be directed to proceed with the 
OCR Duplex Special Study to consider expanding the Residential Level 2 
designation to apply to the 300 blocks East 15th through East 19th Streets, and to 
explore zoning the land and the east half of 300 blocks East 13th through 15th 
Streets to allow for duplex development.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

There are a total of 146 properties in the Duplex Special Study area, with the following 
land use designations (Attachment 1, Existing Land Use Map):

• 115 lots at Residential Level 1 (0.5 FSR)
• 24 lots at Residential Level 2 (0.5 FSR)
• 7 lots at Residential Level 3 (0.75 FSR)

Staff conducted community engagement and analysis of options through various 
techniques. A Preference Survey was mailed to owners and occupants of the 151 
properties in the area to assess the level of interest in considering land use change and 
to invite input on initial options. The survey was also made available more broadly 
online. A total of 138 responses were received, 88 (64%) from residents within the study 
boundary, and there was majority support for change in the area.

Input from the Preference Survey assisted staff in their analysis and development of a 
series of land use change options. These options were presented at an Open House, 
with a paper and online feedback form used to gather results. The greatest support was 
for the option that would provide for more ground oriented housing including duplex and 
rowhouse forms with the potential for accessory secondary suites on nearly all lots.

Recommended Option

The results of further staff analysis and the two rounds of public engagement led to a 
recommended option (Attachment 2, Recommended Option Land Use Map) being 
presented to Council as follows:

• Duplex development on 76 lots (Residential Level 2, 0.5 FSR);
• Small lot duplex (no suites) on 12 lots (Residential Level 2, 0.5 FSR);
• Rowhouse ortownhouse development on 51 lots (Residential Level 3, 0.75 

FSR);
• Garden apartment development on seven lots (Residential Level 4A, 1.0 FSR).

Page 2 of 5



INFORMATION REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation Update
Date: May 11, 2021____________________________________________

From an urban form perspective, the structure of development in the City follows a 
pattern of transitional densities, with higher densities along the north/south spine of 
Lonsdale Avenue stepping down in density along the blocks to the east and west. The 
300 blocks east of Lonsdale Avenue function as a transition between highest density to 
the west and lower density to the east. The study area is bisected along East 15th Street 
by a significant arm of the Frequent Transit Network, providing 15 minute connectivity 
from the west, through the Lonsdale Regional Centre and into Lynn Valley Town 
Centre.

The recommended option provides for a wide range of ground orientated housing in the 
study area, including the potential for accessory secondary suites on nearly all lots. For 
the 88 lots proposed to change from Residential Level 1 to duplex development 
(Residential Level 2), there would be no increase in density, as Residential Level 1 also 
has a density of 0.5 FSR. For the 58 lots proposed to change to Residential Levels 3 
and 4 in the southern part of the study area, there would be a marginal increase in 
density of between 0.25 - 0.5 FSR which would create a more gradual transition to the 
medium density areas to the west.

By transitioning from traditional single family forms, more ground orientated rental suites 
and smaller, less expensive ownership options can be made available in the 
community. With the introduction of varied development options, the potential number of 
units within the study area increases to 648 (as compared to the current OCR potential 
of 477 units) and an estimated population of 1,749 should every lot redevelop to its full 
potential. The forms of development proposed do not involve large consolidations, and it 
is anticipated that redevelopment in this area would occur at a small scale incrementally 
over time.

The introduction of rowhouse, townhouse and garden apartment development forms of 
development would also support the transit network and encourage active 
transportation. A review of underground infrastructure capacity revealed no concerns 
regarding water, sewer and drainage to accommodate future growth. Any longer term 
infrastructure upgrades would come through regular upgrades set out in the City’s 
capital plan, as is the case in other lower density areas of the City.

At the time of developing the recommended option, staff also met with representatives 
of the North Vancouver School District regarding the potential increase in population 
and the potential need for additional school spaces. The School District advised that 
should Council proceed with the proposed changes, they would request additional 
funding from the Province to add additional capacity.

Based on the staff recommended option (Attachment 3, Duplex Special Study: Results 
and Direction) at its regular meeting on March 5, 2018, Council passed the following 
resolution:

Page 3 of 5



INFORMATION REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation Update
Date: May 11, 2021_________________________________ ________

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated February 28, 2018, entitled 
“Duplex Special Study: Results and Direction”:

THAT the results of the Duplex Special Study be received and community 
members thanks for their input;

CARRIED

AND THAT the study be concluded and staff be directed to return with draft 
bylaws and process for implementation.

CARRIED

PROCESS FOR IMPLEMENTATION

Change from Residential Level 1 to Residential Level 2
For the properties (88 lots) on the northern blocks that are currently zoned One Unit 
Residential (RS-1) with a current OCR land use designation of Residential Level 1, the 
process for implementing the recommended option requires an OCP amendment to 
change the land use designation to Residential Level 2 and a corresponding change in 
zoning to Two Unit Residential (RT-1). This would allow for duplex development 
potential without a requirement for individual rezoning applications for properties within 
the area. These changes require consideration by Council and referral to a Public 
Hearing, and can be implemented without further analysis.

Changes to Residential Level 3 and Residential Level 4A
The recommended option proposes a change to OCP land use designations for the 
remaining properties to Residential Level 3 (51 lots) and Residential Level 4A (7 lots). 
The process for implementing this is more complex, as the rowhouse and garden 
apartment forms do not currently exist in the Zoning Bylaw. This means that if an OCP 
amendment was taken forward for these plots, individual rezoning applications would 
still be required to take forward this form of development. Further analysis is required to 
develop the required guidance and/or corresponding changes to zoning that would allow 
for rowhouse, garden apartment or other small lot options in the southern part of the 
study area.

The increase in density proposed in the southern portion of the study area also presents 
an opportunity to explore how the development of new affordable home ownership 
options could be supported on these properties through the OCP amendment and 
rezoning process. The City’s Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, in 
conjunction with the OCP, requires community benefit cash contributions based on the 
lift gained for certain forms of development, including Residential Levels 3 and 4 (the 
policy does not apply to lower density OCP designations). The further analysis will 
consider the interaction of the density bonus policy and the potential for supporting 
affordable home ownership options.

Page 4 of 5



INFORMATION REPORT: Duplex Special Study Implementation Update
Date: May 11, 2021____________________________________________

NEXT STEPS

Due to the period of time that has passed since the results of the Duplex Special Study 
were received by Council, prior to returning to Council with draft bylaws for 
implementation of the recommended option in the northern part of the study area, staff 
will notify residents in the study area about the indicative timeline and proposed two- 
stage process for implementing the recommended option. Residents will also be invited 
to attend a virtual open house where staff will present on the study and the public can 
ask questions and provide comments.

Following this period of reengagement, staff will prepare a report to Council with the 
OCR Amendment Bylaw to introduce new land use density designations and a 
corresponding change in zoning to Two Unit Residential (RT-1) for the 88 plots in the 
northern part of the study area. These bylaws would be referred to a public hearing at 
the same time should Council resolve to progress the proposed changes. With this 
change, these properties would have the potential for duplex development without a 
requirement for an individual rezoning application. The controls for any new 
development would be handled through the building permit process. The process for 
implementing this change is expected to take approximately four to six months. 
Outreach and information would be made available on the project page of the City’s 
website and on other communication tools.

For the portions of the study area proposed for Residential Levels 3 and 4A, staff will 
undertake further analysis of this area following adoption of the bylaws for the northern 
area. Given the number of current priorities, the timeframe for the implementation of the 
recommended option for the southern properties will be the subject of a future report.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Page 5 of 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8757 Document: 1850252-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8757 

A Bylaw to amend “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 

2014, No. 8400, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8757” (Change Residential Levels in the 
Duplex Special Study Area – Northern Part and Revise the Duplex Special Study Area 
Boundary). 

 
2. “Official Community Plan Bylaw, 2014, No. 8400” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Amending “Schedule ‘A’ Land Use” by deleting the ‘Special Study Area’ designation 
in the 300 blocks East 15th to 19th Streets and replacing with the attached Schedule 
138; 

  
B. Subsection 2.8.3 “Duplex Special Study Area (300 block East 15th – 19th Street)” is 

deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 
 “Duplex Special Study Area – Southern Part 
 
 Parts of the 300 blocks of East 13th, 14th, 15th and 16th Streets are designated as a 

Special Study Area in consideration of a potential change to Residential Level 3 (0.75 
FSR mixed housing) or Residential Level 4A (1.0 FSR ground orientated). These 
properties comprise the Southern Part of the Duplex Special Study Area.  Land use 
changes in the Northern Part of the Duplex Special Study Area have been 
implemented through a previous OCP amendment.  The Residential Level 3 and 4A 
designations would allow for ground-oriented housing in a variety of forms, including 
smaller, more affordable housing.” 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8757 Document: 1850252-v1 

 
  

Amending Bylaw No. 8757 
SCHEDULE 138 Page 1 of 1 

 
 

REVISED PORTION OF SCHEDULE ‘A’ LAND USE MAP 

 
 

 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8758 Document: 1850254-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8758 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8758” (New Residential Levels in the Duplex Special 
Study Area – Northern Part, RT-1). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of RT-1 (Two-Unit Residential 1) Zone: 

 
ADDRESS LOT BLOCK DISTRICT LOT PLAN ZONE 
308 E 17th St 25 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
363 E 18th St 13 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
329 E 19th St 6 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
359 E 17th St J 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
314 E 19th St AM31 9A 550 3738 From RS-1 
342 E 17th St 18 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
323 E 18th St 5 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
326 E 17th St 21 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
350 E 19th St E 9A 550 9912 From RS-1 
1848 St. Andrews Ave 1 16 549/550 2642 From RS-1 
315 E 19th St 3 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
331 E 18th St 6 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
333 E 19th St 7 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
335 E 18th St 7 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
356 E 18th St 15 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
352 E 17th St 16 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
353 E 19th St 11 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
353 E 18th St 11 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
345 E 19th St 10 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
322 E 18th St 22 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
1790 St. Andrews Ave 1 16A 549/550 2642 From RS-1 
342 E 18th St 18 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
318 E 17th St 23 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
336 E 17th St 19 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
306 E 19th St B 9A 550 LMP48079 From RS-2 
322 E 19th St 29 9A 550 3738 From RS-1 
357 E 18th St 12 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
337 E 17th St D 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
362 E 17th St 14 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
312 E 17th St 24 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
339 E 17th St E 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
339 E 19th St 8 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
312 E 18th St 24 16 550 2642 From RS-1 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8758 Document: 1850254-v1 

ADDRESS LOT BLOCK DISTRICT LOT PLAN ZONE 
343 E 19th St 9 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
302 E 19th St A 9A 549/550 LMP48079 From RS-2 
318 E 19th St 30 9A 550 3738 From RS-1 
364 E 18th St 14 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
350 E 15th St 26 33 549/550 1657 From RS-1 
1551 Ridgeway Ave 2 33 550 20549 From RS-1 
333 E 17th St C 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
1541 Ridgeway Ave 1 33 550 15895 From RS-1 
363 E 17th St K 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
358 E 19th St 2 9A 550 BCP48143 From RS-2 
307 E 18th St 2 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
338 E 19th St G 9A 550 11101 From RS-1 
348 E 17th St 17 16A 549/550 2642 From RS-1 
348 E 18th St 17 16 549/550 2642 From RS-1 
308 E 19th St J 9A 549/550 11323 From RS-1 
308 E 18th St 25 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
332 E 17th St 20 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
317 E 17th St A 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
1521 Ridgeway Ave 24 33 550 1657 From RS-1 
304 E 17th St 26 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
359 E 19th St 12 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
364 E 19th St 18 9A 550 3738 From RS-1 
323 E 19th St 5 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
360 E 16th St 26 33 550 2308 From RS-1 
332 E 19th St 26 9A 550 3738 From RS-1 
347 E 18th St 10 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
328 E 18th St 21 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
319 E 18th St 4 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
1845 Ridgeway Ave 13 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
324 E 17th St 22 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
356 E 19th St 1 9A 550 BCP48143 From RS-2 
343 E 17th St F 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
1808 St. Andrews Ave 26 16 549/550 2642 From RS-1 
318 E 18th St 23 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
1625 Ridgeway Ave 23 33 550 2308 From RS-1 
319 E 19th St 4 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
343 E 18th St 9 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
1513 Ridgeway Ave 25 33 550 1657 From RS-1 
347 E 17th St G 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
1529 Ridgeway Ave 23 33 550 1657 From RS-1 
315 E 18th St 3 16A 549/550 2642 From RS-1 
338 E 18th St 19 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
339 E 18th St 8 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
334 E 18th St 20 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
1621 Ridgeway Ave 24 33 549/550 2308 From RS-1 
325 E 17th St B 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
351 E 17th St H 33 550 7665 From RS-1 
1535 Ridgeway Ave 2 33 550 15895 From RS-1 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8758 Document: 1850254-v1 

ADDRESS LOT BLOCK DISTRICT LOT PLAN ZONE 
326 E 19th St 28 9A 550 3738 From RS-1 
358 E 17th St 15 16A 550 2642 From RS-1 
309 E 19th St 2 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
1615 Ridgeway Ave 25 33 550 2308 From RS-1 
1557 Ridgeway Ave 1 33 550 20549 From RS-1 
352 E 18th St 16 16 550 2642 From RS-1 
344 E 19th St H 9A 550 11101 From RS-1 

 
 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



p- ii/i
Department
Manager

Director
cao l

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Meg Wray, Planner 1

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 322 WEST 14th  STREET (FARID SAYARI /
ROYAL PALACE CONSTRUCTION & DESIGN)

Date: October 6,2021 File No: 08-3400-20-0019/1

|_________ The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.________

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 1, dated October 6, 2021, entitled 
“Rezoning Application: 322 West 14th Street (Farid Sayari / Royal Palace 
Construction & Design)”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8873” 
(Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction & Design, 322 West 14th Street, CD- 
739) be considered and the Public Hearing be waived;

THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act;

AND THAT the community benefits listed in the report section “Density Bonus 
and Community Benefits” be secured through agreements at the applicant’s 
expense and to the satisfaction of staff.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2090577)
2. Architectural and Landscaping Drawings Consolidated for Council, dated August 

20, 2021 (CityDocs 2094072)
3. Public Consultation Summary (CityDocs 2094066)
4. Zoning Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 8873 (CityDocs 2093806)

Document Number: 2094079 V7



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 322 West 14th Street (Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction & Design)
Date: October 6, 2021

SUMMARY

This report presents a rezoning application to allow a three-unit development consisting 
of a duplex and rear infill building. No secondary suites are proposed.

DISCUSSION

Site Context

The site is located on the north side of West 14th Street between Mahon Avenue and 
Jones Avenue near the western edge of the Central Lonsdale neighbourhood. It is 
designated Residential Level 2 in the OCR, and is situated between higher density 
areas to the east, and lower density areas to the north and west.

The surrounding area consists of mainly detached houses, duplexes and triplexes. A 
heritage building is directly located to the west. The buildings immediately surrounding 
the subject site are described in Table 1 below.

Table 1. Surrounding uses
Direction Address Description Zoning
North - across the 
lane 323 West 15th Street Detached house RS-1

South - across the 
street 319-323 West 14th Street Triplex CD-679

East 310-312 West 14th Street Duplex RT-1

West 328 West 14th Street Detached house - Heritage A RS-1

The existing 1953 duplex on site is proposed to be demolished.

Planning Analysis & Proposed Variances

The existing zoning is RT-1 (two-unit residential) and the triplex proposal requires 
rezoning to a comprehensive development zone (CD-739), for the reasons of the 
variances to existing Zoning Bylaw as outlined in Table 1 below.

Table 2. Requested Changes to the Zoning By-law
Current Designation/Regulation Proposed Designation/Regulation

Buildings One Principal Building Two Principal Buildings
Use Two-Unit Residential Use Two Principal Dwelling Units in the 

southernmost duplex, and One Principal 
Unit in the northernmost infill building.

GFA Lesser of 0.35 FSR + 93 sq. m (1000 
sq. ft), or 0.5 FSR.

For this site, this equates to 320.5 sq. 
m (3,449 sq. ft.) of gross floor area.

0.5 FSR.

This equates to 325.1 sq. m (3,499 sq. 
ft.) of gross floor area.

Page 2 of 5



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 322 West 14th Street (Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction & Design)
Date: October 6, 2021

Attached garages/carports are 
included.

Attached garage /carport excluded.

Lot
Coverage

35% 41%

Setbacks Principal Buildings: 14.9 m (49 ft.) 
from Rear Lot Line, and 1.2 m (4 ft.) 
from Interior Side Lot Line

Accessory Buildings behind the front 
face of, and 3.1 m (10 ft.) from, the 
Principal Building.

Northernmost Principal Building: 1.22 m 
(4 ft.) from the Rear Lot Line, and
0.91 m (3ft.) from the west Interior Side
Lot Line.

Accessory Building for bike storage in 
front of, and not less than 1 m (3.3 ft.) 
from, the northernmost Principal Building.

Use

The policy framework supports the proposed triplex use.

Density

The OCR Residential Level 2 designation permits a density up to 0.5 FSR. The City’s 
Density Bonusing Policy does not apply to this OCR designation. The proposed density 
of 0.5 FSR would be a minor increase, by approximately 5 sq. m. (54 sq. ft), from what 
is permitted by the current zoning of the site.

Generally, for development with three or more units, the attached parking garage is 
excluded from GFA calculation. Therefore staff support the proposed attached garage 
to the infill building being excluded from GFA calculation.

Lot Coverage and Setbacks

The lot coverage permitted by the current zoning is intended for duplexes, so it’s typical 
that a triplex may require a modest increase in lot coverage. The proposed lot coverage 
leaves sufficient outdoor space on site and is supported.

The principal building setbacks are also considered appropriate for a proposed triplex 
form with attached parking. In response to the local context, the proposed front setback 
is greater than required by zoning in order to be more consistent with neighbours; this 
supports a cohesive streetscape. The bike storage enclosure is appropriately setback 
from neighbouring property lines, and provides six bike parking spaces for the three 
units.

Landscaping

The landscaping plan provides private patios and outdoor space for each unit. A robust 
planting plan includes six new trees on site.

Permeable paving is provided along the pathways. The two-fold benefit of permeable 
paving is: helping to protect a significant tree on a neighbour’s property to the west, and

Page 3 of 5



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 322 West 14th Street (Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction & Design)
Date: October 6, 2021

supporting the City’s Sustainable Development Guideline of providing hardscaping that 
enhances rainwater infiltration.

Advisory Body Review

Advisory Design Panel

The proposed design was reviewed by the Advisory Design Panel in November 2020, 
and again in March 2021. At the second meeting, the Panel recommended approval 
subject to some minor issues to be addressed to the satisfaction of staff.

Staff are satisfied that the Panel’s comments have been addressed, including:

• Refining and simplifying the architecture in terms of massing and colour palette;
• Landscaping improvements such as pathways design and permeable paving;
• Increasing natural lighting to the basement; and
• Drawing clarifications.

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION

A virtual Developer’s Information Session was held on September 15, 2020. Two parties 
attended the virtual session. There were some concerns regarding height and 
architectural style, and questions about the window placement and overlook.

The proposal responds to these concerns:

• The proposed building is well below the maximum allowable height;
• The proposal was supported by the Advisory Design Panel, and the modern 

architectural style is aligned with general policy and good urban design practice 
which encourage neighbourhoods with varied designs; and

• Windows are offset from those of neighbouring properties to maintain privacy.

Given the modest increase in density of the proposal from what could be permitted 
under existing zoning, staff is recommending that the Public Hearing be waived. Should 
Council wish to refer the application to Public Hearing, the first active clause in the 
resolution should be amended to read:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8873”
(Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction & Design, 322 West 14th Street, CD- 
739) be considered and referred to a Public Hearing;”

Page 4 of 5



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 322 West 14th Street (Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction & Design)
Date: October 6, 2021

DENSITY BONUSING & COMMUNITY BENEFITS

In addition to the standard City bylaw requirement to reconstruct the south half of the 
lane adjacent the site, the applicant is required to reconstruct the north half of the lane. 
This condition would be secured as part of the Servicing Agreement.

CONCLUSION

Legal Documents

Should Council approve the proposal, the following legal documents would be required 
to be completed prior to final adoption of the Bylaw:

• Development Covenant;
• Servicing Agreement;
• Good Neighbour Agreement; and
• Flooding Covenant.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Page 5 of 5



Ma
ho

n A
ve

Ma
ho

n A
ve

W 15th St

W 14th St W 14th St W 14th St

Jo
ne

s A
ve

Jo
ne

s A
ve

3 1
9

1 3 37
31

7

1 4 45 14
50

31
0

1 4 25

34
5

35
9

3 3
1

2 5 1

1 4 17

31
1

1 4 53
36

2
1 4 4533

3

3 5 7

35
1

32
7

1 3 44
1 3 44

33
7

34
6

3 3
0

3 2
2

3 3
9

3 2
7

1 4 17

1 4 34

4 0 7

32
8

1 4 05

33
2

34
9

1 4
043 4

0
3 4

3

3 2
3

1 4 31

13
49

30
7

1 3 57

35
3

4 0 8
1 4 1335

8

3 5 7

1 4 31

35
2

1 3 39

Context Map: 322 West 14th Street
Subject Site

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-0
           10-04-2019 M.K

R.S.

 CONTEXT PLAN

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019
2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021
5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 2�



THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-000
0

           10-04-2019 M.K

R.S.

3D VIEW

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020

INFILL SOUTH WEST VIEW

3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021

5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021



THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-000
00

           10-04-2019 M.K

R.S.

3D VIEW

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020

INFILL SOUTH EAST VIEW

3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021

5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021



THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-000
000

           10-04-2019 M.K

R.S.

3D VIEW

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020

DUPLEX NORTH VIEW

3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021

5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP               02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021



1.
75

5

EX
: 2

30
.2'

EX: 227.2'

82
'-7

"

10%

10%

15
.2

40

6%

GARAGE

11.660

BIKE STORAGE

3.
24

0

DN

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+69.25
 F.G.+69.92

 F.G.+70.95

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 E.G
.+7

1.0
0

 E.G.+71.22

 F.G.+70.88

 F.G
.+7

1.1
0

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.85

4 
R

IS
ES

@
18

0m
m

 E.G.+70.65
 F.G.+70.53

DN

DN

 E.G.+70.41

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G
.+7

0.5
3

UP

2.
96

0
1.

87

 F.G.+70.85

 F.G.+70.85

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.45

 F.G.+70.85

 F.G.+70.76

DN

 F.G.+70.85

13 RISERS
@169.2mm

DN 11 RISERS
@165.5mm

4 RISERS
@175mm

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.65

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+70.83

 F.G.+70.66

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

42.659

3.69

1.219

SETBACK SETBACK

SETBACK
(GARAGE)

SE
TB

AC
K

SE
TB

AC
K

1 2 6

SE
TB

AC
K

SITE PLAN

4.575

6.097

L C

W
 E S T  1 4 T H

  S T R
 E E T

W
M

Ø
0.1 (D

)

W
M

C
oncrete  Sidew

alk

G
utterline

H
edge

G
utterline

PP

Edge of Asphalt

LAN
E

CL (Paved)

DN

3 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

S/C

2.344

4.300

1

2

3

4

 F.G.+70.40

Garbage/Recycling

DN

5 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

 F.G.+69.93

NOTE #1:
DEVELOPER/GENERAL
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE
AN ELABORATE PLAN BY
DESIGNATED SUPPLIER ON
HOW THE PAVERS WILL BE
INSTALLED WITHIN TREE
PROTECTION AREA

REFERENCE  GRADE=
70.18m (230.26')

REFERENCE
GRADE=70.18m(230.26')

BASEMENT= 68.15 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.95 m
BASEMENT= 68.15 m

SECOND FLOOR= 74.37 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.95 m
TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.41 m

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.41 m
SECOND FLOOR= 74.37 m

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

 F.G.+70.15

 F.G.+69.88

UP 3 RISERS
@180mm F.G.+70.12

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.12

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.31
 F.G.+70.80

10%
DN

CARPORT

CARPORT

 F.G.+70.90

F.D.

 F.G.+71.07 F.G.+70.98
F.D.

UNIT A

UNIT B

INFILL
3

0.
91

4

LIGHT WELL

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

SECOND FLOOR
OUTLINE

LIGHT WELL

5'-6" HIGH
PRIVACY SCREEN

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

3' HIGH
ALUMINUM FENCE
ON 1' HIGH CONC.
BASE

3% SLOPE DN.

TBD 2.4m
RADIUSTBD 4.3m

RADIUS

PERMEABLE PAVER
(SEE NOTE #1)

PERMEABLE PAVER

TRENCH
DRAIN

3% SLOPE DN.

LIGHT WELL

TRELLIS ABOVE
GARBAGE ROOM

 F.G.70.274 RISERS
@145mm

5 RISERS
@170 mm

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

 F.G.70.00

 F.G.+69.89

 F.G.+68.288

DN

 F.G.+69.50

 F.G.+70.85

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+70.10

 E.G
.+7

0.9
7

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 E.G.+70.60

LIGHT WELL

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

2% SLOPE DN.
 F.G.+70.08 F.G.+70.05

 

 F.G.69.88

UP

42.65

15.24

42.66
91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231

edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

UP
3 RISES
@180mm

 F.G.+69.39

 F.G.+70.40 DN2 RISERS
@180mm

3% SLOPE DN.

 F.G.+70.61

2 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
5m

m

 F.G.+70.24

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.20

 F.G.+69.64

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

5'-6" HIGH
PRIVACY SCREEN

SE
TB

AC
K

0.
91

4

0.
91

4

 F.G.+70.70

0.914

 F.G.+69.95

 F.G.70.10

5'-6" HIGH
PRIVACY SCREEN

LINE OF RETENTION TANK

3.250

2.185

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.00

 F.G.+70.13

 F.G.70.00

 T.O.W. +70.90

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.30 T.O.CONC.CURB +71.37

12.981

S/C

 F.G.+69.95

 F.G.70.35
 F.G.+70.85

F.D.

1.
50

0

1.828

3.506

0.610

3.658

0.
60

8
4.

87
7

SUMP-DISCHARGE TO
CITY SYSTEM SUMP WITH

MAINTENANCE
ACCESS

SUMP PUMP

SUMP WITH
SUMP PUMP

RETENTION TANK

F.G. 71.32'

F.G. 70.47'
23

1.2
23

4.0

STREET INFRASTRUCTURE WILL BE DESIGNED AS PER FOLLOWING GUIDELINES AND THE
COMPLETE DESIGN DRAWINGS WILL BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT STAGE:
-NEW 1.8M WIDE BOULEVARD SIDEWALK COMPLETE WITH TRANSITION PANELS BEYOND EAST
AND WEST PROPERTY LINES TO MEET EXISTING SIDEWALK.
-PROPOSED SIDEWALKS TO BE INSTALLED TO CNV AND MMCD STANDARDS.
-NEW MMCD C5 BARRIER CURB & GUTTER TO CNV STANDARDS.
-NEW LED OVERHEAD AND PEDESTRIAN LEVEL STREET LIGHTING TO CNV STANDARDS.
-MILL AND PAVE 12 READ ADJACENT TO SITE TO CNV STANDARDS.
-REGULATORY STAGE AND THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKINGS AS REQUIRED.

71
.32

70
.47

PROJCECT DATA:
-------------------------------------------------------------------

CIVIC ADDRESS
322 WEST 14TH STREET, NORTH VANCOUVER, BC

EXISTING ZONING: RS1
PROPOSED ZONING: CD (COMPEREHENSIVE
DEVELOPMENT R2)

SITE AREA: 650.14 M  (6998 FT  )2

FSR : 0.5
BUILDABLE AREA= 650.14 M  X 0.5 = 325.07 M  (3499 FT  )

PROPOSED BUILDABLE AREA
UNIT A:     55.51 + 57.44 = 112.95 M  (1215.78 FT  )2

BASEMENT= 55.51 M (597.50 FT  )  (EXEMPT)
UNIT B:    53.85+57.33=111.18 M  (1196.73 FT  )2

INFILL UNIT: 49.06+51.79=100.85 M  (1085.54 FT  )2

BASEMENT= 47.82 M   (514.73 FT  ) (EXEMPT)
-------------------------------------------------------------------
TOTAL AREA:          324.98 M  (3498.05 FT  )2

BUILDING HEIGHT

PERMITTED HEIGHT ENVELOPE: 7.986M (26.2')

SET BACKS:
DUPLEX BUILDING (TYPE "A+B")
FRONT SETBACK:  4.57M (15.0')
REAR SETBACK:    11.14M (36.55')

WEST SETBACK:    2.96M (9.71')
EAST SETBACK:     1.87M  (6.13')

INFILL UNIT (TYPE "C")
FRONT SETBACK:  11.14M (36.55')

REAR SETBACK:    3.69M    (11.87')

WEST SETBACK:   1.75M      (5.74')

EAST SETBACK:    3.24M    (10.63')

SITE COVERAGE
PERMITTED= 650.14 X35%=227.55M  (2449.3 FT  )2

PROVIDED: 287.87M  (3098.60 FT  ) 44.28%2

PARKING & BIKE STORAGE
REQUIRED PARKING: 3 STALLS
PROVIDED PARKING: 4 STALLS
REQUIRED BIKE STORAGE: 6
PROVIDED BIKE STORAGE: 6

LEGAL DESCRIPTION :
LOT 18 BLOCK 47
DISTRICT LOTS 271 AND 548 GROUP 1 NWD PLAN 1658
P.I.D 009-788-735

ZONING

2

2

2

BASEMENT= 53.85 M  (579.66 FT  )  (EXEMPT)2

2

222

2

2

2

2

(DISTANCE BETWEEN DUPLEX AND UNIT "C")

(DISTANCE BETWEEN UNIT "C" AND DUPLEX

REAR SETBACK (GARAGE):    1.20M    (4.0')

WEST SETBACK (GARAGE):    0.99 M    (3.25')

INCLUDING GARAGES,CARPORT,BICYCLE
STORAGE AND GARBAGE/RECYCLING ROOM

HEIGHT ENVELOPE CALCULATION:
AVERAGE FRONT = (227.2+230.2) / 2 = 228.7'
AVERAGE REAR = (231.2+234.0) / 2   = 232.6'
REF. GRADE = 228.7+(232.6-228.7)x0.4 =
                          228.7+1.56 = 230.26'(70.18M)
FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION: 230.26+2.50 = 232.76'(70.95M)
TOP OF UPSTAND = 232.76'+21.2' = 253.96'(77.41M)

PROVIDED HEIGHT ENVELOPE: 7.23M (23.72')

2

2

2

2

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-01
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

SITE PLAN

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/200

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021
5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      REVISED AS PER ENGINEERING
        DEPARTMENT COMMENTS DATED 06-22  08 - 09 - 2021
8      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

9      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



BA D FE

1

2

3

4

5

C

1.
54

9
3.

69
6

3.
70

8
1.

50
0

10
.4

53

1.421 2.769 3.848 3.264 1.321
12.623

A B C
5.398 5.967

11.365

1

2

3

4

5

1.
94

4
10

.2
50

1.
38

4
3.

37
8

3.
54

3

UP

2.591

3.
67

0

2.
60

4

1.575

3.
21

3

0.914

2.
95

9

3.8580.612

REC. ROOM

AREA   47.82 M2

W/D

17
 R

IS
ER

S 
@

 1
79

.4
 m

m

1829 x 1524

FD

FD

22
86

 x
 1

52
4

 F.G.+68.15

INFILL UNIT
47.82 M2 (514.73 S.F.)

   
A-

10

   
A-

10

   
C

A
-1

0

   
C

A
-1

0

A
   A-10

A
   A-10

BEDROOMW.I.C

INFILL-BASEMENT

REF. GRADE:70.15M

OPENING ABOVE
SEE SECTION A-A

UP

UP

UP

2.
72

0

4.
08

8
2.

31
2

4.
17

9

4.
14

1

4.979

0.
91

4
2.

44
7

1.524

4.
22

9

REC. ROOM

REC. ROOM

Storage

Storage

UP

15 RISERS @ 187 mm

15 RISERS @ 187 mm

1.626

 F.G.+68.10

2286 x 1524

1219 x 1524

FD

FD

 F.G.+68.15
UNIT A
55.51 M2 (597.50 S.F.)

UNIT B
53.85 M2 (579.66 S.F.)  F.G.+68.10

 F.G.+68.15

1219 x 1524

813 x 2134

813 x 2134

PATIO

PATIO

BEDROOM

11 RISERS
@165.5mm

13
 R

IS
ER

S
@

16
9.

2m
m

REF. GRADE:70.18M

A1
   A-10

FD

FD

1219x610

1219x610

2.
79

7

1.524

2.
45

3

2286 x 1524

BEDROOM

3.961

4.430

UNITS "A & B"  BASEMENT
AREA  109.36 M

2

0.
91

4 3.250

2.718

2.1850.
91

4

RWL.

RWL.

RWL.

RWL.

RWL.RWL.

RWL.TO RETENTION TANK
RWL.TO RETENTION TANK

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-02
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

BASEMENT
FLOOR PLAN

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021
5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

8      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



BA D FE

1

2

3

4

5

C

1.
54

9
3.

69
6

3.
70

8
1.

50
0

10
.4

53

1.421 2.769 3.848 3.264 1.321
12.623

   
A-

10

   
A-

10

   
C

A
-1

0

   
C

A
-1

0

A
   A-10

A
   A-10

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

UP

DN

DN

DN

4.
38

1
4.

38
1

3.7376.9033.
55

7

1.
38

4

4.063

3.593

UNIT A
55.51 M2 (597.50 S.F.)

UNIT B
53.85 M2 (579.66 S.F.)

1.829

1.829

4.
58

4

4.
61

0

1.543

UNITS "A & B"  FIRST FLOOR
AREA  109.36 M

2

15 RISERS @ 187 mm

DN

UP

15 RISERS @ 187 mm

DW. F.

F.DW.

PATIO

18 RISERS @ 190 mm

18 RISERS @ 190 mm

PATIO

4.
02

6

1829 x 914

61
0 

x 
21

34

61
0 

x 
21

34 18
29

 x
 2

13
4

61
0 

x 
16

77

1829 x 914

 F.G.+70.95
 F.G.+70.85  F.G.+70.85

DN

 F.G.+70.85

1.
37

2

 F.G.+70.95

96
5 

x 
27

43

96
5 

x 
27

43

15
24

 x
 2

74
3

15
24

 x
 2

74
3

18
29

 x
 2

13
4

PATIO

PATIO

2.
96

0
SE

TB
AC

K

61
0 

x 
16

77

LIVING.

KITCHEN

DINING

DINING
KITCHEN

LIVING.

A1
   A-10

 F.G.+70.30
 F.G.+70.31

 F.G.+70.10

13 RISERS
@169.2mm

 F.G.+70.20

REF. GRADE:70.18M

REF. GRADE:70.18M

LIGHT WELL

LIGHT WELL

5'-6" HIGH
PRIVACY SCREEN

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

3'-6" HIGH
GLASS RAILING

3

5 RISERS
@16.0mm

4 RISERS
@145mm

3'-6" HIGH
GLASS RAILING

Coat

A B C
5.398 5.967

11.365

1.
94

4
10

.2
50

1.
38

4
3.

37
8

3.
54

3

UP

INFILL UNIT
49.06 M2 (528.08 S.F.)

1.092

INFILL - FIRST FLOOR
AREA  49.06 M2

18
 R

IS
ER

S 
@

 1
90

 m
m

F.

DW.

DN

MECH.
ROOM

4.061

2.5372.237

3.
54

3
3.

06
1

 F.G.+70.22

 F.G.+70.95

 F.G.+70.85

 F.G.+70.95

 F.G.+70.85

 F.G
.+7

0.5
3

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G
.+7

0.7
0

 F.G.+71.10

 F.G
.+7

0.8
8

 F.G
.+7

0.5
3

 F.G
.+7

0.7
8

 F.G
.+7

0.8
3

 F.G
.+7

0.7
0

 F.G.+7

17
 R

IS
ER

S 
@

 1
79

.4
 m

m

533 x 1219863 X 2032

96
5 

x 
24

38

18
39

 x
 2

43
8

813 x 2438

2438 x 1829

ELEC. CHARGER
STATION (TYPICAL)

ELEC. CHARGER
STATION (TYPICAL)

ELEC. CHARGER
STATION (TYPICAL)

BIKE STORAGE

1.
75

5
SE

TB
AC

K

3.
24

0

1.
81

5

SE
TB

AC
K

LIVING

KITCHEN
DINING

813 x 2438

2.
89

6

5.817

2.
89

6
2.

71
6

2.
77

0

1.
71

4

813 x 1829

1

Garbage/Recycling

813 x 1829

3

2

S/C
4

 F.G.+70.90

F.D.

 F.G.+70.80

DN

4 
R

IS
ES

@
18

0m
m

 F.G.+70.66

UP 3 RISES
@180mmF.G.+70.12

 F.G.+70.12

CARPORT

CARPORT
 F.G.+70.13

 F.G.+70.08

DN4 RISES
@175mm

 F.G.+70.15

 F.G.+70.76

 F.G.+71.07

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.98

REF. GRADE:70.18M

5

0.
91

4

F.D.

LIGHT WELL

LIGHT WELL

SECOND FLOOR
OUTLINE

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

3% SLOPE DN.

5 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

DN

3 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

11 RISERS
@165.5mm

DN

UP

 F.G.+69.25

 F.G.+69.92

 F.G.+69.93

3% SLOPE DN. 2 % SLOPE DN.
UP

3 RISES
@180mm

 F.G.+69.39

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.60

70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92
70.92

DN2 RISERS
@180mm3% SLOPE DN.

 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60

   
A-

10

   
A-

10

   
C

A
-1

0

   
C

A
-1

0

A
   A-10

 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60

   
A-

10

   
A-

10

   
C

A
-1

0

   
C

A
-1

0

A
   A-10

 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.85

   
A-

10

   
A-

10

   
C

A
-1

0

   
C

A
-1

0

A
   A-10

 F.G.+70.24

 F.G.+70.61

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.30
5'-6" HIGH
PRIVACY SCREEN

0.
91

4

0.
91

4

 F.G.+70.70

LINE OF RETENTION TANK

3.250

2.718

2.185

0.914

S/C

 F.G.+70.45

1 62

 F.G.+70.40  F.G.+70.40

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.00

 T.O.W. +70.90

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

 T.O.CONC.CURB +71.37

5'-6" HIGH
PRIVACY SCREEN1.

82
9

SE
TB

AC
K

RWL.

RWL. RWL.

RWL.

RWL. RWL.

 F.G.+69.64

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-03
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021

5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

8      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



   
A-

10

   
A-

10

   
C

A
-1

0

   
C

A
-1

0

A
   A-10

A
   A-10

BA D FE

1

2

3

4

5

C

1.
54

9
3.

69
6

3.
70

8
1.

50
0

10
.4

53

1.421 2.769 3.848 3.264 1.321
12.623

DN

3.0232.643

2.
83

2

3.301

2.
95

9

1.
52

4

2.502

2.
74

3

3.188

2.643

2.
86

9

1.
52

4

2.387

1.369

1.524

3.467

1.524

2.
76

2

UNITS "A & B" SECOND FLOOR
AREA   114.77 M2

UNIT A
57.44 M2 (618.28 S.F.)

UNIT B
57.33 M2 (617.09 S.F.)

18 RISERS @ 190 mm

18 RISERS @ 190 mm DN

W/D

W/D

1.204

2.
74

3

91
4 

x 
18

29
83

8 
x 

18
29

61
0 

x 
18

29

1372 x 1524

18
29

 x
 1

37
2

1524 x 1829

 F.G.+74.37

18
29

 x
 1

37
2

3% SLOPE

61
0 

x 
18

29
83

4 
x 

21
34

83
8 

x 
18

29

61
0 

x 
13

72

BEDROOM

BEDROOM

BEDROOM

BEDROOM BEDROOM

BEDROOM

W.I.C

REF. GRADE:
          70.18M

3'-6" HIGH
GUARDRAIL

3'-6" HIGH
GUARDRAIL

LINE OF ROOF ABOVE

2.
92

7

2.920

2.567

A B C
5.398 5.967

11.365

1

2

3

4

5

1.
94

4
10

.2
50

1.
38

4
3.

37
8

3.
54

3

DN

1.
52

4

2.438

2.438

1.
52

43.658

2.
71

8

2.
71

8

2.743

1.
65

9

0.914

2.
58

6

0.
91

4

0.914

2.
61

6

2.629

1.600

AREA   51.79 M
INFILL - SECOND FLOOR

2

INFILL UNIT
51.79 M2 (557.46 S.F.)

18
 R

IS
ER

S 
@

 1
90

 m
m

W/D
 F.G.+74.37

533 x 1219

18
29

 x
 1

37
2

762 x 2134

18
29

 x
 1

37
2 4:12

4:
12

4:
12

M.BEDROOM

BEDROOM-3

BEDROOM-2

813 x 2134

REF. GRADE:70.18M

LINE OF ROOF ABOVE

91
4 

x 
13

72

RWL.

RWL.

RWL.

RWL.

RWL.

RWL.

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-04
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021

5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP             02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

8      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



A B C
5.398 5.967

11.365

1

2

3

4

5

1.
94

4
10

.2
50

1.
38

4
3.

37
8

3.
54

3

BA D FE

1

2

3

4

5

C

1.
54

9
3.

69
6

3.
70

8
1.

50
0

10
.4

53

1.421 2.769 3.848 3.264 1.321
12.623

UNITS "A & B" ROOF PLAN INFILL - ROOF PLAN

4:12

4:
12

4:
12

4:
12

   
A-

10

   
A-

10

   
C

A
-1

0

   
C

A
-1

0

A
   A-10

A
   A-10

3% SLOPE DN.

3%
 S

LO
PE

 D
N

.

3%
 S

LO
PE

 D
N

.

3%
 S

LO
PE

 D
N

.

3%
 S

LO
PE

 D
N

.

3% SLOPE DN.

3%
 S

LO
PE

 D
N

.

3%
 S

LO
PE

 D
N

.

3%
 S

LO
PE

 D
N

.

3% SLOPE DN.

3% SLOPE DN.

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-05
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

ROOF PLAN

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021

5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP             02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021



1.12M2

3265
3.

41
6

0.
61

0
2.

43
8

9

7
7.

21
4

DUPLEX SOUTH ELEVATION

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

1.53M2
1.84M2

1.53M2 1.12M2
1.84M2

1.49M2

PL
PL

 0.84M2  0.84M2

1

8

2.64M2

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

2.
80

4

    70.31

    69.39

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
 F

R
O

M
 R

EF
. G

R
AD

E(
23

.6
6'

)
6.

60
5

 0.65M2

2.64M21.49M2

    69.93

    70.60

    70.85    70.85

    70.40
    70.30

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE4' HIGH

WOOD FENCE

0.65M2M2

1.53M2M 211.12M2M21

1.49M29 200.84M22 2.64M24M

 70.6070 606070 60

    70.8585

0.84M2.84MM22.64M24M1.49M29M11

70.85

FINISH MATERIALS LIST :

 1      STAINED CEDAR SIDING
         PINE CONE - SW 3046

 2      FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         HAMMERED SILVER - SW 2840

 3     FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         WHITE DOVE - OC 17 BENJAMIN MOORE

 4      METAL ROOF
         LIGHT BRONZE

 5      RESIDENTIAL VINYL WINDOW FRAMES
         WHITE COLOUR

 6      ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL WITH CLEAR GLAZING
         BLACK

 7     METAL FLASHING
        TO MATCH BACKGROUND COLOUR

 8     PAINTED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE
        (SW 6254)

 9     OAK SOLID WOOD  DOOR
         PINE CONE - SW 3046

10      INSULATED PVC GARAGE DOOR
         SHADOW GRAY- 2125-40 BENJAMIN MOORE

11       ALUMINUM  PATIO / BALCONY DOORS

12      STUCCO
          GALLERY BUFF- 305P-225 BENJAMIN MOORE

13       STAINED CEDAR POST
          CEDAR MILL SW 3512

14     ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL (BLACK)

35

DUPLEX NORTH ELEVATION

2 7

2.51M2 2.51M2

4.33M23.83 M2

PL
PL

11
8

3.
41

6
0.

61
0

2.
43

8

70.18 m

7.
21

4

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

REF. GRADE

2.
80

4

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
FR

O
M

 R
EF

. G
R

AD
E(

23
.6

6'
)

6.
60

5

    70.04

3.83 M24.33M2

    70.27

70.00 m
FINISH GRADE

    69.88

    70.88

2.51M251 2.51M2M

4.33M2M23.83 M2M 3.83 M2M4.3333M2M222

6 14

4.39 M2

3.83 M2

28.32 M2 28.30 M2

2.51 M2 2.51 M2

EXPOSING BUILDING FACE AREA : TOTAL :

LIMITING DISTANCE :

ALLOWABLE UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

PROPOSED UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

28.32 m

 5.48 m

 21.88 m = 75.26%

 10.73 m = 37.88 %

UNIT "B" UNIT "A"

EXPOSING BUILDING FACE AREA : TOTAL :

LIMITING DISTANCE :

ALLOWABLE UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

PROPOSED UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

28.30 m

 6.66 m

 26.55 m = 91.96%

10.73 m = 37.91%

UNPROTECTED OPENINGS UNIT "A"

UNPROTECTED OPENINGS UNIT "B"

REF. : TABLE 9.10.15.4 BCBC 2018

2

2

2

2

2

2

4.39 M2

3.83 M2

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-06
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

NORTH & SOUTH
ELEVATIONS
"DUPLEX"

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021
5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP             02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

8      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



2 63 57

DUPLEX WEST ELEVATION

2.08M2

PL

8

3.
41

6
0.

61
0

2.
43

8

7.
21

4

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

2.
80

4

    69.93

    69.25

    69.92

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
 F

R
O

M
 R

EF
. G

R
AD

E(
23

.6
6'

)

6.
60

5

3' HIGH
ALUMINUM FENCE

    69.77

1.67 M2

    70.85

    69.64

1

    70.00

2.08M2M

9 929.929 926    66

1.67 M27 M

70.40

2.09 M2

1.67 M252.87 M2

EXPOSING BUILDING FACE AREA : TOTAL :

LIMITING DISTANCE :

ALLOWABLE UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

PROPOSED UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

52.87 m

 2.96 m

 8.06 m = 22.99%

3.76 m = 7 %

UNPROTECTED OPENINGS UNIT "A"

REF. : TABLE 9.10.15.4  BCBC 2018

2

2

2

FINISH MATERIALS LIST :

 1      STAINED CEDAR SIDING
         PINE CONE - SW 3046

 2      FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         HAMMERED SILVER - SW 2840

 3     FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         WHITE DOVE - OC 17 BENJAMIN MOORE

 4      METAL ROOF
         LIGHT BRONZE

 5      RESIDENTIAL VINYL WINDOW FRAMES
         WHITE COLOUR

 6      ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL WITH CLEAR GLAZING
         BLACK

 7     METAL FLASHING
        TO MATCH BACKGROUND COLOUR

 8     PAINTED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE
        (SW 6254)

 9     OAK SOLID WOOD  DOOR
         PINE CONE - SW 3046

10      INSULATED PVC GARAGE DOOR
         SHADOW GRAY- 2125-40 BENJAMIN MOORE

11       ALUMINUM  PATIO / BALCONY DOORS

12      STUCCO
          GALLERY BUFF- 305P-225 BENJAMIN MOORE

13       STAINED CEDAR POST
          CEDAR MILL SW 3512

14     ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL (BLACK)

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-07
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

WEST  ELEVATION
"DUPLEX"

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021
5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP             02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

8      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



6 527 3

DUPLEX EAST ELEVATION

1.67 M2

2.09M2

PL

8

70.18 m

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

7.
21

4

REF. GRADE

3.
41

6
2.

43
8

0.
61

0
2.

80
4

    70.30

6.
60

5

    70.31

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
FR

O
M

 R
EF

. G
R

AD
E(

23
.6

6'
)

1

    70.30

    70.60

    70.30
    70.40

    70.76

    71.37

2.
74

3

1.67 M27 M

2.09M29

70.301    70.311

    71.37

    70.60

    70.10

1.67 M2

2.09 M2

46.02 M2

EXPOSING BUILDING FACE AREA : TOTAL :

LIMITING DISTANCE :

ALLOWABLE UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

PROPOSED UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

46.02 m

1.87 m

3.68 m = 11.22%

3.76 m = 8 %

UNPROTECTED OPENINGS UNIT "B"

REF. : TABLE 9.10.15.4  BCBC 2018

2

2

2

FINISH MATERIALS LIST :

 1      STAINED CEDAR SIDING
         PINE CONE - SW 3046

 2      FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         HAMMERED SILVER - SW 2840

 3     FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         WHITE DOVE - OC 17 BENJAMIN MOORE

 4      METAL ROOF
         LIGHT BRONZE

 5      RESIDENTIAL VINYL WINDOW FRAMES
WHITE COLOUR

 6      ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL WITH CLEAR GLAZING
         BLACK

 7     METAL FLASHING
        TO MATCH BACKGROUND COLOUR

 8     PAINTED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE
        (SW 6254)

 9     OAK SOLID WOOD  DOOR
         PINE CONE - SW 3046

10      INSULATED PVC GARAGE DOOR
SHADOW GRAY- 2125-40 BENJAMIN MOORE

11       ALUMINUM  PATIO / BALCONY DOORS

12      STUCCO
          GALLERY BUFF- 305P-225 BENJAMIN MOORE

13       STAINED CEDAR POST
          CEDAR MILL SW 3512

14     ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL (BLACK)

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-08
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

EAST  ELEVATION
"DUPLEX"

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021
5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP             02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

8      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



5 34

10

2

13

7

INFILL UNIT NORTH ELEVATION

2.51M2

PL

PL

3.
41

6
7.

21
4

2.
43

8
0.

61
0

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

REF. GRADE
70.18 m

2.
80

4

    70.81

    71.22

    70.65

    70.41

    70.81

    70.53
    70.60

    71.00

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
FR

O
M

 R
EF

. G
R

AD
E(

23
.6

6'
)

6.
60

5

12

6

12
4

    71.37

2.
27

3

    71.22

    70.97

70.65
    70.81

70.6077

  7  7  71.00  7 0001 00001 001 001 001 0071 001 0071 0071 0071 0071 007171 0071 00    71.000717717171 0.97    700

2.51M2M

12
4

3.
41

6
0.

61
0

2.
43

8

9

5 632 7

INFILL UNIT SOUTH ELEVATION

2.51M2

2.65M2

PL PL
5.01M2

118

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

7.
21

4

2.
80

4

    70.08

    70.76

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
FR

O
M

 R
EF

. G
R

AD
E(

23
.6

6'
)

6.
60

5

12
4

    70.61

    70.85    70.85

    70.15

    70.48

    70.66

1.25 M2 1.25 M2

2.65M2M2

   70.855

12
4

2.51M2

5.01M2
2.65 M2

57.50 M2

EXPOSING BUILDING FACE AREA : TOTAL :

LIMITING DISTANCE :

ALLOWABLE UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

PROPOSED UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

56.82 m

5.48 m.

25.17 m = 48.87%

12.67 m = 22.3 %

UNPROTECTED OPENINGS UNIT "C"

REF. : TABLE 9.10.15.4 BCBC 2018

2

2

2

1.25 M2 1.25 M2

FINISH MATERIALS LIST :

 1      STAINED CEDAR SIDING
         PINE CONE - SW 3046

 2      FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         HAMMERED SILVER - SW 2840

 3     FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         WHITE DOVE - OC 17 BENJAMIN MOORE

 4      METAL ROOF
         LIGHT BRONZE

 5      RESIDENTIAL VINYL WINDOW FRAMES
         WHITE COLOUR

 6      ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL WITH CLEAR GLAZING
         BLACK

 7     METAL FLASHING
        TO MATCH BACKGROUND COLOUR

 8     PAINTED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE
        (SW 6254)

 9     OAK SOLID WOOD  DOOR
         PINE CONE - SW 3046

10      INSULATED PVC GARAGE DOOR
         SHADOW GRAY- 2125-40 BENJAMIN MOORE

11       ALUMINUM  PATIO / BALCONY DOORS

12      STUCCO
          GALLERY BUFF- 305P-225 BENJAMIN MOORE

13       STAINED CEDAR POST
          CEDAR MILL SW 3512

14     ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL (BLACK)

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-09
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

NORTH & SOUTH
ELEVATIONS
"INFILL"

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021
5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

8      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



2.
43

8
3.

41
6

53 4

INFILL UNIT WEST ELEVATION

27 4
0.

61
0

0.65M2

1.73M2

8

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

2.
80

4

    70.53

    70.13

    70.85

    70.41

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
 F

R
O

M
 R

EF
. G

R
AD

E(
23

.6
6'

)

6.
60

5

PL

    70.66

    70.08'

1.73 M2

7.
21

4

1.73M2

    70.12

1213

6

12
4

66 70.66.66

21.73M273

1.73 MMM2MM2

2.
43

8
3.

41
6

66 42

13

7

INFILL UNIT EAST ELEVATION

0.
61

0

5.20 M2

1.73M2

PL

8

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

2.
80

4

    70.70

    71.10
    71.22

6.
60

5

    70.80

    70.98
    71.07'

7.
21

4

1.77M2

12

12
4

    70.80

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
FR

O
M

 R
EF

. G
R

AD
E(

23
.6

6'
)

    70.80

0.988888888    77
7 07'1 07'07'71 07'71 07'777171  71.07'777771.07'771

1.77M221

M2M21.73M2

35

5.20 M2

1.73M2

30.32 M2

EXPOSING BUILDING FACE AREA : TOTAL :

LIMITING DISTANCE :

ALLOWABLE UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

PROPOSED UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

UNPROTECTED OPENINGS UNIT "INFILL"
30.32 m

3.16 m.

6.57 m = 21.86%

6.93 m = 22.8 %

REF. : TABLE 9.10.15.4  BCBC 2018

2

2

2

31.63 M2

UNPROTECTED OPENINGS UNIT "INFILL"
EXPOSING BUILDING FACE AREA : TOTAL :

LIMITING DISTANCE :

ALLOWABLE UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

PROPOSED UNPROTECTED OPENINGS :

31.63 m

1.75 m. - 3.81 m.

3.25 m = 10.5%

2.38 m = 7.5 %

REF. : TABLE 9.10.15.4 BCBC 2018

2

2

2

DISTANCE TO PROPERTY LINE 3.81 M

0.65M2

1.73 M2

FINISH MATERIALS LIST :

 1      STAINED CEDAR SIDING
         PINE CONE - SW 3046

 2      FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         HAMMERED SILVER - SW 2840

 3     FIBER CEMENT HARDIE PANEL
         WHITE DOVE - OC 17 BENJAMIN MOORE

 4      METAL ROOF
         LIGHT BRONZE

 5      RESIDENTIAL VINYL WINDOW FRAMES
         WHITE COLOUR

 6      ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL WITH CLEAR GLAZING
      BLACK

 7     METAL FLASHING
        TO MATCH BACKGROUND COLOUR

 8     PAINTED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE
        (SW 6254)

 9     OAK SOLID WOOD  DOOR
PINE CONE - SW 3046

10      INSULATED PVC GARAGE DOOR
         SHADOW GRAY- 2125-40 BENJAMIN MOORE

11      ALUMINUM  PATIO / BALCONY DOORS

12      STUCCO
          GALLERY BUFF- 305P-225 BENJAMIN MOORE

13       STAINED CEDAR POST
          CEDAR MILL SW 3512

14     ALUMINUM GUARDRAIL (BLACK)

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-10
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

WEST & EAST
ELEVATIONS
"INFILL"

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021
5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP             02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

8      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



2.
43

8
3.

41
6

0.
61

SECTION B - B

2.
80

4

W.I.C BED ROOM

DINING ROOM DINING ROOM

PL
PL

    69.90

    70.32

7.
21

4

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
 F

R
O

M
 R

EF
. G

R
AD

E(
23

.6
6'

)
6.

60
5

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

6' HIGH
WOOD
FENCE

SECTION A - A

PATIO
PATIO

REC. ROOM

LIVING ROOM
PL

2.
43

8
3.

41
6

0.
61

0
2.

80
4

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

    69.80

7.
21

4

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

6.
60

5
H

EI
G

H
T 

EN
VE

LO
PE

 F
R

O
M

 R
EF

. G
R

AD
E(

23
.6

6'
)

6' HIGH
PRIVACY3' HIGH

ALUMINUM FENCE
ON 1' HIGH CONC.

BASE

STORAGE

COAT

0.
61

0
2.

43
8

3.
41

6
2.

80
4

GARAGELIVING ROOM

BED ROOM BED ROOM

BED ROOM

    70.85
    70.83

6.
60

5

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
 F

R
O

M
 R

EF
. G

R
AD

E(
23

.6
6'

)

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

    70.85

2.
43

8
3.

41
6

0.
61

0
2.

80
4

SECTION C - C

PL
PL

    70.12

    70.80

7.
21

4

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

6.
60

5

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-11
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

SECTIONS

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              12 - 10 - 2020
4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              02 - 05 - 2021

5      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

6      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

7      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021

8      ADJUSTED THE FLOOR ELEVATIONS          08 - 26 - 2021



THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-12
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

MATERIAL BOARD

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

5      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021



DUPLEX WEST ELEVATION
Western neighbor windows

2 63 57

2.08M2

PL

8

3.
41

6
0.

61
0

2.
43

8

7.
21

4

70.18 m
REF. GRADE

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

2.
80

4

    69.92

    69.25

    69.92

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
 F

R
O

M
 R

EF
. G

R
AD

E(
23

.6
6'

)

6.
60

5

70.40

3' HIGH
ALUMINUM FENCE

    69.77

1.67 M2

    70.80

    69.38

70.20

1

2.08M2M

9 929.929 92666

1.67 M27 M

    70.00

6 527 3

DUPLEX EAST ELEVATION

1.67 M2

2.09M2

PL

8

70.18 m

FIRST FLOOR

74.37 m
SECOND FLOOR

76.81 m
UNDER CEILLING

77.42 m
TOP OF UPSTAND

70.95 m

BASEMENT
68.15 m

7.
21

4

REF. GRADE

3.
41

6
2.

43
8

0.
61

0
2.

80
4

    70.30

6.
60

5

    70.31

H
EI

G
H

T 
EN

VE
LO

PE
FR

O
M

 R
EF

. G
R

AD
E(

23
.6

6'
)

1

    70.30

    70.60

    70.30
    70.40

    70.76

    71.37

2.
74

3

1.67 M27 M

2.09M29

    70.301    70.311

    71.37

    70.60

    70.10

Eastern neighbor windows

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-14
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/100

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

REFLECTED EAST & WEST
ELEVATIONS NEIGHBOR`S
WINDOWS ON SIDE ELEVATIONS

4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

5      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021



THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-15
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

SUMMER STREETSCAPE

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

5      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021



227

232

233

233

231

LAN
E

LANE

#310
2 STO

REY DW
ELLING

W
ITH BASEM

ENT

#328
2 STO

REY DW
ELLING

W
ITH BASEM

ENT

overhang

overhang

O
verhang

Porch

Porch

Porch

Patio

G
ARAG

E

W
 E S T  1 4 T H

  S T R
 E E T

TRENCH
DRAIN

1.
75

5

EX
: 2

30
.6'

EX: 2
34

.0'

EX
: 2

30
.2'

EX: 227.2'

82
'-7

"

10%

10%

15
.2

40

6%

GARAGE

11.660

BIKE STORAGE

3.
24

0

DN

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+69.25
 F.G.+69.92

 F.G.+70.90

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 E.G
.+7

1.0
0

 E.G.+71.22

 F.G.+70.88

 F.G
.+7

1.1
0

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

4 
R

IS
ES

@
18

0m
m

 E.G.+70.65
 F.G.+70.53

DN

DN

 E.G.+70.41

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G
.+7

0.5
3

UP

2.
96

0
1.

87

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.45

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.76

DN

 F.G.+70.80

13 RISERS
@173mm

DN 11 RISERS
@170mm

4 RISERS
@175mm

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.65

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+70.83

 F.G.+70.66

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

42.659

3.69

1.219
SETBACK

SETBACK

SETBACK
(GARAGE)

SE
TB

AC
K

SE
TB

AC
K

1 2 6

SE
TB

AC
K

SITE PLAN

4.575

6.097

L C

W
 E S T  1 4 T H

  S T R
 E E T

W
M

Ø
0.1 (D

)

W
M

C
oncrete  Sidew

alk

G
utterline

H
edge

PP

Edge of Asphalt

LAN
E

CL (Paved)

DN

3 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

S/C

2.344

4.300

1

2

3

4

 F.G.+70.40

Garbage/Recycling

DN

5 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

 F.G.+69.88

NOTE #1:
DEVELOPER/GENERAL
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE
AN ELABORATE PLAN BY
DESIGNATED SUPPLIER ON
HOW THE PAVERS WILL BE
INSTALLED WITHIN TREE
PROTECTION AREA

REFERENCE  GRADE=
70.15m (230.14')

REFERENCE
GRADE=70.15m(230.14')

BASEMENT= 67.85 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
BASEMENT= 68.10 m

SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.37 m

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.83 m
SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+69.88

UP 3 RISERS
@180mm F.G.+70.12

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.08

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.26
 F.G.+70.80

10%
DN

CARPORT

CARPORT

 F.G.+70.90

F.D.

 F.G.+71.07 F.G.+70.98
F.D.

UNIT A

UNIT B

INFILL
3

0.
91

4

LIGHT WELL

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

SECOND FLOOR
OUTLINE

LIGHT WELL

5'-6" HIGH
PRIVACY SCREEN

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

3' HIGH
ALUMINUM FENCE
ON 1' HIGH CONC.
BASE

2% SLOPE DN.

TBD 2.4m
RADIUSTBD 4.3m

RADIUS

PERMEABLE PAVER
(SEE NOTE #1)

PERMEABLE PAVER

TRENCH
DRAIN

3% SLOPE DN.

LIGHT WELL

TRELLIS ABOVE
GARBAGE ROOM

 F.G.70.273 RISERS
@17.7mm

5 RISERS
@160 mm

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

 F.G.70.00

 F.G.+69.89

 F.G.+68.288

DN

 F.G.+69.50

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+70.10

 E.G
.+7

0.9
7

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 E.G.+70.60

LIGHT WELL

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

2% SLOPE DN.
 F.G.+70.03 F.G.+70.00

 F.G.69.88

UP

42.65

15.24

42.66

91° 00' 02"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

230

230

230

230

230

230

229

228

227

226

228

227

229
231

229

231

234

233

232

231

231

232

233

231

229

229

228

228

227

227 229

228

228

231
edge of asphalt

Ø
2.2 (D

)

Ø
1.6 (D

)
(2 X Trunks)

Ø
0.8 (C

)
Ø

0.9 (C
)

Ø
1.1 (C

)

Ø
0.8 (D

)

Ø
1.7 (D

)

Ø
1.3 (D

)

Ø
0.7 (D

)

Ø
1.5 (D

)

Ø
2.8 (D

)
(M

ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70.32

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70.28

70.16

70.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22

69.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

UP
3 RISES
@180mm

 F.G.+69.34

 F.G.+70.40 DN2 RISERS
@180mm

2.3% SLOPE DN.

 F.G.+70.61

2 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
5m

m

 F.G.+70.24

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.20

 F.G.+69.64

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

5'-6" HIGH
PRIVACY SCREEN

SE
TB

AC
K

0.
91

4

0.
91

4

 F.G.+70.70

0.914

 F.G.+69.95

 F.G.70.10

5'-6" HIGH
PRIVACY SCREEN

LINE OF RETENTION TANK

3.250

2.185

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

6' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

4' HIGH
WOOD FENCE

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.00

 F.G.+70.08

 F.G.70.00

 T.O.W. +70.90

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.30 T.O.CONC.CURB +71.37

12.981

S/C

 F.G.+69.90

 F.G.70.35
 F.G.+70.80

F.D.

1.
50

0

1.828

3.506

0.610

3.658

0.
60

8
4.

87
7

SUMP-DISCHARGE TO
CITY SYSTEM SUMP WITH

MAINTENANCE
ACCESS

SUMP PUMP

SUMP WITH
SUMP PUMP

RETENTION TANK

THIS DRAWING, AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY
OF REZA SALEHI ARCHITECT INC. AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT HIS PERMISSION. ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE
DRAWING IS FOR THE USE OF THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT ONLY AND
WILL NOT BE USED OTHERWISE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THIS OFFICE.

CONTRACTORS WILL VERIFY AND BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB.  THIS OFFICE WILL BE INFORMED OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES AND VARIATIONS SHOWN ON DRAWING.
THESE DESIGN DOCUMENTS ARE PREPARED SOLELY FOR THE
USE BY THE PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HAS ENTERED INTO A CONTRACT AND THERE ARE NO
REPRESENTATIONS OF ANY KIND MADE BY THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL TO ANY PARTY WITH WHOM THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL HAS NOT ENTERED INTO A CONCTRACT.

SEAL

SALEHI ARCHITECT INC.

207 - 132 15th West Street
NORTH VANCOUVER
TEL : 778-996 7833
EMAIL : rsalehi@salehiarchitect.ca

CLIENT :

PROJECT NO.

PROJECT :

DRAWING TITLE :

NO DESCRIPTION DATE

DATE :

SCALE :

DRAWN :

CHECKED :

A-16
           10-04-2019 F.N.

R.S.

CONTEXT SITE PLAN

322 - W 14TH
NORTH VANCOUVER

01 - 18

LTD.

1/200

1      ISSUED FOR PRE-CONSULTATION             10 - 04 - 2019

2      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND
        DEVELOPMENT PERMIT                              01 - 08 - 2020
3      ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP              02 - 23 - 2021

4      RE-ISSUED FOR REZONING AND ADP        04 - 16 - 2021

5      RE-ISSUED FOR DP                                      08 - 12 - 2021



Sheet No.

Scale

Project IDProject Manager

Drawn By

Date

CAD File Name

L-1

AS NOTED

2020-06STEVE WONG

SW

JANUARY/20/2020

W 14 ST v5.vwx 5
of

Sheet Title

Project Title

LAYOUT

MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING
322 WEST 14TH STREET

NORTH VANCOUVER

Client

Design Firm

1209661 BC LTD.

SW LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
919 MELBOURNE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER

www.swlandscapearchitect.com
778 834-8959 cell

No. Date Issue/Revision Notes

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  This drawing and design are, 
and at all times shall remain the property of SW Landscape 
Architect, and cannot be used, reproduced or distributed 
without the written consent of SW Landscape Architect.

REVIEW1 1/20/2020

SUBMIT2 7/1/2020

ADP3 11/2/2020

ADP4 2/2/2021

ADP5 3/1/2021

SUBMIT TO CITY6 4/7/2021

BUILDING PERMIT7 8/9/2021

70
.3

2

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

S/C

 F.G.+69.90

 F.G.70.35
 F.G.+70.80

F.D.

SUMP-DISCHARGE TO
CITY SYSTEM SUMP WITH 

MAINTENANCE
ACCESS

SUMP PUMP 

SUMP WITH 
SUMP PUMP 

RETENTION TANK

1.
75

5

15
.2

40

11.660

3.
24

0

12.981

2.
96

0
1.

87

42.659

3.69

1.219

4.575

6.097

2.344

4.300

0.
91

4

LIGHT WELL

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

SECOND FLOOR
OUTLINE

LIGHT WELL

5'-6" HIGH 
PRIVACY SCREEN  

  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

3' HIGH 
ALUMINUM FENCE
ON 1' HIGH CONC. 
BASE  

2% SLOPE DN.  

TBD 2.4m 
RADIUS  TBD 4.3m 

RADIUS  

PERMEABLE PAVER
(SEE NOTE #1)   

PERMEABLE PAVER
  

TRENCH
DRAIN

3% SLOPE DN.  

LIGHT WELL

TRELLIS ABOVE
GARBAGE ROOM 

LIGHT WELL

2.3% SLOPE DN.  

0.
91

4

0.
91

4

0.914

LINE OF RETENTION TANK  

3.250

2.185

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

4' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

4' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

1.
50

0

1.828

3.506

0.610

3.658

0.
60

8
4.

87
7

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+69.25
 F.G.+69.92

 F.G.+70.90

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 E.G
.+7

1.0
0

 E.G.+71.22

 F.G.+70.88

 F.G
.+7

1.1
0

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.08

 E.G.+70.65
 F.G.+70.53

 E.G.+70.41

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G
.+7

0.5
3

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.45

EX
: 2

30
.6

'

 F.G.+70.80

EX: 2
34

.0'

EX
: 2

30
.2

'

EX: 227.2'

3'
-3

"

 F.G.+70.76

10%

10%

6%

 F.G.+70.80

GARAGE

BIKE STORAGE

DN

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.65

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+70.83

 F.G.+70.66

4 
R

IS
ES

@
18

0m
m

DN

DN

UP

DN

13 RISERS
@173mm

DN 11 RISERS
@170mm

4 RISERS
@175mm

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

SETBACK

SETBACK

SETBACK
(GARAGE)

SE
TB

AC
K

SE
TB

AC
K

1 2 6

SE
TB

AC
K

SITE PLAN

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+69.88

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+69.88

 F.G.+70.12

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.08

M

M

90° 59' 00"
50.01L C

W
 E S T  1 4 T H

  S T R
 E E T

W
M

Ø
0.1 (D

)

W
M

C
oncrete  Sidew

alk

G
utterline

H
edge

230

229

228

227

226

226
227

228
229

230

231

IP
IP

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

50.00

PP

Edge of Asphalt

LAN
E

CL

231

230

231

232

233

234

IP
IP

(Paved)

232.9

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.26
 F.G.+70.80

DN

3 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+71.07 F.G.+70.98

S/C

1

2

3

3

4

Garbage/
Recycling

DN

5 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

NOTE #1: 
DEVELOPER/GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 
AN ELABORATE PLAN BY 
DESIGNATED SUPPLIER ON 
HOW THE PAVERS WILL BE 
INSTALLED WITHIN TREE 
PROTECTION AREA  

REFERENCE  GRADE=
70.15m (230.14')

REFERENCE  
GRADE=70.15m(230.14') 

BASEMENT= 67.85 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
BASEMENT= 68.10 m

SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.37 m

 F.G.70.27

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.83 m
SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m 

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

UP 3 RISERS
@180mm

 F.G.70.00

10%
DN

CARPORT

CARPORT

F.D.

F.D.

UNIT A

UNIT B

INFILL

 F.G.+69.89

 F.G.+68.288

 F.G.+69.50

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+70.10

 E.G
.+7

0.9
7

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 E.G.+70.60

3 RISERS
@17.7mm

5 RISERS
@160 mm

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

DN

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

2% SLOPE DN.  
 F.G.+70.03 F.G.+70.00

 F.G.69.88

 F.G.+69.34

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.61

 F.G.+70.24

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.20

 F.G.+69.64

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+69.95

 F.G.70.10

 T.O.W. +70.90

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.30 T.O.CONC.CURB +71.37

UP

UP
3 RISES
@180mm

DN2 RISERS
@180mm

2 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
5m

m

SE
TB

AC
K

 F.G.70.00

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.00

 F.G
.+7

0.1
6

 F.G
.+6

9.2
5

 F.G
.+7

0.4
7

 F.G
.+7

1.3
2

PROTECT NEIGHBOURING TREE
(T1) 4.3M CRZ- SEE ARBORIST

REPORT

TW / 6
9.8

8m

TW / 6
9.8

8m

TW / 70.22m

TW / 70.22m

TW / 70.5m

TW / 70.5m

TW / 70.9m

TW / 70.9m

TW / 71.3m TW / 7
1.3

m

TW / 7
0.3

m

TW / 70.3m

4' CEDAR FENCE IN FRONT
YARD

6' CEDAR FENCE IN SIDE 
YARD

4' CEDAR FENCE IN FRONT
YARD 6' CEDAR FENCE IN FRONT 

YARD

30
33

31
43

31
43

30
87

RETAINING WALL WITH 
FENCE

RETAINING WALL WITH 
FENCE

PROTECT NEIGHBOURING 
TREE 2.4M CRZ- SEE 
ARBORIST REPORT

15
00

STORMWATER TANK

SUMP

SUMP WITH SUMP PUMP

SUMP-DISCHARGE TO
CITY STORM

TANK SERVICE 
OPENING

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 M

PROPERTY LINE

31- coLAWN-TYP

5- co

17-Tm

18-Tm

1-Ms

11-Tm

9-Cs

6-AzG

16-Tm

12-Tm

7-Tm

22-Tm

5-Ca

4-Tm

7-pm

9-pm
16-mn 

4-RhD

8-pm

13-mn 

5-AzG
11-Vp

15-Vp

20-pm

5-Ca

3-Ca

24-mn 

22- co22- co

1-Ms

LAWN-TYP

6-mn

4-pm

3-mn

6-RhP

3-pm

9- co
12-Tm

10-AzG

10-RhP

2-CJ

3.0 M LONG ROOT BARRIER
PER CNV SPECIFICATIONS-

TYP

STREET TREE PER CNV
SPECIFICATIONS- SUGGEST

KATSURA TREE

2-MsP4-CK

2-AC

2-MsP

PATH PATHPATH
PATH PATHPATH

PATH PATHPATH PATH PATHPATH

PATH
PATH

PATHPATH PATH

SP

SP

SP

SP

STEP

PATH PATHPATH PATH PATHPATH PATH PATHPATH PATH PATH PATH

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD BLD

BLD BLD BLD

BLD

STEP

STEPSTEP

SP

STEP

STEP

STEP

STEP

STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP

STEP STEP STEPSTEP

SP

SP

SP

SP

STEP STEP

SP

SP

S
TE

P

S
TE

PPATH

STEP

STEP

BLD

BLD

STEP STEP

SP

SP

SP

BLD

PLANTING PLAN
Scale: 1:7518

CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES: Drawings of 
existing facilities are, in general, diagrammatic. Exact 
locations shall be determined by the Contractor from 
field measurements taken by Contractor's personnel. 
Actual arrangement of the work shall follow locations 
shown on the drawings within the constraints of existing 
equipment and construction. Dimensions shall govern 
these drawings and they are not to be scaled. Drawing 
and notes to drawings are correlative and have equal 
authority and priority. Should there be discrepancies in 
themselves or between them, Contractor shall base bid 
pricing on the most expensive combination of quality 
and/or quantity of the work indicated. In the event of 
discrepancies, the appropriate method of performing the 
work and/or items to be incorporated into the scope of 
the work shall be determined by the appropriate design 
professional (eg Landscape Architect, Engineer)



Sheet No.

Scale

Project IDProject Manager

Drawn By

Date

CAD File Name

L-2

AS NOTED

2020-06STEVE WONG

SW

JANUARY/20/2020

W 14 ST v5.vwx 5
of

Sheet Title

Project Title

PLANTING PLAN

MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING
322 WEST 14TH STREET

NORTH VANCOUVER

Client

Design Firm

1209661 BC LTD.

SW LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
919 MELBOURNE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER

www.swlandscapearchitect.com
778 834-8959 cell

No. Date Issue/Revision Notes

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  This drawing and design are, 
and at all times shall remain the property of SW Landscape 
Architect, and cannot be used, reproduced or distributed 
without the written consent of SW Landscape Architect.

REVIEW1 1/20/2020

SUBMIT2 7/1/2020

ADP3 11/2/2020

ADP4 2/2/2021

ADP5 3/1/2021

SUBMIT TO CITY6 4/7/2021

BUILDING PERMIT7 8/9/2021

70
.3

2

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

S/C

 F.G.+69.90

 F.G.70.35
 F.G.+70.80

F.D.

SUMP-DISCHARGE TO
CITY SYSTEM SUMP WITH 

MAINTENANCE
ACCESS

SUMP PUMP 

SUMP WITH 
SUMP PUMP 

RETENTION TANK

1.
75

5

15
.2

40

11.660

3.
24

0

12.981

2.
96

0
1.

87

42.659

3.69

1.219

4.575

6.097

2.344

4.300

0.
91

4

LIGHT WELL

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

SECOND FLOOR
OUTLINE

LIGHT WELL

5'-6" HIGH 
PRIVACY SCREEN  

  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

3' HIGH 
ALUMINUM FENCE
ON 1' HIGH CONC. 
BASE  

2% SLOPE DN.  

TBD 2.4m 
RADIUS  TBD 4.3m 

RADIUS  

PERMEABLE PAVER
(SEE NOTE #1)   

PERMEABLE PAVER
  

TRENCH
DRAIN

3% SLOPE DN.  

LIGHT WELL

TRELLIS ABOVE
GARBAGE ROOM 

LIGHT WELL

2.3% SLOPE DN.  

0.
91

4

0.
91

4

0.914

LINE OF RETENTION TANK  

3.250

2.185

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

4' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

4' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

1.
50

0

1.828

3.506

0.610

3.658

0.
60

8
4.

87
7

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+69.25
 F.G.+69.92

 F.G.+70.90

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 E.G
.+7

1.0
0

 E.G.+71.22

 F.G.+70.88

 F.G
.+7

1.1
0

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.08

 E.G.+70.65
 F.G.+70.53

 E.G.+70.41

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G
.+7

0.5
3

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.45

EX
: 2

30
.6

'

 F.G.+70.80

EX: 2
34

.0'

EX
: 2

30
.2

'

EX: 227.2'

3'
-3

"

 F.G.+70.76

10%

10%

6%

 F.G.+70.80

GARAGE

BIKE STORAGE

DN

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.65

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+70.83

 F.G.+70.66

4 
R

IS
ES

@
18

0m
m

DN

DN

UP

DN

13 RISERS
@173mm

DN 11 RISERS
@170mm

4 RISERS
@175mm

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

SETBACK

SETBACK

SETBACK
(GARAGE)

SE
TB

AC
K

SE
TB

AC
K

1 2 6

SE
TB

AC
K

SITE PLAN

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+69.88

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+69.88

 F.G.+70.12

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.08

M

M

90° 59' 00"
50.01L C

W
 E S T  1 4 T H

  S T R
 E E T

W
M

Ø
0.1 (D

)

W
M

C
oncrete  Sidew

alk

G
utterline

H
edge

230

229

228

227

226

226
227

228
229

230

231

IP
IP

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

50.00

PP

Edge of Asphalt

LAN
E

CL

231

230

231

232

233

234

IP
IP

(Paved)

232.9

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.26
 F.G.+70.80

DN

3 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+71.07 F.G.+70.98

S/C

1

2

3

3

4

Garbage/
Recycling

DN

5 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

NOTE #1: 
DEVELOPER/GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 
AN ELABORATE PLAN BY 
DESIGNATED SUPPLIER ON 
HOW THE PAVERS WILL BE 
INSTALLED WITHIN TREE 
PROTECTION AREA  

REFERENCE  GRADE=
70.15m (230.14')

REFERENCE  
GRADE=70.15m(230.14') 

BASEMENT= 67.85 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
BASEMENT= 68.10 m

SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.37 m

 F.G.70.27

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.83 m
SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m 

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

UP 3 RISERS
@180mm

 F.G.70.00

10%
DN

CARPORT

CARPORT

F.D.

F.D.

UNIT A

UNIT B

INFILL

 F.G.+69.89

 F.G.+68.288

 F.G.+69.50

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+70.10

 E.G
.+7

0.9
7

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 E.G.+70.60

3 RISERS
@17.7mm

5 RISERS
@160 mm

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

DN

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25
69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

2% SLOPE DN.  
 F.G.+70.03 F.G.+70.00

 F.G.69.88

 F.G.+69.34

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.61

 F.G.+70.24

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.20

 F.G.+69.64

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+69.95

 F.G.70.10

 T.O.W. +70.90

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.30 T.O.CONC.CURB +71.37

UP

UP
3 RISES
@180mm

DN2 RISERS
@180mm

2 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
5m

m

SE
TB

AC
K

 F.G.70.00

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.00

 F.G
.+7

0.1
6

 F.G
.+6

9.2
5

 F.G
.+7

0.4
7

 F.G
.+7

1.3
2

PROTECT NEIGHBOURING TREE
(T1) 4.3M CRZ- SEE ARBORIST

REPORT

TW / 6
9.8

8m

TW / 6
9.8

8m

TW / 70.22m

TW / 70.22m

TW / 70.5m

TW / 70.5m

TW / 70.9m

TW / 70.9m

TW / 71.3m TW / 7
1.3

m

TW / 7
0.3

m

TW / 70.3m

4' CEDAR FENCE IN FRONT
YARD

6' CEDAR FENCE IN SIDE 
YARD

4' CEDAR FENCE IN FRONT
YARD 6' CEDAR FENCE IN FRONT 

YARD

30
33

31
43

31
43

30
87

RETAINING WALL WITH 
FENCE

RETAINING WALL WITH 
FENCE

PROTECT NEIGHBOURING 
TREE 2.4M CRZ- SEE 
ARBORIST REPORT

15
00

STORMWATER TANK

SUMP

SUMP WITH SUMP PUMP

SUMP-DISCHARGE TO
CITY STORM

TANK SERVICE 
OPENING

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 M

PROPERTY LINE

31- coLAWN-TYP

5- co

17-Tm

18-Tm

1-Ms

11-Tm

9-Cs

6-AzG

16-Tm

12-Tm

7-Tm

22-Tm

5-Ca

4-Tm

7-pm

9-pm
16-mn 

4-RhD

8-pm

13-mn 

5-AzG
11-Vp

15-Vp

20-pm

5-Ca

3-Ca

24-mn 

22- co22- co

1-Ms

LAWN-TYP

6-mn

4-pm

3-mn

6-RhP

3-pm

9- co
12-Tm

10-AzG

10-RhP

2-CJ

3.0 M LONG ROOT BARRIER
PER CNV SPECIFICATIONS-

TYP

STREET TREE PER CNV
SPECIFICATIONS- SUGGEST

KATSURA TREE

2-MsP4-CK

2-AC

2-MsP

PATH PATHPATH
PATH PATHPATH

PATH PATHPATH PATH PATHPATH

PATH
PATH

PATHPATH PATH

SP

SP

SP

SP

STEP

PATH PATHPATH PATH PATHPATH PATH PATHPATH PATH PATH PATH

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD BLD

BLD BLD BLD

BLD

STEP

STEPSTEP

SP

STEP

STEP

STEP

STEP

STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP

STEP STEP STEPSTEP

SP

SP

SP

SP

STEP STEP

SP

SP

S
TE

P

S
TE

PPATH

STEP

STEP

BLD

BLD

STEP STEP

SP

SP

SP

BLD

PLANTING PLAN
Scale: 1:75-

CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES: Drawings of 
existing facilities are, in general, diagrammatic. Exact 
locations shall be determined by the Contractor from 
field measurements taken by Contractor's personnel. 
Actual arrangement of the work shall follow locations 
shown on the drawings within the constraints of existing 
equipment and construction. Dimensions shall govern 
these drawings and they are not to be scaled. Drawing 
and notes to drawings are correlative and have equal 
authority and priority. Should there be discrepancies in 
themselves or between them, Contractor shall base bid 
pricing on the most expensive combination of quality 
and/or quantity of the work indicated. In the event of 
discrepancies, the appropriate method of performing the 
work and/or items to be incorporated into the scope of 
the work shall be determined by the appropriate design 
professional (eg Landscape Architect, Engineer)

PLANT LIST 322 WEST 14 ST., CNV

Botanical Name Common Name No. Size Spacing Sym

TREES

Acer circinatum Vine maple 2 2.4m as shown AC

Cercidiphyllum japonicum Katsura tree 2 7 cm cal as shown CJ

 (suggested street tree species)

Cornus kousa ‘Milky Way Chinese dogwood 4 7 cm cal as shown CK

SHRUBS  

Azalea 'Girard Fuchsia' Azalea 21 #2 pot as shown AzG

Cornus alba ‘Elegantissima’ Variegated dogwood 13 #2 pot as shown Ca

Cornus stolonifera Redtwig dogwood 9 #2 pot as shown Cs

Magnolia stellata Star magnolia 2 1.8m as shown Ms

Magnolia stellata 'Pink Star' Star magnolia PS 4 1.8m as shown MsP

Rhododendron 'Dora Amateis' Rhododendron 4 #5 pot as shown RhD

Rhododendron 'PJM' Rhododendron 16 #5 pot as shown RhP

Taxus media 'Hillii' Yew 119 1.2m as shown Tm

Vaccinium parvifolium Red huckleberry 26 #2 pot as shown Vp

VINES, GROUND COVERS AND HERBACEOUS PERENNIALS

Carex oshimensis 'Evergold' Sedge 67 #1 pot as shown co

Mahonia nervosa Dull Oregon grape 62 #1 pot as shown mn

Polystichum munitum Western sword fern 51 #1 pot as shown pm

Contractor to be certified by BCLNA

All plants and installation to meet or exceed latest Canadian Landscape standard (CLS) #1 standards

Contractor to verify numbers and placement of plants prior to installation



Sheet No.

Scale

Project IDProject Manager

Drawn By

Date

CAD File Name

L-3

1:100

2020-06STEVE WONG

SW

JANUARY/20/2020

W 14 ST v5.vwx 5
of

Sheet Title

Project Title

LIGHTING  PLAN

MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING
322 WEST 14TH STREET

NORTH VANCOUVER

Client

Design Firm

1209661 BC LTD.

SW LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
919 MELBOURNE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER

www.swlandscapearchitect.com
778 834-8959 cell

No. Date Issue/Revision Notes

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  This drawing and design are, 
and at all times shall remain the property of SW Landscape 
Architect, and cannot be used, reproduced or distributed 
without the written consent of SW Landscape Architect.

Sheet No.

Scale

Project IDProject Manager

Drawn By

Date

CAD File Name

L-3

1:100

2020-06STEVE WONG

SW

JANUARY/20/2020

W 14 ST v5.vwx 5
of

Sheet Title

Project Title

LIGHTING  PLAN

MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING
322 WEST 14TH STREET

NORTH VANCOUVER

Client

Design Firm

1209661 BC LTD.

SW LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
919 MELBOURNE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER

www.swlandscapearchitect.com
778 834-8959 cell

No. Date Issue/Revision Notes

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  This drawing and design are, 
and at all times shall remain the property of SW Landscape 
Architect, and cannot be used, reproduced or distributed 
without the written consent of SW Landscape Architect.

Sheet No.

Scale

Project IDProject Manager

Drawn By

Date

CAD File Name

L-3

AS NOTED

2020-06STEVE WONG

SW

JANUARY/20/2020

W 14 ST v5.vwx 5
of

Sheet Title

Project Title

LIGHTING  PLAN

MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING
322 WEST 14TH STREET

NORTH VANCOUVER

Client

Design Firm

1209661 BC LTD.

SW LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
919 MELBOURNE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER

www.swlandscapearchitect.com
778 834-8959 cell

No. Date Issue/Revision Notes

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  This drawing and design are, 
and at all times shall remain the property of SW Landscape 
Architect, and cannot be used, reproduced or distributed 
without the written consent of SW Landscape Architect.

REVIEW1 1/20/2020

SUBMIT2 7/1/2020

ADP3 11/2/2020

ADP4 2/2/2021

ADP5 3/1/2021

SUBMIT TO CITY6 4/7/2021

BUILDING PERMIT7 8/9/2021

 

 

  
LIGHTING SCHEDULE 
 
LIGHTING: ALL FIXTURES TO BE ENERGY EFFICIENT WITH LED LAMPS: by Maxtar 
Lighting, available from Builderpack Supplier, 604 770-3315, all lights to be LED lighting, 
3000k  running on 24 volts.  Upighting/ Spotlights: Model EM-SP16W292L-COL, 6 
watt/fixture; Powdercoated black aluminum.  Wall/ Step Lighting:  Model EM-
STE5WW245407-KP, 5.3 watts/fixture; Stainless Steel finish.  Pathlighting: Model EM-
LAW8W12558-600/1000-ROY, 7.5 watt/fixture; Powdercoated black aluminum  
 
  
 

 

PATH

BUILDING

SPOT

STEP/WALL

LIGHTING LEGEND

PATH

STEP

BLD

SP

EX
: 2

30
.6

'

EX: 2
34

.0'

EX
: 2

30
.2

'

EX: 227.2'

99
0.

71

10%

10%

10%

6%

GARAGE

BIKE STORAGE

DN

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+69.25
 F.G.+69.92

 F.G.+70.90

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.70

 E.G
.+7

1.0
0

 E.G.+71.22

 F.G.+70.88

 F.G
.+7

1.1
0

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.26

3 
R

IS
ES

@
18

0m
m

 E.G.+70.65
 F.G.+70.53

DN

DN

DN

 E.G.+70.41

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+70.53
UP

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.48

 F.G.+70.85

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

DN

 F.G.+70.80

14 RISERS
@182mm

DN 10 RISERS
@180mm

3 RISERS
@180mm

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.65

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+70.83

 F.G.+70.66

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

SETBACK

SETBACK

SETBACK
(GARAGE)

SETBACK

SE
TB

AC
K

SE
TB

AC
K

1 2 6

SE
TB

AC
K

SITE PLANM

M

90
° 5

9'
 0

0"
50

.0
1

L C

W
 E S T  1 4 T H

  S T R
 E E T

W
M

Ø
0.1 (D

)

W
M

C
oncrete  Sidew

alk

G
utterline

H
edge

230

229

228

227

226

226
227

228
229

230

231

IP
IP

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D

50
.0

0

PP

Edge of Asphalt

LAN
E

CL

231

230

231

232

233

234

IP
IP

(Paved)

232.9

DN

3 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

S/C

1

2

3

4

 F.G.+70.48

Garbage/
Recycling

DN

5 
R

IS
ER

S
@

17
8m

m

 F.G.+69.92

NOTE #1: 
DEVELOPER/GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 
AN ELABORATE PLAN BY 
DESIGNATED SUPPLIER ON 
HOW THE PAVERS WILL BE 
INSTALLED WITHIN TREE 
PROTECTION AREA  

REFERENCE  GRADE=
70.15m (230.14')

REFERENCE  
GRADE=70.15m(230.14') 

BASEMENT= 67.85 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
BASEMENT= 68.10 m

SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.37 m

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.83 m
SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m 

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+69.88

UP 2 RISERS
@180mm F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.26

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.26  F.G.+70.80

10%
DN

CARPORT

CARPORT

 F.G.+70.90

F.D.

 F.G.+71.07 F.G.+70.98
F.D.

UNIT A

UNIT B

INFILL
3

 F.G.70.273 RISERS
@17.7mm

4 RISERS
@17.7mm

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

 F.G.70.04

DN
3 RISERS
@170mm

DN
5 RISERS
@180mm

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+69.89

 F.G.+68.288

DN

 F.G.+69.50

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.10
 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.10

 E.G
.+7

0.9
7

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 E.G.+70.60

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

3% SLOPE DN.  
 F.G.+70.26 F.G.+70.26 F.G.+70.26 F.G.+70.26 F.G.+70.26

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

3.2% SLOPE DN.  
3% SLOPE DN.   F.G.+70.19 F.G.+70.19

 F.G.+70.26 F.G.+70.26 F.G.+70.26 F.G.+70.26 F.G.+70.26

 F.G.69.88

UP

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

UP
3 RISES
@180mm

 F.G.+69.38

 F.G.+70.48 DN2 RISERS
@160mm

 F.G.+70.61

2 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
5m

m

 F.G.+70.24

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.20

 F.G.+69.48

1.
75

5

15
.2

40

11.660

3.
16

2

12.981
2.

96
0

1.
82

9

42.659

3.69

1.219

1.
81

5

4.575

6.097

4.300

0.
91

4

LIGHT WELL

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

SECOND FLOOR
OUTLINE

LIGHT WELL

6' HIGH 
PRIVACY SCREEN  

  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

3' HIGH 
ALUMINUM FENCE
ON 1' HIGH CONC. 
BASE  

4' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

2% SLOPE DN.  

TBD 2.4m 
RADIUS  TBD 4.3m 

RADIUS  

PERMEABLE PAVER
(SEE NOTE #1)   

PERMEABLE PAVER
  

3% SLOPE DN.  

3% SLOPE DN.  

TRENCH
DRAIN

3% SLOPE DN.  

LIGHT WELL

TRELLIS ABOVE
GARBAGE ROOM 

LIGHT WELL

2.5% SLOPE DN.  

2.291

42659

T2 TREE- EXTENT OF CANOPY

2400

S/C

 F.G.+69.90

 F.G.70.35
 F.G.+70.80

F.D.

1.
75

5

15
.2

40

11.660

3.
24

0

12.981
2.

96
0

1.
87

42.659

3.69

1.219

4.575

6.097

2.344

4.300

0.
91

4

LIGHT WELL

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

SECOND FLOOR
OUTLINE

LIGHT WELL

5'-6" HIGH 
PRIVACY SCREEN  

  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

3' HIGH 
ALUMINUM FENCE
ON 1' HIGH CONC. 
BASE  

2% SLOPE DN.  

TBD 2.4m 
RADIUS  TBD 4.3m 

RADIUS  

PERMEABLE PAVER
(SEE NOTE #1)   

PERMEABLE PAVER
  

TRENCH
DRAIN

3% SLOPE DN.  

LIGHT WELL

TRELLIS ABOVE
GARBAGE ROOM 

LIGHT WELL

2.3% SLOPE DN.  

0.
91

4

0.
91

4

0.914

LINE OF RETENTION TANK  

3.250

2.185

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

4' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

4' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+69.92

 F.G.+70.90

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 E.G
.+7

1.0
0

 E.G.+71.22

 F.G.+70.88

 F.G
.+7

1.1
0

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.08

 E.G.+70.65
 F.G.+70.53

 E.G.+70.41

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G
.+7

0.5
3

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.45

EX
: 2

30
.6

'

 F.G.+70.80

EX: 2
34

.0'

EX
: 2

30
.2

'

EX: 227.2'

3'
-3

"

10%

 F.G.+70.76

10%

6%

GARAGE

 F.G.+70.80

BIKE STORAGE

DN

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.65

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+70.83

 F.G.+70.66

4 
R

IS
ES

@
18

0m
m

DN

DN

UP

DN

13 RISERS
@173mm

DN 11 RISERS
@170mm

4 RISERS
@175mm

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

SETBACK

SETBACK

SETBACK
(GARAGE)

SETBACK

SE
TB

AC
K

SE
TB

AC
K

1 2 6

SE
TB

AC
K

SITE PLAN

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+69.88

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+69.88

 F.G.+70.12

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.08

M

M

90° 59' 00"
50.01L C

W
 E S T  1 4 T H

  S T R
 E E T

W
M

Ø
0.1 (D

)

W
M

C
oncrete  Sidew

alk

G
utterline

H
edge

230

229

228

227

226

226
227

228
229

230

231

IP
IP

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

50.00

PP

Edge of Asphalt

LAN
E

CL

231

230

231

232

233

234

IP
IP

(Paved)

232.9

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.26

DN

 F.G.+70.80

3 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+71.07 F.G.+70.98

S/C

1

2

3

4

3

Garbage/
Recycling

DN

5 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

NOTE #1: 
DEVELOPER/GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 
AN ELABORATE PLAN BY 
DESIGNATED SUPPLIER ON 
HOW THE PAVERS WILL BE 
INSTALLED WITHIN TREE 
PROTECTION AREA  

REFERENCE  GRADE=
70.15m (230.14')

REFERENCE  
GRADE=70.15m(230.14') 

BASEMENT= 67.85 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
BASEMENT= 68.10 m

SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.37 m

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.83 m
SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m 

 F.G.70.27

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

UP 3 RISERS
@180mm

 F.G.70.00

10%
DN

CARPORT

CARPORT

F.D.

F.D.

UNIT A

UNIT B

INFILL

 F.G.+69.89

 F.G.+68.288

 F.G.+69.50

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+70.10

 E.G
.+7

0.9
7

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 E.G.+70.60

3 RISERS
@17.7mm

5 RISERS
@160 mm

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

DN

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

2% SLOPE DN.  
 F.G.+70.03 F.G.+70.00

 F.G.69.88

 F.G.+69.34

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.61

 F.G.+70.24

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.20

 F.G.+69.64

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+69.95

 F.G.70.10

 T.O.W. +70.90

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.30 T.O.CONC.CURB +71.37

UP

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

UP
3 RISES
@180mm

DN2 RISERS
@180mm

2 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
5m

m

SE
TB

AC
K

 F.G.70.00

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.00

139'-11 1/2"

 F.G.+69.25 70
.3

2

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

S/C

 F.G.+69.90

 F.G.70.35
 F.G.+70.80

F.D.

SUMP-DISCHARGE TO
CITY SYSTEM SUMP WITH 

MAINTENANCE
ACCESS

SUMP PUMP 

SUMP WITH 
SUMP PUMP 

RETENTION TANK

1.
75

5

15
.2

40

11.660

3.
24

0

12.981
2.

96
0

1.
87

42.659

3.69

1.219

4.575

6.097

2.344

4.300

0.
91

4

LIGHT WELL

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

SECOND FLOOR
OUTLINE

LIGHT WELL

5'-6" HIGH 
PRIVACY SCREEN  

  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

3' HIGH 
ALUMINUM FENCE
ON 1' HIGH CONC. 
BASE  

2% SLOPE DN.  

TBD 2.4m 
RADIUS  TBD 4.3m 

RADIUS  

PERMEABLE PAVER
(SEE NOTE #1)   

PERMEABLE PAVER
  

TRENCH
DRAIN

3% SLOPE DN.  

LIGHT WELL

TRELLIS ABOVE
GARBAGE ROOM 

LIGHT WELL

2.3% SLOPE DN.  

0.
91

4

0.
91

4

0.914

LINE OF RETENTION TANK  

3.250

2.185

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

4' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

6' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

4' HIGH 
WOOD FENCE  

1.
50

0

1.828

3.506

0.610

3.658

0.
60

8
4.

87
7

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+69.25
 F.G.+69.92

 F.G.+70.90

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 E.G
.+7

1.0
0

 E.G.+71.22

 F.G.+70.88

 F.G
.+7

1.1
0

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.08

 E.G.+70.65
 F.G.+70.53

 E.G.+70.41

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G
.+7

0.5
3

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.45

EX
: 2

30
.6

'

 F.G.+70.80

EX: 2
34

.0'

EX
: 2

30
.2

'

EX: 227.2'

3'
-3

"

 F.G.+70.76

10%

10%

6%

 F.G.+70.80

GARAGE

BIKE STORAGE

DN

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.65

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+70.83

 F.G.+70.66

4 
R

IS
ES

@
18

0m
m

DN

DN

UP

DN

13 RISERS
@173mm

DN 11 RISERS
@170mm

4 RISERS
@175mm

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

PATIO

SETBACK

SETBACK

SETBACK
(GARAGE)

SE
TB

AC
K

SE
TB

AC
K

1 2 6

SE
TB

AC
K

SITE PLAN

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+69.88

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+69.88

 F.G.+70.12

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.08

M

M

90° 59' 00"
50.01L C

W
 E S T  1 4 T H

  S T R
 E E T

W
M

Ø
0.1 (D

)

W
M

C
oncrete  Sidew

alk

G
utterline

H
edge

230

229

228

227

226

226
227

228
229

230

231

IP
IP

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

50.00

PP

Edge of Asphalt

LAN
E

CL

231

230

231

232

233

234

IP
IP

(Paved)

232.9

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.26
 F.G.+70.80

DN

3 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

 F.G.+70.90

 F.G.+71.07 F.G.+70.98

S/C

1

2

3

3

4

Garbage/
Recycling

DN

5 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
0m

m

NOTE #1: 
DEVELOPER/GENERAL 
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 
AN ELABORATE PLAN BY 
DESIGNATED SUPPLIER ON 
HOW THE PAVERS WILL BE 
INSTALLED WITHIN TREE 
PROTECTION AREA  

REFERENCE  GRADE=
70.15m (230.14')

REFERENCE  
GRADE=70.15m(230.14') 

BASEMENT= 67.85 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
BASEMENT= 68.10 m

SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m

FIRST FLOOR= 70.90 m
TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.37 m

 F.G.70.27

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

TOP OF ROOF UP STAND = 77.83 m
SECOND FLOOR= 74.32 m 

FLOOR ELEVATIONS:

UP 3 RISERS
@180mm

 F.G.70.00

10%
DN

CARPORT

CARPORT

F.D.

F.D.

UNIT A

UNIT B

INFILL

 F.G.+69.89

 F.G.+68.288

 F.G.+69.50

 F.G.+70.80

 F.G.+70.10

 F.G.+70.10

 E.G
.+7

0.9
7

 E.G
.+7

0.8
1

 E.G.+70.60

3 RISERS
@17.7mm

5 RISERS
@160 mm

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

DN

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

70
.3

2

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

42.65

15
.2

4

42.66

91
° 0

0'
 0

2"

0° 59' 24"

0° 59' 35"

230

23
0

23
0

23
0

230

230
230

229

228

227

226

228

22
7

229

231

22
9

231

234

233

232

231

23
1

232

233

231

229

229

228

22
8

227

227 229

228228

231

ed
ge

 o
f a

sp
ha

lt

∅2.2 (D
)

∅1.6 (D
)

(2 X Trunks)

∅0.8 (C
)

∅0.9 (C
)

∅1.1 (C
)

∅0.8 (D
)

∅1.7 (D
)

∅1.3 (D
)

∅0.7 (D
)

∅1.5 (D
)

∅2.8 (D
)

(M
ulti - Trunks)

12.00

3.66

70.22

68.91

68.70

70.68

tw70.35

tw:70.32

tw
:70.25

bw:70.10

bw:69.43

bw:70.19

bw:69.55

bw:69.83

bw:70.12

230.0
228.0

69.31 69.3769.16

70.50
70.92

69.25

70
.2

8

70
.16

70
.16

70.38

68.85

69.13

69.43

69.80

70.19

69.89

69.58

69.58

69.1

69.28
69.22 69

.25

69.31

69.04
68.64

68.70

68.85

68.88

68.61

68.70

69.31

69.43

69.83

70.16

69.86

70.14

69.86

69.77

71.26
71.26

71.02

70.68

70.44

71.32

70.25

69.40

69.25

69.04

69.46 69.74 69.80

69.28

69.55

69.74

69.95

69
.92

70.40

70.28

70.22 70.28

70.92

70.56

70.53

70.65

70.96

70.68

70.10

70.35
70.50

71.38

IP
IP IP

IP

W
M M

2% SLOPE DN.  
 F.G.+70.03 F.G.+70.00

 F.G.69.88

 F.G.+69.34

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.61

 F.G.+70.24

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.60

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.40

 F.G.+70.30

 F.G.+70.20

 F.G.+69.64

 F.G.+70.70

 F.G.+69.95

 F.G.70.10

 T.O.W. +70.90

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.30 T.O.CONC.CURB +71.37

UP

UP
3 RISES
@180mm

DN2 RISERS
@180mm

2 
R

IS
ER

S
@

18
5m

m

SE
TB

AC
K

 F.G.70.00

 T.O.CONC.CURB +70.00

 F.G
.+7

0.1
6

 F.G
.+6

9.2
5

 F.G
.+7

0.4
7

 F.G
.+7

1.3
2

PROTECT NEIGHBOURING TREE
(T1) 4.3M CRZ- SEE ARBORIST

REPORT

TW / 6
9.8

8m

TW / 6
9.8

8m

TW / 70.22m

TW / 70.22m

TW / 70.5m

TW / 70.5m

TW / 70.9m

TW / 70.9m

TW / 71.3m TW / 7
1.3

m

TW / 7
0.3

m

TW / 70.3m

4' CEDAR FENCE IN FRONT
YARD

6' CEDAR FENCE IN SIDE 
YARD

4' CEDAR FENCE IN FRONT
YARD 6' CEDAR FENCE IN FRONT 

YARD

30
33

31
43

31
43

30
87

RETAINING WALL WITH 
FENCE

RETAINING WALL WITH 
FENCE

PROTECT NEIGHBOURING 
TREE 2.4M CRZ- SEE 
ARBORIST REPORT

15
00

STORMWATER TANK

SUMP

SUMP WITH SUMP PUMP

SUMP-DISCHARGE TO
CITY STORM

TANK SERVICE 
OPENING

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 M

PROPERTY LINE

31- coLAWN-TYP

5- co

17-Tm

18-Tm

1-Ms

11-Tm

9-Cs

6-AzG

16-Tm

12-Tm

7-Tm

22-Tm

5-Ca

4-Tm

7-pm

9-pm
16-mn 

4-RhD

8-pm

13-mn 

5-AzG
11-Vp

15-Vp

20-pm

5-Ca

3-Ca

24-mn 

22- co22- co

1-Ms

LAWN-TYP

6-mn

4-pm

3-mn

6-RhP

3-pm

9- co
12-Tm

10-AzG

10-RhP

2-CJ

3.0 M LONG ROOT BARRIER
PER CNV SPECIFICATIONS-

TYP

STREET TREE PER CNV
SPECIFICATIONS- SUGGEST

KATSURA TREE

2-MsP4-CK

2-AC

2-MsP

PATH PATHPATH
PATH PATHPATH

PATH PATHPATH PATH PATHPATH

PATH
PATH

PATHPATH PATH

SP

SP

SP

SP

STEP

PATH PATHPATH PATH PATHPATH PATH PATHPATH PATH PATH PATH

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD

BLD BLD

BLD BLD BLD

BLD

STEP

STEPSTEP

SP

STEP

STEP

STEP

STEP

STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP

STEP STEP STEPSTEP

SP

SP

SP

SP

STEP STEP

SP

SP

S
TE

P

S
TE

PPATH

STEP

STEP

BLD

BLD

STEP STEP

SP

SP

SP

BLD

LIGHTING PLAN
Scale: 1:75 -

CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES: Drawings of 
existing facilities are, in general, diagrammatic. Exact 
locations shall be determined by the Contractor from 
field measurements taken by Contractor's personnel. 
Actual arrangement of the work shall follow locations 
shown on the drawings within the constraints of existing 
equipment and construction. Dimensions shall govern 
these drawings and they are not to be scaled. Drawing 
and notes to drawings are correlative and have equal 
authority and priority. Should there be discrepancies in 
themselves or between them, Contractor shall base bid 
pricing on the most expensive combination of quality 
and/or quantity of the work indicated. In the event of 
discrepancies, the appropriate method of performing the 
work and/or items to be incorporated into the scope of 
the work shall be determined by the appropriate design 
professional (eg Landscape Architect, Engineer)

NOTE: REFER TO, AND COORDINATE 
LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS WITH ARCHITECT 
AND ENGINEER DRAWINGS



Sheet No.

Scale

Project IDProject Manager

Drawn By

Date

CAD File Name

L-4

AS NOTED

2020-06STEVE WONG

SW

JANUARY/20/2020

W 14 ST v5.vwx 5
of

Sheet Title

Project Title

DETAILS

MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING
322 WEST 14TH STREET

NORTH VANCOUVER

Client

Design Firm

1209661 BC LTD.

SW LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
919 MELBOURNE AVENUE, NORTH VANCOUVER

www.swlandscapearchitect.com
778 834-8959 cell

No. Date Issue/Revision Notes

COPYRIGHT RESERVED:  This drawing and design are, 
and at all times shall remain the property of SW Landscape 
Architect, and cannot be used, reproduced or distributed 
without the written consent of SW Landscape Architect.

REVIEW1 1/20/2020

SUBMIT2 7/1/2020

ADP3 11/2/2020

ADP4 2/2/2021

ADP5 3/1/2021

SUBMIT TO CITY6 4/7/2021

DO NOT CUT LEADER

300mm MIN.

SET TREE PLUM. STAKE TREE WITH TWO
VERTICAL 50mm X 50mm PRESSURE TREATED
STAKES 1500mm LONG; PLACE 1/3RD OF THE
STAKE BELOW GRADE. STAKES TO BE POSITIONED
PARALLEL TO STREET FOR STREET TREES OR TO
PREVAILING WIND. STAKES NOT TO PENETRATE
OR DAMAGE ROOT BALL

CREATE A 50mm DEEP WELL IN GROWING MEDIUM
FOR THE FIRST YEAR OF WATERING.  ENSURE
WELL IS A CLEAN-EDGED CIRCLE WITH A DIA. OF
1500mm

PLACE 50mm DEPTH OF MULCH OVER THE
PLANTING WELL. KEEP MULCH BACK FROM
TRUNK A MINIMUM DISTANCE OF 100mm
PLANTING HOLE SHALL BE MINIMUM DEPTH OF
ROOTBALL.  PLANTING HOLE EDGE TO BE A
SHALLOW ANGLE. SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM
OF TREE PIT PRIOR TO PLANTING.

REMOVE COMPLETELY THE TOP 1/3 OF THE WIRE
BASKET, BURLAP, AND ALL NYLON AND BINDING
MATERIAL. CUT OFF WIRE BASKET AND BURLAP,
DO NOT FOLD THEM INTO THE HOLE PRIOR TO
BACKFILLING

TOP OF THE ROOTBALL TO BE FLUSH WITH
SURROUNDING GRADE. FINISHED GRADE OF
PLANTING TO BE EQUIVALENT TO NURSERY
GROWN GRADE OF TREE

ENSURE A MIN. 300mm  DEPTH OF
COMPACTED  SUBGRADE UNDERNEATH
ROOTBALL TO PREVENT  SETTLING OF
TREE

CLEAR OF
ROOTBALL
ALL SIDES

SOIL DEPTH MAY VARY TO ACCOMMODATE
REQUIRED VOLUME WITHIN 900mm
MAXIMUM DEPTH.

THE GROWING MEDIUM VOLUME MUST
HAVE A DIRECT RELATIONSHIP TO THE

MATURE DRIP LINE WITH OUTWARD
ADJUSTMENT FOR COLUMNAR SPECIES

DATE:

STD. DETAIL NO.

DRAWING TITLE:

9-01
TREE PLANTING

APRIL 2015

TREE PLANTING DETAIL
Scale: N/A1

NOTES:

1. SHRUB TO BE PLANTED WITH ELEVATION OF TOP OF ROOTBALL OR POT LEVEL WITH
FINISH GRADE OF GROWING MEDIUM.
2. COMPOSTED BARK MULCH AT 50mm DEPTH TO BE KEPT AT LEAST 50mm AWAY FROM
STEMS OF SHRUB.
3. PLANTING PIT MUST BE FREE DRAINING

COMPACTED SUBGRADE
SCARIFY SURFACE PRIOR TO
PLACEMENT OF SHRUB
SLOPE SURFACE TO DRAIN
AWAY FROM ROOTBALL

FINISH GRADE

REMOVE BURLAP AND ROPE
FROM AROUND BASE OF SHRUB
REMOVE ALL 'ORGANIC' POTS
PRIOR TO PLANTING

450mm GROWING MEDIUM

45
0 

M
IN

.

MULCH50

DATE:

STD. DETAIL NO.

DRAWING TITLE:

9-03
SHRUB PLANTING

APRIL 2015

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL
Scale: N/A2

CONCRETE
(SLOPED ON TOP)

2" X 4" BOT. RAIL (PT)

COMPACTED EARTH

4" X 4" POST (PT)

1"X 6" CEDAR
(NO GAPS)

2" X 4" TOP RAIL (PT)

POST CAP

2" X 4" TOP RAIL (PT)

GRAVEL

GATE

18
00

6.
00

'

6' WOOD FENCE-BACK/SIDE YARD
Scale: 1:203

CONCRETE
(SLOPED ON TOP)

2" X 4" BOT. RAIL (PT)

COMPACTED EARTH

4" X 4" POST (PT)

1"X 6" CEDAR
(NO GAPS)

2" X 4" TOP RAIL (PT)

POST CAP
GATE

GRAVEL

12
19

.2
4.

00
'

4' WOOD FENCE-FRONT YARD
Scale: 1:204

 

          L-PATH LIGHT 

 
 DIMENSIONS    

       

SPECIFICATIONS 

Performance 
Wattage 6W 
Voltage 10-15V 
Lumen 500lm 
CCT 3000K/4000K 
CRI >80 
 

 

 FEATURES 
L- Path Light 
Color Option: Black/White/Brown 
Material: Aluminum 
Environment: rain 
Light Source: Integrated LED 
Lifespan: 50000H 

                         

Address: 831 3rd St W, North Vancouver, BC V7P 3K7 - Tel: (604) 770-3315 – www.maxtarlighting.com 

LED PATH LIGHTING
Scale: 1:25   -

 

LED Garden SPOT LIGHT 

DIMENSIONS 
7 x 7 x 2.5 “  

        

SPECIFICATIONS 

Performance 
Efficiency 80 lm/watt 
CCT 3000 K 
CRI ≥80 
Voltage 12V AC/DC  

Wattage 6W 
 

 

 DESCRIPTION 
• 12V, 6W COB 

• IP44 rated 

• Exposed cable 15cm 

 

FEATURES 

• Material details: Die Casting 
Aluminum 

• Available Colours: Black, White, Grey 
• 2 Years warranty  

 

 

 

 Address: 831 3rd St W, North Vancouver, BC V7P 3K7 - Tel: (604) 770-3315 – www.maxtarlighting.com 

 
 LED SPOTLIGHT

Scale: 1:25 -

 

     RECESSED LED WALL 
               LIGHT             

 

DIMENCTION      

 
                        

SPECIFICATIONS 

Performance 
CCT 3000 K 
Operating Current  227 MA 
Voltage 24V DC 
Wattage 5.4W 
Lumens 96.5 lm 
 

Operating Condition 
Temperature -20C⁰~-40C⁰ 
 

 

 

DESCRIPTION 
•Housing: 12” Die-Casting Grey Powder 
Coated  
•Aluminum. T= 60-80UM Adhesion of ISO 
Class 1/ASTM Class 4B 
•Front Cover: 12” Die-Casting Aluminum  
•Powder Coated. T=60-80um. Adhesion of 
ISO Class 1/ASTM class 4B 
•Cable Gland: IP-67 Copper and Nicked 
Coated  
•Gasket: Molding Shaped Silicon Seal 
•Power Cable:  
  H05RN-F 2X1.0mm² L=0.5m (low voltage) 
•Mounting Sleeve: ABS 091” 
•Dimmable Support:  
       Triac PWM 1-10V Dial 
 

 

 

FEATURES 
•Typical Luminance (lm):  
                Cool white=103lm 
                Warm white= 96.5lm 
•LED: SMD3030 type LED  

 
Address: 831 3rd St W, North Vancouver, BC V7P 3K7 - Tel: (604) 770-3315 – www.maxtarlighting.com 

LED STEP LIGHT
Scale: 1:25-

LANDSCAPE STATEMENT OF INTENT 

The landscape was designed to be compatible with the 3 dwelling units that are 
planned for this small area. The plants help to define and provide some degree 
of separation and privacy between adjacent dwelling units. The landscape plants 
were chosen to be attractive in all seasons, low maintenance, sustainable and at 
a reasonable cost. 

The exterior landscape provides for safe passage through the site at night, as 
well as including some upward spot lights directed to the trees for ambience as 
well as general lighting. All the lighting fixtures are low voltage LED for 
sustainable operation and long life. 

 

GENERAL NOTES 

• Contractor and their subcontractors and workers to be sufficiently insured and have 
WCB coverage 

• Work to be done by the industry certified personnel. All work to be done to meet or 
exceed industry standards 

• Contractor to adhere to safe work practices on site 

• Contractor to confirm location of all utilities and to protect throughout construction 

• Contractor to verify layout dimensions, measurements  and grades prior to bidding 
and construction and to inform consultant of any discrepancies 

• The landscape drawings are intended to meet municipal Zoning and Building By-
Laws.  The Contractor is responsible for obtaining approved Engineering drawings 
and sign-off for all structural and geotechnical work, including all retaining walls over 
4 feet in height, or where there are issues with soil stability  

• All stairs to have handrails and all drops in elevation of 600 mm or more to have 
guardrails per BC Building By-Law 

• All manufactured products (eg segmental block walls/stairs, pavers, irrigation, 
lighting) to be installed per manufacturer’s  instructions 

• If there are retained trees on site, all work to be outside the tree protection zone 
unless approved by certified ISA arborist  

 

LANDSCAPE NOTES 

• All landscape works are to meet the specifications and standards of the latest edition 
of the CANADIAN LANDSCAPE STANDARD, published by the Canadian Society of 
Landscape Architects and the Canadian Nursery landscape Association, per 
Specifications section. 

• All landscape works to be carried out by a contractor with minimum 5 years’ 
experience doing similar work, who is a member in good standing with the 
appropriate trade organization: eg, B.C. Landscape and Nursery Association 
(BCLNA), Irrigation industry Association of B.C. (IIABC).  Execution of work to be 
under the direct supervision of qualified industry certified technicians. 

• All grades to meet adjacent grades at property line 

• All stormwater is to be contained on site and away from adjacent properties 

• All hard surfaces to be sloped a minimum of 1.0% to avoid standing water 

• All lawns to be sloped a minimum of 2% to avoid standing water 

• No slopes to be steeper than 2.5 horizontal: 1 vertical 

• All plant material and growing medium to meet Canadian Landscape Standard #1 
specifications 

• All shrub beds to contain minimum 18” (450) mm depth of approved growing medium 
over scarified subgrade 

• All lawn areas to contain minimum 6” (150) mm of approved growing medium over 
scarified subgrade 

• Installation to be reviewed by a registered Landscape Architect 

  
MATERIALS LIST  (as applicable) 

CONCRETE WALKS: Medium broom finish with 2% cross slope, over 4” compacted granular 
base, expansion joints as required, control joints 5’OC and where potential for cracking 
 
CONCRETE STEPS: Medium broom finish, sloped 2% to front of tread 
 
PAVERS:  by Abbotsford Concrete Products, Standard Series, 4 7/16” by  
8 7/8”  by 2 3/8” inches, Granite Blend, mixed with half standard and double standard sizes to 
suit owner; pavers over 1” bedding sand and minimum 4” compacted ¾” minus base course. 
 
PERMAEABLE PAVERS: by Abbotsford Concrete Products, Standard Series, 4 5/16” by  
8 3/4” by 3 1/8” inches, Granite Blend, running bond with soldier course, installed per 
manufacturer’s instructions. 
 
LANDSCAPE SLABS: by Abbotsford Concrete Products, Hydrapressed slabs, typically 18” by 
18”, 24” by 24” by 1 5/8”,  over 4” compacted granular base 
 
ASPHALT:  3” of compacted hot mix asphalt applied in 2 lifts over 4” of well compacted ¾” 
minus base course.   
 
ADDRESS POST: Architectural concrete finish, with square edges 
 
WOOD FENCE :  1 X6 cedar boards,  finished with Sikkens semi-transparent cedar stain 
 
GATES: 1 X6 cedar boards,  finished with Sikkens semi-transparent cedar stain 
 
RAILINGS: 42” high, powder coated medium gloss black aluminum, where there is a fall 
height of 2’ or more, installed to code 
 
HANDRAILS FOR STAIRS: 36 “ high, powder coated medium gloss black aluminum, 
installed to code 
   
PLANT MATERIAL:  All plant material are to meet current Canadian Landscape Standard 
(CLS) #1 and installed according to current CLS standards. 
 
SOD:  sand based sod (Perennial rye/Kentucky bluegrass) with no netting. Supplied by Bos 
Sod Farms, or equivalent 

GROWING MEDIUM:  in accordance with CLS standards; FOR TURF AREAS: Level 2H 
(High Traffic Lawn Areas), containing by weight: 70-90% sand, maximum 15% fines (max 
15% clay), 3-5% organic matter, with pH between 6-7; FOR PLANTING AREAS: Level 2P 
(Planting Areas), containing by weight: 40-80% sand, maximum 35% fines (max 25% clay), 
10-20% organic matter, with pH between 4.5-6.5. Supplied by Veratec Engineered Products, 
or equivalent; 6“min for lawn areas, 18” min for planted areas, over scarified base. Soil 
samples to be submitted by contractor to Pacific Soil Analysis for analysis to confirm 
conformance with CLS specifications.  Address: 5-11720 Voyageur Way 
Richmond, BC V6X 3G9: Phone (604) 273-8226 

MULCH:  to be composted fir bark, having dark brown, fine texture and ½” minus, applied 
evenly at a 2” depth over plant beds. Available from Augustine Soil and Mulch (604 465-
5193) or equivalent.   

IRRIGATION: SUSTAINABLE, LOW FLOW SYSTEM: Rainbird ESP-mw WiFi compatible 
controller, 4-22 stations, or equivalent, with outdoor control box, mounted on side of the 
house, with electrical plug-in.  Shrub spray, turf heads and valves to be Rainbird, and 
installed per Irrigation Industry Association of B.C. (IIABC) standards for residential 
installations, with shrub and lawn areas on separate zones. Contractor to submit proposed 
irrigation design for approval by Landscape Architect. 
 
LIGHTING: ALL FIXTURES TO BE ENERGY EFFICIENT WITH LED LAMPS: by Maxtar 
Lighting, available from Builderpack Supplier, 604 770-3315, all lights to be LED lighting, 
3000k  running on 24 volts.  Upighting/ Spotlights: Model EM-SP16W292L-COL, 6 
watt/fixture; Powdercoated black aluminum.  Wall/ Step Lighting:  Model EM-
STE5WW245407-KP, 5.3 watts/fixture; Stainless Steel finish.  Pathlighting: Model EM-
LAW8W12558-600/1000-ROY, 7.5 watt/fixture; Powdercoated black aluminum  



 

 

      

 

DIS VIRTUAL MEETING REPORT 

 

Regarding 322 West 14th On September 15th, 2020 from 6:00 to 7:30 pm a DIS 
Virtual meeting was held. 

Two parties attended in the virtual meeting, one family and one real estate agent 
and his client. 

Three topics were discussed: 

1- Building height. 

2- Elevation design style. 

3- East side and West Side windows place to provide maximum privacy for 
neighbours. 

Project’s architect answered: 

1-This is a two story building and height is limited to city zoning bylaw. 

2- We can see modern and classic design in the area and most of the brand new 
houses are modern style. 

3- We make sure there is no face to face windows or overlooking with the 
neighbours. 

Regards, 

Farid 

 
WWW.ROYALPALACECONSTRUCTION.CA 

933 Eyrmount Dr West Vancouver BC  V7S2B2 

Phone :+1 604-220-9967 

info@royalpalaceconstruction.ca 

      

http://www.royalpalaceconstruction.ca/
thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 3�



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8873 Document: 2093806-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8873 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8873” (Farid Sayari / Royal Palace Construction and 
Design, 322 West 14th Street, CD-739). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-739 (Comprehensive Development 739 Zone): 

 
 Lots Block D.L. Plan 
 
 18 47 271 and 548 1658 from RT-1 
 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-738 
Comprehensive Development 738 Zone”: 

 
“CD-739 Comprehensive Development 739 Zone” 

 
B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-738 Comprehensive 

Development 738 Zone”: 
 

“CD-739 Comprehensive Development 739 Zone” 
 

In the CD-739 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the RT-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) Two Principal Buildings shall be permitted on one Lot; 

 
(2) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to: 

 
(a) Two Principal Dwelling Units in the southernmost duplex building; 
(b) One Principal Dwelling Unit in the northernmost infill building; 

 
(3) Gross Floor Area (One-Unit and Two-Unit Residential) combined and in total, 

shall not exceed 0.5 FSR: 
 

(a) Attached parking garage and carport shall be excluded; 
 

(4) Lot Coverage shall not exceed 41%, which shall include the parking garage and 
carport; 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8873 Document: 2093806-v1 

 
(5) Siting shall be as in the RT-1 Zone, except that: 

 
(a) The northernmost Principal Building shall be sited not less than: 

 
i. 1.22 metres (4.0 feet) from the Rear Lot Line; 
ii. 0.91 metres (3.0 feet) from the west Interior Side Lot Line; 

 
(b) Siting of the Accessory Building bike storage use shall be in front of, and 

not less than 1 metre (3.3 feet) from, the northernmost Principal Building; 
 

(6) The garbage and recycling Accessory Structure shall be screened and may be 
covered by a trellis without a waterproof roof up to 2.44 metres (8 feet) in height. 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



IM-
Department
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Emily Macdonald, Planner 2

Subject: REZONING APPLICATION: 115 EAST KEITH ROAD (VICTORIA PARK
(DENNA HOMES) GP LTD. / INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC., CD-741)

Date: October 6,2021 File No: 08-3400-20-0058/1

The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 2, dated October 6, 2021, entitled 
“Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp 
Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., CD-741)”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” 
(Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith 
Road, CD-741) be considered and referred to Public Hearing;

THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government Act,

THAT staff be directed to receive and review detailed drawings for the proposal;

THAT all conditions noted in the report section, Project Conditions, be addressed 
prior to the scheduling of a Public Hearing;

THAT the community benefits listed in the report section, Density Bonus and 
Community Benefits, be secured through agreements at the applicant’s 
expense and to the satisfaction of staff;

AND THAT the Mayor and Corporate Officer be authorized to sign the 
necessary documentation to give effect to this motion.

Document Number: 2082820 V5



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

ATTACHMENTS

1. Context Map (CityDocs 2096545)
2. Conceptual Drawings Dated August 31, 2021 (CityDocs 2094624)
3. Co-Creation Workshop Summary and Design Response (CityDocs 2077485)
4. PIS Summary (CityDocs 2094789)
5. Let’s Talk Survey on Development Application (CityDocs 2077448)
6. Tenant Relocation Plan (CityDocs 2094784)
7. Proposed Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 

(CityDocs 2082819)

SUMMARY

This report presents, for Council’s consideration, a rezoning proposal for the property at 
115 East Keith Road. This proposal was selected as a pilot of a new Development 
Approvals Process, which was an action identified in the Balanced Housing Lab. The 
pilot approval process includes early community consultation and earlier Council 
consideration. An accompanying report provides background on the pilot process as 
well as an overview of the public engagement outcomes for this project.

Under this pilot approval process, the application is being processed in two stages: the 
first stage would review the project at the concept and present to Council (the subject of 
this report); the second stage will include more detailed application drawings for staff 
review (this would follow should Council direct staff to proceed). Staff recommend 
Council refer this application to a public hearing, and for the application to proceed to 
detailed design development for staff review.

SITE CONTEXT

This double-fronting site is located directly south of Victoria Park and fronts on East 
Keith Road and East 6th Street. The building directly to the west, at 616 Lonsdale 
Avenue, is a 5-storey strata building, and directly to the east, at 123 East Keith Road, is 
a 17-storey strata building. To the south, across East 6th Street are a mix of rental and 
strata buildings ranging from two to nine storeys in height.

Table 1. Site Context
Direction Address Description Zoning

North - Victoria Park (East) Public Use and Assembly 1 
(P-1)

East 123 East Keith
Rd. 17-storey strata building Comprehensive Development 

155 (CD-155)

West 616 Lonsdale
Ave. Five-storey strata building High Density Apartment 

Residential 1 (RH-1)

South

115 East 6th
Street

540 Lonsdale
Ave.

Four-storey rental 
residential building

Nine-storey strata 
residential building

Comprehensive Development 
316 (CD-316)

High Density Apartment 
Residential 1 (RH-1)

Page 2 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

119 East 6th St.

123 East 6th St.

Two-storey strata 
residential building

Three-storey strata 
residential building

Comprehensive Development 
324 (CD-324)

Medium Density Apartment 
Residential 1 (RM-1)_______

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

A conceptual design is presented at this time (Attachment 2). In accordance with the 
Pilot Development Approvals Process, full reviews of the detailed application will be 
completed after Introduction.

The proposed development is six storeys from East Keith road and eight storeys from 
East 6th Street. There are seven full storeys of rental units on top of two levels of 
parking and storage. Elevators and stairs provide access to a common amenity area on 
the rooftop.

Proposed setbacks are 4.57 metres (15 feet) from both the front and rear property lines, 
3.05 metres (10 feet) from the east property line, and from the west property line, the 
setback is 3.2 metres (10.5 feet) at the north end of the building, increasing to 4.45 
metres (14.6 feet) at the south end. In comparison to the adjacent properties, the 
proposed development would be two storeys taller than the existing building to the west 
and eleven storeys shorter than the building to the east.

To allow the proposed massing, the proposed bylaw would vary the standard RH-1 
Zone FSR, setbacks, lot coverage, building width and length, and minimum tower 
separation requirements.

Table 2. Summary of Zoning Changes
Base Zone Requirements Proposal

Zoning RH-1 Zone CD-741 (RH-1 base)
Permitted Principal
Uses Various Residential Uses Rental Apartment Residential Use

Maximum Density 2.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR) 3.3 Floor Space Ratio (FSR)

Lot Coverage Maximum 50 percent 65 percent

Maximum Building
Width and Length

Maximum 30.48 m (100 feet) 
above the third storey. (waived)

Setbacks
Front: 7.62 m / 25 ft.
Rear: 7.62 m / 25 ft. 

Interior Side: 7.62 m / 25 ft.

Front: 4.57 m /15 ft.
Rear: 4.57 m /15 ft.

West Interior Side: 3.2 m /10.5 ft. 
East Interior Side: 3.05 m /10 ft.

Minimum Tower 
Separation Above Four 
Storeys

24.38 m / 80 ft. (waived)

Off-Street Parking 48 46

Page 3 of 9



/

REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

The proposed Bylaw would limit the permitted principal uses to rental apartment 
residential and, in addition to the variances relating to massing, would allow for a 
parking variance of two vehicle parking spaces. The bylaw is expected to remain 
unchanged going forward, however, should changes be required, the bylaw would need 
to be amended at a Council meeting. This scenario is outlined further in the Next Steps 
section of this report.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

The purpose of the pilot project has been to test a new approvals process that includes 
early public engagement and early Council consideration. With public engagement 
happening early in the process, input can be more meaningfully incorporated into the 
project design early on and prior to staff and advisory body reviews, which typically 
make up the longest portion of the rezoning process timeline. Further details on the 
public engagement completed for this project are provided in the accompanying 
information report and a brief summary is provided below.

The early public engagement under the pilot was more extensive than the typical 
process and was made up of four components: 1) a Co-Creation Workshop; 2) a Visual 
Preference Survey; 3) Developer Information Session; 4) online engagement. The Co- 
Creation Workshop was attended by residents across North Vancouver as well as 
representatives from the adjacent buildings and a tenant currently living at 115 East 
Keith Road. A number of topics were discussed, oriented around four themes:

• Building height, setbacks, and massing;
• Parking, traffic and site access;
• Amenities, public realm and landscaping;
• Other ideas, hopes and concerns.

The public engagement consultant prepared a summary of the workshop discussion, 
which is attached to the accompanying report. The applicant has used the summary as 
a framework for their design response (Attachment 3), which describes how the final 
conceptual design addresses the input received at the workshop.

The proposed design is referred to in the Pilot Development Approvals Process as the 
Project Brief. This includes the conceptual drawings and supplemental materials like a 
survey and the tenant relocation plan. After the Project Brief was submitted, a 
Developer’s Information Session (DIS) was held, hosted by the applicant, following 
standard CNV requirements for public engagement for rezoning applications. This 
session was open to the general public and was advertised via mail-out, newspaper ad, 
and signage posted on site.

A summary of the DIS is included with this report as Attachment 4. Attendees were 
encouraged to provide input regarding the proposal through the CNV Let’s Talk portal. 
The Let’s Talk project page was open to the public before the DIS and during the two 
weeks following; it provided information about the proposed project and included a 
survey.

Page 4 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

A summary of the survey responses is included in this report as Attachment 5. In total, 
there were 33 completed surveys, with the following responses:

• 22 in support
• 7 opposed
• 3 mixed
• 1 don’t know

Key concerns heard at the DIS and in the comments provided in the Let’s Talk survey 
were primarily regarding relocation of the tenants in the existing building and the 
affordability and livability of the units in the proposed building. Other themes of 
discussion included sustainability and accessibility elements of the proposal, and unit 
size and mix were also discussed. The applicant’s proposed Tenant Relocation Plan is 
outlined in the section below. The topics of livability, sustainability and accessibility are 
guided by City policies including the Sustainable Development Guidelines, Adaptable 
Design requirements and Active Design Guidelines, which will all be considered during 
the full review stage.

TENANT RELOCATION PLAN

The existing building is a three storey rental apartment building with a total of 23 units, 
all currently occupied as of the date of this report. The 23 units consist of 1 two- 
bedroom unit, three studio units, and 19 one-bedroom units. Of all the tenancies, nine 
have been in the building less than five years, three are between five and ten years, and 
eleven have been in the building for ten years or more.

The application (Project Brief) was submitted in early June 2021 after completion of the 
Co-Creation Workshop. Because this precedes the latest amendment of the Residential 
Tenant Relocation Policy, the applicant is expected to meet the requirements set out in 
the 2015 version of the Policy, including finding comparable units for the existing 
tenants at rental rates that are within 10 percent of either their current rent, or 10 
percent of the CMHC average market rents, whichever is greater. Compensation 
equivalent to three months’ rent, and an unspecified amount of funds for moving costs 
are also expected, and tenants must be given first right of refusal for the mid-market 
units to be provided in the new development.

The applicant has prepared a Tenant Relocation Plan (Attachment 6) that satisfies the 
requirements of the 2015 Policy as well as some of the new requirements that have 
been added in the 2021 amendment. These include moving expenses of $1000 to 
$1500 depending on unit size, and compensation equivalent to four months’ rent 
instead of three.

PLANNING ANALYSIS

The proposal is consistent with the OCP with 3.3 FSR of proposed density and 
approximately seven storeys of height. The proposed height is well under the maximum 
that can be considered under the OCP, which allows up to 46 metres, or approximately 
15 storeys, for residential developments around Victoria Park. Some variances are

Page 5 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

needed to enable redevelopment of the site, and to achieve the full density identified in 
the OCR. The main variances are to the required minimum setbacks and tower 
separation requirements. Minor variances to Lot Coverage and Parking are proposed as 
well.

An analysis of the proposed massing has been completed as part of a preliminary 
review of the proposal. Setback and tower separation distances as written in the current 
RH-1 Zone are generally designed to consider tall buildings similar to the 17-storey 
residential building at 123 East Keith Road rather than mid-rise buildings such as the 
one proposed in the conceptual drawings. The standard zoning requirement for 
setbacks is 7.62 metres (25 feet), with a tower separation distance of 24.38 metres (80 
feet). As a mid-rise building of six to eight storeys, impacts such as shadowing on 
adjacent buildings and public space - in this case, Victoria Park - are less concerning. 
The shadow study provided shows that the shadow impact on Victoria Park would be 
minimal. The proposed tower separation distance is approximately 59 feet from 123 
East Keith Road to the east, and 20 feet from 616 Lonsdale Avenue to the west. At 6 to 
8 storeys, a reduction in the standard 80-foot separation distance is considered 
reasonable. 59 feet should provide adequate distance to ensure shadow and view 
impacts on 123 East Keith Road will not be significantly impacted. Due to a relatively 
minimal separation distance from 616 Lonsdale Avenue, there is a greater risk of view 
and shadow impacts to occur for that building. Responding to this concern, the 
proposed massing incorporates an increasing setback along the west side of the 
building, with a distance of 24 feet at the south end. This increasing setback helps by 
allowing solar access and mitigating view impacts for 616 Lonsdale Avenue.

The preliminary review also considered how the conceptual design responds to input 
provided at the co-creation workshop. A summary of the input as well as the applicant’s 
response is provided as Attachment 3. This document was prepared and submitted by 
the applicant based on the Co-Creation Workshop Summary prepared by the 
engagement consultant, which is not included with this report but is included as an 
attachment to the accompanying report on the Pilot Development Approvals Process.

The concept design responds well to concerns that were heard at the Co-Creation 
Workshop regarding the relationship to the adjacent buildings, particularly the building 
directly to the west. Though the proposed side setbacks are relatively narrow, the 
massing of the building is set back a greater distance toward the south end, allowing for 
greater solar access for the building to the west. This approach serves to orient the 
building massing on the west side along a north-south axis, helping to preserve solar 
access as well as views from the adjacent building and from Victoria Park.

Though details are not shown, the proposed design allows for various rooftop amenities 
to be considered and potentially accommodated; provision of adequate rooftop 
amenities was an important discussion item among the Co-Creation Workshop 
participants. An interior amenity spaces is also proposed. A number of suggestions 
were made regarding transportation alternatives. With a requested variance of two 
parking spaces, the applicant will be required to provide a transportation study that will 
consider alternative transportation options such as car share and e-bike share program 
for tenants. Sustainable design was another comment made by several attendees. The

Page 6 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. I Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

proposal would meet Step 3 of the Step Code, as required by the Construction 
Regulation Bylaw.

Further assessment of the items mentioned above will be completed once detailed 
drawings are submitted for review. Further to these items, the Project Conditions listed 
below will also be reviewed.

PROJECT CONDITIONS

Comments were provided by various departments prior to submission of the Project 
Brief. No major concerns were identified at the preliminary stage that would significantly 
impact the feasibility of the redevelopment of the site. Full reviews to be completed 
would identify items to be addressed by the applicant through the rezoning process.

Prior to the project being brought back to Council for Public Flearing and Third Reading 
of the Bylaw, the following conditions must be met:

• The applicant provides drawings and other information required for staff to 
conduct full reviews of the proposed development;

• A thorough Planning review is completed and all concerns are addressed by the 
applicant, including, but not limited to: urban design, transportation issues, 
livability, sustainability, any topics relating to City policies as well as any other 
practices or design elements deemed relevant to the proposal;

• All other relevant departments review the detailed drawings of the proposal and 
are satisfied that applicable codes and bylaws can be met;

• The applicant commits to any off-site works that are deemed, through staff 
reviews, to be required by bylaw or other parameters to accommodate the 
proposed development;

• The detailed proposal is presented to the Advisory Design Panel and other 
advisory bodies as needed for their review and recommendation;

• The applicant continues to follow their Tenant Relocation Plan and provides an 
update on the progress;

• The applicant completes a Transportation Study and incorporates transportation 
demand management (TDM) features into the proposed project to support 
sustainable transportation and offset the parking variance. TDM measures may 
include subsidized transit passes and/or credits toward car share use;

• The applicant provides a tree study from a qualified arborist including a survey 
and health assessment of all private and public trees and recommendations for 
retention or removal;

Page 7 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

• The applicant provides summaries indicating compliance with CNV policies, 
including the Sustainable Development Guidelines, Active Design Guidelines, 
and the Housing Action Plan;

• The applicant agrees to a Housing Agreement that secures the rental housing 
and a minimum of 10 percent mid-market units, in perpetuity, in accordance with 
the Housing Action Plan.

DENSITY BONUS AND COMMUNITY BENEFITS

The City’s Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, in conjunction with the 
Official Community Plan, allows for density bonuses in the Residential Level 6 
designation, up to a maximum of 3.3 FSR.

A bonus beyond the maximum FSR currently permitted in the RH-1 Zone (2.6 FSR) is 
proposed. The total proposed bonus is 0.7 FSR, or 9797.9 square feet, which is to be 
achieved through the provision of secured rental and mid-market units. As the existing 
building on site is a rental apartment building, policies do not support a benefit other 
than new rental housing. The value of the bonus density can be roughly calculated by 
using the standard cash contribution amount for areas within the Lonsdale City Centre, 
$190 per square foot of bonus floor area.

Table 3. Estimated Value of Community Benefits through Density Bonusing
Density Value Calculation Value
Density Bonus to 3.3 FSR (@ $190 / sq. ft.) $1,861,601
Total Value of Community Benefits $1,861,601

Works beyond standard bylaw requirements may be warranted, to accommodate the 
new development. The specific works would be determined through a full review of the 
application and would be secured through legal agreements. In accordance with the 
Density Bonus and Community Benefits Policy, these works would not be considered as 
community benefits, but as essential works to support the development.

NEXT STEPS

Should Council support this project moving forward, staff would direct the applicant to 
submit full drawings and materials required for the proposal to be fully reviewed. The 
project would also be presented to relevant advisory bodies (e.g. Advisory Design 
Panel). Public Engagement stages for this project have been completed and no formal 
events would be scheduled going forward. As is general practice, inquiries regarding the 
project would be addressed by staff and the applicant on an ongoing basis. During the 
review stage, the applicant would continue to follow their Tenant Relocation Strategy.

Once full reviews have been completed, staff would advise City Clerks to schedule a 
Public Hearing and prepare notifications. The process from this point would be the 
same as standard practice. After Third Reading, legal agreements would be drafted and 
signed by the applicant, and Fourth Reading would be scheduled once that process is 
complete.

Page 8 of 9



REPORT: Rezoning Application: 115 East Keith Road (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra
Architecture Inc., CD-741)
Date: October 6, 2021

Should there be a need to revise the proposed bylaw after full reviews are complete, 
staff would prepare a brief report to Council before the Public Hearing is scheduled so 
the bylaw can be amended. After the bylaw is amended by Council, the Public Hearing 
would then be scheduled and notifications completed.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial cost implications for the City relating to the development project. 
The development would provide secured rental housing, at least 10 percent of which 
would be mid-market units. The approximate value of this Community Benefit 
Contribution is $1.86 Million.

INTER-DEPARTMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

Should Council direct staff to receive detailed drawings for review, the process moving 
forward will follow standard practices, including reviews by Planning, Building, Fire, 
Engineering, Environment and Transportation staff.

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCP OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The Pilot Development Approvals Process aims to gather learnings and 
recommendations on how the standard rezoning process could be improved, 
particularly as it relates to public influence to shape projects at early stages. This goal is 
in keeping with the City’s Strategic Plan as public participation and delivering better 
buildings within an efficient timeline are important City objectives. These learnings and 
recommendations will be presented to Council separately when they are available. At 
this time, direction is being sought regarding the development project itself, which is in 
keeping with the OCP.

CONCLUSION

Presented in this report is an early conceptual proposal for a rezoning application on 
this site. It is the result of early engagement with the community and will be further 
developed and subject to full staff review if Council were to refer the application to a 
public hearing. Staff support the proposal as shown as it has generally demonstrated 
policy compliance and a good contextual fit. Staff recommend this application be 
referred to a public hearing - this would allow the applicant to fully develop their plans 
and fulfill all conditions as a result of a more thorough staff review.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Emily Macdonald 
Planner 2

Page 9 of 9



City of North Vancouver

Context Map

E 6th St

Victoria Park Ave E

W 5th St

Lo
ns

da
le A

ve

Lo
ns

da
le A

ve

E 5th St

W 6th St

W Keith Rd

E Keith Rd

1 2 0

1 1 0

5 4 5

1 1 0
1 4 5

1 8 5

6 5 0

6 4 4

1 5 0

1 2 5

1 3 0

1 4 5

1 5 0

1 6 0

5 4 0

1 0 4

6 1 6

1 1 5

5 3 1

1 2 0

1 1 7

1 1 1

6 5 0

5 6 7

1 4 5

5 0 5

1 3 6

1 4 1

1 2 3

1 1 9

1 2 3

6 1 5

1 0 5

1 1 5

1 6 5

1 2 5

1 2 0

1 4 0

6 1 6

1 4 5

4 4 4

1 3 1

1 5 1

PLOTT ED : 9/19/2021

COOR DIN ATE SYSTEM: NAD 83, UTM Zone 10

GIS Division, Information Technology, 
City of North Vancouver

This map was produced on the City of North 
Vancouver's Geographic Information System. 
Data provided herein is derived from sources 
with varying levels of accuracy and detail. 
The City of North Vancouver disclaims all 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness 
of information contained herein.

DISCLAIMER

0 10 205
Meters

Legend
Subject Site 

1:1,500

SOUR CE: StaffMAP

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.

 

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 2�



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



INTEGRA ARCHITECTURE INC.



PCA Submission to the City: February 04, 2021 
Memo to CGD: March 23, 2021 
Co-Creation Workshop: April 08, 2021 
Co-Creation Workshop Summary to CGD: April 15, 2021 
Project Brief Submission to the City: June 07, 2021 
Developer Information Session: June 22, 2021 
Co-Creation Workshop Report to the City: June 28, 2021 

 
Cascadia Green Development Report on Co-Creation Workshop  
 
 
Introduction 
 
 
 As part of Balanced Housing Lab’s alternative approval process a Co-Creation Workshop was held on April 8, 2021. 

This workshop was held by the City of North Vancouver, and Urban Matters was the facilitator for this workshop. 

14 volunteer members of the public participated in this workshop. Facilitator, the developer, and participants were 

divided into four groups and given four topic areas for discussions as below: 

• Building height, setbacks, and massing 

• Parking, traffic and site access 

• Amenities, public realm and landscaping 

• Other ideas, hopes and concerns.  

For each topic area, participants were asked to consider the following questions  

• What must the project achieve? (Not an option; we will fail if these are not present) 

• What should the project achieve? (Degree of option to pursue is present but this is a category of value 

add considerations that sometimes are also the difference between success and failure) 

• What could the project achieve? (Space for innovation.  Not immediately obvious or low hanging fruit 

criteria but offers something of unique value that could really accelerate efforts) 

• What should the project not do? (Defeats the purpose of the project.  Will create more harm than good if 

present) 

Participants were also asked to vote for the top four ideas that emerged from the four questions they thought 

were the highest priority from their perspective.  

A summary report was delivered to the Cascadia Green Development and the City by Urban Matters. Cascadia 

Green Development used that data to understand what stakeholders were asking for. The four topic areas of 

discussion had some overlapping comments. All the comments were studied. Comments and responses are 

explained in the tables below. Comments that are fully addressed in the proposal are marked as “Included” in 

green color. There are some comments that have been marked “Partially Included” in blude color. These 

comments either have been addressed partially in the Project Brief submission or they will be addressed with e 

next submission under the advice of the relative consultants. Comments that couldn’t be achieved in the proposal 

are marked as “Not Included” and shown in yellow color. Some comments were not clear. These comments are 

not marked. 

Comments regarding “Building Height, Setbacks, and Massing” and responses are explained in the Table 1.  

 

 

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 3�



 

Building Height, Setbacks, and Massing 

 Comments Responses Action 

Must Adequate setback and reduce 

noise for neighbours on the east 

side (4)  

 

Proposed east side setback is 10.52’. Proposed setbacks are 

supported by balconies to provide more privacy and further 

distance to the adjacent neighbours. Balconies increase the 

setback to 14.54’ on this side. Proposed setbacks are close to 

the existing condition. The diagram #1 in this report 

compares the proposed setbacks with the existing setbacks. 

Project Brief, Architectural package, page # 8 shows 

proposed setbacks including neighbours’ setbacks. 

Included 

Must Greenspace with similar feel to 

the park so it fits within the 

community (3) 

The 15’ north side setback allows to include adequate green 

space on this side to create a smooth connection to the Park.  

Project Brief, Landscape package, page #1  

Included 

Must Terracing (e.g., podium) (3)  Proposed design includes a Ground Level with a larger 

footprint than the Level 1 creating a podium like mass. 

Project Brief, Architectural package, page # 11&12 

Included 

Must Windows with natural light for 

all units (4) 

The proposed massing is simple in form with strong corners 

and recessed sides to increase privacy and allow light into the 

studios on the East and West. Level 1 has raised up about 3’ 

to allow adequate natural light to all dwelling units located 

on Ground Level. All the dwelling units have access to 

adequate natural light. Project Brief, Architectural package, 

page # 11-17 

Included 

Must Landscaping around building The proposed building includes one level residential dwelling 

below the East Keith RD grade, surrounded by a series of 

garden patios and landscape on the east and west side of the 

building. The south end of the site has been designed with 

terraced landscape to give greenery and privacy to the south 

facing dwelling units, providing privacy for the residents but 

also providing overlook and eyes on the street along East 6th. 

A 15’ setback is proposed to the north side of the building to 

create adequate landscaping on this side on level 1. Project 

Brief, Landscape package, page # 4  

Included 

Must Mid-rise building (6-12 floors)  With respect to comments asking for a mid-rise building the 

proposal is a 6-storey building from the E Keith, and a 7-

storey building from the East 6th. 

Included 

Must Lighting for all sides of the 

building 

There will be lighting for all sides of the building. Exterior 

lighting fixture will be shown in the next submission.  

Included 

Should Rooftop garden, meeting area, 

gardening space (5)  

An adequate rooftop amenity area facing Victoria Park has 

been proposed in response to the comments asking for 

“rooftop amenity” and “outdoor space to meet”. Project 

Included 



 Brief, Landscape package, page # 2. An indoor multi-

functional amenity area is proposed with respect to 

comments asking for “meeting area”. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page # 11. 

Should Limited shadowing on Victoria 

park (2) 

With respect to concerns around shadow cast on Victoria 

Park, our proposal of a 6-storey building creates a minor 

shadow on Victoria Park especially compared to the shadow 

casted by the project’s neighbours on the east side. A 

shadow study was submitted with the Project Brief package. 

Project Brief, Architectural package, page # 35 & 36. 

Included 

Should Use terracing to minimize 

shadowing (2)  

Although terracing has not been applied directly, minimizing 

shadowing has been addressed with different approaches. 

The proposal of a 6-storey building creates a minor shadow 

on Victoria Park. To minimize shadowing the design proposes 

adequate setbacks increased by balconies. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page # 35 & 36.  

Partially 

Included 

Should Mid-rise building with 8-11 floors 

(2) 

 

Based on the conversation in Co-Creation Workshop, 

concerns of the participants asking for “mid-rise, 8-11 floors” 

were to have a reasonable floor plate, landscaping, and a 

minimized shadow cast.  

The proposal is a mid-rise building. 6 storeys from E Keith, 7 

storeys from East 6th, with a reasonable floor plate of 57%. 

With respect to the concerns around shadow cast, rooftop 

amenity area, and landscaping schematic design and various 

sketches showed that a 6-7 storey building was a sweet spot.  

Partially 

Included 

Should Use concrete (1) To support sustainability and environmentally friendly 

notions we are planning to have a wood frame building over 

a concrete foundation with two levels of underground 

parking. The exact structure of the building will be submitted 

with the next submission. 

Partially 

Included 

Should Larger floor plate (1) A lot coverage of 57% is proposed allowing us having 

landscaping all-round the building as well as providing 

privacy and natural light to all dwelling units.  

Included 

Should Wide setbacks and/or planted 

setbacks 

 

Wide setback has been a concern in the proposed design. 

Proposed setbacks are as below: 

• North: 15’ 

• Side Yard (West Side): 10.52’ 

• Side Yard (East Side): 6’ 

• South (East 6th St): 20’ 
West and east side setbacks are supported by balconies to 

provide more privacy and further distance to the adjacent 

neighbours. The west side setback is increased to 14.52’ in 

some parts. The east side setback is increased to 12.7’ in 

some parts. The diagram #1 in this report shows that our 

Included 



proposed setbacks are very close to the existing building’s 

setbacks. 

Proposed setbacks are planted. Project Brief, Landscape 

package page # 1. 

Should Ensure neighbouring units 

receive lighting through windows 

With respect to this concern, the design increases the 

minimum west side setback of 10.52’ to 14.52’ (in the middle 

part along the façade) to minimize shadow cast on the units 

from adjacent neighbour that are not corner units and their 

access to natural light is more limited. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page # 12-17, 35 & 36. 

Included 

Should Move away from flat grey 

concrete blocks and use textures 

that absorb heat, look good, and 

allow light to pass through  

The architectural design has tastefully considered articulation 

in all facades of the building. 

We propose a simple, modern, familiar North Vancouver 

vernacular that is consistent with a rental residential building 

and will blend harmoniously with the neighbourhood. 

The massing is simple in form with strong corners and 

recessed sides to increase privacy and allow light into the 

studios on the East and West. The paneling and windows 

create a pattern of texture that visually animates the simple 

massing. The exterior will include Fibre cement cladding 

composed of tone-on-tone colours with wood tone accents. 

The wood tone accents create a warm appearance while 

maintaining durability and low maintenance. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page # 5, 6. 

Included 

Should Larger setbacks from park North side setback is 15’ in the Project Brief package. The 

proposed north side setback allows us to create adequate 

green space on this side. Project Brief, Landscape package, 

page #1. 

Included 

Could  Terracing with different uses and 

amenities to balance height and 

landscaping (4) 

Proposal includes a Ground Level with a larger footprint than 

the Level 1 creating a podium like mass. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page # 11&12.  

Partially 

Included 

Could Taller building with greenspaces 

(3) 

We are proposing a mid-rise building in response to the 

comments asking for a “mid-rise” building. However, the 

proposed lot coverage of 57% allows to include adequate 

green space all around the building. Thus, while we are not 

proposing a taller building, we are proposing adequate green 

space. Project Brief, Landscape package, page # 1. 

Partially 

Included 

Could Terrace away from shorter 

building (2) 

Proposal includes a Ground Level with a larger footprint than 

the Level 1 creating a podium like mass. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page # 11&12. 

Partially 

Included 

Could Basement area for multi-

purposes such as workshops, 

An indoor multi-functional amenity area is provided in the 

Ground Level. Project Brief, Architectural package, page # 11. 

Included 



commercial kitchen, bikeshare, 

charging electric cars (1)  

 

The proposal includes 120 secured bike spaces per the City’s 

requirement.  

100% roughed-in services will be provided in response to the 

comments asking for “charging electric cars”. 

Could Maintain views (1) 

 

With respect to the concern around maintaining the views a 

mid-rise building is proposed.  

Included 

Could 10 to 12 storeys (1)  With respect to the concerns around shadow cast, view, and 

height a mid-rise building is proposed. 

Not 

Included 

Could Playground in half of the lot  The proposed rooftop amenity area includes a flex area that 

families can use it as an outdoor activity area. Project Brief, 

landscape package, page #: 2. 

Included 

Could Unique designs The architectural design of the building is unique. 

The paneling and windows create a pattern of texture that 

visually animates the simple massing. The exterior will 

include Fibre cement cladding composed of tone-on-tone 

colours with wood tone accents. The wood tone accents 

create a warm appearance while maintaining durability and 

low maintenance. Project Brief, Architectural package, page # 

5, 6. 

Included 

Shouldn’t Shadow neighbours (1) 

 

With respect to this concern, the design increases the 

minimum west side setback of 10.52’ to 14.52’ (in the middle 

part along the façade) to minimize shadow cast on the units 

from adjacent neighbour that are not corner units and their 

access to natural light is more limited. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page # 12-17, 35 & 36. 

Included 

Shouldn’t Footprint that differs from the 

aesthetics of the neighbourhood 

Comment is not clear.   

Shouldn’t Be the same height as highest 

neighbouring building  

 

In response to the comments asking for a building shouldn’t 

be as high as the neighbouring building the proposed building 

is a 6-7 storey building instead of a 15-storey building.  

Included 

Shouldn’t Have the same setback as the 

current one on the east side of 

the 616 Lonsdale Avenue low-

rise rental.  

The proposed west side setback of 10.52’ is similar to the 

east side neighbour’s setback. However, west and east side 

setbacks are supported by balconies to provide more privacy 

and further distance to the adjacent neighbours. The west 

side setback of 10.52 is increased to 14.54’ in some parts by 

creating balconies. The east side setback of 6’ is increased to 

12.7’ through balconies as well. Project Brief, Architectural 

package. 

Included 



Shouldn’t Use wood  To support sustainability and environmentally friendly 

notions we are planning to have a wood frame building over 

a concrete foundation with two levels of underground 

parking. The exact structure of the building will be submitted 

with the next submission. 

Partially 

Included 

Table 1: Building height, setbacks, and massing comments and responses 

Below is a table summarizing response to the comments from parking, traffic, and site access section: 

Parking, Traffic and Site Access  

 Comments Responses Action 

Must Parking suitable for residents (5) In response to the concerns around providing parking suitable 

for residents, the proposal includes 46 parking stalls. We are 

asking for a minor variance of 2 parking stalls. 

Partially 

Included 

Must Electric charging for cars and 

bikes (5) 

 

With respect to comments regarding “electric charging” for 

cars and bikes, Cascadia will be providing 100% roughed in 

electric charging services for cars. For electric charging services 

for bikes we will follow Transportation Study recommendation.  

Partially 

Included 

Must Rapid EV charging for every stall 

(3)  

Unfortunately challenging to include in an affordable rental 

building. 

Not Included 

Must Adequate parking for at least 

0.8 spaces per unit 

To support active modes of transportation, we are not 

increasing the parking bylaw requirement.  

Not Included 

Must Find alternative areas for 

parking to reduce traffic (i.e., 

City Market parking) (1)  

The proposal includes two underground parking levels 

providing 46 parking spaces. 

Not Included 

Must Increase bike parking from 1 to 

2 stalls per unit to encourage 

people to get out of their cars 

(2) 

The proposal provides 1.5 secured bike parking per unit as 

required by the City’s Zoning Bylaw.  

Partially 

Included 

Must Car share options (1) Open to follow Transportation Study and TDM strategies.  Partially 

Included 

Must Bike storage and security (1) 120 secured bike parking spaces are proposed in the Parking 

Level 1. Project Brief, Architectural package, page #: 10. 

Included 

Must Developers should consider 

shuttles or transit options 

during construction to reduce 

traffic impacts on the 

neighbourhood 

Will be considered with Transportation Management Plan at 

Building Permit stage. 

Partially 

Included 

Must Off-peak construction traffic Will be considered with Transportation Management Plan. Partially 

Included 



Should Increase alternative 

transportation options and 

increase number of car share 

parking spots (3)  

Rely on Transportation Study recommendation. Partially 

Included 

Should Pedestrian walkways that would 

cut through the sit (3)  

As there is already a pathway connecting East Keith to East 6th 

a few steps toward the east from the project, this comment 

was found unnecessary to be addressed. 

Not Included 

Should Parking that meets the needs of 

number of units (2)  

In response to the concerns around providing parking suitable 

for residents, the proposal includes 2 underground parking 

levels providing 46 parking stalls. We are asking for a minor 

variance of 2 parking stalls. 

Included 

Should Electric bike charging (1)  Wil be open to Transportation Study recommendations. Partially 

Included 

Should Better pick up and drop off area 

(1)  

Landscape plans illustrate the proposed sidewalks for both 

Keith Road and East 6th. To create a better pick up and drop 

off area further input from the City required to resolve 

connections to adjacent lots and off-site grading to install curb. 

Included 

Should Car share options and parking 

(1)  

Rely on Transportation Study recommendations. Partially 

Included 

Should Bike parking In response to concerns around bike parking the proposal 

followed the City’s Bylaw requirement and provided 120 

secured bike spaces as well as 8 short term bicycle parking 

spaces.  

Included 

Should Car charging station With respect to comments regarding “electric charging” for 

cars and bikes, Cascadia will be providing 100% roughed in 

electric charging services for cars. 

Included 

Should Additional parking fees in 

building (i.e. unbundling parking 

from rental, so units pay for a 

stall)  

This will be reflected in the strata PDS at occupancy permit 

stge.  

Included 

Should Allocate certain units to tenants 

without cars 

Parking stalls are not assigned to any units. They will be given 

to the tenants requesting for.  

Included 

Should Nearby public transportation 

options  

 

The prime location of the site encourages using transportation 

infrastructure. 

Included 

Should Limit impact to traffic during 

construction    

Will be considered with Transportation Management Plan. Partially 

Included 

Should Options for contractor parking 

not on streets 

Will be considered with Transportation Management Plan. Partially 

Included 



Could E-bike sharing program (3)  

 

Rely on the Transportation Study recommendations. Partially 

Included 

Could More projects that show pro 

forma elements of losing 

parking (2)  

Cascadia will follow CNV’s instruction Included 

Could Signal upgrades on 6th avenue 

at Lonsdale (1)  

Cascadia’s community contribution is according to the 

comments was received in the Memo.  

Not Included 

Could Stricter parking requirements  The project proposed 46 parking stalls asking for 2 parking 

stalls variance. 

Included 

Could Connection between E. Keith 

and 6th Avenue with pedestrian 

walkways and setbacks 

There is an existing walkway at the adjacent site already.  Not Included 

Shouldn’t Lousy security for bikes (2) With respect to the concerns regarding secures space for bikes 

the proposal includes 120 secured bike spaces located on the 

Parking Level 1. Project Brief, Architectural package, page # 10. 

Included 

Shouldn’t Cut back on parking stalls (2) 

 

In response to the concerns around adequate number of 

parking space, and not cutting back on the number of parking 

stalls proposal is asking for only 2 parking stalls variance. 

Partially 

Included 

Shouldn’t Contractor street-side parking 

(1)  

Will be considered with Transportation Management Plan at 

Building Permit stage. 

Partially 

Included 

Table 2: Parking, traffic, and site access comments and responses 

Below is a table summarizing response to the comments from Amenities, public realm and landscaping section: 

Amenities, Public Realm and Landscaping  

 Comments Responses Action 

Must Rooftop gardens with storage, 

water, amenities and high 

railings (4) 

A rooftop amenity area with handrails and lights has been 

proposed. Project Brief, Landscape package, page #: 2. 

Included 

Must Car sharing (3) Rely on Transportation Study recommendations. Partially 

Included 

Must Sports gear storage (e.g., kayak) 

(2) 

An adequate storage space located on the Ground Level is 

proposed. Project Brief, Architectural package, page # 11.  

Included 

Must Dog wash, car wash (2) Cascadia will be providing dog wash facilities. Will be 

submitted with the next submission. Car wash cannot be 

addressed. 

Partially 

included 



Must Combination of covered and 

uncovered spaces (2)  

The proposed rooftop amenity area includes 

covered/uncovered spaces. Project Brief, Landscape package, 

page #: 2. 

Included 

Must Net positive impact to Victoria 

Park (1) 

 

The proposed 6 storeys building has a minimized shadow 

impact on Victoria Park. Also, upgrading of the sidewalks, and 

landscaping will have positive impact on the whole area 

including Victoria Park. 

Included 

Must Building aesthetic suitable for 

the park (1) 

Comment was not clear. However, the architectural design has 

tastefully considered articulation in all facades of the building. 

Landscape design is thoughtfully considered to provide 

adequate green space, terracing, and privacy. Project Brief, 

Architectural and Landscape packages.     

Included 

 

Must Balconies with sufficient space 

for tenants and to create a 

sense of community (1)  

In response to the comments regarding balconies, all dwelling 

units have balconies. The proposed rooftop will increase the 

sense of community. 

Included 

Must Landscaping all the way around 

the building with Indigenous 

plants (1) 

Regarding the concerns around landscaping around the 

building the proposed building includes one level residential 

dwelling below the East Keith RD grade, surrounded by a 

series of garden patios and landscape. The south end of the 

site has been designed with terraced landscape to give 

greenery and privacy to the south facing dwelling units, 

providing privacy for the residents but also providing overlook 

and eyes on the street along East 6th. An Arborist report was 

provided for this site. Landscape and Architectural drawings 

are in compliance with the Arborist report. Project Brief, 

Landscape package. 

Included 

Must Hot tub, BBQ The proposal includes a rooftop amenity area with BBQ. 

Project Brief, Landscape package, page: # 1. Hot tub is not 

proposed. 

Partially 

Included 

Must Functional amenities  In response to the comments asking for amenities, the 

proposal includes rooftop amenity area, and an indoor multi-

functional amenity area. Project Brief, Architectural package, 

page #: 11, Landscape package, page #: 2. 

Cascadia will be providing bike wash and dog wash facilities. 

Will be included with the next submission. 

Included 

Must Covered outdoor space on 

ground level, setback area, roof  

In response to this comment the proposed rooftop amenity 

area provides a covered area as well. Project Brief, Landscape 

package, page #: 2. 

Included 

Should Pet wash, bike wash (4) Cascadia will be providing bike wash and dog wash facilities. 

Will be included with the next submission. 

Included 



Should Green spaces, garden, BBQ area 

on roof (4) 

The proposal includes a rooftop amenity area having seating 

area, raised planters, artificial turf, harvest table and a BBQ 

area.  Project Brief, Landscape package, page #: 2. 

Included 

Should Different outdoor spaces suited 

for different age groups (3)  

With respect to the comments around outdoor space, a 

rooftop amenity area as well as open space on the Ground 

level and Level 1 have been proposed. Project Brief, Landscape 

package, page #: 1 & 2. 

Included 

Should Garden improvements in the 

back (2)  

 

The south end of the site has been designed with terraced 

landscape to give greenery and privacy to the south facing 

dwelling units, providing privacy for the residents but also 

providing overlook and eyes on the street along East 6th. An 

Arborist report was provided for this site. Project Brief, 

Landscape package, page #: 1. 

Included 

Should Taller building with more 

surrounding greenspaces and 

windows (1) 

 

The proposal is a mid-rise building. However, a reasonable 

proposed lot coverage provides an adequate green space. A 

taller building is not proposed in respect with concerns around 

shadow cast, and view. Also, all the dwelling units have access 

to natural lights. Project Brief, Architectural package. 

Partially 

Included 

Should Building should manage their 

own setbacks and not rely on 

greenspaces from other lots (1)  

Proposed setbacks are as below: 

• North: 15’ 

• Side Yard (West Side): 10.52’ 

• Side Yard (East Side): 6’ 

• South (East 6th St): 20’ 
West and east side setbacks are supported by balconies to 

provide more privacy and further distance to the adjacent 

neighbours. The diagram 1 shows that our proposed setbacks 

are very close to the existing building’s setbacks. The 

Landscape package provides adequate green space for this 

project.  

Included 

Should Common rooftop floor (1)  

 

An adequate rooftop amenity area facing Victoria Park is 

proposed in response to the comments asking for “rooftop 

amenity”. Project Brief, Landscape package, page # 2. 

Included 

Should Natural gas connection for BBQ  Natural gas connection is fire hazardous. Tenants can use 

propane tanks to use the BBQ.  

Not 

Included 

Should Common room with seating 

and water facilities 

In response to the comments asking for a common room with 

seating and water facilities the proposal includes an indoor 

multi-functional amenity area with a kitchen, universal 

washroom, and storage. Project Brief, Architectural package, 

page # 11. 

Included 

Should Car wash station  Unfortunately, cannot address this comment in our proposal.  Not 

Included 



Should Simple landscaping to reduce 

costs  

Please refer to the Project Brief, Landscape page. Included 

Should Balconies and outdoor spaces 

for each unit  

The submitted project proposes balconies for each unit 

located on Level 1 and up. All the units located on Ground 

Level have garden patios. Project Brief, Architectural package.  

Included 

Should More greenspace with more 

height 

An adequate green space has been proposed with a 6-7 storey 

building. The proposal maximizes the open space by creating 

rooftop amenity area and garden patios 

Included 

Could Garden spaces (4)  Landscape package proposes garden space on the roof as well 

as all around the building.  

Included 

Could Childcare and spaces for 

children (2)  

Proposed rooftop amenity area includes a flex space can be 

used for children to play.  

Included 

Could Outdoor play space on the roof Proposed rooftop amenity area includes a flex space can be 

used as an outdoor play space. 

Included 

Could Library in common area Proposed common indoor area is multi-functional. Included 

Could Energy efficient features (e.g., 

solar panels, automatic water 

shutoffs, sensors)  

Noted- at the stage of selecting features will be addressed. Partially 

Included 

Could Accommodation for residents’ 

parcel deliveries  

Noted. Will be included in the mailbox order. Included 

Could Pathway As there is already a pathway connecting East Keith to East 6th 

a few steps toward the east from the project, this comment 

was found unnecessary to be addressed. 

Not 

Included 

Could Accessible bike entrances  An accessible ramp is proposed on the north side of the site. 

Project Brief, Landscape package, page #: 1. Architectural 

package, page #: 12. 

Included 

Could Designated car wash area Only bike wash and pet wash will be provided.  Not 

Included 

Could Pathway between buildings There is an existing walkway at the adjacent site already.  Not 

Included 

Could Washing area/washroom in 

common area 

The proposed indoor amenity area has a washing 

area/washroom. Project Brief, Architectural package, page #: 

11 

Included 

Shouldn’t  Gym (2)  The proposal has an indoor multi-functional amenity area 

located on Ground Level. Project Brief package, Architectural 

package, page # 11. 

Included 



Shouldn’t Create a shadow on Green 

Necklace (1)  

With respect to concerns around shadow cast on Victoria Park, 

our proposal of a 6-storey building creates a minor shadow on 

Victoria Park especially compared to the shadow casted by the 

project’s neighbours on the east side. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page #: 35 & 36.  

Included 

Shouldn’t Cast shadow on Victoria Park 

(1)  

With respect to concerns around shadow cast on Victoria Park, 

our proposal of a 6-storey building creates a minor shadow on 

Victoria Park especially compared to the shadow casted by the 

project’s neighbours on the east side. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page #: 35 & 36. 

Included 

Shouldn’t Landscaping and large trees 

close to building  

Garden patios on the Ground level creates space between the 

building and the landscaping. Project Brief, Landscape 

package, page # 1. 

Included 

Shouldn’t Cast shadow on neighbour to 

the west 

With respect to this concern, the design increases the 

minimum west side setback of 10.52’ to 14.52’ (in the middle 

part along the façade) to minimize shadow cast on the units 

from adjacent neighbour that are not corner units and their 

access to natural light is more limited. Project Brief, 

Architectural package, page # 12-17, 35 & 36. 

Included 

Table 3: Amenities, public realm and landscaping comments and responses 

Below is a table summarizing response to the comments from other ideas, hopes, or concerns section: 

Other Ideas, Hopes, or Concerns  

 Comments Responses Actions 

Must Pet friendly (e.g., flooring) (4) The project finishing will go through marketing reviews to 

make sure it meets tenants needs.  

Partially 

Included 

Must Healthy community with outdoor 

spaces for tenants to meet (3) 

A rooftop amenity area has been proposed for tenants to 

meet in an outdoor space. Project Brief, Landscape Package, 

page #: 2. 

Included 

Must Undistinguishable as a rental 

building and a home people are 

proud of (1)  

The main concern in the design has been given to 

landscaping, setbacks, and shadows regardless of a rental 

project. 

Included 

Must Adequately sized units no smaller 

than current units in buildings (1)  

Various sizes are proposed. Average unit size varies from 

478 sq ft to 1024 sq ft.  

Included 

Must LEED gold standard We believe the intention of this comment is to consider 

sustainability in the design. The proposed design meets the 

step code 3. 

Partially 

Included 

Must Include accessible units that are 

affordable for people on disability 

assistance (1) 

Per the City’s requirement (min 25% of the units) should be 

Adaptable Level 2 units. The proposed design includes 21 

Included 



Adaptable Units Level 2. Project Brief, Architectural 

package, page # 11 – 17. 

Must Accessibility for aging in place (1)  Per the City’s requirement (min 25% of the units) should be 

Adaptable Level 2 units. The proposed design includes 21 

Adaptable Units Level 2. Project Brief, Architectural 

package, page # 11 – 17. 

Included 

Must Double paned windows  All the windows will be double glazed. Included 

Must Maintain community and current 

tenants 

Existing tenants are in priority for the development. Current 

tenants will have the first right of refusal for the mid-market 

units. Cascadia will follow the City’s Tenant Relocation 

Policy for assisting the current tenants through relocation. 

Included 

Must Right of refusal for existing 

tenants  

First right of refusal for mid-market units will be given to 

current tenants. 

Included  

Must City to require adaptable design  Per City’s requirement 25% of the units will be Adaptable 

Level 2.  

Included 

Must Include one bedroom with dens The proposed unit mix includes studios, one-bedroom, two-

bedroom, and three-bedroom units. 

Include 

Must Opportunities for social 

connection 

The proposal creates opportunities for social contacts by 

proposing a rooftop amenity area as well as an indoor multi-

functional amenity area. Walkability of the neighbourhood 

encourages social interactions. 

Included 

Should Use of building exterior and 

useable balconies (4)  

The architectural design has tastefully considered 

articulation in all facades of the building. All the units on 

Level 1 and up have balconies. Project Brief, Architectural 

package, page # 12-17. 

Included 

Should Variety of spaces and textures, 

setbacks, and private and semi-

private spaces, (2)  

Articulation has been a main concern with strong attention 

to recess sides to increase privacy and allow light into the 

studios on the East and West. The paneling and windows 

create a pattern of texture that visually animates the simple 

massing. The exterior will include Fiber cement cladding 

composed of tone-on-tone colours with wood tone accents. 

The wood tone accents create a warm appearance while 

maintaining durability and low maintenance.  

Included 

Should Affordable units (1)  Project will include mid-market units (10% below the 

average market rent). 

Included 

Should Set aside units for individuals with 

special needs (1)  

Per the City’s requirement (min 25% of the units) should be 

Adaptable Level 2 units. The proposed design includes 21 

Adaptable Units Level 2. Project Brief, Architectural 

package, page # 11 – 17. 

Included 

Should Landscaping and greenery  Regarding the concerns around landscaping around the 

building the proposed building includes one level residential 

Included 



dwelling below the East Keith RD grade, surrounded by a 

series of garden patios and landscape. The south end of the 

site has been designed with terraced landscape to give 

greenery and privacy to the south facing dwelling units, 

providing privacy for the residents but also providing 

overlook and eyes on the street along East 6th. An Arborist 

report was provided for this site. The north side of the 

building has a 15’ setback with adequate landscaping on this 

side. Landscape and Architectural drawings are in 

compliance with the Arborist report. Project Brief, 

Landscape package.  

Should Great living spaces  All dwelling units are livable, having access to adequate 

natural light, either garden patios or balconies. Project Brief, 

Architectural package. 

Included 

Should Some building recesses and 

culverts 

Proposed design includes a Ground Level with a larger 

footprint than the Level 1 creating a podium like mass. We 

believe the intention of this comment to create articulation 

to minimize the shadow impact as well as create open 

space. In order to do that a strong concern has been given 

to the articulation, limiting the shadow and landscape 

design. Project Brief, Architectural package, and Landscape 

package. 

Included 

Should Minimize physical access barriers  An accessible ramp is proposed on the north side of the 

project on Level 1. Project Brief, Architectural package, page 

#: 11. 

Included 

Could Bike storage above ground (3) Bike spaces are proposed in the Parking Level 1 meeting the 

City’s Bylaw requirement.  

Partially 

Included 

Could Dog park on the property (2)  Not achievable.  Not 

Included 

Could Priority given to current residents  The first right of refusal for the mid-market units will be 

given to the current tenants. 

Included 

Could Diversity of tenants (e.g., seniors, 

parents)  

The proposed unit mix of 58% studios, 16.3% one-bedroom, 

16.3% 2-bedroom, and 10% 3-bedroom will accommodate 

various tenants. Our proposal follows City’s requirement 

regarding the 10% of the units to be 3 bedrooms. Project 

Brief, Architectural package, page #: 2. 

Included 

Could Below market units with 

accessibility (e.g., width of 

doorway) (1)  

Some of mid-market units will be Adaptable Level 2.  Included. 

Could Affordability (1) This project includes 8 mid-market units Included 

Could Wash area or service area  The proposed design includes an indoor amenity area 

having a washroom and kitchen.  

Included 



Could Mass timer or passive house 

design  

The potential alternative structure will be reviewed by 

structure team and energy consultant. 

Partially 

Included 

Could Reduced energy use  The proposed design will meet step code 3.  Included 

Shouldn’t Displace tenants in 115 E. Keith 

low-rise rental building (3)  

Cascadia will follow CNV’s Tenant Relocation Policy. Current 

tenants will have the first right of refusal for the mid-market 

units. 

Included 

Shouldn’t Become a future burden (1)  Comment is very general. However, the design of this 

project is meeting all the standards and requirements of the 

future residents to avoid creating any disturbance in the 

future.  

Included 

Shouldn’t Be unfriendly  The proposal of a mid-rise building, providing Adaptable 

units, following the Active Design Guidelines, and creating 

articulation on the façade were some of the efforts to make 

a user-friendly building. 

Included 

Shouldn’t Have inadequate wayfinding and 

slippery surfaces (e.g., ICBC 

building) 

Noted – will be considered Partially 

Included 

Table 4: Other ideas, hopes, or concerns comments and responses 

At the Co-Creation Workshop, participants said that it was very important for the new building to have a rooftop 

amenity deck to provide opportunities for outdoor social interaction. It should be mentioned that as the building 

gets taller, the building footprint gets smaller, which means the rooftop deck gets smaller. Providing adequate 

setbacks, windows with natural lights, green space (including balconies), outdoor spaces to meet, landscaping all 

around the building and limiting shadow cast on Victoria Park were among most frequent ideas. 

Overall, Cascadia has put forth a proposal that addresses the majority of all the comments received from Co-

Creation Workshop.  

The diagram below shows that our proposed setbacks are very close to the existing building’s setbacks 

 

Diagram 1: Proposed Setbacks and Existing Setbacks 



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

1 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver 

Development Information Session Summary Report 

 

Event Date:   June 22, 2021 

Time:    6:00pm – 8:00pm 

Location:   Virtual – Zoom Webinar 

Attendance:   19 members of the public signed in  

Comments:  Attendees were advised to provide comments on the City’s website at: 

https://letstalk.cnv.org/  

Meeting Purpose: 1) To present development proposal materials to neighbours 

 2) To provide an opportunity for the public to ask questions about the proposal 

 3) To provide an opportunity for neighbours to comment on the proposal 

 

Notification: 
In accordance with City of North Vancouver policies: 

 

Invitation Brochures 

The City requires invitations to be sent to all households and businesses within 40m of the site. Cascadia Green 

delivered 388 invitations, exceeding the 40m radius in all directions. Invitations were sent to all households 

fully/partially within 100 meters of the development site as well as the project site. Appendix A includes a copy of 

this invitation and a map of the distribution area.  

Newspaper Ad 

A newspaper ad was placed in the North Shore News on Wednesday, June 9, 2021 and Wednesday, June 16, 2021. 

A copy of the ad is included in Appendix A.   

Notification Signs 

Two signs were installed on the property on June 12, 2021 providing two weeks’ notice to neighbours of the 

meeting. One sign was installed on the Keith Rd frontage, and the other was installed on the East 6th Street 

frontage. Photographs of the installed signs are provided in Appendix A.  

Attendance: 
As part of Rezoning process, a Developer Information Session was held on June 22, 2021. Because of the COVID-19 

state of emergency this session was held virtually instead of an in-person session. A Zoom Webinar platform was 

used by Cascadia Green Development to host this session. A Zoom Webinar platform had the option to participate 

the session via computer and via phone with audio. The selected platform allowed the chat to be moderated. 

Participants used a Q&A feature to ask their questions. In order to respect the privacy of the participants, for the 

pre-registration only an email address was required.  

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 4�



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

2 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

31 public members requested to participate in this session in advance and Zoom invitations were sent to them. 

However, 19 public members attended the session. This session was facilitated by Cascadia. All attendees were 

encouraged to participate and share their input on the proposed development.   

The following City staff and project team members were in attendance: 

 Attendees: 19 
 

City of North Vancouver: 

 Emily MacDonald, City Planner 

 Coreen Alexander, City Planner 
 

Project Team: 

 Farzad Mazarei, CEO, Cascadia Green Development 

 Shirazeh Dabiri, Executive Manager, Cascadia Green Development 

 Maryam Lotfi, Development Planner, Cascadia Green Development 

 Saina Ahmadnia, Facilitator, Cascadia Green Development  

 Rhys Leitch, On Behalf of the Project Architect, Integra Architecture 

 Michael Patterson, Landscape Architect, Perry & Associate 

 Victor Ngo, Transportation Planner, WATT Consulting Group 

 Ayda Sahaf, Energy Consultant, Muri Consulting Group 
 
Introduction 
 
The Developer Information Session was started with a brief introduction and a presentation by applicant and a 

facilitated question and answer session. Attendees were encouraged to use “Q&A” feature to ask their question 

during or after the presentation. After the presentation questions were answered in the order they were received. 

The participants were also invited to submit their questions and concerns on the City’s website at: 

https://letstalk.cnv.org/  

The general tone of the session was that there were minimal concerns about the proposed design and most of the 

concern were about tenant relocation. All the comments and questions discussed in the session can be categorized 

in six topic areas as below: 

 Tenant Relocation 

 Balanced Housing Lab and Co-Creation Workshop 

 Affordability 

 Community Amenity Contribution 

 Transportation 

 Project Design 
 

Questions and answers discussed in each category is discussed below. 

Tenant Relocation 

Tenants at the DIS were questioning the mechanism that Cascadia would use to select tenants for the proposed 

mid-market units. They were asking about the project timeline, additional compensation, moving cost support, 

market rent price, rent-to-own and Affordable Homeownership Program (AHOP) units.  



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

3 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

Tenants were concerned about being relocated not within the City of North Vancouver.   

The City of North Vancouver Tenant Relocation Policy was discussed with the tenants and their rights and 

compensation were explained to them. It was discussed with the participants that there is four-month notice and 

three-month rent compensation. It was explained that Cascadia will follow the City of North Vancouver policies 

and requirements regarding the relocation. It was explained to the attendees that Pacific Asset Management 

Corporation (PAMC) is the Property Manager hired by Cascadia Green Development to manage the 115 East Keith 

Road relocation process as well. It was discussed that PAMC has access to a broad portfolio of rental residential 

buildings and would assist tenants to find a place in the City of North Vancouver.  

Three days after the DIS, on June 25th, a package including the B.C. Residential Tenancy Guidelines, the City of 

North Vancouver Residential Tenant Displacement Policy, and the Cascadia Green Development compensation 

package was distributed to all the tenants to make sure they were aware of their rights and compensation they 

would receive. Compensation proposed to them at that time included three-month rent, as well as $1000 cash 

toward the moving cost. It was discussed that they do not need to wait to receive the Notification letter to receive 

the compensation. If they wish to move before the four-month notice, they will still be supported to find a place as 

well as receiving the compensation.   

At the DIS, it was explained that tenants would have the first right of refusal for the mid-market and market units 

in the new building. It was explained to them that if more than 8 tenants want to move into these units, then the 

units will be distributed according to the demonstration of the greatest need. Selection of those in greatest need 

will be according to the judgement of Cascadia Green Development. Mid-market rents and market rents were 

discussed with the participants. It was explained to the tenants that the mid-market rents are relatively low. A 

table demonstrating an estimated rent for mid-market units by unit type was presented to the participants. The 

resource for this piece of information was CMHC Rental Market Report, 2020. An estimated market rent for a one-

bedroom unit in a new building was discussed with the tenants as well. It was discussed that we would consider 

that our projects and initiatives are only a small part of the holistic situation. Paying the existing rent for a brand-

new suite with the same area and number of units requires substantial support from government bodies.   

It was discussed with the attendees that Cascadia has other affordable initiatives including rent-to-own and 

Affordable Home Ownership program in their East Third project. Also, Cascadia’s other rental project AXIR was 

mentioned to the participants.  

Balanced Housing Lab and Co-Creation Workshop 

There were some questions and concerns raised in the DIS around Balanced Housing Lab. Some of the attendees 

were interested to know what the Balanced Housing Lab is, what has it accomplished so far, how Cascadia Green 

Development was selected for this pilot project, how people were selected to the Co-Creation workshop, including 

why only one tenant was invited to the Co-Creation workshop. Also, a question was raised asking to see if the 

intention of this pilot project is to increase the rental supply or to also get the supply faster to the market to help 

with the rising price control. 

Coreen Alexander from the City of North Vancouver responded to these questions. Definition of BHL was explained 

to participants. It was discussed that four lab workshops have been held, and currently the City and the BHL are 

testing new ideas on an alternative approval process on this pilot project. Attendees were encouraged to visit the 

BHL’s website for further information. Regarding how Cascadia was selected for this pilot project, it was explained 

that CNV recently posted an Expression of Interest (EOI) for “Development Approvals Process” as part of the BHL 

project. The intent of this EOI was to determine the range and level of interest in participating in the Development 



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

4 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

Approvals Pilot process. Interested parties were invited to submit a response to this EOI. Cascadia Green 

Development submitted a proposal and got selected. It was mentioned that all the details and notification are 

located on City’s website under Bid Notices: www.cnv.org/city-services/bid-notices.  

Regarding concerns around the Co-Creation workshop, it was explained that invitations were sent to the residents 

of the building and neighbours. The City looked for 1-2 representatives per building. It was emphasized that the 

City is collecting feedback on the process. There is always an opportunity to provide feedback outside of the Co-

Creation workshop. 

It was discussed that the City always likes to proceed with projects as fast as reasonably possible. 

Affordability 

Questions in this category were about the definition for affordability, normal vacancy rate, and how mid-market 

units can create affordable rentals in the City. The Definition of the affordability by CMHC was explained to the 

attendees. It was mentioned that a 3% to 4% vacancy rate would be considered a healthy vacancy rate that 

tenants will have sufficient options and rents can be held at a reasonable level. The number of proposed mid-

market units in the new building was discussed with tenants and explained that that this number is based on the 

City’s requirement. Mid-market rent for various unit types was shown to participants based on the CMHC 2020 

data, and explained that we would consider that our projects and initiatives are only a small part of the holistic 

solution.  

Community Amenity Contribution 

One question was raised if Cascadia Green Development is paying any CAC for this project. The answer was that 

rental developments are exempt from a CAC.  

Transportation 

One of the attendees was interested to know about a Traffic Demand Management plan. It was explained to 

attendees that a transportation demand management (TDM) refers to policies, programs, and services that 

influence why, when, where, and how people travel. TDM measures can be applied to reduce vehicle ownership 

among building residents by supporting them to walk, roll, cycle, or take transit instead of driving. This can help 

reduce the amount of vehicle parking required on-site. It was mentioned that a TDM and a transportation study 

have been submitted to the City for this project.  

Project Design 

Below is the explanation of the questions raised in the DIS regarding the proposed design and specification of the 

project. People were asking about unit types, deconstruction of the building, and the structure of the building. 

There were questions about the proposed height and shadow of the building, number of secured bike space, high 

performance windows and materials, installation of the solar panels on the roof, flood concerns, accessibility, 

parking space for electrical cars, tree removal, demolition and construction dates, water issues challenges, and the 

rooftop amenity area.  

Regarding the unit type it was discussed in the session that the proposed unit mix is based on the market demand, 

City’s demography, and the location of the project. It was discussed that the project follows the City’s requirement 

of 10% of the units to be 3-bedroom units. Also, it was explained to the attendees that more than quarter of the 

proposed units are family-friendly units (mix of 2-bedroom units and 3-bedroom units). It should be mentioned 



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

5 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

that there were also some support for the smaller units as they would be more affordable. It was clarified in the 

session the proposed number of the secured bike spaces are meeting the City’s requirement. It was clarified that 

Cascadia will provide EV roughed-in services for 100% of the parking spaces. Regarding the questions about 

installing solar panels on the roof, Cascadia provided information that based on previous solar panels studies, it 

would not be efficient in Vancouver’s weather. Although Cascadia always take further steps to make their projects 

energy efficient, solar panels would not be one of their options. It was explained to the attendees that the Level 1 

has been raised about 3 feet for flood concerns as well as to provide adequate natural light to units located on 

Ground Level.  

It was discussed that every building in the City of North Vancouver is required to be accessible to all. An accessible 

ramp is provided on the north side of the site where the main entrance is. Also, 25% of the total units will be 

Adaptable Level 2 units as per the City of North Vancouver requirement. There are also 3 accessible parking spaces 

included in the parkade. It was clarified that the building will be a 6-storey building from the Keith Rd, and a 7-

storey building from the East 6th St. A shadow study was presented to the attendees and explained how the 

proposed project’s shadow cast on Victoria is very minimal compared to the project’s adjacent neighbour to the 

east side. It was discussed that rooftop amenity area’s closing time, as well as non-smoking requirements will be in 

compliance with the City’s requirement. It was clarified that there will be tree removal on the site. However, an 

arborist report has been submitted to the City for this project and all architectural and landscape designs are 

compatible with the arborist report for this project. It was explained in the session that the building will be most 

probably two levels concrete and the rest wood frame. It was discussed that if the project gets approved, we are 

still about one year away from our construction activity. It was clarified that proposed design will go through a 

rigorous design process with the City to ensure past problems will not resurface.  

Conclusion 

The purpose of this public information meeting was to present to neighbours the proposed rezoning application, 

and to provide them with an opportunity to ask questions and comments on the proposal. 388 invitations were 

distributed to the surrounding community, and 19 community members signed in to participate at the virtual 

session. Two newspaper ads notified the community of the meeting, and two signs were posted on the property. 

Per the City’s request no comment sheet was sent to participants. Instead, they were encouraged to write on the 

City’s website at: https://letstalk.cnv.org/  

The public could participate in this process in several ways: 

 Using the Q&A feature to raise their questions to the project team and CNV Planners  

 Watching a presentation 

 Participating in a facilitated question and answer period 

 Writing on the City’s website at https://letstalk.cnv.org/  
 

The meeting length and format was sufficient to provide all participants an opportunity to learn more, ask 

questions, and make the comments they wished to provide that evening. Participants asked the development 

team a variety of questions. Concerns were mostly related to tenant relocation process. The community was given 

ample opportunity to express their views of the proposal.  

The proposed design was supported by the participants. They were supporting the rooftop amenity area, height, 

and shadow cast of the project. They were supporting that the proposed design is providing sufficient secured bike 

space.  



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

6 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

Existing tenants expressed concern over finding alternative, affordable rental accommodations in the 

neighbourhood, and Cascadia Green indicated a willingness to help them. In order to assure the current tenants 

that Cascadia will support them through the process three days after the DIS, on June 25th, a package including 

the B.C. Residential Tenancy Guidelines, the City of North Vancouver Residential Tenant Displacement Policy, and 

the Cascadia Green Development compensation package was distributed to all the tenants. Cascadia wanted to 

make sure tenants were aware of their rights and compensation they would receive. Since then, recently, 

Cascadia’s Tenant Relocation Plan has been updated. Cascadia will be updating the tenants regarding their 

updated compensation package. 

  



Development Application
for 115 East Keith Road -
Survey

SURVEY RESPONSE REPORT
16 September 2019 - 05 July 2021

PROJECT NAME:
Development Approval Process Pilot: 115 East Keith Road

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 5�



SURVEY QUESTIONS

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 1 of 5



Q1  What is your overall position on the application:

22 (66.7%)

22 (66.7%)3 (9.1%)

3 (9.1%)

7 (21.2%)

7 (21.2%) 1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

Support Mixed Oppose Don't Know

Question options

Mandatory Question (33 response(s))
Question type: Radio Button Question

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 2 of 5



Q2  Please select your age range.

10 (30.3%)

10 (30.3%)

10 (30.3%)

10 (30.3%)

8 (24.2%)

8 (24.2%)

4 (12.1%)

4 (12.1%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
0 (0.0%)

0 (0.0%)

19-34 35-44 45-64 65 + Prefer not to say under 19

Question options

Optional question (33 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 3 of 5



Q3  Which of the following best describes you:

17 (51.5%)

17 (51.5%)

6 (18.2%)

6 (18.2%)

9 (27.3%)

9 (27.3%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

I live in the City of North Vancouver I work in the City of North Vancouver I live AND work in the City of North Vancouver

None of the above

Question options

Mandatory Question (33 response(s))
Question type: Radio Button Question

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 4 of 5



Q4  Postal Code

5 (15.2%)

5 (15.2%)

3 (9.1%)

3 (9.1%)

2 (6.1%)

2 (6.1%)

2 (6.1%)

2 (6.1%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

North Vancouver, BC, V7L1V1 North Vancouver, BC, V7N3Z4 North Vancouver, BC, V7M2V7

North Vancouver, BC, V7P3E3 North Vancouver, BC, V7L1V4 North Vancouver, BC, V7M2B6

North Vancouver, BC, V7K1R9 North Vancouver, BC, V7M1W6 North Vancouver, BC, V7L4N9

North Vancouver, BC, V7M3M2 North Vancouver, BC, V7M1P3 North Vancouver, BC, V7M2G8

North Vancouver, BC, V7M0A6 North Vancouver, BC, V7L1P1 North Vancouver, BC, V7P1S3

North Vancouver, BC, V7L2Z3 North Vancouver, BC, V7P0A1 Vancouver, BC, V6Z0E3

North Vancouver, BC, V7G1P8 Vancouver, BC, V6B1T7 North Vancouver, BC, V7K2M2

North Vancouver, BC, V7L0B2 West Vancouver, BC, V7T2H5 North Vancouver, BC, V7L1H7

North Vancouver, BC, V7N2T3

Question options

Mandatory Question (33 response(s))
Question type: Region Question

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 5 of 5



Development Application for 115 East Keith Road: Community Feedback  
 
Please share your comments on the proposed development for 115 East Keith Road. 
 

• This is a seven story rental building. The lobby entrance off E Keith goes onto the 2nd 
floor. There seem to be too many "junior" one bedroom / bachelor units with poor 
layout - not much actual living space. 

 
• I am opposing this development because it fails to include truly affordable options for 

seniors, pensioners, people with mental health issues, and most importantly exorbitant 
proposed rents for multiple-person family units. 

 
• Sad/Shocked & Stressed I have to move in this tight expensive housing market on the 

North Shore after living here for 13 & half years. 
 

• The proposed project will lead to the eviction from their home community of 23 
households who cannot afford market rentals and will thus not be able to stay in their 
home community of North Vancouver. Only 8 midmarket suites will be offered to 
residents despite the 23 suites evicted. The suites are also much smaller than their 
current residence. This is insufficient and not creating affordable housing, but rather, 
taking a great number of affordable rentals away and dismantling a community of 
residents who have lived there for 10 to 43 years. There is no planned meaningful 
monetary compensation for the years of hardship to come for the current residents who 
are kicked out. This project, as laid out currently, does not address the current needs of 
the residents of North Vancouver nor creates more affordable housing, despite its 
claims. 



 

 

 

115 E Keith Road North Vancouver 

Updated  

Tenant Relocation Plan 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by 

Cascadia Green Development 

September 14, 2021  

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 6�



 

P a g e  | 1 

1 Introduction 
After Council approved the updated Tenant Displacement Policy in July 12th, 2021 Cascadia Green 

Development decided to update their already submitted Tenant Relocation Plan (TRP) for the 115 East 

Keith Rd development. Below is a summary of the updated Tenant Relocation Plan proposed by 

Cascadia. Cascadia’s updated TRP follows the majority of the elements of the CNV’s new policy excluding 

one item of: “(total tenancy length in months – 60) * $25)” financial compensation. Below is a summary 

of the updated Tenant Relocation Plan proposed by Cascadia Green Development. 

2 Tenant Relocation Plan 

2.1 Relocation Assistance 
Cascadia designated Pacific Asset Management Corporation (PAMC) as their Tenant Relocation 

Coordinator to support tenants through the displacement process. 

PAMC will identify three comparable rental dwelling units for each eligible tenant household. The 

comparable units will be located in the City of North Vancouver and the maximum rent will not be more 

than the greater of: 

a) 10% above the tenant’s current rent; or 

b) 10% above the most recently published CMHC median rental level, by number of bedrooms, for 

the City of North Vancouver. 

2.2 Additional Assistances for Low Income Tenants and others Facing Barriers 
Cascadia will be providing individualized support to those tenant households identified as having 

additional needs such as elderly residents on fixed incomes, tenants with low incomes as defined in the 

CNV’s 2021 Displacement Policy, and people with disabilities. Examples of additional supports can be as 

follows: 

a) Early communication and notification, in person if requested; 

b) Additional support with arranging and attending viewings; 

c) Support with accessing social housing or rent supplements 

d) Connecting with health organizations and non-profit services; and 

e) Free support with activates such as packing  

2.3 Financial Compensation: 
This application will compensate all eligible tenants with financial assistance equivalent to 4 months’ of 

their current rent. 

Tenants who have been already moved and received the previously submitted compensation package 

will be receiving the differed compensation.  

2.4 Moving Cost   
Tenants will be compensated for moving expenses with a flat rate payment based on number of 

bedrooms according to the CNV’s 2021 Displacement policy.  



 

P a g e  | 2 

a) $1000 for studio and 1 bedroom units; 

b) $1250 for 2 bedroom units; and 

c) $1500 for 3 bedroom and larger units. 

2.5 Notice Period: 
Tenants will be receiving a four months-notice, after a Demolition Permit is issued for this application.  

2.6 First Right of Refusal:  
All tenants will be provided with the first right of refusal to live in any purpose-built rental units in the 

new building. Also, they will be offered the first right of refusal to live in the 8 mid-market units 

proposed in the new building. 

 



./L-^ (M,
Department
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

INFORMATION REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Coreen Alexander, Planner 1

Subject: PILOT DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS PROCESS - ENGAGEMENT
UPDATE

Date: October 6,2021 File No: 10-5040-20-0002/1

ATTACHMENTS

1. Balanced Housing Lab - Development Approvals Process Pilot (Document 
#1992443)

2. Co-Creation Workshop Summary (Document #2091953)
3. Applicant’s DIS Summary (Document #2094789)
4. Development Application - LetsTalk Survey Results (Document #2077448)

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with an overview of the engagement 
components and background information for the Pilot Development Approvals Process, 
one of the prototype solutions that emerged from the Balanced Housing Lab project.
This report is intended to be a reference document for the pilot process, to support 
Council’s review of the rezoning report for 115 East Keith Road.

BACKGROUND

The Balanced Housing Lab (BHL) is an innovative partnership between the City of North 
Vancouver, District of West Vancouver, and Squamish Nation. The lab was focused on 
developing solutions to address the housing challenges facing middle-income earners. 
Project work was led by consulting firm Urban Matters, with supporting direction from 
City staff, a political steering committee, and a project working group with representation 
from the partnering organizations.

One of the solutions, referred to as a "prototype”, that emerged from the BHL was re-
imaging the development approvals process. In order to improve upon the process for 
reviewing new developments - which lab participants described as often adversarial and

Document Number: 2091506 V4



INFORMATION REPORT: Pilot Development Approvals Process - Engagement Update
Date: Octobers, 2021

which considers input from stakeholders late in the application process, participants 
worked to develop an alternative development approvals process for projects that align 
with the Official Community Plan (OOP) and include a housing component for moderate 
to middle-income households. This process is intended to engage with the public 
earlier, before a detailed development application is submitted, and to provide more 
opportunities for diverse voices to be heard by utilizing new engagement tools beyond 
the conventional public hearing. It is also intended to inform Council and municipal staff 
of concept designs in the earlier stages of the process to ensure projects align with 
broader community objectives, before detailed design work is carried out. The pilot 
development approvals process is outlined in Attachment #1.

On October 19, 2020, Council provided direction: “THAT staff be directed to prepare a 
Request for Expressions of Interest to seek developers to participate in a pilot 
alternative development approvals process”. The Request for Expressions of Interest 
(REOI) closed in December 2020 and Cascadia Green Development was selected to 
participate in the pilot for the proposed residential development at 115 East Keith Road.

The development proposal is more than halfway through the pilot process having 
completed the early engagement components and the rezoning report is before Council 
for Introduction. This report accompanies the rezoning report and is intended to provide 
Council with an overview of the Pilot Development Approvals Process and provides 
highlights of the various engagement components.

DISCUSSION

Comparison of Existing and Pilot Development Approvals Process

The key differences between the existing and pilot development approvals process 
relate to the engagement components as well as the timing and level of detail presented 
at Council Introduction (First Reading).

The City’s existing development approvals process is outlined in Figure 1 below. It 
includes two engagement opportunities: Developer Information Session and Public 
Hearing (both in green boxes below). Both of which occur after a detailed development 
application is submitted to the City. In the existing process Council is first informed of 
the project at Introduction after a fulsome review of the proposal by City staff and after a 
detailed design is prepared by the applicant. This typically occurs 8-12 months after a 
development application is submitted.

Figure 1: Existing Development Approvals Process

Page 2 of 6



INFORMATION REPORT: Pilot Development Approvals Process - Engagement Update
Date: October 6, 2021

The pilot development approvals process is outlined in Figure 2 below. It introduces 
additional engagement opportunities earlier in the process including the following: Co- 
Creation Workshop, Visual Preference Survey, and LetsTalk Online Engagement (all in 
green boxes below). The objectives of the additional engagement components of the 
pilot process are twofold. One, to reduce the potential for contention with a development 
project by moving the engagement components to earlier in the process so that it 
informs design development, rather than feedback to a polished design late in the 
process. Two, to provide more opportunities for diverse voices to be heard by offering 
multiple feedback channels that make it easier for people to participate, beyond the 
public hearing. A detailed summary of all the engagement activities completed for the 
Pilot Project is provided below.

The pilot process also introduces the concept of a “Project Brief”, in which the applicant 
submits a more conceptual development application package that is reviewed by staff at 
a high-level. Following the new engagement components, staff prepare a report for 
Council Introduction (First and Second Reading) with their recommendation on the 
proposal subject to certain conditions to be addressed at the Detailed Application stage. 
This enables development proposals to come to Council for Introduction within a shorter 
timeframe (5-6 months) and provides more opportunity for feedback to be incorporated 
before detailed design work is carried out. Following Second Reading, the applicant 
submits their Detailed Application for staff review and must address all conditions that 
were laid out at Introduction prior to the proposal coming forward to Council for Public 
Flearing/Third Reading.

Figure 2: Pilot Development Approvals Process

Summary of Engagement Activities

Table 1 provides a summary of the engagement activities conducted for the 
development proposal at 115 E Keith Road. A detailed explanation of each component 
is described below.

Table 1: Summary of Engagement Activities - 115 E Keith Road
Engagement Method Date Existing or New Method
Co-Creation Workshop April 8, 2021 New
Visual Preference Survey May 14, 2021 New
LetsTalk Online Engagement June 8 - July 6, 2021 New
Developer Information Session June 22, 2021 Existing

Page 3 of 6



INFORMATION REPORT: Pilot Development Approvals Process - Engagement Update
Date: October 6, 2021

Co-Creation Workshop
The Co-Creation Workshop was held on April 8, 2021. It was attended by 14 members 
of the public, 4 City staff, 4 applicant representatives, and 5 staff from the facilitating 
consultant, Urban Matters. The purpose of the Co-Creation Workshop was to bring 
together a diverse group of people including local residents, neighbours, businesses, 
and design experts to help co-create design elements prior to the formalization of any 
development concept. It was originally envisioned as a highly visual in-person event. 
However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, it was transitioned to an online format.

Due to the online format, participation was limited to 20 people. As part of the pilot 
process evaluation, staff will consider the potential for larger involvement and in-person 
opportunities, health guidelines permitting. Invitations were sent to the subject building 
and surrounding properties within approximately 40m, seeking 1-2 representatives from 
each building. An application to participate was also posted on the City’s website and 
promoted through City social media channels seeking participants from the broader 
public, 28 applications were received and 11 participants were selected by the project’s 
consultant team. A direct invite was also sent to the Advisory Design Panel seeking one 
member to attend. A summary of the invitations and responses received is provided in 
Table 2 below.

Table 2: Summary of Co-Creation Workshop Invitations
Direct Invitations Description Notification Response
115 East Keith Rd Subject Building - Rental Mail-out to residents 1 response
115 East 6th St Neighbouring Rental Mail-out to residents No response
616 Lonsdale Ave Neighbouring Rental Mail-out to residents 1 response
119 East 6th St Neighbouring Strata Mail-out to residents No response
123 East Keith Rd Neighbouring Strata Email to Strata Council 1 response
123 East 6th St Neighbouring Strata Email to Strata Council 1 response
Advisory Design 
Panel (ADR) ^

Design Expert Participant selected at
ADP Meeting

1 response

A background document was circulated to participants in advance of the workshop to 
inform participants of the intent of the workshop, site context, and regulatory framework. 
The workshop included brief presentations from City staff, facilitator, and developer. 
Participants were then split into groups to discuss their ideas around key design 
elements including the following:

- Building height, setbacks, and massing
- Parking, traffic, and site access
- Amenities, public realm, and landscaping
- Other ideas, opportunities, and concerns

Participants were asked to provide feedback on what the project must, should, could, 
and should not achieve in relation to the design elements. A detailed summary of the 
Co-Creation Workshop outcomes and process is provided in Attachment #2.

Page 4 of 6



INFORMATION REPORT: Pilot Development Approvals Process - Engagement Update
Date: October 6, 2021

Visual Preference Survey
Following the Co-Creation Workshop, a summary of the feedback was provided to the 
applicant. As an output of the workshop the applicant was asked to prepare a Visual 
Preference Survey that graphically summarized the design elements that emerged from 
the workshop. This survey was circulated to the workshop participants as an opportunity 
to provide additional thoughts and opinions on the many design elements discussed. 
The survey included conceptual development options for a 5, 6 and 7 storey building 
and asked preference questions around key design elements. The survey was 
circulated by Urban Matters, 14 responses were received and the data was provided to 
the applicant to help further refine their development concept.

Developer Information Session
A Developer Information Session (DIS) was held virtually by the applicant on June 22, 
2021 and was attended by 19 members of the public. The DIS is one of the standard 
engagement components included in the existing development approvals process. It 
provides an opportunity for interested members of the public to learn about the 
development proposal, ask questions, and provide feedback. It is attended by City staff 
and the developer. Notification requirements per City policy include onsite signage, two 
newspaper advertisements, and mail-out to properties within 40m of the subject site.
The applicant’s summary of the DIS and key themes discussed is provided in 
Attachment #3.

LetsTalk Online Engagement
The City launched a LetsTalk project webpage on June 8, 2021 for interested members 
of the public to learn more about the pilot process and development proposal at 115 E 
Keith Road. Two surveys were posted on the page, one seeking public sentiment on the 
development proposal and the other seeking feedback on the pilot process and use of 
online engagement. The page also included an open comment box for members of the 
public to share their thoughts on the development proposal. The surveys and comments 
section were open from June 8 to July 6 and were promoted as an engagement 
opportunity at the DIS. The LetsTalk page was visited by 188 people, in which 33 
responded to the development application survey, 16 responded to the process survey, 
and 1 replied to the guestbook. A summary of the development related responses is 
provided in Attachment #4.

Analysis of the feedback received through the various engagement activities and the 
response to the design development is articulated in the rezoning report. Feedback from 
City staff, developer, and the general public is also being collected specific to the 
learnings from the pilot and will be presented to Council in a subsequent report, 
following the conclusion of the pilot.

NEXT STEPS

Staff intend to return to Council with an evaluation report and lessons learned from the 
pilot process, upon completion of the project. To date, the project team has conducted 
internal and applicant interviews and circulated a feedback survey on the process to 
workshop participants. The City has collected feedback on the pilot process and online 
engagement through the LetsTalk webpage. Further evaluation and feedback will be

Page 5 of 6



INFORMATION REPORT: Pilot Development Approvals Process - Engagement Update
Date: October 6, 2021

collected after key project milestones and presented to Council as a final report on the 
pilot.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Page 6 of 6



Development 
Approvals  
Process Pilot  

Overview
The Balanced Housing Solutions Lab (BHL) is an innovative 
partnership of local governments on the North Shore of 
the Metro Vancouver area, and includes the City of North 
Vancouver, District of West Vancouver, and Squamish 
Nation. BHL is an engagement and technical exercise 
intended to generate new solutions that shift the way our 
housing system as a whole is addressing the current housing 
crisis, particularly the growing problem of affordability for 
moderate to middle-income earners on the North Shore.

One focus area identified in the Solutions Lab is the need 
to reimagine the current development approvals process, 
which can be divisive, time-consuming, and contentious. 
This focus area aims to answer the following question:

Purpose of the Pilot Project
The alternative development approvals prototype outlined 
below is intended to provide community members a 
360-degree view of the potential development concept and
more opportunities for diverse voices to be heard in the early
stages of the process. It is also intended to inform the City of 
North Vancouver and District of West Vancouver Councils and 
municipal staff of concept designs and ensure projects align 
with broader community objectives in the earlier stages of the 
project.

In order to select projects that will help the City and District 
pilot this prototype, two key criteria are being used to select 
projects: the proposed concepts should include a component 
of mid-market housing and conform with the Official 
Community Plan policies.

Please note: This pilot project is a work in progress and this 
brochure will be updated over time as the City of North 
Vancouver and District of West Vancouver and its partners 
gather learnings and insights from participants of the 
program. The following pilot process will be illustrated using 
the City of North Vancouver as an example.

How might we...
Reimagine the development ap-
provals process such that it builds, 
rather than divides, community?

As part of the work in this focus area, input from lab 
participants from the first phase of the BHL has informed the 
design of an alternative development approvals process that 
promotes more meaningful opportunities for community 
members, Municipal Staff, Council, and developers to co-
create and engage with proposed housing projects.

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



Stages of Development Approvals Process

STAGE 1: PRE-CONSULTATION MONTH 1

Description:

•  Developer and City of North Vancouver staff (e.g. 
engineering, planning, fire, building, etc.) discuss 
early development concept and any potential 
technical challenges to the proposed project 
concept. 

•  Developer’s early project concept should provide 
a high-level site plan and demonstrate how the 
project intends to meet the policies in the City of 
North Vancouver’s Official Community Plan. 

•  City Staff will provide high-level feedback on 
designs (e.g. comments on site access, height, 
massing, known off-site requirements) and 
identify any concerns. 

•  A public call will be posted on the City’s project 
page for community members to apply to 
participate in the co-creation workshop. When 
applying, community members will be asked 
about their demographics, lived experiences, 
and professional expertise. Selected community 
members will be trained on OCP policies, zoning 
bylaw, and other City policies and provide advice 
on the development concept.

•  City Staff, developer, and an external facilitator 
will manage the public call and select up to 20 
stakeholders, with high consideration for selecting 
those with lived experiences or who identify as 
Indigenous or groups that are underrepresented, 
to participate in the co-creation workshop (Stage 2) 
from the following groups:

 • Advisory Design Panel representatives1 

 •  People who have faced housing challenges on 
the North Shore2

 • Local business representatives 

 • Local neighbourhood representatives

 •  Local services (e.g. fire and police department, 
school districts, hospitals) 

 •  Other relevant stakeholders as determined on 
a case-by-case basis

•  A date will be mutually agreed upon by the 
developer and City Staff for the co-creation 
workshop with community stakeholders in Stage 2.

•  City staff, developer, and external facilitator will 
identify key questions and themes that will guide 
stakeholder and public engagement and further 
shape the project concept. 

•  City staff, developer, and external facilitator will 
select the appropriate engagement mechanisms 
for stakeholder and public engagements.

Participants:

•  City Staff

•  Developer

•  External Facilitator

Development Approvals Process Pilot  

1Two to three Advisory Design Panel representatives will be selected for the process based on relevance of their professional expertise and on a rotating fashion.

2According to best practices, stakeholders with lived experiences will be compensated for their participation. 

3To support a World Café style workshop during COVID-19, City staff and developer can use a virtual meeting platform that follows the City’s guidelines for 
virtual engagement. City staff can manage and can use the “breakout rooms” function in a virtual meeting platform to mimic the idea of rotating tables. Using the 
breakout rooms function, City staff can manually assign participants to different rooms with City staff, the developers, and architect. After a set amount of time, City 
staff can switch the rooms of participants. 



STAGE 2:  CO-CREATION WORKSHOP WITH  
COMMUNITY STAKEHOLDERS (CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT)

Description:

• City Staff and developer will host a World Café 
style workshop with community stakeholders and 
representatives of the advisory design panel.

• City staff will present Official Community Plan 
policies and what the land use designation allows 
for the subject site (e.g. land use, density) at the 
beginning of the workshop.

• Developer will present their project vision and 
brings their architect to engage in dialogue with 
community stakeholders. 

• Tables will be set up around a room with a 
mix of City Staff, the developer, architect, 
and stakeholders that create opportunities 
for dialogue and collaboration to explore 
key engagement questions and topic areas. 
Stakeholders will move from table to table.

• Stakeholders will provide local knowledge, 
lived experiences, understanding of local 
neighbourhoods, and professional expertise to 
inform the concept development (e.g. guiding 
principles, history, vision, outcomes, aspirational 
goals).

• City staff and developer will facilitate and 
guide conversations, take minutes and record 
conversation and synthesize project outcomes. 
Input received in the co-creation workshop will 
inform the concept development prior to Stage 3.

*We aim to work with two developers through this 
process; one will lead the co-creation independently, 
and one will have the support of an external facilitator. 
In piloting this, the external facilitator will use Urban 
Matters as part of the prototype evaluation process.

 

Participants:

• City Staff

•  Advisory Design Panel 
representatives

• Developer (and architect)

• Community Stakeholders

Development Approvals Process Pilot  

MONTH 1



Development Approvals Process Pilot Development Approvals Process Pilot 

STAGE 3: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT ABOUT CONCEPT

Description:

•  City staff and developer will present the concept
developed in Stage 2 to the public through a
virtual platform and engagement process that
includes a menu of options for engagement.

•  City staff will launch an online City project page
that will act as a digital hub and allow the public
to learn about the project, stay updated with
upcoming engagement events, and share their
experiences through all stages of the project.

•  This stage is intended to serve as an alternative
to the Public Hearing Process, which can be
contentious and may not always capture a diverse
cross-section of community voices. This public
engagement is intended to find a variety of ways
for the public to engage with the project and
provide input in advance of First Reading. These
opportunities meaningfully engage participants
to ask questions, express concerns or excitement
for the project, and to check in on the project
progress.

•  In addition, this stage is designed to increase
access of engagement by offering multiple
formats for both residents and stakeholders to
participate, at different times throughout the day,
and encourage dialogue between the developer,
the City, and the public.

•  The public can register through the City’s project
page to stay informed throughout the pilot
project by providing their email and postal code.

•  The public is invited to provide feedback to the
concept through various forms of engagement
and dialogue with City staff and the developer.

•  City staff will incentivize the public to engage
by demonstrating that their participation and
feedback will have real influence on the outcomes
of the process.

Participants:

• City Staff

• Developer

• External Facilitator (optional)

Engagement Tools:

Engagement tools and approaches may vary 
depending on the purpose, project cycle, and target 
audiences. The engagement tools described below 
provide a menu of options for the two pilot projects. 
The selection of tools and approaches will be tailored 
to each pilot project and compared against each other 
for effectiveness of meaningful engagement. The City 
and developer will work together to determine the 
most appropriate engagement approaches. 

For the purposes of the pilot project, an additional 
evaluation survey will be posted to the City’s project 
page and emailed to participants at the end of each 
engagement stream for the public to provide feedback 
on their experience of the overall engagement 
process. This evaluation survey is not intended to 
be replicated outside of the pilot project, rather the 
findings from the survey will be used to improve the 
overall process in either Pilot 1 and Pilot 2 (whichever 
occurs later).

MONTH 2



Development Approvals Process Pilot Development Approvals Process Pilot 

STAGE 3: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT ABOUT CONCEPT

Virtual Town Hall:

•  City staff and developer will host a virtual town
hall using an online meeting platform that follows
the City’s guidelines for virtual engagement.

•  City staff will advertise the virtual town hall on
the City’s project page and through the City’s
social media platforms (e.g. Facebook, Twitter,
Instagram).

•  Participants will sign up to attend the live town
hall on the City project page and will be asked to
provide their name, email and postal codes4. City
staff will use participant postal codes (collected
via log in) to track community perceptions by
geographic distribution.

•  External facilitator will help moderate Q+A
sessions between City Staff, developer, and
participants at the end of their presentation.

•  Participants can use the ‘raise your hand’ option
on online meeting platform to comment or ask
questions in turn.

•  Developer will answer specific comments and
questions related to the concept in real-time.

•  The virtual town hall can be recorded and shared
on the City’s project page for those who were not
able to participate during the live presentation.

Survey:

•  City staff will design the project survey to include
questions that will provide a better understanding
of the diverse range of respondents and their
perspectives on the project.

•  City staff will advertise project survey on the City’s
social media platforms (e.g. Facebook, Twitter,
Instagram).

Community QR Code Survey 
Advertisement:

•  City staff will put up posters and advertisement
about the project in locations where residents
shop or visit (e.g., grocery and retail stores,
schools, community centre) and for those who
work in the North Shore but cannot afford to live
here (e.g. bus shelters, SeaBus terminals, hospitals,
fire halls).

•  Posters and advertisement will include a short
description of the project, the project page link,
and a QR code that can be scanned by residents
using their phone cameras. QR codes will direct
residents to a short survey about the pilot project
on the project page with a chance to win a prize
draw (e.g. gift card) at the end.

•  City staff will design the project survey to include
questions that will provide a better understanding
of the diverse range of respondents and their
perspectives on the project.

• Developer will provide gift card for draw.

Digital Posters:

•  City staff will post digital posters, including
concept renderings and infographics, on the City’s
project page to provide information about the
pilot project to the public.

4 Providing postal codes will not be mandatory

MONTH 2



Development Approvals Process Pilot Development Approvals Process Pilot 

STAGE 3: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT ABOUT CONCEPT

STAGE 4: CONCEPT REVISION

Online Forum:

•  City staff will create a moderated forum section
on the City’s project page that allows the public
to submit comments related to their experience
or ask questions of City Staff and the developer
related in Stages 3 to 8.

•  City staff will approve posts that abide by City
guidelines and rules.

•  City staff and developer will post answers to
questions from participants within 2 to 3 business
days.

•  A visual map of where virtual town hall and
engagement participants live can be included on
the project page to show where respondents are
responding from and increase transparency of the
process.

Digital Advertising:

•  City staff will use social media advertisements
and project graphics to promote and boost posts
about the project, the project page, and survey
on all platforms.

Description:

•  Developer will review the feedback received from the public in Stage 3

•  Developer will consider community feedback and incorporate changes
to the project concept while maintaining viability of the proposal. City
staff will also ensure that high-level feedback from Pre-Consultation has
been incorporated into the concept.

Webchat Forum:

•  Developer will set-up a webchat (e.g. Discord,
Slack, etc.) forum to facilitate online discussions
with the public .

•  Participants will sign up for the webchat forum on
the City project page and will be asked to provide
their name, email and postal codes. City staff will
use participant postal codes to track community
perceptions by geographic distribution.

•  Developer will monitor and moderate posts.
Questions will be automatically set to be posted
privately and made public once approved.

•  Developer will reply to comments and questions
from participants within 2 to 3 business days.

•  City staff will participate in the webchat forum
and reply to comments and questions that are
applicable.

•  Webchat forum will abide by general City guidelines
and rules while an external communication channel
hosted by the developer will allow for a more
streamlined process for the developer to participate.

Pop-Up Booths:

•  Due to COVID-19 and its implications, City staff
and developer will be unable to organize pop-up
booths to engage with the public at convenient
locations at this time; however, this could be a viable
option for future projects.

Participants:

• Developer

MONTH 2

MONTH 3



STAGE 5: PROJECT BRIEF AND INITIAL STAFF REVIEW 

STAGE 6: FIRST AND SECOND READINGS

Development Approvals Process Pilot 

Description:

•  Developer will provide a project brief outlining
the proposal that outlines certain parameters (e.g.
density, height, community amenities, etc.)

•  City Staff will review the project brief to ensure
that the major challenges identified in Stage 1 that
could stall the proposal at the application stage
are addressed by the developer

•  City Staff will provide a summary of geographic
representation of engagement participants from
across the City, neighbouring communites, and
beyond, as well as community perceptions by
postal code using findings from Stage 3 to inform
Council’s decision making

•  City Staff will prepare a report back to Council
outlining their recommendation for Council to

Description:

•  City Council will receive the staff report on
recommendations to inform their decision
making

•  City Council will receive the draft zoning bylaw
amendment

•  City Council opts to proceed or reject the
application. If the application proceeds, Council
undertakes the first and second readings and
determines any conditions required to be
resolved prior to adoption.

•  If Council decides at this stage that a public hearing
is not needed, i.e. the proposed project and the
proposed zoning bylaw are consistent with the
OCP and the engagement approach and summary
report of engagement findings is sufficient, then
Council can waive the public hearing.

approve the proposed project subject to certain 
conditions or to reject the proposal until certain 
provisions are met. These could include, but are 
not limited to, review and refinement of the public 
realm and off-site works, further negotiation 
regarding proposed project amenities, and further 
design refinement to address issues and concerns 
identified in previous stages.

•  City Staff will prepare a draft zoning bylaw 
amendment based on the proposed project brief

•  If the public hearing is waived, then the application
proceeds to the next Stage. If the public hearing is
not waived, then a public hearing will be held after
notice is given.

•  City Staff and the applicant work to resolve any
conditions required prior to adoption.

Participants:

• City Staff

•  Developer 

Participants:

• City Staff

• City Council

MONTH 4

MONTH 5



STAGE 7: DETAILED APPLICATION

STAGE 8: THIRD AND FOURTH READINGS

Description:

• If the project concept passes second reading,
then the developer revises the proposal based on
the conditions laid out.

• Developer submits a detailed application to City
Staff for consideration.

• The application is checked by City Staff for
completion to ensure it meets all technical
requirements.

• If the application is complete, it will proceed
forward to the Advisory Design Panel, then to
Council.

Description:

• Staff ensures all proposed amenities and 
commitments are secured through agreements as 
required.

• City Council will undertake 3rd reading. If the
application moves forward, then the final reading
will be undertaken during the same session.

• After final reading, the zoning bylaw amendment
is adopted and the application is approved.

Participants:

• City Staff

• Developer 

Participants:

• City Staff

• City Council

• Developer

Development Approvals Process Pilot 

MONTH 6

MONTH 8



Balanced Housing Lab:  
Alternative Development Approvals Prototype Co-Creation Workshop Summary  

A Co-Creation Workshop was held on April 8, 2021 and convened 14 members of the public, 4 City of North 
Vancouver Staff, 4 representatives of the developer, Cascadia Green, and 5 team members from the facilitating 
consultant, Urban Matters. The purpose of the Co-Creation Workshop was to bring together a group of people, 
representing different groups including local neighbours, residents, local businesses, and members of the Advisory 
Design Panel, to help co-create design elements for a purpose-built rental housing project.  

Presentations 

The workshop began with the following brief presentations:  

• City staff presentation: overview of Balanced Housing Lab, Pilot Process, and regulatory context 
• Facilitator presentation: overview of workshop agenda, format, and intent  
• Developer presentation: site context, constraints, and opportunities  

World Café Discussion 

After brief presentations from City Staff, the facilitator, and the developer, participants were then divided into four 
groups and given four topic areas for world cafe style discussions, which consisted of an icebreaker exercise and 
four roundtable discussions of key development components: 

• Building height, setbacks, and massing 
• Parking, traffic and site access 
• Amenities, public realm and landscaping 
• Other ideas, hopes and concerns.  

Personas exercise 

The workshop walked through an icebreaker exercise. This exercise identified 2-3 personas of households earning 
a moderate to middle-income on the North Shore and experiencing housing issues. Participants were not required 
to adopt the persona for the discussion, but were asked to consider the following questions for about 15 minutes: 

• What parts of the new development are going to be most important to these personas?  
• What concerns or issues might arise from this development?  
• How might this type of development support their own housing issues?  

 

Rountable Discussion 

For each topic area, participants were asked to consider the following questions and use sticky notes on a Mural 
Whiteboard to record their ideas:  

• What must the project achieve? (Not an option; we will fail if these are not present) 
• What should the project achieve? (Degree of option to pursue is present but this is a category of value 

add considerations that sometimes are also the difference between success and failure) 
• What could the project achieve? (Space for innovation.  Not immediately obvious or low hanging fruit 

criteria but offers something of unique value that could really accelerate efforts) 
• What should the project not do? (Defeats the purpose of the project.  Will create more harm than good if 

present) 

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 2�



Participants were also asked to vote for the top four ideas that emerged from the four questions they thought 
were the highest priority from their perspective.  

Discussion Summary  

Themes that emerged from these discussions are summarized below. The total number of votes for each idea 
received are noted in brackets.  

Building Height, Setbacks and Massing 

The top ideas that participants voted as priority were related to increased terracing (11), additional greenspaces 
(6), adequate setbacks (4), and access to lighting for all units (4).  

What must the project 
achieve? 

What should the project 
achieve? 

What could the project 
achieve? 

What should the project not 
do? 

• Adequate setback 
and reduce noise for 
neighbours on the 
west side (4)  

• Greenspace with 
similar feel to the 
park so it fits within 
the community (3)  

• Terracing (e.g., 
podium) (3)  

• Windows with 
natural light for all 
units (4) 

• Landscaping around 
building 

• Mid-rise building (6-
12 floors)  

• Lighting for all sides 
of the building  

• Rooftop garden, 
meeting area, 
gardening space (5)  

• Limited shadowing on 
Victoria park (2) 

• Use terracing to 
minimize shadowing 
(2)  

• Mid-rise building with 
8-11 floors (2) 

• Use concrete (1) 
• Larger floor plate (1) 
• Wide setbacks and/or 

planted setbacks 
• Ensure neighbouring 

units receive lighting 
through windows 

• Move away from flat 
grey concrete blocks 
and use textures that 
absorb heat, look 
good, and allow light 
to pass through  

• Larger setbacks from 
park  

• Terracing with 
different uses and 
amenities to balance 
height and 
landscaping (4) 

• Taller building with 
greenspaces (3) 

• Terrace away from 
shorter building (2) 

• Basement area for 
multi-purposes such 
as workshops, 
commercial kitchen, 
bikeshare, charging 
electric cars (1)  

• Maintain views (1) 
• 10 to 12 storeys (1)  
• Playground in half of 

the lot  
• Unique designs 

 

• Shadow neighbours 
(1) 

• Footprint that 
differs from the 
aesthetics of the 
neighbourhood 

• Be the same height 
as highest 
neighbouring 
building  

• Have the same 
setback as the 
current one on the 
east side of the 616 
Lonsdale Avenue 
low-rise rental.  

• Use wood  
 
 

 
Parking, Traffic and Site Access 

The top ideas that participants voted as priority were related to electric charging stations and parking spots for 
cars and bikes (12), suitable and adequate parking for the needs of residents (9), and increased alternative 
transportation options (6).  

What must the project 
achieve? 

What should the project 
achieve? 

What could the project 
achieve? 

What should the project not 
do? 

• Parking suitable for 
residents (5)  

• Electric charging for 
cars and bikes (5) 

• Rapid EV charging for 
every stall (3)  

• Increase alternative 
transportation 
options and increase 
number of car share 
parking spots (3)  

• Pedestrian walkways 
that would cut 
through the sit (3)  

• E-bike sharing 
program (3)  

• More projects that 
show pro forma 
elements of losing 
parking (2)  

• Lousy security for 
bikes (2) 

• Cut back on parking 
stalls (2) 

• Contractor street-
side parking (1)  

 



• Adequate parking for 
at least 0.8 spaces 
per unit 

• Find alternative areas 
for parking to reduce 
traffic (i.e., City 
Market parking) (1)  

• Increase bike parking 
from 1 to 2 stalls per 
unit to encourage 
people to get out of 
their cars (2)  

• Car share options (1) 
• Bike storage and 

security (1)  
• Developers should 

consider shuttles or 
transit options during 
construction to 
reduce traffic impacts 
on the 
neighbourhood 

• Off-peak construction 
traffic  

• Parking that meets 
the needs of number 
of units (2)  

• Electric bike charging 
(1)  

• Better pick up and 
drop off area (1)  

• Car share options and 
parking (1)  

• Bike parking 
• Car charging station 
• Additional parking 

fees in building (i.e. 
unbundling parking 
from rental, so units 
pay for a stall)  

• Allocate certain units 
to tenants without 
cars 

• Nearby public 
transportation 
options  

• Limit impact to traffic 
during construction    

• Options for 
contractor parking 
not on streets 

• Signal upgrades on 
6th avenue at 
Lonsdale (1)  

• Stricter parking 
requirements  

• Connection between 
E. Keith and 6th 
Avenue with 
pedestrian walkways 
and setbacks  

 
Amenities, Public Realm and Landscaping 

The top ideas that participants voted as priority were related to a desire to see garden spaces and green spaces 
(14), pet wash/bike wash areas (4), car sharing options (3), and different outdoor spaces suited for different age 
groups (3). Participants also indicated some concern about the building shadow that would be cast on Victoria Park 
(3).  

What must the project 
achieve? 

What should the project 
achieve? 

What could the project 
achieve? 

What should the project not 
do? 

• Rooftop gardens with 
storage, water, 
amenities and high 
railings (4) 

• Car sharing (3) 
• Sports gear storage 

(e.g., kayak) (2) 
• Dog wash, car wash 

(2) 
• Combination of 

covered and 
uncovered spaces (2)  

• Net positive impact 
to Victoria Park (1) 

• Building aesthetic 
suitable for the park 
(1) 

• Balconies with 
sufficient space for 
tenants and to create 

• Pet wash, bike wash 
(4) 

• Green spaces, 
garden, BBQ area on 
roof (4) 

• Different outdoor 
spaces suited for 
different age groups 
(3)  

• Garden 
improvements in the 
back (2)  

• Taller building with 
more surrounding 
greenspaces and 
windows (1) 

• Building should 
manage their own 
setbacks and not rely 

• Garden spaces (4)  
• Childcare and spaces 

for children (2)  
• Outdoor play space 

on the roof 
• Library in common 

area 
• Energy efficient 

features (e.g., solar 
panels, automatic 
water shutoffs, 
sensors)  

• Accommodation for 
residents’ parcel 
deliveries  

• Pathway  
• Accessible bike 

entrances  
• Designated car wash 

area 

• Gym (2)  
• Create a shadow on 

Green Necklace (1)  
• Cast shadow on 

Victoria Park (1)  
• Landscaping and 

large trees close to 
building  

• Cast shadow on 
neighbour to the 
west  



a sense of community 
(1)  

• Landscaping all the 
way around the 
building with 
Indigenous plants (1)  

• Hot tub, BBQ 
• Functional amenities  
• Covered outdoor 

space on ground 
level, setback area, 
roof  

 

on greenspaces from 
other lots (1)  

• Common rooftop 
floor (1)  

• Natural gas 
connection for BBQ  

• Common room with 
seating and water 
facilities 

• Car wash station  
• Simple landscaping to 

reduce costs  
• Balconies and 

outdoor spaces for 
each unit  

• More greenspace 
with more height  

• Pathway between 
buildings 

• Washing 
area/washroom in 
common area 

 
Other ideas, hopes, or concerns  

The top ideas that participants voted as priority were related to a desire to see pet friendly units (4), useable 
balconies (4), healthy community living (3), and above ground bike storage (3). Participants also indicated concerns 
of displacing tenants in the 115 E. Keith low-rise rental building (3).  

What must the project 
achieve? 

What should the project 
achieve? 

What could the project 
achieve? 

What should the project not 
do? 

• Pet friendly (e.g., 
flooring) (4) 

• Healthy community 
with outdoor spaces 
for tenants to meet 
(3) 

• Undistinguishable as 
a rental building and 
a home people are 
proud of (1)  

• Adequately sized 
units no smaller than 
current units in 
buildings (1)  

• LEED gold standard 
• Include accessible 

units that are 
affordable for people 
on disability 
assistance (1) 

• Accessibility for aging 
in place (1)  

• Double paned 
windows  

• Maintain community 
and current tenants 

• Right of refusal for 
existing tenants  

• City to require 
adaptable design  

• Use of building 
exterior and useable 
balconies (4)  

• Variety of spaces and 
textures, setbacks, 
and private and semi-
private spaces, (2)  

• Affordable units (1)  
• Set aside units for 

individuals with 
special needs (1)  

• Landscaping and 
greenery  

• Great living spaces  
• Some building 

recesses and culverts 
• Minimize physical 

access barriers  
 

• Bike storage above 
ground (3) 

• Dog park on the 
property (2)  

• Priority given to 
current residents  

• Diversity of tenants 
(e.g., seniors, 
parents)  

• Below market units 
with accessibility 
(e.g., width of 
doorway) (1)  

• Affordability (1)  
• Wash area or service 

area  
• Mass timer or 

passive house design  
• Reduced energy use  

 

• Displace tenants in 
115 E. Keith low-rise 
rental building (3)  

• Become a future 
burden (1)  

• Be unfriendly  
• Have inadequate 

wayfinding and 
slippery surfaces 
(e.g., ICBC building)  



• Include one 
bedrooms with dens  

• Opportunities for 
social connection  

 



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

1 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver 

Development Information Session Summary Report 

 

Event Date:   June 22, 2021 

Time:    6:00pm – 8:00pm 

Location:   Virtual – Zoom Webinar 

Attendance:   19 members of the public signed in  

Comments:  Attendees were advised to provide comments on the City’s website at: 

https://letstalk.cnv.org/  

Meeting Purpose: 1) To present development proposal materials to neighbours 

 2) To provide an opportunity for the public to ask questions about the proposal 

 3) To provide an opportunity for neighbours to comment on the proposal 

 

Notification: 
In accordance with City of North Vancouver policies: 

 

Invitation Brochures 

The City requires invitations to be sent to all households and businesses within 40m of the site. Cascadia Green 

delivered 388 invitations, exceeding the 40m radius in all directions. Invitations were sent to all households 

fully/partially within 100 meters of the development site as well as the project site. Appendix A includes a copy of 

this invitation and a map of the distribution area.  

Newspaper Ad 

A newspaper ad was placed in the North Shore News on Wednesday, June 9, 2021 and Wednesday, June 16, 2021. 

A copy of the ad is included in Appendix A.   

Notification Signs 

Two signs were installed on the property on June 12, 2021 providing two weeks’ notice to neighbours of the 

meeting. One sign was installed on the Keith Rd frontage, and the other was installed on the East 6th Street 

frontage. Photographs of the installed signs are provided in Appendix A.  

Attendance: 
As part of Rezoning process, a Developer Information Session was held on June 22, 2021. Because of the COVID-19 

state of emergency this session was held virtually instead of an in-person session. A Zoom Webinar platform was 

used by Cascadia Green Development to host this session. A Zoom Webinar platform had the option to participate 

the session via computer and via phone with audio. The selected platform allowed the chat to be moderated. 

Participants used a Q&A feature to ask their questions. In order to respect the privacy of the participants, for the 

pre-registration only an email address was required.  

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 3�



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

2 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

31 public members requested to participate in this session in advance and Zoom invitations were sent to them. 

However, 19 public members attended the session. This session was facilitated by Cascadia. All attendees were 

encouraged to participate and share their input on the proposed development.   

The following City staff and project team members were in attendance: 

 Attendees: 19 
 

City of North Vancouver: 

 Emily MacDonald, City Planner 

 Coreen Alexander, City Planner 
 

Project Team: 

 Farzad Mazarei, CEO, Cascadia Green Development 

 Shirazeh Dabiri, Executive Manager, Cascadia Green Development 

 Maryam Lotfi, Development Planner, Cascadia Green Development 

 Saina Ahmadnia, Facilitator, Cascadia Green Development  

 Rhys Leitch, On Behalf of the Project Architect, Integra Architecture 

 Michael Patterson, Landscape Architect, Perry & Associate 

 Victor Ngo, Transportation Planner, WATT Consulting Group 

 Ayda Sahaf, Energy Consultant, Muri Consulting Group 
 
Introduction 
 
The Developer Information Session was started with a brief introduction and a presentation by applicant and a 

facilitated question and answer session. Attendees were encouraged to use “Q&A” feature to ask their question 

during or after the presentation. After the presentation questions were answered in the order they were received. 

The participants were also invited to submit their questions and concerns on the City’s website at: 

https://letstalk.cnv.org/  

The general tone of the session was that there were minimal concerns about the proposed design and most of the 

concern were about tenant relocation. All the comments and questions discussed in the session can be categorized 

in six topic areas as below: 

 Tenant Relocation 

 Balanced Housing Lab and Co-Creation Workshop 

 Affordability 

 Community Amenity Contribution 

 Transportation 

 Project Design 
 

Questions and answers discussed in each category is discussed below. 

Tenant Relocation 

Tenants at the DIS were questioning the mechanism that Cascadia would use to select tenants for the proposed 

mid-market units. They were asking about the project timeline, additional compensation, moving cost support, 

market rent price, rent-to-own and Affordable Homeownership Program (AHOP) units.  



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

3 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

Tenants were concerned about being relocated not within the City of North Vancouver.   

The City of North Vancouver Tenant Relocation Policy was discussed with the tenants and their rights and 

compensation were explained to them. It was discussed with the participants that there is four-month notice and 

three-month rent compensation. It was explained that Cascadia will follow the City of North Vancouver policies 

and requirements regarding the relocation. It was explained to the attendees that Pacific Asset Management 

Corporation (PAMC) is the Property Manager hired by Cascadia Green Development to manage the 115 East Keith 

Road relocation process as well. It was discussed that PAMC has access to a broad portfolio of rental residential 

buildings and would assist tenants to find a place in the City of North Vancouver.  

Three days after the DIS, on June 25th, a package including the B.C. Residential Tenancy Guidelines, the City of 

North Vancouver Residential Tenant Displacement Policy, and the Cascadia Green Development compensation 

package was distributed to all the tenants to make sure they were aware of their rights and compensation they 

would receive. Compensation proposed to them at that time included three-month rent, as well as $1000 cash 

toward the moving cost. It was discussed that they do not need to wait to receive the Notification letter to receive 

the compensation. If they wish to move before the four-month notice, they will still be supported to find a place as 

well as receiving the compensation.   

At the DIS, it was explained that tenants would have the first right of refusal for the mid-market and market units 

in the new building. It was explained to them that if more than 8 tenants want to move into these units, then the 

units will be distributed according to the demonstration of the greatest need. Selection of those in greatest need 

will be according to the judgement of Cascadia Green Development. Mid-market rents and market rents were 

discussed with the participants. It was explained to the tenants that the mid-market rents are relatively low. A 

table demonstrating an estimated rent for mid-market units by unit type was presented to the participants. The 

resource for this piece of information was CMHC Rental Market Report, 2020. An estimated market rent for a one-

bedroom unit in a new building was discussed with the tenants as well. It was discussed that we would consider 

that our projects and initiatives are only a small part of the holistic situation. Paying the existing rent for a brand-

new suite with the same area and number of units requires substantial support from government bodies.   

It was discussed with the attendees that Cascadia has other affordable initiatives including rent-to-own and 

Affordable Home Ownership program in their East Third project. Also, Cascadia’s other rental project AXIR was 

mentioned to the participants.  

Balanced Housing Lab and Co-Creation Workshop 

There were some questions and concerns raised in the DIS around Balanced Housing Lab. Some of the attendees 

were interested to know what the Balanced Housing Lab is, what has it accomplished so far, how Cascadia Green 

Development was selected for this pilot project, how people were selected to the Co-Creation workshop, including 

why only one tenant was invited to the Co-Creation workshop. Also, a question was raised asking to see if the 

intention of this pilot project is to increase the rental supply or to also get the supply faster to the market to help 

with the rising price control. 

Coreen Alexander from the City of North Vancouver responded to these questions. Definition of BHL was explained 

to participants. It was discussed that four lab workshops have been held, and currently the City and the BHL are 

testing new ideas on an alternative approval process on this pilot project. Attendees were encouraged to visit the 

BHL’s website for further information. Regarding how Cascadia was selected for this pilot project, it was explained 

that CNV recently posted an Expression of Interest (EOI) for “Development Approvals Process” as part of the BHL 

project. The intent of this EOI was to determine the range and level of interest in participating in the Development 



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

4 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

Approvals Pilot process. Interested parties were invited to submit a response to this EOI. Cascadia Green 

Development submitted a proposal and got selected. It was mentioned that all the details and notification are 

located on City’s website under Bid Notices: www.cnv.org/city-services/bid-notices.  

Regarding concerns around the Co-Creation workshop, it was explained that invitations were sent to the residents 

of the building and neighbours. The City looked for 1-2 representatives per building. It was emphasized that the 

City is collecting feedback on the process. There is always an opportunity to provide feedback outside of the Co-

Creation workshop. 

It was discussed that the City always likes to proceed with projects as fast as reasonably possible. 

Affordability 

Questions in this category were about the definition for affordability, normal vacancy rate, and how mid-market 

units can create affordable rentals in the City. The Definition of the affordability by CMHC was explained to the 

attendees. It was mentioned that a 3% to 4% vacancy rate would be considered a healthy vacancy rate that 

tenants will have sufficient options and rents can be held at a reasonable level. The number of proposed mid-

market units in the new building was discussed with tenants and explained that that this number is based on the 

City’s requirement. Mid-market rent for various unit types was shown to participants based on the CMHC 2020 

data, and explained that we would consider that our projects and initiatives are only a small part of the holistic 

solution.  

Community Amenity Contribution 

One question was raised if Cascadia Green Development is paying any CAC for this project. The answer was that 

rental developments are exempt from a CAC.  

Transportation 

One of the attendees was interested to know about a Traffic Demand Management plan. It was explained to 

attendees that a transportation demand management (TDM) refers to policies, programs, and services that 

influence why, when, where, and how people travel. TDM measures can be applied to reduce vehicle ownership 

among building residents by supporting them to walk, roll, cycle, or take transit instead of driving. This can help 

reduce the amount of vehicle parking required on-site. It was mentioned that a TDM and a transportation study 

have been submitted to the City for this project.  

Project Design 

Below is the explanation of the questions raised in the DIS regarding the proposed design and specification of the 

project. People were asking about unit types, deconstruction of the building, and the structure of the building. 

There were questions about the proposed height and shadow of the building, number of secured bike space, high 

performance windows and materials, installation of the solar panels on the roof, flood concerns, accessibility, 

parking space for electrical cars, tree removal, demolition and construction dates, water issues challenges, and the 

rooftop amenity area.  

Regarding the unit type it was discussed in the session that the proposed unit mix is based on the market demand, 

City’s demography, and the location of the project. It was discussed that the project follows the City’s requirement 

of 10% of the units to be 3-bedroom units. Also, it was explained to the attendees that more than quarter of the 

proposed units are family-friendly units (mix of 2-bedroom units and 3-bedroom units). It should be mentioned 



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

5 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

that there were also some support for the smaller units as they would be more affordable. It was clarified in the 

session the proposed number of the secured bike spaces are meeting the City’s requirement. It was clarified that 

Cascadia will provide EV roughed-in services for 100% of the parking spaces. Regarding the questions about 

installing solar panels on the roof, Cascadia provided information that based on previous solar panels studies, it 

would not be efficient in Vancouver’s weather. Although Cascadia always take further steps to make their projects 

energy efficient, solar panels would not be one of their options. It was explained to the attendees that the Level 1 

has been raised about 3 feet for flood concerns as well as to provide adequate natural light to units located on 

Ground Level.  

It was discussed that every building in the City of North Vancouver is required to be accessible to all. An accessible 

ramp is provided on the north side of the site where the main entrance is. Also, 25% of the total units will be 

Adaptable Level 2 units as per the City of North Vancouver requirement. There are also 3 accessible parking spaces 

included in the parkade. It was clarified that the building will be a 6-storey building from the Keith Rd, and a 7-

storey building from the East 6th St. A shadow study was presented to the attendees and explained how the 

proposed project’s shadow cast on Victoria is very minimal compared to the project’s adjacent neighbour to the 

east side. It was discussed that rooftop amenity area’s closing time, as well as non-smoking requirements will be in 

compliance with the City’s requirement. It was clarified that there will be tree removal on the site. However, an 

arborist report has been submitted to the City for this project and all architectural and landscape designs are 

compatible with the arborist report for this project. It was explained in the session that the building will be most 

probably two levels concrete and the rest wood frame. It was discussed that if the project gets approved, we are 

still about one year away from our construction activity. It was clarified that proposed design will go through a 

rigorous design process with the City to ensure past problems will not resurface.  

Conclusion 

The purpose of this public information meeting was to present to neighbours the proposed rezoning application, 

and to provide them with an opportunity to ask questions and comments on the proposal. 388 invitations were 

distributed to the surrounding community, and 19 community members signed in to participate at the virtual 

session. Two newspaper ads notified the community of the meeting, and two signs were posted on the property. 

Per the City’s request no comment sheet was sent to participants. Instead, they were encouraged to write on the 

City’s website at: https://letstalk.cnv.org/  

The public could participate in this process in several ways: 

 Using the Q&A feature to raise their questions to the project team and CNV Planners  

 Watching a presentation 

 Participating in a facilitated question and answer period 

 Writing on the City’s website at https://letstalk.cnv.org/  
 

The meeting length and format was sufficient to provide all participants an opportunity to learn more, ask 

questions, and make the comments they wished to provide that evening. Participants asked the development 

team a variety of questions. Concerns were mostly related to tenant relocation process. The community was given 

ample opportunity to express their views of the proposal.  

The proposed design was supported by the participants. They were supporting the rooftop amenity area, height, 

and shadow cast of the project. They were supporting that the proposed design is providing sufficient secured bike 

space.  



 

                                                                                                                                                      
 

6 115 East Keith Road, North Vancouver – Developer Information Session Report 

Existing tenants expressed concern over finding alternative, affordable rental accommodations in the 

neighbourhood, and Cascadia Green indicated a willingness to help them. In order to assure the current tenants 

that Cascadia will support them through the process three days after the DIS, on June 25th, a package including 

the B.C. Residential Tenancy Guidelines, the City of North Vancouver Residential Tenant Displacement Policy, and 

the Cascadia Green Development compensation package was distributed to all the tenants. Cascadia wanted to 

make sure tenants were aware of their rights and compensation they would receive. Since then, recently, 

Cascadia’s Tenant Relocation Plan has been updated. Cascadia will be updating the tenants regarding their 

updated compensation package. 

  



Development Application
for 115 East Keith Road -
Survey

SURVEY RESPONSE REPORT
16 September 2019 - 05 July 2021

PROJECT NAME:
Development Approval Process Pilot: 115 East Keith Road

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 4�



SURVEY QUESTIONS

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 1 of 5



Q1  What is your overall position on the application:

22 (66.7%)

22 (66.7%)3 (9.1%)

3 (9.1%)

7 (21.2%)

7 (21.2%) 1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

Support Mixed Oppose Don't Know

Question options

Mandatory Question (33 response(s))
Question type: Radio Button Question

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 2 of 5



Q2  Please select your age range.

10 (30.3%)

10 (30.3%)

10 (30.3%)

10 (30.3%)

8 (24.2%)

8 (24.2%)

4 (12.1%)

4 (12.1%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
0 (0.0%)

0 (0.0%)

19-34 35-44 45-64 65 + Prefer not to say under 19

Question options

Optional question (33 response(s), 0 skipped)
Question type: Radio Button Question

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 3 of 5



Q3  Which of the following best describes you:

17 (51.5%)

17 (51.5%)

6 (18.2%)

6 (18.2%)

9 (27.3%)

9 (27.3%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

I live in the City of North Vancouver I work in the City of North Vancouver I live AND work in the City of North Vancouver

None of the above

Question options

Mandatory Question (33 response(s))
Question type: Radio Button Question

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 4 of 5



Q4  Postal Code

5 (15.2%)

5 (15.2%)

3 (9.1%)

3 (9.1%)

2 (6.1%)

2 (6.1%)

2 (6.1%)

2 (6.1%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)
1 (3.0%)

1 (3.0%)

North Vancouver, BC, V7L1V1 North Vancouver, BC, V7N3Z4 North Vancouver, BC, V7M2V7

North Vancouver, BC, V7P3E3 North Vancouver, BC, V7L1V4 North Vancouver, BC, V7M2B6

North Vancouver, BC, V7K1R9 North Vancouver, BC, V7M1W6 North Vancouver, BC, V7L4N9

North Vancouver, BC, V7M3M2 North Vancouver, BC, V7M1P3 North Vancouver, BC, V7M2G8

North Vancouver, BC, V7M0A6 North Vancouver, BC, V7L1P1 North Vancouver, BC, V7P1S3

North Vancouver, BC, V7L2Z3 North Vancouver, BC, V7P0A1 Vancouver, BC, V6Z0E3

North Vancouver, BC, V7G1P8 Vancouver, BC, V6B1T7 North Vancouver, BC, V7K2M2

North Vancouver, BC, V7L0B2 West Vancouver, BC, V7T2H5 North Vancouver, BC, V7L1H7

North Vancouver, BC, V7N2T3

Question options

Mandatory Question (33 response(s))
Question type: Region Question

Development Application for 115 East Keith Road - Survey : Survey Report for 16 September 2019 to 05 July 2021

Page 5 of 5



Development Application for 115 East Keith Road: Community Feedback  
 
Please share your comments on the proposed development for 115 East Keith Road. 
 

• This is a seven story rental building. The lobby entrance off E Keith goes onto the 2nd 
floor. There seem to be too many "junior" one bedroom / bachelor units with poor 
layout - not much actual living space. 

 
• I am opposing this development because it fails to include truly affordable options for 

seniors, pensioners, people with mental health issues, and most importantly exorbitant 
proposed rents for multiple-person family units. 

 
• Sad/Shocked & Stressed I have to move in this tight expensive housing market on the 

North Shore after living here for 13 & half years. 
 

• The proposed project will lead to the eviction from their home community of 23 
households who cannot afford market rentals and will thus not be able to stay in their 
home community of North Vancouver. Only 8 midmarket suites will be offered to 
residents despite the 23 suites evicted. The suites are also much smaller than their 
current residence. This is insufficient and not creating affordable housing, but rather, 
taking a great number of affordable rentals away and dismantling a community of 
residents who have lived there for 10 to 43 years. There is no planned meaningful 
monetary compensation for the years of hardship to come for the current residents who 
are kicked out. This project, as laid out currently, does not address the current needs of 
the residents of North Vancouver nor creates more affordable housing, despite its 
claims. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 Document: 2082819-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8877 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877” (Victoria Park (Denna Homes) Gp Ltd. / Integra 
Architecture Inc., 115 East Keith Road, CD-741). 

 
2. Division VI: Zoning Map of Document “A” of “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby 

amended by reclassifying the following lots as henceforth being transferred, added to and 
forming part of CD-741 (Comprehensive Development 741 Zone): 

 
 Lots  Block D.L. Plan 
 
 A (Reference Plan 9816) 114 274 878 from RH-1 
 
3. Part 11 of Division V:  Comprehensive Development Regulations of Document “A” of “Zoning 

Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” is hereby amended by: 
 

A. Adding the following section to Section 1100, thereof, after the designation “CD-740 
Comprehensive Development 740 Zone”: 

 
“CD-741 Comprehensive Development 741 Zone” 

 
B. Adding the following to Section 1101, thereof, after the “CD-740 Comprehensive 

Development 740 Zone”: 
 

“CD-741 Comprehensive Development 741 Zone” 
 

In the CD-741 Zone, permitted Uses, regulations for permitted Uses, regulations for 
the size, shape and siting of Buildings and Structures and required Off-Street Parking 
shall be as in the 741 Zone, except that: 

 
(1) The permitted Principal Use on the Lot shall be limited to: 

 
(a) Rental Apartment Residential Use; 

 
(2) Gross Floor Area 

 
(a) The maximum Gross Floor Area is 2.6 Floor Space Ratio (FSR); 
 
(b) Notwithstanding (2)(a), the Gross Floor Area may be increased as follows: 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 2 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 Document: 2082819-v1 

ADDITIONAL (BONUS) DENSITY 
ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
CATEGORY 

DESCRIPTION ADDITIONAL 
DENSITY 
(BONUS) 

POLICY 
REFERENCE 

Rental Housing 100 percent 
secured rental 
apartment units 
with a minimum 
of 10 percent of 
the units being 
mid-market 
 

Maximum 910.2 
square metres 
(9797.9 square 
feet) 

As per OCP 
Policy Section 
2.2.1 

 
 Such that the total effective on-site Gross Floor Area is not to exceed 3.3 

FSR; 
 

(3) Lot Coverage 
 

The Principal Building shall not exceed a Lot Coverage of 65 percent; 
 

(4) Section 510(3), Building Width and Length, shall be waived; 
 
(5) Siting 
 

Sections 513(4) and 513(5) shall be waived and the Principal Building shall be 
sited not less than: 
 
(a) 4.57 metres (15 feet) from a front or rear property line; 
 
(b) 3.20 metres (10.5 feet) from the west property line; 
 
(c) 3.05 metres (10 feet) from the east property line; 

 
(6) Off-Street Parking and Short-Term and Secure Bicycle Parking shall be provided 

in conformity with the requirements of Division IV, Parts 9, and 10A, except that: 
 

(a) The total number of required vehicle parking spaces may be reduced by 
two, of which, a reduction of up to one visitor parking space may be 
permitted; 

 
(b) Notwithstanding Section (5)(a), the required disability parking shall be 

calculated as per Section 908(11) and may not be reduced; 
 

(7) A building constructed on the lot shall achieve an energy efficiency of Step 3 or 
better, subject to Section 419; 

 
(8) Unit mix within the Rental Apartment Residential Use shall include a minimum 

10 percent of three-bedroom or larger units; 
 

  



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 3 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8877 Document: 2082819-v1 

(9) All exterior finishes, design and landscaping shall be approved by the Advisory 
Design Panel.  

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



ff
Department
Manager

Director CAO

The Corporation of THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

REPORT

To: Mayor Linda Buchanan and Members of Council

From: Bram van der Heijden, Planner 1

Subject: ROOFTOP ANTENNA DEVELOPMENT PERMIT GUIDELINES AND
ZONING BYLAW UPDATE

Date: October 6,2021 File No: 09-3900-30-0004/1

|_________The following is a suggested recommendation only. Refer to Council Minutes for adopted resolution.__________|

RECOMMENDATION

PURSUANT to the report of the Planner 1, dated October 6, 2021, entitled 
“Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update”:

THAT “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8882”
(Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems)” be considered and referred to a Public 
Hearing;

AND THAT notification be circulated in accordance with the Local Government 
Act.

ATTACHMENTS

1. 2021 Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines (CityDocs 2082816)
2. 2017 Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines (CityDocs 1563008)
3. Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in Developing Antenna System Siting Protocols 

(CityDocs 2097687)
4. Client Procedures Circular Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems 

(CityDocs 2097684)
5. Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8882” (Third Party 

Rooftop Antenna Systems) (CityDocs 2091175)

Document Number: 2095262 V5



REPORT: Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update
Date: October 6, 2021

PURPOSE

This report outlines an update to the existing Rooftop Antenna Development Permit 
Guidelines (the “Guidelines”) and a Bylaw amendment to the City’s Zoning Bylaw. The 
Zoning Bylaw amendment would remove any height restriction from the City’s Zoning 
Bylaw and would also bring into effect the updated Guidelines to guide the design and 
siting of Development Permit Applications (DPAs).

BACKGROUND

Over the last three decades, cellular communication infrastructure has become an 
essential part of daily life. The cellphone/wireless industry continues to expand rapidly, 
putting pressure on existing communications infrastructure. As data demand increases 
and more wireless spectrum becomes available to a greater number of carriers, the 
demand for additional cellular infrastructure including rooftop antennas will increase as 
well.

Regulatory Framework
Cellular Infrastructure is regulated in the federal Radiocommunication Act. Additionally, 
Safety Code 6: Health Canada's Radiofrequency Exposure Guidelines regulates the 
health and safety considerations of cell sites. Innovation, Science and Economic 
Development Canada (ISED) is the regulating body administering antenna installations.

Because cellular infrastructure is regulated federally, the opportunities for local 
government to influence siting and design of antennas are somewhat limited. The City’s 
role in approving cellular infrastructure lies in ensuring land use and neighbourly 
compatibility.

It should be noted, under the Radiocommunication Act, public engagement, including 
engagement with local governments, is only required for larger cellphone towers, 
meaning that engagement with local governments for rooftop installations is not 
necessarily required (Attachments #3 and #4). Nevertheless, it is considered best 
practice for proponents to engage local governments. A permit from local government is 
not required under the act.

DISCUSSION

Current City Approval Process
In 2012, the Wireless Communication Design and Consultation Policy was adopted by 
Council to guide the design and consultation process for all cell site developments. A 
DPA, administered by staff, is required to install such devices.

In 2017, the City’s Zoning Bylaw was amended to allow rooftop antennas to project 
beyond a roof or mechanical penthouse, up to a maximum of 1.22 metres (4.0 feet). At 
the same time, the current Guidelines were adopted (Attachment #2). The goal of 
adopting the Guidelines was to provide a formalized process to address concerns about 
private property rooftop installations while ensuring a streamlined approval process.

Page 2 of 7



REPORT: Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update
Date: October 6, 2021

However, Rooftop Antenna Installations (Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems) in the 
City frequently involve an additional layer of complexity as these installations for 
commercial purposes were not exempted from height calculation in the City’s Zoning 
Bylaw. Most of the existing tall buildings in the City have been constructed to the 
maximum heights permitted in the Zoning Bylaw, often through a site-specific rezoning. 
This situation leads to Development Variance Permits (DVPs) being required for any 
rooftop antenna systems. The approval authority for a DVP rests with Mayor and 
Council.

The current Guidelines and height restrictions in the Zoning Bylaw no longer reflect 
most technological advances in use today; moreover, the current Guidelines do not 
provide adequate guidance or support for the best design outcomes.

At this time, there are two instream Rooftop Antenna applications that cannot comply 
with the current Bylaw and Guidelines, and no development permits for Rooftop 
Antenna Installations have been issued without a variance since the adoption of the 
2017 DP Guidelines. Effectively, the changes made in 2017 have not resulted in the 
envisioned streamlined process as DVPs are still required to permit rooftop antennas on 
buildings.

On October 7th 2020, City Council adopted the following resolution:

THAT staff be directed to review the Rooftop Antenna Development Permit 
Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw with regard to requirements for Third Party Rooftop 
Antennas and prepare revisions to the Development Permit Guidelines and 
prepare a Zoning Bylaw text amendment for Council’s consideration.

Challenges with Existing Guidelines
There are three main issues that hinder 
the development of rooftop antennas in 
the current Bylaw and Guidelines.

• Inadequate Height
The Zoning Bylaw and Guidelines 
require that Rooftop antennas do 
not extend further than 1.22 
metres (4.0 feet) above the 
maximum building height. Rooftop 
antennas are substantially higher 
than the specified height.
Therefore, it is not possible to 
comply with this requirement.
(Figure 1).

Figure 1 issues caused by height and setback requirements

Page 3 of 7



REPORT: Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update
Date: October 6, 2021

• Setback Requirements
Safety Code 6 outlines maximum exposure allowances, Setback requirements 
specified in the current Guidelines often make it impossible to meet these 
requirements, unless the Antenna is placed higher. Additionally, the setback can 
severely reduce the effectiveness of rooftop antennas, rendering some Rooftop 
Antenna Installation projects unfeasible (Figure 1). For these reasons it is better 
to allow antennas to be placed at the roof edge.

• Design Considerations
The maximum width of antennas specified in the current Guidelines is narrower 
than that of most antennas currently in production, making it impossible to 
comply with this requirement

Some of these issues have been exacerbated by technical advancement. For instance, 
antennas have become larger and safety requirements have become stricter. 
Additionally, technical site specific antenna placement requirements can make it even 
more challenging to comply with the current guidelines.

The current Development Permit Guidelines require proponents of Rooftop Antenna 
Installations to notify area residents. However, during the stakeholder engagement for 
this project, it became clear it is uncommon for municipalities to require proponents to 
notify area residents. The main reason being that by notifying area residents, residents 
may get false expectations of how their concerns will be taken into consideration. Since 
municipalities can only comment on the design quality and visual impact of rooftop 
antenna installations, it is challenging to adequately address concerns from residents, 
especially concerns related to topics such as health and safety, effect on property value 
or any other aspects the federal government has explicitly excluded from engagement 
procedures for cellular Infrastructure.

The revised Guidelines have been carefully written to address concerns we have heard, 
and expect to hear, from residents regarding the visual impact of rooftop antennas. 
While public response to future antenna installations will be considered and will be used 
to inform any future revisions to the Guidelines, consultation for each proposed 
installation is not common practice and is not recommended, for the reasons noted 
above.

Proposed New Guidelines
The Proposed new DP guidelines are written to provide a broad toolkit to accommodate 
a wide range of scenarios while ensuring rooftop antennas are installed in a desirable 
manner. Additionally, the Director, Planning and Development will have the discretion to 
consider alternative solutions if certain guidelines cannot be achieved.

In contrast to the current DP Guidelines, no height restrictions, setback requirements or 
any specific measurements of Rooftop Antenna Installations are included since these 
kinds of requirements may result in issues similar to those associated with the current 
DP Guidelines. Instead, the proposed DP Guidelines provide:

Page 4 of 7



REPORT: Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update
Date: October 6, 2021

• Guidance consistent with the OCP regarding site selection;
• Direction to ensure the effect on the public realm is minimized;
• General design considerations to ensure Antennas are installed in an orderly 

manner and in a way that complements the building massing and materiality, 
and;

• Design standards for a variety of common scenarios.

Through the proposed guidelines, a high standard of design can be achieved while 
ensuring a wide range of Rooftop Antenna Development Scenarios can be 
accommodated now and in the future. With flexibility for site-specific considerations built 
into the Guidelines, it is unlikely that any applications would have to be referred to 
Council for a Development Variances Permit, thus ensuring a streamlined approval 
process.

Another change in the process is the elimination of neighbourhood notification, given 
that a City permit is not required and the City has limited discretionary authority. The 
removal of the notification requirement would align the City’s review process with most 
municipalities in Canada.

Additionally, the Development Planning team is exploring ways to connect developers of 
proposed buildings with wireless carriers early on. By doing so, there is an opportunity 
to ensure Rooftop Antennas are integrated within the building design. This approach will 
allow for the installation of infrastructure during construction of the building without the 
need for additional work once the building is already completed.

Stakeholder Engagement
As part of the Rooftop Antenna Update, two stakeholder engagement sessions were 
conducted. Stakeholders from Cypress Land Services, a planning consulting firm that 
specializes in cellular infrastructure, and stakeholders from the wireless carriers 
Freedom Mobile, Rogers and TELUS were present. The aim of the stakeholder 
consultation was to gain a fulsome understanding about:

• the technical requirements of Rooftop Cell Sites,
• trends in cellular infrastructure,
• what cellular infrastructure industry professionals foresee will need to be installed 

in the City of North Vancouver and
• their view on the direction of the Rooftop Antenna Guidelines.

In these sessions it became evident that in order to achieve the required network 
coverage and comply with safety code 6, the siting of Rooftop Antennas is dependent 
on site specific considerations and that it can be challenging to comply with all 
guidelines due to technical requirements or due to regulations in Safety Code 6. Height 
restrictions and setback requirements are especially challenging. For this reason it is 
better to have guidelines that focus on the orderly installation of rooftop antennas and 
provide a degree of discretion. Additionally, concerns were raised regarding the current 
requirement to notify area residents as this is typically not required by municipalities.

Page 5 of 7



REPORT: Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update
Date: October 6, 2021

The feedback from the stakeholders has been used to inform the proposed new Rooftop 
Antenna Guidelines. By doing so, The proposed Guidelines provide a framework to 
achieve rooftop antenna installations that are well integrated with buildings without 
causing significant challenges that would conflict with technical requirements to achieve 
network coverage, and federal requirements (Safety Code 6)

In addition to the information regarding Rooftop Antenna Installations, staff acquired 
valuable insights in the future of cellular infrastructure at street level. This included the 
installation of small cell sites (small local antennas for extra capacity) and how local 
governments can respond to these, for instance, by integrating them in new bus stops 
or utility poles. These insights were communicated to the Engineering department. 
Currently some interest has been expressed to install small cell sites in the City, but no 
specific applications for small sites have been submitted. The City does have policies in 
place to accommodate this infrastructure and can work with carriers to roll this kind of 
infrastructure out when required.

Advisory Body Input
The City’s Advisory Design Panel reviewed the draft guidelines and regularly moved 
and seconded:

THAT the Advisory Design Panel has reviewed and considered the overview of 
changes to the Rooftop Antennas Design Guidelines and recommends approval 
subject to addressing the following issues to the satisfaction of the Director of 
Planning:

Proposed Guidelines should emphasize the importance of creating a high- 
quality public realm and should guide the design of Rooftop Antenna 
installations to mitigate potential visual impacts within the public realm;

AND THAT the Panel wishes to thank staff for their presentation.

Carried Unanimously

STRATEGIC PLAN, OCR OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The proposed approach supports the goals and objectives of the Official Community 
Plan including the provision of basic services that contribute to the social and economic 
wellbeing of the community; and by mitigating potential localized impacts through 
design reviews and specifying preferred locations of cellular infrastructure. This 
approach also supports the City's Strategic Plan goals to enhance community wellbeing 
while balancing the economic and social needs of the community.

CONCLUSION

The proposed Development Permit Guidelines will lead to rooftop antenna systems that 
are well integrated with buildings, minimizing visual impacts, all through a relatively 
simple process that does not require Council consideration. At the same time the

Page 6 of 7



REPORT: Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines and Zoning Bylaw Update
Date: October 6, 2021

Zoning bylaw requirements and the development Permit Guidelines will be better 
aligned with the federal policy framework that regulate such installations to avoid conflict 
with federal regulations.

The new guidelines are designed to be achievable, allow for discretion, be mindful of 
changing requirements of future technology; and be able to accommodate site specific 
consideration within the review criteria. Moreover, over time, the community (residents 
and businesses alike) will benefit from a cellular network that is faster and more reliable 
as a result.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Planner 1

Page 7 of 7



 
 

 
  

Updated October 2021 

Rooftop Antenna 
Development Permit Guidelines 

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 1�



 

 
 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 

 

Contents 
Part I – General Regulations ........................................................................................... 3 

1. Introduction....................................................................................................... 3 

2. Intent and Use of The Guidelines ....................................................................... 4 

3. Exemptions ........................................................................................................ 4 

4. Regulatory Framework and authority ................................................................ 4 

5. Approval Process ............................................................................................... 5 

Part II - Design Guidelines .............................................................................................. 6 

6. General Considerations ..................................................................................... 6 

7. Standard of design ............................................................................................. 7 

 

  



 

 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 

 

Part I – General Regulations 
1. Introduction 

These guidelines apply to development applications for “third party rooftop antenna system” 
installations in the City of North Vancouver. The City of North Vancouver recognizes that cellular 
communication infrastructure is imperative in the lives of residents and in the functioning of 
businesses operating in the City.  The cellphone/wireless industry continues to expand rapidly, 
putting pressure on existing communications infrastructure; as data demand increases and more 
wireless spectrum becomes available to a greater number of carriers, the increase of towers and 
rooftop antennas and new technology is inevitable. These guidelines serve to provide a 
comprehensive understanding of the City of North Vancouver’s expectations regarding siting and 
the quality of design of rooftop antenna installations. 
 
A City policy for design and consultation on other wireless communication forms (e.g. tower and 
utility pole installations) exists separately, in Council Policy 6: Wireless Communication Design and 
Consultation Policy (adopted November 20, 2017). 
 
 

  



 

 
 

Page 4 of 10 
 

 

2. Intent and Use of the Guidelines 
These guidelines are intended to provide a framework to ensure rooftop cell sites are installed in 
a desirable manner and ensure the impact on the public realm is minimized as much as possible. 
The proponent of a rooftop antenna installation should comply with the guidelines where 
possible. 
 
If, due to technical constraints, certain aspects of the Rooftop Antenna Development Permit 
Guidelines cannot be achieved: 

• A suitable alternative proposal should be provided, reflecting the intent of the guidelines; 
• If satisfactory, the Director of Planning may provide a relaxation to any of the guidelines to 

accommodate the alternative proposal.  
 

3. Exemptions 
Installations to facilitate emergency service providers such as police, fire, ambulance and search 
and rescue services are exempt from the DPA guidelines.  
 

4. Regulatory Framework and authority 
Section 488 of the Local Government Act (LGA) gives local governments in BC the authority to 
establish development permit areas and their associated guidelines to address issues such as the 
form and character of commercial, industrial or multifamily residential development.  
 
The City’s 2014 Official Community Plan establishes development permit areas (DPA) for rooftop 
antennas to identify specific land use categories in the city where third party rooftop antenna 
systems should be located, subject to compliance with these DPA guidelines and other applicable 
city permit requirements. The DPA guidelines work in conjunction with the Zoning Bylaw 1995, 
No. 6700 to provide a building height exemption for rooftop antennas and associated screening 
structures. 
 
The City of North Vancouver recognizes that Innovation, Science and Economic Development 
Canada (ISED) regulates the location and installation of antenna systems, including masts, towers, 
and other antenna-supporting structures under the Radiocommunication Act and that the 
engagement of carriers with the City regarding Rooftop Antenna Installations is voluntary. The 



 

 
 

Page 5 of 10 
 

 

City also recognizes that ISED refers to Safety Code 6 as the standard to which wireless facilities 
are held and that the health and safety of wireless facilities in their many forms are under the 
jurisdiction of Health Canada. It is the applicant’s responsibility to ensure compliance with Safety 
Code 6 guidelines for the protection of the general public.  
 

5. Approval Process 
All sites need approval of the land owner, whether public or private. In the case of a strata 
corporation, a letter from the strata council agreeing to the installation is required. 
A. Pre-Application Meeting 

To facilitate a preliminary discussion about the proposed Rooftop Antenna installation. 
B. Preliminary revision 

To address concerns raised during the reapplication process. 
C. Application submission 
D. Staff design review 
E. Final revision  
F. Development Permit issuance and registration at Land Titles 
G.   Building and Electrical permit (as required) 
H. Removal (or upgraded replacement) of obsolete equipment 
I. Installation of Rooftop Antennas 

 
5.1.  Submission Requirements 
Each application for a development permit for rooftop antennas should be accompanied by 
relevant development information in the form prescribed by the city. This information includes, 
but is not limited to: 

5.1.1. Plans to demonstrate the location of the proposed building site in context; 
5.1.2. Plans to demonstrate the location of the proposed installation including equipment 

dimensions; 
5.1.3. Plans to demonstrate the location and type of existing rooftop antenna structures and 

associated equipment currently located on the building by any provider;  
5.1.4. Plans for screening, painting, or other measures to blend into the existing building.   

  



 

 
 

Page 6 of 10 
 

 

Part II - Design Guidelines 
6. General Considerations 

6.1.  Site Selection 
6.1.1. Third party rooftop antennas are preferred in Residential Levels 5 and 6, Mixed-Use, 

Commercial, Industrial, and Mixed Employment designated lands as identified on 
Schedule A in Appendix 1.0 in the 2014 Official Community Plan, and are discouraged 
from locating on buildings near schools, institutions or on buildings in lower density 
residential areas. 

6.1.2. Third party rooftop antenna systems should be located on buildings not less than three 
storeys above grade;  

6.1.3. Third party rooftop antenna systems should not impede maintenance and building 
operations, this may include but is not limited to access to mechanical installations and 
facade maintenance systems; 

6.1.4. Third party rooftop antenna systems should not impede access to nor diminish the quality 
of rooftop amenities such as playgrounds, roof decks and urban agriculture;  

6.1.5. Third party rooftop antenna systems should not be installed on sloped roofs. 
 

6.2.  Design considerations 
6.2.1. The visual impact of third party rooftop antenna systems should be minimized to reduce 

visual impact and clutter;  
6.2.2. The visual impact on the public realm should be considered and should be minimized as 

much as possible. 
6.2.3. The height of third party rooftop antennas should be minimized as much as possible; 
6.2.4. Equipment cabinets and cable raceways included in the third party rooftop antenna 

system should be internal to the building, and, where external installations cannot be 
avoided, should be oriented for minimum visibility and treated with materials and colours 
similar to the building.  

  



 

 
 

Page 7 of 10 
 

 

7. Standard of design 

7.1.  Unscreened third party rooftop antennas 
7.1.1. Unscreened third party rooftop antennas should not be located within 30.48 metres (100 

feet) of neighbouring residential dwelling units. 
7.1.2. Unscreened third party rooftop antennas should only be located on the highest roof and 

mechanical penthouse of a building.  
 

7.2.  Unscreened third party rooftop antennas along the roof edge: 
7.2.1. Third party rooftop antennas should be grouped on each building face and should be 

equally spaced. 
7.2.2. Spacing between third party rooftop antennas should not exceed 1.52 metres (5 feet). 
7.2.3. Except for microwave dishes, antenna groupings should be aligned with each other (see 

Figure 1). 

7.2.4. The top of all third party rooftop antennas should be aligned. 
7.2.5. Mounting/cabling hardware should be cleanly housed. 
7.2.6. Third party rooftop antennas may be mounted by means of a through-wall face mount, 

suspended over the parapet or can be installed on the roof edge. 
7.2.7. Except for microwave dishes, the method of installation should be consistent for all third 

party rooftop antennas located on the same building. 

Figure 1 Antenna alignment 



 

 
 

Page 8 of 10 
 

 

7.2.8. On midrise and low-rise buildings, the maximum number of antennas should be 
determined according to the following formula: 𝑀𝑎𝑥 𝑛𝑢𝑚𝑏𝑒𝑟 𝑜𝑓 𝑎𝑛𝑡𝑒𝑛𝑛𝑎𝑠 =  𝑟𝑜𝑜𝑓 𝑒𝑑𝑔𝑒 𝑙𝑒𝑛𝑔𝑡ℎ 𝑖𝑛 𝑚𝑒𝑡𝑒𝑟𝑠 × 0.1 
The maximum number of antennas should be rounded up to a whole number.  

7.2.9. On high-rise buildings, the maximum number of antennas should be determined 
according to the following formula: 𝑀𝑎𝑥 𝑛𝑢𝑚𝑏𝑒𝑟 𝑜𝑓 𝑎𝑛𝑡𝑒𝑛𝑛𝑎𝑠 =  𝑟𝑜𝑜𝑓 𝑒𝑑𝑔𝑒 𝑙𝑒𝑛𝑔𝑡ℎ 𝑖𝑛 𝑚𝑒𝑡𝑒𝑟𝑠 × 0.15 
The maximum number of antennas should be rounded up to a whole number. 

 

7.3.  Unscreened third party rooftop antennas on a penthouse 
7.3.1. An unlimited number of units per face is permitted, except on penthouse walls flush 

with the exterior of the building. 
7.3.2. For antennas on a penthouse wall flush with the exterior of the building, antennas 

should be screened to support an unlimited number of antennas or the number of 
antennas should be limited to 4. 

7.3.3. Antenna units should align with each other (see Figure 1). 
7.3.4. Mounting/cabling and hardware should be cleanly housed. 
7.3.5. The tops of antennas should be aligned. 
7.3.6. Antennas should be grouped and equally spaced 
7.3.7. Antennas or associated equipment should not extend above the penthouse. 
7.3.8. Antennas and mounting equipment colours should match the penthouse behind it. 

  



 

 
 

Page 9 of 10 
 

 

7.4.  Screened antennas along the roof edge 
7.4.1. An unlimited number of antennas are permitted along a roof edge if adequately screened. 

7.4.2. Screens should extend no more than 2.1 m (7 feet) high above the parapet (Figure 2).  
7.4.3. Antennas should extend no more 0.91 m (3 feet) above the top of the screen (Figure 2). 
7.4.4. The top of antennas that extend above a screen should be aligned.  
7.4.5. Screens should have a minimum setback of 300 mm (1 feet) from the parapet. 
7.4.6. Gable ends should be installed on screens if the rear of antennas is visible from adjacent 

streets (Figure 2). 
7.4.7. Screens should cover no more than 40% of the roof edge. 
7.4.8. A maximum of 4 screens are allowed per building. 
7.4.9. Screens should be respectful of building massing, materials and articulation. 

Figure 2  Screening 



 

 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 

 

7.5. Screened antennas on top of penthouse 
7.5.1. The entire penthouse roof should 

be screened 
7.5.2. Antennas or associated 

equipment should not extend 
above or under the screen. 

7.5.3. Screens should respect massing, 
materials and articulation of the 
building 

7.5.4. A 30.48 metres (100 feet) 
minimum setback to dwelling 
units in neighbouring buildings 
should be provided (see Figure 3). 

7.5.5. Rooftop antennas on top of a 
penthouse should only be 
permitted on buildings taller than 
23 metres (75.50 feet). 

 
7.6.  Obsolete antennas  

7.6.1. For a development application for rooftop antennas on a roof with existing antennas, 
obsolete antennas should be identified and removed prior to the installation of any new 
antennas.  
 

Figure 3 30.48 (100ft) setback



 

Rooftop Antenna
Development Permit Area Guidelines

■■A
ik

stli
r-

sill 1*I [I:
f'S14 S'

«■t-£W, ZI •'-- -I-Bl-
C ^ ;f IJ-- i i

Vi~
i-j-* .-# >--fc

- 4J<

..', h*V 3
:

city
of north y Vancouver

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 2�



This page intentionally left blank



Contents

Part I – General Reglations
1 Introduction

21.1  Intent and Use of the Guidelines 
1.2     Regulatory Framework and Authority

2 Approval Process

4

4

5

2.1 Application 
2.2 Exemption 
2.3 Submission Requirements 

3 General
6

6
3.1 Site Selection 
3.2 Design Considerations 
3.3    Standard of Design 6

Part III - Consultation Guidelines

4 Consultation Requirements 8

Part II - Form and Character Guidelines

3



| 1 | 

Part I – General Regulations

1.0   INTRODUCTION

These guidelines apply to development applications for “Third Party Rooftop Antenna System” installations in the 
City of North Vancouver. The 2014 Official Community Plan, No.8400 (OCP) establishes the Rooftop Antennas 
Development Permit Area (DPA) to respond to location, design and consultation issues in the local context. 
These guidelines work in conjunction with the Zoning Bylaw 1995, No.6700 to direct future installations to 
specific land use areas and ensure adequate design considerations and community consultation on them. City 
policy for design and consultation on other wireless communication forms exists separately.

The cellphone/wireless industry continues to expand rapidly putting pressure on existing communications 
infrastructure. As more wireless spectrum becomes available to a greater number of carriers the need for more 
towers and rooftop antennas and new technology increases. The widespread increase in the use of devices is 
drawing on the network capacity to the extent that cell sites that could once be counted on are now suffering 
from reduced coverage and gaps in service are appearing. The industry is expanding in its demand for new sites 
around the region.

The City of North Vancouver has seen increased demand for rooftop antenna on taller buildings. As an urban 
municipality with a growing number of tall buildings taking advantage of views to the south toward Burrard Inlet 
and beyond and to the north to take in mountain views, visual obstructions must be treated sensitively.

These guidelines serve to balance the desire for improved service levels, ensuring quality design in new 
installations and transparency in the process. 

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines



| 2 |  

1.1 INTENT AND USE OF THE GUIDELINES

Development Permit guidelines allow for more detailed consideration of development. This includes more certainty 
of the form and character of new Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems on Buildings in the City to the benefit of 
owners, neighbours and the broader community. 

Applicants are encouraged to consider the location, design and existing local conditions and the 
potential impact on neighbours.

Development Permit applications are reviewed against these guidelines by staff. In some instances, review 
by the City’s Advisory Design Panel may be required. 

The Rooftop Antenna guidelines should be considered in conjunction with the City’s Zoning Bylaw, 
1995, No.6700 and other City regulations.

1.1.1    Objectives: 

1.1.2    

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines



| 3 | 

1.2 REGULATORY FRAMEWORK AND AUTHORITY

Section 488 of the Local Government Act (LGA) gives local governments in BC the authority to establish 
Development Permit Areas and their associated guidelines to address issues such as the form and 
character of commercial, industrial or multi-family residential development. 

The City’s 2014 Official Community Plan established Development Permit Areas (DPA) for Rooftop 
Antennas to identify specific land use categories in the City where Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems 
may be located, subject to compliance with these DPA guidelines and other applicable City permit 
requirements. Other types of antenna installations are guided by the City’s Wireless Design and 
Communication Policy. 

The City of North Vancouver recognizes that Industry Canada regulates the location and installation of 
antenna systems, including masts, towers, and other antenna-supporting structures under the 
Radiocommunication Act and that Industry Canada mandates that where local governments have 
established policy and procedure this be adhered to by proponents of new installations.  

The City also recognizes that Industry Canada refers to Safety Code 6 as the standard to which 
wireless facilities are to held. And that the health and safety of wireless facilities in their many forms 
are under the jurisdiction of Health Canada. It is the applicant’s responsibility to ensure compliance 
with Safety Code 6 guidelines for the protection of the general public. The City of North Vancouver will 
refer inquiries regarding public health and safety to the applicant for response.

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines



Projects identified by staff as requiring particular attention can be referred to the Advisory Design Panel as 
needed. It is the expectation that most projects will not need to appear before the Panel, provided that 
reasonable design requests are considered and accommodated where possible by the applicant.

Removal (or upgrade replacement) of obsolete equipment.

Application submission; 

Advisory Design Panel (as required);

Rooftop Antennas Development Permit Guidelines apply to those Lots designated in the Official 
Community Plan as Residential Level Five and Six, Mixed-Use, Commercial, Industrial and Mixed 
Employment designated lands on Schedule A in Appendix 1.0 of the 2014 Official Community Plan on 
Buildings at not less than three stories above grade. Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems are not 
permitted to locate adjacent to schools or on lots designated Residential Level 4 or lower in the OCP.

Final revisions; 

Building and Electrical Permit (as required);

Notification of Installation (mailout and lobby notice);

All sites need approval of the land owner, whether public or private. In the case of a strata corporation, a 
letter from the Strata Council agreeing to the installation is required.

Installations to facilitate Emergency Service providers such 
as police, fire, ambulance and search and rescue services.

Rooftop facilities shall follow this process: 

Pre-application meeting; 

Preliminary revisions; 

2.0 APPROVAL PROCESS

2.1 APPLICATION

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

i)

2.2.1

2.2 EXEMPTION

Exceptions to the Rooftop Antenna DPA Guidelines include:

a)

| 4 | Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines

Staff design review;



| 5 |  

2.3 SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

2.3.1 Each application for a Development Permit for Rooftop Antennas must be accompanied by relevant 
development information in the form prescribed by the City. This information includes, but is not 
limited to:

a) Plans demonstrating the:

i. Location of the proposed building site in context;

ii. Location of the proposed installation including equipment dimensions;

iii. Location and type of existing rooftop antenna structures and associated equipment currently
located on the building by any provider;

iv. Plans for screening, painting, or other measures to blend into the existing building.

b) Proposed materials for area notification:

i. A notification map indicating the properties that are within 40m of the subject property (as
measured from the edge of the subject property line);

ii. Proposed materials for area notification:

A notification map indicating the properties that are within 40m of the subject property      
(as measured from the edge of the subject property line);
A copy of the notice to be mailed to residents within 40m; and,
A copy of the notice to be placed in the lobby of the building in a prominent location and  
include a description of the proposed installation and contact information for the applicant.

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines

-

-
-



| 6 |

These guidelines are applied to Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems located on the roof of Mixed Use, 
Multifamily, Commercial & Industrial Buildings in the City.

Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems are permitted in designated areas provided that: 

a) They not exceed a maximum Height of 1.22 metres (4.0 feet) vertically beyond the top of the building it
is being attached to (see examples in Appendix A);

b) They are set back a minimum of 0.91 metres (3 feet) horizontally from the parapet of the Building in
consideration of the roof as a visible elevation from the street and other buildings'

c) Panel antennas included in the Third Party Rooftop Antenna System are not to exceed 0.15 metres (0.5
feet) in width or 1.22 metres (4 feet) in length;

d) Microwave dishes included in the Third Party Rooftop Antenna System are not to exceed 0.61 metres (2
feet) in diameter per facility.

Part II – Form and Character

3.0 GENERAL

3.1 SITE SELECTION

Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems are to be located on lots designated as Residential Level Five and Six, 
Mixed-Use, Commercial, Industrial and Mixed Employment identified on Schedule A in Appendix 1.0 of the 2014 
Official Community Plan with Buildings not less than three storeys above grade; 

3.1.1

3.1.2 Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems shall not impede access to rooftop amenities such as playgrounds, roof 
decks and urban agriculture; 

3.1.3 Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems are to be disclosed to Building tenants (see Part III Consultation).

3.2 DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS

3.2.1 The visual impact of Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems should be minimized to reduce visual 
impact and clutter (see examples in Appendix A);

3.2.2 Where more than one Third Party Rooftop Antenna System is located on the same building shrouding 
should be used where possible without increasing the visual bulk of the Building; 

3.2.3 Equipment cabinets and cable raceways included in the Third Party Rooftop Antenna System should be 
internal to the Building, and where external installations cannot be avoided, should be oriented for 
minimum visibility and treated with materials and colours similar to the Building. 

3.3 STANDARD OF DESIGN

3.3.1

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines



| 7 |  

3.3.2 Where a combined total of more than five panel antennas and microwave dishes are 
proposed for one side of the Building rooftop they should be shrouded without 
increasing the visual bulk of the Building.

3.3.3 Obsolete technology or equipment should be removed from the Building as soon as 
possible.

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines



| 8 | 

4.0 CONSULTATION

a) Notification of Installation to properties within a 40m radius of the subject site:

Notification should be sent with the subject site shown in a map with a description of the installation and
include contact information for the applicant.

b) Post a notice in the lobby of the subject Building:

The notice should be placed in a prominent location and include a description of the proposed installation
and contact information for the applicant. A draft of the notice is to be approved in advance by City staff.

Part III – Consultation

Applicants shall conduct a Notification of Installation of their application in conjunction with the 
City of North Vancouver’s standards for Rooftop Antennas outlined below:

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines

4.1



| 9 |  

Appendix A:
Examples of Rooftop Antenna installations include: 

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines

Part IV – Appendix

1.  Preferred

2.  Acceptable

i)  Attached to existing mechanical penthouse



ii)  Projecting from the top of existing mechanical penthouse

iii)  Setback from edge of building (parapet) and grouped

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines| 10|



Source: City of North Vancouver photo library.

Zoning Bylaw, 1995 DIVISION VII G. | Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines

3.  Not Acceptable

| 11|



Aussi disponible en français 
 

 
 

 
Issue 2 

August 2014 
 
 
 
Spectrum Management and Telecommunications 
 

 
 
 

Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in 
Developing Antenna System Siting 
Protocols 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 3�



i 
 

Contents 
 
 
1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 1 

2. Participation Process .................................................................................................................... 2 
2.1 Placement of Antenna System .............................................................................................. 2 
2.2 Use of Existing Infrastructure (Sharing) ............................................................................... 3 
2.3  Preliminary Consultation ...................................................................................................... 3 
2.4 Involving Local Public .......................................................................................................... 4 
2.5 Responding to Consultation .................................................................................................. 4 
2.6 Concluding Consultation ...................................................................................................... 5 
2.7 Impasse Negotiations, Dispute Resolution Process .............................................................. 5 
2.8 A Timely Process .................................................................................................................. 5 

3. Local Protocol Guide Development ............................................................................................. 5 
3.1 Protocol Principles ................................................................................................................ 5 
3.2 General Protocol Template ................................................................................................... 6 

4. Conclusion ..................................................................................................................................... 8 
 



Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in Developing Antenna Siting Protocols   
 

1 
 

1. Introduction 
 
This guide is intended to assist Land-use Authorities (LUA) in ensuring effective local participation in 
decisions regarding proposals to build antennas and their supporting structures within their communities. 
For the purposes of this guide, an LUA means any local authority that governs land-use issues and 
includes a municipality, town council, regional commission, development authority, township board, 
band council or similar body. This guide complements Industry Canada’s Client Procedures Circular 
CPC-2-0-03, Issue 5, Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems. LUAs are encouraged to 
consult CPC-2-0-03 to better understand roles and responsibilities.  
 
The requirements of CPC-2-0-03 apply to anyone (referred to as a “proponent”) who is planning to install 
or modify an antenna system,1 regardless of the type. This includes telecommunications carriers, 
businesses, governments, Crown agencies, operators of broadcasting undertakings and the public 
(including for amateur radio operation and over-the-air and satellite TV reception). The requirements also 
apply to those who install towers or antenna systems on behalf of others or for leasing purposes 
(“third party tower owners”). As well, the procedures contain obligations that apply to existing antenna 
system owners and operators, including those relating to the use of existing infrastructure (sharing). 
 
This guide specifically addresses two areas: 
 
• Participation Process: Addresses the LUA’s role in effectively participating and influencing decisions 

with respect to proposed antenna systems within Industry Canada’s antenna siting procedures. 
Industry Canada believes that antenna siting protocols jointly developed between proponents and LUAs 
can supplement the Department’s antenna siting procedures, while at the same time having a higher 
degree of acceptance and compliance. 

 
• Local Protocol Development: Sets out elements that LUAs might wish to include when developing 

protocols with proponents of antenna systems.  
 
The federal Minister of Industry has the authority under the Radiocommunication Act to issue radio 
authorizations, to approve each site on which radio apparatus, including antenna systems(referred to as 
“antenna systems” or “installations”), may be located  and to approve the erection of all masts, towers 
and other antenna-supporting structures.Industry Canada’s role includes ensuring the orderly 
development and efficient operation of radiocommunications in Canada. In this regard, Industry Canada 
considers that the questions, comments and concerns of the local public and the LUA are important 
elements for proponents to consider when seeking to install, or make major modifications to, an antenna 
system. 
 
Radiocommunication and broadcasting services are important for all Canadians and are used daily by the 
public, safety and security organizations, all levels of government, wireless service providers, 
broadcasters, utility companies and other businesses. Antenna systems are an essential component in 
providing these services and must be installed on towers, buildings or other antenna-supporting structures. 
Antennas and the structures that support them are integral to wireless network communication systems 

                                                 
1  For the purposes of this document, an “antenna system” is normally composed of an antenna and some sort of supporting 

structure, normally a tower. Most antennas have their own integral mast so they can be fastened directly to a building or a 
tower. 

 

http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf08777.html
http://laws.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/R-2/FullText.html


Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in Developing Antenna Siting Protocols   
 

2 
 

and they provide the radio coverage the public and safety services need. With advancements in technology 
and given the growing demand for high-speed wireless access, communities in Canada are currently 
experiencing, or will soon experience, the deployment of new antenna systems.  
 
Thanks to their local knowledge, LUAs are well qualified to explain to proponents the particular 
amenities, cultural or environmental sensitivities, planning priorities and other relevant characteristics of 
their area. The LUA may also be aware of potential Aboriginal or treaty rights or land claims that may be 
affected by a proposed installation. Working together, LUAs and proponents can find solutions which 
address reasonable and relevant concerns or point the way to alternative antenna system siting 
arrangements. Accordingly, Industry Canada encourages LUAs to develop local protocols to manage the 
process of identifying their own concerns, as well as those of the public they represent, regarding antenna 
system modifications or installations.  
 
For the purposes of this document, Industry Canada will refer to any written local guideline, policy or 
process that addresses the issue of antenna placement as a “protocol”. Cooperation between LUAs and 
proponents through clear and reasonable protocols can result in the development of new and enhanced 
wireless services in a community-friendly manner. 
 
Industry Canada2 is available to assist in the creation of local land-use protocols for antenna system 
installations. 
 
 
2. Participation Process 
 
There are a number of steps a proponent typically follows in choosing a site for an antenna system 
installation; unless specifically excluded under Industry Canada’s process, one of these steps is consulting 
with the LUA. The community in an LUA’s area expect it to provide local knowledge, experience and 
leadership. The LUA can also ensure that any questions, comments or concerns are appropriately 
addressed by the proponent.  
 
The subsections that follow suggest various aspects of a consultation process that an LUA may want to 
take into consideration when developing antenna siting protocols. Protocols are an effective means for an 
LUA to use to convey its preferences, as well as those of the community it represents, to antenna system 
proponents. 
 
2.1 Placement of Antenna System 
 
Proponents must consider various antenna system placement options, including using existing structures 
such as building rooftops and water towers, to minimize the impact on the local community. 
Radiocommunication antennas need to be strategically located to satisfy specific technical criteria and 
operational requirements. Therefore, there is a limited measure of flexibility in the placement of antennas 
and proponents are constrained to some degree by: 
 

                                                 
2  Please refer to Radiocommunication Information Circular RIC-66 for a list of addresses and telephone numbers for 

Industry Canada’s regional and district offices. RIC-66 is available via the Internet at: 
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/h_sf06073.html. 

 

http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf01742.html


Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in Developing Antenna Siting Protocols   
 

3 
 

- the need to achieve the required radiocommunication coverage, often in response to public demand; 
- the availability and physical limitations of nearby existing structures (towers, rooftops, water towers, 

etc.) to accommodate additional antennas; and 
- the securing of lease agreements to permit access to an existing structure. 
 
Consequently, the LUA’s or the public’s preferred location for siting an antenna installation may not 
always be feasible. 
 
LUAs are encouraged to develop protocols that are clear and within their area of responsibility. Protocols 
can include promoting the placement of antennas in optimal locations from a land-use point of view, or 
excluding certain types of installations from protocol requirements. Through protocols, an LUA can 
highlight its local knowledge and expertise related to area sensitivities, including environmental or 
cultural concerns, and land-use compatibility. Protocols can recognize local amenities and planning 
priorities while expediting the planning and approvals necessary for the installation of 
radiocommunication and broadcasting antenna systems.  
 
2.2 Use of Existing Infrastructure (Sharing)3 
 
The installation of a new antenna structure may at times reveal sensitivity in the local community. 
Therefore, Industry Canada requires proponents to first consider using existing towers or infrastructure 
(such as rooftops, water towers, utility poles, etc.). This approach is intended to minimize the proliferation 
of antenna towers. However, it is important to note that technical constraints, such as the need to: achieve 
a certain amount of radiocommunication coverage; re-use frequencies; and address equipment isolation 
issues; etc., may prevent a proponent from using an existing structure. 
 
2.3  Preliminary Consultation 
 
LUAs may wish to include in their protocols a mechanism for preliminary consultation. This would allow 
the proponent, before making any site selection decisions, to inform the LUA of its plans. Also, this initial 
contact allows a proponent to determine whether an LUA has a protocol in place regarding antenna system 
installations preferences. Within its own process, Industry Canada considers written formal contact as 
marking the official commencement of its 120-day4 consultation process between the LUA and the 
proponent. 
 
With a protocol in place, this initial contact allows the LUA an excellent opportunity to: 

 
• inform the proponent of established and documented local requirements and consultation procedures;  
  

                                                 
3  See also Client Procedures Circular CPC-2-0-17, Conditions of Licence for Mandatory Roaming and Antenna Tower and 

Site Sharing and to Prohibit Exclusive Site Arrangements. CPC-2-0-17 is available via the Internet at: 
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf09081.html. 

 
4  The 120-day consultation period commences only once the proponent has formally submitted, in writing, all plans required 

by the LUA, and does not include preliminary discussions with the LUA. 
 

http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf09081.html
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf09081.html


Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in Developing Antenna Siting Protocols   
 

4 
 

• advise the proponent of historic and environmental land-use sensitivities including any related to 
potential Aboriginal or treaty right or land claim;5 

• provide guidance and preferences to the proponent on the various preferred areas and sites to be 
considered; 

• indicate its preferences; and 
• provide information concerning any aesthetic or landscaping preferences. 
 
2.4 Involving Local Public 
 
Local public consultation offers a forum for members of the public located near the proposed installation 
to make comments, ask questions or raise concerns related to the proposed antenna system installation. 
This is an opportunity for the local public and the LUA to make the proponent aware of local 
considerations and, in so doing, influence the siting.  
 
Industry Canada’s own process recognizes two possible public consultation scenarios: 
 
1. The LUA can set the format for public consultation in its protocol. This could identify situations that 

require public consultation and those that do not. It is important to note that, in all cases, 
telecommunications carriers, broadcasting undertakings and third party tower owners must notify and 
consult with the local public when proposing a new antenna tower. 

 
2. If an LUA’s protocol is silent on the issue of public consultation, or if there is no protocol, then the 

proponent will be required to follow Industry Canada’s default public consultation process. 
 

However an LUA is in an ideal position to develop a public consultation process because of its local 
experience and knowledge. For this reason, the Department encourages LUAs to include public 
consultation as part of their processes. The LUA, as the representative of the local community, can assist 
and guide proponents to conduct meaningful consultation by establishing reasonable and timely protocols 
which ensure local land-use concerns are appropriately addressed. 
 
2.5 Responding to Consultation 
 
Even in cases where the LUA does not have a local protocol, the LUA should take the opportunity built 
into Industry Canada’s procedures to examine carefully the details of the proponent’s proposal. During its 
examination of the proposal, an LUA may ask the proponent for additional information to determine 
whether there are any local land-use or public concerns. As part of the discussions, the LUA can engage 
the proponent by suggesting reasonable alternatives and/or mitigation measures that would address any 
questions, comments or concerns. 
 
To maximize the benefit of this consultation process, both parties have to consider each other’s 
requirements and constraints so they can work effectively together. In so doing, the parties can devise 
solutions that will minimize the impact of the proposed structure on the local surroundings, while at the 
same time taking into consideration each other’s interests. 
  
                                                 
5  LUAs are encouraged to refer to online resources [for example, the Aboriginal and Treaty Rights Information System 

(ATRIS) (http://sidait-atris.aadnc-aandc.gc.ca/atris_online/home-accueil.aspx)] as applicable. 
 

http://sidait-atris.aadnc-aandc.gc.ca/atris_online/home-accueil.aspx


Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in Developing Antenna Siting Protocols   
 

5 
 

2.6 Concluding Consultation 
 
Industry Canada advises that an LUA’s protocol should include a mechanism for issuing a formal 
concurrence to mark the end of the consultation with the proponent. This may consist of a formal decision 
by a designated official or relevant committee or another formal means, such as a sentence or other 
reference in the town council minutes. If an LUA decides that a consultation ends with the issuance of a 
building permit, then the protocol should indicate this. 

If the proponent has met the public consultation requirements, either through the LUA’s or 
Industry Canada’s default process, and neither the LUA nor the public formally communicates any 
concerns to the proponent about its proposal, Industry Canada will deem that the land-use authority and 
the public have no objections.  
2.7 Impasse Negotiations, Dispute Resolution Process 
 
When developing protocols, LUAs should consider the means by which disputes will be resolved, 
ensuring they are appropriate for the local community. By documenting this process, all stakeholders will 
understand their roles and responsibilities as well as the process for resolving disputes. Industry Canada 
generally favours having the proponent, the local public and the LUA work toward a solution which takes 
each other’s interests into consideration. Where an LUA or a proponent feels it may be helpful to do so, it 
may engage Industry Canada in an effort to move the discussions forward. Under Industry Canada 
procedures, if either the LUA or proponent believes discussions have reached an impasse, either can 
formally request departmental intervention concerning a reasonable and relevant concern. It is anticipated 
this will occur rarely.  
 
LUAs may wish to consider incorporating alternate dispute resolution options into their protocols. Many 
alternate dispute resolution processes are interest-based rather than regulatory in nature. Therefore, the 
parties are more likely to find a mutually beneficial resolution.  
 
2.8 A Timely Process 
 
To avoid unnecessary delays, Industry Canada’s process indicates that LUAs are normally expected to 
conclude the consultation process within 120 days from the receipt of the formal consultation request. 
Accordingly, when developing protocols, LUAs should not exceed these timelines. 
 
 
3. Local Protocol Guide Development6 
 
3.1 Protocol Principles 
 
The following set of considerations and suggested principles may serve as a guide to LUAs developing 
protocols that respectfully balance local land-use interests with the benefits that radiocommunication, 
including broadcasting, brings to a community. The protocol should, as appropriate, address the 
following: 

                                                 
6  Municipalities may also wish to refer to the protocol template developed in partnership between the Federation of 

Canadian Municipalities (FCM) and the Canadian Wireless Telecommunications Association (CWTA). The FCM/CWTA 
template can be found on the FCM’s website, www.fcm.ca. 

 

http://www.fcm.ca/


Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in Developing Antenna Siting Protocols   
 

6 
 

• Information to proponents describing: 
- areas of historic or environmental importance to the community and the need to minimize the impact 

of the proposal on these areas; and 
- local preferences for antenna siting. 

• Incentives to encourage aesthetically pleasing structures. 
• Exclusions, which may build upon those established by Industry Canada (CPC-2-0-03, Section 6).  
• Public consultation requirements that Industry Canada believes should be proportional to the proposal 

and its impact on the local surroundings. LUAs may wish to consider establishing a two-track process: 
- a streamlined concurrence process for less controversial proposals, such as new sites in industrial areas 

or on municipal properties, for emergency services or personal installations by members of the public 
(including for amateur radio operation and over-the-air and satellite TV reception), and  

- a process that includes broader public consultation for non-excluded structures likely to be of interest 
to the local community, such as the construction of new towers used by telecommunications carriers, 
broadcasting undertakings and third party tower owners. 

 
The protocol should also establish a reasonable processing timeline that respects the timelines established 
in CPC-2-0-03 for proposals submitted to the LUA for concurrence. 
 
3.2 General Protocol Template 
 
The following elements are provided to aid LUAs in developing protocols dealing with antenna system 
installations: 
 
Objectives 
 
A short discussion on the overall objectives of the local protocol. 
 
Jurisdiction 
 
A discussion of the LUA’s responsibilities and obligations in safeguarding legitimate concerns related to 
local land-use. Also, the role and responsibility of Industry Canada and the authority granted under the 
Radiocommunication Act to approve the location of radiocommunication facilities. 
 
Consultation with the LUA 
 
This may include: 
 
• criteria for excluding additional antenna systems, other than those listed in the CPC-2-0-03, from LUA 

consultation;  
• process for LUA notification; 
• list of all documents and drawings that the proponent must submit;  
• processing and administrative fees; 
• the means by which the LUA will indicate concurrence; and  
• process time frames that respect those established by CPC-2-0-03. 
 
  



Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in Developing Antenna Siting Protocols   
 

7 
 

Excluded Antenna Structures  
 
Industry Canada believes that not all antenna systems should be subject to a full land-use or public 
consultation process. Subjecting all proposals to the full consultation process would place an unnecessary 
and significant administrative burden on proponents, the LUA and the local public. Under Industry 
Canada’s process, certain proposals are considered to have minimal impact on the local surroundings and 
so are excluded from public and land-use consultations. Industry Canada believes that consultation 
requirements should be proportional to the potential impact of the proposal. When establishing a local 
protocol, LUAs should consider the types of proposals that have minimal impact and so would warrant 
exemption from land-use and/or public consultation. It should be noted that any exclusion criteria 
established by the LUA can only augment, as appropriate, those established under Industry Canada’s 
Exclusion List (CPC-2-0-03, Section 6). 
 
Antenna Structures Not Excluded  
 
LUAs may wish to consider the following when developing consultation protocols: 
 
• the type of structure: new, temporary or existing antenna systems as well as non-tower structures; 
• the intended use of the structure, whether personal, commercial or safety; 
• the effect on significant natural or cultural features; and 
• the landscaping, access control, fencing and road access. 
 
Furthermore, LUAs can: 
 
• encourage the placement of new towers in commercial, industrial/agricultural areas and utility or 

roadway easements; 
• ask the proponent to suggest various options for consideration; and 
• identify preferred criteria for antenna structure siting for new structures that exceed a specified height. 
 
Public Consultation 
 
Public consultation is an important part of the overall consultation process. Industry Canada believes that 
the local public should be consulted regarding non-excluded antenna proposals. Consultation allows the 
community to be involved and so ultimately influence the proposal’s siting. Discussions can allow 
stakeholders to work towards a consensus. While LUAs are free to structure their public consultation 
process to meet their needs, Industry Canada’s process consists of two distinct components: 
 
• Public Notification - where the proponent informs the public of the proposed antenna system installation 

or modification, providing the information needed for a complete understanding of the proposal. 
 • Public Engagement - where the proponent engages the public and responds to all questions and 

comments, addressing all reasonable and relevant concerns. Public engagement may take various forms, 
from answering letters to hosting a public meeting or drop-in, depending on the community’s level of 
interest. 

 
  

DiepenvC
Typewritten Text

DiepenvC
Typewritten Text

DiepenvC
Typewritten Text

DiepenvC
Typewritten Text



Guide to Assist Land-use Authorities in Developing Antenna Siting Protocols   
 

8 
 

Establishing Appropriate Time Frames 
 
It is important that the protocol establish time frames for a consultation process, to ensure timely response 
to any questions or concerns and to avoid unnecessary delays to the proponent and the LUA. 
Industry Canada expects that any time frames established within an LUA’s protocol will respect those 
established by CPC-2-0-03.  
 
Under Industry Canada’s procedures (CPC-2-0-03, Section 4.4), construction of an antenna system must 
be completed within three years of the conclusion of consultation. After three years, consultations will no 
longer be deemed valid except in the case where a proponent secures the agreement of the relevant 
land-use authority to an extension for a specified time period in writing. While Industry Canada does not  
 
support a reduction of the three-year time limit, LUAs may wish to consider including in their protocols 
procedures related to extending the time limit for construction. 
 
Criteria not Necessary to Address Through Local Protocols 
 
As described in Industry Canada’s procedures (CPC-2-0-03, Section 7), proponents have specific 
obligations already subject to federal requirements. Protocols should not impose additional obligations in 
these areas. However, an LUA may wish to ask questions or seek clarification from proponents 
concerning their proposed steps and the alternatives available to satisfy these and any other radio 
authorization requirements. Proponents must comply with: 
 
Health Canada’s public radio frequency exposure guidelines - Safety Code 6 (Limits of Human Exposure 
to Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Energy in the Frequency Range from 3 kHz to 300 GHz - Safety 
Code (2009)); 
Radio Frequency Interference and Immunity - EMCAB-2 — Criteria for Resolution of Immunity 
Complaints Involving Fundamental Emissions of Radiocommunications Transmitters; 
• Canadian Environmental Assessment Act,2012 – CEAA 2012 
• Aeronautical Safety - Transport Canada and NAV CANADA requirements for aeronautical safety 
 
 
4. Conclusion 
 
Land-use authorities, with their local knowledge, experience and leadership ability, have an important role 
in the consultation process relating to the siting of antenna systems. Clear and reasonable protocols will 
enable effective participation and cooperation between the LUA and the proponent. Such protocols can be 
used to identify the interests of the community as well as guiding land-use principles. Moreover, protocols 
allow for the introduction of radiocommunication services, including broadcasting, in the local 
community in a timely manner. Protocols can assist proponents planning to install antenna systems, while 
at the same time giving due consideration to local land-use issues. 
  

http://www.hc-sc.gc.ca/ewh-semt/pubs/radiation/radio_guide-lignes_direct/index-eng.php
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf01005.html
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf01005.html
https://www.ceaa-acee.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=en&n=16254939-1
http://www.tc.gc.ca/
http://www.navcanada.ca/


 
 

Aussi disponible en français – CPC-2-0-03 

 CPC-2-0-03 
 Issue 5 

 Released: June 26, 2014 
Effective: July 15, 2014 

 
 
 
Spectrum Management and Telecommunications 
 
Client Procedures Circular 
 
 
 
 

Radiocommunication and Broadcasting 
Antenna Systems 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

thuckell�
FreeText
Attachment 4�



 
 

i 

 
Comments and suggestions may be directed to the following address: 
 
Industry Canada 
Spectrum Management Operations Branch 
235 Queen Street 
Ottawa, Ontario 
K1A 0H5 
 
Attention: DOSP 
 
Via e-mail: spectrum_pubs@ic.gc.ca 
 
 
 
All Spectrum Management and Telecommunications publications are available on the following website 
at: http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/home. 

http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/home


 C 

ii 
 

Contents 
 
 
1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 3 

1.1 Mandate............................................................................................................................... 3 
1.2  Application .......................................................................................................................... 3 
1.3 Process Overview................................................................................................................ 3 

2. Industry Canada Engagement ..................................................................................................... 4 

3.  Use of Existing Infrastructure (Sharing) .................................................................................... 4 

4. Land-use Authority and Public Consultation ............................................................................ 5 
4.1 Land-use Authority Consultation ........................................................................................ 6 
4.2  Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process .................................................... 7 
4.3 Concluding Consultation .................................................................................................... 9 
4.4 Post-Consultation .............................................................................................................. 11 

5.  Dispute Resolution Process ........................................................................................................ 11 

6. Exclusions .................................................................................................................................... 11 

7.  General Requirements ................................................................................................................ 12 
7.1 Radio Frequency Exposure Limits.................................................................................... 13 
7.2  Radio Frequency Immunity .............................................................................................. 14 
7.3 Proximity of Proposed Structure to Broadcasting Undertakings ...................................... 14 
7.4 Canadian Environmental Assessment Act ........................................................................ 14 
7.5 Aeronautical Safety ........................................................................................................... 15 

Appendix 1 – Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process - Public Notification 
Package .................................................................................................................................................... 17 
 
 
 
 
 



Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

3 
 

1. Introduction 
 
Radiocommunication and broadcasting services are important for all Canadians and are used daily by 
the public, safety and security organizations, government, wireless service providers, broadcasters, 
utilities and businesses. In order for radiocommunication and broadcasting services to work, antenna 
systems including masts, towers, and other supporting structures are required. Antenna systems are 
normally composed of an antenna and some type of supporting structure, often called an antenna tower. 
Most antennas have their own integral mast so that they can be fastened directly to a building or a tower. 
There is a certain measure of flexibility in the placement of antenna systems which is constrained to 
some degree by: the need to achieve acceptable coverage for the service area; the availability of sites; 
technical limitations; and safety. In exercising its mandate, Industry Canada believes that it is important 
that antenna systems be deployed in a manner that considers the local surroundings. 
 
1.1 Mandate 
 
Section 5 of the Radiocommunication Act states that the Minister may, taking into account all matters 
the Minister considers relevant for ensuring the orderly development and efficient operation of 
radiocommunication in Canada, issue radio authorizations and approve each site on which radio 
apparatus, including antenna systems, may be located. Further, the Minister may approve the erection of 
all masts, towers and other antenna-supporting structures. Accordingly, proponents must follow the 
process outlined in this document when installing or modifying an antenna system. Also, the installation 
of an antenna system or the operation of a currently existing antenna system that is not in accordance 
with this process may result in its alteration or removal and other sanctions against the operator in 
accordance with the Radiocommunication Act.  
 
1.2  Application 
 
The requirements of this document apply to anyone (referred to in this document as the proponent) who 
is planning to install or modify an antenna system,1 regardless of the type. This includes 
telecommunications carriers,2 businesses, governments, Crown agencies, operators of broadcasting 
undertakings and the public (including for amateur radio operation and over-the-air TV reception). 
Anyone who proposes, uses or owns an antenna system must follow these procedures. The requirements 
also apply to those who install towers or antenna systems on behalf of others or for leasing purposes 
(“third party tower owners”). As well, parts of this process contain obligations that apply to existing 
antenna system owners and operators. 
 
1.3 Process Overview 
 
This document outlines the process that must be followed by proponents seeking to install or modify 
antenna systems. The broad elements of the process are as follows: 

                                                           
1  For the purposes of this document, an “antenna system” is normally composed of an antenna and some sort of supporting 

structure, normally a tower. Most antennas have their own integral mast so that they can be fastened directly to a 
building or a tower. Thus, where this document refers to an “antenna,” the term includes the integral mast. 

 
 
2  For the purpose of this document, a “telecommunications carrier” means a person who owns or operates a transmission 

facility used by that person or another person to provide telecommunications services to the public for compensation. 



Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

4 
 

1. Investigating sharing or using existing infrastructure before proposing new antenna-supporting 
structures. 

 
2. Contacting the land-use authority (LUA) to determine local requirements regarding antenna systems. 
 
3. Undertaking public notification and addressing relevant concerns, whether by following local LUA 

requirements or Industry Canada’s default process, as is required and appropriate. 
 
4. Satisfying Industry Canada’s general and technical requirements. 
 
5. Completing the construction. 
 
It is Industry Canada’s expectation that steps (2) to (4) will normally be completed within 120 days. 
Some proposals may be excluded from certain elements of the process (see Section 6). It is Industry 
Canada’s expectation that all parties will carry out their roles and responsibilities in good faith and in a 
manner that respects the spirit of this document. If the requirements of this document are satisfied and 
the proposal proceeds then, under step (5), construction of the antenna system must be completed within 
three years of conclusion of consultation.  
 
 
2. Industry Canada Engagement 
 
There are a number of points in the processes outlined in this document where parties must contact 
Industry Canada to proceed. Further, anyone with any question regarding the process may contact the 
local Industry Canada office3 for guidance. Based on a query by an interested party, Industry Canada 
may request parties to provide relevant records and/or may provide direction to one or more parties to 
undertake certain actions to help move the process forward. 
 
 
3.  Use of Existing Infrastructure (Sharing)4 
 
This section outlines the roles of proponents and owners/operators of existing antenna systems. In all 
cases, parties should retain records (such as analyses, correspondence and engineering reports) relating 
to this section.  
 
Before building a new antenna-supporting structure, Industry Canada requires that proponents first 
explore the following options: 
 
• consider sharing an existing antenna system, modifying or replacing a structure if necessary;  

                                                           
3  Please refer to Radiocommunication Information Circular RIC-66 for a list of addresses and telephone numbers for 

Industry Canada’s regional and district offices. RIC-66 is available via the Internet at: http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-
gst.nsf/eng/h_sf06073.html.

 
4  See also Client Procedures Circular CPC-2-0-17, Conditions of Licence for Mandatory Roaming and Antenna Tower and 

Site Sharing and to Prohibit Exclusive Site Arrangements. CPC-2-0-17 is available via the Internet at: 
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf09081.html. 

http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/h_sf06073.html
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf09081.html


Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

5 
 

• locate, analyze and attempt to use any feasible existing infrastructure such as rooftops, water towers 
etc. 

 
A proponent is not normally expected to build a new antenna-supporting structure where it is feasible to 
locate an antenna on an existing structure, unless a new structure is preferred by the land-use authority. 
 
Owners and operators of existing antenna systems are to respond to a request to share in a timely fashion 
and to negotiate in good faith to facilitate sharing where feasible. It is anticipated that 30 days is 
reasonable time for existing antenna system owners/operators to reply to a request by a proponent in 
writing with either: 
 
• a proposed set of reasonable terms to govern the sharing of the antenna system; or  
 
• a detailed explanation of why sharing is not possible.  
 
 
4. Land-use Authority and Public Consultation  
 
Contacting the Land-use Authority 
 
Proponents must always contact the applicable land-use authorities to determine the local consultation 
requirements and to discuss local preferences regarding antenna system siting and/or design, unless their 
proposal falls within the exclusion criteria outlined in Section 6. If the land-use authority has designated 
an official to deal with antenna systems, then proponents are to engage the authority through that person. 
If not, proponents must submit their plans directly to the council, elected local official or executive. The 
120-day consultation period commences only once proponents have formally submitted, in writing, all 
plans required by the land-use authority, and does not include preliminary discussions with land-use 
authority representatives. 
 
Proponents should note that there may be more than one land-use authority with an interest in the 
proposal. Where no established agreement exists between such land-use authorities, proponents must, as 
a minimum, contact the land-use authority(ies) and/or neighbouring land-use authorities located within a 
radius of three times the tower height, measured from the tower base or the outside perimeter of the 
supporting structure, whichever is greater. As well, in cases where proponents are aware that a potential 
Aboriginal or treaty right or land claim may be affected by the proposed installation,5 they must contact 
Industry Canada in order to ensure that the requirements for consultation are met. 
 
Following the Land-use Authority Process 
 
Proponents must follow the land-use consultation process for the siting of antenna systems, established 
by the land-use authority, where one exists. In the event that a land-use authority’s existing process has 
no public consultation requirement, proponents must then fulfill the public consultation requirements 
contained in Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process (see Section 4.2). Proponents are 
not required to follow this requirement if the LUA’s established process explicitly excludes their type of 

                                                           
5  Proponents are encouraged to refer to local community and online resources (for example, the Aboriginal and Treaty 

Rights Information System (ATRIS) (http://sidait-atris.aadnc-aandc.gc.ca/atris_online/home-accueil.aspx) as applicable. 

http://sidait-atris.aadnc-aandc.gc.ca/atris_online/home-accueil.aspx


Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

6 
 

proposal from consultation or it is excluded by Industry Canada’s criteria.6 Where proponents believe 
the local consultation requirements are unreasonable, they may contact the local Industry Canada office 
in writing for guidance. 
 
Broadcasting Undertakings 
 
Applicants for broadcasting undertakings are subject to Canadian Radio-television and 
Telecommunications (CRTC) licensing processes in addition to Industry Canada requirements.  
Although Industry Canada encourages applicants to consult as early as practical in the application 
process, in some cases it may not be prudent for the applicants to initiate public and municipal/land-use 
consultation before receiving CRTC approval, as application denial by the CRTC would have result in 
unnecessary work for all parties involved.  Therefore, assuming that the proposal is not otherwise 
excluded, broadcasting applicants may opt to commence land-use consultation after having received 
CRTC approval.  However, broadcasting applicants choosing this approach are required, at the time of 
the CRTC application, to notify the land-use authority with a Letter of Intent outlining a commitment to 
conduct consultation after receiving CRTC approval. If the land-use authority raises concerns with the 
proposal as described in the Letter of Intent, applicants are encouraged to engage in discussions with the 
land-use authority regarding their concerns and attempt to resolve any issues. Refer to Broadcasting 
Procedures and Rules, Part 1 (BPR-1), for further details. 
 
4.1 Land-use Authority Consultation 
 
Industry Canada believes that any concerns or suggestions expressed by land-use authorities are 
important elements to be considered by proponents regarding proposals to install, or make changes to, 
antenna systems. As part of their community planning processes, land-use authorities should facilitate 
the implementation of local radiocommunication services by establishing consultation processes for the 
siting of antenna systems.  
 
Unless the proposal meets the exclusion criteria outlined in Section 6, proponents must consult with the 
local land-use authority(ies) on any proposed antenna system prior to any construction. The aim of this 
consultation is to:  
 
• discuss site options; 
 
• ensure that local processes related to antenna systems are respected; 
 
• address reasonable and relevant concerns (see Section 4.2) from both the land-use authority and the 

community they represent; and  
 
• obtain land-use authority concurrence in writing.  
 
Land-use authorities are encouraged to establish reasonable, relevant, and predictable consultation 
processes7 specific to antenna systems that consider such things as: 
                                                           
6  In all cases, telecommunications carriers, broadcasting undertakings and third party tower owners must notify and 

consult with the local public when proposing a new antenna tower either by following Industry Canada’s Default Public 
Consultation Process or, where one exists, the land-use authority’s public consultation process.. 

7  Industry Canada is available to assist land-use authorities in the development of local processes. In addition, land-use 
authorities may wish to consult Industry Canada’s guide for the development of local consultation processes. 



Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

7 
 

 
• the designation of suitable contacts or responsible officials; 
 
• proposal submission requirements; 
 
• public consultation; 
 
• documentation of the concurrence process; and 
 
• the establishment of milestones to ensure consultation process completion within 120 days. 
 
Where they have specific concerns regarding a proposed antenna system, land-use authorities are 
expected to discuss reasonable alternatives and/or mitigation measures with proponents. 
 
Under their processes, land-use authorities may exclude from consultation any antenna system 
installation in addition to those identified by Industry Canada’s own consultation exclusion criteria 
(Section 6). For example, an authority may wish to exclude from consultation those installations located 
within industrial areas removed from residential areas, low visual impact installations, or certain types of 
structures located within residential areas such as personal antenna systems (e.g. used for over the air 
and satellite television reception or amateur radio operation). 
 
4.2  Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process 
 
Proponents must follow Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process where the local land-use 
authority does not have an established and documented public consultation process applicable to antenna 
siting. Industry Canada’s default process has three steps whereby the proponent: 
 
1. provides written notification to the public, the land-use authority and Industry Canada of the 

proposed antenna system installation or modification (i.e. public notification);  
 
2. engages the public and the land-use authority in order to address relevant questions, comments and 

concerns regarding the proposal (i.e. responding to the public); and 
 
3. provides an opportunity to the public and the land-use authority to formally respond in writing to the 

proponent regarding measures taken to address reasonable and relevant concerns (i.e. public reply 
comment). 

 
Public Notification 
 
1. Proponents must ensure that the local public, the land-use authority and Industry Canada are notified 

of the proposed antenna system. As a minimum, proponents must provide a notification package (see 
Appendix 1) to the local public (including nearby residences, community gathering areas, public 
institutions, schools, etc.), neighbouring land-use authorities, businesses, and property owners, etc. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Municipalities may also wish to refer to the protocol template developed in partnership between the Federation of 
Canadian Municipalities (FCM) and the Canadian Wireless Telecommunications Association (CWTA). The 
FCM/CWTA template can be found on the FCM’s website www.fcm.ca.

 

http://www.fcm.ca/


Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

8 
 

located within a radius of three times the tower height.8 The radius is measured from the outside 
perimeter of the supporting structure. For the purpose of this requirement, the outside perimeter 
begins at the furthest point of the supporting mechanism, be it the outermost guy line, building edge, 
face of the self-supporting tower, etc. Public notification of an upcoming consultation must be 
clearly marked, making reference to the proposed antenna system, so that it is not misinterpreted as 
junk mail. The notice must be sent by mail or be hand delivered. The face of the package must 
clearly reference that the recipient is within the prescribed notification radius of the proposed 
antenna system. 
 

2. It is the proponent’s responsibility to ensure that the notification provides at least 30 days for written 
public comment.   

 
3. In addition to the minimum notification distance noted above, in areas of seasonal residence, the 

proponent, in consultation with the land-use authority, is responsible for determining the best 
manner to notify such residents to ensure their engagement. 

 
4. In addition to the public notification requirements noted above, proponents of an antenna system  

proposed to be 30 metres or more in height must place a notice in a local community newspaper 
circulating in the proposed area.9 Height is measured from the lowest ground level at the base, 
including the foundation, to the tallest point of the antenna system. Depending on the particular 
installation, the tallest point may be an antenna, lightning rod, aviation obstruction lighting or some 
other appurtenance. Any attempt to artificially reduce the height (addition of soil, aggregate, etc.) 
will not be included in the calculation or measurement of the height of the antenna system. 

 
Responding to the Public 
 
Proponents are to address all reasonable and relevant concerns, make all reasonable efforts to resolve 
them in a mutually acceptable manner and must keep a record of all associated communications. If the 
local public or land-use authority raises a question, comment or concern relating to the antenna system 
as a result of the public notification process, then the proponent is required to:  
 
1. respond to the party in writing within 14 days acknowledging receipt of the question, comment or 

concern and keep a record of the communication; 
 
2. address in writing all reasonable and relevant concerns within 60 days of receipt or explain why the 

question, comment or concern is not, in the view of the proponent, reasonable or relevant; and 
 
3. in the written communication referred to in the preceding point, clearly indicate that the party has 

21 days from the date of the correspondence to reply to the proponent’s response. The proponent 
must provide a copy of all public reply comments to the local Industry Canada office. 

                                                           
8  Proponents are advised that municipalities may set reasonable public notification distances appropriate for their 

communities when establishing their own protocols. 
 
9  The notice must be synchronized with the distribution of the public notification package. It must be legible and placed in 

the public notice section of the newspaper. The notice must include: a description of the proposed installation; its 
location and street address; proponent contact information and mailing address; and an invitation to provide public 
comments to the proponent within 30 days of the notice. In areas without a local newspaper, other effective means of 
public notification must be implemented. Proponents may contact the local Industry Canada office for guidance. 



Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

9 
 

 
Responding to reasonable and relevant concerns may include contacting a party by telephone, engaging 
in a community meeting or having an informal, personal discussion. Between steps 1 and 2 above, the 
proponent is expected to engage the public in a manner it deems most appropriate. Therefore, the letter 
at step 2 above may be a record of how the proponent and the other party addressed the concern at hand.  
 
Public Reply Comments 
 
As indicated in step 3 above, the proponent must clearly indicate that the party has 21 days from the date 
of the correspondence to reply to the response. The proponent must also keep a record of all 
correspondence/discussions that occurred within the 21-day public reply comment period. This includes 
records of any agreements that may have been reached and/or any concerns that remain outstanding. 
 
The factors that will determine whether a concern is reasonable or relevant according to this process will 
vary but will generally be considered if they relate to the requirements of this document and to the 
particular amenities or important characteristics of the area surrounding the proposed antenna system. 
Examples of concerns that proponents are to address may include: 
 
• Why is the use of an existing antenna system or structure not possible? 
 
• Why is an alternate site not possible? 
 
• What is the proponent doing to ensure that the antenna system is not accessible to the general public? 
 
• How is the proponent trying to integrate the antenna into the local surroundings? 
 
• What options are available to satisfy aeronautical obstruction marking requirements at this site? 
 
• What are the steps the proponent took to ensure compliance with the general requirements of this 

document including the Canadian Environmental Assessment Act (CEAA), Safety Code 6, etc.? 
 
Concerns that are not relevant include: 

 
• disputes with members of the public relating to the proponent’s service, but unrelated to antenna 

installations; 
 
• potential effects that a proposed antenna system will have on property values or municipal taxes;  
 
• questions whether the Radiocommunication Act, this document, Safety Code 6, locally established 

by-laws, other legislation, procedures or processes are valid or should be reformed in some manner. 
 
4.3 Concluding Consultation 

 
The proponent may only commence installation/modification of an antenna system after the consultation 
process has been completed by the land-use authority, or Industry Canada confirms concurrence with the 
consultation portion of this process, and after all other requirements under this process have been met. 
Consultation responsibilities will normally be considered complete when the proponent has: 
 



Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

10 
 

1. concluded consultation requirements (Section 4.1) with the land-use authority; 
 
2. carried out public consultation either through the process established by the land-use authority or 

Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process where required; and   
 
3. addressed all reasonable and relevant concerns. 
 
Concluding Land-use Authority Consultation  
 
Industry Canada expects that land-use consultation will be completed within 120 days from the 
proponent’s initial formal contact with the local land-use authority. Where unavoidable delays may be 
encountered, the land-use authority is expected to indicate when the proponent can expect a response to 
the proposal. If the authority is not responsive, the proponent may contact Industry Canada. Depending 
on individual circumstances, Industry Canada may support additional time or consider the land-use 
authority consultation process concluded. 
 
Depending on the land-use authority’s own process, conclusion of local consultation may include such 
steps as obtaining final concurrence for the proposal via the relevant committee, a letter or report 
acknowledging that the relevant municipal process or other requirements have been satisfied, or other 
valid indication, such as the minutes of a town council meeting indicating LUA approval. Compliance 
with informal city staff procedures, or grants of approval strictly related to zoning, construction, etc. will 
not normally be sufficient. 
 
Industry Canada recognizes that approvals for construction (e.g. building permits) are used by some 
land-use authorities as evidence of consultation being concluded. Proponents should note that 
Industry Canada does not consider the fact a permit was issued as confirmation of concurrence, as 
different land-use authorities have different approaches. As such, Industry Canada will only consider 
such approvals as valid when the proponent can demonstrate that the LUA’s process was followed and 
that the LUA’s preferred method of concluding LUA consultation is through such an approval. 
 
Concluding Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process 
 
Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process will be considered concluded when the 
proponent has either:  
 
• received no written questions, comments or concerns to the formal notification within the 30-day 

public comment period; or 
 
• if written questions, comments or concerns were received, the proponent has addressed and resolved 

all reasonable and relevant concerns and the public has not provided further comment within the 
21-day reply comment period. 

 
In the case where the public responds within the 21-day reply comment period, the proponent has the 
option of making further attempts to address the concern on its own, or can request Industry Canada 
engagement. If a request for engagement is made at this stage, Industry Canada will review the relevant 
material, request any further information it deems pertinent from any party and may then decide that: 
 



Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

11 
 

• the proponent has met the consultation requirements of this process and that Industry Canada concurs 
that installation or modification may proceed; or 

 
• the parties should participate in further attempts to mitigate or resolve any outstanding concern. 
 
4.4 Post-Consultation 
 
Whether the proponent followed a land-use authority’s consultation process or Industry Canada’s default 
public consultation process, construction of an antenna system must be completed within three years of 
the conclusion of consultation. After three years, consultations will no longer be deemed valid except in 
the case where a proponent secures the agreement of the relevant Land-Use Authority to an extension 
for a specified time period in writing.  A copy of the agreement must be provided to the local Industry 
Canada office. 
 
 
5.  Dispute Resolution Process 
 
The dispute resolution process is a formal process intended to bring about the timely resolution where 
the parties have reached an impasse.  
 
Upon receipt of a written request from a stakeholder other than the general public, asking for 
Departmental intervention concerning a reasonable and relevant concern, the Department may request 
that all involved parties provide and share all relevant information. The Department may also gather or 
obtain other relevant information and request that parties provide any further submissions if applicable.  
The Department will, based on the information provided, either: 
 
• make a final decision on the issue(s) in question, and advise the parties of its decision; or 
 
• suggest the parties enter into an alternate dispute resolution process in order to come to a final 

decision. Should the parties be unable to reach a mutually agreeable solution, either party may request 
that the Department make a final decision. 

 
Upon resolution of the issue under dispute, the proponent is to continue with the process contained 
within this document as required. 
 
 
6. Exclusions  
 
All proponents must satisfy the General Requirements outlined in Section 7 regardless of whether an 
exclusion applies to their proposal. All proponents must also consult the land-use authority and the 
public unless a proposal is specifically excluded. Individual circumstances vary with each antenna 
system installation and modification, and the exclusion criteria below should be applied in consideration 
of local circumstances. Consequently, it may be prudent for the proponent to consult even though the 
proposal meets an exclusion noted below. Therefore, when applying the criteria for exclusion, 
proponents should consider such things as: 
 
• the antenna system’s physical dimensions, including the antenna, mast, and tower, compared to the 

local surroundings; 



Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

12 
 

• the location of the proposed antenna system on the property and its proximity to neighbouring 
residents; 

• the likelihood of an area being a community-sensitive location; and 
• Transport Canada’s marking and lighting requirements for the proposed structure. 
 
The following proposals are excluded from land-use authority and public consultation requirements: 
 
• New Antenna Systems: where the height is less than 15 metres above ground level. This exclusion 

does not apply to antenna systems proposed by telecommunications carriers, broadcasting 
undertakings or third party tower owners;  

 
• Existing Antenna Systems: where modifications are made, antennas added or the tower replaced10, 

including to facilitate sharing, provided that the total cumulative height increase is no greater than 
25% of the height of the initial antenna system installation11. No increase in height may occur within 
one year of completion of the initial construction.  This exclusion does not apply to antenna systems 
using purpose built antenna supporting structures with a height of less than 15 metres above ground 
level operated by telecommunications carriers, broadcasting undertakings or third party tower owners; 

 
• Non-Tower Structure: antennas on buildings, water towers, lamp posts, etc. may be excluded from 

consultation provided that the height above ground of the non-tower structure, exclusive of 
appurtenances, is not increased by more than 25%;12 and 

 
• Temporary Antenna Systems: used for special events or emergency operations and must be removed 

within three months after the start of the emergency or special event. 
 
No consultation is required prior to performing maintenance on an existing antenna system. 
 
Proponents who are not certain if their proposals are excluded, or whether consultation may still be 
prudent, are advised to contact the land-use authority and/or Industry Canada for guidance. 
 
Height is measured from the lowest ground level at the base, including the foundation, to the tallest 
point of the antenna system. Depending on the particular installation, the tallest point may be an 
antenna, lightning rod, aviation obstruction lighting or some other appurtenance. Any attempt to 
artificially reduce the height (addition of soil, aggregate, etc.) will not be included in the calculation or 
measurement of the height of the antenna system. 
 
 
7.  General Requirements 
 
In addition to roles and responsibilities for site sharing, land-use consultation and public consultation, 
proponents must also fulfill other important obligations including: compliance with Health Canada’s 
                                                           
10  The exclusion for the replacement of existing antenna systems applies to replacements that are similar to the original 

design and location. 
 
11  Initial antenna system installation refers to the system as it was first consulted on, or installed. 
 
12  Telecommunication carriers, operators of broadcasting undertakings and third party tower owners may benefit from local 

knowledge by contacting the land-use authority when planning an antenna system that meets this exclusion criteria. 



Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

13 
 

Safety Code 6 guideline for the protection of the general public; compliance with radio frequency 
immunity criteria; notification of nearby broadcasting stations; environmental considerations; and 
Transport Canada/NAV CANADA aeronautical safety responsibilities. 
 
7.1 Radio Frequency Exposure Limits 
 
Health Canada has established safety guidelines for exposure to radio frequency fields, in its Safety 
Code 6 publication, entitled: Limits of Human Exposure to Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Fields in 
the Frequency Range from 3 kHz to 300 GHz.13 While the responsibility for developing Safety Code 6 
rests with Health Canada, Industry Canada has adopted this guideline for the purpose of protecting the 
general public. Current biomedical studies in Canada and other countries indicate that there is no 
scientific or medical evidence that a person will experience adverse health effects from exposure to 
radio frequency fields, provided that the installation complies with Safety Code 6. 
 
It is the responsibility of proponents and operators of installations to ensure that all radiocommunication 
and broadcasting installations comply with Safety Code 6 at all times, including the consideration of 
combined effects of nearby installations within the local radio environment.   
 
Telecommunications common carriers and operators of broadcasting undertakings are to carry out an 
exposure evaluation on all new installations and following any increases in radiated power. Either 
measurement surveys or mathematical or numerical computations can be used for this evaluation. Where 
the radio frequency emission of any installation, whether telecommunications carrier or broadcasting 
operator, is greater than, or is equal to, 50%, of the Safety Code 6 limits for uncontrolled environments 
at locations accessible to the general public (i.e. not solely available for access by workers), the 
operator(s) of radio frequency emitters must notify Industry Canada and demonstrate compliance with 
Safety Code 6. This determination of 50% of Safety Code 6 must be in consideration of the local radio 
environment. 
 
For all proponents following Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process, the proponent’s 
notification package must provide a written attestation that there will be compliance with Safety Code 6 
for the protection of the general public, including consideration of nearby radiocommunication systems. 
The notification package must also indicate any Safety Code 6 related signage and access control 
mechanisms that may be used.  
Compliance with Safety Code 6 is an ongoing obligation. At any time, antenna system operators may be 
required, as directed by Industry Canada, to demonstrate compliance with Safety Code 6 by (i) 
providing detailed calculations, and/or (ii) conducting site surveys and, where necessary, by 
implementing corrective measures.14 At the request of Industry Canada, telecommunications carriers 
and operators of broadcasting undertakings must provide detailed compliance information for individual 
installations within five days of the request. Proponents and operators of existing antenna systems must 
retain copies of all information related to Safety Code 6 compliance such as analyses and measurements. 
 

                                                           
13  To obtain an electronic copy of Safety Code 6, contact: publications@hc-sc.gc.ca. 
 
14  See Client Procedures Circular CPC-2-0-20, Radio Frequency (RF) Fields – Signs and Access Control. 
 

mailto:publications@hc-sc.gc.ca?subject=(HC%20Pub.%20091029)%20Limits%20of%20Human%20Exposure%20to%20Radiofrequency%20Electromagnetic%20Energy%20in%20the%20Frequency%20Range%20from%203%20kHz%20to%20300%20GHz%20-%20Safety%20Code%206%20(2009)
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf10249.html


Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

14 
 

7.2  Radio Frequency Immunity 
 
All radiocommunication and broadcasting proponents and existing spectrum users are to ensure that 
their installations are designed and operated in accordance with Industry Canada’s immunity criteria as 
outlined in EMCAB-215 in order to minimize the malfunctioning of electronic equipment in the local 
surroundings. Broadcasting proponents and existing undertakings should refer to Broadcasting 
Procedures and Rules - Part 1, General Rules (BPR-1) for additional information and requirements16 on 
this matter. 
 
Proponents are advised to consider the potential effect that their proposal may have on nearby electronic 
equipment. In this way, they will be better prepared to respond to any questions that may arise during 
the public and land-use consultation processes, or after the system has been installed. 
 
Land-use authorities should be prepared to advise proponents and owners of broadcasting undertakings 
of plans for the expansion or development of nearby residential and/or industrial areas. Such expansion 
or development generally results in the introduction of more electronic equipment in the area and 
therefore an increased potential for electronic equipment to malfunction. By keeping broadcasters aware 
of planned developments and changes to adjacent land-use, they will be better able to work with the 
community. Equally, land-use authorities have a responsibility to ensure that those moving into these 
areas, whether prospective residents or industry, are aware of the potential for their electronic equipment 
to malfunction when located in proximity to an existing broadcasting installation. For example, the LUA 
could ensure that clear notification be provided to future prospective purchasers. 
 
7.3 Proximity of Proposed Structure to Broadcasting Undertakings  
 
Where the proposal would result in a structure that exceeds 30 metres above ground level, the proponent 
is to notify operators of AM, FM and TV undertakings within 2 kilometres, due to the potential impact 
the physical structure may have on these broadcasting undertakings. Metallic structures close to an AM 
directional antenna array may change the antenna pattern of the AM broadcasting undertaking. These 
proposed structures can also reflect nearby FM and TV signals, causing “ghosting” interference to 
FM/TV receivers used by the general public. 
 
7.4 Canadian Environmental Assessment Act  

Industry Canada requires that the installation and modification of antenna systems be done in a manner 
that complies with appropriate environmental legislation. This includes the Canadian Environmental 
Assessment Act, 2012 (CEAA 2012), where the antenna system is incidental to a physical activity or 
project designated under CEAA 2012, or is located on federal lands. 

An antenna system may not proceed where it is incidental to a designated project (as described in the 
Regulations Designating Physical Activities), or is otherwise expressly designated by the Minister of the 

                                                           
15  For more information see EMCAB-2, entitled: Criteria for Resolution of Immunity Complaints Involving Fundamental 

Emissions of Radiocommunications Transmitters available at: http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf01005.html.  
 
16  BPR-1 - Part I: General Rules can be found on the Spectrum Management and Telecommunications website at: 

http://strategis.ic.gc.ca/epic/internet/insmt-gst.nsf/en/sf01326e.html.

 

http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/C-15.21/FullText.html
http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/C-15.21/FullText.html
http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/regulations/SOR-2012-147/FullText.html
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/smt-gst.nsf/eng/sf01005.html
http://strategis.ic.gc.ca/epic/internet/insmt-gst.nsf/en/sf01326e.html


Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

15 
 

Environment without satisfying certain requirements applicable to designated projects. Therefore, a 
proponent of this type of project must contact Industry Canada for direction on how to proceed. 

Any proposed antenna system on federal land may not proceed without a determination of 
environmental effects by Industry Canada. In order to assist the Department in making such a 
determination, proponents must submit a project description to Industry Canada, considering and 
addressing those elements of the environment described in CEAA 2012, as well as any determination of 
environmental effects that may have been made by the authority responsible for managing the federal 
land. Industry Canada may also require further information before it can complete its assessment. 
Industry Canada will inform the proponent of the results of its determination and may impose conditions 
related to mitigating any adverse effects after making its determination and/or may need to refer the 
matter to the Governor-in-Council under CEAA 2012. 

In addition, notices under Industry Canada’s default public consultation process require written 
confirmation of the project’s status under CEAA 2012 (e.g., whether it is incidental to a designated 
project or, if not, whether it is on federal lands). 

In addition to CEAA requirements, proponents are responsible to ensure that antenna systems are 
installed and operated in a manner that respects the local environment and that complies with other 
statutory requirements, such as those under the Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999, the 
Migratory Birds Convention Act, 1994, and the Species at Risk Act, as applicable. 

For projects north of the 60th parallel, environmental assessment requirements may arise from federal 
statutes other than the aforementioned Acts or from Comprehensive Land Claim Agreements. Industry 
Canada requires that installation or modification of antennas or antenna supporting structures be done in 
accordance with these requirements, as appropriate. 

7.5 Aeronautical Safety 
 
Proponents must ensure their proposals for any antenna system are first reviewed by Transport Canada 
and NAV CANADA. 
 
Transport Canada will perform an assessment of the proposal with respect to the potential hazard to air 
navigation and will notify proponents of any painting and/or lighting requirements for the antenna 
system. NAV CANADA will comment on whether the proposal has an impact on the provision of their 
national air navigation system, facilities and other services located off-airport. 
 
As required, the proponent must: 
 
1.  submit an Aeronautical Obstruction Clearance form to Transport Canada; 
 
2.  submit a Land-use Proposal Submission form to NAV CANADA; 
 
3.  include Transport Canada marking requirements in the public notification package; 
 
4. install and maintain the antenna system in a manner that is not a hazard to aeronautical 
 safety; and  
 

http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/c-15.31/FullText.html
http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/M-7.01/FullText.html
http://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/s-15.3/FullText.html


Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

16 
 

5.  retain all correspondence. 
 

For those antenna systems subject to Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process, the 
proponent will inform the community of any marking requirements. Where options are possible, 
proponents are expected to work with the local community and Transport Canada to implement the best 
and safest marking options. Proponents should be aware that Transport Canada does not advise 
Industry Canada of marking requirements for proposed structures. Proponents are reminded that the 
addition of, or modification to, obstruction markings may result in community concern and so any 
change is to be done in consultation with the local public, land-use authority and/or Transport Canada, 
as appropriate. 
 
References and Details 
 
Aeronautical Obstruction Clearance forms are available from any Transport Canada Aviation Group 
Office. Both the Aeronautical Obstruction Clearance form (#26-0427) and a list of Transport Canada 
Aviation Group regional offices are available on the Transport Canada website.17 Completed forms are 
to be submitted directly to the nearest Transport Canada Aviation Group office. (Refer to Canadian 
Aviation Regulations, Standard 621.19, Standards Obstruction Markings). 
 
Land-use Proposal Submission forms are available from NAV CANADA18 and completed forms are to 
be sent to the appropriate NAV CANADA General Manager Airport Operations (GMAO) office, East or 
West. 
 
 
 

                                                           
17  The Transport Canada website can be found at: http://www.tc.gc.ca. 
 
18   Search keywords “Land-use Proposal” on the NAV CANADA website at: http://www.navcanada.ca. 

http://www.tc.gc.ca/
http://www.navcanada.ca/


Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

17 
 

 Appendix 1 – Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation Process - Public Notification 
Package  

 
 
The proponent must ensure that at least 30 days are provided for public comment. Notification must 
provide all information on how to submit comments to the proponent in writing. Notices must be clearly 
marked, making reference to the proposed antenna system, so that it is not misinterpreted as junk mail. 
The notice must be sent by mail or be hand delivered. The face of the package must clearly indicate that 
the recipient is within the prescribed notification radius of the proposed antenna system. The proponent 
must also provide a copy of the notification package to the land-use authority and the local 
Industry Canada office at the same time as the package is provided to the public. 
 
Notification must include, but need not be limited to: 
 
1)  the proposed antenna system’s purpose, the reasons why existing antenna systems or other 

infrastructure cannot be used, a list of other structures that were considered unsuitable and future 
sharing possibilities for the proposal; 

 
2)  the proposed location within the community, the geographic coordinates and the specific property 

or rooftop; 
 
3)  an attestation19 that the general public will be protected in compliance with Health Canada’s 

Safety Code 6 including combined effects within the local radio environment at all times; 
 
4)  identification of areas accessible to the general public and the access/demarcation measures to 

control public access; 
 
5)  information on the environmental status of the project, including any requirements under the 

Canadian Environmental Assessment Act, 2012; 
 
6)  a description of the proposed antenna system including its height and dimensions, a description of 

any antenna that may be mounted on the supporting structure and simulated images of the 
proposal; 

 
7)  Transport Canada’s aeronautical obstruction marking requirements (whether painting, lighting or 

both) if available; if not available, the proponent’s expectation of Transport Canada’s requirements 
together with an undertaking to provide Transport Canada’s requirements once they become 
available; 

 
8)  an attestation that the installation will respect good engineering practices including structural 

adequacy; 
 
9)  reference to any applicable local land-use requirements such as local processes, protocols, etc.; 
                                                           
19  Example: I, (name of individual or representative of company) attest that the radio installation described in this 

notification package will be installed and operated on an ongoing basis so as to comply with Health Canada’s Safety 
Code 6, as may be amended from time to time, for the protection of the general public, including any combined effects of 
nearby installations within the local radio environment. 

 



Radiocommunication and Broadcasting Antenna Systems  CPC-2-0-03 
 c 

18 
 

 
10) notice that general information relating to antenna systems is available on Industry Canada’s 

Spectrum Management and Telecommunications website (http://www.ic.gc.ca/towers); 
 
11)  contact information for the proponent, land-use authorities and the local Industry Canada office; 

and 
 
12) closing date for submission of written public comments (not less than 30 days from receipt of 

notification). 



The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver Page 1 
Bylaw, 2021, No. 8882 Document: 2091175-v1 

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

BYLAW NO. 8882 

A Bylaw to amend “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700” 

The Council of The Corporation of the City of North Vancouver, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw shall be known and cited for all purposes as “Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700, 

Amendment Bylaw, 2021, No. 8882” (Third Party Rooftop Antenna Systems). 
 

2. Division II: General Zoning Standards, Part 4, section 409 Height Exceptions, in “Zoning 
Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700”, is hereby amended as follows: 

 
A. By removing Section (9) in its entirety and replacing it with “Third Party Rooftop 

Antenna Systems and any associated screening structures;” 
 

B. By removing section (10) in its entirety. 
 

3. The “Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Area Guidelines”, as attached to this bylaw, 
replace the “Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Area Guidelines” currently integral to 
“Zoning Bylaw, 1995, No. 6700”. 

 
 

READ a first time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

READ a second time on the <> day of <>, 
2021. 

READ a third time on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

ADOPTED on the <> day of <>, 2021. 

 
MAYOR 

 
CORPORATE OFFICER 


	1 Agenda
	2 Minutes Sep 29 2021�
	3 Minutes Oct 4 2021�
	4 Minutes Oct 8 2021�
	Proc - Waste Reduction Week�
	*5 Bylaw 8871
	*6 MV Board in Brief
	PH - 705 W 3
	Report - 705 W 3
	1-Map
	2-Summary
	3-Plans
	4-Consultation

	Staff PP - 705 W 3�
	Applicant PP - 705 W 3�
	Notice - 705 W 3�

	7 Bylaw 8839�
	8 Bylaw 8840
	PH - 2762 Lonsdale
	Report - 2762 Lonsdale
	1-Map
	2-Summary
	3-Architectural Plans
	4-Landscape Plans
	5-Consultation

	Staff PP - 2762 Lonsdale�
	Applicant PP - 2762 Lonsdale�
	Submissions - 2762 Lonsdale�
	Notice - 2762 Lonsdale�

	9 Bylaw 8874
	10 Bylaw 8875
	PHW - 620 Jones
	Report - 620 Jones
	1-Map
	2-Plans
	3-Consultation

	Notice - 620 Jones�

	11 Bylaw 8870
	12 2021-2030 Revised Financial Plan
	12-1 Revised Project Sheets
	12-2 Lawn Bowling Funding Request

	13 Bylaw 8881
	14 HJCRC Update
	14-1 Design Development Report
	14-2 Construction Mgmt Scope of Services

	15 NVRC Interim Plan
	15-1 Addressing Financial Barriers
	15-2 Financial Assistance Webpage

	16 Lower Lonsdale Business Improvement Area
	16-1 Report Jan 20 2021

	17 Bylaw 8879
	18 Duplex Special Study
	18-1 Duplex Study Area Boundaries
	18-2 Existing Land Use Map
	18-3 Recommended Land Use Map
	18-4 Report Feb 28 2018
	18-5 Report May 11 2021

	19 Bylaw 8757
	20 Bylaw 8758
	21 322 W 14
	21-1 Map
	21-2 Plans
	21-3 Consultation

	22 Bylaw 8873
	23 115 E Keith
	23-1 Map
	23-2 Plans
	23-3 Workshop Summary
	23-4 Consultation
	23-5 Lets Talk Engagement Survey
	23-6 Tenant Relocation Plan
	IR Pilot Development Approvals Process�
	IR-1 Balanced Housing Lab Process
	IR-2 Workshop Summary�
	IR-3 Consultation�
	IR-4 Lets Talk Engagement Survey


	24 Bylaw 8877
	25 Rooftop Antenna Development Permit Guidelines
	24-1 2021 Permit Guidelines�
	24-2 2017 Permit Guidelines�
	24-3 Guide for Developing Siting Protocols�
	24-4 Client Procedures�

	26 Bylaw 8882



